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CASES DETERMINED
BY THE

SUPREME COURT IS EQUITY
OF

NEW BRUNSWICK.
1904

It is not a ground for refusing an order for security for costs, 
where plaintiff is resident abroad, that the suit is for fore­
closure of mortgage.

Summons for an order for security for costs, on the 
ground that the plaintiff resides out of the jurisdiction.

The suit was for the foreclosure of a first mortgage on 
lands situate in King’s County, given by the defendant to 
the plaintiff. The principal money advanced under the 
mortgage was £3,500, and the condition of redeeming was 
the payment of £6,000, and a transfer of fully paid-up shares 
of the par value of £5,000, in a company known as the New 
Brunswick Salt and Alkali Works, Limited. The mort­
gaged property consists of 1450 acres of land, a dwelling- 
house, barns, and a number of other buildings, for which 
the defendant had paid between SI4,000 and SI5,000. On 
the hearing of the summons it appeared from plaintiffs 
affidavit that no part of the principal money had been 
repaid, that the mortgage was undischarged on the records, 
and that the mortgaged premises were in the plaintiff's 
possession.

voi. m. n. a. K. B.-1.

BUCHANAN v. HAKVIE. 

Practice—Security for conta—Foreclosure suit.



2 NEW BRUNSWICK EQUITY REPORTS.

Buchanan

1004. Argument was heard May 27, 1904. 

W. H. Trueman, for the plaintiff :—

Security for costs should not be ordered. A fore­
closure suit is distinguishable from an ordinary action. Its 
purpose is to provide the defendant with an opportunity to 
redeem, failing which a decree may be made barring his 
title. Unless he sets up on this application that he has 
satisfied the mortgage, or that he has a defence on the 
merits, it would be vexatious that the mortgagee should be 
ordered to give security. It is not unfair to ask of 
the defendant that he disclose a bona fide defence 
before this application can be granted. In Thompson v. 
Callagan (1), security was ordered in a foreclosure suit 
where the mortgagor disputed that anything was due- 
Counsel for the defendant there admitted that in an ordi­
nary mortgage case, it was not usual to grant security, and 
in the judgment in the case it was accepted that this is 
the rule. In Leng v. Smith (2), it was held that a caveator 
residing out of the jurisdiction, making a claim to land 
under a registered mortgage, would not be obliged to give 
security for costs, unless the enveatee in good faith disputed 
that there was anything due or owing on the mortgage. 
In Tliuremm v. Thuremm (8), the action was for recovery 
of land, and judgment for possession was given in favor of 
the plaintiffs. The defendants appealed, anil they asked for 
an order dispensing with security for costs, on the ground 
that they had expended 8500 in improvements upon the 
land. It was held that security might be dispensed with, 
or the lien for improvements charged by way of security, 
were the plaintiffs not entitled to mesne profits as against 
the improvements. In Armstrong v. Armstrong (4), a 
plaint iff applied summarily for an administration order, and 
it appeared that he had an interest worth 8278 in the estate 
in respect of which be applied. It was held that he should 
not lie ordered to give security for costs, upon his consent-

(1) 3Ch. Ch. 15. (3) 18 P. R. 414.
(2) 14 Man. R. 258. (4) 18 P. R. 55.
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ing that his interest in the estate should be subject to a I !I04 
first charge in respect of any costs which he might be Hiciiaxix 
ordered to pay. In the present case any costs from the ll'imn. 
plaintif!’ to the defendant could be applied in reduction of 
the mortgage debt. See Wheaton v. Graham (1); Cowdry 
v. Day (2). The rule that on an application for security 
for costs the defendant is not bound to disclose his defence 
is no longer strictly construed. In Daffy v. Donovan (3)> 
the plaintiff, who lived out of the jurisdiction, sued the 
defendants for an account and payment of funds which he 
alleged they held as joint trustees for him. Robertson, J„ 
in Chambers, ordered that the plaintiff should give security 
for costs, holding that on the application he could not 
determine whether or not the defendants had in their hands 
moneys of the plaintiff, for that would be in effect deciding 
the questions involved in the action. On appeal before 
Boyd, C., and Meredith, J., this judgment was reversed. 
Chancellor Boyd said that it appeared to him to be a 
vexatious proceeding to stay the action until the plaintiff 
gave security. There was a fund in the hands of the 
defendants, out of which their costs could be paid. The 
principles, which were applied in Re Carroll (4); and 
recently in Re Contract and Agency Corporation (5), 
shewed that the discretion of the Court in those cases 
where the defendants were possessed of funds belonging to 
the plaintiff, would be exercised against hampering the 
plaintiff. Mr. Justice Meredith, dealing with the argu­
ment that the defendant was not bound to disclose his 
defence, said that under the circumstances of that case, if 
the defendant did not choose to disclose it, he could not 
have the order.

K. G. Kaye, for the defendant :—

The rule that a plaintiff residing abroad will be com­
pelled to give security for costs does not admit of any

(1) 2« Beav. 483.
(2) 5 Jur. (N. 8.) 111».

(3) 14 P. R. 157.
(4) 2 Ch. Ch. 305.

(5) 57 L. J. (Ch.) 5.
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I! 104. exception. In Crozat v. Brogden (3), it is referred to as 
in . ii isAN an inflexible rule. The plaintiff here seeks to go into the 
Mmill, merits of the action. That cannot be done: Crozat v. 

Brogden (1). In Britieh Linen Co. v. McEwen (2), Killam, 
.1., says : “ It has never, so far as I know, been determined 
that, in answer to the prima facie case made for security 
by shewing the plaintiff to be resident out of the jurisdic­
tion of the Court, a plaintiff can file material * * * and 
oblige a defendant to shew that he has some defence." This 
Court held in Gould v. Britt (3), that it is not a ground for 
refusing to order security for costs in a suit to set aside a 
conveyance by defendant, as fraudulent against the plain­
tiff, that ho has an unsatisfied judgment against the 
defendant in a Court within the Province. The same 
practice was followed in the earlier case of Tliibaudeau v. 
Scott (4). It might be argued here that, as the plaintiff 
has a mortgage upon land within the Province, there is no 
need of security. The exception that security will not be 
ordered where the plaintiff has assets within the jurisdic­
tion would not he applicable where the property is the 
subject-matter in litigation. Security has been required in 
ejectment and replevin suits.

1904. June 4. Barker, J. :—

1 do not think there is anything in this case to take it 
outside of the ordinary rule. The plaintiff must give 
security.

(1)|!8M|2Q. II. 311.
(216 Man. R. 21).

(31 2 N. II. Eq. 453. 
(4) 1 N. B. Eq. 505.
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SHAUUNESSY v. THE IMPERIAL TRUSTS COMPANY.

Company—Debenture mortgage Foreclooure Parties- Cotits - 
Form of itecree.

A suit to enforce » trust mortgage to secure debentures may lie 
tu'ought in the name of the debenture holders, the trustee 
being made a defendant.

In a suit by tbe holder of debentures to enforce a trust mortgage, 
the trustees made defendants ill the suit were disallowed 
costs of a part of their answer setting up that the suit should 
have lieeti brought in their name.

Form of decree adopted in suit to foreclose debenture mortgage.

The facts fully appear in the judgment of the Court.

Argument was heard May 17, 1904.

IT. Puysley, A.-G., and !.. P. D. Tilley, for the defend­
ants, the Imperial Trusts Company :—

The Imperial Trusts Company have the exclusive 
right to bring an action for the foreclosure of the mort­
gage in the suit The contract of the mortgagor is with 
them and not with the plaintiff debenture-holder. It 
could only be in event of a refusal by them to take pro­
ceedings that he would be entitled to bring them.

A. 0. Earle, K.C., and F. R. Taylor, lor the plaintiff : —

The trustee company have no interest in the subject- 
matter of the suit not represented by the plaintiff. Whether 
he intervenes by himself or by them, for the protection of 
interests exclusively his own, cannot therefore be material.

1904. June G. Larker, J.:—

It appears by the record that the defendants, the 
Algonipiin Hotel Company, in order to raise the money 
necessary for the construction and equipment of their hotel 
at St. Andrews, issued 375 debentures, each for the sum of

1904.
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1904. 8100, which were secured by a mortgage on the real and
mimi'unkwt personal property of the company to the defendants, the 

Imperial Trusts Company,which mortgage is dated January 
29, 1895. These debentures are all held and owned by the 
plaintiff. Among other provisions contained in the mort­
gage, there is one for the payment to the trust company 
of a certain remuneration for their services as trustee— 
that is to say, 8100 on the execution of the mortgage, which 
was paid, and a commission of one per cent, “upon all 
interest money paid by or through said trust company for 
said hotel company on said lKinds," and “ a commission 
of one-quarter of one per cent, upon all principal moneys 
so paid,” “ by or through said trust company," and a 
further commission of 820 each year after the expiration 
of five years. These commissions were to be paid by the 
hotel company, together with moneys whenever dep-isited 
with the trust company for payment of bonds or interest. 
That is, as I read the clause, whenever the hotel company 
paid to the trust company any money, either for principal 
or interest, the commission on the amount became pay­
able at the same time. The mortgage also contains the 
usual stipulation that, in case of default, the trust com­
pany were authorized, and it was their duty, to take 
possession and sell, provided they were requested to do so 
by a certain proportion of the bondholders, and a sufficient 
indemnity against costs was furnished. The plaintiff has 
filed this bill for the enforcement of his security and for a 
sale of the property ; and. strange to say, the only defence 
set up came from the plaintiff’s own trustee, and it is this : 
The trust company assert that, as mortgagees, they are the 
only persons in whose name such a proceeding can lie taken, 
or at all events, that the plaintiff cannot do so until the 
company have refused to proceed or allow their name to be 
used for the purpose. This contention cannot, I think, be 
sustained. I can see no reason why the cestui que trust 
should not have the right of enforcing his own security. 
It is his money, not that of his trustee, which is at stake, 
and it is his money which, in the case of a deficiency, must
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pay the costs. In Palmer (1), the practice is thus laid 1904 
down : “ Where there is a trust deed, the action will Shauoskwv

generally be by one of the debenture or debenture stock 
holders, on behalf of himself and all the other holders of 'Thus™ 
debentures or debenture stock of the same class, against ,)(—(jr j 
the company and the trustees of the deed. So, too, where 
the security' is contained partly in the debentures and 
partly in the trust deed, the action will be by one of the 
debenture or debenture stock holders, suing on behalf of 
himself and all the other holders of debentures or deben­
ture stock of the same class against the company and the 
trustees." The same author says that the trustees and 
all other persons interested in the equity of redemption 
should be made defendants, and he adds that sometimes 
the trustees of a trust deed themselves bring the action to 
enforce the security, citing Robinmn v. Montgomeryshire 
Rrewery Co. (2); putting that as an exceptional course.
The right to take the proceeding does not depend in any 
way upon the trustee refusing. It is the absolute right of 
the cestui que trust, in order to enforce his own security 
and recover his own debt. But if the trust company’s 
contention in this respect could be sustained, I should 
incline to think that there is evidence substantially' of a 
refusal. In the correspondence set out by the trust company 
in their answer, there is a letter dated October 23, 1903, 
from which it is fairly to be inferred that the sole reason 
why the plaintiff’s application for leave to use the com­
pany’s name was not given was that they insisted upon 
their own firm of solicitors being employed, while the 
plaintiff, whose money was at stake, and whose interests 
alone were at stake, very naturally preferred his own.
And the only reason given by the company for insisting 
that the proceedings should be entrusted to the firm of 
solicitors selected by them, was that the business had 
originally come through them to the company. It looks 
as though the trust company viewed the interests of the 
landholders as secondary to their own.

(1) Company Precedents, Part III., 816. (2) [18M6| 2 Ch. 841.
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1904. In In re Channell (1), a cestui r/ue trust filed a bill to set 
.-mai iiM s»v aside an investment made by his trustee, and as it appeared

( Tib. at the hearing that the money was in no danger, and 
1 >■' »i'« could be obtained at any time, the Vice-Chancellor deprived 

him of his costs. James, L J„ said that he believed that theUurki-r. J. _ ’ * t
action would not have been brought if the plaintiff had 
not read some Ixxik on trusts, and thought that he, being 
a solicitor, would make a little profit out of it The 
trustees, as other mortgagees, are entitled of right to be 
kept whole as to costs and expenses properly incurred in 
the execution of their trust unless in some way they have 
forfeited that right by misconduct. In this case the trust 
company, having been made a defendant, had the right to 
appear in the suit so that they might have notice of the 
proceedings and protect themselves ns to their commissions, 
but the simplest form of application to the Court at 
any time was ample for that pur|iose. The remuneration to 
the trust com|>any will be allowed to the extent that it has 
been earned under the terms of the mortgage—that is, $20 
a year for two years, 840 ; and one per cent on the 82,922 
interest paid ; in all, 809.22. It was stated at the hearing 
by the trust company's Counsel that the commission on the 
82,922 had been earned by the company, because the money 
had been by their direction paid by the hotel company 
direct to the holders of the bonds. If that be so I am at a 
loss to see how the company could have answered the sixth 
section of the bill by saying that they had no knowledge 
or information in reference to the matters therein set out, 
except as informed by the plaintiff's bill. This sixth sec­
tion alleges a default in payment of interest, and that the 
total sum paid for interest was this 82,922, on which the 
company now claims a commission because they directed 
the hotel company to pay it direct, instead of collecting 
and disbursing it themselvea It seems also difficult to see 
how the trust coni|>any could be in entire ignorance as to 
whether the hotel company was or was not in default, for 
the interest coupons were all payable at their St. John

(1) 8 Ch. U. 402,
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office. There will lie no commission allowed on the proceeds 
of the sale, as the money thus produced will not be re­
ceived or disbursed by or through the trust company, but 
by the officer of this Court.

The trust company having failed in establishing that part 
of their case which relates to the plaintiff"s right of action, 
should be compelled to pay the plaintiff" any costs he may 
have incurred by reason of that claim being put forward. 
The sum, perhaps, would be too small to go to the cost of 
taxing, but the trustees cannot have their costs of the 
sections in their answer which relate to this point.

The decree will lie us follows (see Batten v. Wedgwood 
Coat Co. ( 1 )) : Assess the amount due the plaintiff on the 
debentures, including interest up to February 1, 1904, and 
deducting the 82,922 paid on account of interest, at 
354,828, and the trustees’ allowance at 869.22. Order the 
mortgage property sold in one parcel in pursuance of the 
provisions of the Act of Assembly, under the direction of 
a Referee, at which sale the plaintiff is to have leave to 
bid. That in case the plaintiff shall become the purchaser 
he shall not be compelled to pay as a cash deposit a greater 
sum than may, in the opinion of the Referee, be sufficient 
to pay the various charges on the fund taking priority to 
the plaintiff's claim as a debenture holder as hereinafter 
set forth, and the balance (if any) which may be payable to 
the hotel company ; and he shall, in satisfaction of the bal­
ance of the purchase money, deposit the said 375 deben­
tures held by him with the Referee, who shall hold the 
same until the sale shall have been completed, and the 
proceeds distributed, and shall then deliver them up 
as is hereinafter directed. That out of the said deposit 
the Referee shall pay the costs and charges having priority 
to the plaintiff’s claim as debenture holder as hereinafter 
mentioned ; and if the whole purchase money is sufficient 
to pay the plaintiff the said sum of 854,828, together with 
subsequent interest in addition to the prior charges, the 
Referee shall deliver the said debentures to the hotel com­
pany to be cancelled, and pay them the balance, if any.

(I) 28 Ch. D. 817.

1904.
-II u iissaev

IMI'KKIAI.
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Ilnvker. .1.
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If the plaintiff shall not become the purchaser, then 
the Referee shall pay and distribute the proceeds of the 
said sale so far as they may go, in the following order and 
priority, that is to say :

1. The costs of the Referee, including therein the 
costs of sale, advertising, and auctioneer’s fees.

2. The sum of 869.22 to the trustees, and also the 
costs of this suit (excepting the costs of sections 5, 6, 7, 8. 
9, and 10 of their answer), to be taxed as between solicitor 
and client

3. The plaintiff1 s costs, to be taxed.
4. The plaintiff, as holder of debentures, the sum of 

$54,828 and subsequent interest.
5. And if there remain any balance, the Referee shall 

pay the same to the hotel company, and at the same time 
deliver the debentures to the company to be cancelled.

But if it should happen that in either of such cases 
the amount for which the premises shall be sold shall be 
insufficient for the payment in full of the amount due to 
the plaintiff, and the prior charges, then the Referee shall 
distribute the balanr i remaining after payment of the 
prior charges equal 1 / as a payment pro tuntu on the deben­
tures, and endorse on each the payment thereon, and 
he shall deliver the said debentures so endorsed to the 
plaintiff.
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COOL v. COOL.

Will—Construction—Maintenance clause—lÀtn.
Where a testator by Ilia will gave his estate, consisting of farm 

and dwelling, and personal property, to his son, upon con­
dition that he would maintain testator’s widow and daughters, 
except in the event of their marrying or leaving home, and 
declared that they should have a home in the dwelling while 
unmarried, it was held that the estate was charged with 
their maintenance.

By his will, dated March 14, 1892, Alexander Cool 
gave and bequeathed all his real and personal estate to 
his son, David K. Cool, upon condition that he would 
maintain and support the testator’s wife and his daugh­
ters, Ann Cool, Edith Cool, and Emma Cool, during their 
natural life : in the event of any or all of said daughters 
getting married or leaving home freely and of their own 
accord, respectively, then and in such case the testator 
provided that his said son should be free from any obliga­
tion to support or contribute towards the support of hie 
said daughters, or any of them, as the case might be, while 
away, but that it was his will and clear intention that 
each of them would have a home in the testator's dwel­
ling house when they so desired while unmarried, who, 
while they remained home, should work around the house 
as theretofore. The testator died April 7, 1901, possessed 
of a farm with dwelling thereon, situate in the Parish of 
Addington, Restigouche County, and also of personal 
estate. He left him surviving his widow and the three 
daughters and son named in the will. The widow and one 
daughter, Ann, resided at the testator's home at the time 
of his death, and have since continued to do so. The 
son, after his father’s death, erected a dwelling house on 
the land, which he occupied for a time and subsequently 
leased, reserving the rent to himself. The son failed to 
contribute to the support of the widow and daughter 
residing at home. By their bill, plaintiffs prayed that

1904
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I904. their maintenance and support sliould be made a charge or 
com. lien upon the property devised by the testator.

Argument was heard May 28, 1904.

J. D. Huzi n, K.C. (E. 1‘. Raymond with him), for the 
plaintiffs :—

The devise to the son is conditional upon his main­
taining his mother and sisters. Should he fail to maintain 
them, their maintenance is made a charge or lien upon the 
property, to be implemented by sale.

A. A. Stockton, K.C. (//. F. ifcLatehey with him), for 
the defendants :—

The object of the will was that the mother and 
daughters should have a home. As they have the exclu­
sive use of the property, except the piece of land upon 
which he has erected a dwelling, it is not reasonable that 
the sou should support them. The property can not be 
sold, for that would defeat the will.

1904. June 21. Barker, J. :—

One cannot read this will of Alexander Cool without 
lieing impressed with the idea that his intention in making 
it was to secure a home for his widow and unmarried 
•laughters, as if he were living, and that he thought by giv­
ing all his property to his only son, he was not only consti­
tuting him, so to speak, his successor as head of the family, 
but was furnishing him with the necessary property in 
conjunction with the work the daughters were to con­
tribute, to keep the family together, provide them with a 
home, and furnish the widow and daughters with proper 
support and maintenance. He seems, however, to have 
forgotten what is now put forward as a fact, that the farm 
which was a most important element in making provision 
for the family, would not on his death go to the son, and 
could not therefore be made available by him towards fur-
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liishing the support, or maintaining the house. The will 
must, however, be construed according to the ordinary 
meaning of the language used. He has blended the real 
and personal property into one fund for a common purpose, 
and I think the effect of the language is to charge both 
with the support and maintenance provided for by the will 
See Swainson v. Bentley (1); Preston v. Preston (2); 
Perry v. Walker (3). There will, therefore, be a declara­
tion to this effect, and the matter will go to a Referee to 
make the necessary inquiries, and report as to the amounts 
due, etc. Reserve further consideration until after report

(1) 4 O. R. 572. (2) 2 Jur. (N. S.) 1040.

1

11104.

Itarkrr. J.

(S) 12 Or. 370.
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ROBIN, COLLAS AND COMPANY, LIMITED v. 
THERIAULT.

Crown land Squatter—Grant—Pur ch user for vainc—I*noritie* 
—Notice—Registry Act, 57 Viet. r. SO, s. 09; C. S. 1903, c. 151, 
s. GO—Instrument improperly on registry.

A squatter upon Crown land, which he had partly cleared, and 
upon which he had built a house, gave a registered mortgage 
of it in 1871 for value, and in 1881 conveyed the equity of 
redemption by registered deed to the mortgagee, remaining 
in occupation of the land as tenant. In 181)8 a son of the 
squatter, having no knowledge of the mortgage or deed, or 
that his father occupied the land as tenant, obtained a grant 
of the land from the Crown

Held, that he should not he declared a trustee of the land for 
the purchaser from the father.

Setnblr, that s. (il) of the Registry Act, 57 Viet. c. 20 (C. 8. 1908, 
c. 151, s. 00), by which it is provided that “ the registration of 
any instrument under this Act shall constitute notice of the 
instrument to all persons claiming any interest in the lands 
subsequent to such registration,” does not apply to an instru­
ment not properly on the registry, such as a conveyance of 
Crown land by a squatter.

The facts are fully stated in the judgment of the 
Court.

Argument was heard June 30, 190-t.

A. 0. Earle, K. C. {Georye Gilbert with him), for the 
plaintiffs : —

Defendant's evidence that he had no knowledge of 
plaintiffs’ title can not be believed. Before applying to 
the Crown for a grant, he would have made inquiry of his 
father as to his title. In the absence of evidence to the 
contrary by the father, it must be assumed that he was 
told bv him (the father) that he held us tenant to the 
plaintiffs. The Crown grant does not put the defendant 
in the position of a purchaser for value. His statements 
to the Government in his application for the grant, being 
false, entitle the Government to avoid the grant, and pre­
clude him from relying upon it as against us. As a donee
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from his father, lie is subject to the same equities that 
would have prevailed against the father in our favor. 
Our mortgage and deed being registered, he is affected 
with notice of them : Act 57 Viet. c. 20, s. 69.

A A. Stockton, K. C., for the defendant:—

The registration of an equitable title is not construc­
tive notice to a subsequent purchaser of the legal estate. 
See Doc il. Hubbard v. Dower (1) ; liushell v. Uushell (2) ; 
Korn v. Hanter (3). Section 69 of Act 57 Viet. c. 20, is not 
retroactive. Even if the defendant’s father had been an 
allottee, under Chap. 14, C. S„ he could not have alienated 
the land by mortgage. See sect. 12 of Chap. 15, C. S., and 
sect. 13 of Act 42 Viet. c. 4.

1904. September 20. BARKER, J. :—

It appears by the evidence in this case that one 
Narcisse Theriault, the defendant’s father, some time pre­
vious to the year 1874, but at what precise time does not 
appear, entered upon a lot of Crown land situate in the 
Parish of Caraquet, in the County of Gloucester, contain­
ing 50 acres, upon which he made certain improvements, 
having cleared a small portion of the lot and built a small 
house on it. In November, 1874, he executed a mortgage 
on another lot of land of which he seems to have had a 
grant, and upon his interest in this lot, to one Baulin 
Robin, Philip Cissett, William Lempriere, and Frederick 
C. Lane, who were then carrying on business at Caraquet 
and other places under the name of Charles Robin & Co., 
to secure the sum of $260 and interest, which mortgage 
was registered in the Registrar’s office in Gloucester, on 
the 6th November, 1874. On March 2nd, 1881, Narcisse 
I heriault and his wife conveyed their equity of redemp­
tion in the mortgaged premises to the mortgagees for an 
expressed consideration of $40.20 over and above the 
amount due on the mortgage, then stated to be $335.09.

(1) 1 All. 271. (2) 1 Sell. & Let. 103.
(3) 7 Can. 8. C. R. 288.

15

1904.
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Tiikkiavi.t.
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This conveyance was registered March 4. 1881. At the 
.anie time Robin and others, to whom the equity of 

' redemption had been conx’eyed, leased the premises—that 
is, the granted lot and the ungranted one—to Theriault 
lor a year, and to continue from year to year, so long as 
both parties wished, at a yearly rent of 814. This lease 
was not registered. In July, 1877, Theriault made an ap­
plication to the Lieutenant-Uovernor in Council, under the 
provisions of Chapter 14 of the Consolidated Statutes, 
relating to the settlement of Crown lands, in xvhich he 
stated that he bona fide intended to become an actual 
settler upon this lot of 50 acres; that he had put improve­
ments upon it to the value of 8800 ; that he wished to 
purchase the lot ; and he asked that his petition might be 
approved of, and that the advertisement usual in such 
cases might be inserted in the Royal Gazette. This appli­
cation was duly approved of by J.G. C. Blackball, a justice 
of the peace, as required by the Statute, and he certified 
that he hail good reason to believe that the land was only 
desired for the purpose of immediate settlement and culti­
vation by the applicant himself. It seems that on May 
6th, 1880, or thereabouts, Theriault renewed his applica­
tion by a petition similar in its terms to the other, except 
that the value of the improvements xvas placed at 8400. 
There is nothing to shew that the Government took any 
action on either of these applications. On the 17th Sep­
tember, 1896, the defendant, who is the youngest son of 
Narcisse Theriault, and always lived with him, except for 
a period of three years, when he was out of the Province, 
petitioned the Lieutenant-Governor under the same Statute. 
In his application, which is similar to the others, and in 
the form used in such cases by the Crown Land depart­
ment, the defendant stated that he was a British subject 
of the age of eighteen years and upwards ; that he did not 
own any other land in the Province, and that the land in 
question was the laud which his father, Narcisse Theriault, 
resided on for forty years ; that there was a house and 
barn on it, and about 25 acres in cultivation. He also 
added : “ Have also quit claim from my said father for all
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the improvements made by him on said lot." The defend­
ant also stated in his application that he bona fide intended 
to become an actual settler on the land, and that the land 
had been improved by his father to the value of $900. 
This was duly certified by one Poirier, the Labor Act com­
missioner, in the usual way,and on the 3rd October, 180S,a 
grant of the lot issued to the defendant. Before that was 
done, however, returns, ns required by the Statute, were 
tiled in the Crown Land office by Poirier, in which 
lie certified that the defendant had expended a certain 
sum of money in making roads anil building bridges; 
that he had built a house on the lot of not less dimen­
sions than 16 x 20 feet; that from his own personal 
knowledge and inspection, and not from hearsay, the 
defendant was then residing, and had been residing for 
the last three years, upon the land in Question, “which had 
been approved to him." These returns are dated .Septem­
ber 7th. 1698, and the truth of them is sworn to by the 
defendant. Besides the documents already mentioned, the 
plaintiffs put in evidence the following: A conveyance of 
these lots from ltobin, Uissett and others, who describe 
themselves as of the Island of Jersey, to Gervais Le Gros 
and others, also of Jersey, dated March 31st, 1886, and 
registered June 10th, 1886 ; also a conveyance from Gervais 
Le Gros and others to Charles Robin & Company, Limited, 
a joint stock company incorporated under the laws of 
Jersey, dated December 31st, 1889, and registered March 
7th, 1881. Also a conveyance from Charles Robin & 
Co., to the plaintiff company (which is also a company 
incorporated under the laws of Jersey), dated July 1st, 
1891, and registered August 4th, 1891.

The plaintiffs seek by this hill to have the defendant 
declared a trustee for them of this lot, and ordered to con­
vey the same to them ; and the grounds upon which they 
base their claim are that the defendant obtained his grant 
with full knowledge or notice of their title acquired by 
means of the conveyances in evidence, and by means of cer­
tain fraudulent misrepresentations made by him to the
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11104 Government, whicli are specifically set out in section 7 of 
Koi.iv. the bill as follows “ That the statements and allegations 

<'o.. umitki. in the said application of the said defendant that ' Have also 
Tiikiuaui.t. quitclaim from my said father for all the improvements made 

Marker, J. I,y him on said lot,’ and also the statements and allega­
tions in said labor returns that ‘ Frederick Theriault has 
performed labor as follows, in payment for Lot ^ , Block 
44, in the Parish of Caraquet, in the County of Gloucester; 
on roads, rods 38, and amount 815.58, and also that Fred­
erick Theriault has built a house of not less dimensions 
than 16x20 feet, and is at present residing (and has con­
tinued for the last three years to reside) upon the lot of 
land approved to him in the County of Gloucester, described 
as follows: — Lot Y, Block 44, Caraquet; that he has paid 
in full for the same by labor, and that he has cleared and 
cultivated not less than ten acres of the said lot;’ and the 
statements and allegations in the letter dated September 
10, 1807,'that the lot is the one that I got a quit claim 
deed on from Narcisse Theriault, my father, in September, 
1806,’ were false and fraudulently made hy tbc defendant 
for the purpose of fraudulently obtaining a title to the 
said land, purchased and paid for by the said plaintiffs."

Ill section 9 of tbc bill it is alleged that the plaintiffs 
were not aware that this grant had issued to the defen­
dant. or that he hail applied for it, until some considerable 
time after the grant had been issued, but that they always 
believed that a grant of the lot had issued to Narcisse 
Theriault before the mortgage was made by him to ltobin 
ami others in 1874. There was no attempt made to prove 
this allegation in any way. So far as the evidence goes 
there is nothing whatever to shew that the true state of 
Narcisse Theriault’s interest in the land was not known to 
Robin and his co-mortgagees in 1874, and by every one 
who succeeded to their title down to the plaintiffs. In 
fact, except as to the plaintiffs, there is no allegation even 
that ltobin and the others, who were parties to the con­
veyances, did not know that Narcisse Theriault was sim­
ply a squatter upon the land without any claim to having 
a title to it. Neither is it pretended that the plaintiffs
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made nny attempt to induce the Crown to take proceed- 1904. 
ings for the cancellation of the grant on the ground that Robin. 

it hud been obtained through fraud, or for the purpose of Co.. Limithi 

having their rights protected. No one has been put upon Thbkiai it. 

the stand to shew that the Crown Land department was Barker. J. 
not fully informed as to the facts, or that it was in any 
way deceived, or that the giant was in any way improvi- 
dently issued. On the contrary, while the plaintiffs 
charge the defendant with having fraudulently made 
untrue statements to the Crown Land department, and 
obtained the grant as a result, they ask this Court to give 
them the benefit of the title thus acquired, though, accord­
ing to them, the conditions of settlement had not lw-cn per­
formed. and the Crown hail in that way never received 
the real consideration for the grant. And this in a suit to 
which the Crown is nota party,and instituted over twenty- 
seven years since the plaintiffs' title, such as is, had its 
origin.

Let us sec what the plaintiffs' title really is, and what 
their equities are U[ioii which they seek to sustain this bill.
When Narcisse Theriault first entered upon this lot he did 
so without any authority from the Crown ; he was a mere 
trespasser; he obtained no possession against the Crown, 
and lie acquired by his wrongful act no right of nny kind 
against the Crown, When, therefore, he made the mort­
gage in 1877 to Robin, he had absolutely no title of any 
kind or any interest in the land to convey. If the entry 
Imd been made with a view of taking advantage of The 
Tree tirant* Art, 1872, 95 Viet. c. 17, and the lot had 
liven located to him under that Art. any attempted aliena­
tion ol it would have been futile, because all such aliena­
tions are absolutely prohibited by the Act. It is clear, 
however, that when he petitioned the Lieutenant-Governor 
in 1877 and in 1880 he put forward as one ground why 
his petition should be acceded to, that he had cleared a 
portion of this lot, and in that way satisfied in part the 
condition upon which grants were issued to settlers. His 
possession, such ns it was, was wrongful, the lot had not 
been located to him, and he had acquired no title to it in
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1004. any way. I am speaking altogether of rights as between 
Roms. Narcisse Theriault and the Crown, ami not of rights which 

co.. i.miTKu might exist ns between him and Robin & Co.; for it is 
Tiikkiavi.t. possible that if this grant had eventually issued to him an 

Barker. J. equity might have attached to the land in favour of the 
plaintiffs. On that point I express no opinion. The 
application made by Narcisse Theriault appears to have 
been made under Chap. 14, Con. Stat., an Act which pro­
vides for the settlement of Crown lands, and the object of 
which was as the Court said in Stevenson v. Flanagan (1),
“ to encourage bona fiile settlers on Crown lands.” While 
there is not in that Ciiapter any express prohibition as to 
alienation by the locates such as is contained in Chap. 15, 
relating to free grants, the provisions of it are largely per­
sonal. It is the locatee who is to reside on the lot for three 
years ; it is the locatee who is entitled to the grant on per­
formance of the conditions ; and it is the locatee who is 
authorized to bring an action of trespass for injuries to the 
possession which he acquires under his location. The Act 
contains no provision for the locatee assigning his improve­
ments or his rights in any way, so as to confer upon the 
assignee his rights against the Government. There is 
nothing before me to shew what the regulations are which 
the Government have made under the Act, or whether there 
is any recognized usage in the Crown Land department 
by which improvements made upon Crown lands by squat­
ters, such as Narcisse Theriault was, arc recognized or pro­
tected in any way. There is no allegation in the bill that 
any such usage prevails here as exists in the Province 
of Ontario, and which, according to the decisions of the 
Courts there, form the principal ground upon which cases of 
this nature are entertained. It seems obvious that Robin & 
Co. could not have gone to the Government, and by virtue 
of the conveyances to them claimed as of right to be 
substituted in the place of Narcisse Theriault. They 
were residents of Jersey, not prospective settlers on New 
Brunswick Crown land. Their very title deeds shewed

(1) 80 N. B. 275.
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that they owned other lands in the Province, a fact 1904. 
which of itself would have prevented them from obtaining ( itoms 
a grant of land reserved under the Act for settlement as Co., Limitki. 
this was. I am therefore unable to see what right of the Tiimùui r. 
plaintiffs, either legal or equitable, has been invaded by Barker..!. 
this grant being made to the defendant. Farmer v. 
Livin<i*tone (1) is a case similar in many respects to this.
There the plaintiff who had applied for a homestead loca­
tion and deposited the necessary fee with the land com­
missioners. tiled a bill, which though in form to restrain 
proceedings in an action of ejectment brought by the 
[Mitentee of the Crown to recover possession of the lot, really 
involved the validity of the patent. The plaintiff not only 
sought to restrain Farmer from proceeding with Ilia action 
of ejectment, but also asked for a decree declaring him a 
trustee of the land for him. Though the plaintiff had 
applied for the homestead location and paid the fee he 
had not really been entered for the lands in the books of 
the department, and until that was done he acquired no 
right, precisely as Narcisse Theriault acquired no right 
until the land was located to him. Ritchie, C. J„ says :
“Until he was so entered or was permitted to enter the 
land he had no homestead, interest in, or claim to the land, 
and until all the provisions of the Act had been complied 
with, he had no legal or equitable title, and the lands 
remained public lands of the Government, and in my 
opinion bis bill does not shew any legal or equitable status 
under the Statute, capable of being enfored in a Court of 
Law or Equity. * * * If a party has no legal or equitable 
riglits enforceable in a Court of Law or Equity, he cannot, 
in the eye of the law, be injured by the letters patent. He 
is a mere volunteer, and, if so, not a proper party to seek 
the relief sought by the bill. He must shew a title to the 
relief asked. This disposes of any right to an injunc­
tion." It appeared also in that case that in addition to his 
applying to be entered for the land under the homestead 
Act, the plaintiff had actually entered upon the land, 
occupied it, cleared a portion of it, built a house upon it,

(1) 8 Can. S. C. R. 140.
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and spent 81,000 in improvements. And upon that ground 
lie contended that under a Statute in force in Manitoba 
where the litigation took place, he could impeach the valid­
ity of the patent on the ground of fraud. The Chief 
Justice, however, held that by his expenditure he had 
acquired no interest in the land, and, therefore, he had no 
locus at'uuli to interfere between the Crown and its 
patentees. Strong, J., concurred in this view, and pointed 
out that outside of some statutory provision, or some such 
usage as is recognized in Ontario, a squatter on Crown 
lauds has no preferable rights.

It is not altogether apparent to me what the plaintiffs' 
object was in introducing into their bill the various allega­
tions of fraud on the defendant s part in securing the grant. 
Their case cannot lie strengthened by the defendant’s fraud. 
That might be a good reason for impeaching the validity of 
the grant in a proceeding instituted for that purpose between 
the proper parties. But I cannot see how the plaintiffs' 
equities in reference to the land against the defendant cun 
be improved by the fact that the defendant obtained the 
grant by wilful misrepresentations made to the Crown. 
But since the plaintiffs attach such importance to this 
branch of the case 1 shall discuss it at greater length than 
I should otherwise have thought necessary. I have already 
pointed out that not only the Crown has not complained, 
and does not now complain, that a fraud was practised upon 
its officers, hut that there is no proof whatever that they 
were in any way misled by the defendant. The Act pro­
vides that the settler shall be entitled to a grant if the lot 
does not exceed 100 acres in extent; if he does not own any 
other land ; if he has resided on the lot for the three pre­
ceding years, has cleared and cultivated ten acres thereof, 
and has paid 820 in cash, or performed labor on the roads 
to the value of 830. I do not imagine that the Crown 
puts such a strict construction on this Act, that if a locatee 
died during the three years, having only cleared a portion 
of the ten acres, and only performed a portion of his road 
work, all his improvements should enure to the benefit of 
the Government, and the next applicant should be obliged
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to commence de novo altogether. To do justice between 
parties the Crown can always do, and I assume always 
does do, by grace and favor what by law it could not be 
compelled to do so long as a substantial compliance with 
the Act is secured, and the object of it is advanced. The 
defendant stated in his application that the lot was the one on 
which his father hod lived for forty years, that there was 
a house and barn on the lot, and twenty-five acres under 
cultivation and that he had a quit claim from his father. He 
also proved that he himself cleared ten acres, ami performed 
the necessary road work. It is true that he had not himself 
built the house, or cleared the twenty-five acres, and that 
he had no quit claim deed from his father. The house was, 
however, in fact built, and, according to Poirier’s instruc­
tions to the defendant, that was sufficient. The twenty- 
five acres were in fact cleared, and ten of them by the 
defendant himself. No quit claim deed was ever given, 
but the father Narcisse did verbally assent to the grant 
issuing, and that was all the Labor Act commissioner 
required. And, as to the residence, section 3 of the Act 
expressly provides that temporary interruptions in the 
residence, when necessary to enable the settler to earn his 
living, shall not operate as a forfeiture of his claim. I am 
asked to find that the Crown was misled by all these mis­
statements, and, that if it had known the facts, the grant 
would never have been issued. The onus of shewing that was 
upon the plaintiffs themselves, and it need not have been 
left open to inference. But, taking it as it is, I do not 
think any such inference necessarily arises in view of the 
defendant's own evidence, which is uncontradicted, and in 
view of the free hand which the Crown necessarily has 
in deiding with a matter of this kind. Take for instance 
the statement of the quit claim as the defendant calls it in 
his application, or quit claim deed as he calls it in one of 
his letters, and this is the statement to which the plain­
tiffs attach the most importance. The defendant's petition 
was presented in September, 1896, and the grant did not 
issue until two years later. As no quit claim deed was 
ever given, none can ever have been produced. The grant
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1904. _ was, however, issued, and it is almost a necessary inference 
collab'ami e'Wier that the department thought the matter of no 
co„ Limitko importance one way or the other, or else waived the pro- 
Thkriavlt. (Juction of the deed, or accepted the verbal assent given by 

Barker, j. jjarcisse Theriault to Poirier, the Labor Act commissioner, 
as all that was necessary. In Maxwell on Statutes (1), it is 
said : “ Where the prescriptions of a Statute relate to the 
performance of a public duty, they seem to be gener­
ally understood as mere instructions for the guidance and 
government of those on whom the duty is imposed or 
as directory only. The neglect of them may be penal 
indeed, but it does not affect the validity of the act done 
in disregard of them.” Such instructions confer no rights 
on third parties, and it has been well settled, as Strong, J., 
says in Farmer v. Livingstone, by repeated decisions in 
Ontario, “ that when the Crown has issued letters patent in 
view of all the facts, the grant is conclusive, and a party 
cannot, as it is said, set up equities behind the patent.” But, 
if the evidence shewed that the grant had issued as the 
result of fraudulent misrepresentations made for the pur­
pose by the defendant to the Crown, what would have 
been the effect ? The only result, as I have already indi­
cated, would be that, in a suit instituted for that purpose 
by the Crown, either of its own motion or by a private 
individual having an interest, in the subject of the grant in 
the name and by the permission of the Crown, the grant 
could be cancelled and the title in the land would be 
revested in the Crown to be disposed of as the Crown 
might see fit. It would not have given the plaintiffs any 
right to the grant or improved their position in any way. 
See Uoulton v. Jeffrey (2); Cosgrove v. Corbett (II).

In my view the question of fraud has no bearing upon 
the case, and so far as the plaintiffs rely upon that ground 
they must fail.

It is said, however, that the defendant is a purchaser 
with notice of the plaintiffs’ title, and he therefore took 
subject to it. In the first place they contend that the

(1) 3rd ed„ p. 628. (2) 1 U. C. E. & A. Rep. 111.
(3) 14 Or. 620.
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defendant had actual notice that his father occupied the 1904
lot as a tenant of Robin Si Co. The evidence relied on to Roms.

..... . . . . _ . . <loiua am.prove this fact is, m my opinion, altogether insufficient for <*o., Lmmm
that purpose. It appeared that in 1886 the defendant Theriault. 
hauled some wood to Robin & Co., and that the price(8l 9.116) Barkvr. j. 
was credited to his father in their books on account of 
rent accrued due on the lease. The defendant was at that 
time a lad only 12 or 14 years old, living with his father 
and working for him. There is not a particle of evidence 
to fix the defendant with knowledge that the wood was 
delivered in payment of rent or that it was credited in 
Robin Si Co’s books, as it seems to have been. He swears that 
he knew nothing about the rent,or the lease,or the assign­
ments, until after he had received his grant, and when the 
plaintiffs seized some of his goods. In fact, when the 
mortgage was given, the defendant could not have been 
more than a year or two old. The plaintiffs, however, say 
they are not driven to rely upon that, as the defendant is 
fixed with notice by the registry of the mortgage and 
release of the equity of redemption. By section 09 of Act 
57 Viet. c. 20 (C. S. 1903, c. 151, s. 06), it is provided 
that “ the registration of any instrument under this Act 
shall constitute notice of the instrument to all persons 
claiming any interest iu the lands subsequent to such 
registration, notwithstanding any defect in the proof for 
registration.” And I agree in thinking, as I held in 
I'nrroll v. Rogers(l), that the effect of that section is in all 
cases to which it applies, to make the registration actual 
notice to subsequent purchasers of the instrument and its 
contents. See per Strong, J., in Gray v. Coughlin (2), 
when speaking of a precisely similar provision, which 
has been in force in Ontario for many years, he says:

1 hold that under the registry law of Ontario (R. S. O. 
cap. 114, sec. 80) registration is conclusive, and not merely 
presumptive, notice. "

In order that registration shall operate as notice, the 
instrument must be of that class to which the Registry 
Act relates. It must be an instrument such as may prop-

11) 2 N. B. Eq. 158. (2) 18 Can. 8. C. K. 570.
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erly be registered under the Act, and sucli as a purchaser 
has a riglit to anticipate as possibly on the register, and 
therefore one which it is his duty to search for if he wishes 
to protect himself. The registration of an instrument 
altogether unauthorized in point of law, would he nugatory, 
and could not operate as notice under section 6!) of the 
Act. 1 am not at all sure that the Registry' Acts were 
ever intended to apply to conveyances relating to the 
ungranted lands of the Crown by squatters, whose occu­
pation of the land was wrongful, and who had no title or 
interest in it, and the possession of which, as well as the 
absolute title, remained in the Crown, and at its absolute 
disposal by grant. Until the Crown has made a grant, the 
title is, so to speak, not a registry title ; and one does not 
look for instruments on the records relating to it. If that 
he so, such instruments ought, in my opinion, not to be 
held as amounting to notice simply because they are on the 
records. Neither, as at present advised, am I prepared to 
concede that the defendant can, under the peculiar cir­
cumstances of this case, be regarded as a subsequent pur­
chaser, even if he had notice of the plaintiffs’ conveyances 
He does not claim through or under his father in any way, 
or by the same title as the plaintiffs. He is ir purchaser 
from the Crown direct, and for value, and has a title not 
only superior to that of the plaintiffs, hut better than their 
vendor, Narcisse Theriault, ever had, or ever could have 
given them or any one else. It is unnecessary to decide 
these points, because the registration does not amount to 
notice, as it took place under some other Act previous to 
Act 57 Viet. c. 20, and by the special words of that Act 
the registration, which is made equivalent to notice, is con- 
lined to registration of instruments under that Act. The 
plaintiffs' mortgage was registered in 1874, and the release 
of the equity of redemption, in 1881, and they are there­
fore excluded from the operation of section 69 of Act 57 
Viet. c. 20, which was passed in 1894. The provision as to 
notice, which was then for the first time introduced into 
this Province, made a very important change in the law as 
to notice of instruments on the records. The section, like
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many other sections of that Act, seems to have been copied 
from a similar provision which has been in force in 
Ontario for many years past It differs, however, in one 
particular. By the express words of the Ontario Statute 
all instruments, whether registered before or after the Act, 
are made operative by way of notice to subsequent pur­
chasers, whereas our Act by its express terms, confines the 
effect of the section to such instruments as may be regist­
ered under that Act, giving the section no retroactive oper­
ation. I think the plaintiffs have failed in making out 
the case set up in their bill, and it must therefore be dis­
missed with costs.

11)04.
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sifrwirr.v. THE CONTINENTAL TRUSTS COMPANY v. THE 
MINERAL PRODUCTS COMPANY.

Priorities— Equitable Mortgage — Mining /.cases— J udgmcnt 
Creditor-Sheriff's Sale—Purchaser—Notice—The General 
Mining Act, C. S. 1903, c. 30.

A company Incorporated under the laws of the Suite of New 
York executed in New York a mortgage of lands in this 
Province, and of minerals therein, while the title to the latter 
was in the Crown, the law of New York, unlike that of this 
Province, not reserving minerals to the State. Mining leases 
subsequently were issued by the Crown to the company. 
A judgment creditor of the company with notice of the 
mortgage purchased the leases at a Sheriff's sale, under an 
execution upon his judgment, and paid to the Crown, rent 
overdue upon the same, whereupon new leases were issued 
in his own name, the Crown having no knowledge of the 
mortgage :—

Held, that the new leases were subject to the mortgage.
Semble, that the title of the judgment creditor win 1 have been 

postponed to that of the mortgagee, though l.e had lieen a 
purchaser without notice of the mortgage.

The facts are sufficiently stated in the judgment of the 
Court.

Argument was heard June 30, 1904.

A. A. Stockton, K. C., J. D. Hazen, K.- C. (E. P. 
Raymond with them), for the plaintiffs :—

The mortgage to the plaintiffs was made under a 
resolution of the Mineral Products Company authorizing 
a mortgage upon the lands and tenements of the company. 
A mortgage of all minerals that might be found in the 
lands, as well ns of the lands, would not be in excess of this 
power. The word tenement is interpreted very broadly 
where the context requires that it shall be liberally con­
strued. The company was formed to carry on mining 
operations. Apart from the minerals, the lands of the 
company would have little, if any, value. It could not 
have been contemplated that the resolution of the share­
holders excluded minerals from the mortgage.

[Pugsley, A.-G. :—It is admitted that if the minerals 
were owned by the company, they would pass with the 
lands.]
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The mortgage would be valid, no matter what the 190* 
terms of the resolution were. See Gloucester Bankingc||N^'“‘NT1, 
Co. v. Rudry Merthyr Colliery Go. (1); Hotel Co. v. Wade ( J1"'I."T”V 
(2). While at the time of the execution of the mortgage, ^ 
the property in the minerals was in the Crown, the min- jjJJJjguA 
crals would pass to the mortgagee on the title to them <'omp»kt. 
being acquired by the company. See Holroyd v. Marshall 
(3 ; Toledo Railroad Co. v. Hamilton (*); Trust and Loan 
Co. v. Rattan (5); Gaegan v. Langis (0); Doe d. Kerr\.
MX more (7); Doe d. Irvine v. Webster (8); Boulter v.
Hamilton (9). Kingman cannot impeach the validity or 
sufficiency of the mortgage. He purchased the mining 
leases with notice of the mortgage, and with knowledge 
that the company intended that it should include them.
The assignment by Sayles of his claim against the com­
pany, was a fraudulent device on the part of each to cut 
out the plaintiffs' title to the leases. Sayles was appre­
hensive that he was personal 1}' liable for debts of the com­
pany, and he sought to secure himself against loss by 
obtaining possession, through Kingman, of the leases. The 
consideration for the assignment of the debt is said to have 
been the release of an indebtedness of S12.00U due Kingman 
by Sayles. As Sayles was admittedly more than able to 
pay his indebtedness to Kingman, it is not credible that the 
lutter discharged his debt in exchange for an unsecured 
claim against this insolvent company. To enable Kingman 
to recover speedy judgment against the company, its treas­
urer, who is Sayles’ son, and Kingman’s son-in-law, came 
from New York to Fredericton, where he was served with 
the writ in the action. A sale was held under the execu­
tion upon the judgment without notice to the plaintiffs, or 
an opportunity being afforded to them to protect their 
interests. Kingman pleads that the leases were forfeited 
to the Government for non-payment of rent, and that, while

Hi 04 U J. (Cb.) 451. 
Hi) U7 U. 8. 13.
(8) lu H. !.. C. 101.
(4) 134 U. S. 2U6.
(5) 1 Can. 8. C. K. 680.

(0) 21 N. B. 640.
(7) 3 All. 143.
(8| 2 U. C. Q. B. 224. 
(9) 15 U. C. C. P. 125.
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in the disposition of the government, they were issued to 
him. If a forfeiture had taken place, the notice with 
which Kingman was affected, would prevent him from 
postponing our title to his. The leases were not forfeited. 
When the rent was paid by Kingman, the leases were in 
force, and the payment enured to the Irenefit of the Mineral 
Products Company and their mortgagee. The payment 
was made for that company, and the receipt of the Crown 
Land office so treats it. Before a forfeiture could take 
place, the mortgagee should have had notice that the rent 
was in arrears. See The General Mining Act, C. S. 1903, 
c. 30, s. 138. Otherwise a very obvious opportunity for fraud 
would exist. See Griffin v. Kent (1). There the holder of a 
prospecting license over mining areas entitling him at any 
time prior to its expiration, on payment of certain fees, to a 
lease of areas for a term of years, gave a mortgage of his 
rights. He then allowed the license to expire, and bis right 
to a lease to become forfeited. The areas were then taken up 
by a third person, with money supplied by the original 
license, and transferred to the latter's son. It was held 
that the transfer was fraudulent and void, and that the 
mortgage attached to the new title. Here, if the leases 
lapsed, they did so through the conspiracy of Sayles, acting 
for the Mineral Products Company, and Kingman.

IP. 1‘uysley, A.-0. (IP. A. Ewing with him), for the 
defendants,the Electro-Manganese Company:—

The right of Sayles to obtain a judgment against the 
Mineral Products Company, does not admit of question. 
His assignee's right ought to be equally undeniable. Hud 
the sale of the mining leases been under a judgment 
recovered by Sayles, a charge of fraud could not have been 
raised. Neither can it be raised in proceedings by 
Kingman. The assignment of Sayles’ claim to Kingman 
was made in good faith, and was free of reservations in 
Sayles’ favor. There was nothing clandestine in the pro­
ceedings in Kingman's action. A writ for service abroad

(1) 31 N. S. 528.
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would have served his purpose equally as well as a writ for 1904. 
service within the jurisdiction. Time was not regarded as Thk

„ ... . . i ■ t • i CONTINKNVAI.
important, for while the writ was served in January, judg- c’£”™™v
ment was not signed until April. No defence was put in
to the action, for the reason that there was none. It is com- VisumProducts
plained that the plaintiffs should have had notice of the Comcast. 

action. Either their mortgage includes the mining leases, 
or it does not. If it does, they are not prejudiced by 
Kingman’s judgment. If it does not, they could not have 
improved their position after rights of creditors had inter­
vened. It was the duty of the plaintiffs to have notified 
the Crown Land office of their mortgage. See The General 
Hitting Act, C. S. 1903, c. 30, s. 125. Kingman was under 
no such duty. His interests were in conflict with the plain­
tiffs. Under his contention, that the plaintiffs had no prop­
erty in the mining leases, he would deny their right to give 
such notice. Griffin v. Kent (1), is wholly unlike the present 
case. Kingman was a buna fide purchaser of the leases at 
Sheriff’s sale, without collusion with the lessee. In taking 
out new leases in his own name, he was exercising an 
unquestionable right The plaintiffs’ mortgage did not 
include the leases ; in the Nova Scotia case the mortgage 
did. In the absence of notice of the plaintiffs’ claim, the 
Crown Land office could not have done otherwise than it 
did. The plaintiffs’ mortgage was one of bargain and sale, 
and conveyed no interest beyond that which the Mineral 
Products Company then had. Subsequently acquired 
property would only pass if the mortgage had contained a 
warranty of title.

[Ilmen, K. C. :—The mortgage contains a covenant 
for further assurance, which is equal to a covenant of title.]

Effect can only be given to such covenant by a suit for 
specific performance. The present is not such a suit. Nor 
if it were, would it prevail against previously acquired 
rights of a third party. The shareholders of the company 
authorized a mortgage on lands they then owned. This

(I) 31 N. 8. Hep. 528.
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1904 did not authorize a mortgage on minerals not then belong- 
Tiik mg to them. Tlie resolution of the shareholders being set 

compan* out ln the mortgage, the plaintins cannot plead ignorance 
TjjK of its terms. Tlie rule that a person dealing with a coin- 

ispmLci'i, P»ny is not bound to inquire into the regularity of its 
Company, internal proceedings, does not apply where he has notice of 

the irregularity. See Howard, v. Paient Ivory Co (1) ; 
Irvine v. Union Hank of Australia (2).

llazen, K. C., in reply.

1904. September 20. Barker, J. :—

As originally framed, the bill in this suit prayed for 
an ordinary decree of foreclosure, and under it for a sale, 
of certain premises conveyed by way of mortgage by the 
defendants, the Mineral Products Company, a corpora­
tion created under the laws of the State of New York, 
to the plaintiffs, a corporation also created under the 
same laws, in trust to secure the payment of an issue of 
bonds amounting to 880,000, which mortgage is dated 
February 10, 1897, and is duly registered in the County of 
Albert, where the lands conveyed by it are situated. The 
defendant Kingman, was made a party by reason of his 
having a memorial of judgment against the Mineral Pro­
ducts Company for the sum of 8187,875.51, registered May 
2, 1902, upon which an execution had issued to the Sheriff 
of Alliert, under which he had seized and sold to Kingman 
the equity of redemption in the mortgaged premises, and 
two mining leases and a quantity of ore, which the plain­
tiffs contend are subject to their mortgage. This sale 
actually took place on the llth September, 1902, though 
the deed from the Sheriff to Kingman was not made until 
November 20,1902. Before the cause came on lor hearing 
the defendants, the Electro-Manganese Company, who are 
a corporation under the Joint Stock Companies Act of this 
Province, and who were not then parties to the suit, 
petitioned to be made defendants on the ground that they

(1) 38 Cb. D. 156. (2) 2 App. Cas. 336.
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Imd acquired by purchase from Kingman all his rights in I! 1(4. 
the property. An order was accordingly made adding( Tint
the Klectro-Manganese Company as a defendant, and thihth 

, , COMPASr
giving the plaintiffs liberty to make such amendments to jj

their bill as they might deem necessary. They did amend 
their hill by adding allegations that the judgment obtained Compasv. 
by Kingman was obtained by fraud, and was therefore Barker, .1. 
void. In effect the charge is that Kingman and the 
others, who had to do with obtaining the judgment, and 
having the two licenses sold and lie»’ ones issued in their 
place by the Government, acted in concert with the fraudu­
lent intention in some way of defeating the plaintiffs' 
claim to the two mining leases, which represent, ns the 
evidence shews, the principal, I think I may say, sub­
stantially, the whole value of the mortgaged premises. At 
the date of the plaintiffs' mortgage—February 10, 1897— 
the Mineral Products Company hail no title to the 
minerals in the lands conveyed by the mortgage. It wna 
admitted that in the' original grunts of those lands the 
mines and minerals had been reserved by the Crown, and 
the property in them was still in the Crown. (See The 
deneral Mining Aet, C. S. 1908, c. 30, s. 4.) On the 
14th June, 1898, the Mineral Products Company obtained 
from the Government of this Province a number of mining 
leases, two of which have reference to the mortgaged 
lands. These are numbered 40 and 41—both giving the 
right to mine and carry away manganese for ten years, 
with rights for renewals up to forty years — one covering 
an area of 400 acres, and the other an area of 248 acres.
Besides these two leases, Nos. 40 and 41, there were six 
others, numbered 33, 34, 35, 36, 37, and 38, covering lands 
in Albert County, issued to the Mineral Products Company 
at the same time : and when Kingman, who had purchased 
at Sheriff's sale the Mineral Products Company’s interest 
in all these leases, went to the Crown Land office to have 
himself registered as the assignee, it was found that the 
Mineral Products Company were in arrears of rent on them 
in the sum of about 8125, and the registry was refused

VOL. III. S. H. 1. K.—S.
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1904. until that sum was paid. Mr. Tweedie, who was acting for 
Thk Kingman, then paid the rent, and subsequently by an

'UNT1NENTAL . , , . i i^Thmm arrangement with the Surveyor-General, confirmed by an 
* order in Council, these leases were all terminated and new 

miserai, ones in Kingman’s own name as lessee, substituted in their 
company. p]ace 'f|le new series and the old are alike, except as to 
Marker, J. the name of the lessee, and I think in the term. Lease No. 84 

corresponds to lease 40, and covers the same area, and lease 
No. 85 corresponds to lease 41, and covers the same area. 
These later leases are dated November 12,1902 : they were 
afterwards, and since this suit was commenced, assigned by 
Kingman to the Electro-Manganese Company, of which 
company he is president, and they hold them, as the plain­
tiffs claim, as trustees for them to the extent of their mort­
gage interest. This is the point involved in this suit.

The mortgage recites as follows: “Whereas, it has 
become necessary for the party of the first part to borrow 
the sum of 880,000 for the purpose of purchasing the real 
property upon which it is carrying on business, and intends 
to carry on business, in the said town of Hillsborough, 
County of Albert, Province of New Brunswick, and for 
other lawful purposes ; and whereas, at a meeting of the 
stockholders of the party of the first part, held on the 
tenth day of February, A. D. 1897, which said meeting was 
duly called according to law, and according to the by-laws, 
for the special purpose of considering and authorizing the 
issue of bonds and the execution of this mortgage or deed 
of trust, resolutions were duly adopted, of which the fol­
lowing are correct copies." Then follows a resolution to 
borrow the 880,000 for the purpose of purchasing the 
property in Hillsborough, a resolution to issue bonds to 
the amount of 880,000, and a third resolution authorizing 
a mortgage to the present plaintiffs, bearing date with 
the bonds, “duly executed as required by law upon all 
and singular the lands and tenements situated in the 
County of Albert, in the Province of New Brunswick, and 
the Dominion of Canada, now owned by this Company," etc.

It is contended that, without the consent of the 
requisite proportion of the shareholders, the plaintiffs’
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mortgage could not be made at all ; in other words, that 
the company's authority to mortgage its property is, by 
the law of the State of New York, limited both as to 
amount and as to the property to be mortgaged, by the 
consent of “ two-thirds of the capital stock,” by which I 
presume is meant the consent of the holders of not less 
than two-thirds of the capital stock as distinguished from 
two-thirds of the shareholders. The law governing this is 
as follows : “ Every such mortgage, except purchase money 
mortgages, and mortgages authorized by contract made 
prior to May 1, 1891, shall be consented to by the resolu­
tion of not less than two-thirds of the capital stock of the 
corporation, which consent shall be given either in writing 
or by a special meeting of the stockholders called for that 
purpose.” I do not understand from this, or from anything 
in evidence, that whatever might be the effect of it as 
between the shareholders—that is, the company itself 
ami its directors or officers who might, without consent, 
execute a mortgage—the mortgage would be void or illegal. 
On the contrary, a witness. Mr. Harrison, in his evidence, 
says the consent can be filed after the mortgage is made, 
ratifying, as he says, the action of the directors. The 
defendants do not, in their answers, set up that the mort­
gage in its present form was not assented to ; they raise 
no such question. Their defence goes to the effect of the 
mortgage, not its validity. No fraud or illegality in the 
mortgage is charged, and as W'illes, J., says in Agar v. The 
Of'cuil Manager of Athenaeum. Life Assurance Society (1), 
the general rule is that a corporation is bound by deed 
under its common seal, unless fraud or illegality can be 
established. Apart from this, the evidence shews, and the 
resolutions themselves shew, that this was a case of a 
mortgage given on a purchase of property for carrying on 
the company's business—a transaction which seems to me 
excepted from the law referred to, and therefore not requir­
ing consent at a.1. There is, however, to my mind, abund­
ant evidence that the mortgage, in its present form, was

1904.

ONT1NKSTAL

Company

Minerai.
PRODUCT»
Company. 

Barker, J.

(1) 4 Jur. (N. 8.) 214.
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1904. not only assented to, but that it is expressly authorized by 
Tim the resolutions themselves. It is more than probable to

HMtsKMAI. , . ,, ..(Tkimt» me that the mortgage—unexecuted, of course—was itself 
J at the meeting of shareholders, and that it was in rcfer- 

ukuimat» ence tint particular document that the resolutions were 
Company, passed. The recital says that the meeting was called for 
HarkiT. J. the special purpose of considering and authorizing the 

execution of this mortgage. What mortgage, unless this 
one ? The resolutions do, however, authorize a mortgage 
on the company’s lands and tenements then owned by 
them in Albert County. What did they include in the 
words “ lands and tenements," as applied to a mortgage ? 
We have it in evidence that in New York a conveyance of 
the land carries with it the right to the minerals. They 
are not reserved to the State, as in this Province they are 
to the Crown. It must be assumed, I think, that where a 
body of business men, interested as shareholders in a busi­
ness company, meet together to authorize a mortgage as 
security for 880,000 on a property whose real value lies in 
the minerals which it contains, intend to include the valu­
able part as well as the worthless part ; and that when, in 
the words of a general resolution, they • assent to a 
mortgage on their lands, they thereby intend to assent to 
a mortgage on what, in their view, would in ,uch a case be 
included in the word “ lands." The effect of the mortgage 
is an entirely different thing ; but that it had in its present 
form the assent of the shareholders, and that it professes 
to convey precisely what they intended it should, I have 
no doubt whatever ; and I think this conclusion is easily 
deducible from the resolutions and documents themselves, 
viewed in the light of the surrounding circumstances, to 
which one has a right to look for the purpose. The next 
question is, what is the effect of the mortgage, and what 
are its provisions as bearing upon the point in dispute ? 
In the mortgage, after a description of the properties, is 
added the following words : “And also all and singular the 
coal.albertite.albcrtiteand bituminous coal, shale,canncllite, 
petroleum, asphalt, asphalt rock, oil and oil producing 
substances, gypsum or plaster of paris, and all other



Ill] NEW BRUNSWICK EQUITY RETORTS.

minerals whatsoever, which can or shall or may be found 1904. 
in or upon the herein particularly described premises.” Thk 
Ijuter on follows this covenant : "And the party of the first tmum»

. - ,, . , . i , , Companypart, lor itself, its successors and assigns, does hereby r. 
covenant, grant and agree to and with the party of the 
second juirt, and to and with the respective persons and company. 
corporations who shall at any time become holders of the *•

saiil bonds hereby secured, or any of them, that the party 
of the first part, its successors and assigns, shall and will 
at any time, and from time to time hereafter, upon request, 
make, do, execute and deliver, all such further and other 
acts, deeds and things as shall be reasonably advised or 
required to effectuate the intention of these presents, and 
to secure anil confirm to the party of the second part, or 
its successors, all and singular the property and estate, real 
and personal, hereinbefore described and hereby intended 
to lie granted, and so as to render the same available for 
the security and satisfaction of the said bonds, according to 
the intent and purposes herein expressed.” We have here 
clear evidence of a contract to convey the minerals, and an 
express covenant to execute all further deeds which may 
be necessary to carry into effect the intention of the 
parties. It was upon that security these bondholders lent 
the company the money to buy their land with which to 
curry on their business, and which has nevei been repaid 
to them. It turned out that the company had no title in 
these minerals; the word “ lands," by New Brunswick law- 
had a less comprehensive meaning than it had in New 
York ; and therefore the mortgage, so far as the minerals 
were concerned, was inoperative at law, because the com­
pany hail no title. The title was in the Crown. The effect 
in equity, however, was to make the company a trustee 
for the plaintiffs as to their mortgage interest as to the 
minerals so soon ns they acquired the title which, by the 
mortgage, they professed to convey ; and this Court would, 
on a bill tiled for the purpose, have compelled such assign­
ment as might be necessary to secure to the plaintiffs 
their lien. In Watson's Compendium (1), it is said :

(1) Vol, 2. p. 1064.
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“And if an estate purports to be conveyed, to which the 
vendor at the time of the conveyance had no title, but 
afterwards acquired one, lie must convey the estate again." 
And this is so irrespective of any covenant for further 
assurance. In Nod v. lieuiey (1), the Vice-Chancellor 
says : “ But I do not place much reliance upon the cove­
nant for further assurance ; I «'cause I take the law to be 
this, that if a person has conveyed u defective title, and 
he afterwards acquires a good title, this Court will make 
the good title available to make the conveyance effectual." 
In Joliet v. Kearney (2), Lord Chancellor Sugden, speaking 
of the decision in Noel v. liewley, says : “ It appears 
therefore clear that if a mail sells an estate (and the 
principle is just the same if the contract be for a mortgage or 
annuity), ami the title he had at the time he made the 
mortgage is defective, there arises an equity out of the 
original contract to pursue any new title which the mort­
gagor may acquire, so as to make that new title a substi­
tution for the original title, the infirmity of which pre­
vented the contract from being carried into execution. 
In this case the contract is not between the parties, but 
the same principle applies us to that of a purchaser taking 
subject to a charge."

See also Smith v. linker (3); and McQueen v. The 
Queen (4), where Strong, J., lays down and applies the 
same doctrine.

Were this a contest simply between mortgagor and 
mortgagee, I should have no doubt that the mortgagee's 
equity must prevail, and the rights acquired under the 
leases would be decreed as subject to the mortgage. Is the 
case any different by reason of Kingman’s rights having 
intervened as a result of the Sheriff’s sale ? I think not 
There is no doubt that Kingman knew all about the plain­
tiffs’ mortgage even before Sayles assigned to him the debt 
upon which he obtained his judgment. What he has done

(1) 3 Sim. 116.
(2) 1 Conn & Taw, 31 ; S. C., 1 D. & W. 134.

(3) 1 Y. & C. C. 223 (4) 16 Can. S. C. K. 72.
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Ims been done with full notice und knowledge. But even 1904. 
without that the result would, in my opinion, be the same. Tim

I take it as long since settled that a purchaser at a lTimi"axv 

Sheriff’s sale under an execution stands in no better or tJjk 
different position as to the property than the execution 
debtor did. In Wickknm v. The Sew Brunswick <(• Canada 10MI'«N' - 
Hallway Cu. (1), I/ird Chelmsford says: “There is no H“rkc' 
doubt upon principle as well as on the authority of the 
cases cited in the argument at the Bar, that the right of a 
judgment creditor under an execution is to take the precise 
interest, and no more, which the debtor possesses in the 
property seized, and consequently that such property must 
lie sold by the Sheriff" with all the charges and incum­
brances, legal and equitable, to which it was subject in the 
hands of the debtor.” See also Eyre v. McDowell (2); 
Whitworth v. Oaugain (3): per Strong, J„ in Miller v.
Duggan (4): Trueman v. Womlwortlt (5).

The effect of the Sheriff"a deed was simply to substitute 
Kingman in the place of the Mineral Products Company, 
as to this property, and Kingman, as a result of his pur­
chase, became in equity, so far as these two leaaes are 
concerned, owner of the equity of redemption, the 
same as the company had been. He is not a pur­
chaser for value. He took, through the medium of 
an officer of the law, precisely the interest which 
his debtor had in the property, and no more, and in 
that way equity considers his conscience bound in like 
manner as that of the company was. The issue of new 
leases and the cancellation of the old ones, it is said, has 
altered the aspect of things, and the rights of the parties.
And I presume it was to meet some such contention that 
Kingman has been charged with fraud, not only in obtain­
ing his judgment, hut also in procuring new leases to be 
substituted for the old ones. In my view of the case this 
question of fraud is altogether irrelevant, but if it were 
otherwise, I should feel compelled to find the charges of

(1) UK.1P, 0. 64. (2) OH. L. C. 619. (8) 3 Hare, 416.
(4) 21 Can. 8. C. K. 33. (6) 1 N. B. Eq. 83.
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1904. fraud unsustained by the evidence. It is abundantly 
Tim proved that the indebtedness of the company to Sayles,

OS I INI M VI. . , .
Tin sts winch was the subject-matter of Kingman s ludginent, was 
^ a bona Juif, one, and that there was no objection to 

M's-uun Kingman's recovery as his assignee. The evidence seems 
l uMi'Asv. to ghew that the company had no defence to the action; 
Barker. .1. ut 0j[ eveiitu none was set up. Neither can I see in what 

took place between Kingman and the Surveyor-General’s 
department any evidence of fraud. The plaintiffs complain 
that they were not notified of what was being done ; but, 
if they were in any case entitled to notice, for which I see 
no reason whatever, I do not think they can x’ery well 
complain, ns they neither registered their mortgage in the 
Crown Land olfkr nor in any other way notified the 
department of their claim upon the leases. I think it but 
right to the parties who have been charged with fraud to 
say that in my opinion the charges have not been proved, 
even though I think the plaintiffs' claim can be sustained 
without any reference to the question of fraud one way or 
the other.

We come now to the position of the Electro-Manganese 
Company, who have acquired their rights pendente lite. 
It is clear, in fact it is not disputed, that when they took 
over from Kingman, who was their president, the leases 84 
and 85. as well as the ore which had been mined, they knew 
all about the plaintiffs' mortgage and the claim now set up 
by the plaintiffs under it. It was to protect their interests 
which they thought were being invaded by this suit that 
led them to be made parties to it. In their answer they 
admit knowledge of the mortgage ; they do not set up as a 
defence that they were purchasers for value without 
notice ; the defence which they set up is precisely the 
same as that set up by Kingman and the Mineral Products 
Company. All these defendants unite in saying that these 
original leases 40 and 41 were forfeited, but I do not think 
this was the fact. We must look to the substance of the 
transaction, and not sacrifice substance to mere form. 
When Mr. Tweedie as solicitor of Kingman, applied to the 
Crown Laud department after the Sheriff’s transfer had

__
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been made, or at least after the sale had taken place, he 
applied to have Kingman registered as assignee of these ( 
leases. He had not bought forfeited leases, neither did he 
pay the £125 as rent due on forfeited leases. He paid it, 
as he tells us, because he could not have Kingman regist­
ered as the assignee until the overdue rent was paid. It is 
true that theMineral Products Company did not pay the rent, 
hut it was their rent that was in fact paid,and it is impossible 
to say that the Surveyor-General, having in his pocket 
all the rent due, could forfeit the leases for non-payment of 
rent. There was in fact no intention of forfeiting the 
leases, and there is no record in the office shewing any such 
action, By the terms of the leases which are prescribed by 
the Mining Act, it is provided that when the Surveyor- 
General or three or more of the Executive Council shall 
have adjudged or declared the lessee in default, then the 
lease shall become void ; but nothing of this kind was done. 
Wliat was in fact done appears by the order in Council, 
which Wars date the 13th November, 1902, and is as fol­
lows : “ The Surveyor-General reports, for the information 
of the Executive Council, that he has had under considéra­
tion the application of Barton E. Kingman of New York, 
for a transfer of mining lenses from 33 to 41, held by the 
Mineral Products Company; and the grounds upon which 
he liases his application are, that in the mouth of April last 
he the said Barton E. Kingman recovered judgment " etc. 
Then follows a statement of the sale by the Sheriff, and the 
purchase by Kingman, and it then proceeds: “And the 
said Barton K. Kingman having paid all the arrears that 
were due upon the said licenses, and it appearing to the 
Surveyor-General that it would lie advisable, instead of 
assigning the old licenses to the said Barton E Kingman, 
that new licenses should be issued to him in his own name 
over the said property covered by the said licenses, he 
ri■commends that he be authorized to issue said licenses to 
said Barton E. Kingman as requested. And the committee 
of Council concurring in such recommendation it is accord­
ingly so ordered." It is clear that the idea of forfeiture never 
entered into the mind of anyone who was a party to the

1904.
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transaction, but that, as a convenient method of arranging 
the matter, the old leases were given up by Kingman whom 
all parties regarded as the only person interested, and new 
ones were substituted in their place. The position of 
Kingman to the plaintiffs was in no way altered to their 
prejudice. He could not, while holding the leases as trus­
tee for the plaintiff's for their mortgage interest, by any 
such device if he had wished, divest himself of his fiduciary 
position, or free the property from the trust to which, while 
in his hands, it was subject. See Pilgrem v. Pilgre m (1); 
Mill v. Hill (2) ; Leiglt v. Harnett (8).

In my opinion the transaction did not alter the plain­
tiffs’ rights or Kingman's position a particle, and as the 
Klectro-Manganese Company purchased with full know­
ledge and notice of the trust they can be in no better posi­
tion. There must, therefore, !*■ a declaration that the two 
mining leases, Nos. 84 and 85, dated November 12, 1902, 
are subject to the plaintiffs’ mortgage.

As to the ore, 1 think the parties occupy a somewhat 
different position. It was clearly the intention of the 
parties to the mortgage that the Products Company were 
to have ]>osaeaaion so as to go on and mine the manganese, 
with full power of selling it That was their business, and, 
unless they had that jrower, the business could not go on, 
and the land was of no value. It necessarily follows that 
the property in the ore would pass to the purchaser free 
from any right or interest in it in the plaintiffs, subject only 
to the liability of the company to account for the 50 
cents per ton, or whatever the rate might be under the 
mortgage, which sum the plaintiffs were to have as a 
redemption fund for the benefit of the bondholders. It is 
admitted that two-thirds of the total quantity of ore was 
taken out by the Mineral Products Company, and one- 
third by the Electro-Manganese Company under the new 
lease, and they will be liable to account and pay to the 
plaintiffs the tonnage rate in these proportions I presume 
the parties can agree, not only as to this sum, but also as

(1) 18 Ch. D. 93. (2) 3H.LC. 828. (3) 29 Oh. D. 231.
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to the precise amount due upon the bond, otherwise there 
must be a reference to ascertain these amounts.

As to the costs, I shall only make the usual order in 
mortgagee’s suits. The plaintiff's have made allegations of 
fraud, which I think were not sustained by their evidence, 
and the costs of which they should pay. On the other 
hand the defendants have set up a defence which they have 
failed in establishing, and the costs of which they should 
pay. I shall let the one set of costs offset the other.

1904.
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1904 CARMAN v. SMITH.
September so.

Deed—M intake—Reel iJin it ion.

The plaintiff, intending to sell the whole of a piece of land, sold 
it under a verbal contract describing it as the I). lot. The 
deed to the purchaser followed the description in the vendor’s 
deed. After the vendee's dearth, and about ten years after 
the contract of wile was made, the vendor sought to have the 
deed rectified on the ground that it contained more land 
than that known as the 13. lot. The evidence did not shew 
that the I), lot did not embrace the whole of the land con­
veyed :—

Held, that the bill should be dismissed.
Principles upon which the Court proceeds in reforming deeds, 

considered.

Hill by vendor to rectify a conveyance for mistake in 
the quantity of land therein comprised. The facts are 
fully stated in the judgment of the Court.

Argument was heard July 12, 1904.

A. A. Stockton, K.C., for the plaintiff :— ’

Mistake in a written instrument may be established 
by parol evidence. See Lackerstcen v. Lackerstcen (1); 
Tomlison v. Leigh (2). Nor is it necessary that the mis­
take should have been mutual : Harris v. Pepperell (3), 
where the plan in the deed comprising a piece of land not 
intended by the vendor to be included, a decree of rectifi­
cation was made. Because the defendant denies the exist­
ence of a mistake is not a reason for the Court staying its 
hand. See Douglas v. Sansom (4). The mistake here 
was mutual. The vendor and vendee contracted with 
respect to the Donnelly lot, and not with respect to the 
larger piece of land contained in the deed. Both parties were 
in error as to what the description in the deed comprised.

(1) 6Jur. (N.S.) 1111.
(2) 11 Jur. |N. 8.) 062.

(3) L. K. 6 Eq. 1.
(4) 1 N. B Kq. 122, 124.
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//. Il McLean, K.C., for the defendant:—

There is no evidence of mutual mistake, and there is 
even wanting evidence of mistake by the plaintiff. The 
deed carried out the intention of both parties. The plain­
tiff intended to sell the whole of the property, and did not 
have it in mind that the Donnelly lot embraced less than 
the whole of the property owned by her. As a matter of 
fact, the whole lot was known as the Donnelly lot. See 
McNeill v. Hainee (1).

Stockton, K.C., in reply.

1004. September 20. Barker, J. :—

In April, 1880, one Leverett D. Carman for a nominal 
consideration conveyed to his niece, the plaintiff, Amy V. 
Carman, a small piece of land in the parish of Musquash, 
described as, “All that certain piece or portion of the lot 
number two (2) of land granted to the late John Mount by 
the Crown, and devised by will by the late Eliza A. V. 
Carman to the said Leverett 1). Carman, which said lot, 
piece or parcel of land is described and bounded as follows : 
on the north by the east branch of the Musquash river ; on 
the east by lands known as the ' Lancaster Mills lands;’ on 
the south by road leading to ‘ Still water,’ so called ; and 
on the west by the * Lancaster Mills lands,’ containing one 
acre, more or less." Eliza A. V. Carman was the mother of 
l-evcrett 1). Carman and the grandmother of the plaintiff. 
Some thirty or forty years ago, the precise time is not 
proved, old Mrs. Carman, who was then the owner of the 
property, permitted one Catherine Donnelly to occupy the 
lot, or at all events a portion of it. She and her son John 
continued to live on the premises until probably about 
1888 or 1884—the precise time is not proved—when they 
moved away and transferred, or in some other way gave 
over their possession to one John E. W. Smith, who is 
spoken of by the witnesses as Woolford Smith. The 
Donnellys, during their occupation, built first a log house,

(1) 17 0.R. 478.

1904.
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1904. and afterwards a larger and better house, and cultivated 
i akman all of the lot that was capable of cultivation. I should judge 
smith, from Donnelly’s evidence, though his memory on some 

Barker, J. matters does not seem very exact, that Smith occupied the 
premises as tenant to him for two or three years. Whether 
that is really so or not I cannot say, but by a conveyance 
dated November 7, 1885, John Donnelly released and quit­
claimed to Smith his interest in the house, which is 
described in the conveyance as follows :—“ A certain mes­
suage now in the seizin and possession of the said John E. 
W. Smith, situate in the parish of Musquash, City and 
County of St John, and Province of New Brunswick, on 
lands lielonging to the Carman estate, and known and dis­
tinguished as the house erected by the said John Donnelly 
and one Joseph Miller. The consideration mentioned in 
this conveyance is $40, though Donnelly says Smith paid 
him $50 for the house. Smith continued his occupation of 
the house and land down to the time of his death, May 18, 
1809, and his sister, the present defendant, has continued 
in possession ever since. Some years before Smith’s 
death, the plaintiff is unable to fix the time more 
definitely, she agreed to sell to him what she.speaks of as 
the “ Donnelly lot," for the sum of $80, which sum was to 
be paid in instalments. This sum was paid in full, but at 
what time the last instalment was paid does not appear. 
The plaintiff who is the only living person who can speak 
of it, says that it was not as long as six years before 
Smith's death, but it would be two or three years as nearly 
as she could remember. At all events when the last instal­
ment was paid, the plaintiff sent Smith her deed from her 
uncle so that he might have a conveyance prepared from her 
to him in completion of the sale. From some unexplained 
cause the matter was not completed ; nothing whatever was 
done or said about it, and the plaintiff’s deed remained 
in Smith’s possession up to the time of his death. The 
defendant is a sister of Woolford Smith and lived with 
him on these premises for some twenty years. It is not 
disputed that she, on the death of her brother, became 
entitled to the benefit of the purchase : and accordingly

4
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siiv applied to the plaintiff to execute a conveyance to her. 
A conveyance was accordingly prepared from the plaintiff1 s 
deed, the description of the property being the same in 
both. This conveyance is dated August 5,1899; it was exe­
cuted in presence of the late Hon. Thomas It. Jones ; it 
was registered on the 19th of August, 1899, and was pre­
pared by Mr. W. B. Wallace, who was apparently acting as 
solicitor for both parties. The plaintiff’s case is that in 
the summer of 1902 she discovered that she had made a 
mistake in this conveyance to Smith—that she had only 
agreed to sell the “ Donnelly lot," whereas the deed con­
veyed much more than the Donnelly lot, and that she had 
executed the deed under the erroneous impression that the 
deed from her uncle to her conveyed only the “ Donnelly 
lot," whereas it really conveyed a much larger piece of 
land. It is in order to have this alleged mistake rectified 
that the plaintiff has filed this bill, in which she avers that 
the mistake is mutual, as Smith understood the contract 
precisely as she did, and that the conveyance does not 
carry it out as it was intended. What led the plaintiff to 
discover this so-called mistake she has not told us.

A very large proportion of the cases in which a ques­
tion of mistake is involved between vendor and purchaser, 
are eases in which suits were instituted by vendors, either 
for a specific performance of the contract of sale or for a 
rectification of the conveyance. The cases are extremely 
rare in which the vendor, who is presumed to know all 
about his own property and wluit it is he has agreed to 
sell, finds himself in the position of having, as the present 
plaintiff alleges she has done, conveyed in completion of his 
contract of sale more land than he actually sold or than 
the purchaser bought. Even in the more usual cases the 
rule of the Court requires as a condition of its interference 
on the ground of mistake, either by way of rectifying the 
instrument if the mistake be mutual, or by way of rescind­
ing it if the mistake be only unilateral, that the evidence 
should be so strong and convincing as to leave no reason­
able doubt that the mistake has been made. There seem 
to me to be difficulties in the present case almost insur-

1904.
Carman

Hnrker. J.
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1304. mountable, even if the evidence of the mistake were much 
Vakhas stronger, much more exact and much clearer than i* is. 
smith. The contract was the result of a proposal made by the 

Barker. j. plaintiff herself; it was not in writing; neither is there any 
written memorandum of any kind which is any evi­
dence of the contract, except the conveyance itself which 
is adverse to the plaintiff's contention. The only evidence 
of the alleged contract, anil therefore of the mistake, is 
that of the plaintiff herself, and it is entirely unsupported 
by surrounding circumstances. I do not say that would 
of itself be a conclusive answer to her case, though the 
cases of Lackenteen v. Laeke reteen (1), and Tomlison 
v. Leigh (2), cited by Mr. Stockton, are very different cases 
from this. It does, however, render the plaintiffs case 
weak where the onus of shewing that there was a mistake 
and precisely what the mistake is rests upon her. In 
addition to this, the mistake does not seem to have been 
discovered until some ten years after the contract was 
made ; some six years after the purchase money was paid, 
and some three years after the conveyance was executed, 
and about the same time after the vendee’s death.

In Mortimer v. Shortall (3), which was a case involving 
the rectification of leases, the Lord Chancellor said : “ As to 
the rule of law, I adhere to what I have already laid down 
in Alexander v. Croehie (4). There is no objection to correct 
a deed by parol evidence, when you have anything in writ­
ing beyond the parol evidence to go by. But where there is 
nothing but the recollection of witnesses, and the defendant 
by his answer denies the case set up by the plaintiff, the 
plaintiff appears to be without a remedy. Here I am not 
acting upon parol evidence alone; the documents in the cause, 
and the subsequent transactions, corroliomte the parol evi­
dence and leave no doubt in my mind as to a mistake hav­
ing been made." When speaking of a defendant denying 
the existence of the error, the Lord Chancellor was probably 
speaking of a defendant who was a party to the contract, 
in which case it would not conclude the present plaintiff,
(1) tiJur. (N.8.)llll. (2) 11 Jur. (N. 8.) 9112. (3) 2 D. & W. 383.

(4) Lloyd & G. Ca. temp. Sugilen, 145.
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because Smith being dead and the defendant having no 
personal knowledge of the terms of the contract, is not in 
a position to say whether there was or was not a mistake. 
The stringency of the rule which governs each case is also 
shown by Beaumont v. Brantley (1), which was a case like 
the present, in which the vendor sought to have his con­
veyance rectified because it passed too much. The Lord 
Chancellor says : “ In cases of this nature, great weight
must be given to what is reasonably and properly sworn 
on the |iart of a defendant, because it must be a very 
strong case that would even in a recent transaction operate 
to overturn or vary a solemn instrument, and after the 
lapse of so long a time it must be a case that leaves no 
reasonable doubt, a case that must satisfy the conscience 
of the Court, or of a jury, if it goes to a jury, but it is only 
after great consideration that such a case should be sent to 
a jury." The Lord Chancellor says that such a case is one 
of great difficulty, and Courts should proceed with great 
caution.

The first question to be settled is, what was in fact 
the contract, and then comes the other one, does the con­
tract carry out the intention of the parties ? Because if it 
does there is of course an end to the case. This Court can­
not make a new contract for the parties, though it may 
reform a conveyance intended to carry out a contract, but 
which, from some mistake in it, does not do so. This 
Court does not act simply because a plaintiff swears that 
he has made a mistake. The error which entitles the 
party to relief must be as to some material matter, and it 
must lie one which is not attributable to the unreasonable 
or negligent conduct of the complainant himself. The 
evidence as I view it fails in establishing any mistake 
which the Court can notice, or in reality any mistake at 
all. The alleged contract was the result of a conversation 
between the plaintiff and Smith, in which she made a pro­
posal of sale to him. She gives the conversation as follows :

1904.
Carman

Barker. J.

VOL. 111. N. B. ». a—1.

(1) T. & U. 41.
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1904.
( AICMAN

Smith. 
Barker. J.

[VOL

“ Q. Wliat was the conversation ? A. Well, he .node 
the arrangement. I wanted him to buy the property, the 
Donnelly lot, before we left Musquash, and he made an 
arrangement. He was to pay me so much in instalments, 
anil I told him that after lie paid me I would hand him in 
the deed, and so after we came to St. John and hail been 
here for some years he paid me the last instalment, and I 
sent him the deed I Imd.

“ Q. Of the whole of the property you got from your 
uncle ! A. Yes, that deed, and it was understood between 
him and me that ho would buy the Donnelly lot.

“ Q. What was said that he would buy ? A. He said 
the Donnelly lot

“ Q. Who was keeping this piece of land at that time f 
A. Mr. Smith.

I

“ Q. For 880. A. Yes."
Meagre and unsatisfactory as this evidence is, and 

perhaps it is not to lie wondered at after a lapse of some 
twelve years, it seems to me to indicate, what I have no 
doubt of from the rest of the evidence in the case, the fact 
that when the plaintiff spoke of the property which she 
wished Smith to buy, and which she describes us the 
Donnelly lot, she had in her mind the property described 
in the deed from her uncle which she said she would send 
to him after he hud paid the purchase money, so that he 
might get a conveyance to himself prepared. Hut that 
deed afforded no assistance to a ]>erson commissioned to 
draw a conveyance of that jmrt of the lot now said to have 
then lieen occupied by Smith included within the fences, 
the location of which the plaintiff could scarcely have 
known anything about at the time, and which Donnelly 
and the other witnesses were unable to fix with any exact­
ness. It is clear from all the evidence that what the plain­
tiff had in her mind to sell was the land described in the 
deed from her uncle ; it was upon that that the price of 
$80 was fixed—not for one-half of it—and it was that which 
she intended to convey. She may have beam under the 
impression that Donnelly occupied the whole lot described 
in the deed, or to put it the other way, that her deed con-
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veyed to her only what Donnelly occupied. She did not 
know, except from the terms of the deed, what Donnelly 
occupied, and she did know what her deed gave her and what 
were the boundaries of the lot conveyed by it, and it was 
that which she in reality intended to sell, though she may 
have erroneously called it the “ Donnelly lot” If the verbal 
contract just as the plaintiff says it was made were put 
into writing with her understanding of the meaning of the 
term " Donnelly lot,” which without explanation means 
nothing, it would read thus : “ I agree to sell to Smith, and 
he agrees to buy from me, for the sum of 8N0, the Donnelly 
lot, which I understand to be the land described in a deed 
to me from Leverett D. Carman," etc. That is reducing into 
writing precisely the plaintiff's understanding of the con­
tract. After making a conveyance accordingly, would this 
Court rectify it on the ground that she had made a mistake 
in her understanding ? I think not. At most she has only 
sold a lot of land which comprises more than she thought 
it did, which is not n mistake capable of rectification.

In Tamplin v. .Atines(l), the plaintiffs who were ven­
dors tiled a bill to compel specific performance, and the 
defence was, a mistake on the purchaser's jiart in thinking 
that the pro|wrty agreed to be sold comprised more than it 
really did; but that was held to be no answer. James, L J., 
says : “The vendors did nothing to mislead. In the par­
ticulars of sale they described the property as consisting of 
Nos *.14 and 455 on the tithe map, and this was quite 
correct The purchaser says that the tithe map is on so 
small a scale as not to give sufficient information, but he 
never looked at it He must lie presumed to have looked 
at it and at the particulars of sale. He says he knew the 
property, and was aware that the gardens were held with 
the other property in the occupation of the tenants, and he 
came to the conclusion that what was offered for sale was 
the w hole of what was in the occupation of the tenants, 
but he asked no question about it If a man will not take 
reasonable euro to ascertain what he is buying he must

1004.
Carman

Smith.
! tanker, J.

(1) 16 Ch. D 216.
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1904. take the consequences. The defence on the ground of mis- 
uahman take cannot be sustained. It is not enough for a purchaser 
smith. to swear, ‘ I thought the farm sold contained twelve fields, 

iiarkor.J. which I knew, and I find it does not include them all,’ or,
11 thought it contained 100 acres and it oidy contains 80.’ 
It would open the door to fraud if such a defence was to 
be allowed.” These remarks apply still more strongly to 
a vendor, because he ought to know what he is selling, and 
he ought to know the boundaries of his own land and the 
occupation of his own tenants. See Hum/ihrien v. Home 
(1); Ok ill v. Whittaker (2).

In the report of this last case in 2 Ph. 338, Lord 
Cottenham says : “ Suppose a party proposed to sell a 
farm, describing it as 1 all my farm of 200 acres,’ 
and the price was fixed on that supposition, but it 
afterwards turned out to be 250 acres, could he after­
wards come and ask for a reconveyance of the farm on 
payment of the difference ! Clearly not, the only equity 
being that the thing turns out more valuable than either 
of the parties supposed : and whether the additional value 
consists in a longer term or a larger acreage is immaterial.’’ 
In addition to what I have already said I think there is 
ample evidence to warrant me in concluding that the 
Donnelly lot as understood, was in fact the lot conveyed to 
the plaintiff by her uncle, and was in no way limited to 
the particular part fenced in as is contended. Perhaps it 
is sufficient for the purposes of this case if the plaintiff so 
regarded it, but the facts and circumstances all point to 
that conclusion. Leverett Carman s|>eaks of the Donnellys 
and Smith king tenants, but if so they cannot have ken 
more than tenants at will or at sufferance. None of them 
ever had a lease, and so far as the evidence goes they 
never paid any rent Donnelly in answer to a question as 
to what rent he or his mother paid, said : “ We did'nt pay 
him any rent; he made it a present. We were jioor and 
mother paid no rent, and Mrs. Carman kind of gave her 
the ground."

(1) 3 Hare, 277. (2) 11 Jur. Ill, anil on appeal, U81.
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"Q. Just let her put up her house and live in it with- 1904. 
out rent ? A. Yes. vahman

“ Q. Never paid any rent ? A. No, sir.” smith.

Neither the Donnellys nor Smith had any title to the Murker. J.
lot until Smith bought from the plaintiff They had no 
leases, verbal or otherwise, and they paid no rent, or at all 
events Donnelly did not. How any one knowing these 
facts as the Plaintiff did, and as Smith must also have 
known, could attach any other meaning to the term 
“Donnelly lot” than merely “ the lot of Mrs. Carman 
upon which or where Donnelly lived,” I am unable to see. 
This, it must lie recollected, was but a small isolated lot in 
a country parish and separate from any other of the 
Carman property. It is spoken of in the deed prepared 
under the directions of Levevett Carman, as containing an 
acre, more or less. Hanson, by actual survey, found the 
area to be 1 acre, 118 square rods, and the piece inside of the 
fence, as described by Mr. Cloves Carman, to be 3 roods 
and 20 perches. Mr. Carman makes it nearly double this 
size, but Hanson's survey corresponds very closely with 
Levcrett Carman's estimate when he made the conveyance 
to the plaintiff There is no suggestion that 880 was not 
a full price for the whole lot. Indeed it is proved by all 
the witnesses that all that part of the lot which is capable 
of cultivation, was cultivated by Donnelly and by Smith, 
and was surrounded in part at all events by fences. The 
only |>art outside the fences is a gravel bank, which has 
never been used, and is of no value so far as is known. 
The Carmans have never used the lot in any way ; they 
owned it of course ; but, irrespective of the fences alto­
gether, Donnelly and Smith used the gravel-bank and 
that jiortion of it which was unfenced anil led down to the 
river, just as freely as they required, and occupied it just 
as much as the rest of the lot, except that one was of value 
and therefore in constant use, while the other was of little 
value and therefore seldom used. It is tme that fences of 
some kind were built along the top of the bank and other 
places : and their is some evidence to support the contention 
put forward by the plaintiff's Counsel, that these were put
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1004. up to indicate the limits of Donnelly's occupation ; and the 
cakman “ Donnelly lot,” so called, could be defined in that way. 
smiVh. The evidence as to the precise location of these fences, as I 

Hnrkor. J. have already stated, was anything but satisfactory. Lev- 
erett Carman, who I think was not well when examined 
under a Judge’s order, was not able to tell. Cloves 
Carman was able to point out where he found remnants 
of old fences, and Donnelly could only describe them in a 
general way. In a case like this, where a rectification of 
a written instrument is sought on the ground of mistake, 
it is the duty of the plaintiff not only to shew that there 
has been a mistake and what it is, but to inform the Court 
what the contract should have contained, instead of what 
it did in fact contain. To meet this the plaintiff set out 
in her bill a description of the lot really sold to Smith, 
and as she contends it should be in the conveyance. 
Although the bill in that state was sworn to by the plain­
tiff for the purpose of an injunction, her Counsel felt com­
pelled at the hearing to amend this description. One 
distance is lessened by ten feet and another by fifty feet. 
One of these fences is made a boundary by the amendment, 
while as originally prepared, the description says nothing 
about the fences at all. I must confess that the evidence 
led me to think that the real object in erecting the fences 
was, ns some if not all of the witnesses practically admitted, 
to protect the crops from being destroyed by cows which 
were liable to stray on the lot. That is a sensible and 
practical reason : but to put up fences to define the occupa­
tion of parties situated as these were, who were occupying 
the whole lot and cultivating all that was capable of 
cultivation and the real owners assenting to it, does not 
seem to me so reasonable a view as the other. I shall 
allude to but one more circumstance which seems to shew 
that, with the Carman family themselves, and the plaintiff 
among the number, by the term “ Donnelly lot” was meant 
this whole lot and nothing else. On the plaintiff's exam­
ination she was interrogated as to the interview between 
herself and the defendant when the plaintiff applied to her 
to rectify the deed, apparently with a view of shewing how
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lier brother had understood the bargain. I quote from the
evidence ns follows :

“ Q. Did she (defendant) say an’ thing about your 
grandmother (that is, the plaintiff’s grandmother)? A. Yes, 
he (that is, Smith) said this was the land she wished I 
should have (that is, Smith the person with whom the 
plaintiff contracted, told the defendant that the land which 
the plaintiff was to convey to him was the land plaintiff 's 
grandmother, old Mrs. Carman, wished her, that is the 
plaintiff, to have).

“ Q. What piece was that ? A. The Donnelly lot." 
Later the plaintiff was asked whether she went to 
Smith to purchase or he came to her. Her answer was : 
“ I went to him and I told him it was this lot of land that 
grandmother had wished me to have.”

Now when you find that this lot was devised by Mrs. 
Carman to Leverett Carman, and that her wishes in refer­
ence to it were carried out by his conveying this lot as the 
Donnelly lot to the plaintiff, the identity of the two is 
placed beyond doubt Leverett Carman did not carry out 
his mother’s wishes that the plaintiff should have the 
“ Donnelly lot” by conveying what was between the fences. 
Such a thing, very naturally as I think, never occurred to 
him.

In Ok til v. Whittaker (1), Knight Hruce, V.-C., in deal­
ing with a case somewhat similar to this, says : Now from 
all this, the just and inevitable conclusion I think will be, 
that the thing which the vendors intended to sell, and the 
purchaser intended to buy, was not a term of eight or nine 
years, but was the lease of 1755, as it affected this prop­
erty, erroneously supposed to have a shorter time to run 
than in fact it had. That being so, it must be impossible 
1 think to give the plaintiffs relief in this case upon any 
other footing than that of rescinding the contract wholly, 
or from the outset rescinding the contract. Under what 
circumstances is that sought in a case where, I repeat, there 
in a total absence of unfairness and where the peculiar

1904.

Carman

(1) 11 Jur. 141.
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1904. doctrines of specific performance are entirely beside the 
carman question ? Tlie purchase was, as I have stated, complete in 
smith. the month of August, 1836. The purchaser lived until

itorkcr. J. 1842, when he died, and therefore those who have to 
administer justice between the parties arc deprived of all 
the assistance and all the information which he, if living, 
might have afforded, and it is not until two or three years 
after his death, and some eight or nine years after the pur­
chase, that this bill is filed, which must he treated as a hill 
for the purpose of rescinding the contract, that being the 
only ground upon which it could he reasonably suggested 
that a bill could be sustained. The ground alleged is mis­
take. Now, how it should happen that the vendors could 
make such a mistake, it is difficult to comprehend. Cer­
tainly it is not stating too much to say, that it was their 
duty to know what was the state and condition of the 
property which they had to sell. How it came or under 
what circumstances this mistake was made, and how it 
happened that they were in this strange state of ignorance 
or error or both, is undemonstrnted and unexplained. But 
there is a still greater lack of explanation, because it is also 
not shown when nor how, by what means, os by what per­
sons the supposed mistake was discovered. When the 
truth reached the minds of the vendors or the minds of 
the purchasers—all that is left in obscurity and darkness. 
In such a case as this, after all that has occurred, the Court 
is asked to rescind the contract. I am of opinion that such 
a bill must lie dismissed, with costs."

So in the present case while I think the evidence 
shews that there was in reality no mistake, or at all events 
none which would sustain this hill, it is also I think demon­
strated by the plaintiff's own evidence that the lot of land 
which she had in her mind when she made the contract, 
was the lot described in her deed from her uncle, which 
she knew all about; it was that lot for which the price was 
fixed by her, it was that lot she evidently intended to con­
vey, and it was that lot she did convey in completion of 
her contract for sale. I think under the circumstances the 
bill must be dismissed, and with costs.
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BOYNE v. ROBINSON.

Practice — Payment into Court —Surplun of mortgage rale— 
Competing claimant* to fund — Coat*.

A mortgage sale under power yielded a surplus of $.'120.20, out of
a hu ll the.......applied t" pee lato I 'uni t 1s211v.su, being
amount of a judgment against the mortgagor, which the 
judgment creditor sought by suit to have paid out of the 
surplus as against the owner of the equity of redemption in 
tile mortgage :—

llrld, that on tile mortgagee paying into Court the whole surplus, 
less tin- costs of his appearance and application, his name 
should he struck out of the suit.

Motion by the defendant Henry B. Robinson on 
notice, for leave to pay money into Court to the credit of 
tlie suit. The facts fully appear in the judgment of 
the Court.

Argument was heard September 30, 1004.

it. (f. Teed, K. C., in support of the motion.

C. A". Skinner, K. C., for the plaintiff.

A. A. Wilmn, K. C., for the defendant Thurston.

1004. October 7. Barker, J. :—

It appears by the plaintiff’s bill that on the 22nd July, 
1*02, one John M. Taylor gave a mortgage on some land 
in St. John to one C. F. Kitmcar, to secure the sum of S.’iOO 
and interest. On November 30, 1003, Manchester, Robert­
son A: Allison Co., Limited, recovered a judgment in the St. 
John County Court against Taylor for 9238.21, a memorial 
of which was filed in the St John registry office on the 
same day. On the 5th December, 1903, Taylor and wife 
conveyed their equity of redemption in the mortgaged 
premises to the defendant Thurston. On the 3rd May, 
1904, K Inneur, the mortgagee, assigned the mortgage to the

1904,

Of tober 7.
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1904. defendant Robinson, and on the 31st May, 1904, Man-
ikiiNK Chester, Robertson & Allison Co., Limited, assigned the

Romsson. judgment against Taylor to the present plaintiff. Robinson, 
Barker. J. under a power of sale contained in the mortgage, sold the 

premises at auction on the 16th July, 1904, for the sum of 
8950, which was paid to him. After deducting for himself 
the amount due on his mortgage and expenses there 
remains a balance of $320.29 in his hands in trust for the 
mortgagor or his assigns. As the sale by the mortgagee 
prevented the plaintiff from realizing on his judgment by 
a sale of the land under execution he has. as I understand 
the case, tiled this bill to enforce payment out of the sur­
plus proceeds in the hands of Robinson as representing the 
land, and he has demanded from him payment of the 
amount due on his judgment, which Robinson refused ; not 
that he claims any interest in the fund, but because the 
defendant Thurston claims the whole balance. The bill 
asks for payment of the amount due on the judgment, 
which, at the commencement of the suit, seems to have been 
8246.89. and for an injunction restraining Robinson from 
paying the balance or any part of it to Thurston, or any­
one else than himself. This present application is made 
hy Robinson for an order permitting him to pay into 
Court, to the credit of this cause, the sum of 8246.89, and 
directing that upon such payment his name should be 
struck out as a defendant, and that his costs of his appear­
ance in this suit and of this application should be paid out 
of the $246.89,

It is difficult to see why the applicant wishes to retain 
any part of this fund in his hands. He disclaims all 
interest in it, and by paying it into Court to the credit of 
a cause to which the competitors for the fund are parties, 
he would be protected by any decree made for its distribu­
tion. No objections have been made to the form of this 
application, but the plaintiff contends that before Robinson’s 
name can be struck from the record he must pay the whole 
amount into Court, or at least that sum less the amount of 
his costs, and in my opinion that contention must prevail 
I think substantially the same principle should govern this
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application as though the applicant had tiled a bill of 
interpleader, in which case the bill must allege that the 
money has been paid into Court, or that the plaintiff is 
willing and ready to do so; and the almost invariable rule 
seems, in the absence of consent to the contrary, to lie 
that the fund in dispute should be so dealt with. 
Prudential .insurance Company v. Tlionuis (1) is an 
authority for holding that if Thurston had not been a party 
to this bill, Kobinson could have tiled a bill of interpleader 
and obtained an injunction restraining this action, and the 
reason, or at all events the principal reason, is that he could 
not with safety pay the fund into Court to the credit of a 
cause to which all persons interested in or claiming the 
fund in whole or in part, were not parties before the Court. 
The rule is laid down as I have stated it, in Mitford on 
Pleading (2). Lord Redesdale there says: “As the sole 
ground on which the jurisdiction of the Court in this case 
is supported is the danger of injury to the plaintiff from 
the doubtful titles of the defendants, the Court will not 
permit the proceeding to be used collusively to give an 
advantage to either party, nor will it permit the plaintiff 
to delay the payment of money due from him by suggest­
ing a doubt to whom it is due ; therefore, to a bill of inter­
pleader, the plaintiff must annex an affidavit that there is 
no collusion between him and any of the parties ; and, if 
any money is due from him he must bring it into Court, or 
at least offer to do so by his bill.” The applicant here 
seeks to get rid of this suit by paying into Court the sum 
now due on the plaintiff’s judgment, and says that is the 
only part of the fund aliout which there is any dispute, ns 
the lialance of 874.45 admittedly belongs to the defendant 
Thurston. While I am unable to see why' Robinson should 
raise any such ijuestion, I do not think the position is ten­
able from the standpoint of Thurston. He acquired the 
property subject to the two liens ; and, if the plaintiff is 
able to establish a charge upon this fund in place of the 
lien which he had on the land, and co-extensive with it, as

5V

1904.

Kobinson. 
Marker, J.

(1) L. R. 3 Ch. 74. (2) P. 41».
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11104. lie seeks to do by this bill, one would think that his lien 
Huynh would be good, not only for the additional interest which 

Robinson, might accrue on the judgment, but, also for the coats of 
Borkiir. J. realizing his security, which in this case would certainly 

absorb the balance. At all events the plaintilf ought not 
to be deprived of all chance of reaping the fruits of his 
claim if he is able to establish it, by handing over the 
balance of this fund to Thurston (for that would be 
practically the effect of the order asked for), whose claim 
is altogether subject to that of the plaintiff. Robinson v. 
Hedger (1), and also in 14 Jur. 784, is a somewhat similar 
case. In that case the plaintiff had a judgment for £800, 
and lie tiled a hill against the mortgagee and the mort­
gagor's assignees in insolvency, praying a declaration that 
the amount due on his judgment was a charge in equity 
on the £5,000, the proceeds of a sale by the mortgagee 
under a power of sale, and then in their hands subject to 
the charge created by the mortgage, and asking for an 
injunction restraining the mortgagee and assignee from 
parting with the money. The Court granted the injunc­
tion, not for £800, hut for £1,000. See also Thornton 
v. Finch (2) ; Jones v. Thomas (3).

There will be an order that on the payment by the 
defendant ltobinson into Court to the credit of this cause 
of the sum of 8320.29, less his taxed costs of this applica­
tion and his appearance in this suit, on or before the 21st 
day of Octolier instant, his name as a defendant be struck 
out of the record, and the title of this suit be amended 
accordingly. And in default of such payment this appli­
cation do stand dismissed with costs.

(1) 13 Jur. 346. (2) « Giff. 515. (3) 2 Sm. It G. 186.



III.] NEW BRUNSWICK EQUITY REPORTS. 61

BUCHANAN v. HARVIE. 

— No. 2. See ante, p. 1.

1904.
October 18.

Mortyaye—Foreclosure—Fetter on equity of redemption—Bonus 
—Collateral adi'antayc.

Thu proviso for redemption in a mortgage dated August 30, 
100*2, to secure an advance of £3,500, was the payment on 
November 11, of £0,000 and the transfer of £5,000 in shares 
in a company to lie promoted by the mortgagor. The 
principal money advanced was applied in purchasing the 
mortgaged premises, the value of which was speculative, 
being practically comprised in undeveloped salt springs 
which the proposed company were to work. In a suit for 
foreclosure : —

Held, that the proviso for redemption should not l>e relieved 
against.

This was a suit for the foreclosure of a mortgage 
dated August 30, 1002, given by the defendant William 
Hnrvie to the plaintiff Albert Buchanan, both of London, 
England, of lands situate in King's County. The mort­
gage was to secure an advance of £3,500 by the plaintiff 
to the defendant Harvie, to enable the latter to purchase 
the mortgaged premises. The mortgaged property con­
sisted of al>out 1,450 acres, and contained salt springs 
which the defendant proposed to develop through a com­
pany to lie organized by him, and to be known as the 
New Brunswick Salt and Alkali Works, Limited. The 
price paid by the defendant for the property was £3,200. 
The value of the property exclusive of the salt springs 
would not exceed $2,500. The springs had not been 
opened up to an extent sufficient to determine their value, 
or whether salt existed in large and paying quantities. 
I heir natural flow yielded salt of a very superior quality. 
Of the £3,500 advanced by the plaintiff, £50 was applied to 
cover expenses of an examination of the property by 
him. and the remaining £250 was retained by the 
defendant The proviso for redemption in the mortgage 
was that the mortgagor should on or before the eleventh 
day of November, in the year one thousand nine hundred
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1004. and two, pay or cause to be paid to the mortgagee the sum 
tivciiANAs of £6,000, and should, on or before the said eleventh day 

Hak'vik. of November, transfer or cause to be transferred to the 
mortgagee, fully paid-up shares of the company, to be pro­
moted and organized by the mortgagor, and in the mort­
gage referred to as the New Brunswick Salt and Alkali 
Works, Limited, to the nominal face or par value of £5,000. 
The defendant Frederick Garside, by notice dated February 
7, 1903, notified the plaintiff that by an agreement dated 
August 27, 1902, the defendant William Harvie charged 
in his favor the property described in the plaintiff’s mort­
gage, to secure the repayment of £500 and interest. The 
plaintiff’s mortgage was registered in the registry office of 
King's Count)’, on October 7, 1902. The plaintiff prayed 
to be paid the sum of £6,000, and that a transfer lie made 
to him of fully paid-up shares of the New Brunswick Salt 
and Alkali Works, Limited, of the nominal face or par 
value of £5,000, and to be paid costs of suit ; that an 
account might be taken or a decree made of the amount 
due the plaintiff; that the defendants might be decreed to 
pay the amount found or decreed to be due, by a day to be 
appointed ; or in default thereof, that the defendants might 
be debarred and foreclosed of and from all right, title, 
interest and equity of redemption in and to the mortgaged 
premises, and that in the order for foreclosure absolute 
delivery up of possession might be decreed to the plaintiff. 
The plaintiff had been in possession of the mortgaged 
premises since February 9, 1904, by an agent, and by his 
bill submitted to account as mortgagee in possession. At the 
hearing evidence of the fair rental value of the property, 
with which to charge the plaintiff, was given. The bill 
was taken pro eonfemo against the defendant Garside.

Argument was heard September 20, 1904.

E. G. Kaye, for the defendant Harvie :—

The mortgage is oppressive and unconscionable. A 
mortgagee cannot stipulate for any advantage beyond 
principal, interest, and costs, if any. If a collateral advan-

■■
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tage is sought, it is a clog upon the equity of redemption. 
Jennings v. Ward (1) is a distinct authority that a mort­
gagee shall not have interest for his money and an addi­
tional advantage for the loan of it. In Chambers v. 
Goldwin (2), Lord Eldon says that it is clear that a mort­
gagee cannot originally contract for a collateral advantage, 
or any advantage beyond interest See also Broad v. 
Sel/e (3). These authorities were upheld in Mainland 
v. Upjohn (4). If a collateral advantage will be allowed, 
it must be fair and reasonable : Biggs v. Hoddinott (5). 
Otherwise the equity to redeem is fettered. See Koalces <fc 
Co., Limited v. Rice (6), and Bradley v. Carritt (7). The 
repeal of the usury laws does not leave parties free to 
make an oppressive and unconscionable bargain.

W. H. Trueman, for the plaintiff:—

The question, if any, in dispute is not as to the equitable 
doctrine that equity will not suffer a fetter on the right to 
redeem. The right to redeem is in no wise fettered here. 
The stipulations in the mortgage for the benefit of the 
mortgagee are part of the mortgage transaction, and the 
condition upon which the loan was made. They cannot 
be a clog on the equity of redemption, for the equity of 
redemption does not arise until the performance of the 
stipulations. On the payment of £6,000 and a transfer of 
shares in the proposed company, the security comes to an 
end. If it were the rule that a mortgagee cannot reserve 
to himself a collateral advantage, this case would not come 
within it The mortgage does not provide for the payment 
of interest. Instead, the mortgagee is to have, in addition to 
the return of his loan, the sum of £2,600 and shares in 
the proposed company to the value of £5,000. This may 
be described ns a high rate of interest. It is only interest 
in another form. It cannot be described as a collateral 
advantage. If it can be so described, there is no principle 
against it. See Mainland v. Upjohn (4); Biggs v.

Ill 2 Vi-iii. 520. 
(2) 9 Vee. 254.

(3) 9 Jur. (N. 8.) 885.
(4) 41 Ok I). 12(1.

(7) 11903] A. O. 253.

(5| [18U8| 2 Ch. 307. 
(6) [19U2J A. C. 24.

1004.
Hvciianan
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1904. Hoddinolt (1); Santley v. Wilde (2); Noaken uc Co., 
Buchanan Limited v. tfice (3). In Potter v. Edwardn (4), the mort- 

Hau'vik. gage was expressed to be to secure £1,000 with interest at 
5 per cent In fact, only £700 was advanced, the remaining 
£,‘1U0 1 icing a bonus. It was held that the mortgagor could 
not redeem except upon payment of the £1,000. The 
bargain there stood for the very good reason that the 
mortgagor obtained the loan on the footing and faith of 
the contract. If there was fraud or overreaching, or per­
haps hard bargaining such as to be unconscionable, in the 
present case, relief would be given, but no suggestion of 
that can be made. The parties dealt at arm's length. 
The defendant expected to make large profits from the 
floating and working of the proposed company, and was 
willing to pay liberally for the loan. Unless he had been he 
could not have obtained it. The plaintiff was supplying all 
the money at risk in the enterprise, which was of a highly 
speculative nature, and was entitled to remuneration com­
mensurate with the hazard he assumed.

1904. October 18. Barker, J. :—

The sole question involved in this suit is whether the 
provisions of the mortgage in question create a clog upon 
the redemption, so as to entitle the plaintiff to nothing 
more than the sum actually advanced, with interest and 
costs. There is no suggestion that the contract was in any 
way the result of oppression, or unfair dealing or surprise. 
It was a fair, open, well-understood bargain between two 
business men, who were in all respects competent to con­
tract. The one was desirous of borrowing £3,500 for the 
purpose of buying the property described in this mortgage, 
with the intention of forming a company to utilize it in 
the manufacture of salt. The plaintiff agreed to lend the 
money on certain specified terms, which the defendant 
accepted, but which he now seeks to alter to his advantage, 
so as to escape by the payment of the actual money 
advanced and interest. Samuel v. Jarrali Timber and

(1) [1808] 2 oh. 307.
(2) [1890| 2 Oh. 471.

(3) 110021 A. C. 24.
(4) 2Ü L. J. (Ob.) 168.
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Wood-Paving Corporation (1), is an express authority 
that, however unreasonable it may seem that this Court 
should interfere with the rights of parties as secured to 
them by a contract made under such circumstances, the old 
doctrine, “ Once a mortgage, always a mortgage,” is still 
alive; and, therefore, if there is any condition or agree­
ment in the mortgage transaction which fetters the right 
to redeem, that condition cannot bo enforced. There is, 
however, a distinction between a clog upon redemption 
and a collateral advantage to the mortgagee, which in no 
way fetters the right to redeem. It is admitted here that, 
though the mortgage is to secure the payment of £(1,000 
and the transfer of certain shares in the company which 
the defendant was about organizing, the plaintiff in fact 
only advanced £3,500, of which £50 went to pay the 
expenses of his son in coming to this Province to examine 
the property before the bargain was completed. The 
premises, by the express terms of the mortgage, were 
redeemable on the payment of the £6,000 and transfer of 
the shares, but only upon these terms. The land outside 
of its mineral value does not seein to be worth the price 
paid for it, so that the plaintiff was getting a risky secur­
ity for his money, and naturally expected a large bonus 
by way of remuneration. The company does not seem to 
have been organized ; and the shares were, therefore, never 
assigned to the plaintiff His £6,000 were never paid, but 
the defendant is willing, as he says, to repay the £3,500 
with interest, on having his property re-conveyed to him.

I am unable to distinguish this case from Potter v. 
Eduards (2), where on a loan of £700, a mortgage to 
secure £1,000 was held a valid security for the larger sum. 
Mainland v. Upjohn (3); Noaken ,(■ Co., Limited v. Rice (*); 
Riggs v. Iloddinott (5), are all to the same effect. In 
Noakes <(• Co., Limited v. Rice, Lord Davey, after alluding 
to the rule which prevailed while the usury laws were in 
force, by which Courts of Equity declared void every stipu-

(1) |19M) A.C.323. (4) [1B021 A. C. 2t.
(2) 20 L. J. (Ob.) 408. (5) 11888] 2 Oh. 307.
(3) 41 Ch. D. 128.

1004.
Buchanan 
Hakvik. 

Barker, J.

VOL. III. N. B. E. H.-5.
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1904. lation by a mortgagee for a collateral advantage which 
Buchanan made his total remuneration for the loan indirectly exceed 
Hak'vik. the legal interest, says : “ I think it will be found that 

Barker. J. every case under this head of equity was decided either 
on this ground, or on the ground that the bargain was 
oppressive and unconscionable. The abolition of the usury 
laws has made an alteration in the view the Court should 
take on this subject, and I agree that a collateral advan­
tage may now be stipulated for by a mortgagee, provided 
that no unfair advantage be taken by the mortgagee." 
And he expresses his approval of the decision in Biggs 
v. Hoddinott, while disapproving of the decision in Santley 
v. Wilde (1). Lord Davey, in the case just cited, approves 
of the definition of the term, “clog or fetter on the right of 
redemption," given by the Master of the Rolls in Santley 
v. Wtide, and adds, “ I think it must be security for the 
principal, interest and costs, and, I will add, for any advan­
tages in the nature of increased interest or remuneration 
for the loan which the mortgagee has validly stipulated 
for during the continuance of the mortgage. There are 
two elements in the conception of a mortgage : first, 
security for the money advanced; and secondly, remu­
neration for the use of the money.” In the same case the 
Lord Chancellor cites with approval the definition of the 
Master of the Rolls to which I have referred, and which, 
so far as it relates to the present case, is as follows : “ Any 
provision inserted to prevent redemption on payment or 
performance of the debt or obligation for which the 
security was given is what is meant by a clog or fetter 
on the equity of redemption, and is therefore void. It 
follows from this that, once a mortgage always a mort­
gage, but I do not understand that this principle involves 
the further proposition that the amount or nature of the 
further debt or obligation, the payment or performance of 
which is to be secured, is a clog or fetter within the rule.”

Between these cases and the present there seems to 
be no difference in the principle applicable to them. The 
remuneration which the defendant agreed to pay for a 

(1) |1899) 2 Ch. 474.
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loan of £3,500, for a specified time without interest, was a 
casli payment of £6,000 and a transfer of certain shares in 
the company which the defendant was about to organize, 
and which represented a possible, but unascertained, value 
in addition. The difference between the sum loaned and 
the sum secured may, and, in fact, does seem large even 
where the security is as speculative as the evidence shews 
this was. And, if the validity of the transaction were 
being impeached on the ground of oppression or surprise, 
or any similar ground, this difference would be an import­
ant factor in the determination of that question. Hut no 
such defence is set up here, and, if it were, there is no 
sufficient evidence whatever to support it 

There must be a decree of foreclosure.

The decree nisi was as follows :
Order that the damages for principal on the mortgage set 

forth in the plaintiffs bill be assessed at the sum of £5,974 up to 
the first day of April, A. D. 1905; and that the plaintiff shall be 
allowed his taxed costs of suit, the same to be added to the said 
principal ; and the Court doth further order that, upon the 
defendants, or any of them, paying to the plaintiff said principal, 
together with his costs of this suit, and transferring to the 
plaintiff fully paid-up shares of the New Brunswick Salt and 
Alkali Works, Limited, to the nominal face or par value of 
£5,000, on the first day of April, A. D. 1905, between the hours 
of twelve o’clock in the forenoon and two o’clock in' the after­
noon of said day, to the plaintiff, at his residence or place of 
alxxle, 361 Camden Hoad, in the County of Middlesex. Great 
Britain, the plaintiff do execute and give a written discharge 
and satisfaction of the indenture of mortgage comprised in the 
bill of complaint, and of all sums due or payable thereunder, 
said discharge to be executed and acknowledged in accordance 
with the registry laws of the Province of New Brunswick, and 
do deliver up said indenture of mortgage and all deeds and 
writings in the custody and power of the plaintiff relating to 
said indenture of mortgage, or the loan secured thereby, to the 
said defendants, or such of them as shall redeem, or to whom 
they or such of them shall appoint; but it is ordered that, in 
default of the defendants paying unto the plaintiff such princi­
pal and transferring said shares and costs as aforesaid, the 
defendants shall stand absolutely debarred and foreclosed of and 
from all equity of redemption of, in and to the said mortgaged 
premises comprised in the said indenture of mortgage.

(The damages were assessed in this suit up to April 1, 1905, 
the date fixed for redemption, in order to charge the plaintiff, 
who was in possession or the mortgaged premises, with a fair 
occupation rental up to that date. Otherwise the plaintiff would 
not be entitled to an order absolute without opening the account, 
and obtaining a new day for redemption. See Preen v. Coke, 
L. R. 6 Ch. 646 ; Allen v. Eduard*, 42 L. J. (Ch.) 455 ; Garlick v. 
Jackson, 4 Beav. 164 ; Scott v. McDonell, 1 Ch. Ch. 193—Rep.]

1904-
Buchanan

Barker. J.
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1904.
October is. LEIGHTON v. HALE.

Partnership—Purchase of projterly — Re-sale— Agreement to 
divide profits — Consideration — Declaration of trust.

lTpon information supplied by the plaintiff, the defendant pur­
chased certain property held by a hank as security for ad­
vances to the plaintiff's father, which upon re-sale yielded a 
surplus after meeting a liability the defendant had assumed 
for the benefit of plaintiff*s father. The defendant promised 
the plaintiff that in the event of there being a surplus it 
should belong to him :—

Held, that the plaintiff and defendant were not partners, entitl­
ing the plaintiff to share in the profits from the re-sale of the 
property, and that the defendant’s promise, which was not a 
declaration of trust, was nudum pactum.

Bill for the winding up of a partnership alleged to 
have existed between the plaintiff and defendant, and for 
the usual accounts. The facts sufficiently appear in the 
judgment of the Court.

Argument was heard September 8,1904.

F. II. Carvell, for the plaintiff.

J. C. Hartley, for the defendant. 

1904. October 18. Barker, J.:—

This bill was filed for the winding up of a partnership 
alleged to have existed between the parties, and for the 
usual account to be taken. The defendant denies the 
existence of any partnership, or any liability to account in 
any way, and it is this question which I now have to 
decide. It seems that on the 25th of May, 1892, one John 
S. Leighton, the plaintiff's father, who had been doing 
business at Woodstock, made an assignment for the bene­
fit of his creditors. He was then indebted to the Saint 
Stephen bunk in the sum of 87,295 for moneys advanced, 
and there were current at that time some eight or nine
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promissory notes tor $2,500 or $3,000 (the exact amount is 
disputed) made by Leighton in favor of the defendant, and 
endorsed by him for Leighton’s accommodation, all of 
which the defendant afterwards [mid. The property 
assigned by Leighton realized nothing for the general 
I m sly of creditors, ns the proceeds were not sufficient to 
pay the preferred claims. The defendant had no security 
for his liability, but the bank held, as a security for its 
claim, the following properties, that is to say:—A leasehold 
property, known as the Dalling property, in Woodstock ; a 
mortgage on the Craig property, also in Woodstock ; a 
property at Debec ; another in Houlton, and a policy of 
insurance on Leighton’s life for $5,000. The plaintiff, who 
was then, and for several years prior to that had been, the 
deputy of his father as Registrar of Deeds for Carleton 
County, having heard that the bank would likely part with 
its securities for a sum less than the amount due on them, 
went to Saint Stephen and ascertained from Mr. Stevens, 
the bank’s solicitor, that the securities could be purchased 
for $6,000 cash. He then went to the defendant; told him 
about these properties, and that they could be purchased 
for $6,000, and said that if he (the defendant) could buy 
them for that sum he could realize out of them sufficient 
to repay him the purchase money, and also the amount 
which he had lost by his (the plaintiff’s) father, and which 
was spoken of then, in round numbers, as $2,500. The 
result was that the defendant and plaintiff went to Saint 
Stephen to see the bank officials. The defendant refused 
to give the $6,000, but the result of the negotiations 
between the defendant and the bank was that later on the 
defendant purchased the securities for $5,500, and they 
were assigned to him on the 27th of June, 1892. They 
have all since that date been realized; and the plaintiff’s 
ease is that after paying the defendant the $5,500 and 
interest, and the $2,500 and interest, with other charges 
ii|>on the fund, there remains a surplus which, by the terms 
of the agreement made between him and the plaintiff at 
the time of the purchase, belongs to him. This' is the 
agreement upon which the plaintiff' relies as having created

1904.
IjKIOHTON

Halk. 

Barker, J.
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1904. a partnership between the parties. He also puts forward 
Leighton in his bill, and he gave some evidence in support of it, that 

Hale. it was a part of the original arrangement that he was not 
Barker. J. only to have this balance, but that in stating it the defend­

ant was to throw off 8500 from the amount coming to him. 
I think the evidence altogether fails in proving a partner­
ship between these parties. It does shew a voluntary and 
gratuitous offer or promise by the defendant to pay to the 
plaintiff whatever balance there might be after payment of 
the 85,500, the amount of the Leighton notes, together with 
interest and other charges. This the defendant admits. 
There was nothing however that I can discover in what 
took place between the parties either before or after the 
purchase to indicate an intention on the part of either of 
them to create those mutual rights and obligations upon 
which partnerships are based, and which are necessary to 
their existence. The transaction, as stated by the plain­
tiff himself, may he stated thus:—A. says to B. “You have 
lost 82,500 by my father’s failure. I happen to know that 
C. is willing to sell certain properties which he holds, for 
86,000. If you can purchase them at that price you will 
be able to realize out of them enough to repay you the 
purchase money and the 82,500 and interest, and have a 
surplus." B. says “If I can buy them at a figure to suit me, 
I will purchase, and if there is any balance left after I get 
my money and interest, I will give it to you." B. does pur­
chase for 85,500, and there is a balance. According to my 
view of the evidence that represents in fact and substance 
the whole arrangement under which the defendant pur­
chased these securities, as the plaintiff himself proves it. 
But can it be said that a partnership was thereby created ? 
The plaintiff paid no money, incurred no liability, ran no 
risks, did not agree to contribute anything in work, money, 
or in any other way; he had no authority to deal with the 
property except as the defendant permitted, and he was 
not liable for losses. He had only this offer or promise 
that whatever balance there might be should go to him as 
a gratuity. It may be true that without a right to partici­
pate in profits there can be no partnership, but it certainly
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is true that such a right does not of itself create a partner­
ship: Cox v. Hickman (1); Stocker v. Brockelbank (2); 
Hadeley v. Consolidated Hank (3); Mollxvo, March <6 Co. v. 
Court of Wards (4).

There was a generality and inexactness in many of 
the plaintiff’s statements as to the details of this transac­
tion, due probably to the length of time which has elapsed 
since it took place, but which were h..ble to mislead one all 
the same. He put forward the idea that the liunk was 
willing to lose the $1,600 which they did lose ns a kind of 
concession to his father, and that the defendant, as the plain­
tiffs nominee, could buy, and in fact did buy, the property at 
a reduced rate in view of the plaintiff and his family deriv­
ing some benefit from it ; and that this was a kind of con­
tribution by him to the purchase money. This seemed to 
me so unlikely a story that I was not surprised to find it 
altogether disproved by Mr. Stevens, the bank’s solicitor, 
who negotiated the sale, and was conversant with all the 
facts. Importance was attached to the fact that the plain­
tiff negotiated the sale of the Debec farm to Grant; that he 
collected some of the rents, and in some other less import­
ant ways assisted in the management of the property, 
thereby shewing, as he contended, that he had an interest 
in it, which was recognized by the defendant. It is true 
that he made a written agreement in May, 1894, with 
Grant for the purchase of the Debec property, and that he 
signed that agreement himself, and as agent for the 
defendant. The defendant says he had no authority to do 
this, and the plaintiff states in his bill that he negotiated 
this sale and the defendant afterwards ratified it. He 
dees not pretend that he was acting as a partner as agent 
of the partnership in any way; but professing to act as the 
defendant’s agent he made the agreement, which required 
the defendant’s ratification to make it binding. It is also 
true that the plaintiff paid five premiums of insurance on 
the life policy ; paid for some stock which passed to Grant 
on the sale of the farm ; collected some rents, and gave

(1) 8 H. L. C. 268. (8) 38 Ch, D. 238.
(2) 8 MacN. & G. 263. (4) LR.4F, C. 418.

1904.
Lkioiiton

Burker, J.
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1904. some minor services, all of which enured to the defendant’s 
Lbiohtox benefit, and which it is said are only consistent with the 

HaI.k. view that the plaintiff was interested in the property as a 
Barker, J. partner. If a partnership actually existed, then I admit 

such acts would he consistent with that state of things ; 
but such acts would not create a partnership, nor are they 
inconsistent with the existence of a different state of 
things altogether. It must be remembered that these 
things were all done voluntarily by the plaintiff. He was 
under no obligation to psy the premiums of insurance, or 
render any of the services which he did, because it was no 
part of the original arrangement that he was to do so. 
What he did was entirely in his own interest. If the pre­
miums which he paid had been paid by Hale, the amount 
would have been chargeable to the fund with interest, and 
the balance would have been reduced accordingly. If the 
stock had not gone to Grant the purchase money would have 
been reduced, and the amount to go to the credit of the 
fund reduced also, and it is the same as to the sc vices; if 
they had been rendered by some one else, the expense 
would have come out of the fund. It does not alter the 
facts that the plaintiff is without a legal remedy. He 
anticquited a balance from the outset—he claims that 
there is in fact a la ■ balance—he had the defendant’s 
promise to account . him for it, and he had a right to 
expect, and no doubt he did expect, and I think he still 
has a right to expect, that this promise will be faithfully 
carried out. All that the plaintiff did is fully explained 
in view of these facts, and is entirely consistent with them. 
The same may bo said as to the account kept by 
Hartley Si Carvell of this property in the plaintiffs name. 
It is quite consistent with the view that a partnership 
existed, hut the mere fact of such an account being kept 
will not create a partnership. It is equally consistent with 
the mere fact that the balance was going to the plaintiff 
by any arrangement whatever, for this was a convenient 
and independent method of keeping the account and ascer­
taining the I «dance. The plaintiff's Counsel also attached 
great importance to the fact that neither party was to
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charge for services. The defendant denies that there was 
any such arrangement, but if there was, it was certainly 
not made until long after the purchase took place, for the 
plaintiff himself admitted that on cross-examination. It 
was an arrangement doubly in his interest as affecting hia 
balance. As to the $500 which the plaintiff says was 
ulumdoned by the defendant when the original arrange­
ment was made ; it is, in my view of the case, immaterial 
when the offer was in fact made. I cannot, however, 
accept the plaintiff's evidence that it was made before or at 
the time of the purchase, or that it had anything whatever 
to do with the purchase or the disposul of the property as 
originally agreed upon. It seems altogether unreasonable 
that the defendant should, without being asked, of his own 
accord, agree to give away $500, when at some personal 
inconvenience he was paying out $5,500 in a speculation, 
the sole object of which was to recoup himself in a loss 
of which this $500 was a substantial part. I can easily 
understand why, later on, when the only part of the 
property undisposed of was the life policy, which involved 
an annual expenditure for premiums for an indefinite 
period to keep it alive, the defendant should have offered, 
as he said he did do, to throw off $500 from his claim to 
induce the plaintiff to buy the policy and close up the 
transaction. That is a sensible, reasonable proposal, but 
the other is neither the one nor the other. As the evi­
dence entirely fails in establishing a partnership, the hill 
should, I think, be dismissed, because the only case set 
up is one of partnership, and the only account asked for is 
one to be made up on the footing that a partnership 
existed. In fact I did not understand the plaintiff"s Coun­
sel to rest his case upon any other ground. The defendant, 
however, denies all liability to account either as a partner 
or in any other capacity. His position is two-fold — first, 
that no binding trust could he created us to this property 
except by some writing signed by the defendant ; and 
second, the evidence does not shew any parol declaration, 
or any act by the defendant which would constitute him a 
trustee even of personal property. I shall not stop to con-

1904.
Lkiohton

Barker, J.
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1904. aider whether it is open to the plaintiff, without amending 
Lkhjuton his bill, to set up any such case. He has stated the facta 

h*!.k. on the record which he says create a partnership, and it is 
Barker. J. possible that if he were wrong in his conclusion, as I think 

he is, that he might be entitled to a different relief, if the 
facts warranted it. I do not think the evidence shews any 
trust as to the property or the balance. In dealing with 
the other branch of the case, I, for the most part, took the 
plaintiff’s own evidence, hut it is necessary to see what the 
facts really are. There is no doubt that if the defendant, 
either by a sufficient declaration, or by acts sufficient for 
the purpose, declared himself a trustee of this property, or 
any part of it, for the plaintiff, the fact that the plaintiff 
is a mere volunteer, would not prevent him from enforcing 
the trust. See Jones v. Lock• (1); Richards v. Delbridge (2).

It is clear, I think, that no declaration or creation of 
any trust in lands is valid unless it be in writing, signed 
by the party entitled to declare or create the trust. Sec­
tion 9 of the Statute of Frauds expressly provides this, 
except in two cases not involved here. In the original 
Statute of Frauds passed in this Province. 26th Qeo. 
III., chap. 14, the corresponding section to section 9 was 
copied from the English Act, and only required that the 
creation of the trust, or the declaration of it, must be mani­
fested and proved by some writing. A parol trust as to 
lands could be created, but you could not prove it except 
by writing. See Randall v. Morgan (3); Wilde v. Wilde (4); 
Rank of Montreal v. Stewart (5) ; Smith v. Matthews (6). 
The section was changed to its present form by the 
revisors in 1854, and has so continued ever since. As it 
is admitted that there is no writing in any way in refer­
ence to the so-called trust, it follows as I think from the 
Statute of Frauils, that if a parol trust were shewn it 
would be of no validity so far as it related to lands. The 
insurance policy is, however, personal property, and a parol 
declaration of trust as to that would be good. Whether it

.

(1) L. R. 1 Ch. 25.
(2) L. R. 18 Eq. 11.
(3) 12 Ve». 74.

(4) 2(1 Or. 521.
(6) 14 O. R. 482.
(6) 8 DeG., F. & J. 138.
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could be separated from the other property or not I shall 
nut stop to discuss, because I think the evidence shews 
that no trust was declared. In the bill it is alleged that 
by the agreement under which the property was bought 
" the lialunce of the said estate, whatever it might be, was 
to become the property of the plaintiff’.’’ And in his evi­
dence he says that it was a part of the original agreement 
that " anything that was left was to come to him.” The 
defendant admits that he promised to give the balance, 
but he denies that this had anything to do with the pur­
chase, or was made until long after the purchase had been 
completed. He says that it was a voluntary offer on his 
|uirt to the plaintiff, who had offered to assist him in 
saving him from loss by bis father. It is, perhaps, imma­
terial when the promise was made, but I think the defend­
ant’s version is much the more reasonable. It seems 
altogether improbable that these parties should make this 
arrangement as to the linlance of the property, not only 
before it was bought, but before it was known that it 
would lie bought at all, because the defendant never con­
sented to purchase at $0,000. In either case I think there 
was no trust created or declared—neither was there any 
intention on the defendant's part to constitute himself a 
trustee, and it is clear that the plaintiff cannot so have 
considered it, because he relies on it for an altogether differ­
ent purpose—that is, to shew what was his share in the 
profits of a partnership created at the time, and which he 
now seeks to have wound up. The offer or promise is at 
most a mere promise without consideration, and not 
enforceable either at law or in equity. In Wilkinson v. 
Wilkinson (1), it appeared that in a voluntary settlement 
tin1 settlor covenanted to transfer property (if any) which 
In- might thereafter acquire, if of a certain value. Property 
within the terms of the covenant was acquired which the 
settlor refused to convey, and a bill was filed to have it 
declared that this property, by virtue of the covenant, was 
bound by the trusts of the settlement. The Vice-Chancel­
lor refused so to hold, and pointed out that the settlor

(1) « Jur. (N. 8.) 47.

1904.
Leighton 

Hue. 

Barker, J.
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1904. intended to make himself liable on his covenant, but that 
Lmioiiton this was an entirely different thing from making the prop- 

Halk. erty subject to the trusts of the settlement as a result of 
Barker. J. the covenant to convey. In Hippie v. Cories (l),it appeared 

that a testator hiving nine children, by his will gave all his 
property to one of them, who, at the funeral, said he would 
divide the property e " between his brothers and sisters 
and himself, and that the whole should be sold that it 
might not be said he had taken any more than the others. 
He subsequently acted in respect of a portion of the 
property, according to the intention then expressed. It 
was held that the expressions of the devisee were no more 
than a promise to give and divide the property among the 
brothers and sisters ; and that as such promise it was 
nudum pactum, and did not amount to a declaration of 
trust in their favor. The Vice-Chancellor says: — “It 
appears to me that a clear expression of intention should be 
found before the Court, in a case like the present, can hold 
that a party intended to subject himself to all the conse­
quences of the liability to account and inquiry which is 
involved in the position of a trustee. This defendant, 
being honorably minded to do what was right between him­
self and his brothers and sisters, told them that he would 
make such a division of the property as they might conceive 
their father ought to have made ; and if I were to hold that 
this declaration of his intentions subjected him to all the 
consequences of a declaration of trust of the property, the 
distinction between the position of a trustee and that of a 
person subject to the imperfect obligation created by what 
the law considers as only nudum pactum, would be 
obliterated.” See also Maguire v. Dodd (2); Re Glover 
Trusts (3). As to the defence set up that the plaintiff had 
abandoned all claim to the property by an arrangement 
made with the defendant, in consequence of which he had 
after that time kept no account of the property, I think it 
is not sustained by the evidence. The defendant and his 
son said that after the Craig building was burnt, the plain-

(1) II Hare, 183. (2) 9 Ir. Ch. R. 456. (3) 2 J. & H. 186.

1
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tiff said that there would be nothing for him in the 
property now, and he would abandon the whole business 
and not bother with it any more, or something to that 
effect. This is denied by the plaintiff, but if it were not, 
1 should not hold that loose expressions of that kind, made 
under the circumstances which then existed, could fairly 
lie construed as shewing a delilierate intention to aliandon 
any claim which he had. They amount to nothing more 
than an expression of opinion that by reason of the 
destruction of a portion of the property there would be no 
I «dance coming to him. There was no intimation then or 
since by the defendant that he concurred in the plaintiffs 
intention to abandon, and accepted what he said as releas­
ing him from any promise he had made. I think that 
defence is not sustained.

The bill must be dismissed with costs, except the costs 
of the plea of abandonment of claim, which the defendant 
must pay the plaintiff. They will, when taxed, be deducted 
from the defendant's costs, and the plaintiff will pay the 
balance as certified by the Clerk.

1904.

Lkiuhton

Barker, J.
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1904.
December to.

ROBERTSON v. MILLER.

Restitution — Execution—Appeal— Reversal of decree—Measure 
of damages.

Where Roods of the defendant were sold under a decree subse­
quently reversed for error, he was held to l>e entitled to the 
sum the goods sold for, and not to their value or to damages.

Petition for restitution to the defendant John Miller, 
of goods sold under an execution u]xm a decree of this 
Court, or for the payment of the value thereof, and for 
damages. The facts are sufficiently stated in the judgment 
of the Court.

Argument was heard November 25, 1904.

F. R. Taylor, in support of the motion :—

The defendant is entitled to an order for restitution, 
and to damages. If the goods cannot be returned, the 
plaintiff should be allowed their value, and not the amount 
for which they were sold. This can be determined on the 
present affidavits, or on an issue to a jury. In Westerns v. 
Creswick (1), it is laid down that where judgment is 
reversed, after execution levied, the plaintiff, on restitution 
of the goods being awarded, cannot pay either to the 
defendant or into Court, the money for which the goods 
were sold, for if the defendant brought an action of tres­
pass he would recover the full value. See also Vol. 18 
Amer. & Eng. Ency. PI. & Fr., Tit. " Restitution,” p. 871 ; 
Freeman on Executions (2).

M. G. Teed, K.C., contra : —

A specific return of the goods will not be ordered, for 
though the Sheriff had them, his possession was not that of 
the plaintiff. The plaintiff is accountable only for the

|1) 4 Mod. 161. (2) 3rd ed„ p. 120.
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value of the goods, and their value is what they sold for. 
The judgment under which the execution issued and the levy 
was made, was reversed for error, and not for irregularity. 
It would only be in the latter event that trespass would 
lie, and that the defendant could recover his real damages. 
Where process is set aside for error, the person causing it 
to issue is not responsible for anything done under it. 
Belying upon the judgment of the Court, he is protected. 
In Williams v. Smith (1) an attachment issued for neglect­
ing to obey an order of the Court of Chancery to deliver 
up papers. The attachment being set aside, trespass was 
brought. Williams, J„ said : “ If the attachment in this 
case had been set aside on the ground of irregularity, or 
that it was issued in bad faith, or in any other way equiva­
lent to irregularity, I should have thought that both 
attorney and client would be liable for any imprisonment 
which took place under it;” and after stating that the 
facta shewed that the judgment was not set aside for 
irregularity, he proceeded : “ That brings the case within
that class of cases where it has been held that the party 
causing process to be issued, is not responsible for anything 
done under it where the process is afterwards set aside, 
not for irregularity, but for error.” The restitution conse­
quently must be limited to the money levied. See Tidd, 
p. 1033. At page 1180, Tidd says: “If a man recover 
damages, and have execution by fieri facias, and upon the 
fieri facias the sheriff sell to a stranger a term for years, 
and after the judgment is reversed, the party shall be 
restored only to the money for which the term was sold, 
and not to the term itself ; liecauxc the sheriff has sold it 
by command of the fieri facias." See also Goodyer v. 
./uiice(2); Brockliurst v. A/ayo(3); Eyre v. Wtmlfine (4) ; 
II esterue v. Crrswick (5). If defendant was unwilling that 
his property should be sold he had it in his power to pre­
vent it by staying the execution {lending appeal. See 
McGratlt v. Franke, and notes (6).

1904.

ItOHKHTSON

Miller.

(1) 14 C. B. (N. 8.) 51*1. 
(ll Vvlv. 170.
(3) 1 Kolle'i Abr. 778.

(4) Cro. Eliz. 278.
15) 4 Med. 161.
(6) N. U. Eq. Cm. 87.
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1904. Taylor, in reply :—
Robertson

Miller. The defendant was not able to comply with the terms
usually imposed on staying proceedings. See C. S. 1003, 
c. 112, s. 133. As an appeal had. been taken, plaintiff pro­
ceeded with his execution at the peril of making good to 
the defendant the full measure of his damages, in event of 
the decree being reversed.

1004. December 20. Barker, J. :—

A deem- was made in this suit on the 21st April, 1003, 
by which the defendant was ordered to pay to the plain­
tiff his costs, which were afterwards taxed at $601.11. 
The amount not having been paid, an execution of fi. fa. 
was issued to enforce the decree on the 23th August, 1903, 
under which the Sheriff of Gloucester, to whom it was 
directed, seized a quantity of chattels, some of which he 
afterwards sold for the sum of $22.20. Out of this sum 
the Sheriff retained for expenses $4.20, and in September, 
1003, he remitted the balance of $18 to the plaintiff’s 
solicitor, Mr. Teed, to whom the costs were coming. Neither 
the plaintiff nor his solicitor purchased any of the property 
or has any of it in his possession. An appeal from this 
decree to the Supreme Court of Canada was allowed per 
saltum on the 10th June, 1003, and that Court, on the 27th 
April, 1004, made an order allowing the appeal, reversing 
the decree and dismissing the plaintiff’s bill. That judg­
ment w-as then entered and made the judgment of this 
Court. This application is made on behalf of the defend­
ant for an order for restitution. No stay of execution was 
obtained. The plaintiff admits his liability to return the 
$18, and he has always been willing to pay it back, but 
the defendant claims some $800 as the value of the goods 
seized, and damages in addition. I think under these 
admitted facts the plaintiff is only liable to restore the 
$18 he actually received.

So far as a remedy by action at law is concerned, 
where goods have been seized under an execution issued on 
a judgment afterwards set aside the authorities recognize
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a distinction between cases where the judgment is vacated 
for irregularity, or as having been obtained against good 
faith, and a judgment which is reversed for error on appeal, 
as in this case. In the one case the judgment is considered 
as having been always bad, while in the other it is good until 
the reversal actually takes place. See Prentice v. Harri­
son (1). In Brown v. Janet (2), Alderson, B., says : "In 
Prentice v. Harrison ( 1 ) the replication to a similar plea 
alleged that the writ was set aside by order of a judge, 
and it was held bad for not alleging that it was set aside 
for irregularity ; for the Court said there were cases in 
which it might have been set aside as erroneous, and in 
that case the defendants could not be liable.” These were 
eases where the party had been arrested on a ca. ea. In 
Williams v. Smith (3) it appeared that the party had been 
arrested under an attachment issued out of the Court of 
Chancery for disobedience of an order of that Court, which 
attachment was afterwards set aside on appeal as having 
been erroneously made. It was held that neither the 
solicitor who issued the attachment nor his client was 
liable in an action. Williams, J., said : “ That brings the 
case within the class of cases where it has been held that 
the party causing process to lie issued is not resjKmsible for 
anything that is done under it where the process is after­
wards set aside, not for irregularity, but for error.” Willes, 
•I., said : “ Where an execution is set aside on the ground 
of an erroneous judgment, the plaintiff or his attorney is 
no more liable to un action than the sheriff who executes 
the process is. Where a judgment is set aside for error, 
the proper course is not to bring an action, but to proceed 
by writ of restitution or by the course which the modem 
practice has substituted for it. * * * This is one of that 
numerous class of cases where the acts of the Court, if 
erroneous, cannot be made the foundation of an action for 
damages. If it were otherwise, suitors would incur res- 
|Kinsibilities which it would be fearful to contemplate.”

(1) 4 Q. B. 852. (2) 16 M. & W. 101.
(3) H C. B. (N. 8. ) 506.

VOI. III. H. B. K. K. II.

1904.
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1904. It is obvious that when Willes, J., speaks of “responsi- 
Bubilktsox bilities fearful to contemplate’’ he does not allude simply to 

Mu.i.Kiv responsibilities which cannot be enforced by an action at 
itarkor, J. law but may be by some other means, but to responsibilities 

which do not exist at all.
In Bacon’s Ab., Tit. “Error" (M.3), it is said:—“If a 

man recovers damages, and lias execution by/i. fa., and upon 
the fi. ta. the sheriff sells to a stranger a term for years, and 
after the judgment is reversed, the party shall be restored 
only to the money for which the term was sold, and not 
to the term itself ; because the sheriff had sold it by the 
command of the writ of fi. fa." See also TUId’e Practice, 
p. 118(1. In the old writ of restitution issued after judgment 
reversed the original recovery is recited, the reversal, the 
recovery of the damages by execution, and then restitu­
tion of the damages is ordered, and in case of non-payment 
a levy on the person's goods for the amount. I can find 
nothing to indicate any liability in such a case to restore 
more than the sheriff’s sale realized to the execution creditor.

In cases of appeals from this Court to the Court in 
Term, this Court has ample authority to stay the enforce­
ment of its decrees, and in such cases it imposes such con­
ditions ns the particular circumstances may require in 
order to do justice between the parties. I have not been 
able to find any case where an execution has issued before 
an application to stay the proceedings has been made, and 
the sale was permitted to be completed, that security has 
been required for anything beyond the sum realized. And 
the practice seems to lie, in the absence of special provisions 
such as those relating to appeals to the Supreme Court of 
Canada, that when the sheriff has made a seizure before 
stay of proceedings, ho shall complete the sale and bring the 
money into Court to be dealt with after the appeal is 
determined. See Gilmour v. Hall (1); Mrriton v. 
Steven» (2). In Morgan v. Elf ml (3), it appeared 
that execution had issued for costs and goods had been 
seized under it, but the undertaking which the solicitor 
had to give on the money being paid was to return it if

(1) 10 U. C. Q. B. 508. (2) Willes, 271. (3) 4 Ch. 1). 852.



Ill] NEW BRUNSWICK EQUITY REPORTS. 83

the appeal succeeded. There was no undertaking ns to__1904.
damages for the seizure. Wilson v. Church (1) and Robkktsok 

many other cases may be cited, where the same Mn-uta. 
practice was followed. Where a decree has been made by llarkcr'J- 
this Court for the payment of money, or the doing of any 
specific act, the party against whom the decree was made, is 
1« mnd to obey it, and if he does not do so he is in con- 
lempt. The Court has various ways of enforcing its 
decrees. Until recently neither a cil. su., nor a /i. fa., could 
issue without first obtaining an order for that purpose. A 
stay of execution pending appeal, has always been regarded 
in the nature of an indulgence except where statutory pro­
visions have made it otherwise. The party directed to pay 
the costs, if he wishes to avoid the effects of an execution, 
can obey the order of the Court by paying the money ; but 
if he refuses to do that, or cannot do so, his default cannot 
neutralize the whole effect of the decree. See Gamble v.
Howland (2). There will be an order for the payment of 
the SIS, and nothing more. This sum the defendant could 
have had at any time — in fact it was offered to his 
solicitors—but a very much larger sum was demanded.
There will be no order as to costs. I cannot but express 
some surprise at the statements in the defendant’s petition 
as to the goods sold and their value. He specifics them in 
detail, and gives their values as amounting in all to some 
#788, and then states that they were all sold for 822.20, 
although they were worth, ns he says, nearly if not quite 
8800. On the 3rd day of September last he made an 
affidavit verifying the above statements in the petition.
The fact was that at his own instance, and on his own 
application, a large portion, and as is said the most valu­
able portion, of the chattels seized was never sold at all, 
hut the defendant was allowed to retain it, and has 
it now. A year before that he gave the Sheriff a bond 
with two sureties for their return if the appeal failed. If 
there were no other ground for not giving the petitioner 
the coats of this application, this fact would amply justify 
that course.

(1) 12 Ch. D. 457. (2) 3 Or. 281.
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1904. WINSLOWE v. McKAY.
December to.

Deed—Incapacity of grantor — Absence of consideration —Con­
flict of evidence—Belief.

Where at the time of the execution of n deed of conveyance the 
grantor was 71) years of age, was sick and in feeble health, 
anil it was the opinion of some witnesses, though not of 
otheis, that lie did not understand the nature of his act; 
and the effect of the deed was to deprive him of means of 
support, and the evidence was uncertain respecting the 
existence of adequate consideration for the deed, and favored 
the view that it was intended as a gift, tin- deed was set 
aside.

Bill to set aside conveyances. The facts fully appear 
in the judgment of the Court.

Argument was heard October 19, 1904.

IK. A. Trueman, for the plaintiff :—

It is submitted that the grantor at the time he executed 
the deed, was not -of sound mind. If this is stating his 
condition too strongly, and it is assumed that he was of 
sufficient capacity to dispose of his property, yet at his age 
and in his ill-health, he should have had independent pro­
fessional advice as to the nature of his act. It should par­
ticularly have been explained to and understood by him that 
he was depriving himself immediately of all his incans of 
subsistence. See Anderson v. Elsworth ( 1); Longmute v. 
Ledger (2) ; Baker v. Monk (3). There was no considera­
tion—certainly no adequate consideration—for the con­
veyance. Mrs. McKay pressed her alleged claim upon 
the grantor at a time when his health was admittedly weak 
and precarious, and he was unable to withstand her influ­
ence. A bargain made under such circumstances is always 
narrowly scrutinized, and where they are as auspicious as 
here, it is not permitted to stand.

(1) 3 Oiff. 154. (2) 2 Giff. 167. (3) 33 Beav. 419.
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The fact that the grantor was upwards of seventy 
years of age, and in feeble health, would not vitiate the 
transaction if he was competent to form an independent 
judgment in the matter, and was aware of its nature and 
effect. See Carson v. Belwortliy (1); M'Still v. Cahill (2). 
There was no fiduciary relation between the grantor and 
grantee placing the onus upon the defendants to establish 
the fairness of the bargain : Harrison v. Guest (3). In 
that case the vendor was a bed-ridden man of seventy-one 
years of age, who had acted without professional advice, 
and he had conveyed a property worth £400, in considera­
tion of board and lodging for life, which lasted only six 
weeks after the conveyance; but the Court refused, in 
the alwence of any fraud, to set aside the transaction. 
Buchanan was fully in possession of his faculties when he 
directed the deed to be drawn and when he executed it. 
That is made incontrovertibly clear by the evidence of 
Powers and Allen. Where there was consideration for the 
deed, it should not be set aside unless the evidence con­
vincingly establishes that the grantor was mentally incap­
able and the grantee had knowledge of his condition.

1904. December 20. Barker, J.:—

This suit was commenced sometime in November, 
1903, by one John Buchanan for the purpose of setting 
aside two conveyances of a house and farm in Albert 
County—one, dated March 12, 1903, made by Buchanan to 
the defendant, Catherine McKay; and the other dated Octo- 
lier 21, 1903, made by Mrs. McKay to the defendant Angus 
McKenzie, her son-in-law. The consideration mentioned in 
Ixith conveyances is the same —" one dollar and other valu­
able considerations.” Both conveyances were made r.nd 
executed in Boston; the first one was regi-itered April 1, 
1903, and the other November ti, 1903. They were both 
drawn and witnessed by the same solicitor in Boston —

(1) 3 H. L. C. 742. (2) 2 Bligh, 228.
(3) 0 DeO., M. & G. 424.

WlNHtOWK

McKat.
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1904. E. B. Powers—and they were both acknowledged before 
WisiLowit the sanie notary—Claud L. Allen. Buchanan died intes- 

McKay. tate in June, 1904, in the poor house in Albert, leaving 
Barker, J. him surviving his widow and one child, the present plain­

tiff, E. Blanche Winslowe, both of whom reside in Boston, 
where they have been living for many years past. 
Buchanan was about 70 years of age when the convey­
ances in question were executed. He acquired the property 
and some wood land from his father in January, 1882, the 
consideration for which, as stated in the conveyance, was 
SI ,000, but the evidence shews that the wood lot is now of 
comparatively little value. Mr. Trueman, ns agent for 
Buchanan for several years before his death, had the 
management of the property, and he states that the house 
and land conveyed to Mrs. McKay by Buchanan was 
uiiencumliered and worth SI ,000 outside of the widow’s 
right of dower. The evidence shews that Buchanan, who 
was a carpenter by trade, removed from Albert County to 
Boston alxmt 85 years ago, and that he continued to live 
there up to October, 1903, when he returned, apparently 
for the purpose of instituting these proceedings. He and 
his wife, for reasons which the evidence does not disclose, 
did not live together for many years previous to his death, 
and I infer from the evidence that he had never seen his 
daughter, the present plaintiff, until she came to see him 
when taken ill, a few days before the conveyance in ques­
tion was executed. He had two brothers, who also lived in 
Boston, but with these he does not seem to have been on 
very intimate tenus, though they were friendly. The 
ground upon which the plaintiff seeks to set aside this con­
veyance (I refer to the first one) is that its execution was 
procured by Mrs. McKay when Buchanan was in a hospital, 
and so enfeebled by illness as to be altogether unable to 
understand the nature and effect of the act. And it is 
also contended that there was no consideration for the 
conveyance, or at all events the consideration was alto­
gether inadequate. Beside denying the incompetency of 
Buchanan, the defendants say that he was indebted in a 
large sum to Mrs. McKay for board and lodging, and that
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the property was conveyed to lier in satisfaction of this 
indebtedness, in pursuance of an agreement made some 
time before, either to convey her this property or to leave it 
to her by will ; it is not clear which.

This is one of a class of cases each one of which must 
be determined upon its own particular facts. In this 
particular case, by consent of parties, all the evidence, 
except that of Mr. Trueman as to value, was taken under 
commission. I have not seen the witnesses or heard them 
give their testimony. Neither have I been able to 
examine them myself upon some points which seem to me 
material, and which are left in uncertainty. My experience 
in this Court has convinced me that in cases involving 
questions of fraud, it is impossible to overestimate the 
value of having the witnesses examined in open Court, 
where the Judge can test their credibility not only by the 
evidence which they give but by the manner in which 
they give it, and by their appearance and demeanor under 
examination.

The bill does not allege, neither do I think the 
evidence shews, that any fiduciary or confidential relation 
existed between the parties which would, if the conveyance 
is to be considered as a voluntary one, throw upon the 
defendants the onus of satisfying the Court that the 
transaction is all right. The onus is, I think, upon the 
plaintiff to shew that the transaction is of that nature 
which this Court, in view of all the facts and circum­
stances, will not permit to stand.

The evidence shews that Buchanan went to live with 
Mrs. McKay some time in 1894, and that, with the excep­
tion of some few months, he continued to live in her house 
up to October, 1903, when he left Boston to return to 
Albert, in all a period of say nine years. The family at 
that time consisted of McKay, the husband, who died about 
five years ago, and two daughters, who are still living, and 
gave evidence in this suit. Mrs. McKay is an illiterate 
person, unable to write, and she does not seem to have had 
any means of support beyond what she derived from the 
board of a few lodgers. It would be difficult upon the

1904.
Winslows 

McKay. 
Marker. J.
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1904. evidence before me, to reach any satisfactory conclusion as 
WisHLoffn to the precise tenus upon which Buchanan originally went 

McKav. to live with McKay or the terms upon which he continued 
Barker, j. to remain there. That he was to make compensation in 

some form or another seems to he admitted, for he swears 
that he had paid her in full, and owed her nothing when 
the conveyance was made, while she swears that he owed 
her a large amount at that time. That Question is only 
important in determining whether or not there was an 
adequate consideration for the conveyance ; a fact which is 
uninqKirtant if at the time Buchanan was incompetent by 
reason of mental incapacity, even though the conveyance 
might be in accord with a previously expressed intention 
on Buchanan’s part. It seems that during the winter and 
early spring of 1903 Buchanan was quite ill — unable to 
work — and for a part of the time at least, receiving 
medical treatment at a dispensary. He, however, became 
so much worse that on the 11th of March of that year he 
went to the Boston City Hospital, where he remained until 
the titli of April —about four weeks — when he was dis­
charged. Mrs. McKay says that Buchanan was frequently 
sick during the nine years he lived in her house, and 
she also says — and in this I think there is no contradic­
tion — that he was a man of intemperate habits, and 
would—to use her own expression—“drink all the money 
he earned." The two physicians, under whose care 
Buchanan was while in the hospital, were examined. Dr. 
Sise, a graduate of Harvard, with three years’ experience, 
and house physician on the first medical service at the 
hospital, said that he saw Buchanan the day he was 
admitted, and that he was suffering from “arteriosclerosis, 
or hardening of the arteries, combined with degeneration 
of the heart muscle." A few days later he had become so 
untidy in his habits, and he so disturbed the other patients 
by his mutterings, that he was removed into another ward, 
where delirious and untidy patients were treated. His 
examination proceeds as follows :—

“ Q. Will you tell us what these actions on his part 
indicated as regards his mental condition ? A. To me it
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indicated that he was not mentally sound — by that I 
mean that he did not realize the importance of things, and 
did not realize the condition he was in, or what he was
doing.

“ Q. Was or was not his actions, such as defiling the 
bed, the result of physical weakness such as he could not 
help ! A. That was impossible to say definitely, but I 
think not.

“ y. Did his condition, in a way that you have stated, 
shew itself from his first admission ? A. To the best of 
my recollection it did.

“ When he was admitted after the first day or two 
was he, in your opinion, in a fit condition mentally to do 
business, and realize fully what he was doing f A. He 
w as not."

On his cross-examination he was asked as follows:—
“ y. Now, Doctor, let me ask if you consider that the 

disease from which he suffered at the hospital would affect 
his mental capacity 1 A. I do. Artrritmlero«iti is one of 
tin1 commonest causes of what is known as ' softening of 
the brain.’

“ y. Did he improve in his condition while he was 
at the hospital f A. He improved somewhat during the 
very last part of his stay there.

" y. From the time he entered the hospital till the 
Inst part did he grow worse ? A. He did."

Dr. Wood, the other house physician, is also a Harvard 
graduate, and has had about the same experience as 
Dr. Sise. He corroborates Dr. Sise’s description of 
Buchanan's condition, and says that when he first saw him 
he considered him dangerously ill, and thought that he 
would prolaibly die in four or five days. He says that his 
mental condition at first was one of “ indifference to 
surroundings"—that later on it produced uncleanly habits, 
low talking to himself, and occasional attempts to get out of 
lied, and that in consequence of that he was removed from 
the quiet ward to what was called the delirious ward. His 
examination then proceeds :—

" y. In your opinion was the patient, when you first

1904
WlNHI.OWK
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1901 knew him, and for some days afterwards, in full possession 
WixsLowe of his reasoning faculties ? A. I should say he was not. 

n< k»v. “ Q. Should you say that he was so in possession of his
Bariur.j. mental faculties as to understand fully what was going on, 

and to be mentally capable of transacting business as a 
prudent man would do ? A. I should say he was not.”

I)r. Wood also says that when Buchanan was dis­
charged on the 8th April, his condition was one of con­
tinued indifference, poor memory, and a tendency to mutter 
to himself, though he was better than when he went to the 
hospital—that for the first four or five days his condition 
grew worse, and that his mental condition at that time was 
an acute mild delirium due to his very weak, critical 
physical condition, and that he was too sick to be troubled 
with business matters, and that he was not then, in his 
opinion, capable of transacting business. At another part 
of Dr. Wood's examination he says as follows:—

“Q. Were you in the Boston City Hospital when Mr. 
Buchanan was discharged ! A. Yes.

“ Q. What was his condition then as compared to his 
condition when he was admitted — I mean mentally ? A. 
Continued indifference, tendency to mutter to himself, and 
poor memory.

“ Q. What I meant was, was he worse or better ? A. 
I should say that the improvement was only slight. There 
was an improvement.

“ Q. Now, doctor, when he left the hospital, should 
you think that he was capable of managing his affairs in 
any way ? A. I should think he was. I should say that 
then his physical condition interfered with his doing busi­
ness rather than his mental.

“ Q. Would not that be the case all the time while he 
was in the hospital, that his physical condition was rather 
against him than his mental ? A. I should say that his 
mental condition grew worse for about the six days of his 
stay in the hospital, then it slowly improved up to the time 
he w'as discharged.

“ Q. And you say that his improvement was only 
slight even then 1 A. Yes.
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“ Q. Now, in your opinion, wns his mental condition 
as good when he left the hospital ns when he went in ? 
A. I can’t say. He did not remember having seen me the 
first seven days of his stay.

“ Q. How do you know that ? A. In conversation 
with him after he was transferred to the other ward I 
learned it."

The opinions of these two medical gentlemen, entirely 
disinterested as they are, are of course entitled to every 
consideration. At the same time they are in no sense con­
clusive, and the value of these opinions cannot be deter­
mined without some regard to the limited professional 
experience of those who have expressed them, and the 
facts upon which they are based. I have read this medical 
testimony most carefully more than once, and it has not 
impressed me as making out of itself alone, a very strong 
case for the plaintiff. Dr. Wood says that Buchanan con­
tinued to grow' worse from his admission to the hospital 
until the seventh day, and both he and Dr. Sise base their 
opinions as to his want of capacity on the fact that during 
that time he mumbled to himself, was filthy as to his per­
son, walked down the corridor in his night clothes, refused 
for a few hours to take medicine, and expressed a desire to 
dress and go home when he wras unable to do so. I should 
hesitate before holding a person necessarily incompetent to 
execute a conveyance for these causes alone. The evacua­
tions in the bed furnish the only substantial reason for sucb 
a conclusion, but as to these the doctor refused to say that 
they were not, or at least might not be, due solely to 
physical causes and in no way indicative of mental weak­
ness. Besides this the conveyance was executed and the 
instructions for it given on the 12th March, some days 
before Buchanan was removed into the delirious ward, and 
at least a day or two before his illness had developed the 
symptoms upon which the physicians have based their 
opinions. In addition to this he was discharged on the 6th 
April, and at that time the doctors say he was only slightly 
improved, that is, slightly better than when he went to the 
hospital four weeks before. Buchanan corroborates this.

1904. 
w'inm owe 

McKay. 
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1904. In answer to the question, “ Did your health improve while 
win»ix)wk you were in the hospital ? " he said : " My breathing im- 

Mck*y. proved, hut I was no 1 letter otherwise ; my discharge said 
Barker, j. I was improved.” Buchanan, in his examination, swore 

that he has no recollection whatever of the execution of 
the conveyance or of any one coming to the hospital about 
the property either in connection with his making a deed 
or a will. His memory, he says, as to the first week he 
was in the hospital is an entire blank, and he knew nothing 
whatever about the conveyance until after he had left and 
gone back to Mrs. McKay’s. Buchanan’s two brothers 
visited him frequently while he was in the hospital, and 
they describe him as lieing in a dull, stupid, sleepy con­
dition during the earlier part of his illness, though he 
recognized them ; and one of them says he “ talked ration­
ally." In answer to this evidence the defendants have 
produced as witnesses the solicitor in Boston who drew the 
conveyance and the notary who witnessed its execution, 
troth of whom appear to have been strangers to the parties. 
Erastus B. Powers is a lawyer who has been in practice for 
thirty-seven years, and for twenty-one of them he practiced 
in Boston. On the morning of the 12th March, in conse­
quence of a telephone message, he went to the shop of the 
defendant McKenzie, whose firm have a jewelry store on 
Washington street, where he met Mrs. McKay, whom he 
had never met before. They went to the hospital, and 
what took place there he describes as follows :

“ Q. Did you see any person there, and whom ? A. I 
saw a man there and asked him his name. I asked him 
rather if he was of a certain name.

“ Q. Was this man a patient in the wards ? A. He was.
“ Q. And was he pointed out to you by Mrs. McKay 

as a certain man ? A. I am not certain as she pointed him 
out ; I think he roused up and spoke to her.

“ Q. What did he say in reply to your inquiry ! A. 
He said that he was Mr. Buchanan. I said to Mr. 
Buchanan, ‘ I am informed that you wish to see me to do 
some business for you.’ He asked,‘Are you a lawyer ?’ I 
said ‘ Yes.’ He said, ' Do you correspond with an English
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barrister ?’ I said, ‘Substantially, only in this respect, 
that we have no distinction between barrister and attorney.’ 
He said, ‘Then I wish you to convey to this woman,’ 

r to Mrs. McKay, ‘certain real estate that I own in 
New Brunswick.’ I asked him, ‘Do you wish that done 
by will or by deed?’ He said, ‘By deed.’ I asked him, 
‘What was the consideration?' He replied, ‘ I owe her a 
large sum of money for hom'd and room.’ I said, 'Of course 
1 shall need the description somewhat minute if you are 
guing to give a deed.’ He replied that he had the original 
deed with him. He then took out a paper from under his 
pillow.

“ Q. Is that the paper he produced ? A. Yes.
“ Q. Go on. A. He handed the deed to me. I com­

menced to read the deed ; he interrupted me and said: *1 
have two pieces of land, and I wish one piece of land 
deeded to my illegitimate son Havelock Stevens.’ 1 then 
read over from the pencil marks that I then made descrip­
tion of the deed, asking him as I l ead on if that was what 
he intended to convey. He said that he did. He turned 
to Mix McKay and said, 'Piece of land I have given you 
is enough to pay you,' and then I think she assented to it. 
1 do not recollect her words. I said to Mr. Buchanan, ‘I 
cannot draw these deeds here—no facilities for writing and 
no paper.’ He said, ‘ Well, then, go to your office and make 
them and return here as soon as you can.’ I went to my 
office, had the two deeds made, and then returned to the 
City Hospital, having with me Mr. Allen, who is a notary 
public. When we returned to the hospital the attendant 
said that he would not admit us until he could ascertain 
whether Mr. Buchanan wished to see us. The attendant 
returned and said that Mr. Buchanan did wish to see me. 
We went into the wal'd, and either Mr. Allen or I—I think 
it was myself—handed Mr. Buchanan the deeds. He read 
them in whole or in part. I don’t think he had time to 
read them in whole. He said they were just what he 
wished,and pointed out to usa foot rest to he put upon the 
bed upon which he could sign it. He signed the deed.

"Q. Is that the deed ? A. Yes, that is one of the

1904.
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1904. deeds. He signed the deeds. Mr. Allen took his acknow- 
Winhiowk ledgnicnt. He then said to me, ‘ Mrs. McKay is not 

McKay, acquainted with these matters; I wish you would send the 
Barker, J. deed down to New Brunswick and have it recorded, and 

mail to Mr. Stevens the deed that I have made in his 
favor.’ That was the close of the conversation.

“Q. In your conversations with Mr. Buchanan, either 
the first or second occasion at the hospital, did you notice 
any wanderings or incoherence in his talk ? A. Not the 
slightest.

“ Q. And as far as you know or could notice he thor­
oughly understood what he was doing ! A. I know he did."

On his cross-examination he was asked this question : 
“Now, Mr. Powers, if two physicians have stated here under 
oath that at that time the patient was not of mental 
capacity to transact business with full understanding of 
what he was doing, are you prepared to say that they are 
incorrect or mistaken ? A. I am prepared to say that the 
opinion of these physicians, so far as it pertains to the 12th 
day of March, 11)03, was mistaken and erroneous.”

Mr. Allen, the notary, is also a lawyer, and has been 
in practice some four years in Boston. When he and Mr. 
Powers went up to have the deeds executed Mrs. McKay 
was not present. Mr. Allen descriljes what took place as 
follows: “Mr. Buchanan looked at the deeds and I glanced 
around, as he was in bed, for something to sign the deed 
ou. Mr. Buchanan called my attention to a foot-stool 
across the room, which as I recall it was upholstered on 
the top. Then he said, ‘Turn that over and I can write on 
that.’ I brought the foot-stool, turned it over, took out my 
fountain pen and handed it to Mr. Buchanan; took one of 
the deeds—don't recall which one first—stated that this 
was a deed from him to Mr. Stevens or Mrs. McKay, as the 
case may he, and administered the acknowledgment to him; 
the exact words I used I cannot recall, but I followed the 
language of the deed, as the Canadian form varies slightly 
from ours.

“Q. And did Mr. Buchanan sign the deeds ? A. He 
did. (Shews witness deeds). That is the first deed, because
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lie started his name—the first name did not suit him. I think 1904. 
he finished the whole name, then wanted to know' if he Wixsiewn 
could not rewrite his first name. I told him he could, and McKay. 

lie rewrote it over the other. I stated a moment ago that Barker, j. 
I handed Mr. Buchanan my fountain pen. He did not sign 
his name with this pen; he applied it to the paper and 
made some remark derogatory to the pen, and suggested 
that I procure pen and ink from the attendant, which I 
did, and which he used in signing.”

Mr. Allen also states that he saw nothing in Buchanan’s 
actions or conversation that led him to believe he was not 
in a tit condition mentally to execute these deeds. I shall 
not attempt to reconcile these widely different opinions as 
to the mental condition of Buchanan any more than I shall 
try to reconcile the contradictory statements of Buchanan 
and some of the other witnesses upon other points in dis­
pute, for I think the case may be determined upon other 
grounds. They are important as shewing in what an 
unsatisfactory condition the case is left by the evidence.
There is no doubt that Buchanan was, at the time these 
conveyances w’ere made, an old man of seventy, confined to 
his lied in a hospital, weak and feeble from an incurable 
disease — so feeble and sick in fact that the physicians 
anticipated his death within a very few days. He had no 
independent advice, or advice of any kind. The solicitor 
who drew the conveyance was not of his selection, nor was 
lie acting for him. The parties did not meet upon equal 
terms, and any conveyance made under such circumstances 
must necessarily excite suspicion, especially where the con­
tract was so improvident a one as this was ; for by it 
Buchanan, without making any arrangement for the future, 
denuded himself of all his property of every kind, and left 
himself destitute, thus paving his way to the poor house, 
where he ended his days a few months later. As to the 
consideration for this conveyance, if there was any at all, 
the evidence leaves the matter in great uncertainty. The 
account given by Buchanan, and that given by Mrs.
McKay, as to the terms upon which they lived, are so 
entirely contradictory that one would scarcely be safe in
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1904. accepting cither as altogether accurate. Buchanan says 
Winslows that he became acquainted with McKay (the husband) a 

McKay, fortnight or so before he went to his house in 1894, and he 
Barker, J. says that he was induced to go there and make it his 

home. No terms were agreed upon, hut he was to square 
up every week, and that he did so. Buchanan now swears 
that he owed Mix McKay nothing when the deed was 
made ; and several of the witnesses say that he always met 
Mrs. McKay’s applications for money by the remark that 
he owed her nothing. It seems strange that if the 
conveyance was made, as the defendants allege, in satisfac­
tion of a debt for board that he should have so suddenly 
changed his mind and transferred a valuable property in 
payment of a debt which he had always repudiated. Mrs. 
McKay says that Buchanan came first to her house on a 
Saturday evening, and on the following Monday he paid 
her $1.50; that she was keeping boarders at the time; that 
he wished to remain, and she shewed him a room with 
which he expressed himself satisfied. She was then 
asked :—

'• Q. Did you make any agreement with him as to what 
you would charge him ! A. Yes.

“ Q. What was it ? A. I told him it would be $1.25 
by the week.

“ Q. Would that be the room alone or board ? A. 
That was room alone ; $4.50 for room and hoard.

“ Q. Did he agree to that ? A. He did not say a 
word.”

Buchanan and Mrs. McKay agree that the actual cash 
paid during the nine years was $40 and this $1.50. Mrs. 
McKay says that in addition he brought in a bag of flour. 
Now, nine years’ board, at $4.50 per week, amounts to say 
$1,900, after deducting the payments and making an ample 
allowance for the months spent elsewhere. Mrs. McKay 
also swears that this $40 was not paid until about five 
years had elapsed. It seems to me absurd to suppose that 
Buchanan, who was a stranger to McKay, with no claim 
upon him in any way, would have been permitted to 
remain there as a boarder year after year, rolling up this
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largo indebtedness. McKay's family were poor. McKenzie, 
their son-in-law, assisted them, and Buchanan says that he 
ilid also. It must be remembered that Buchanan was not 
a person unable to pay. From September, 18114, to March, 
1908, Mr. Trueman sent him in cash 8427, revenues from 
this very property ; 8335 of which was rent during the 
last three of these years, and 8200 of that sum in one 
remittance in 1900. So that making allowance for intem­
perate habits and want of employment, the evidence goes 
to shew that whether Buchanan actually did or did not 
provide supplies for the house as he says he did in pay­
ment of his board, he must at least have had the means of 
doing so to some extent. Upon this question I express no 
opinion, for I do not wish to embarrass the free discussion 
of that question hereafter by the parties if they choose to 
do so. I do, however, conclude from the evidence of the 
defendants and their witnesses that the conveyance — 
assuming Buchanan’s mental capacity and his entire under­
standing of the nature of the transaction — was not given 
in satisfaction of any indebtedness for board and lodgingj 
or at all events not solely for that, but as a remuneration 
for trouble and attentions bestowed upon him in the home 
furnished for him, altogether outside of any contract for 
board. I allude to the attention and nursing while he was 
sick at different times ; to the care given him when he was 
unable to look after himself, and other services of a similar 
character, which a fair consideration of the evidence leads 
me to think Mrs. McKay rendered Buchanan during these 
nine years, creating precisely that description of obligation 
which appeals so forcibly to one in the condition in which 
Buchanan undoubtedly was on that 12th of March, and 
which was almost sure of being recognized if pressed on 
Ills notice by the woman who had befriended him. When 
Mr. Powers asked Buchanan what the consideration was 
for the conveyance, the reply was, “ I owe her a large sum 
of money for board and room." Nothing more was asked. 
This is not the consideration stated in the deed; and it 
docs seem to me somewhat strange that if, as Mrs. McKay 
says, this conveyance was made by Buchanan and accepted
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1904. by her in satisfaction of this large indebtedness and that 
Winbijowe was the only consideration for it, some indication to that 

McKay, effect should not have appeared on the face of the convey- 
Barker, J. ance. On the contrary I find that the consideration in the 

deed to Mrs. McKay, and that to Stevens, are precisely the 
same. The latter transaction was admittedly one of gift. 
Mrs. McKay’s evidence differs from that of Mr. Powers. 
She says that Buchanan told the lawyer (i. e., Powers) that 
he wanted to give the property to Mi's. McKay “ for my 
trouble,” and if he had more that he would give it to her. 
This does not seem to me the language of a man who is 
paying a legal debt, but rather the language of one making 
a gift; it may be in recognition of some kindness or atten­
tion, but a gift nevertheless. The evidence does not, 
I think, shew any previous agreement of any kind by 
Buchanan to convey the property in payment of the board. 
Nor does it, in my opinion, sustain the defendants’ conten­
tion that the conveyance was given in satisfaction of this 
debt. I am disposed to think it was not so intended by 
either party ; but if any such indebtedness existed, it was 
not, in my opinion, sufficient to fonn an adequate con­
sideration for the conveyance, or sucli a consideration as 
should, in view of all the facts and circumstances of this 
case, prevent this Court from affording the plaintiff the 
relief she asks. I do not wish to express an opinion as to 
whether Buchanan did or did not owe Mrs. McKay any­
thing for board when this conveyance was made, beyond 
what is necessary in determining this particular case. I 
wish to leave the parties entirely free to try out that ques­
tion if they desire to do so hereafter. The only point now 
for determination is whether in view of all the facts the 
transaction should be set aside. In my opinion it should 
be. It is one of that class of cases where this Court 
should throw around the weak its protection against the 
strong, where the parties to the contract were on unequal 
terms, and an improvident bargain for an inadequate con­
sideration has been made. See Allure v. Jervell (1);

(1) 94 U. S. 506.
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Harding v. Handy (1); Clark v. Malpas (2); Hagarty 
v. Hate nmn (3) ; McCaffrey v. McCaffrey (4).

The defendant* do not claim this property otherwise 
than as having lieen conveyed to Mrs. McKay in satisfac­
tion of this alleged indebtedness. If that indebtedness 
doe* not in fact exist, as the plaintiff claims, or it is alto­
gether too small in amount to form an adequate considera­
tion for the conveyance, to allow the transaction to stand 
would be to permit the defendants to retain a valuable 
property to which, on their own shewing, they have no 
right whatever. On the contrary, if any such indebtedness 
does exist, the amount of it can be established in an action 
at law by Mrs. McKay against the representative of 
liuchanan's estate, and the property in question made 
available for the payment of the amount recovered. The 
interference of this Court in setting aside the conveyances 
cannot work any material injury to the defendants.

The defendant McKenzie sets up no claim superior to 
that of McKay or different from it. The conveyance to 
him was made on or about the day Buchanan left Mrs. 
McKay's house to come to Albert in order to take these 
proceedings, and that this was his object seems to have been 
well known. McKenzie admits that he knew that the 
legality of the transaction was questioned, and the only 
consideration from him to Mrs. McKay was some small 
sums of money which from time to time he had given her 
to help her along in her poor circumstances, the amount of 
which is not stated. They were considered mere gratuities, 
and never expected to be repaid.

There will be a decree, therefore, setting aside the two 
conveyances, but in consideration of the peculiar circum­
stances, the conflict of evidence and the absence of proof 
of any actual fraud, there will be no order as to costs.

1904.
Winslow*

McKay.
Barker, J.

(1) 11 Wheat. 108.
(2) 31 Beav. 82.

(3) 19 O. R. 381.
(4) 18 A. R. 699.
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1005.
February SI.

LODGE v. CALHOUN.

Interrogatories—A nswer—Reference to answer of co-defendant— 
Exceptions.

To tin interrogatory to set out part iculars of a claim of debt by 
the defendant against the defendant company, the defendant 
answered that he believed that schedules ( which contained 
the information sought) attached to the answer of the de­
fendant company were true

Held, allowing an exception for insufficiency, that the interroga­
tory relating to a matter within the defendant's knowledge, 
he should have made positixe oath of the correctness of the 
schedules, or that they were correct to the best of his know­
ledge, information and belief, accounting for his inability to 
swear positively to their correctness.

Exceptions for insufficiency to answers of the defend­
ant John C. Calhoun. The facts sufficiently appear in the 
judgment of the Court.

Argument was heard December 20, 1904.

W. 11. Chandler, K.C., in support of exceptions.

F. R. Taylor, contra.

1905. February 21. Barker, J.:—

The plaintiff, who is a resident of New Brunswick, 
is the holder of a large number of shares of the capital 
stock of the defendant company, The Baltimore Coal 
Mining and Railway Company, has filed this bill on 
behalf of himself and the other shareholders who may 
come in and become parties to the suit, to set aside a 
certain judgment for $38,834 recovered in the Supreme 
Court of this Province, and signed on the 12th October, 
1903, by the defendant Calhoun against the defendant 
company, as having been obtained collusively between 
Calhoun, the principal shareholder of the company, its 
president and principal manager, and the company, to the 
detriment of the plaintiff and a minority of those inter­
ested. Calhoun is a resident of New York. Though the
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defendant company was incorporated under a Provincial 
Act, and the lands of which it owns mining leases are situate 
within the Province, it apparently transacts its business 
and its directors hold their meetings in New York. I 
mention these facts because the nature and object of the 
suit are sometimes important in determining as to the sub­
stantiality and bona tides of a defendant’s answer. And 
where the contents of books or documents arc asked for, it 
is a reason for not relaxing the rule by which a plaintiff is 
entithsl to discovery by answer that these looks or docu­
ments are beyond the jurisdiction of the Court, and there­
fore not easily available under an order for inspection. 
The amount for which the judgment was obtained, Calhoun 
says, is made up of moneys advanced by him to the com­
pany and amounts due him for salary. The fifth section 
of the hill, out of which the first exception arises, alleges 
that at the annual meeting of the coni])any, held in May, 
11101, at which the plaintiff was present, a claim of 
Calhoun for some 821,000 was laid before the shareholders, 
hut that no information was given to him as to the details 
of the claim, and he alleges that he has never been able to 
procure the information, though he has frequently en­
deavored to do so.

1st Exception. That the defendant Calhoun did not 
set forth, to the best of his knowledge, information and 
Ixdief, what information or explanation as to the claim was 
given at the meeting, to whom it was given and by whom. 
It ap|K-ars by the minutes of that meeting that it was 
held in St. John, and that Calhoun was not present, 
though he was represented by proxy. In his answer to 
this section Calhoun states that, at the meeting referred 
to, itemized |«irticulars of the claim and vouchers for the 
(siymenta were on the table for the information of the 
shareholders, and that the plaintif! was then informed that 
he was at liberty to fully examine the particulars of the 
account and vouchers. The language of this part of the 
answer is possibly open to two meanings, but as I under­
stand it in connection with the interrogatory, I think the

1905.

Calhoun. 
Biivkor, J.
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1905.

Calhoun. 

Barker, J.

defendant did not intend to convey the idea that any infor­
mation as to his claim was given or required heyond that 
afforded by an examination of the papers themselves then 
laid on the table for the information of the shareholders, 
and to which the plaintiff1 s attention was distinctly 
directed. Calhoun was not present, and it does not 
appear that any one was present to give explanations on 
his behalf by which he would be hound.

I think this exception must be overruled.

2nd Exception. That Calhoun did not state whether, 
to the best of his knowledge, information and belief, a 
meeting of the directors was held in New York on March 
30,1901, as to which he was interrogated in paragraph six.

I think this exception must also be overruled. It is 
true that the defendant does not in this answer (though it 
was stated that he had done so in his first answer put in, 
and which is still on file), say anything about a meeting in 
March, but he goes on to speak of a directors’ meeting held 
in May. It is obvious to any one reading the interroga­
tories that nothing whatever turned upon the date of the 
meeting ; the important part was the business transacted 
at it, and as to that the defendant answered fully.

drd Exception. I think the interrogatory out of which 
this exception arises has Iwen substantially answered. It 
appears tliat before Calhoun’s claim was submitted, as he 
says, to the meeting of shareholders held in May, 1901, it 
had been submitted to the directors, who had referred it for 
audit to Messrs. Brown and Iogan, two of their liumlier. 
On their report the directors authorized a note of the com­
pany to be given for the sum then due, with interest 
The objection to the answer is that Calhoun did not state 
to the best of his knowledge, information and belief who 
were present at the examination of the account submitted 
to the directors, what took place at the meeting, and what 
was the nature of the examination. The answer gives 
very full information as to what took place. If the plain­
tiff wished more definite information us to the nature of 
the examination, or what took place at the meeting, he
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should have been more definite in his questions. The 1905.
answer states that he (Calhoun) was unable to state what Ixjdoi

took place at the examination further than that it was a full Calhoun. 
and complete one, and that the items were compared with n»rkor. J. 

the vouchers and were found to correspond, and that 
information was given to the committee as to the work 
done, the services performed, and also the expenditures.

This exception will be overruled.

ilk Exception. The defendant was required to set 
out in detail the advances made by him to the company 
included in the note for S21,337.63, with items and dates 
in full, giving the date of each advance, the amount, the 
purpose for which such advance was made, and also the 
application of the money in each instance. In response to 
a similar requirement made of the company, it had filed 
an answer to which were attached voluminous schedules 
containing the information asked for, and the defendant 
Calhoun, instead of duplicating these schedules, very 
properly incorporated them by reference into his answer.
These schedules, he says, he believes to be true and correct, 
and it is objected that this is not sufficient. These inter­
rogatories are directed to an important part of the plain- 
till's case, and they relate altogether to matters within the 
knowledge of the defendant himself. I think that in such 
a case the plaintiff was entitled to the positive oath of the 
fulness and correctness of the information contained in the 
schedules, or a satisfactory reason why that could not be 
given, and in that case that the schedules were correct and 
true to the beat of his knowledge, information and belief ; 
in other words, the beat information which he could under 
the circumstances offer. In Drake v. Symes (l),Wood,V.-C., 
had under consideration exceptions to an answer for in­
sufficiency liecause the defendant had not fully act out 
certain particulars as to some life policies. The informa­
tion, if given literally as asked for, would have been 
oppressive, and it was therefore given by reference to the 
conqiany’s books, which were offered to the plaintiff for

(1) 6 Jur. (N. 8.) 318.
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1 !)05.

Camiovk. 
Barkev, J.

inspection. The Vice-Chancellor says : “ I apprehend the 
rule of practice is to he found in White v. Williams (l). 
I have always understood it to be this—that if questions are 
asked by which you are required to set out lists in this 
somewhat oppressive character, and which would he oppres­
sive if you answered them literally, then the defendant is 
justified if he says, ‘All the accounts that you ask for are 
contained in certain lxs>ks which an- in my possession ; all 
these books are full and true; they contain the !x‘xt 
account I can give you of the matters, and you shall have 
full access to them.’ This is what Lord Eldon says he 
must pledge himself to.” The present defendant has not 
brought himself within this rule.

This exception is allowed.

title. Exception. This exception is founded on the 
omission by Calhoun in his answer to set out, as he was 
required to do, a copy of the authority given by the com­
pany to him to make the advances sued for, which 
authority, it seems, was contained in a resolution of the 
board passed at a meeting held May 15, 11)00. This 
record must have been easily accessible tq the defendant 
Calhoun, as it was practically under his control. No reason 
is given for not setting it out, and I think the answer is in 
that respect insufficient.

This exception is allowed.

(1th Exception. This is directed to the fact that 
Calhoun had not fully answered as to the nature of the 
advances, the dates, the purposes for which they were 
made, and how the moneys were applied. The defendant 
answered as before by adopting and incorporating as part 
of his answer certain other schedules annexed to the com­
pany’s answer and forming a part of it. The objection is 
that in doing no he hud not himself verified the schedules. 
The point in the same as that which comes up under the 
4th exception, and for the reasons given in reference to 
that, I think this exception must also be allowed.

(1) 8 Ves. IBS.

-
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PATTERSON v. PAri’EUSON.

1905, Partition — Previous sale of land— Title of vendor confirmed — 
February si. Costs of vendee — Evidence — A ncicnt documents.

Where a suit for partition of lands sold previously to the com­
mencement of the .suit established the exclusive title of the 
vendor, and the suit was not caused by any fault of his, the 
vendee made a party to the suit was held not to be entitled 
to deduct his costs from the purchase money.

Where a document, of date 1831, purporting to have been exe­
cuted by father and son, was produced from the custody of 
a grandson of the former, and as having been kept, with title 
papers, in a box formerly in the custody of the grandson's 
brother, and now in the custody of the grandson, and where a 
document, of date 1840, purporting to be a will, was pro­
duced from the custody of a nephew of a person purporting 
to have signed it as a witness, and as having been kept by him 
with other papers in a chest now in the nephew’s custody, 
both documents were held admissible in evidence without 
proof of execution.

Bill for partition. The facts are fully stated in the 
judgment of the Court.

Argument was heard January 17, 1905.

L. P. D. Tilley, for the plaintiffs.

L. A. Carrey, K. C., and E. T. C. Knowles, for the 
defendants John C. Patterson and William Floyd.

C. N. Skinner, K.C., for the defendants the O'Neill 
Lumber Co.

S. A. M. Skinner, for the defendant Elizabeth Patterson.

1905. February 21. Barker, J. :—

This is a partition suit to which there appear to be 
seventy-five parties, thirteen of whom have joined as 
plaintiffs. The land sought to be partitioned was granted 
to one George Patterson on December 5, 1825, and consists, 
according to the description in the grant, of two tracts, one 
numbered 35 lying on the south side of the road from Loch 
Lomond to Quaco, in the parish of St. Martins, and the 
other immediately opposite on the northern side of the
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same mad, numbered 35 and 38, the two tracts containing 
3(H) acres and being described as wilderness land, (leorge 
Patterson the grantee seems to have gone into possession 
under his grant ; he built a house and mill on the part 
lying north of the road, and he continued to live there up 
to the time of his death, which took place on the 17th 
March, 1847, some 56 years before this suit was commenced. 
The plaintiff’s case is that George Patterson died intestate, 
leaving him surviving a widow and four children, John, 
James, and George, and one daughter, Elizabeth, and that 
all the other parties to this suit are tenants in common of 
this 3(H) acre tract of land, which is now estimated to be 
worth some $10,000. The sulistantial, in fact the only, 
defence set up, is that of John C. Patterson and William H. 
Floyd as executors of the last will and testament of Samuel 
Patterson, and the O’Neill Lumber Company who claim as 
purchaser under them. John Patterson, son of George 
Patterson, died April 5, 1875, leaving a will, dated October 
211, 1874, of which letters testamentary were granted April 
8, 1875. He devised this land, or at all events what he 
called “ his farm,” to his son Samuel Patterson, who occupied 
it until his death, which took place on May 2, 1903. 
Samuel left a will by which he devised all this property to 
the defendants, John C. Patterson and Floyd, his executors, 
upon certain trusts which have no bearing upon this case. 
The defence act up by them is that no such tenancy in 
common exists as the plaintiffs seek to establish. On the 
contrary they say that their testator Samuel Patterson had 
long before his death acquired an aimolute title to the land 
in cpiestion, both by adverse possession and by virtue of an 
unregistered will of George Patterson, the grantee, and 
another document, to which I shall refer later on, by 
which John Patterson became entitled absolutely. These 
two lines of defence I shall deal with separately. The 
evidence in my opinion shews an exclusive, continuous and 
undisputed possession of the whole of this land for about 28 
years in John Patterson, and 28 more in Samuel his son. 
There is not a particle of evidence to shew that any one 
during those 56 years pretended to dispute John Patterson's

1905.
Pattkkson 

Pattkhhon. 

Parker, J.
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1005. titli* up to the time of his death in 1875, or that of Samuel 
Pattkukon Patterson from that time on, until his death in lOO.'l. They 
Pattkkkox. lived in the house built by George and known as the hoine- 
Bnrker, J. stead; they dieil there; they cultivated the land, operated 

the mill, cut the lumber, and exercised every act of 
ownei-ship in reference to it which an undisputed owner 
could do, even to selling portions of it, as the evidence 
shews that Samuel Patterson dill some time Iwfore his death. 
Mr. Tilley seemed to think that possession of the lot south 
of the road was not made out. It is true that the acts of 
]x>Nsessioii or ownership, in reference to that part, were 
fewer in number than those which were proved as to 
the remainder of the tract. But acts of possession or 
ownership must necessarily vary in their nature according 
to the particular description of property in question, and 
the purpose for which an owner would ordinarily use it. 
Th<‘ southern lot was principally woodland, upon which a 
small piece, an acre or thereabouts, had been cleared and 
cultivated. But the Pattersons cut wood there as they 
chose, and the hay or crops, if there were any, raised on 
this acre which had been cleared many years before, went 
into John Patterson’s barn, when he lived there, and into 
Samuel’s barn afterwards. Let us assume for the purpose 
of the argument, that the plaintiffs’ contention is right, 
and that George Patterson died in possession and intestate. 
There is no doubt that his son John succeeded him in the 
{Kissession, and remaimsl in the exclusive and uninterrupted 
possession until his death. As heir-at-law he would have 
been in that case entitled, as the law I believe stood in 
1847, to two shares—at all events to a share—in this land. 
He and his sister and brothers would have held it as tenants 
in common, and the exclusive possession of John would 
have lieen an exclusive possession of the whole tract : Doe 
d. M’Kay v. Allen (1). This continued for 28 years 
without interruption or question by any one, and at that 
time the Statute of Limitation* had become a complete liar 
to the rights of the co-tenants. That would, in my opinion,

(1) 3 All. 191.
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give John Patterson n complete and good statutory title. 
He then made a will, under which his son Samuel claims. 
I understand it to be argued that the devise to Samuel by 
this will only includes the land to the north of the road. 
The woids are these, “ I bequeath to my son Samuel the 
farm on which I reside, with all the appurtenances thereof." 
At another place is the following clause, “ I direct that 
my sons George and William shall have an equal share 
with Samuel of the lumber on the farm, and an equal share 
of the privileges of the mill, so long as they wish to remain 
in partnership." I should not myself think there was 
much doubt that the whole tract on both sides of the road 
]passid under the word “ farm," taken in connection with 
the surrounding circumstances and read in the light of the 
clause to which I have referred. The whole tract had been 
usid anil occupied from 1825, when it was granted, down 
to 1874, when John Patterson’s will was made, as one farm. 
He had so used it and occupied it, certainly from 1847, for a 
period of about 27 years. And it is clear that he intended to 
pass the mill, mill privilege and the land with lumlier on it, 
lieeauae he gave a share of the lumlier and of the mill privi­
lege to his two other sons—.Samuel’s share in these having 
necessarily passed as part of the farm. Besides all this, 
unless the land to the south of the road ]iasaed under this 
devise, it was not disposed of at all, and as to it there was 
an intestacy. We all know that Courts, if possible, 
avoid a construction which involves a partial intestacy. 
But if I am wrong in this, and the devise in the will 
of the farm only carries the land to the north of the road, 
and leaves that to the south undisposed of, in what way are 
these plaintiffs benefited ! The effect would simply be that 
John's children would be tenants in common of the land 
south of the road. Samuel, one of these tenants in common, 
went into possession of it, and remained in its exclusive and 
uninterrupted possession for 28 years,and that would liar the 
l ights of his co-tenants, and give him a good statutory title to 
that piece. The result is the same in either case, that is, to 
create in Samuel at the time of his death, a good title to the 
whole lot on both sides of the road. I shall only refer

1f)05.
Pattkrson

I'ATTKItSON. 

Barker, J.
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1005. briefly to the evidence as to the possession of John and 
Pattkkson Samuel Patterson. Samuel Shanklin, who is sixty years 
Pattkhshs. old, has for many years lived on and owned lot 34, which 
Barker, J. adjoins the property to the west, on the north side of the 

road. He knew John and Samuel Patterson all his life, 
was their nearest neighbor, and knew all about the lines of 
the lots and their occupation. Margaret Jane Patterson, who 
is one of the defendants, 75 years old, and a grand-daughter 
of George, the original grantee, being a daughter of his 
daughter Elisabeth, lived on the adjoining lot to the east. 
She recollects her grandfather and grandmother, who, she 
says, lived with John Patterson on the premises for some 
time before his death. Charlotte Patterson, aged 7!) years, 
a daughter of John ; George B. Patterson, 7(1 years, a son of 
John ; John C. Patterson, 71 years old, also a son of John, 
and VV. H. Ellis, an old man of 111 and a witness produced by 
the plaintiffs, all gave testimony proving the possession of 
John and Samuel to this land as I have outlined it, in a clear 
and positive manner. The only evidence to the contrary, if 
evidence it can he considered, is that of Carson, who said 
that on one occasion when speaking to Samuel Patterson 
as to a proposed sale of the lot below the road, Patterson 
said that he did not know whether he could give a good 
title to it or not. If there was no other evidence, I should 
think the plaintiffs had altogether failed in making out a 
case for partition. But there is other evidence upon which 
the executors of Samuel Patterson rely as strengthening 
their testator's title to this land. They have produced two 
documents which have been put in evidence as ancient 
documents, though there is some evidence of their 
execution. The older document is dated July 1, 1831, and 
in order to distinguish it from the other, I shall refer to it 
as a “ conveyance.” It is as follows :

“ Be it known to all men that on this first day of July, 
in the year of our Lord one thousand eight hundred and 
thirty-one, I, George Patterson, farmer, situate and living 
in the Parish of Saint Martins, in the County of Saint 
John, and Province of New Brunswick, doth on this day as 
above written, give and bequeath, and by these presents
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doth demise and make over unto my son, John Patterson, 1905. 
and his heirs for ever as my last will and testament. And I’attmmon 
this, my last will and testament, is to make known to all Pattkksok. 

men that I have on this day given, bequeathed, demised Barker, j. 
and set over for ever unto John Patterson, my son, and his 
heirs, all that certain piece or parcel of land situate, lying 
and being in the Pariah of Saint Martins, in the County of 
Saint John, Province of New Brunswick, and on the road 
from Saint John to Quaco, and distinguished as lots num­
ber thirty-live and thirty-six, more fully described in the 
original grant, being on the north aide of the road, with all 
the improvements and appurtenances, as a free and inde­
feasible inheritance for ever. Nevertheless these presents 
are upon this express condition, that is to say: The above 
descrilied John Patterson, his heirs or assigns, do engage to 
furnish the said George Patterson and Mary Patterson, his 
father and mother, with a decent and sufficient support 
during their natural lives, and to see them respectably 
interred should they die before the said John Patterson or 
his heirs. Also as witness our hands the day and year 
above written.

(Signed) “George Patterson. [l.s.J 
( “ ) “John Patterson. [l.s.J

“ Sealed and delivered 1 (Signed) “ Daniel Smith. 
in presence of } ( “ ) " Robert Ellis.”

“ It is further agreed by and between the said John 
Patterson and George Patterson that the within described 
John Patterson is to keep a cow summer and winter for 
the only use of the said George Patterson and Mary 
Patterson, his wife, for their only use so long as they shall 
live, both or either of them; and that the said George 
Patterson doth by these presents appoint Robert Ellis, of 
Tynemouth Creek, as his guardian and executor."

(Signed) “John Patterson. [l.s.1 
( “ ) “George Patterson. [l.s.J

“Sealed and delivered in 1 (Signed) “ Daniel Smith. 
the presence of / ( “ ) “ Robert Ellis."
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1905. The other document is a will of George Patterson, the
Pattkrmon grantee, dated March 18th, 1840. Omitting the introduc- 
Pattkrhon. tory part, it is as follows: “I do give and bequeath as 

tiiirkcr, j. follows: To my son John I do leave and bequeath the farm 
which he and I now occupy, being lot No. 115 on the south 
side of the new Quaco road, in the Parish of St. Martins." 
The remainder of the will is unimportaut. It is signed 
and sealed by George Patterson, and William Ruddick and 
John Smith are the witnesses. All the parties to lioth 
these documents, including the witnesses, are dead. John 
C. Patterson says that he heard of both of these papers— 
one before his grandfather’s death, which I presume was 
the conveyance, and the other soon after his death. He 
also says that he had frequently seen his grandfather write, 
and while, after the lapse of so many years, he could not 
swear jxwitively that he had ever seen him sign his name, 
he had no doubt, from his knowledge of his writing, that 
the signatures purporting to lie the signatures of his grand­
father to both documents, were genuine. He also proved 
the signature of his father, John Patterson, to the convey­
ance. Dr. Ruddick, of St. Martina, one of the witnesses to 
the will, dits! in 1883, at the age of lili years. His signa­
ture is proved by his son, Robert C. Ruddick. There was 
some evidence of the signature of Robert Ellis, one of the 
witnesses to the conveyance. There cannot, I think, be 
any doubt as to the authenticity of these documents. As 
to their custody, it apjienrs by the evidence of John C. 
Patterson that his father had a small tin box, which he 
produced in Court, and which was used for keeping papers 
relating to land ; that this box came into the possession of 
his brother Samuel on his father's death, and that he got 
it from Samuel’s widow. He also says that not long before 
his brother’s death he had occasion to examine the papers 
in this box in reference to some business of his brother, 
aud that in it, with other deeds and papers, was this con­
veyance, also the original grant and the probate of his 
father’s will. He came into possession of all these papers 
as executor of his brother’s estate, and has had them in 
his custody ever since. As to the custody of the will,
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George Smith, who is 78 years old, and has lived all his 1905. 
life in St. Martins, says that he lived with his two uncles, Pattirbos 
John and Daniel, who were unmarried, until they died. 1‘attkhso*.

John, who is witness to the will, died in 1800, and Daniel 
in 1849. He says that he found the will among some 
papers of his uncle John in a chest which came into his 
jossession on his uncle’s death, and which he has had ever 
since in Ilia own personal use for keeping papeis and money 
in. He says that he kept it locked and kept money in it, 
and when he heard of this suit he told a Mrs. Brown alxiut 
the paper, and in that way Floyd, it is said, heard of it.
1 think the evidence accounts satisfactorily for the custody 
of both papei's, and that they are admissible, without proof, 
as ancient documents. See Doe d. Keale v. Sample« (1).

The existence of these documents was not altogether 
unknown. Besides John C. Patterson, whose evidence on 
that (mint I have already mentioned, Samuel Shanklin says 
he heard of an agreement between John and his father, 
and Margaret Jane Patterson says she heard, about the 
time of her grandfather's death, that he had made a «'ill. 
Ellis and Margaret Patterson speak of George Patterson 
and his wife living with their son John, and his taking 
care of them for some time before their death. This is 
entirely consistent with the terms of the conveyance, by 
which it was agreed that John was to support his father 
and mother for the remainder of their lives. Whether this 
conveyance wobld operate as a transfer of the land on the 
northern side of the road, in which case livery of seizin 
might be inferred after this lapse of time, or whether it is 
testamentary in its character and intended to operate as an 
absolute assignment of the property on George Patterson’s 
death, it is not necessary for the determination of this case 
to decide. The instrument, however, carries on its face an 
obvious intention to transfer to John Patterson the imme­
diate use and possession of the land from which, and 
apparently upon which, he was thenceforth to maintain his 
parents during their lives, and a further intention that

Barker, J.

(1) 8 A. & E. 151.
VO!. III. N. B. E. R.—8.
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1905. either then, or on George Patterson's death, John should, 
Pattkkson by virtue of that instrument by whatever name you call 
1‘ATtKKsos. it, aci]iiire the land described in it “ as a free and indefeas- 
Bsrker. J. ible inheritance for ever," and which he then declared “ he 

gave and made over unto John and his heirs for ever.” 
See Doe d. Wilt v. Jardine (1); Wort man v. Ayles ( 2); 
Hadden v. White (3). As to the will made in 1840, there 
can be no doubt that by it John Patterson acquired the 
land on the south side of the road, which the testator calls 
“the farm which he and I now occupy."

The plaintiffs, in my opinion, have failed in establish­
ing any tenancy in common in this property, or that they 
have any interest in it at all. The evidence, I think, shews a 
perfectly good title to the whole tract in Samuel Patterson 
at the time of his death, and in his executors under his 
will. The bill must therefore be dismissed.

As to the costs. This is not a case upon which section 
218 of the Equity Act, chap. 112, C.S. 1903, has any Waring. 
First, ns to the costs of the O’Neill Lumber Company. 
They had purchased the land on the north side of the road 
for $6,100 from the executors of Samuel Patterson, and 
received a conveyance before this suit was commenced. 
They were made defendants, and notice of motion for an 
injunction against them was given with a view of restrain­
ing them from cutting the lumber. Before the motion was 
made an agreement was arrived at by which the convey­
ance to that company was confirmed by consent of Counsel 
who represented different parties, and the $6,100 was 
deposited in the Bank of New Brunswick in the name of 
Mr. Knowles, subject to the order of the Court, to be dealt 
with as representing the land. The company appeared and 
answered and now ask that their costs should be paid by 
the executors, or, in other words, deducted from this fund. 
I am really unable to see any reason for making such an 
order. The company purchased in the ordinary way, and 
the executors are in no way responsible for this litigation. 
They were forced into it by the plaintiffs on the same

(1) Bert. 142. (2) 1 Han. 83. (3) 2 Kerr, 034.
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ground that Samuel Patterson’s executors were. The 
plaintiffs must pay the costs of Patterson and Floyd, 
executors of Samuel Patterson, and also of the O’Neill 
Lumber Company. As to the other parties, they either 
supported the plaintiffs in their contention or were willing 
to participate in any personal advantage which that con­
tention, if successful, might bring them. There will be no 
order as to costs as to them. The money in the hands of 
Mr. Knowles, with any accumulations, will be paid by him 
over to Patterson and Floyd as executors of Samuel 
Patterson.

1905.

Pattkuson 
Patterson. 
Barker, J.
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1005.
February tl.

WOOD v. LeBLANC.

Interlocutory injunction—Undertaking ue to damayee — Order 
for aeeeemnent.

Claim* for small damages hy some defendants ordernl to he 
included in an order for assessment of damages of other 
defendants under an undertaking given on obtaining an in­
terlocutory injunction, where they arose from the restraint 
of acts the injunction was obtained to prevent from being 
done.

An injunction order was granted in this suit restraining 
the defendants, and also other persons who were residents 
of Meinrutncook East, and claimed title to certain lots of 
land described in the bill, situate in Westmorland County, 
and comprising several thousand acres, from cutting down 
any trees, timber, logs, wood or poles thereon, and from tak­
ing, hauling, carrying away or interfering with any logs, 
lumber, trees, wood or poles then cut and lying upon said lots 
of land, or any or either of them. The injunction order 
was granted ex parte, on February (i, 1902, and dissolved 
on December lti following, with costs. See report of 
case (1). An undertaking given on obtaining the 
order was as follows : “ Plaintiff by his Counsel hereby 
undertakes to abide by any order this Court may make as 
to damages in case the Court shall lie of opinion that the 
defendants or others hereby restrained, have sustained any 
by reason of this order which the plaintiff ought to |iay." 
The bill having been dismissed, application was now made 
on affidavits on Is-half of the defendants, and others not 
parties to the suit, for an assessment of their damages 
alleged to have been sustained by reason of the order. 
The affidavit of Henry S. Le Blanc stated that at the 
time of the service upon him of the injunction order 
he was engaged in cutting logs, firewood and jioles on one 
of the lots of land in question in the suit, and that he 
immediately ceased work, leaving on the ground the logs

(1) 2 N. B. Eq. 427.
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and wood he had then cut ; that sixty of these logs were 
removed by the plaintifTs workmen, acting as he believed 
under the plaintifTs orders, and that their value was SI 5; 
that the de]M>nent and his father had made arrangements 
to lug on the lot during the winter of 11)02; that they were 
then in a position to have cut and handled three hundred 
more logs, from which they would have made #45 ; that 
they hud swamped roads on the lot, ami hud made arrange­
ments to haul fifty cords of wood during the winter ; that 
they had three horses and had lost work for them the rest of 
♦lie winter; that the wood would have been worth #3.50 a 
cord, and could have been got out at a cost of less than 
#30 ; that the deponent had five hundred and thirty logs 
on another lot in question, which he had been prevented 
from removing by the injunction order ; and that while he 
could have sold them for S15 per hundred at the time of the 
service of the order, their value when the order was dissolved 
was but St) per hundred ; that he and Ilia father required 
for their farm for fencing about five hundred poles and that 
these they had lieen prevented from cutting and getting 
out. On behalf of himself and his father he claimed #350 
damages. Raphael P. LeBlunc staled that at the time of 
the granting of the order, he was cutting wood on one of 
the lots in question, for household use, and for sale ; that 
he was compelled to purchase three cords of wood for his 
own use ; and that by reason of the order he was unable to 
use his horse during the winter in getting out wood ; he esti­
mated his damages at #30. Andrew Dupuis and Samuel A. 
Dupuis stated that the latter at the time of the granting of 
the order was cutting and hauling logs, firewood and poles 
on one of the lots in question ; that he had contracted to sell 
a quantity of firewood, which he was prevented by the order 
from delivering; that about twelve spruce trees which he 
had cut were removed by the plaintiff"s agents ; that both 
dc|K>nents by being prevented from getting out poles, had 
been unable to fence in their land during the spring and 
summer of 11)02, as they hail intended doing, and that the 
want of fencing had deprived them of pasture for their cows. 
They estimated their damages at #00. Aimable Sonier stated

1905.

LkUi.anc.
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1905. thnt lie and his son were, nt the time of the granting of the 
Wood injunction order, getting out wood, poles and logs on two 

LeBi'anc. of the lots in question, and that hy reason of the order, they 
practically lost their work for the remainder of the winter, 
from which they usually made about #60 ; that being pre­
vented from getting out poles during the winter, he and his 
son had not l>een able to protect their crops by fencing 
during the ensuing summer, and had sustained damages 
from this cause to about the sum of #10 ; and that they had 
worker! for three days with a horse in swamping roads for the 
purpose of logging on the two lots in q,,'“’tioc. The 
deponent estimated the damages of himself and son at 
#125. Charles Breau stated that at the time of the grant­
ing of the order he was cutting and hauling poles on one 
of the lots in question ; that he, his son and his son-in-law 
had spent two days in swamping roads for the purpose of 
getting out wood for sale ; that he had contracted for the 
sale of fifty cords of wood at #2 per cord, upon which he 
could have made #1 per cord ; that by reason of the order 
he had lost the winter's work for himself, two men and 
horses: that at the time of the service of the order, he had 
fifteen hundred poles cut and split on said lot, which he 
was prevented from using by the order, and that in conse­
quence he had to buy wire for fencing at a coat of #10 ; that 
the poles by lying on the ground had been lessened in value. 
He claimed #65 damages. Jude Gaudet stated that 
at the time of the granting of the order, he and his 
son, with three employees, were cutting and hauling 
logs and cordwood on one of the lots in question ; that 
he had at the time seven hundred logs yarded on the 
lot, and alrout one hundred logs lying on the ground ; 
that he had about forty cords of wood cut on the 
lot and ready for market, and that it was his intention to 
cut and get out logs and wood on the lot during the rest 
of the winter; that the logs, which had been worth $25 per 
hundred, had depreciated one-half in value; that the 
cordwood had depreciated a dollar per cord from lying in 
the woods; that he had lost the winter’s work for five 
horses, and that he estimated the damages to himself and
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son at 8350. Henry Dupuis stated that at the time of the 
granting of the injunction order he was cutting wood, logs 
anil poles on one of the lots in question; that he intended 
having logs manufactured into lumlier for his own use, and 
of getting out and selling 300 others, for which he expected 
to receive 818 to 820 per hundred ; that he had made 
arrangements to get outcordwood for himself and for sale; 
that he had swamped roads; that he had two sons working 
with him ; that the three of them lost their winter's work; 
that he had also lost the winter's work for a team of horses; 
that he had about one hundred poles cut upon the lot, and 
intended cutting ubout one thousand more for use on his 
farm, and that by reason of not having them he had been 
unable to provide pasture for his stock. He estimated his 
damages at 875. Henry U. Breau and Maurice 0. Breau 
stated that at the time of the granting of the order they 
were cutting and hauling wood and logs for their own use 
on two of the lots in question ; that they bad contracted 
with other owners of the lots to haul wood off the lots for 
them; that they had been prevented from obtaining poles 
for fencing, whereby their farms had suffered, and they 
estimated their damages at 830. Ferdinand tiould stated 
that at the time of the service of the injunction order he 
ami his two sons were cutting wood on one of the lots in 
question for their own use and for sale, and in cutting 
timber for the frame of a house; that they hod cut alxrat 
ninety logs, and that they had suffered considerable incon­
venience from want of firewood. He estimated his damages 
at 813. Frank J. Landry stated that at the time of the 
service of the injunction order he was having firewood for 
himself cut off one of the lots in question, and that he was 
obliged to get it elsewhere at an extra cost of 810. 
Docithe L. Le Blanc stated that at the time of the granting 
of the injunction order be bad on one of the lota in ques­
tion fifteen logs of the value of 818, which, while the 
injunction was in force, were removed by the plaintiff’s 
agents; that he had been prevented from cutting firewood 
and poles; that lie had bad to buy two cords of firewood 
at a cost of 82, aud also to buy some poles, for which he

1905.

LeBlakc.
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1905. paid SI ; and that he had sustained S21 damages. Amos 
Wood J. Le Blanc statisl that at the time of the granting of the 

Leblanc, injunction order he was having firewood for himself cut on 
one of the lots in question, and that by reason of the order 
he was compelled to purchase the firewood at an extra 
cost of 84.20; that he intended cutting five hundred poles 
during the winter for fencing-in a field for oats, but was 
prevented by the order from doing so, and that his profits 
from the oats would have been 820. He claimed S25 
damages.

Argument was heal’d January 17, 1905.

M, G. Teed, K.C., for the plaintiff :—

The motion is Isvsed upon several affidavits, each con­
stituting a separate claim. Many of them fail to shew a 
prima facie case of damage. In respect to them an older 
for assessment should not lie made. The damages claimed 
under them are remote and trivial. The rule is very clear 
that damages will only lie allowed that are proximate and 
natural, and that if they are remote, speculative and trivial, 
an inquiry will not be directed. See Smith v. Day (1).

IT. Pugdey, A.-G., and James Friel, in support of the 
motion :—

It is not a reason for refusing the assessment of a 
claim, that it is small. An inquiry having to be made, it 
should include all the claims. In the event of a claim 
turning out to be too trivial for assessment, costs can be 
given against the applicant.

1905. February 21. Barker, J.:—

The plaintiff does not deny’ that he is equally as liable 
under his undertaking given to the Court on obtaining the 
injunction order in the suit to the outside persons affected 
by the order as he is to the defendants themselves. As to a 
certain class of damage alleged to have been sustained by

(1) 21 Ch. D. 421. .
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the claimants he admits a liability, but as to some of the 
claimants he contends that the damages claimed by them 
are altogether too remote or too trivial, or both, and that 
as to these no older for assessment should tie made.

In Smith v. Day (1), Jessel, M.R., says that the Court 
has a discretion as to when and under what circumstances 
an order of this kind will be made. He adds: “Then 
again the Court must have regard to the amount of 
damage ; if it lie trifling or remote, the Court would not 
he justified in directing an inquiry as to damages, though 
the inquiry might not be so remote that an action would 
not lie.” Brett, L.J., in the same case, says that damages 
under an undertaking should lie assessed by the same rule 
as laid down in Hadley v. Haxemlale (2) in reference to 
contracts between parties, and that the measure of damage 
in such cases is the loss which is the natural consequence 
of the injunction under the circumstances of which the 
party obtaining the injunction had notice. See also 
Dr Matt oh v. Gibson (3) as to the allowance of profits lost 
by non-user of property in consequence of an injunction. 
It is true in the present case that as to some of the appli­
cants the damage sustained, according to their own estimate, 
is small and perhaps out of proportion to the costs incident 
to any proceeding for its assessment, but I cannot see, in a 
case like this, that such a consideration should necessarily 
relieve the plaintiff from a liability which he voluntarily 
assumed in his own interest, more especially where there 
must be an inquiry as to some of the claims. It must be 
remembered that the plaintiff, when he obtained this in­
junction, knew that he was imbarking in a somewhat 
speculative litigation; the title to the property was known 
to be in doubt, and unusual means were taken to stop by 
the injunction those very acts out of which many of these 
claims arise. It may turn out on investigation that the 
damages sought to be recovered are too remote, but at this 
stage of the inquiry I can see no special circumstances 
which should lead me to narrow its scope. I shall there-

1905.

LeBlanc. 
Barker, J.

(1) 21 Ch. D. 426. (2) 8 Ex. 841. (3) 7 Jur. (N. S.) 282.
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1!K)5. fore order tliis case to be set down at the regular sittings in 
Wood Dorchester to be held on the last Tuesday in May next, 

LkMlanc. for the purpose of assessing the damages in the case of the 
Barker, J. following claimants : Henry 8. Leblanc and Sylvang P. C.

Leblanc, 8350; Aimable Sonier and Amos Solder, 8125 ; 
Frank J. Landry, 810; Andrew Dupuis and Samuel A. 
Dupuis, 800; Charles Breau, 803; Henry George breau and 
Maurice George breau, 830; Jude Gaudet, 8350; and Henry 
Dupuis, 875. As to the other claims there will be no order.
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THE GAULT BROTHERS COMPANY, LIMITED v.
MORRELL.

Injunction — Arraignment for Itenefit of eretlitora— Prejudice of 
creditor — Varying injunction order—Title of canae in order.

When* an e.r parte injunction order restrained a trader, who hud 
obtained goods from tin- plaintiff! under an agreement that 
the property therein wan to remain in them, with lilierty to 
them to take possession, from, inter alia, making an assign­
ment for the general liencflt of his creditors, it was ordered 
to lie discharged in that respect.

It is not a ground for setting aside the service of an e.r parte 
injunction older that the order is not entitled in the cause, 
where the defendant has not been misled.

The defendants, J. Otty Morrell and J. Leishtnan 
Sutherland, in 1808 commenced carrying on a dry goods 
business in co-|iartnership at the City of St. John, under 
the firm name of Morrell and Sutherland. The plaintiffs 
agreed to supply them with goods under an agreement 
which, among other provisions, provided that all goods 
supplied by the plaintiff's should belong to them and 
remain their property until paid for, and that should the 
plaintiffs at any time consider that the defendants’ business 
was not being conducted in a proper way, or to the 
plaintiffs' satisfaction, or that the agreement was being in 
any way disregarded, the plaintiffs should be at full 
lilierty to take possession of the defendants’ stock, book 
debts and other assets, and dispose of the same without let 
or hindrance of the defendants, and that after payment in 
full of any amount then owing to plaintiffs, whether due or 
to become due, and any expenses incurred in the realiz­
ation of such assets, the lialance of the proceeds then 
remainiu • in plaintiffs’ hands should be banded to 
the defendants, together with any securities held by 
plaintiffs. The bill alleged that under and by virtue of 
this agreement the plaintiffs from time to time supplied 
goods to the defendants; that there was due the plaintiffs 
the sum of 9!),480.1(1, and that of the goods supplied by the

1905.
February 17.
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190.5.
Tiik Gavi.t 
Hum iikbs

Limitkd'

Moruki.i-

plaintiffs a quantity of uie value of $0,000, or thereabouts, 
remained on bend in defendants’ stock. It was also 
alleged that the defendants bail a total stock-in-trade of 
the value of about 815,000, and were possessed of other 
assets of the value of about $4,000 ; that they were in 
insolvent circumstances, and that their liabilities amounted 
to 820,000 and upwards. The plaintiff's notified the 
defendants that they were dissatisfied with the state and 
conduct of the business, and that it was their desire and 
intention to take possession of the stock-in-trade and other 
assets in the defendants’ possession. The defendants 
replied refusing possession. The bill alleged that the 
plaintiffs were apprehensive and believed that the defend­
ants intended to sell or assign their stock-in-trade and other 
assets, and they prayed for an injunction restraining them 
from selling, assigning, transferring or encumbering any of 
the goods, stock-in-trade, lunik debts or assets contained in 
the defendants’ store, and from making or executing any 
hill of sale or transfer thereof, and from stopping or in any 
way interfering with the plaintiffs taking possession there­
of ; that it might he declared that the plaintiff’s were 
entitled to the same, or to a lien thereon, and for a declara­
tion of the plaintiffs’ rights, and for a decree for specific 
performance by the defendants of the agreement. By an 
ex parte injunction order granted by Mr. Justice Barker 
on February 2, 1905, the defendants were restrained until 
February 21 from selling, assigning, transferring or 
encumbering, or removing any of the goods, stock-in-trade, 
lsink debts and assets contained in their store, and from 
making or executing any bill of sale, assignment or transfer 
thereof, and 'also from collecting any of the said book 
debts ; the plaintiffs to lie at lilierty, U]xm notice, to move 
to continue the injunction until the hearing. Motion was 
now made by the defendants, on notice, to dissolve or to 
vary the order, and also to set aside the service thereof. 
Affidavits by the defendants set up that previous to the 
commencement of the suit the defendants proposed to the 
plaintiffs’ agent that they should make an assignment for 
the benefit of all their creditors ; that this was assented to
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by him, and that arrangements for that purpose were 
made ; but that subsequently he withdrew his assent. The 
defendants denied that they had ever intended to make 
other than a general assignment for the benefit of all their 
creditor*, and stated that they were now desirous of mak­
ing such an assignment. The injunction order was not 
entitled in the cause.

February lti, 1905.

A. 0. Earle, K. C., and ,/. B. M. Baxter, in support of 
the motion :—

The bill and affidavits suppressed the fact that the 
defendant* desired to make a general assignment, and con- 
veyed the impression that they planned to give a bill of 
sale or to make a preferential disposition of their property. 
Hail this information been disclosed the injunction would 
have been made in terms so limited as not to prevent the 
defendants from making a general assignment. The 
plaintiff's’ rights, if any, under their agreement with the 
defendants would not be prejudiced by an assignment- 
See Thibaudeau v. Pau.1 (1), and Burland v. Moffatt (2). 
The service of the injunction should be set aside, neither 
the original nor copy served being entitled in the cause.

-1/. 0. Teed, K. C., contra

It is not altogether certain that an assignment would 
not have the effect of prejudicing the plaintiffs’ rights. 
The agreement gives us possibly nothing more than a right 
to seize instead of a legal or equitable title. This right might 
lie lost if the assets were taken over by an assignee. There 
was no suppression of material fact* on the application for 
the injunction. In our view the injunction should have 
lieen granted to prevent a general assignment, and our case 
for an injunction would have been strengthened if we had 
stated that defendants contemplated making such assign­
ment. The absence in the injunction order of title of the

(1) 26 O. R. 385. (2) 11 Can. 8. C. R. 76

1905.
Till: liM l.T 
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cause is waived by motion to dissolve or vary the order on 
grounds of substance.*

[Baxter :— The motion includes a motion to set aside 
the service of the older.]

[Barker, J.:— The defendants have not been misled by 
the defect. I think it is immaterial.]

Earle, K. C., in reply.

11(05. February 17. Barker, J. :—

It is objected that certain facts shewing that the 
defendants were desirous of assigning for the general bene­
fit of their creditors were not placed before me, and that if 
they had been the injunction would not have been granted, 
or would have been granted in a modified form. In view 
of the nature of the question involved in the suit, I cannot 
regard the failure to place me in possession of the informa­
tion us material. It would be a matter for argument 
whether an assignment might not defeat plaintiffs’ rights 
under their agreement, and therefore it would be proper 
that an injunction should be granted to prevent an assign­
ment until the parties could be beard on a motion either 
to dissolve or vary, or to continue the injunction. Had 
the information, which it is complained was withheld, 
been presented to me, I would have made the interim 
order in its present form. I do not see that I should 
restrain the defendants from making a general assignment. 
The rights of the plaintiffs will not be affected by it, as the 
assignee will take the assets subject to any equities that 
existed against them while in the hands of the defendants. 
There will lie an order varying the injunction so as to 
permit the defendants making an assignment for the 
general benefit of their creditors.

Reserve question of costs.

* In Berton v. Mayor, etc., of St. John, N, B. Eq. Css. 150, 
All exporte injunction order alwolute in its terms, hy omitting 
to state that it was to continue until further older, ss provided 
in form E of Chap. 40, 0. 8. 1876, was ordered to lie varied in 
that respect.—Kkp.
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PETERS V. THE AGRICULTURAL SOCIETY, 
DISTRICT NV 54.

1905.
March 9.

Agreement — Consideration — Public exhibition — Competition 
for medal — Competition instituted by manager of exhibi­
tion— Scope of duties.

Three proprietors of blends of tea exhibiting their teas at a 
public exhibition held by the defendant society allowed their 
teas to be judged by a committee appointed by the society, 
in competition for a gold medal offered by the society. Dur­
ing t he exhibition each of the competitors served the public 
gratuitously with samples of made tea, and tea was served 
by them to the committee in the same way that it was served 
to the public. The committee having awarded the medal to 
the plaintiff, a competitor :—

Held, that there was consideration for the offer, entitling the 
plaintiff to the medal.

Where the executive of the above society adopted a resolution 
to award medals to all displays of merit or excellence of 
goods on exhibition, the awards to be made by regularly ap­
pointed judges ; and the general manager of the exhibition, 
who was vice-president of the executive, and a member of a 
committee of three to appoint judges, thereupon arranged 
the above competition, and with a co-member of the com­
mittee to select judges, named the judges for the competi­
tion, it was held that the competition must be taken to have 
been instituted by the society.

The Agricultural Society, District No. 34, incorporated 
under The Agricultural Act, 1888, held at Fredericton 
from the 21 at to the 26th day of September, 1903, inclusive, 
a public exhibition of stock, products of the soil, and of 
arts and manufactures. The plaintiff, doing business under 
the name of Bail'd & Peters, hired floor space in the 
exhibition from the society, and placed on exhibition in a 
lx)oth a tea blended and owned by him, and known and 
labelled under a registered trade-mark as “ Vim Tea.” 
Teas advertised and known as “ Tea Rose Blend” and “Blue 
Ribtxm Tea,” belonging respectively to J. J. McUafligan, 
Limited, and The Blue Ribbon Tea Company, Limited, were 
shewn at the same exhibition. Each of the exhibitors 
made and drew tea on the premises and served it gratuit­
ously to the public. On September 24th a resolution was
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1905.

Peters

The Agri­
cultural

District 
No. 34.

adopted by the executive of the society to award medals 
to all displays of merit or excellence of goods on exhibi­
tion, the awards to be made by regularly appointed judges. 
Mr. F. 8. Hilyard, general superintendent of the exhibition, 
a member of the executive, and vice-president of the 
society, thereupon informed the agents in charge of the tea 
exhibits that judges would be appointed to award a prize 
for the beat tea, and for them to hold themselves in readi­
ness for the competition. The evidence of the plaintiffs 
agent was that Mr. Hilyard told him that the prize was to 
be a gold medal. A committee of three ladies was ap­
pointed by Mr. Hilyard and Mr. W. S. Hooper, a member 
of the executive and also its secretary, to judge the teas, 
and they, after tasting and testing the three teas on exhi­
bition, rendered an award in writing in favor of the 
plaintiff's tea. Tea was served to them by the com­
petitors in the same manner that it was served to 
the c. Mr. Hilyard and Mr. Hooper had power as
a committee to appoint judges, but their right to institute 
competitions was denied by the society. Mr. J. J. Mc- 
Oafligan, the owner of “ Tea Rose Blend,” subsequently to 
the award, advised the society that he had not placed his 
ten in competition, and he protested against a medal being 
awarded to the plaintiff. Default having been made by 
the society ill delivering a medal to the plaintiff, and the 
society having projsisi d to deliver a medal to each of the 
exhibitors, the plaintiff by his bill prayed that the society 
might be restrained from issuing or giving a medal to 
either of the other exhibitors, and from withholding the 
gold medal so awarded to him, and he asked for damages. 
At the bearing the bill was token pro confeimo against the 
defendants, J. J. McGnffignn, Limited, and The Blue Rihbon 
Tea Company, Limited. Motion was made by the defend­
ant society at the conclusion of the plaintiffs case, to 
dismiss the bill.

1905. March 8.

G. IF. A Urn, K.C. (R. IF. McLellan, with him), in sup­
port of the motion :—

6
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The evidence fails to connect the society with the 
competition. Mr. Hilyard has been shewn to have pos­
sessed no authority from it to institute the contest. The 
resolution of the executive passed on 24th September, 
under which he assumed to have the power, did not 
authorize it. Nor would he derive the power from his 
jiosition as a member of the committee to name judges.

[Barker, J.:—Would not the society lie bound by his 
act, where the plaintiff had no knowledge that it was not 
authorized by the executive ? ]

It is submitted that in the absence of authority in fact 
the society would not be bound. If he had authority in 
this matter he would have authority to institute any num- 
Ist of competitions involving the society in an enormous 
liability.

[Barker, J.:—The question is not one to be proved by 
extreme cases. Mr. Hilyard was vice-president, general 
superintendent and manager, and a member of the execu­
tive.]

Mr. Hilyard acted beyond the scope of his duties. 
Where a person deals with an agent he takes the risk that 
the agent is not exceeding his powers. Another officer had 
alone power to institute the contest.

[Barker, J.:—The plaintiff'had no knowledge of that.]
It is also submitted that the evidence fails to support 

the allegation in the bill that the competition was for a 
gold medal. Mr. Hilyard's evidence is conclusive that it 
was for a prize, and that it was left open what form it 
should take. A contract of such vagueness and uncertainty 
will not be enforced. Then the promise would be unen­
forceable for want of consideration. The plaintiff did no 
act, on the strength of the offer, benefiting the society, and 
suffered no loss, detriment or inconvenience from entering 
the contest. His tea was served to the judges in the same 
way that it was served to the public on the plaintiff’s invi­
tation. Whatever advantage was to lie derived from having 
it brought to their notice he got. It cannot therefore be

1905.
PETERS
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cultural 
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District 

No. 34.

VOL. III. n. b. e. R.-9.
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pretended that serving them with tea would form a con­
sideration for the promise.

L. A.Currey, K.C., and IT. A. Ewing, for the plain­
tiff, were not heard.

Barker, J. :—I think if a society of this kind offers 
to give a prize, and a member of the public acts upon it 
and takes steps to compete for it, it is hound. I do not 
think it is nudum pactum. I will not dismiss the bill.

Evidence was then given by the defendant society, 
upon the conclusion of which reference was made for the 
plaintiff to Carlill v. Carbolic Smoke Hall Co. (1) and 
Dunham v. St Croijc Soap Manufacturing Co. (2), upon 
the question of consideration. It was also submitted that 
the plaintiff was entitled to damages. The medal would 
have been valuable to him in placing the merit of his tea 
before the public.

Allen, K. C., for the defendant society:—

It is further contended by us, in addition to the argu­
ments made on the motion to dismiss the hill, that even 
were it shewn that the otter made by Mr. Hilyard was 
authorized by the society, it would lie in excess of the 
society's powers and could not bind it. The society is 
restricted to awarding prizes to exhibits grown or pro­
duced in the Maritime Provinces. The objects of the society 
do not extend to giving encouragement to the products of 
foreign countries or to advertising the wares of rival mer­
chants. If the plaintiff is entitled to a decree, it should 
be without damages. The evidence as to loss sustained by 
the plaintiff in withholding the medal from him was not 
definite and precise enough to furnish a basis for an assess­
ment of damages.

The Court having intimated that there should be a 
decree for the plaintiff, inquired whether a settlement could

(1) | inn11 Q. B. 25(1. (2) 84 N. B. 243.
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not be made which would relieve the society of the full 1905.
effect of a decree against them.

Tin: AOHI-
Currey, K. C., said that the society, being formed for SEJJj™*1 

the advancement of public objects, the plaintiff was willing "n"”" 
to waive any claim he might have for damages, and would 
bear such a proportion of the taxed costs against the society 
as the Court would name.

1905. March 9.

Barker, J. Declare the plaintiff is entitled to receive 
from the defendant society the medal awarded to the suc­
cessful competitor in the competition mentioned in the 
plaintiff-s bill. It is ordered that the defendant society do 
deliver such medal to the plaintiff on demand, and that 
they be perpetually restrained from delivering or permit­
ting to be delivered to the defendants, J. J. McGaffigan,
Limited, and The Blue Ribbon Tea Company, Limited, as 
competitors in such competition, a duplicate of such medal 
or any other prize or award ; that the plaintiffs costs as 
between party and party be taxed by the Clerk, and that 
the defendant society pay to the plaintiff two-thirds of such 
taxed costs, the amount to be certified by the Clerk. There 
will be no further order as to costs or damages.
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1!>05.
March tt.

DUOUAY v. LANTEIGNE.

Deed — Maintenance bond — Lien.

Where land was conveyed in consideration of a bond by the 
grantee to maintain the grantor and his wife for life, but 
the consideration was not expressed in the deed, a decree was 
made charging the land with a lien for the performance of 
the agreement in the bond.

Bill for a declaration of lien upon land conveyed by 
the plaintiff to the defendant, and to enforce the name. 
The facta are fully stated in the judgment of the Court.

Argument was heard January 18, 1905.

L. A. Currey, K.C., and J. P. Byrne, for the defend­
ant :—

The bill should be dismissed. There has been no breach 
of the agreement contained in the Iwnd. If there had been 
it would give rise to an action for damages, and not to the 
relief sought here, since the bond is not incorporated in 
the deed.

if. 0. Teed, K.C., for the plaintiffs:—

The plaintiffs are entitled to a decree charging the 
land with a lien in their favor, even if they have failed in 
establishing a breach of the agreement under which the 
land was conveyed to the defendant.

[Barker, J.:—Is the support here to be given on the 
property conveyed I If so, the plaintiffs would clearly be 
entitled to a lien. In Cunningham v. Moore (1), the sup­
port covenanted to be given was upon the land con­
veyed. The bond here is silent in that respect.]

A lien should lw declared on the same principle that a 
vendor is entitled to a lien for un])aid purchase money or

(I) 1 N. B. Eq. 116.
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where the consideration for the conveyance fails. It is 
plain that maintenance here was intended to be on the land 
conveyed. The plaintiffs continued to reside there after 
the defendant removed to it, and their dealings with each 
other thereafter was upon the footing that that was the 
arrangement between them.

1905. March21. Barker, J.:—

On November 12th, 1902, the plaintiff Pierre B. 
Duguay by deed poll conveyed to the defendant 
all his interest in a lot of land in the County of 
(lloucester for an expressed consideration of $500. On the 
same day, and as a part of the same transaction, the 
plaintiff conveyed some furniture, farming implements and 
other chattels to the defendant by a bill of sale which con­
tains the following clause : “ The conditions of the above
sale are that the said Solomon Lanteigne (defendant ) besides 
the amount of $50 of lawful money of the Dominion of 
Canada, which he has paid to me, and for which I acknow­
ledge receipt, is obliged in accordance of a bond which he 
has signed to-day of the amount of $500, to furnish me, 
the said Pierre B. Duguay and my lawful wife during our 
natural lives with lodging, clothing, victuals, fuels, and all 
the necessaries of life, &c." This instrument is signed by 
both Duguay and Lanteigne. The bond referred to in the 
hill of sale is for $5(X), and contains the following condi­
tion : “ The condition of this obligation is such that if the 
above bonded Solomon Ismteigne do, or cause to be, 
furnished the said Pierre B. I higuay and bis wife, during 
their natural life, with good and sufficient hslging, fuels, 
victuals and clothing and care according and suitable to 
their condition then this obligation to be null and void."

The bill alleges, ami the evidence shews, that the 
defendant on obtaining the conveyance of this land went 
into isjasession of it and has been living there ever since 
with his wife and family. The plaintiffs also lived with 
them until sometime in April, 1903, when they left, as they 
say, on account of cruel treatment received from the 
defendant, who also, as they allege, threatened them with

1905.
Duguat

Lanteigne.
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1905 bodily injury. They now file this bill by which they claim 
Dvouav to have a lien on the land for the mip|K>rt and maintenance 

Lawtkiqnk. secured to them by the bond, and that such lien should be 
Barker. J. enforced so as to realize to them the value of such support 

which the defendant 1ms not furnished them since they 
went away. All parties agree that whatever may appear 
to the contrary on the face of the conveyance, the real and 
only consideration for it was the support to be furnished 
the plaintiffs as secured by the defendant’s bond. That 
being so, I think the plaintiti has a lien, as he contends, 
upon the same principle as governs cases of unpaid purchase 
money. I acted upon that doctrine in Cunningham v. 
Moure (1), where the cases on the subject are collected. 
In Ward v. Wilbur (2), the principle was extended in its 
application. The defendant does not dispute this fact, but 
his defence is simply that up to the time the plaintiHs left 
the premises, they had lieen fully provided with all they 
were entitled to under the arrangement, and that they had 
no sufficient reason for leaving as they did. As to the sup­
port furnished up to April when they left the defendant’s 
house, the plaintiff's make no complaint. So the sole ques- 
tion of fact in dispute really is this : were the plaintiffs 
justified in leaving the defendant's house and premises 
where both parties seem to agree the maintenance was to 
be furnished. Two incidents are relied on as a justification 
for the plaintiffs going away. The first one occurred some 
time in January, 1903, a little over two months after the 
arrangement for living together had been made. Accord­
ing to the plaintiffs’ account, the defendant on the occasion 
referred to, came home one evening under the influence of 
liquor; and after the plaintiff" and his wife had gone to lied, 
the defendant went to their room with a bottle containing 
liquor of some kind and invited the plaintiff" to have a 
drink. This he declined, but it is not very clear whether 
he did so because the time and place were not altogether 
opportune for the purpose, or because he had at an earlier 
part of the evening accepted the defendant’s hospitality at 
least on two occasions. I have no doubt that the defend-

(1) 1 N. B. Eq. 110. (2) 25 A. K. 202.
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nut was somewhat hilarious on the evening referred to. I 
have no doubt that lie was unusually talkative, and I think 
it not improbable that his gesticulations were more vehe­
ment than the occasion really called for. The defendant 
himself denies that he went to the room at all, but, accept­
ing the plaintiffs' account as accurate, there is nothing like 
violence or cruelty suggested by it. However indefensible 
tl»‘ defendant’s action may have been, it was not repeated. 
Nothing much was said ulwiut it at the time, or appears to 
have been thought about it afterward. The defendant, on 
the following morning, expressed his regret at his unbe­
coming conduct, so the plaintiff says, and nothing more was 
heard of it until this trial. All parties lived together until 
the following April without any differences ; and when the 
final separation took place, this was not assigned as a 
reason. In April, 1903, the female plaintiff, while her 
huslmnd was away, and without his knowledge, left the 
defendant’s home and went to her son’s house not far away, 
where she has been living since. The reason she assigned 
was a somewhat childish discussion between her and the 
defendant as to who was “ boss ’’ of the place. The differ­
ence seems to have arisen out of some trivial matter about 
some rope, the particulars of which are not very clear. I 
agree in thinking that the defendant had charge and con­
trol of the house and property. I have only the defendant's 
account of this incident. He denies that he ordered her to 
leave the place, and says she went without any cause at all- 
When her husband returned some days afterwards he 
found his wife at her son’s, and he joined her there and 
they never returned. Those who denude themselves of 
their property, os these plaintiffs have done, in order to 
secure in return support for themselves for the remainder 
of their lives, should remember that they are ]>arting with 
all right of control anil management, and that ns inmates of 
another’s family they are likely to encounter much that is 
not to their liking. But this does not necessarily justify 
their leaving the home provided for them, and where they 
have themselves stipulated their support is to be furnished 
them. It is equally important that the conduct of those

1905.

IjANTKIUNK.

Hnrkcr, J.
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1905. who acquire property under an arrangement of this kind 
Ihjouay should be closely watched, because they have strong temp- 

i.antr'ionk. tations to treat the beneficiaries with little consideration, 
Barker, J. and they have the power of doing so without themselves 

incurring additional liability. In this present case there is 
no complaint that up to April, when the plaintiffs went 
away, the defendant did not do nil that he had agreed to 
do. The evidence shews that during that period, beside 
board and lodging, the defendant in the payment of 
plaintiff's debts and in furnishing him with clothing and 
necessaries, expended about $50. The 9th and 10th sec­
tions of the bill set out the grounds upon which the 
plaintiff relied as a justification for leaving .the premises 
and seeking elsewhere support and maintenance at the 
defendant’s expense. The 9th section alleges that since the 
date of the bond the defendant “has refused to give lodging 
and fuel, and to furnish victuals and clothing to the 
plaintiff and his wife, and in consequence thereof the 
plaintiff and his wife are not now living on the premises 
aforesaid, and are supporting, lodging, boarding and main­
taining themselves as best they can, and without any 
assistance or help from the defendant, who refuses such 
lodging, fuel, victuals and clothing to the plaintiff and his 
wife.” The 10th section alleges that the defendant had been 
cruel to the plaintiffs, and at different times threatened 
them with bodily injury, making it impossible, with safety, 
to live with him. Each of these plaintiffs made an affidavit 
of the truth of these allegations to support an application 
for an ex parte injunction at the commencement of this 
suit, and upon them Mr. Justice Landry did grant an order 
restraining the defendant from transferring this property. 
These are the only reasons put forth by the plaintiffs in 
their bill for their leaving the defendant’s house. The 
evidence of the plaintiff', Peter Duguay, does not, I think, 
sustain either of them, while that of the defendant (and there 
are only these two witnesses in the case), is clear, not only 
as to the sufficiency of the maintenance up to the time the 
plaintiff went away in April, but also as to his willingness 
and ability to furnish it after that time in accordance with
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liis contract. The plaintiffs have not, in my view, shewn 
themselves entitled to the relief which was the principal 
object of this suit. They are entitled, however, I think, to 
a declaratory decree that the plaintiff, Peter Duguay, has a 
lien on the land for their support. The true consideration 
for the conveyance does not appeur on its face, and I think 
they are entitled to a decree declaring the true considera­
tion and the lien which, when registered, would lie a notice 
to suliseipient purchasers. As the existence of the lien was 
not the real matter in contest, I cannot give the plaintiff 
costs.

There will be a decree declaring that as between the 
plaintiff and the defendant, and all peinons claiming under 
him, the plaintif!', Peter Duguay, is entitled to a lien on 
the land for the support uud maintenance of himself and 
wife so long as they live.

Kacli party will pay his own coats.

1905.

I-ASTKIONE. 

Barker. J.

TOL. 111. H. B. E. ____la
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1905.__ THE CARLBTON WOOLLEN COMPANY, LIMITED v.
Mayjc. THE TOWN OF WOODSTOCK.

Municipal by-law —Exemption to company —Taxation — I)Ut­
eri in i nut ion — Ultra rires — Hill — Pleading —J udieial notice 
of statute.

By Act, the council of the town of Woodstock are empowered 
from time to time, at their discretion, to give encouragement 
to manufacturing enterprises within the town by exempting 
the property thereof from taxation for a period <>f not more 
tban i«-n years

Held, that a by-law of the council exempting any company estab­
lishing a woollen mill in the town from taxation for a period 
of ten years was ultra rires, being a discrimination in favor 
of a company as against private |>ersonB engaged in the same 
business.

A hill alleging that plaintiffs were entitled to exemption from 
taxation under a by-law passed by the defendants, held 
sufficient on demurrer without alleging that the by-law was 
authorized by statute.

Demurrer to bill. The facta and grounds of demurrer 
sufficiently appear in the judgment of the Court.

Argument waa heard April 18,1905.

1). McLeod Vince, in support of the demurrer:—

The exemption provided for in the council’s resolution 
was to a company establishing a woollen mill. A company 
purchasing the property of a company that had established 
a woollen mill under the by-law would not be entitled to 
the exemption. The exemption could only be by sanction 
of legislative enactment. If there is statutory authority it 
should have l>een set out in the bill.

[Barker, J. :—Surely I may take judicial notice of 
the Act ?]

In Bailey v. Birkenhead Railway Co. (1), counsel pro­
posed to read clauses in the Act not set out in the bill,

(I) 12 Beav. 433, 443.
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alleging that in the Act it was enacted that it should “ be 
a |inhlic Act. and should be judicially taken notice of as 
such." The Master of the Rolls said : “ It has been deter­
mined that you cannot go out of the record, and that even 
if the Act were inaccurately stated in the bill, you must 
take it upon demurrer as it is stated." See also Nabob of 
the Carnatic v. Kant India Co. (1) and Kiel y v. Kiely (2).

[Barker, J.:—Are you not estopped from setting up 
that you had no authority to pass the resolution f]

It is submitted that it is part of the plaintiffs' case to 
shew that we had authority.

K. H. Carvell, contra :—

The resolution is applicable to a company succeeding 
to the interests of the original company. The exemption 
is not limited to the original company while it continues 
under a specified name or management. The exemption 
was for ten years to the mill, if it should so long exist, no 
matter what changes might be made in its ownership. The 
exemption was not for the benefit of the [larticular persons 
establishing the mill, but to induce its establishment and 
to favor it for a period of time, in order that it might be 
kept up. On the other hand, if we are ts be regarded as 
a new company, we are entitled to exemption. The plain­
tiffs are estopped from urging that there was no authority 
of law for their resolution.

[Barker, J. :—That contention would not apply to the 
case of a municipal corporation, however true it might be 
of a private laxly.]

The Court will take judicial notice of the Act author­
izing the exemption. See Act 36 Viet. c. 81, s. 1.

1905. May 16. Barker, J.:—

The object of this suit is to restrain the defendants 
from proceeding to sell certain property of the plaintiffs

1905.
C’ARI.KTON 
WOO! LEM
Com van v, 
Limitkd

Tow n or 
Woodstock.

(1) 1 Vet». Jr. 871, 3U3. (2) 3 A. R. 438.
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seized by a town marshal under an execution for taxes 
assessed on the plaintiffs’ milling property in Woodstock. 
It appears that the plaintiffs were taxed on this pro­
perty in the sum of #35.10 for the year 1902, #40.50 
for the year 1903, and #33 for the year 1904, and that 
the execution in Question was issued to enforce pay­
ment of the first two sums. The plaintiffs claim to tie 
exempt from taxation hy virtue of a resolution of the 
Town Council, passed June 22, 1392, under the authority 
of Act 30 Viet., c. 31, s. 1. This section, which relates 
to the method of assessment within the town, con­
tains the following proviso : “ Provided also, that the 
Council may from time to time, at their discretion, 
give encouragement to manufacturing enterprises within 
said town hy exempting the property thereof from tax­
ation for a period of not more than ten years by a resolu­
tion declaring such exemption.” This authority does not 
seem to have been acted upon until the resolution which I 
have mentioned was passed in 1892. That resolution is as 
follows : “That any company establishing a woollen mill 
in the Town of Woodstock be exempted from taxation for 
a period of ten years." The bill alleges that the plaintiffs 
established a woollen mill in the town in the year 1899, 
and that they have operated it ever since, employing from 
twenty to twenty-five [lersons. It also apjxiars by the bill 
that in the year 1893 a company known as the “Woodstock 
Woollen Mills Company, Limited," established a woollen 
mill business on the site now owned by the plaintiffs, and 
continued its business until July, 1899. Its property was 
then sold at sheriff's side, and eventually came into the 
hands of the present plaintiffs, who made some additions 
to it, and they allege that they then in this way established 
their business. One of the grounds of demurrer is that 
these allegations do not shew that the plaintiffs established 
a business, so as to bring them within the terms of the 
resolution. That is a Question upon which I do not feel 
called upon to express an opinion at this stage of the case.*

* See Poison v. Tuan of tlaan Sound, 31 O. It. 6.—ItBI*.
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190.!>.It can better be disposed of at the hearing, when the evi­
dence will shew precisely what took place. The principal Uakikton

ground of demurrer relied upon and argued by the defend- uompaxv,
. i-A « it ; Lome»ants Counsel was that the bill dews not allege that the Town ...

A T..U \ ...
Council were authorized by law to exempt from taxation; Woownw. 
or, in other words, to pass the resolution which they did, Barter. J. 
and that for want of such allegation I could not look at 
the Act I have mentioned. Two cases were cited in support 
of this contention : Bailey v. Birkenhead Kailway Co. (\), 
and Nabob of the Carnatic v. Eaet I ndia Co. (2). These two 
cases, however, arose under private Acts of Parliament. It 
is true that they both contained provisions by which they 
were to be regarded as public statutes, but that seems to 
have reference merely to the mode of proof : Beaumont 
v. Mountain (3); Woodward v. Cotton (4). All Acta of the 
Legislature of this Province arc by law deemed to be pub­
lic Acts of which Judges are required to take judicial 
notice without their living specially pleaded. See Con 
Stat., lllOli, c. 1, s. (i. In Hendenmn v. Mayor, <(•«., of St.
John (5), on a motion in arrest of judgment, the Court 
held that the Act continuing the charter of the city was a 
matter of public law of which Courts were iwiund to take 
notice. Hex v. Mayor, <(r., of St. John (ti) is to the same 
effect. So also is Kiely v. Kiely (7), cited by Mr. Vince 
on the argument.

As to the Questions nvgued lx-fore me on the hearing 
of this demurrer, I should have been prepared to give 
judgment in the plaintiffs' favor. There is, however, a 
point involved in the case which, though not mentioned by 
Counsel, I think I should mention, liecause if 1 am correct 
in my view, it is fatal to the plaintiffs’ claim. Ordinarily 
1 should not think it within my province, or at all events 
necessarily a part of my duty to do more than dispose of 
the Questions which Counsel suggest and argue. But as the 
Supreme Court of Canada has recently decided in Miller

(1) 12 Baev. 443.
(2) 1 Vex Jr. 383.
(3) 10 Ring. 404.

(7) 8 A. R. 438,

(41 1 C. M. A R. 44. 
(5) 1 Pug. 187.
(fl) ('hip. MHS. 166.
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1005. v. Robert non ( 1 ), which was an appeal per mltum from this
catu.KTiin Court, that a decree would he reversed, and the plaintiff's 
Company, hill cliHiniRsea, upon ft ground not suggested in the C ourt 
Tows of I think it better in the present case to express my

Woodstock, opinion, though I do no without having heard the matter 
Barker, J. argued. If I am wrong I can la- set right on appeal, and 

if I am right the parties may be saved some expense.
I think this resolution was not warranted by the Act, 

as it unfairly discriminates between companies establishing 
woollen mills and private individuals engaging in the same 
business, giving the exemption to the one and not to the 
other. The principle upon which municipal aid to manu­
facturing enterprises, either directly by way of bonus or 
indirectly by way of exemption from taxation, is justified, 
is that the municipal taxpayers as a whole will be benefited 
by the establishment of an industry which, in its prosecu­
tion, will involve a large expenditure of capital and a large 
employment of labor. These and similar considerations 
have moved legislative bodies, from time to time, to impose 
upon the general body of the taxpayers the burthen of 
contributing to the town's revenues the amount of the 
bonus or the exempted tax. The theory of nil municipal 
taxation is that it shall be imposed equally and uniformly, 
and it follows, therefore, that those who claim exemption 
must accept the onus of shewing clearly that they are en­
titled to it. " The exemption should lie denied to exist unless 
it is so clearly granted as to be free from fair doubt. Such 
statutes will be construed most strongly against those claim­
ing the exception : ” Dillon (2). See also Rex v. Barnby 
Dun (3). In Jonas v. Gilbert (4), it was held that the city 
of St. John, under a statutory authority to fix by by-law 
a license fee for persons using any trade or occupation, etc., 
had no power to discriminate between residents and non­
residents, making one class pay a fee of $40 and the other 
one-half that sum. Ritchie, C. J., says : “ The legislature 
never could, I think, have intended that the corporation of

(1) 85 Can. 8. C. H. 80. (8) 2 A. * E. 651
(2) Mun. Corp., 4th «*1., a. 776. (4) 5 Can. S. C. H. 356.
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St. John should have the arbitrary power of burthening 
one man, or one class of men, in favor of another, whereby 
the one might possibly be enabled to carry on a prosperous 
business at the expense of the other, but must have con­
templated that the burthen should lie fairly and impar­
tial!)' borne. . . , Uniformity and impartiality in the 
imposition of taxes may in many cases be very difficult ; 
still, in construing Acts of Parliament imposing burthens 
of this description, I think we must assume, in the absence 
of any provision clearly indicating the contrary, that the 
legislature intended the Act to lie construed on the princi­
ple of uniformity and impartiality; and in this case I think 
it never could have been the intention of the legislature, 
not only to discourage the transaction of business in the 
city of St John, but to do injustice to those seeking to do 
business there, by granting to any one jierson or class 
pecuniary advantages over other persons or classes in the 
same line of business; in other words, to restrain the right 
of any particular individual or class to do business in the 
city by enabling the corporation to favor, by the imposi­
tion of a license tax, one individual or class at the expense 
of other individuals or classes transacting the same busi­
ness, thereby enabling certain individuals or classes to do 
business on more favourable terms in the one case than the 
other."

In Pirie, and The Corporation of Dundas (1), a case 
very similar in its facts to the present one, Wilson, J., says : 
" No council has power to give any person an exclusive 
right of exercising within the municipality any trade or 
calling, or to impose a special tax on any person exercising 
the same, unless authorized or required by statute so to do ; 
and that taxes, when no other express provision has been 
made in this respect, must be, levied equally upon the whole 
ratable property of the municipality, according to the 
assessed value, and not upon any one or more kinds of 
property in particular or in different proportions." The 
provision in the statute there under consideration was as

1905.
Cari.eton
Woollen
Company,
Limited

Town ok 
Woodstock.

Barker. J.

(1) 29 V. C, (j. B. 401.
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1905.
( ‘ A Kl JETON 
WOOLI.KN 
C'OMI'ANY,
Limiti d

Town or 
Woodhtotk.

[VOL.

follows : * Every municipality shall have the power of 
exempting from taxation for any period not longer than 
five years, manufacturers of woollens, cottons, glass, paper, 
and such other commodities of the like nature." The by­
law providing for the exemption had reference solely to 
new enterprises and not to those already established, and it 
was mainly upon that ground that its validity was ques­
tioned. Wilson, J., says: “The by-law, however, provides 
that every person, firm or corporation who shall thereafter 
commence and proceed to carry on any new manufacture 
of the nature contemplated by the statute, shall be exempt, 
etc. It apjH-ars to me this is clearly bad, ns it is giving a 
lienetit to new businesses over prior-established businesses 
of the same kind. I do not think it would be against the 
statute to provide that all cotton manufacturers should be 
exempt from taxation, because it places nil persons of the 
same line of business on the same footing, without giving 
any advantages or privileges to one or more of that trade 
over the others. Nor do I think it would lx- Imd Is'cause 
it gave cotton manufacturers some advantage over woollen 
or other manufacturers, for the statute did not intend that 
every kind of manufacture should tie exempted or that 
none of them should, but that all or any of them should 
be exempted as the Council should deem advisable, as there 
might be special reasons which might induce them to culti­
vate and encourage one or more branches of trade that did 
not apply to other branches. But in no ease is A. of the cotton 
or any other particular trade, to get a lienetit which B. of 
the same trade is not to get also. Eor this is a monojioly of 
the worst description, and it cannot lie necessary either for 
the proper stimulus of the trade, though it may stimulate 
A. very wonderfully in that trade, but then only at the 
expense of B."

In Reg. v. 1‘ipe. (1), a by-law which discriminated 
against residents of the town as to use of waggons unless 
the tires were of a spccifiisl width, was held bail.

In Re Nash mid McCracken (2), a by-law which pro­
hibited the keeping of a slaughter house within the city

(1) 1 O. It. 43. (2) 33 U. V. tj. B. 181.
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nf Hamilton without tile special resolution of the Council, 
was held bad because it permitted favoritism and might 
!«■ exercised in restraint of trade or used to grant a 
mi " ; and all persons were not placed, or might not be 
placed, on the same footing who followed or desired to 
follow the same trade.

In Reg. v. Johnutnn (1), a by-law providing that no 
persons other than the three chimney inspectors appointed 
by the Council should sweep s for gain, was held
liai I as living in restraint of trade. See also Reg. v. FI or// (2); 
I'm/ileii' Milling Co. v. Men font (3); /fossé v. AV i nburgli 
I'nr/in •ntiun (4); Municipal Corporation of Toronto v. 
Virgo (5).

The provision under consideration in this case, which 
seems to have ls‘en smuggled into a section with the gen­
eral object of which it has no immediate connection, is 
somewhat clumsily worded. It appears, however, plain 
that the Town Council were in the exercise of the power 
ciinfernal upon them, in some way to exercise a discretion, 
and that the object of the provision was to give encourage­
ment to manufacturing enterprises of. a certain kind in the 
town of Woodstock hy exempting their property from tax­
ation for ten years, hy which I understand the pniperty 
owned and usial in carrying on the |uirticular manufactory. 
It cannot lie said that the discretion to lie exercised has 
any reference to the manufacturer so as to extend the 
exi in to one and withhold it from another in the same 
business. That is not in my view the true construction. 
It would I si at variance with the principles I have s|s>ken 
of and place in the hands of the Council the power of 
creating a monopoly—precisely the objection which was 
considered fatal in Re Xa*h anil McCracken, alsive cited. 
Neither is that the construction placed upon the clause hy 
the Town Council, Isxniusc no such discretion has ever been 
exercised as to the plaintiffs or any one else. The dis-

(1) 88 U. C. Q. H. Ml). <8| 10 O. It. 418.
12) 17 O. It. 715. (4) |1805| A. 0. 21.

(5) 11HMI| A.C. 88

1905.
t'Altl.KTIIS 
WdOIXKN 
1IIHCANV. 
I.imitkii

Tows ne WOOIWTOCK.
Ilnrkor. J.

41

1

09
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1006. cretion to be exercised is as to the particular kind of enter- 
cari.kton prise which the Council might consider most useful to the
WOOt.MCN 1 . ,
Com I-A NT. town to IohUt; and it is, I think, in that view that the 
Town on standing offer embodied in the resolution has been made.

Woodstock. Having exercised their discretion for the present, at all 
lurker, J. events, in favor of the manufacture of woollen goods, how 

can they restrict the privilege to companies and exclude 
private individuals ? Such a discrimination is, in my 
opinion, entirely opposed to principle ns well ns the cases 
to which 1 have referred. Why should the individual 
manufacturer be thus handicapped in carrying on his busi­
ness because his trade competitor happens to be a com­
pany' The benefit to the town, the benefit to the other 
taxpayers who have to bear the burthen of the exempted 
tax, is ns great in the one case as the other. Not only is 
the individual compelled to pay his own taxes, hut he is 
compelled to contribute his share of the taxes for which 
the property of his rival in business would have been 
assessed except for the exemption. The probable result of 
such n discrimination would lie to cripple the individual 
enterprise and leave the company with a monopoly of that 
|iarticular business in the town. 1 think the resolution ns 
passed is not warranted by the Act, and that the town 
should not be restrained from collecting the taxes.

The demurrer will lie allowed with costs of demurrer 
and of the suit.
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JOHNSTON v. HAZEN.

h'rifle nee—Marriage rey inter—Legitimacy — Pedigree— Declara­
tion* by deceased parent and by member* of family ante 
litem motam.

A. was married at St. Paul's Church, Halifax, In 1801). In the 
entry of the marriage in the church's marriage register his 
name appears with the addition “ liatr”—* contraction for 
bachelor. There was nothing to shew by whom the entry 
of the addition was made, or that it was made in pursuance 
of a duty prescribed by statute*

Held, that the register, while admissible in proof of the mar­
riage. could not be received as evidence that A. had previ­
ously not been married,

To prove that C. was the legitimate son of A. by an alleged 
previous marriage, it was shewn that he resided for two or 
three years at A.'s home previous to departing to learn a 
trade, and also at a subsequent time for a few months; that 
he addressed him as “ father," was treatwl as a member of 
the family, was recognized and treated by A.'s wife as his 
soil, and by children by her as their brother; that after 
removal to the United States he wrote letters to A., in one 
of which he informed him of his(C.’s) marriage; and that 
in an oral declaration by A. in the hearing of a witness, who 
was a neighlsmr of the family, he referred to the Christian 
name of hie former wife, and to her |>ersonal appearance

llelil, that C.’s legitimacy had been proved.
(parce, whether declarations in letters written ante litem 

motam, between D., a son of A., and (»., a son of C., in 
which I). recognized C.’s relationship to him, were admissi­
ble in D.'s Ilf et line : but,

Semble, that where prima facie evidence of C.’s legitimacy had 
been given, declarations in U.'s letters, he being dead, were 
admissible.

Bill for the administration of the estate of Margaret 
A. Hozen, dewed. The facta fully appear in the judg­
ment of the Court.

Argument waa heard May 11, 1905.

•A U. Artnntrong, K. C., and If. B. NayUrr (of the 
Wisconsin bar), for the next of kin of Charles tieorge
Anderson :—

2905.

A uyunt ir>.
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HM)5. There is no contradiction of tin* evidence that Charles
Johnston (Ieorge Anderson lived with and was treated by Colonel

Haxkn. AiulerMon as a son, and that lie was ho regarded and spoken 
of hy Colonel Anderson's second wife and the children by 
the second marriage. Me addressed Colonel Anderson a* 
Iiis father; he resided in the home until he was old enough 
to lie apprenticed at a trade, and lie is shewn to have sub­
sequently returned to the home and to have resided there 
for a few months. Afterwards, when living in the States, 
lie wrote frequently to Colonel Anderson, and in one of the 
letters informed him of his marriage. loiter David Ander­
son obtained Charles’address from his father and wrote in­
quiring of him. Mrs. luttas evidence was very clear that 
lie was considered by her ami the other children of the 
second marriage as their half-brother. Colonel Anderson’s 
admissions to Miss Carman prove that he was previously 
married. In lierkeley Peerage Case (l) it is said by Dud 
Mansfield that if the father is proved to have brought up 
a child as his legitimate son, it is sufficient evidence of 
legitimacy, and indeed to a daily assertion that
the son is legitimate. It is not necessary that a witness 
who deposes to declarations on the subject of pedigree 
should lie a member of the family: AW.r v. Hoilgnon (2). 
What is required is that they should Is» made by a member 
of the family and ante litem mot am. They may 1m» in the 
form of oral statements and in family correspondence. 
Letters from David to (ieorge II. Anderson, a son of 
Charles, written before any controversy as to legitimacy 
had arisen, indicate that there was no question in David’s 
mind that Charles was his half-brother. Evidence of 
general reputation in a family is admissible in questions of 
pedigree: Haine* v. Guthrie (3); and such evidence has 
been to prove marriage : Shah ten v. Patrick ( 4).
In lierkeley Peerage Case (I), Lord Mansfield says: “In 
matters of pedigree, it being impossible to prove by living 
witnesses the relationships of past generations, the déclara-

(1) 4 Camp. 401. 
|2) 15 W. It. 001).

(8) 18 <j. It. 1). 818. 
,t, 1 sxx. à TV. I7U

8541

00



NEW HUrX.NWICK EQUITY REPORTS. I4!lIII]

tiens nf di-ccased memliers of the family are admitted ; 
but here, as the reputation must proceed on particular facts, 
such as marriages, births, and the like, from the necessity 
nf the thing, the hearsay of the family as to these |uii'ticu- 
lar facts is not excluded, (lencral rights are naturally 
talked of in the neighbourhood, and family transactions 
among the relations of the parties. Therefore what is 
thus ilrop|>ed in conversation upon such subjects may lie 
presumed to be true." At this length of time it would be 
unreasonable to insist u|sin proof of Colonel Anderson's 
first marriage by production of the record of it. As well 
might proof lie asked of publication of banns, or of the 
fact of a grant of a license. No one cun say where such 
evidence could be found. To have sought it out would 
prulstbly have Is'en a fruitless task, pursued at an expense 
we could not reasonably lie expected to incur. The des­
cription of Colonel Anderson as Istehelor in the registry of 
his marriage at Halifax in 1 Mill, and in the indorsement on 
the bind, does not disprove a previous marriage. To do so 
it would have to lie shown that it was made by the direc­
tion or knowledge of Colonel Anderson, or that whoever 
entered it did it under prescription of statute. Sec 
llunllrjl v. Ihomenn (I); Rejt v. C<n/)/iiim (2). In the 
latter ease it was held that where a parish register of 
Isiptisms stated that the person laiptized was bom on a 
particular day, it was not evidence of the date of his birth.* 
Official registers arc admissible in proof of the facts 
recorded, when (1) the Issik is rei|uired by law to be kept 
fur public information nr reference ; and (2) the entry has 
Ins'll made promptly and by the proper officer. The 
principle upon which entries in a register are received 
depends on the ‘ " s duty of the person who keeps the 
register to make such entries after satisfying himself of

* In In re Uundrirh 111*041 P. 1RS, a certified copy of an entry 
in a ns inter of liirtlis, made pursuant to the «teinte II A 7 Will. 
4. c, HU. was held to !«• evidence not merely of lhe fact of liirtli 
I «'fore the date of registration, lint of the actual date of birth.
Hue.

11*05.
Johnston

(!) 16 Q. B. INI. |2) 4 C. & P. 20.

5
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1905. their truth; it is not that the writer makes them contem- 
JoHNimis pimumrnsly, or of liis own knowledge, for no person in a 

Hazks private capacity can make sticli entries. There must be a 
duty to keep the register for the benefit or information of 
the public: Phifmon (1). At page ,'il7 the same writer 
says : " It is doubtful how far a register can lie received 
to prove incidental particulars concerning the main trans­
action, even where these are required by law to be included 
in the entry. If such particulars arc necessarily within 
the knowledge of the registering officer they will doubtless 
be admissible ; otherwise they seem to be evidence only 
when expressly made so by statute." It has not been 
shewn that the marriage registry was required by law to 
lie kept, or by whom the entries in it were made. Were it 
even proved that the description of Colonel Anderson as 
bachelor was authorized by him, it would not have any 
significance, for a widower might very aptly so describe 
himself.

,/. Hoy Camp!it'll, for the plaintiffs:—

Charles George Anderson cannot be said to have lieen 
dealt with by bis father as a legitimate son. He seems 
only to have been at the home for three 'or four months, and 
then to have been used by bis father with little civility and 
much unkinduess. Within a few days after he went to the 
States his name was never mentioned in the family, and 
Miss Carman has no recollection of ever hearing Colonel 
Anderson refer to him again. I >avid H. Anderson says he 
never heard his father s|wak of a previous marriage, or 
that Charles was Ilia son. The children, as a whole, seem 
to have been absolutely ignorant of a previous marriage. 
While the evidence shews that Charles while he resided 
with the family was treated by the children as a brother, 
it must be remembered that they were then too young to 
make any distinction between him and themselves. The 
correspondence between David H. and George B. Anderson 
is not admissible in David's life time. The register of

(1) 2nd ed. 314.
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Colonel Anderson's marriage at Halifax, and the indorse- 1905. 
ment un the bond establish that he had not been pre- Johnston 

viously married. The description must have lieen given Hazkn. 

by him, and he could not have been unconscious of 
its inaccuracy were he a widower. No evidence whatever 
has lieen given of the fact of a previous marriage, or that 
antecedent requirements had been complied with, though if 
the fart of marriage hail been established, its validity would 
be presumed under the maxim, “Omnia jrrammantar rile 
enne acta.”

A. U. h'arle, K.C., on the same side:—

The onus is on the next of kin of Charles George 
Anderson to prove that he was the son of Colonel Anderson.
Nothing further has lieen shewn than that he resided in the 
family a few months, and called Colonel Anderson his 
father. That does not prove that he was a legitimate son.
There is no evidence that Colonel Anderson ever acknow- 
lislged him as such. Miss Carman alone has given evidence 
of there having been a previous wife. Her recollection at 
this long lapse of time, of a declaration made by Colonel 
Anderson to her when she was a mere child, cannot be 
dc|Huided upon in a matter of so much moment. Objection 
was properly taken to its admissibility. That an effort 
lias not been made to discover the register of the alleged 
marriage is most extraordinary.

The costa of opening up the suit and holding the pre­
sent inquiry should be Isirne by David H. Anderson in 
event of the heirship of Charles’ next of kin not being 
established.

S. AI ward, K. C., for Sarah H. Lit ta : —

David H. Anderson’s evidence is worthless. In his 
|H'tition to the Probate Court for letters of administration 
of his sister’s estate, he set out names of her next of kin, and 
made no mention of Charles’ children. It is strange that he 
forgot them then and remembered them a little later. He had 
corresponded with one of Charles' children but a short time
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11105. before. His failure to include them in the petition, and in 
joiiseruN his answer to the hill in this suit, is only explicable upon 

IIazkn. the view that he did not regard Charles as a legitimate 
child. It cannot be attributed to oversight. His silence 
corresponds with his information to Dr. Currey that Charles 
was illegitimate. The family Bible, while containing 
entries in Colonel Anderson’s handwriting relating to his 
children, contained no mention of Charles.

L. A. Currey, K.C., for (leorge M. Anderson: —

The evidence cannot be accepted us establishing a 
previous marriage by Colonel Anderson, and that Charles 
was lawful issue of it. Some secondary evidence has been 
offered of the marriage, which however was not admissible 
until the absence of the marriage registry was satisfactorily 
explaintsl. That could only lie done by proving that a 
search, w’ithout avail, was made for it in places where it 
might reasonably l»1 expected to be found. Miss Carman 
says Charles was treated as a son and a brother, but she 
gives no details enabling us to judge of the accuracy of her 
opinion. She was too young at the time to really have any 
or a reliable judgment in the matter. David says his 
father was cross with Charles, drove him away and made 
no reply to the several letters Charles wrote to him. It is 
very extraordinary if the father had been previously mar­
ried, and Charles was issue of it, that no entry of name of 
first wife and of Charles was made in the family Bible. 
There is also his failure to even speak to his family of a 
first marriage, or that Charles was his son, and his descrip­
tion of himself as a liachelor.

C. AT. Skinner, K.C. (S. A. M. Skinner with him), for 
David H. Andeison: —

There is no reason for placing costs of this inquiry 
upon my client. If the next of kin of Charles Anderson 
hud been at the outset parties to the suit, there would have 
been a contest as to their heirship. At the utmost he 
should only lx: condemned to pay whatever costs have been
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incurred between the time he put in his answer and the 1!I05. 
time lie gave information as to the Western claimants. Johnston 

Being descendants by the half-blood he lmd not thought of Hazin. 

them us heirs. In his answer to interrogatories he did not 
say there were no other heirs, or next of kin, of Margaret 
Hazen, and there was no interrogatory to bring the matter 
to his mind.

II'. Pugsley, A.-G., for Margaret T. O’Brien; A. A.
Stockton, K.C., for J. I). Hazen. administrator of estate of 
Margaret A. Hazen; A. I. Trueman, K. C„ for Violet C.
Wiggins: and llr. U. Wallace, K. C., for Nellie Anderson, 
were not heard.

1905. August 15. Barker, J.:—

This is a suit brought for the administration of the 
estate of the lute Margaret A. Hazen, who died intestate at 
the city of Saint John, on the 8th December, 1902, with­
out issue. She was a daughter of the late Colonel George 
Anderson, and, as originally framed, the parties to the 
suit as the next of kin were Mrs. Hazen’s two brothers,
David and George, Mi’s. Ditta, a sister, and the representa­
tives of two other sisters who had died many years before.
Some Questions anise as to the disposal of some delientures 
which were claimed by three nieces of Mrs. Hazen as hav­
ing been given them by way of donationee marti« cauea, and 
some Questions also arose between David and George 
Anderson us to some real estate to which they pmfessed to 
have some claim. After some negotiations these Questions 
a en1 setthsl Is tween the [inrties, and on the 22nd day of 
Minx’ll 1903, an agreement embodying the terms of settle­
ment, signed by Counsel for all parties, was filet! in Court, 
mid upon this n decree was to be made by consent. By 
this settlement certain conveyances were to lie made by 
I In \ id ami George Anderson; the delientures were to be 
delivered by Mr. J. D. Hazen, the administrator of the 
estate, to the three nieces, and a fixed sum was to be paid 
to Mr. C. N. Skinner, the solicitor in this suit for David H.

VOL III. N. II. K. H. II.
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1905. Anderson. This was all done, and as then understood 
jinissTux there only remained for determination a question between 

iiazkn. the defendants, Margaret O'Brien and Violet C. Wiggins, as 
Burlier. J. to the share represented by them, in which dispute the 

other parties had no interest. Not long after this, appli­
cation was made to me, on behalf of certain parties resid­
ing in Wisconsin, that they should he made parties to this 
suit on the ground that they were the next of kin of one 
Charles Oeorge Anderson, who was, as they alleged, a half- 
brother of Mrs. Huzen, and us such were entitled to a share 
of her estate. The matter was accordingly opened up, 
the applicants were made parties to this suit ; they volun­
tarily undertaking not to disturb the settlement so far as 
it had been acted upon. Thu only question now to he 
determined is whether this claim can be sustained. The 
case set up is that Colonel Anderson was married twice, 
and that thisCharlesAnderson.through whom theyclaim.wus 
the sole issue of the former marriage. There is no dispute 
as to Colonel Anderson's marriage to Elizabeth Chisholm 
at Halifax in 180!), nor is there any question as to the issue 
of that marriage. In the order of seniority they are as 
follows, omitting those who died in infancy: Eliza (Mrs. 
Johnston), David, Charlotte (Mrs. Magee), Margaret (Mrs. 
Huzen), (ieorge, and Henrietta (Mrs. Barrett). All of these 
are dead except David, who is 8!) years old; (ieorge, who 
is 81 ; and Mrs. Iattu, who was born in 1822. These three 
were examined, the first two in open Court, and Mrs. Ijittu 
under a commission token out by the plaintiffs and executed 
at Burlington, in the State of New Jersey, where she has 
resided for many years. Colonel Anderson died February 
18th, 18114, and his wife on the 19th October, 1845. The 
precise date of Colonel Anderson’s birth is not given, but 
David says that he understood him to be 9(i years old when 
he died, so that he would have been born in 1708, and 
would have been 41 years old when he was married in 
Halifax. There is no direct evidence of this alleged first 
marriage. The story is that it took place in the Isle of 
Wight, when Colonel Anderson was there as a non-commis­
sioned officer in the Eighth Regiment, and that his wife
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died on her way to England from Egypt, or actually in 
Egypt, where she had accompanied her husliand, who was 
there on active service. There is, however, no evidence of 
the date of her death or the date of the marriage. With 
the exception of some documentary evidence to which I 
shall refer Inter on, the question in dispute depends upon 
the testimony of the three witnesses I have mentioned 
and that of Miss Carman, who is now about 82 
rears of age, and seems to have been a neighbour 
of the Anderson family for very many years, and 
on terms of intimacy with them all her life, or at all 
events the early part of it. David Anderson says that 
his father told him that he was in liattle in Egypt; that he 
landed in Aboukir Bay on the 8th March, 1801. He says 
that he first remembers Charles, when he ( David) was about 
four or five years old, when they were living at Dipper 
llarlior; that Charles then appeared to be eight or ten years 
older than he was ; that he lived in the family and was 
treated as a member of the family like the others ; that he 
addressed Colonel Anderson as "Father;” that he was 
recognized in the family as a son by his father's first wife; 
and that he was spoken of and treated as such by the 
family. David also says that Charles remained with them 
two or three years at Dipper Harbor, and he then went to 
St. John to learn a trade, and was employed for that pur­
pose by Nesbitt, a cabinet-maker. He also says that later 
on, nml after the family hud moved to Musquash, Charles 
rame I sick again and remained at the home for a few 
months, but he is unable to fix the date. He (Charles) then 
went to the States, and they never saw him afterwards. 
David further says that later on his father received letters 
from Charles, one of which, dated at Belfast, Maine, he 
himself saw, and in it he mentioned his marriage. He says 
that so far as he knew, his father did not answer these 
letters; that he was not much of a letter writer. He also 
says that his father was not very kind to Charles, for some 
reason which he did not know. David further says that, later 
on. after speaking to his father, he himself wrote to Belfast, 
Maine, inquiring as to Charles, and a reply came from a

1905.
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1905. man by the name of Morse, that Charles was dead. He
juiixfTuN says he heard nothing more about him until some ten or 

iiaz.’kx. eleven years ago, when he received a letter from one George 
BftrkiT. j. R Anderson, making inquiries as to the family. On his 

cross-examination, David admitted that his father was not 
so kind to Charles as he was to the others ; that he never 
heard his father, or mother, or Charles, or any member of 
the family sjieak of Charles’ mother, or of his father’s first 
marriage. What he did hear on this subject he seems to 
have heard princi[)ally, if not altogether, from a Mrs. 
Haley, who, though an inmate of the family for a time, in 
some capacity, was not a member of it so as to render her 
declaration admissible in evidence. George Anderson says 
that he can only recollect of having seen Charles but once, 
and that was while they were living at Musquash. He never 
heard anything of him afterwards. His evidence was uuim - 
portant, except as proving that Charles was at the Anderson 
home. Mrs. Latta, who is only a year or two older than 
her brother George, seems to have known more of Charles. 
She says she recollects his living at her father’s house; 
that he was treated by her brothers and sisters as a brother, 
and by her father as a sou, and he was understood by her 
to be a son of her father by his first wife. Her evidence 
which seems somewhat emphatic on this point, is as 
follows : —

"(j. You understood he was a son of the first wife? 
A. Yea. Oh, yes.

” i). That would make him a half-brother of yours I 
A. Yes.

“ (j. Have you any doubt about his being a half-brother 
of yours ? A. No ; I hav’nt any doubt.

” Q. You say he was thought as such by the whole 
family ? A. Yes.”

Mrs. I ait ta, however, says that on no occasion which 
she can recall since Charles left her father's house to learn 
his trade was he made the subject of conversation in the 
family. Miss Carman says she had known the Anderson 
family all her life ; had lived near them and had been on
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friendly and visiting terms with them. After giving a 1905. 
somewhat detailed account of the family, and other events Johnston 

of no special value, unless to show a somewhat exact and Has’km. 
retentive memory, she says as follows:— n»rker, J.

“ (,). Did Colonel Anderson ever refer to his former 
wife ? A. Yes.

“Q. What was her name ? A. He said her name was 
Maria.

"Q. Did he speak of his previous wife ? A. I never 
remember of hearing him hut the once. I had a sister 
Maria, and lie was at our house one day and he said to my 
sister that his wife's name was Maria, and spoke of her 
personal appearance—that she was very’ neat. That is all 
I ever remember.

“(y. Was that when he had a second wife ! A. Oh, it 
must have been long years after his first wife died.

“Q. Did he tell this when he had a second wife i A.
Oh ! I didn't know him when lie hadn’t.

“(J. Your sister’s name was Maria f A. My sister's 
name was Maria, and he said that his wife's name was 
Maria, and that she was very neat in her personal ap- 
pea ranee.

“Q. Did he ever say he had been in the army ! A. Oh, 
yes. I often heard him speak of living in the army and 
some things that happened, and some regulations in the 
army."

Miss Carman only recollects of seeing Charles once, on 
which occasion he came to the schoolhouse.

These are the only witnesses produced who speak of 
Charles Anderson from personal knowledge, or who are 
able to give Colonel Anderson’s own declarations in refer­
ence to him. Miss Carman is an entirely disinterested 
witness, and the evidence of the others is opposed to their 
interest. Is this evidence of itself sufficient to sustain the 
claim put forward by’ these next of kin of Charles Ander­
son ! In my opinion it is. And in coming to that con­
clusion I have expressly excluded from consideration all
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1905. doubtful evidence, such as the declarations of others than 
Johnston Colonel Anderson spoken of by Cassius Anderson, and the 

Hazkn. general repute of the neighliourhood spoken of by Miss 
Barker, J. Carman.

In IIubbuck, Ev. of Suce. 243, it is said: “Reputa­
tion of marriage may he proved by the testimony of living 
witnesses speaking to the existence of that reputation by 
the declarations of the parties or their relatives, if deceased! 
and by the conduct of the parties themselves and of third 
persons towards them, or by other facts or circumstances 
indicative of belief and understanding on the subject. 
The declarations of the contracting parties and their rela­
tives are, however, also admissible on the independent 
ground of being hearsay evidence of a matter of pedigree 
within the rule which ndmits such evidence of such mat­
ters.’’

In Rrcd v. /’uNgcr (1), Ixird Kenyon held evi­
dence of the declaration of parties that they had been 
married was sufficient proof of the marriage to establish 
the legitimacy of the issue. In Bridgtr v. Huelt (2), it was 
held in an action of ejectment that evidence by an inti­
mate friend of the family that lie had known them for 
twenty years, and had always known tile plaintiff as his 
father’s eldest son, was evidence of heirship ; Wightman, 
J„ adding: “It was enough, even in a pedigree case.”

In En inn v. Morgan (3), the only evidence of the 
marriage of the two defendants, Morris and his wife, was 
that of a person who did not appear to be related to them 
or to live near them or know them intimately; and he 
proved only that he knew the defendant, Jane Morris, when 
she was Jane Rees, and that lie had heard that she had 
since married Morris. This was held sufficient prinui facie 
evidence of marriage ; Bayley, B„ saying: “It goes to shew 
the reputation of the neighliourhood.’’

In Smith v. Tchbitt (4), it appeared that in a deed 
executed by the party whose estate was in question making 
a provision for the defendant, who was said to be illegi-

(1) Peake’» N. P. Cae. 303.
(2) 2 F. ft F. 35.

(3) 2C. * J. 453.
(4) L. R. 1 P. ft 1). 354.
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timate, the defendant was described as “ lier sister." .Sir 
J. I*. Wilde, in speaking of this evidence, says : “ Now, 
one of the rules of evidence that govern courts of 
law — and it is very familiar as a rule of evidence in 
pedigree cases—is, that the statement of a deceased 
relative of the family is evidence of pedigree. That 
rule is subject to some conditions. The first condition 
is, that the statement must have been made ante litem 
hintam. Another condition is, that the per. in making the 
statement must be a person who is dead ; but a prior con­
dition to both of these is, that it should be proved, and by 
some source of evidence independent of the statement 
itself, that the person making the statement was related to 
the family about which she spoke. ... It seems to me, 
therefore, that there is in that deed a piece of evidence 
which is perfectly legitimate for the proving of the defend­
ant to be the sister of the deceased. And I may go further 
at once and say that it is not only legitimate evidence for 
the purpose, but that it entirely satisfies me of the fact- 
lint then it is suggested she may have been the illegitimate 
sister, and that the sister says nothing in the deed about 
legitimacy. That is quite true ; but I think that that is 
a fault or a vice in the statement, which would probably 
apply to almost all the statements that have been admitted 
at all times under this head of evidence, because when 
people speak of a man or woman as their brother or sister, 
son or daughter, unless they say something to the contrary, 
I think the meaning is the legitimate son or daughter, 
brother or sister, and therefore I think that objection fails."

In Power v. Howie (1), the only evidence of marriage 
or heirship was this. A witness was called who stated 
that he had known the late Isaac Allen, and also knew his 
son and daughters, whom he named, and that Mrs. Keunh 
was one of the daughters. This witness was in no way 
connected with the family, and it was objected that there 
was no evidence of Isaac Allen’s marriage. Ritchie, J„ 
says : “ If there was sufficient evidence to go to the jury
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1 905. that Mrs. Kenah was the daughter of Isaac Allen, was it 
Johnston not also sufficient to prove his marriage, because, in the eye 

Hazkn. of the law, lie could not have a daughter unless he was 
Barker, j. married.” Carter, C. J., says : “ There was evidence that 

lie had a daughter, and that means a legitimate daughter 
in the absence of any proof to the contrary."

It is however contended that this evidence is either dis­
proved by other testimony, or at all events rendered so 
doubtful that this Court ought not to act upon it. The 
testimony alluded to is as follows. In the first place 
there is the family Bible kept in Colonel Anderson's 
family, of which secondary evidence was given, the Bible 
itself having been destroyed by a fire which occurred some 
years ago. It appears that in this record there is no entry 
either of this so-called first marriage, nor of Charles 
Anderson, though the entries, such as they are, were all in 
Colonel Anderson’s own writing. There is, however, no 
entry of an)’ marriage, nor are the names of all the children 
entered, (icorge Anderson, who gave the evidence of the 
contents, says that there were only the names of six of the 
children entered there. Two of the sisters were not men­
tioned, and apparently none of those who died in infancy. 
The record is admittedly imperfect and’ incomplete, and of 
no value one way or the other. The most importent piece 
of evidence, relied on as defeating the claim of the 
Wisconsin heirs, is the registry of Colonel Anderson’s mar­
riage which took place at Halifax in 1809. As to the fact 
of the marriage itself there is no cpiestion ; the registry is 
not offered in proof of that, but to shew that at that time 
Colonel Anderson said that he was, or held himself out to 
be, a bachelor. The original record was produced by Rev. 
Mr. Armitage, the present rector of St. Paul’s Parish, in 
Halifax, probably the oldest Church of England parish in 
Nova Scotia, the records going back prior to the last 
century. The book containing the entry is labelled " St 
Paul's Church, Halifax, Marriages, 1791-1810,” and on the 
title page is written the following : “ Register of Marriages, 
Parish of St. Paul, Halifax, N. S., Robert Stanger, Rector." 
The entry is as follows : “August the 10th, 1809, Ueorge
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Anderson, Batr. and Elizalicth Chisholm, Npinr ; " and over 
it is written, “ By Lie." It may, I think, be assumed that 
this is an abbreviation for the words “by license," and 
that “ Batr.” is a contraction for “ bachelor." No license 
could lie found, but an examined copy of tbe bond, given on 
procuring the license, on file in the Provincial Secretary’s 
Office of Nova Scotia, was also put in evidence. It is 
dated August 10, 1809. In the bond itself there is no 
mention of Colonel Anderson being a bachelor; in fact his 
name is only mentioned once, and then without addition or 
words of description of any kind, but these words are 
endorsed on it, “George Anderson, Br. and Elizabeth 
Chisholm, Spr., 10th August, 1809.” The entry in the 
register is not signed by any one, and there is no evidence 
of the handwriting. There is no evidence as to the law of 
Nova Scotia in reference to their registers in 1809 ; xvhat 
they were obliged to record, or anything alamt them. So 
far ns one may infer from an inspection of the book pro­
duced at the hearing, and which covered a period of about 
twenty-five years, the usage at that time at St. Paul’s, was 
to register marriages in the same fonn as the one now pro­
duced. Objection was taken not only to the reception of 
the register, but specifically to its reception as evidence of 
any fact but the marriage itself. So far as the entry is 
concerned, I think it was admissible to prove the marriage. 
An entry of a similar character from the register liook of 
Trinity Church, New York, made in 17G4, was admitted in 
evidence as proof of marriage in Lauderdale Peerage 
Cnee (1) by the House of bonis. Neither the entry in the 
register, nor the marriage certificate in that case con­
tains any description of the persons married. In Sturla 
v. Freeexa (2), (reported before the Court of Appeal in 12 
Ch. 1). 411, sub nom. Polini v. Gray), the admissibility as 
well as the effect of public documents was very exhaustively 
discussed. At page Ii44, Lord Blackburn is thus reported:

In many cases, entries in the parish register, of births, 
marriages and deaths, and other entries of that kind, before

(1) 10 App. Cas. «112, (2) 5 App. Cas. 023.
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1 !>05. there' were any statutes relating to them, were admissible, 
Johnston and they were public then, because the common law of 

Hazsn- England making it an express duty to keep the register, 
narkor. J. made it a public document in that sense, kept by a public 

officer for the purpose of a register, and so made it admis­
sible." In Bnron'* Ab., Evidence, “F," (1) it is said of mar­
riage registers: “A copy is sufficient and is proof of a mar­
riage in fact between two persons describing themselves by 
such and such names and places of abode, though it does not 
prove the identity.” It is, however, the effect of the registry 
or the weight to be attached to it, rather than its admissi­
bility, which is the important question here. Is this Court 
to accept it ns any evidence at all, that Colonel Anderson 
had never been married before his marriage at Halifax in 
ISO!) ! It may be said that if the registry is admissible in 
evidence the whole of it may lie looked at, valent quantum. 
That phase of the question I shall discuss later on. To 
apply the principle upon which entries from public registers 
arc admissible as evidence to this present case, it may be 
said that if it was the duty of the rector of St. Paul's, in 
marrying these persons, to make a record of it in accordance 
with the extract from Bacon, which 1 have just cited, and 
if in discharge of that duty he did make the entry, the 
register is evidence of the fact which it was his duty to 
record in it. That fact is, the marriage of the parties; not 
whether the man was a liachelor or a widower. That is a 
collateral statement, unimportant so far as the act of mar­
riage which the rector was to perform under the license is 
concerned, and of which he was to make an entry in the 
register. In Polini. v. Gray, already cited, James, 
L J., says the principle is this, “ that it must lie an 
entry, not of something that was said, not of some­
thing that was learned, not of something that was ascer­
tained, by the person making the entry, but an entry of a 
business transaction done by hi:n, or to him, of which he 
makes a contemporaneous entry. For nothing else was it 
admissible, and it was received only because it was the
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person's duty to make that entry at the time when the 
transaction took place. The exception is entirely confined 
to that.” In Smith v. Blukey (1), Blackburn, J„ says: 
" The duty must be to do the very thing to which the />ntry 
relates, and then to make a report or record of it.” 
If the duty of the official included the entry of some fact 
not within his personal knowledge, but which must neces­
sarily be ascertained by inquiry, then the entry of that 
fact would also be evidence, as the presumption, in the 
absence of evidence to the contrary, would be that the 
official properly discharged his duty in making the inquiry : 
Boe v. Andrews (2). In Chiimbera v. lUmnaeimi (3), we 
have a clear illustration of the principle. It was sought to 
prove the place at which a party had been arrested, and for 
that purpose a certificate of the sheriff’s officer who made 
the arrest, and who was then dead, was offered in evidence. 
The certificate was made ns an official act by the officer, 
and in discharge of his duty, and it stated the fact of the 
arrest and the time and place. It was rejected because the 
duty of the officer was only to record the fact of the arrest 
with the date, laird Denman, in delivering the judgment 
of the Court, says: “ We are all of opinion that whatever 
effect may be due to an entry made in the course of any 
office reporting facts necessary to the performance of a duty, 
the statement of other circumstances, however naturally 
they may be thought to find a place in the narrative, is no 
proof of those circumstances. Admitting, then, for the 
sake of argument, that the entry tendered was evidence 
of the fact, and even of the day when the arrest was made 
(lioth of which facts it might be necessary for the officer 
to make known to his principal), we are all clearly of 
opinion that it is not admissible to prove in what particu­
lar spot within the laiiliwick the caption took place, that 
circumstance being merely collateral to the duty done." 
The officer there was certifying a fact within his know­
ledge, but as Park, J., says in Poole v. Dicae (4), the

1!>05.
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(1) L. It. 2 Q. B. 320, 333.
(2) 16 Q. 11. 756.

(3) 1 C. M. & R. 347.
(4) 1 Bing. N. V. «63.
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1905. officer was going beyond the sphere of his duty when he 
Johnston made an entry of the place of arrest, and such an entry, 
Haz’kx. therefore, had no claim to he received as evidence of that 

Barker. .1. fact.
It is upon this principle that Courts have rejected 

entries in baptismal registers of the date of childbirth as 
evidence of age. In Wihen v. Law (1) evidence of that 
kind was rejected because it was nothing more than some­
thing told to the clergyman at the time of the christening 
concerning which he had no power by law to make an 
entry in the register : he had neither the authority nor the 
means of making the entry.

In Doedem. Wollaston v. Borne* (2),decided in 1894, a 
marriage register was offered to prove the date of a marriage 
in an action between strangers. Lord Denman held the evi­
dence admissible, and he |K)ints out the distinction between 
the case of the luiptismal register not being evidence of age 
and the marriage register being evidence of the date : as 
in the latter case the fact was within the personal know­
ledge of the clergyman, while in the other the fact must 
have been ascertained by an inquiry which the clergyman 
had no authority to make. In the present case there is no 
evidence before me to shew that the entry in question was 
made in pursuance of any authority or requirement of any 
statute in force in Nova Scotia. 1 must assume that there 
is none, because the fact, if otherwise, could have been so 
easily proved. There does not seem to have been any such 
duty at common law. I have the fact that for twenty-five 
years entries of a similar character were made in the St. 
Paul’s parish register, hut that is no evidence of any law 
authorizing it or requiring it. Besides this the entry 
relates to a fact about which the clergyman himself knew 
nothing whatever. No word such as “ bachelor ” or 
“widower,” indicating the condition of the man, is in the 
register in the Lauderdale Peerage Ca*e, or in that in evi­
dence in Pier* v. Pier* (3), and which came from Newcastle 
parish. Neither is it any part of the certificate of mar-

11) 3 Stark. 83. (») 1 M. h R. 380.
(3) 2 H. 1» U. 331.

(1) 3 Stark. 63.
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riage provided by the statutes of this Province, and which 
is practically the same as was first established in 1812 by 
Act 52 Geo. III., cap. 21. Neither is it any part of the 
rubrical form of publication of banns, nor was it in fact in 
the bond for the license in this present case. There seem 
instances of its use in the Fleet registers, hut that is not 
where one should look for a precedent, as those registers 
were not received in evidence for any purpose : Doe dem. 
Darien v. Gatacre (1). There are three other cases at least 
which may he cited as leading to a different conclusion. 
In Morris v. Davie« (2) the following entry from a 
baptismal register was received in evidence without 
opposition : “ Evan Williams, a base child, baptized
January lltli, 1793," and a note was added in the rector’s 
hand : " Supposed of Austin, a weaver of this town’s 
son.” Upon what ground it was admitted ns evidence 
ni the illegitimacy does not appear, liecause no objection 
was raised to the evidence. In Co/ie v. G'o/ie (3) the follow­
ing entry from a baptismal register was received in evidence 
by Alderson, B., in proof of illegitimacy. “ 1794, December 
7, Willis, illegitimate son of Elizabeth Cope." The evidence 
was received on the authority of Morris v. Davies, the 
Judge saying that he should receive the evidence, but the 
degree of weight which it ought to have with the jury was, of 
course, a very different point. In summing up to the jury 
the Judge told them that the statement in the baptismal 
register could only be treated as evidence of the reputation 
in the village. It was not proved on what ground, or by 
whose procurement, the entry had been made; and it was 
to lie recollected that if the entry had been made by the 
procurement of the mother it would not be admissible evi­
dence at all, any more than her declaration. The jury 
found against the entry. The other case is la re Tamer 
(4), a decision of Cliitty, J., in 1885. It was a case like the 
present, involving the legitimacy of one claiming as next of 
kin. A liuptismal certificate was put in evidence in which

(1) 8 V. li P. 578. (3) 1 M. & It. 2011.
(2) 5 C. & F. 103. (4) 2U (Jh. D. U85
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I !K>5. the date of birth won stated. Objection was taken to it as 
Johnston living inadmissible to prove that fact, it living no part of the 

Hazkn. official duty of the rector at the time (1825) to insert the 
Barker. J. date of birth. On the authority of HoivU v. Davies and 

Cope v. (’ope., the Judge received the evidence, holding that 
as the certifiante lmd been put in by the claimant he might 
look at the whole document. At the same time lie seemed 
unable to give any reason why the document should be 
admissible in proof of illegitimacy, the fact being proved 
by other evidence if the date of birth was correctly 
stall'd in the certificate. In that case (’bitty, J„ held in 
view of the two cases 1 have mentioned, and that the case 
was one of pedigree, in which the strict rules of evidence 
are somewhat relaxed, that while the certificate was inadmis­
sible the statement of the date of birth was not to be regarded 
of much weight, unless supported by other evidence. 
Huhinsun v. Btudeucli (1), a later case, is in accordance 
with the older cases. I myself entertain a strong opinion 
that as the evidence in this case stands, the entry when 
offered solely in proof of the illegitimacy of Charles 
Anderson, is not admissible ; but assuming that I am 
wrong and that the objection goes simply to the value of 
the e\ ii knee, what weight should I attach to it l Am 1 to 
treat it as Huron Alderson told the jury in Co/k v. Copt, 
“as vidence of the reputation in the village Obviously 
t would be nonsense as applied to the circumstances of 
tins case, even if illegitimacy could ever be proved by such 
evidence. The only reasonable ground upon which the 
evidence may be treated as of any value, is that it may be 
inferred that the statement recorded is that of the party 
himself. To my mind that is by no means a necessary 
inference, neither do I think it at all likely to be the fact. 
1 think it much more probable that the rector got the 
information from the license. The procurement of the 
license which was the rector’s authority to solemnize the 
marriage was the initial step, and if the entry of the word 
“ bachelor ’’ was the result of inquiry at all, 1 should think

(1) ST. L. H. 472.
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it highly probable that the inquiry was made by the clerk 
in the Provincial Secretary’s office, who tilled in the bond 
when issuing the license. Colonel Anderson is not a party 
to the bond, there is nothing to shew that he was present 
when it was obtained, and we all know that the issue of a 
marriage license is not attended with any great formality. 
Courts do not go out of their way to pronounce people 
illegitimate, and even though the onus be upon these claim­
ants to prove their right to a portion of the estate, it is in 
my opinion impossible to treat the evidence adduced by 
them in support of their claim as being to any material extent 
weakened by the loose and uncertain evidence afforded by 
this register. For if the evidence is to lie believed, Colonel 
Anderson himself at one time for a period of two or three 
years, and at another for a period of several months, had 
( 'hurles Anderson, who bore his name and who called him 

father," as an inmate and member of his own family, 
eating at his own table, and the companion and playmate 
of his own children,—conduct amounting, as Lord Mansfield 
said in the Uerleeliy 1‘eevMje C ine (1), " to a daily assertion 
that the son was legitimate."

It is said, however, that David H. Anderson has been 
so repeatedly contradicted by other witnesses that he is 
altogether unworthy of credit. The first charge made 
against him is that he deliberately swore, in a petition made 
by him and his brother to the Judge of Probates for let­
ters of administration to Mrs. Hazen’a estate, that she left 
no other next of kin than those who were originally parties 
to this suit—that is, himself, his brother, Mrs. Latta, and 
the representatives of tln»other sisters, making no mention 
of Charles. That this was deliberately made it is said is 
proved by certain correspondence which took place in 
18113, only nine years liefore that, between David and one 
I leorge B. Anderson, a son of Charles Anderson, in which 
the whole family history is given, and from which David 
must have known, and in fact did know, that if Charles 
was legitimate he had left children, who would be

1905.
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(1) 4 Camp. 41(5.
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1905. entitled ns next of kin of the half-blood. This corres- 
johsstu.n pondence consists of five letters, commencing with one from 

Hazkx. (leorgc to David, dated October II, 1898. It is clear from 
Barker. J. this correspondence that both David and his nephew George 

were satisfied of the relationship existing between them ; 
that is, that Charles was the half-brother of the one and 
the father of the other. It must be recollected that the 
objection rests altogether upon the fact that David, in 
1898, long before any controversy had arisen, put it for­
ward as a fact that Charles was his half-brother, because 
without tliat the misstatement would not be deliberate. 
David’s explanation is that he never thought anything 
al mut Charles when he signed the petition—that in fact it 
only occurred to him some time after this suit was com­
menced, and when he was ill In bed, that perhaps Charles’ 
children might have an interest, but that even then he did 
not know whether they would or not. When he was able 
to go out he consultixl some one and found out that the half- 
blood were entitled. 1 venture to assert that this explana­
tion would, in nine cases out of ten, bo accepted as reason­
able and satisfactory. It is to be regretted that when 
David Anderson discovered that Charles' children were 
interested he did not make the facts known to the admin­
istrator of the estate or the plaintiffs' solicitors, so that 
they might have taken steps, if they thought necessary, to 
have these claimants made parties. Instead of that, he 
himself opened up a correspondence with them, the object 
of which seems to have been to secure the conduct and 
prosecution of their claim with a view of participating in 
the proceeds. The course pursued may possibly have in­
creased the costs of this suit, and his object, if I have 
rightly divined it, was not creditable either to himself or 
his advisers ; but beyond that it does not seem to have 
much bearing on the case. If the only object of David 
Anderson was to iieneiit himself, it might have been much 
more easily accomplished by remaining quiet as to the 
Western heirs ; for he was, according to what the others 
say, the only person who knew anything about them ; the 
estate would have been settled and that would have been
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the end of it. To bring them into the controversy meant 
that, in the event of their claim being sustained, the settle­
ment would be set aside, and David, instead of getting one- 
tifth of the residue as his share, would only get one-sixth. 
There were some other contradictions to which it is un­
necessary to refer, for they do not seem to me of much 
importance one way or the other. For instance, the plain­
tiffs and some others go on the stand and say that they 
never saw or heard of this 1893 correspondence, while 
David says he told them of it or thinks he did. If he is 
mistaken in that, there is no reason for saying he was 
perjuring himself. The fact remains that the correspond­
ence did take place. Its value in this case, if it has any, 
does not consist in its having been shewn to other memliers 
of the family. This correspondence was objected to on 
several grounds, and it was admitted contrary to my own 
opinion expressed at the time. If it was improperly ad­
mitted. then the ground upon which the truth of David 
Anderson’s statement in the petition to the Judge of Pro­
bates is challenged, is gone. It occurred to me that, so far 
as David Anderson's letters were concerned, they could not 
he received as general evidence in the suit ns declarations 
of a member of the family, for he was alive and had I wen 
actually a witness. And as to George B. Anderson’s letters, 
though he was dead he could not he considered a member 
of the family so as to make his declarations evidence, except 
on the assumption that Charles Anderson, his father, was 
legitimate, which was the question in dispute. As to the 
latter point I think I was wrong. In such cases it seems 
to lie the rule that before such evidence is admitted there 
is a preliminary question to be determined by the Judge ; 
that is, whether there is prima facie evidence of legitimacy 
If there is, then the evidence is admissible ; its weight is a 
diflercnt thing : Duedem. Jenkins v. Davies (1); Hitchins 
v. EardUy (2). When this evidence was tendered, David 
Anderson, Mrs. Latta and Mias Carman had been examined, 
and their evidence, in my opinion, was ample to make out

(1) 10 Q. B. 814. (2) L. R. 2 P. & D. 248.

1905.
Johnston

Barker, J.

VOL. m. N. B. E. *.—12.
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a prima facie case, so that if there is no other objection to 
the evidence, it was properly admitted. That correspond­
ence may, perhaps, be admissible in a case of this kind as 
shewing that the evidence of David is not now manufac­
tured for a purpose. It is a well-established rule that 
declarations of deceased members of the family must be 
made before any controversy arose to render them admis­
sible. In Crouch v. Hoo/ter (1), the Master of the Rolls 
makes some lengthened observations on this class of evi­
dence, and in a paragraph mentioned in the note on page 
188 of the report he says: " I must repeat an observa­
tion I have lately made, that in cases of this description 
mere parol declarations recorded or remembered after the 
contest has arisen, by persons interested in tbe result of the 
litigation, have very little weight with me.” This corres­
pondence in 1893 shews conclusively that long before this 
controversy arose, David's statements as to the family and 
as to Charles' legitimacy do not differ from those now made. 
There seem to be some serious objections to some of the 
declarations of this George B. Anderson as given in evi­
dence by his nephew, the defendant Cassius L. Anderson. 
I do not refer to his declaration of facts within his own 
knowledge, but to other matters in reference to which there 
is nothing to shew that the information was not derived 
from strangers to the family altogether. It could not have 
been derived from his father, that is, Charles Anderson 
himself, because he died a short time before George B. 
Anderson, his son, was born.

Upon these matters I do not deem it necessary to ex­
press any opinion, became without this correspondence of 
1893, and apart from the evidence of George B. Anderson’s 
declarations, I have arrived at the conclusion that the claim 
of Charles Anderson’s legitimacy is sustained by the evi­
dence. If the other evidence is admissible it would only 
strengthen that conclusion. There must be a declaration 
to that effect.

As to the costa, I do not feel disposed to interfere with 
the agreement made by the parties. It was argued that 

(1) 16 Beav. 182.
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by raison of the course pursued by David Anderson, he 
should be made to pay costs. At most I could only make 
him pay his own costs of the present contest. I have 
already expressed my view as to the course which I think 
he should have pursued. The question, however, is how 
lias the estate been injured by the course which he actually 
did pursue ? If he had communicated the facts when he 
learned of their relevancy to this suit, to the administra­
tor or to the plaintiffs, who have the conduct of these pro­
ceedings, they would have lieen compelled to apply to have 
these Western heirs made parties for the protection of the 
administrator and those to whom the real estate would 
descend. The cost of such a proceeding might possibly 
have been less than that entailed upon the estate by the 
course which has been taken. That is, however, not 
ca|iahle of demonstration, and if it were, the difference is 
not an ascertainable quantity which the Clerk could tax. 
I think there is no sufficient ground for treating David 
Anderson in any different wav as to his costs of this part 
of the litigation than was conceded to him and all parties 
by the agreement made between them. The costs of all 
parties will therefore be paid out of the estate as agreed 
upon.

1905.

Johnston

Berker. J.
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RE GLADYS JULIA FREEZE.

Infant—Guardian—Married woman.

A married woman will not be appointed sole guardian of the 
person and estate of an infant.

Petition by Annie M. Pugsley, wife of Robert D. 
Pugsley, for the appointment of herself as guardian of tlie 
person and estate of Gladys J ulia Freeze, an infant, and for 
leave to sell lands belonging to her. It appeared that 
the petitioner is the aunt of the infant.

July 14, 1905.

IF. B. Jonah, for the petitioner.

Barker, J.:—It is not the practice of the Court to 
appoint a married woman as sole guardian. You may 
withdraw the application.*

•See In re Kaye, L. R. 1 Ch. 387, and lie Kliza Gouyh Estate 
[1802| 3 0. R. 206. am-.
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THE GAULT BROTHERS COMPANY, LIMITED 
y. MORRELL

—No. 2. See ante, p. 123.

Practice—Partie*—Striking out and adding names—Suit by 
creditor—Assignment for benefit of creditors.

Where after a suit was brought for a declaration that stock-in-
trade in possession of defendants belonged to plaint ill's, the
defendants made an assignment for the benefit of their 
creditors, and their assets were insufficient to pay their 
liabilities, the names of the defendants were ordered to be 
struck out and that of the assignee added.

The defendants, J. Otty Morrell and J. Leishman 
Sutherland, were co-partners and carried on a dry goods 
business at St. John, under the firm name of Morrell 
and Sutherland. The bill in this suit was filed for an 
injunction to restrain them from selling, assigning, transfer­
ring or incumbering any of the stock-in-trade, book debts or 
assets of the business, or from interfering with the plaintiffs 
from taking possession thereof, and for a declaration of the 
rights of the plaintiffs therein. The bill set out that 
the plaintiffs supplied the defendants with goods under 
an agreement by which they were to remain the property 
of the plaintiffs until paid for, with liberty to the 
plaintiffs to take possession of the stock-in-trade, book 
debts and other assets of the defendants’ business, and 
providing that after realizing upon the same, payment 
out of the proceeds should be made to the plaintiffs of the 
amount of the defendants’ indebtedness to them. By an 
n jtarte injunction order, granted by Mr. Justice Barker, 
the defendants were restrained from, inter alia, making an 
assignment of the stock-in-trade and assets of their business. 
Subsequently Mr. Justice Barker ordered the injunction to 
•>e varied so as to permit the defendants to make an assign­
ment for the general benefit of their creditors. See ante, 
page 123. The defendants thereupon executed to Thomas 
H. Somerville and Frederick W. Roach, an assignment of 
all their real and personal estate in favor of their creditors.

1905.
August 17.
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The assignees took possession of the stock-in-trade and 
assets of the business, including goods supplied by the 
plaintiffs. On March 3rd, 1905, at a creditors’ meeting, it 
was agreed that Robert R. Ritchie, High Sheriff of 
Saint John, should lie appointed an additional assignee 
under the assignment, and that the stock-in-trade of the 
business should be sold and the proceeds held subject to the 
order of this Court. A sale was accordingly held, realizing 
$0,785.74. Motion was now made, on notice, for an order 
to amend the bill and all proceedings in the cause by strik­
ing out the names of Messrs. Morrell and Sutherland as 
parties in the suit, and to add the name of Robert R. 
Ritchie as a party defendant. Messrs. Somerville and 
Roach had previously been made defendants. It was shewn 
that the assets in the hands of the assignees would not 
prove sufficient to meet the firm’s liabilities in full.

The motion was heard August 17, 1905.

M. 0. Teed, K.C., in suport of the motion.

J. B. M. Baxter, contra :—

Morrell and Sutherland should remain in the suit to 
contest the question raised by the bill as it is prejudicial to 
the interests of the other creditors. The assignees are under 
no duty to dispute the plaintiffs’ contention, and may not 
see fit to resist it.

[Barker, J.:—The matter is entirely one for the 
creditors. I can not see how it can be of any concern to 
you.]

If the plaintiffs' bill is sustained they will be paid in 
full, or in priority to the other creditors. We are inter­
ested in having the assets distributed on a jrro rata basis.

J. King Kelley, for the defendant Frederick W. Roach, 
was not heard.

Barker, J. :—I will allow the application. Costs of 
application to be costs in the cause. Costs of defendants, 
Morrell and Sutherland, to be reserved until further order.
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PORT WARDENS OF SAINT JOHN v. McLAUGHLAN. 1905.

Pori 1 cardons—Fees of office—Competition—Account. ■'teptember

Port wardens appointed by the City of Saint John have no ex­
clusive right to examine hatches of incoming vessels, so as to 
entitle them to fees for the service paid to an outside jH-rsun.

Bill by the port wardens of Saint John, and the City 
of Saint John, to restrain the defendant, Charles McLaugh- 
lan, fron examining hatches of steamers and ships arriving 
at the ]xirt of Saint John, and for an account of fees 
received by him in holding such examinations and grunting 
certificates thereof. The charter of the city authorizes 
and empowers the Common Council to appoint two or more 
wardens of the jxrrt. By a by-law of the city, adopted 
May 14, 1875, it was provided that a hoard of not more 
than ten wardens, to be appointed from time to time by the 
Council, and to hold office during the Council's pleasure, 
should be established ; that the board should have an office 
at which a secretary should be in attendance ; that the 
wardens should attend to their duties in rotation ; that 
each warden should, before performing the duties of the 
office, take out a warrant of his appointment, for which a fee 
of ten dollars should be paid ; and that a record should be 
kept at the board’s office of all certificates granted by the 
wardens, and that the same should be open to public 
inspection. The by-law prescribes a scale of fees for certain 
services, including for a survey of hatches, a fee of 81.50 to 
each warden acting ; for every certificate, a fee of $5.00, 
and for each copy, a fee of $2.50. Provision is made for 
the recovery of all monies payable under the by-law, in the 
name of the Chamberlain before the Police Magistrate.
Acting under the by-law, and immediately after its adoption, 
the port wardens organized themselves into a board, which 
they have maintained ever since. The bill alleged that the 
board has an office and a secretary in accordance with
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the requirements of the by-law, and that the wardens 
have always performed and have ever been ready to 
perform the duties pertaining to their position. Exami­
nations of hatches of steamers arriving at the port 
for the purpose of determining whether they were 
properly covered and secured and inspecting the condition 
of cargoes, were always up to about June 1, 1904, made 
exclusively by the wardens as coming within their 
duties. Since that date such work has almost entire), 
been done by the defendant, who is Lloyds’ agent at the 
port, at the request of either the owners of the steamers or 
underwriters of cargoes. The defendant issued certifi­
cates of his examinations, and made charges for his services 
in connection therewith. It was claimed that the port 
wardens had by the defendant’s action been deprived of 
upwards of $1,000 in fees.

Argument was heard August 5, 1905.

C. N. Skinner, K. C., for the plaintiffs:—

The charter of the city empowers the Common 
Council to license or appoint wardens of the port. 
The Legislature has at different times recognized their 
status as a public laxly. .See Act 2(1 Geo. III., c. 51 ; R. S. 
N. B., 1854, c. 122, and C. S. N. B., 187(1, p. 1053, providing 
for surveys by port wardens of sea-damaged goods. Their 
ap|Mjintment is regulated by by-law of the city, which also 
fixes their fees for certain services. An exclusive franchise 
or office has consequently been vested in them. The effect 
of the defendant's couqx'tition is to deprive the plaintiffs 
of the most profitable part of their work. In fact, the 
office of port warden without it cannot be kept up. 
A port warden is a quasi-judicial officer. His surveys and 
reports have an official standing, entitling them to recog­
nition abroad. Officials with corresponding duties are to 
be found at every seaport throughout the world. The 
interests of the port and of maritime traffic will be preju­
diced if the office becomes extinct.
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[Earle, K. C.:—Why is the city a party to the suit ? ] 1905.
Because the port wardens are appointed by the city, wPoBT

and pay to the city a license fee. or
St. John

A. 0. Earle, K.C., and J. K. Armetrony, K. C., for the 
defendant :—

The plaintiffs are claiming a monopoly contrary to 
common law, and unsupported by any words of grant in 
either the charter of the city or in an Act of the legisla­
ture. The matter between the plaintiffs and defendant is 
purely one of fair competition in which the defendant is 
free to engage. The plaintiffs do not hold an office which 
the defendant is usurping. The by-law under which plain­
tiffs are ap[minted is ultra viree as being legislation on the 
subject of navigation and shipping. See Hey. v. Veter» (1).
If underwriters or cargo owners prefer to have examina­
tions of hatches made by the defendant rather than by the 
plaintiffs, it is their concern, just ns it would be their affair 
if they saw fit to have no examinations by any one.

Skinner, K. C., in reply.

1905. September 19. Barker, J.:—

The nine wardens of the port of Saint John and the 
City of Saint John have joined as plaintiffs in filing a bill 
by which they seek to compel the defendant to account to 
them for certain fees which he has received for examining 
and certifying as to the condition of the hatches of a num­
ber of steamers on their arrival at Saint John. The defend­
ant acta as Lloyds’ agent at Saint John and some of the 
other ports in the Bay of Fundy, and it seems that for the 
last year or two he has, on the application of the agents of 
certain lines of steamers, been holding these surveys and 
receiving fees for the service. It is in evidence that previ­
ous to the defendant's employment this work had been 
done by the port wardens, though there is no record of any 
city regulation or by-law on the subject previous to

(1) H. T. 1878 ; Ntev. Dig. 187.
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May, 1875. By by-laws then passed by the Common 
Council the city was authorized to appoint a board of 
wardens for the port of Saint John, composed of not more 
than ten port wardens, to be appointed from time to time 
by the Common Council ; each to hold office during the 
pleasure of the Council. No provision is made pre­
scribing the duties of the wardens, but certain fees 
are fixed to which they are entitled for certain services. 
Among these fees is one of $1.50 for every survey on 
hatches to each warden acting, and a fee of 85.00 for every 
certificate. These fees are payable by the person requir­
ing the services to be performed, and they can be recovered 
before the Police Magistrate in the name of the Chamber- 
lain. The whole contention involved in the suit is that 
the port wardens, whether requested to hold surveys of 
this kind or not, have the exclusive right of doing so, and 
that the fees for such services belong as of right to them 
as fees of office, no matter by whom the services may have 
actually been rendered. Mr. Skinner was not able to 
refer me to any authority sustaining his position, nor have 
I been able to find any. I cannot discover any ground upon 
which the suit can be maintained. The validity of the 
by-laws has Ijeen questioned, and the joinder of the city 
as a plaintiff has been objected to, but apart from these 
and other objections which may be suggested, I do not think 
the plaintiffs can succeed. Mr. Skinner expressly dis­
claimed all idea of fixing a liability on the defendant, on 
the ground that he had usurped the office of port warden. 
Admittedly in what he did the defendant did not pretend 
to be a port warden, or to act as such in any way. That 
a port warden, if requested, could have performed the same 
service, and recovered a fee for it, is quite true, but how 
does that entitle him to the fees earned by the defendant 
for his work ? Such a liability can only be supported on 
the theory that the defendant was in fact invading the 
plaintiffs' office. They can have no possible ground of 
complaint otherwise. The money can only belong to them 
because it represents fees paid to the defendant for services 
which they as wardens had the exclusive right of rendering.
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When you fail in establishing that right you fail altogether. 
There are cases, of course, where for the prevention of 
frauds on underwriters or other causes, the intervention of 
port wardens is required by statute. The case of a sale of 
sea-damaged goods furnishes an illustration. See 2ti Geo. 
III., c. 51 ; R. S. N. B„ 1854, c. 122 ; R. S. C., c. 85, s. 17. In 
such cases the statute expressly requires certain things to be 
done under the direction of wardens, hut there is no statute or 
other law which makes it unlawful for a survey of hatches 
to be made by any person other than a port warden. The 
office of port warden is not a permanent office. The 
wardens have no estate in the office; the appointees are 
merely servants of the city, removeable at pleasure. And 
if the defendant had actually assumed to act as a port 
warden, an information in the nature of a quo warranto 
would not lie. See Ex parte Langen (1); Darlei/ v. The 
Queen (2). And if the remedy by quo warranto would be 
open to the plaintiffs, then this Court would not interfere : 
Attorne/i-Oeneral v. Miller (3). The simple fact seems to 
be that the owners or underwriters required, for their pur­
poses, an examination of steamers’ hatches to be made on 
arrival, and 1 aasume they chose to select the defendant for 
the purpose, because they wished his judgment in the 
matter. They did not require the judgment of any of the 
wardens, and therefore they did not request them to act 
In other words they wanted the defendant's certificate and 
not that of a port warden. I know of no reason why they 
should not have it, or why the defendant, who performed 
the work, should be obliged to pay the fee to some one else.

The bill will be dismissed with costs.

1905.
Port

Wardens

St. John

McLauohlan

Barker. J.

(2) 12 C. & K. 620.(1) 3 All. 135.
(3) 2 N. B. Eq. 28.
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1905. THE EASTERN TRUST COMPANY v. JACKSON.
October to.

Donatio mortis causil—Evidence— Delivery for safe-keeping.

A {tenon on his (lenth-lied handed to his wife out of a satchel 
which he kept in a closet of his bedroom $2,000 in bonds 
and $1,660 in cash, telling her to “ take them and put them 
away ; wrap them up and lock them up in your trunk.” At 
the same time he handed to her a pocket hook containing $150, 
saving that it was for present expenses. A few minutes 
later he handed to his business partner the remaining 
contents of the satchel, consisting of $1,000 belonging to the 
firm. Subsequently he made a will bequeathing to his 
wife $8,000, a horse, two carriages, and all his household 
effects ; to his partner his interest in partnership property ; 
to two grand-nephews $500 each ; and to nieces ami nephews 
the residue of his estate. His private estate was worth 
$7,500. When giving directions for the drafting of his will, 
on the amount of the legacies to his wife and grand nephews 
being counted up, he said, “ there is more than that ” :— 

Held, that there was not a donatio mortis causa to the wife, the 
deceased intending no more than a delivery for safe-keeping.

Bill for the administration of the estate of George R. 
Jackson, deceased. The facts fully appear in the judgment 
of the Court.

Argument was heard August 23, 1005.

A. 0. Earle, K.C., for legatees, except Mrs. Jackson :—

A donatio mortis causa will not be supported on the 
uncorroborated evidence of the donee when such evidence 
is not clear and satisfactory. See Ward v. Turner (1). 
Such gifts are not favored in law. They lack the formalities 
and safeguards which exist in the case of wills, and they 
create a strong temptation to the commission of fraud and 
perjury. In Ward v. Turner, Lord Hardwicke expressed 
regret that the Statute of Frauds, which sought the pre­
vention of perjury, did not invalidate such gifts. He 
points out that Justinian was so justly apprehensive of

(1) 1 W. A T. L. C. (7th ed.)3UU.
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fraud with respect to them, that he required them to be 
made in the presence of five witnesses.* In this case there 
is not only no corrolxiration, but the surrounding circum­
stances dispel the notion that a gift was intended. If a 
gift had taken place, the testator would not a few hours 
later have directed a will to lie drawn up at variance with 
it. Had there been a gift he would have told the drafts­
man of his will of it, and that what was to be given by the 
will to his wife was in addition to it. A man of his careful 
habits would not invite the doubt and confusion that arise 
where there is an uncorroborated claim of a donatio 
mortis causa, and bequests by will to the claimant. If 
the testator had left nothing to her by will there would be 
good reason for believing that a gift was intended. Death 
Ix-ing imminent, he had to place the money and bonds in 
somebody's hands. The firm's money he gave to his 
|iartner. That of his private estate, and in which she was 
to share, he naturally committed to her for safe-keeping. 
No words of gift w ere used. The particular directions he 
gave about wrapping the money and bonds up, and to lock 
them up in her trunk, indicate that all that he sought was 
to have them put in a secure place under her control. She 
says her husband told Wetmore, when he was about to take 
down the directions for milking the will, that he wanted to 
provide for her. That would mean that he had not up to 
then made any provision for her. After the testator’s death, 
the subject-matter of the alleged gift is found to have 
remained in his possession. If he never parted with the 
possession there could have been no gift, whatever were 
the words he used.

•/. A. Gregory, K.C., for the defendant, Mrs. Jackson :—

The deceased’s words were those of gift. Handing his 
wife the bonds and money, he said they were for herself ; 
that “ it is yours, your own personal property ; I give it to

'In In re Reid [ 1908j 6 O. R. 423, Street, J., says : “I confess 
it appears to me that it would have been better to require as 
high a degree of evidence to prove a donatio mortis causa as to 
prove a will."—bbp.

1905.

Compas r 

Jackson.
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Bunas they were merely placed with her for safe-keeping. If that 
compint was his purpose he would have entrusted to her the SI ,000 
Jackson, bill belonging to the firm that he at the same time placed 

in Clark’s hands, or he would have handed everything to 
Clark. Unless he had given the money and bonds to her, 
there is no explanation of the small provision for her in 
his will. The gift was complete when the money and 
bonds were delivered into the donee’s hands with the in­
tention of vesting the property therein in her. To divest 
her title it would have to be shewn that he revoked the 
gift and resumed possession. Mrs. Jackson swears she put 
the money and bonds in her trunk and locked it. If that 
is so, then they were removed to the position in which they 
were found by some one’s theft. Whether she placed them 
in the trunk or left them in the satchel in the closet is 
immaterial. There is no rule that the evidence of a person 
claiming a donatio mortis causa should be corroborated. 
See In re Garnett (1); In re Hodgson (2); Rawlinson v. 
Scholes (3).

J. A. Retyea, K.C., for the plaintiffs, took no part.

1905. October 20. Barker, J. :—

This suit is brought for the administration of the 
estate of the testator, George R. Jackson, but the only 
question involved arises out of a donation mortis causa of 
some money and Saint John city debentures alleged to 
have been made by the testator to his wife, the defendant, 
Frances Amelia Jackson, a few days before his death. 
The testator was taken ill on Sunday, the 16th October, 
1904 ; on Thursday, the 20th October, the doctor told him 
there was no chance of his recovery, and advised him to 
settle such of his business matters as required his atten­
tion. The alleged gift was made on that day, about noon, 
after the doctor had announced his opinion. Between nine 
and ten o’clock of the forenoon of Sunday, the 23rd Orto­

li) 31 Ch. D. 9. (2) 31 Oh. D. 183. (3) 79 L. T. 360.
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Iht, the testator executed a will, and between one and two 1905. 
o'clock of the afternoon of the same day he died. He left Easts»» 
him surviving his widow hut no children, and, so far as the compakt 
evidence shews, no nearer relatives than nephews and Jackso». 
nieces. For some years before his death he had been Burker. J. 
carrying on a weir-fishing business at Letang in partner­
ship with the defendant, Sutton Clark, a nephew. By 
his will the testator gave his widow S3,000, a horse and 
two carriages and all his household effects. To the said 
Sutton Clark, he gave all his interest in the partnership 
property, which comprised whatever real estate he had ; to 
a son of Sutton Clark he gave S500 ; and a like sum to 
a son of Clarence Clark, another nephew. The remainder 
of his personal property he divided equally among his 
sisters' children residing in Halifax, of whom there seem 
to have been ten, all of whom are parties to this suit. So 
far as 1 can gather from the evidence, the testator's per­
sonal property, outside of furniture and household effects, 
which were given by the will to Mrs. Jackson, consisted at 
or shortly before his death of the following:

Savings Bank account.........  .... .... 81,900
Cash in satchel—one package............ .... 1,000

“ “ '• ...................... 550
“ in pocket book............. .... .... 150

Four City of St. John debentures, 8500 each, . 2,000
Balance due by Jackson & Clark, .. .... 917
Dominion Stock, .... .... .... 1,000
Mowbray note, .... .... .... 300

87,817

These figures are not exact, but sufficiently so to illus­
trate an argument based upon them which will be men­
tioned later. The alleged gift included the cash in the 
satchel, the 8150 in the pocket book, and the debentures, 
representing in all 83,700. The Mowbray note was not 
considered of any value by the testator, though there seems 
at present some chance of collecting it Deducting the 
amount of the gift and this note, the balance of his per­
sonal estate was at the time the testator made his will not
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1905. quite 84,000. Mrs. Jackson had a savings bank account 
Eastern shewing a balance of some 81,200, which was money in- 

compant herited from her mother. All parties agree that the testa- 
Jackhon. tor was a very exact and methodical man in his business 
Berlin-, j. affairs, and economical in his personal expenses. He kept 

the hooks of the firm, always had possession of the safe 
key, and retaim.-d it up to three days before his death. Mr. 
Robinson, a witness, says the firm's hooks were accurately 
kept, and when he, on liehalf of the executors, looked them 
over, they balanced to a cent. The testator seems to have 
been reticent as to his affairs, and his wife does not appear 
to have known much about them.

The contention made on the part of the residuary 
legatees against the validity of the gift is that the evi­
dence altogether fails in establishing it ; that it rests solely 
upon the uncorroborated testimony of the donee, and that 
this testimony is at all events of too uncertain and doubt­
ful a character to support a donation mortis causa in view 
of the rule by w-hich Courts consider themselves bound 
when dealing with claims made by living persons against 
the estates of deceased ones. That rule, as recognized at 
the present day, I take from the opinion of the Court as 
expressed in In re Hodgson ( 1 ). Sir J. Haiinen there says : 
" Now, it is said on liehalf of the defendants that this evi­
dence is not to be accepted by the Court because there is 
no corroboration of it, and that in the case of a conflict of 
evidence between living and dead persons, there must be 
corroboration to establish a claim advanced by a living 
person against the estate of a dead person. We are of 
opinion that there is no rule of English law laying down 
such a proposition. The statement of a living man is not 
to be disbelieved because there is no corroboration, although 
in the necessary absence through death of one of the 
parties to the transaction, it is natural that in considering 
the statement of the survivor we should look for corrobor­
ation in support of it ; but if the evidence given by the 
living man brings conviction to the tribunal which has to

(1) 31 Ch. D. 177.
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try the question, then there is no rule of law which pre- 1905. 
vents that conviction being acted upon." In Ravdvnson v. Eabtkkn 

Sell I ilex (1), the late Lord Chief Justice Russell, in speak- Company 

ing of the Judge's duty in such cases, says: “I accept as Jackson. 

good law the doctrine laid down by Sir James Hannen in Barker, J. 
Its Hodgson. He ought to examine that evidence with 
care, even with suspicion, hut if after that he felt that it 
was evidence of truth, he should act upon it. He ought to 
lie completely satisfied before allowing the claim ; but he 
ought not to disallow it, satisfied or not, merely because 
the evidence was not corroborated."

In /» re Villon (2), a donatio mortis causa was sup- 
(Kirted oil the evidence of the donee. Cotton, L. J., says :
“ It was urged that her evidence was not corroborated, and 
that the Court will not establish a claim against the estate 
of a deceased person on the evidence of the claimant alone 
unless it is corrolmroted. I do not think that this proposi­
tion is now law. Where a claimant’s case depends entirely 
on his own evidence, the Judge ought to sift that evidence 
very carefully; but if the claimant gives evidence which 
is not shewn to be inaccurate in any material point, and 
which satisfies the Judge of its truthfulness, he ought, I 
think, to act upon it, though it he not corrolxirated."

I have not been able to Hud anything in the evidence 
which can in any way be considered as corroliorutive of 
Mrs. Jackson’s evidence as to the alleged gift. In fact the 
circumstances under which it was made were of a character 
almost to preclude the possibility of such a thing. The 
transaction, whatever it really amounted to, took place 
when no one was present except the two parties to it. It 
was stipulated at the time that nothing should he said 
ulmut it. There is no suggestion that Mr. Jackson ever 
mentioned it, and Mrs. Jackson says positively that she 
never mentioned it until she told her sister on the Monday 
evening some thirty hours after her husband had died. •
The gift, if supported at all, must be sustained by the evi­
dence of Mrs. Jackson alone, and it is therefore necessary

(1) 79 L. T. 350. (2| 44 Ch. D. 76.

VOL. III. N. B. B. H. - 13.
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to see precisely what that is. The house which Mr. and 
Mrs. Jackson occupied at Le tang was directly across the 
street from the store in which his firm carried on their 
business. At night, however, they occupied apartments 
which Mr. Jackson had fitted up for the purpose over the 
store proper. These apartments consisted of, I think, three 
looms opening into each other ; and off the one in which 
the bed was there was a small closet devoted exclusively to 
Mr. Jackson's own use. This closet was kept locked, and 
Mr. Jackson carried the key in his pocket. It was in this 
bedroom Mr. Jackson spent the week of his illness; it was 
there he died, and it was there the alleged gift was made. 
When he was taken ill Mr. and Mrs. Sutton Clark came 
from St. George, where they live, to Letang, so that he 
might not only look after their business there, but also be 
on hand to assist, if necessary, in looking after his uncle. 
During the week they occupied Mr. Jackson’s house, Mrs. 
Jackson remaining with her husiwnd and nursing him 
night and day during his illness. What took place on the 
Thursday when the alleged gift was made Mrs. Jackson 
tells in the following extract from her testimony :

“ Q. During your husband's last illness I think you 
allege he made a gift to you of some money and trends ? 
A. Yes.

“ Q. On what da)’ was that ( A. That was Thursday, 
the 20th ; the day the physician told him he could not 
recover, and if he had any business to attend to, he had 
better do so at mice.

" Q. Who was the physician ? A. Dr. Taylor.
“ Q. Did you hear him make that statement to your 

husband ? A. Yes, I did; and I had a letter from the 
doctor saying it was that day.

“ Q. That is since then ? A. Yes.
“ Q. On Thursday, the 20th Octolier, you heard the 

doctor tell your husband if he had any business to attend 
to he better do so at once ? A. Yes.

“ Q. Did your husband make any communication to 
you then ? A. He asked me to leave him for an hour, so 
he could think.
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“ Q. Did you do so Ï A. Yes. 1905.
“ Q. Where did you go ? A. I went out in the other kastkbn

Teuerroom. Coupant

“Q. In the adjoining room ? A. Yes. Well, it w’anted Jackson. 
five minutes of the hour. Barker. J.

“ Q. At the expiration of the hour you returned to his 
lied room ? A. I did.

“ Q. What, if any, communication did your husband 
make to you then ? A. He said, ' When you see Sutton 
go home to dinner tell me.’

"Q. Meaning Mr. Sutton Clark ? A. Yes.
“ Q. Where would Sutton Clark be at that time ! A.

In the store.
" y. Under in the building ? A. Yes.
“ y. Where would he go to get his dinner ? A. Across 

to the house ; he and his wife occupied the house during 
my husband's illness.

“ y. And he said, when you saw Sutton go to dinner 
to tell him ! A. Yes, he told me that.

“ y. Did you tell him ? A. Yes, I said ‘ He is going 
home.’

“ y. Did your husband address any further words to 
you ? A. He said, 1 Hand me my satchel out of the closet.’

“ y. Do you recognize the satchel in Court as the 
satchel ? A. I think that is the satchel. It was a satchel 
very like it (Looking.) Yes, I think that is the same 
satchel.

“ y. Had your husband had that satchel for any time?
A. Yes, he had it for some years.

“ y. You were familiar with the sight of it ? A. Yes.
“ y. Where was this closet ? A. Right across, in that 

direction, so he could see it all the time when he was in bed.
“ y. Was the closet kept locked ! A. It was locked ; 

the key was in the door while he was in bed, but otherwise 
he kept the key in his pocket.

“ y. The closet was locked with the key in the door 
at that time ? A. Yes.

“y. When he was well he carried the key of that 
closet himself ? A. Yes.
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“ (j. What did he keep in it ? A. Kept his satchel and 
his clothing—nothing belonging to anyone but himself.

“ y. Nothing but his own personal belongings ! A. 
Nothing.

“ y. Where did you keep your own personal belong­
ings ! A. In the house.

“ y. He told you to hand him the satchel A. Yes. 
“ y. You did so ? A. I did so.
“ y. Proceed and tell us what took place. A. He sat 

up in lied and took the satchel in his hand and opened the 
satchel.

“ y. Was it locked or not ( A. No, it was fastened 
with those catches—not locked any more than it is now. 
He sat up in lied and took out of his satchel a long blue 
paper and said, ' These are bonds.’

“ y. Do you mean an envelope A. An envelope 
such as would hold bonds, and said, ‘These are bonds,’ and 
took out a roll of money with a thousand dollars marked 
on it. He said, ' Here are bonds and money.’

“ y. How was this money done up ! A. Why, it was— 
you mean in the roll ! Well, between each hundred dollars 
there was a strip of paper.

“ y. Hut that was afterwards. What was the appear­
ance of the package of money at that time t What was it 
wrapped in ! A. Wrapped in a piece of newspaper.

“ y. Were there any words written on the newspaper I 
A. A thousand dollars was marked on it.

“ y. In ligures I A. Yes.
“ y. Was there anything on it about ‘ Weirs, 1904 ’ ? 

A. No, just ‘ *1000.’
“ y. How marked ? A. One and cyphers.
“ y. In lead pencil or ink ? A. Lend pencil.
“ y. What did he say in regard to it ? A. He said : 

' Here are lionds and money,’ and he gave me a big parcel 
and said this was for present expenses. ‘ Take them and 
put them away ; wrap them up in something and take them 
over and lock them up in your trunk.’

“ y. Was there any other package beside this blue 
envelope containing the bonds and the ]mrcel marked with



III.] NEW BRUNSWICK EQUITY REPORTS. 189

81,000 ? A. Well, to the best of my recollection I think 1905. 
there was an envelope with some money, but I would not Kaatkrn

Companyswear to it ; but it was—
Q. You think there was an envelope also with some Jackups. 

money in it? A. Yes ; and there was a photograph of Barker, j. 
myself that we could not find that was in with these 
papers.

"Q. Is that the photograph (indicating)? A. Yes; 
we could not find it ; it was in the case with his hank 
books, and he took it out and gave it to me.

“ Q. You say he also took out a red leather pocket 
book ? A. Yes.

“ Q. What did lie say in regard to that ? A. He said 
that was for present expenses.

“ Q. What did you do with the articles he gave you— 
all he gave you ; did he take them all out of the valise ?
A. Yes. I got the outside leaves of a magazine called 
‘tlood Literature,’ and a red cotton handkerchief, and 
wrapped them up in it.

“Q. Do you recognize that (the paper)? A. Yes, that
is it.

“ Q. A paper called * Good Literature,’ and issued in 
October, 1904. A. Yea.

“ Q. Is that a periodical you take ? A. Yes, I did at 
that time.

" Q. Had been taking it for some time ?. A. Y es.
“ Q. Was that the last issue of it ? A. I think so ; 

yes. And then I brought in that white box and laid these 
things all on the bed alongside my husband, and took the 
money up and wrapped it into it, and tied it in the hand­
kerchief and put it in a box and set it outside the door on 
the table.

“ Q. Do you recognize this handkerchief ? (indicating).
A. Yes, I recognize the handkerchief ; he had no other 
like it.

“ Q. He had no other like it ? A. No other with the 
same marks on it.

“ Q. Is that the red pocket book in which you saw— ?
A. Yes, that is the pocket look (indicating).



ISO NEW BRUNSWICK EQUITY REPORTS. [VOL.

1905.
Eastern
Trust

Company

Jackson.
Barker. J.

“ Q. (The Court). You wrapped those up, and what 
did you do then ? You laid them on the bed alongside 
your husband 1 A. Yes, and then got the things and 
wrapped that up.

“Q. Wrapped them first in what ? A. In that—the 
whole of the things—everything, poeket book and all.

“ Q. In this red handkerchief ? A. In that handker­
chief, on the photograph ; and I asked him if that would 
do, and he said ‘ Yes, nicely.’

“ Q. I)o you recognize this box ? A. Yes.
“ Q. What did you then do with them 1 A. I took 

the box up and set it up on a little table outside the door 
of the bedroom.

"Q. In the adjoining room? A. Yes, in the adjoin­
ing room. There are three rooms up stairs ; go in one and 
go through a door and go into another next the bedroom 
and the next was the bedroom ; and 1 put it in the adjoin­
ing room on a box we used as a table, and as I did so I 
heard Mr. Sutton Clark coming up stairs, and 1 said,
1 George, Sutton is coming up,’ and he still sat in his bed 
with the valise in his hand, and when he came up he took 
out a thousand dollar roll. He said, ' Here is a thousand 
dollars, Sutton.’

“ Q. How was it wrapped up ? A. In a piece of news­
paper, the same as that I had, with ‘*1000’ marked on it, 
and he said, ‘ Here, Sutton, is a thousand dollars,’ and I 
could not swear whether he said it belonged to the firm or 
to the estate ; but he said one of the two words.

“ Q. And handed it to Mr. Sutton Clark ? A. Yea, in 
my presence.

* Q. While that was going on where was the box con­
taining the handkerchief and paper and money ? A. On 
the little table just outside the door.

“ Q. What did you do with it, if anything, after that ? 
A. My husluuid closed his satchel and handed it to me and 
asked me to put it in the closet, and I put it there.

" Q, Could you see in the satchel ? A. Yes, and there 
was no more money in the satchel, but the two bank hooks, 
mine and his.
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" Q. Were there any papers ? A. Oh, yes, a number 
of papers ; I do not know what they were.

“ Q. You returned the satchel to the closet ? A. To 
the closet, and turned the key to the door, and that is the 
last I saw of it.

“ Q. What did you do with the box containing the 
money and things your husband had given you ? A. I 
took the box in my hand, went over to the house and shut 
my door and got into the kitchen, and took the key and 
unlocked the bureau, and took the bunch of keys and went 
up stairs and unlocked my trunk and took out the tray 
and put the box under the tray and locked the trunk and 
went down stairs and put the key in the bureau.

“ Q. Who was in the house when you did that ? A. 
Mrs. Clark.

“ y. Was Mrs. Clark in a position to see you do this ? 
A. Well, she could if she had a mind.

“ y. Was she in the kitchen «'hen you came in ? A.
Yes.

“ y. And this bureau from which you got the key of 
your trunk was in the kitchen, too ? A. In the kitchen.

“ y. And you took the keys of your trunk out ? A.
Yes.

“ y. And took the box up with you to put in your 
trunk ? A. Yes.

“ y. And returned the keys to your bureau drawer in 
the kitchen ? A. Yes.

“Q. Mrs. Clark remained in the kitchen? A. Yes, 
was there all the time, but whether she saw me with the 
box or not I could not say.

” y. She had opportunity to see it ? A. Oh, yes.
“ y. You put it in your trunk on Thursday, the 20th 

October ? A. Thursday.

This somewhat lengthy and minute examination con­
tains Mrs. Jackson's account of what took place between 
her husband and herself, and which it is contended, consti­
tuted and was intended to constitute a gift causa mortit of 
these monies and bonds to her. If, however, you eliminate

1905
Kahtkrn
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Jackson. 

Barker. J.
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1905. from the extract I have given, all except what was said by 
Kabtekn the parties, and actually done by them, the account is con- 

Compàsv fined to comparatively a few words. The testator opened the 
Jackson, satchel and “took out of it a roll marked SI,000, and an 
Barker, J. envelope, and said, ' Here are binds and money,’ and he gave 

Mrs. Jackson a big parcel and said this was for present 
expenses, ami he told her to take them and put them away; 
wrap them up in something and take them over and lock 
them up in her trunk." Mrs. Jackson says she took the 
bonds and money and put them in her trunk, as she was 
directed. There are, of course, outside circumstances which 
must be considered in deciding as to what the transaction 
really amounted to; but what 1 have just quoted is the only 
evidence having direct reference to the act of gift itself. 
Except as to the pocket book, which was found to contain 
8150, and which the testator said he gave to his wife for 
present expenses, there is not a word indicating an intention 
to give away anything. If he were making a provision for 
his wife one would naturally expect something to be said 
indicative of that intention, but there is absolutely nothing 
of the kind. He did not even state the amount of money 
or the value of the bonds; and although Mrs. Jackson says 
she wrapped up and carried away the- package marked 
8600, and now claims it as part of the property given her, 
she was not prepared to swear that there was any such pack­
age there at the time. No doubt it actually was there, and 
that what Mr. Jackson said had reference as well to the 8600 
package as to the 81,000 one. It is, however, clear from 
Mrs. Jackson’s account, that her husband did not take the 
8600 package out of the satchel. All that Mr. Jackson had 
in view, was, in my opinion, simply to remove this money 
and the bonds to a place of safety so that they could be 
handed over intact, after his death, to the proper persona. 
He knew perfectly well how liable to loss they would be, if 
left in such an exposed place at a time such as that he had 
in mind. Except as to the money in the pocket book, I 
do not think he had any idea of making a gift at all. As 
to that he accompanied the delivery of it with clear words 
of gift, and assigned a very reasonable and sensible reason
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for lining so. That was, I think, an absolute gift, to enable 
her to meet immediate expenses and to supply her with 
money until whatever she might be entitled to get from his 
estate would be available for her use. The evidence shews 
that there was no bank at Le tang, and that Jackson & 
Clark had only a small strong I six, or something of that 
kind, in their store, in which they kept money or valuables. 
This is what they called their safe. Mrs. Jackson says that 
her husband, liefore he was taken ill, said that he had too 
much money to keep in the safe; that he had so much 
money in the safe he was afraid to keep it there. And Mr. 
Clark says that when he got the key of the safe from Mr 
Jackson, he found in it $1,116, in addition to the $1,000 
handed to him by Mr. Jackson, a day or two before he died. 
At the time this alleged gift was made, he had in this 
satchel, locked up in this closet, immediately under his own 
eye, no less than $2,700 in money and $2,(KM) in bonds, 
which he knew perfectly well must, unless sent to a place 
of safety, be liable to exposure and perhaps loss. No 
person except himself seems to have known what really was 
in the satchel. Neither Mrs. Jackson nor Mr. Clark knew 
anything about it. Mr. Jackson seems to have kept his 
own affairs closely to himself, and it was quite natural that 
he should provide some place of safety for property so 
easily lost, so easily stolen, and so difficult of recovery or 
identification ns bank bills and city bonds are. He handed 
over to Mr. Clark a package of $1,000, which from the 
evidence seems really to have belonged to the firm. He 
knew that with the money then in the safe there would than 
lie in it over $2,000 in cash, a much larger sum than Mr. 
Jackson had ever considered prudent to have there. Mr. 
Jackson was admittedly not making a gift of this money 
to Clark, yet he uses precisely the same expression, “ Here, 
Sutton, is a thousand dollars." Mrs. Jackson says she can­
not swear whether he added that it belonged to the firm or 
to the estate, but that he did actually say one or the other. 
If he said that it belonged to the firm, he was clearly not 
making any gift. If he said it lielonged to the estate (by 
which f understand Mrs. Jackson to mean lier husband's
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estate, though he was not then dead), it would be clear 
that he was handing it over to Clark for safe-keeping only. 
It is, I think, very evident that Mr. Jackson's sole object 
in sleeping over the store instead of in his own home was 
to protect what was valuable in the store. Now what does 
he say as to the money and bonds ? “ Here are bonds and 
money." That does not necessarily mean anything more 
than this: “In this satchel are bonds and money,” pro­
ducing or taking in his band an envelope containing bonds, 
or a package containing money. There was no necessity 
for his taking up the $600 package, because he was simply 
in a general way calling her attention to the fact that she 
was being entrusted with something valuable, and his 
object was attained without that. He then does not say, “ I 
give this to you," as he did about the pocket book, but he 
tells her to take them and put them away—to wrap them 
up in something and take them over and lock them up in 
her trunk. Safety was the object he had in view; not a 
gift of the property. Mrs. Jackson says that after she had 
wrapped the packages up she said to her husband : “ Will 
that do, (ieorge !” to which he replied, “ Yes, nicely." And 
in one account of the interview she adds : “ Then (that is 
after all the other things had been wrapped up) he handed 
me the pocket book and said : ' This is for present ex­
penses.' ” If she were really taking these things to keep 
them safely for a short period, to be accounted for to some 
one else, it is natural that she should have turned to him 
to see whether the way in which she had wrapped them 
was satisfactory or not, because the property was still his. 
But if he had relinquished his property in it, and given it 
away to his wife for her own use absolutely, all these 
minute directions as to wrapping it up seem unnatural. 
There are two other pieces of evidence which seem to me 
to sustain this view of the transaction. Mrs. Jackson says 
that her husband told her at the time not to tell anyone, 
as appears by one part of her evidence, or, as she states it 
in another, not to tell Mr. and Mrs. Clark anything about 
what he had done ; and that in accordance with that direc­
tion she did not mention it to any one until she Told her
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sister on the Monday evening. One is at a loss to suggest 
any sensible reason for a man situated as Mr. Jackson was 
to enjoin secrecy in reference to a gift of property to his 
wife. In such cases and at such times secrecy is rather to 
be avoided than otherwise. I can, however, well under­
stand that if Mrs. Jackson was being made simply the 
custodian of this property for a short time, to account for 
it to her husband's representative after his death, he might 
well have cautioned her against giving publicity to the 
fact that, alone and unprotected as she was, she had so 
much valuable property in her possession. Mrs. Jackson’s 
evidence also shews that on the Monday morning when Mr. 
Clark asked her if " Uncle George had given her any money," 
she says she did not give any answer. He repeated the ques­
tion, and she then said, yes, that he had given her money 
for personal expenses. If my conclusion is the correct one, 
Mrs. Jackson's answer was absolutely true ; if her conten­
tion is correct, the answer was a deliberate evasion. It 
cannot even be defended, as she attempts, on the ground 
that she had promised her husband not to tell Clark, for if 
there was any such promise, it referred as much to the pocket 
look and the $150 in it as to the lxmds and other monies.

It is true that in the three or four repetitions of this 
l«irt of Mrs. Jackson's evidence, she varied somewhat the 
language. One of them is important. In that, she says 
her huslsind when taking the bonds and money out of the 
satchel said, "Here are bonds and money for yourself," an 
expression which would indicate an intention to give. 
She also states that after locking the money and bonds up 
in her own trunk, she returned to her husband’s room,and she 
then said to him, “George, if I should not live long, is there 
anyone to whom you would liketo have me leave this money;" 
he said “ No, I have given it to you as your own personal 
property, to do as you see lit.” At another place in her 
examination she says that when she returned, she said, 
"George, if I should not live long is there anyone to whom 
you would like to have me leave this money," and he said, 
"No, it is yours, your own personal property, I give it to 
you for your own personal property.” As to this question
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1905. which Mrs.Juckson says she asked her husbind on returning 
Kahtkks to liis bedside, 1 must confess that it seems to me improb- 

Comi'anv able that the conversation ever took place as it is given. 
Jackups. What is meant by the words, "If I should not live long," 
nsrker. J. a* applied to the object of the question? What point have 

they? It is true that if she referred, in using the words, 
“this money," to the money in the pocket book, the amount 
of which she did not then know, there might be some point 
in using the words, “If I should live long," because she 
might have inferred that if she did, it would all l>e used up. 
To adopt that view would perha[>s be nothing more than 
attempting to explain one improbability by suggesting 
another. But if Mix Jackson was alluding not only to the 
monies, but the binds also, as I understand her to put for­
ward, I can only say that I am unable to see how Mr. 
Jackson's wish as to the ultimate dis|>osal of this property 
by Mrs. Jackson on her death could in any way de|ieiid 
upon the duration of her life. We have two versions of the 
answer to the question. The first is declaratory of a gift 
already made. “No, I have given it to you," &c. The 
second is in terms of a gift then being made. "I give it to 
you as your own personal property.” It may be argued 
that either form of expression is sufficiently precise to sus­
tain the gift, and that any discussion as to which is the 
true version is therefore of no practical use. That might 
be so if we were discussing two separate conversations, 
because in such a case bith answers might have, in fact, 
been given. But we are not; we are dealing with two 
versions of one and the same answer which materially 
differ. Which am 1 to accept ? One is no more likely to 
be true than the other. This evidence, as well as the differ­
ent versions given by Mrs. Jackson of what took place 
between her and her husband, when she soys he handed 
the property over to her, nimply affords another illustra­
tion that that kind of testimony, in cases like this, 
Courts as a result of long experience, have found it prudent 
not to act upon. Such a rule does not necessarily suggest 
that those who have given the testimony, have been in any 
way guilty of fraud or wrong-doing, but it does recognize
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how unreliable human memory often is, and it therefore 
throws upon those who set up an ownership to property, 
acquired as it is contended this was, the onus of proving a 
title by clear and satisfactory evidence.

There are two or three other pieces of testimony to 
which Counsel called my attention. It is obvious, I think, 
that Mr. Jackson fully intended making a will. He was 
endeavoring to communicate with Mr. Belyea at Saint John 
<m Saturday for that purpose, and it is, I think, clear that 
his intention of making the distribution of his property 
which lie did was not formed on the spur of the moment. 
It is said to lie a highly improbable thing for a man situate 
ns Mr. Jackson was to give away to his wife alsiut one- 
third of his whole estate in expectation of his death, and 
in fact when his death was imminent, and a day or two 
Inter make a will giving her a large portion of what was 
left. Mrs. Jackson is very positive that when her Imslxmd 
gave instructions to Mr. Wetmore for his will, the first 
tiling he said was : " 1 want to provide for my wife.” Mr. 
Wetmore and Mr. Clark, who were both present, contradict 
Mix Jackson, and say that he did not use the word “pro­
vide.' It is argued that if he did use that word it would 
go to prove that he had not liefore made any provision for 
her. Another argument usisl was this : It appears from 
the evidence of Mr. Wetmore and Mr. Clark that when Mr. 
Jackson was giving the instructions for the will, after he 
had mentioned the legacy of 33,000, etc., to his wife, and 
tin- two $500 legacies to his nephews’ sons, he said “ How 
much is that f" to which Mr.Wetmore replied," Knur thous­
and dollars." Mr. Jackson said, “ There is more than that," 
and then directed the balance to go to his sisters' children. 
It is said that if the alleged gifts are deducted from the 
total personal property, as I have already given it, there 
would not remain any balance for distribution after deduct­
ing the $4,000 in legacies. In which case it is contended 
that Mr. Jackson, when he said "There is more than that," 
must have included the monies and bonds now claimed by 
his wife. Mrs. Jackson says that when she heard the will 
read in the evening of the day of the funeral, the contente
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1905 of which she already knew all about, she pronounced it a 
*TruSn most cruc' W'H If she took under the will $3,000, a horse, 
uoMi'isf two carriages, and all the household effects, in addition to 
Jackson, the $3,700 she had received three days before, the will 
Barker, j. could scarcely he called “ cruel,” in view of the total estate.

Before closing what I have to say on this part of the evi­
dence, I must mention one other circumstance, an account 
of which I take from Mrs. Jackson's cross-examination.

“ y. He was ill then, was he ? (that is, when the bonds 
and money were handed over). A. He was ill, and he was 
very low.

“ Q. And spoke very low t A. Yes.
“ Q. And you are a little hard of hearing ! A. Yes.
“ y. It is possible that you have not got the exact 

words. A. Perhaps so.
“ Q. He might have said things that would give one 

impression to your mind that he did not say, and he might 
have said things you did not hear ' A. Yes."

We have therefore not only to deal with evidence un­
corroborated and inexact in material |x)iuts, but it is the 
evidence of a person whose power of hearing was impaired 
in regard to a conversation lwtween herself and a man who 
was ill and very low, and who naturally spoke in a very 
low tone of voice—conditions in every respect favorable to 
mistake and misunderstanding.

Lord Chelmsford, in delivering the opinion of the 
Judicial Committee of the Privy Council in Carnahan v. 
Grice ( 1), a case similar to the present, says : " Cases, of 
this kind demand the strictest scrutiny. So many oppor­
tunities and such strong temptations present themselves to 
unscrupulous persons to pretend these death-bed donations, 
that there is always danger of having an entirely fabricated 
case set up; and, without any imputation of fraudulent 
contrivance, it is so easy to mistake the meaning of persona 
languishing in a mortal illness, and by a slight change of

(1) 15 Moo. P. C. 216.
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words to convert their expressions of intended benefit into 
an actual gift of property, that no case of this description 
ought to prevail unless it is supported by evidence of the 
clearest and most unequivocal character." It appeared in 
that case as in this that the alleged gift was made when 
the donor was contemplating making a will. In reference 
to this Lord Chelmsford says: “ Now, it certainly is most 
unaccountable that the deceased, who was thus contemplat­
ing the disjiosition of her property by will, should, at the 
very moment when she must actually have given instruc­
tions for it, have been making a louse and informal gift of 
almost the whole of her personal estate." After comment­
ing upon the evidence, Lord Chelmsford says : ‘ This sum­
mary of the different accounts which have been given from 
time to time is not offered with any view of disparaging 
the witnesses, or of imputing to them any intentional mis­
representation, but merely to shew the uncertainty which 
prevails over a transaction in which clearness and precision 
are essentially requisite." See also Hall v. Hall (I) ; 
iitlirnied on appeal (2).

The facts and circumstances which have forced upon 
my mind the conclusion which I have already announced, 
may jmssibly not carry the same conviction to the minds of 
others. But if I am mistaken in my view, there is certainly 
in the evidence an absence of that clearness and precision 
without which gifts of this kind cannot be supported.

There is another chapter in the history of this trans­
action. which surrounds it with a still greater mystery. 
There is evidence which shews beyond all reasonable doubt, 
that these very Ixjnds and money were all in the possession 
and under the control of the testator when he died—that is 
to say, that they were at that time actually in the satchel 
in the closet, which was locked. Mrs. Jackson says that 
she did not go to her trunk in which she had locked up the 
baids and money on Thursday, until the following Monday 
evening, when she and her sister, Mrs. Street, went to see if 
it was all safe. She unlocked the trunk, hut found that the

1905.
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(1) 20 0. R. tiBt. (2) 1» A. R. 202.
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1905. money, bonds and everything, except the paper box, had 
kistkrn been taken away. It seems that on the Sunday evening, 

Comcast as Mr. Clark says, or on tile Monday morning, as Mrs. 
Jackups. Jackson says, Mr. Clark hail handed her this satchel, which 
Barker. J. she had taken and placed in a bedroom in her own home, 

which she had that day prepared (or the use of Mr. and 
Mrs. Street, who were coming down to be present at the 
funeral. Finding that the property had been taken from the 
trunk, they searched the satchel anil in it found, apparently 
undisturbed, the bondx, packages of money and other 
articles, which, according to Mrs. Jackson’s account, had all 
been handed to her on the Thursday previous, taken away 
and locked up in her trunk. It contained not only these, 
but the two savings liank books, the Mowbray note and 
other pH]id's which appear to have been in the satchel on 
the Thursday, hut which Mrs. Jackson did not take away. 
In other words, it seemed then to contain everything that 
was in it when Mrs. Jackson first got it from the closet, 
except the SI,000 delivered to Mr. Clark, about which there 
seems to be no question. Mrs. Street entirely confirms Mrs. 
Jackson's statement ns to wdiat took place at that time. 
Mr. Wetmore, who is an entirely disinterested witness, was 
called in on the Sunday morning, in the absence of a 
solicitor, to draw the will. After it had been executed, Mr. 
Wetmore remained there until after Mr. Jackson’s death. 
Mrs. Jackson seems to have gone over to her own home 
immediately after. Wetmore'* evidence on this point is as 
follows :

" y. Were you there when he died ? A. No.
"(j. How long after? A. Within fifteen or twenty 

minutes after.
“ (J. (The Court). Nine or ten in the morning or even­

ing ? A. It was nine or ten in the morning the will was 
written, and between one and two in the afternoon wdien 
he died.

“ Q. Who was there wdien you came back again in 
the afternoon ? A. Dr. Taylor and Mr. Clark, and Mr. 
Clark’s bookkeeper, a Mr. Milligan, and Mr. Austin, who
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drove down with the doctor, and I cannot say whether Mrs. 
Jackson was there. I know she was there in the forenoon.

“ Q. Was there an undertaker ? A. The undertaker 
did not come down till the evening. The doctor and Mr. 
Austin, who was with him, laid Mr. Jackson out.

“ Q. Who got the clothes ? A. The doctor and I both 
looked in the closet for clothes, and the doctor looked in the 
trunk for clothes, and some clothes came over from the 
house. I know there was a suit brought over.

“ (j. Did you see Mr. Sutton Clark looking in the 
closet for the clothes ! A. I cannot say for certain, but 1 
think he was looking the same as the rest.

“ Q. Did you notice a valise in the closet A. No, I 
did not.

“ Q. How long did you remain there—tell what hour 
A. After his death ? Oh, well, I suppose it was an hour 
after his death we drove to St. George, Mr. Clark and I.

“ Q. When did you return again to the place ! A. It 
would be perhaps six o’clock. We saw the undertaker, and 
I also went to the telephone and telephoned to Mr. Belyea.

"Q. The body was taken over to the house? A. Taken 
over to the house that evening. The undertaker came 
down after tea. I know he was not there when I went to 
tea, but the Ixxly was over when I came back again.

“y. Was any examination made as to property that 
evening? A. Yes, Mr. Clark said to me that day, driving 
to town, ‘Uncle George keeps some of his papers, valuables, 
in the satchel.’

“y. As to what was found I Q. (Mr. Gregory). At 
what time ? A. At about eight o’clock, I should think, in 
the evening.

“y. What did you find in it ? A. We found one pack­
age, rolled up in newspaper, marked $1,000.

" y. Where did the valise come from t A. Mr. Clark 
brought it out of his closet in the bedroom, out in to the 
outer room, and there was a package tied up in a red hand­
kerchief. Mr. Clark untied the package and turned the 
piliers over. I saw two bank txroks and three bonds, city 
of St. John bonds.

1905.
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1905. "Q. In what shape did you find them, in an envelope,
Kaktkkn or folded up ' A. No, they were not in anything. Mr. 

coupant Clark picked them up in his hand like that.
Jackson. “Q. Were they tied together A. No, not ho far as
Barker, J. J know. 1 was standing holding the lamp while he turned 

them over. I noticed the city of St. John bond, and Maid, 
‘That is a city of St. John bond.’

"(J. Did you examine enough to know if there was 
another folded in ? A. No, I did not, but I saw three. 
There was an envelope marked for #1100, ami among the 
papers was a note of Mr. Mowbray; Mr. Clark held out the 
paper and said. 'That is uncle Tom’s note.'

"Q. Where did he get it from ? A. He got it out of 
that liag.

“ Q. What cash was there ! A. One parcel was marked 
91,000, and an envelope was marked 81)00.

“ <j. Did you count the 81,000 ‘ A. No, sir, I counted 
nothing.

“ Q. After this examination what was done with the 
contents ( A. M r. Clark locked up the satchel and took it 
back and put it in the closet.

" Q. Did he put the things lack in the satchel # A. 
He put the things back in the satchel.

“ <j. You went down stairs ! A. He went down stairs 
and he talked alsmt what disposition had better be made 
of the satchel. He said it was not safe to be left up there, 
and said, ‘ I have a great mind to take it over and give it 
to Aunt Fanny.' I told him probably that was the best 
thing he could do. He went up stairs, brought down the 
satchel and took it over."

Mr. ('lark’s evidence is a little more circumstantial. 
He describes how the satchel was open when he went with 
the doctor to look for clothes, and that he then saw it con­
tained valuables; that he mentioned it to Mr. Wetmore on 
their way to St. George, and met him by appointment at 
about eight in the evening, when he and Mr. Wetmore 
examined the contents of the satchel, as Mr. Wetmore des­
cribed, and that he then took it over that same evening to



NEW BRVN8W1CK EQUITY REPORTS. 203

liis aunt in her home, giving it to lier, saying, “Aunt Fanny, 
that is yours; take care of it till the trust company 
comes." To this he says she made no reply. She swears 
that he did not give her the satchel until the following 
morning, ami that he said nothing about the trust com­
pany at all. If these accounts contain a true and full 
statement of what took place, the appearance of the money 
and I «mils in the satchel at the time of Mr. Jackson's death, 
and apparently in his possession at that time, can only be 
accounted for on one of two theories; one is that Mrs. 
Jackson never took the things away at all, as she says, 
and the other is that some one stole them out of her trunk, 
and broke it open for that purpose. I am at loss to say 
which is the more improlaible suggestion of the two. Mr. 
Clark is the only person upon whom any suggestion of 
suspicion can rest. But he knew nothing of the gift to 
Mrs. Jackson, or of her having the property, until after Mr- 
Jackson’s death—a day after, certainly. 1 cannot see any 
|*issihle motive for an act so sure of detection, and what is 
more important his character, so far as anything I have 
Is-fore me, quite precludes the possibility of such a thing. 
He hud lieen for years a trusted partner of Mr. Jackson. 
He was, as Mrs. Jackson herself said, "to her like her own 
son," and that she could not think either Mr. or Mrs. Clark 
could be guilty of breaking into a bureau, box or trunk. 
Mr. Jackson had, within a few hours of his death, testified 
to his esteem for him by giving him by will a substantial 
legacy and another to his son. I agree with Mr. Gregory 
in thinking that if the gift was once complete, and a 
delivery made of the property with a view to transferring 
it to Mrs. Jackson by way of a donatio mortis causa, it 
would not be defeated by the property being returned to 
the donor’s possession through no act of his and fraudu­
lently as against the donee. I think it may be assumed 
that if Mrs. Jackson ever took the property away she 
never returned it. The only question is whether or not 
the evidence as it stands throws any doubt on the fact of 
the delivery having been made. Entertaining the opinion 
which I have expressed, it is unnecessary to decide this
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mysterious question. It but odds to the doubts witli which 
the case is surrounded, and increases the difficulties in the 
way of arriving at a clear or positive idea of its true history.

I think there must be a decree that Mrs. Jackson must 
account to the plaintiffs for the debentures, and the money, 
except the #150—that is, the #1,550 in cash, and the four 
debentures which will be delivered to the plaintiffs.

As to the costs, I shall follow the order made in Hall 
v. Hall, already cited, and for the reasons there stated.

All parties will have their costs out of the estate : the 
plaintiffs’ costs as between solicitor ami client.
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OUILETTE t. LeBEL

Deed Maintenance—Enforcement of agreement — Breach—Onue 
of proof.

In a suit to enforce a lien upon land conveyed to the defendant 
liy the plaintiffs, husband and wife, in consideration of an 
agreement hy defendant to supi>ort them, the onus of prov­
ing a breach of the agreement ia upon the plaintiffs.

Bill to enforce a lion upon land conveyed to defendant 
by the plaintiffs, husband and wife, in consideration of an 
agreement by the defendant to support them. The facts 
fully appear in the judgment of the Court.

Argument was heard July 18, 1905.

A. B. Connell, K. C.. and W’. F. Kertêon, for the 
plaintiffs.

F. hi Forent, for the defendant.

1905. October 20. Barker, J.:—

This litigation arises out of an arrangement by 
which the plaintiffs, husband and wife, conveyed to the 
defendant all their real, and substantially all their personal, 
property in consideration of support and maintenance to be 
furnished them during the remainder of their lives. The 
bill was Bled to enforce the lien created by the agreement 
in order to secure its performance. A cross bill was Bled 
to compel a conveyance of a portion of the land included in 
the agreement, but which was omitted from the conveyance 
by oversight.

The conveyance, which is dated July 5, 1902, purports 
to have been made in consideration of $1, and of certain 
covenants and agreements contained therein, to be per­
formed by the defendant. These covenants are as follows:—

1905.
Octobrr 10.
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OVUKTTK
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‘‘And the said Leon LeBel, for himself, his heirs, 
executors, administrators and assigns, doth hereby cove­
nant, promise and agree to and with the said Martial 
Ouilette and Anna, Ins wife, and the survivor of them, that 
he, the said Leon LeBel, his heirs, executors and adminis­
trators shall and will at all times hereafter maintain, keep, 
support and provide the said Martial Ouilette and his said 
wife Anna, and the survivor of them, for and during the 
term of their and each of their natural lives, with good anil 
sufficient house-room, to be not less than four rooms for 
their exclusive use, either upon tile said premises or two 
rooms in some other suitable place within the said Parish 
of Drummond, and with meat, drink, washing, clothing, 
fuel, light, and in addition to all such other necessaries as 
persons in their situation of life and of their age, reason­
ably require, and shall provide them annually with the 
following specific articles, namely: to them jointly, one 
gallon of gin, one gallon of wine and the sum of five dollars 
in money; to the survivor of them, one-luilf of the said 
quantities of liquor, and the full sum of live dollars in 
money; and further, that he the said Leon LeBel, his heirs, 
etc., shall and will at the costs and charges of him or them, 
upon the demise of them, the said Martial Ouilette and 
Anna his wife, provide for each of them, decent Christian 
burial, and shall cause to lie said or had proper requiem 
masses or services at their respective deaths; and also at the 
expiration of one year thereafter, according to the rites and 
ceremonies of the Roman Catholic Church." There was also 
a similar covenant by which the defendant agreed that he 
would, during the remainder of the plaintiffs' lives, provide 
them “ each with a suitable seat in the Roman Catholic 
Church in the said Parish of Drummond," and should also. 
“ whenever requested, furnish and provide the said Martial 
Ouilette and Anna, his wife, for their pleasure and con­
venience, a suitable horse and vehicle,” and should also, “in 
case the said Martial Ouilette and his wife Anna, so desire, 
provide and advance to them sufficient means to defray the 
expenses of a trip to Fall River, Mass, and return, provided 
such a trip is made within two years from the date hereof.”
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The defendant further agreed to pay, on request, the 
following amounts owing by the plaintiff, that is to say: 
Frank Goudreau, 83.21; John Taylor, 83.25, a note due the 
Peoples' Bank for 830, and a note for 850 due Powers. It 
was also stipulated that the real estate should not lie sold 
or encumbered without the plaintiffs’ written consent, and 
that the land and premises were to stand “charged with the 
support and maintenance." At the same time the plaintiff 
( luilette conveyed for the same consideration by bill of sale 
to the defendant all his stock and personal property, except 
some household furniture. Although these conveyances were 
not made until July, 1002, the actual agreement was settled 
upon in the previous May. and at that time the defendant 
with his family moved to the premises, and he then 
entered into the occupation and possession of the property 
intended to be conveyed, including the omitted strip of 
land, and he has continued in such possession from that 
time. The property conveyed was probably worth 81,500. 
The house contained four rooms on the ground flat ; it is 
10x32 feet in size, with a small bed-room upstairs. The 
plaintiff Martial (Juliette is (18 years old, and his wife 45, 
and they both seem vigorous and in a good state of health.

The plaintiffs continued to live with the defendant 
from May, 1902, up to the end of 1903, a period of say, 
twenty months. During that period they spent between 
two and three months in a visit to Quebec. At Christmas, 
1903, they went to visit some friends for a day or two ; 
they returned two or three days before New Year's, 
remained a day, and on the 29th or 30th December, 1903, 
they left without any notice to the defendant, and never 
returned. Before going they locked up the four rooms 
which they occupied, also the cellar, and took with them a 
horse, pung and harness. They still retain [MisseHsion of 
the rooms and cellar, and have never returned the horse, 
pung and harness. The case set up by the plaintiffs is 
that they have not been provided with the support, main­
tenance and specific articles, to which by agreement they 
were entitled. In reference to the money required to meet 
the expenses of the trip to Fall River, it is admitted that it

1905.
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1905. was not provided, but as to all the other matters, I under- 
Ovn.ETTK stand that the defendant asserts that he actually provided 

LeBei.. all that was required, or was ready and willing to do so at 
Barker. J. the house where the plaintiffs had themselves elected to 

have them 'supplied; and that if the plaintiffs did not 
choose to avail themselves of what was provided for them, it 
was their own fault. As I read these covenants which 
seem to have been drawn with care and with the very 
proper view of safe-guarding the plaintiffs’ interests, they 
provide for two cases—one where the support is furnished 
at the defendant's house, in which case the plaintiffs were 
to have the exclusive right of four rooms, which was 
practically the whole house ; the other was where the 
support was furnished at some other house in the Parish 
of Drummond, in which case they were to have hut two 
rooms. In both cases, the meat, drink, washing, fuel and 
light, and which I shall for convenience sake speak of as 
support, were to be furnished at the place of residence and 
not elsewhere. The clothing and the specific articles, that 
is, the gin, wine, money, seats in church, etc., in my opinion 
stand in a different position. There may be some question 
as to the horse and carriage, but as to the others, 1 think 
the defendant is bound to supply them altogether irrespec­
tive of any question of residence. That is to say, if the 
plaintiffs failed in establishing their claim to compensation 
for support, because they left the house where it was to be 
furnished them without sufficient cause, that would not 
interfere with their right to the specific articles. The 
defendant’s house is the place of residence selected, and 
even if the plaintiffs had the right to change it, they have 
not done so. On the contrary they still hold the exclusive 
possession of the four rooms, and in my opinion their claim 
for support must rest upon their right to have it supplied 
there and not elsewhere. This renders it necessary to 
review the evidence as to the disputes and differences 
which took place between the parties, and upon which the 
plaintiffs now rely as having justified them in going away. 
The last and by all means the most serious trouble took 
place in December, 1903, and only a few days before they
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went away. It seems that the plaintiffs had the idea, 
rightly or wrongly, that they were entitled to go into the 
stable and take a horse and carriage out for their own use, 
without consulting any one, and quite irrespective of the 
requirements of the defendant for his work. This had 
given rise to some friction on one or two occasions, hut 
what took place at this time I take from the cross-examina­
tion of the plaintiff Martial Ouilette.

“ Q. What did you go there for ? (that is, to the stable). 
A. To get my horse.

"Q. Did you ask Mr. Le Bel to give you a horse# 
A. Yes.

“ Q. What did he say ? A. I told Mr. LeBel that horse 
was harnessed up since morning, and 1 wanted the horse to 
go to the Falls to confession, me and my wife, and Mr. LeBel 
answered that he would unharness the horse when he was 
through with it.

“ y. What time of day was this, the forenoon ? A. Yes.
" y. You were telling him you would want the horse 

for the afternoon ? A. Yes.
“ y. And he answered, when he was through with him 

he would harness him for you. What did you say to that? 
A. No, he told me I would get the horse when he was 
through.

“ y. He said as soon as he would get through you 
would have him ? A. Yea

"y. What did you say ? A. I told Mr LeBel it was 
not I was supposed to furnish the horse, it was Mr. LeBel 
was supposed to furnish me the horse.

“ y. And the reason you told him that was you thought 
that his horse was yours, and Mr. LeBel should not be 
using it ? A. No, he worked the horse all he wanted, and 
I never told him a word.

“ y. What do you mean by saying you told Mr. LeBel 
it was not for you to furnish the horse to him ? A. It was 
my horse and he had reserved with his horse and wagon.

“ y. Then it was because you thought you had reserved 
this horse and sleigh that Mr. LeBel should not be using it ? 
A. No. I did not think that.

1905
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1905. "(j. VVliat did LeBel say when you told him it was not
Ocilbttk for you to furnish the horse for him ? A. Mr. LeBel said 1 

LeBel. had notliing there.no horse.no harness, no pung, no house. 
B»rker. J. no farm or nothing.

“ Q. What did you say to that? A. I told Mr. Lebel if 
he was home once that it was me that put him there.

“ (j. What did lie say to that ? A. We exchanged 
quite a few words, laid language.

“(j. Did not you say as much to him of had language 
as he said to you ? A. Yes. 1 knew more about Mr. Le Bel 
than Le Bel knew alxiut me.

“ Q. And that gave you a chance to say more to Le Bel 
than he to you ? A. I was not very interested in that.

“ (j. Did not Le Bel at that time tell you to take one of 
the mares there ? A. No.

“ Q. Was not that the time you told LeBel that his 
mare was a cow like himself f A. Yes.

“ Q. Was it not when he told you take one of the 
mares, you said that ? A. No, he never ; either one of his 
mares LeBel did not like to give it, and I did not like to 
drive them.

" This was the first bad language used between you. 
You told him his mare was a cow and just like himself ? 
A. I told LeBel, why did you not take your mare ? He 
says it is eight days that we did not ust- her out. He said, 
LeBel tell me his mare was sick. I answer Lebel, his mare 
was a cow like him.

“ (j. And it was then that he struck you ? A. Yes. 
Then I went for Mr. Le Bel right off.

“ (j. Did you not blacken Le Bel's eyes that time ? 
A. Yes.

" Q Did not LeBel get the worst of it ? A. LeBel 
stood up. I do not know who got the best of it, LeBel had 
black eyes, and I did not have any black eyes or scratches.

“ Q. When you came back, before New Year's, you 
made up your mind to leave, did you not, you and 
your wife ? A. Not me, but my wife.

“Q. It was your wife wanted to go ? A. Wanted to go.
“ Q. You did not want to go ? A. No.



Ill] NEW BRUNSWICK EQUITY REPORTS. 211

“ Q. But you went ? A. I went.
“ ( j. Did you speak to LeBel before going and tell him 

you were going away ? A. I left the day liefore New 
Year's, and we began to talk alxmt this trouble.

“ Q. Who liegan to talk about it < A. Me anil my wife.
“ (j. Did you speak to LeBel and notify him of your 

intention of leaving ! A. No, I did not think of going.
“ Q. Then the reason you did not speak to LeBel before 

leaving was you did not think you were leaving for good 
when you went away ? A. I did not know it ; I thought 1 
was coming back.

' Q. How long after that did you make up your mind 
not to come hack ! A. When we were going away, right 
after we left."

Mrs. Ouilette says that this tight, as she calls it, ended 
with the third blow. If its importance is to be measured 
by results, the plaintiffs have not much ground for com­
plaint. In order, however, to understand the full signifi­
cance of the incident, one should know that the property 
transferred included two horses, and that the defendant him­
self had two which he took with him when he moved. It 
is also necessary to explain that the evidence of the plnin- 
till's, and all the other important witnesses, was given in 
French, and that the word which the interpreter translated 
“cow" conveys a meaning by no means complimentary to 
those to whom it is applied, as the word is understood by 
the French inhabitants of that [«irt of the Province. It 
is no doubt difficult for those who transfer all their prop­
erty, in order to secure a maintenance for life, to realize 
how entirely they thereby alter their condition. They are 
apt to forget that they no longer have the control of affairs, 
and that where they were masters in their own house they 
are now hut lodgers in the house of another. Ks|x-cially 
<hs‘S this seem to have lieen the case with this plaintiff. 
He was constantly assuming an authority which he did not 
Imsxesa, and assorting an ownership of the property to 
which lie had no claim. Not only did he do this, hut his 
manner of doing it would have irritated a much milder 
dispoeitioned man than the defendant is And I cannot hut

1905.

Ovn.rrre 
l.r.Bai 

Barker, J.



212 NEW BRUNSWICK EQUITY REPORTS. [VOL.

1 !I05. think that the most of the disputes which the plaintiff 
ovii.ette now puts forward as a justification for leaving the house 

i.kh’kl. owe their origin to his unnecessarily meddling with the 
H*rker, j. defendant's business and his coarse language and intem­

perate manner. Take, for instance, the incident I have 
just mentioned. The plaintiff requires the use of a horse 
and carriage in the afternoon. In the forenoon, when he 
went to ask for it, instead of simply doing that and going 
away, he begins by lecturing the defendant for keeping 
the horse so long in harness. A horse had always been 
placed at his disposal when he wanted one. He had 
actually had one for the two or three months he was in 
Quebec. One thing appears quite plain, that when the 
plaintiffs a few days later e house, Ouilette himself
hud no thought of remaining away permanently. He 
expected to come buck. It does not seein to have ever 
been suggested to him by anything which had taken place 
that there was any reason for either himself or his wife 
leaving and going elsewhere to live. It seems to have been 
altogether out of deference to his wife’s wishes that he 
changed his mind. An examination of her evidence does 
not shew that she had much ground for complaint Besides 
the trouble in December, 1903, just before the plaintiffs 
went away, she oidy speaks of one occasion when anything 
like rough language was used to her by the defendant. 
This was fifteen iiwnths before they went away, and no im­
portance seems to have been attached to it. Mrs. Ouilette’s 
account of what took place at that time is as follows :

“ Q. Did Mr. Le Bel ever use any abusive language to­
wards you or attempt to strike you? A. Vcs, when Mr. 
Ouilette asked him fora hat Mr. LcBel told Ouilette that 
that hat was not for his age or for his means or for his 
position.

“ Q. Did he tell him anything else ! A. Yes ; Leflel 
told Ouilette that he had promised to help him out in the 
crop, and that he had not done it Then I told LeBel : 
' No, to count him as dead, that he would not work ; he had 
given his property.’ Then that made LeBel mad, and he

00
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tmk me by the arm and said, 1 Go away, go away,' and he 
walked towards me and told me to ‘Shut up my mouth, 
you cursed old hag,'

“ Q. Was there any other occasion on which he struck 
A. Afterwards he told me he would strike me with 

his fist on the forehead. I did not pay any attention to it.
“ (j. Did you get along more pleasantly during the 

summer of 1903 than before ? A. It always went wrong.
“ Q. Did matters improve during the fall of 1903 ? 

A. We went away.
“ Q. When t A. The 28th of December.
“Q. Did you return after that? A. Yes, we came 

hack and went away again the day before New Year.
" Q. And did you return after that again ? A. No, 

never went back in the house afterwards.
“ (J. Why did you not go hack ? A. We did not go 

lxick, because every time Ouilette would get there they 
would have some words, and LeBel had promised me a 
licking and I was scared."

Mrs. Ouilette here gives the two reasons why she and 
her husband refused to return to the house. The first is 
the ap[Mirent impossibility of these two quarrelsome men 
living together without constant disputes, though she does 
not attribute more fault to the one than to the other ; and 
the second is a reasonable apprehension on her part of 
violent treatment to herself by LeBel, by which, to use her 
own expression, “ she was scared." From her cross-exami­
nation it is clear that she bases her apprehension of violence 
not ui>on anything either said or done to her personally by 
the defendant, but upon something, as she says, told to her 
by the witness Baptiste Theriault, who seems to be a very 
meddlesome man, and upon a statement of the witness 
Hioux, who seems to be a different kind of a man alto­
gether. Rioux speaks of bad language, as he terms it, 
between LeBel and Ouilette, whom he seems to think 
equally at fault, but he does not say a word as to any 
threats to Mrs. Ouilette. As for Theriault, it is true that 
he dues speak of LeBel threatening to strike Mrs. Ouilette,
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1005. but where it was or why he should do it does not appear, 
onucttr It does, however, appear that Theriault was, as usual, 

i.kBef. meddling with other people's business, and evidently trying 
Uerkrr. j. to get up a tight or disturbance between these people. I 

do not think his evidence is worth considering at all. 
I think it altogether improlmble that when Mrs. Ouilette 
went away in December, 1003, she had any idea of not 
returning. Any fears of personal violence, if she had any, 
would naturally have been known to her husband. I do 
not think she had any, or that she was scared in the least. 
Neither do I think there was any ground for her being so, 
or for her apprehending any violence of any kind. It is 
significant that itioux, who gave these people excellent 
advice as to the settlement of their disputes, which I regret 
they did not follow, in speaking of the defendant’s threats, 
says that what the defendant did say was that, " If Ouilette 
did not quit bothering him he would put him in his place."

There is evidence of some other disputes more or less 
trivial in their character; one about the loan of a butter 
tub, which commenced by Ouilette giving Mrs. Le Bel some 
advice ns to taking care of her things, and ended by 
Ouilette, according to his account, ordering the defendant 
and family out of the house. Another as to some tobacco 
which, so far as I can see, the defendant was under no 
obligation to supply, but which he seems to have supplied, 
and on this particular occasion Ouilette called Mrs LeBel 
“ a cow.” It is, however, unnecessary to go more minutely 
into these differences, liecause I am convinced, as a general 
result of the whole evidence, the surrounding circum­
stances and the manner of the witnesses under examination, 
that the plaintiffs were not justified by the circumstances 
in leaving as they did. I do not for a moment say that the 
defendant has been by any means free from blame. He is 

. evidently an excitable man with a temper, which he him­
self described as “ not too sweet." I cannot, however, find 
anything in the evidence to shew that he did not intend 
honestly to carry out his agreement. He spent a consider­
able sum in building a house and making other improve­
ments on the farm. He seems also to have paid quite a
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sum on the plaintiffs' account for which he was in no way 
liable, and no objection has been suggested to the support 
actually furnished either as to its quantity or its quality. 
The plaintiffs, of course, had the right to complain if they 
were not being supplied with what they were entitled to 
under the agreement, hut any interference beyond that 
could scarcely result in any other way than in making 
trouble. So fur as the plaintiffs’ claim for compensation 
for support is concerned, the onus is, I think, u]ion them to 
shew that they were justified in leaving the premises where 
the support was to be furnished. I have already indicated 
that in my opinion the fair result of the evidence is that 
the troubles were mainly attributable to the actions of the 
plaintiffs themselves, for which they had no real excuse. 
But if a view more favorable to the plaintiffs be taken, and 
it be thought the plaintiffs and defendant were equally at 
fault, the plaintiffs would not in that case have discharged 
the onus of proof upon them. I hope that these people 
will have the good sense to recognize how impossible it is 
for two persons, each with excitable and inflammatory 
dispositions as theirs, to live harmoniously together us one 
family in the same house, and that some settlement of their 
disputes may be agreed upon which will end this litigation 
and prevent any in the future.

There will be a reference to settle the amount due under 
the agreement according to the terms I have indicated.

1905.
OUII.ETTB

LbBel. 
Barker. J.
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1905.
December IX

EVANS v. EVANS.

/lusbaiut and wife—Purchase in wife's name — Gift.

Where property purchased hy a huslutnd as a home for himself 
and wife was hy his direction conveyed to her, so that the 
title might he in her in ease of his death, it was held that a 
gift was intended, to take effect upon his death if she should 
survive him.

Land situate in Queen s County belonging to one James 
Vincent, a brother of the defendant, was conveyed to the 
defendant under the circumstances set out in the judgment 
of the Court. The bill prayed for a declaration that the 
defendant holds the land in trust for the plaintiff, and that 
she might be ordered to convey the same to him, or, in the 
alternative, for a declaration that the plaintiff is entitled to 
a lien or charge upon the land for an amount advanced by 
him in paying off a mortgage thereon.

Argument was heard October 19, 1905.

A. /. Trueman, K. C., and IV. It. Trueman, for the 
plaintiff: —

The mortgage was paid by the plaintiff’s money. The 
money used for the purpose, taken from the savings bank 
account, was his. It is unreasonable to suppose that he 
made a gift to his wife of the amount put on deposit. A per­
son in his circumstances would not part with so considerable 
a share of his earnings. In handing the money to her he 
impressed upon her that she was to deposit it in their joint 
names. During his life it would be his, thoui'h upon his 
death it might, under such an arrangement, posi bly pass to 
her. A present gift to the exclusion of all title in himself 
certainly will not be intended. See Marshal v. Crutwell(l). 
A part of the money used in [laying off the mortgage came 
directly from him. and no gift in res[iect of it can be set up

(1) U R. 20 Eq. 82H.
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by the defendant. The plaintiff earned on the whole of 1905. 
the negotiations with both Vincent and Murray in respect Evans 

to the property and carrying the fnortgage. If the money Evans. 

was the defendant’s he would have left the matter to her, 
and would not have d< e money as his own. The
only point in the case is whether the property is hers by 
reason of the deed being put in her name at his direction.
Such a question is one of fact. There is no presumption 
that a gift was intended. See Gibbons v. Tomlinson (1), 
and AV /strie Cooper (2). It must lie shewn by the 
wife, either by direct evidence or by a course of dealing 
between her huslmnd and herself, that a gift was 
intended. See lie Curtis (.'!), and Elliott v. Bussell (4).
The plaintiff gave as the reason for putting the property in 
the defendant's name, that in case of his death there would 
lie no trouble. That could only lie a gift to take effect on 
his death. In the meantime he was free to revoke it,
Clearly she would not be entithsl to deal with it in his life­
time as her own. He expressly declared that it was to be 
a home for them when he was old or unfit for work. If the 
plaintiff is not entitled to have the property conveyed to 
him, he is entitled, at least, to a declaration of joint tenancy.
See He Ryan (5); Gosling v. Gosling (ti).

Il. B. II allace, K.C. (A'. S. Ritchie with him), for the 
defendant :—

The money used in paying off the mortgage was the 
wife’s, l’art of it was birthday and Christmas presents.
The plaintiff agreed with her that anything she should 
save in managing the household should be hers. If he did 
not intend the money to be hers, it is singular that after 
learning that the account was in her name he continued 
placing money in her hands to be deposited in the same 
way. Even if the property could be said to have been

(1) 21 O. R. 480 (41 19 O. R. 413.
» . .v HO

L. T. 244.
(5) 32 Ü. R. 22». 
(8) 3 Drew. 33Ù.

VUL III. S. U. A. *.-11.

2^95



?18 NEW BRUNSWICK EQUITY REPORTS. [VOL.

1905. purchased with the husbands money, the presumption is
Evans that a gift was intended. See DeBury v. DeBury (1).
Evans. The evidence, so far from rebutting this presumption, shews 

he did intend the property to be hers.

1905. December 19. Barker, J. :—

This is a suit brought by one Beverley VV. Evans against 
Sarah E. Evans, his wife, for a declaration that she holds 
a certain piece of land, the legal title to which is in her 
name, in trust for him. The property in Question was con­
veyed to the defendant by one James Vincent, her brother, 
by deed bearing date September 29, 1898, duly registered 
on the 15th day of Oc tôlier of the same year. The defend­
ant is described in it as “ Sarah E. Evans, of the City of 
Saint John, wife of Beverley Evans," and the consideration 
mentioned is 8300. The property was subject to a mortgage 
to secure 8230 and interest, made by Vincent to one 
Murray, in 1881. In 1898, in consequence of a large amount 
of interest which had accumulated on this mortgage, it was 
placed in the hands of a solicitor for collection. This led 
to negotiations between Vincent and the plaintiff and 
defendant, which ended in an agreement- being made with 
Vincent and Murray, by which Vincent was to assign his 
equity of redemption to the defendant, and Murray was to 
give the parties two years to pay the amount due, which was 
some 83U0—one payment of 8150 to be made at the time. 
The deed to the defendant was made as I have mentioned— 
the 8150 was paid on October 11, 189(1, and the balance as 
agreed upon—the last payment having been made in 
September, 1900, when the mortgage was cancelled. In 
1898, when this transaction took place, the parties had 
been married some twelve years, they had no children, and 
the plaintiff was in poor health. He was a machinist and 
engineer by occupation, and for several years was in the 
employ of Tapley Bros., as an engineer on a tug. It is 
admitted on all sides that the money with which this 
property was purchased was the plaintiff’s money, earned

(1) 2 N. B. Kq. 34b.
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by liim ; the defendant bail neither money nor property 
when she married, and if she acquired either afterwards, 
it came to her from her husliand. The ease set up by the 
defendant is, that the money used in tile purchase was 
largely made up of monies given to her by her lmsliand, as 
presents or otherwise, which she from to time deposited in 
the post office savings bank, in her own name, and in 
proof of this, by consent of Counsel, an authenticated copy 
of this laink account has been put in evidence, the original 
[mss book having been given up when the account was 
closed in March, 11102, the balance withdrawn at that time 
living 8152.93. This account was opemal by a deposit of 
855, made in June, 1801, and on the 2nd October, 1803, it 
was closed by a withdrawal of the balance, which with 
interest, amounted to Si07.22. In July, 1804, a new account 
was o[>cucd in the defendant's name, by a deposit of 890. 
Other deposits were.made, amounting in all to 8350, and 
the balance of this account was withdrawn in March, 1002. 
The total amount depositi-d to the credit of this account is 
S450,antl from this there is no doubt that the first payment 
on the mortgage, of 8150, was made, anti also a payment 
to the plaintilf of 850 when the account was closed in 1902. 
The balance of the monies paitl to Murray—some 8215—it 
is clear, 1 think, from the evidence and from this account, 
was money of the plaintiff, to which, so far as the evidence 
goes, the defendant had no Npeciul claim by gift or other­
wise. It is true that the plaintiff says that he directed the 
monies to bo deposited in the savings bank in the names 
of himself and wife. In my view this is, however, not 
ini[s)rtant, for reasons which 1 shall briefly state.

In DtBury v. I)<Hury ( 1 ), I had occasion to considéra 
similar ipiestimi.aiid as that decision was affirmed on appeal 
I am bound by it. If a husband purchases property with 
his own money, and procures the conveyance to be made in 
the name of his wife, there is a legal presumption tliat a 
gift to the wife was intended. That is of course a presump­
tion which may be rebutted by the evidence of the parties

1905.

Evans. 

Barker, J.

(1) 2 N. B. Eq. 363.
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1905. where such evidence can be procured, or by the facts and 
Evans circumstances surrounding the transaction when sucli evi-
Kvanh. deuce cannot lie procured. Acting on that principle it was 

Murker, j. held that a lot of land so purchased was a gift to the 
wife, but as she acquired it from her husband during 
coverture, and such property was expressly excepted from 
the operation of the Married Women's Property Act, it 
remained subject to common law rights; the wife could not 
make a conveyance of it, and the husband's common law 
marital rights in reference to it existed. In Owen v. 
Kennedy (1), Strong, V.-C., says: "The evidence establishes 
that the money with which the property in question in 
this cause was purchased by Lewis Burwell, was in point 
of law at the time of the purchase, his own money. It is 
indeed shewn to have been provided, in part at least, by the 
labor of his wife anil daughters; but that it was his money 
at the time of the purchase, either by loan or gift of so 
much of it as belonged originally to his daughters, and by 
virtue of his marital right as to the portion which had been 
acquired by his wife, there can, I think, be no room for 
doubting. I consider the case to stand as if it were a pur­
chase by a man with money which he had borrowed for the 
purpose, in which event it is clear that he would be treated 
as having purchased with his own money for his own 
benefit. The land having thus been liought with the 
money of Lewis Burwell, and the conveyance having been 
made to his wife, there would, in the absence of proof to 
the contrary, lie a presumption arising from the relationship 
of hushnnd and wife, sufficient to counteract the trust which 
ordinarily results when property is purchased and paid for 
with the money of a person other than that one to whom 
the conveyance is made."

It is, I think, equally clear in this case, that the money 
with which this property was purchased, was in law and in 
fact the plaintiffs money. It is also not disputed that the 
conveyance to the defendant was made either by his express 
directions, or by his full assent. That being so, I must hold

(1) 20 Ur. 103.
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it to bo a gift to her, unless the evidence shews an altogether 
different intention sufficient to rebut any legal presumption 
arising from the conveyance being to the wife. In Marshal 
v. Crutwell (1), Sir George Jessel states the rule as laid 
down in Fowkes v. Paxcne (2), as follows : “ The mere
circumstance that the name of a child or a wife is inserted 
on the occasion of a purchase of stock, is not sufficient to 
rebut a resulting trust in favor of the purchaser, if the sur­
rounding circumstances lead to the conclusion that a trust 
was intended. Although a purchase in the name of a wife 
or a child, if altogether unexplained, will lie deemed a gift, 
yet you may take surrounding circumstances into consider­
ation, so as to say that it is a trust, not a gift. So in the 
ease of a stranger, you may take surrounding circumstances 
into consideration so as to say that a purchase in his name 
is a gift, not a trust.” The question then is whether or not 
the facts and circumstances shew affirmatively that the 
plaintiff did not intend to make any provision for his wife, 
but that there exists a trust as to the property in his favor. 
I have come to the conclusion, on the evidence of the 
plaintiff himself, that a gift to the wife was intended. In 
the first place, whatever may have occurred since, these 
parties were living together at the time this transaction 
took place happily enough. They had been married 
several years and had no family. The plaintiff was in poor 
health, and so far as the evidence shews, the savings 
invested in this purchase were sulwtantially all the property 
the. plaintiff had. This is what the plaintiff himself says 
on this point :—

" Q. Did you say anything to your wife about the 
deed—in whose name it should he put ? A. I did.

" Q. Where was that conversation ? A. Home, I think, 
at Indiantown.

“ Q. What was said to that ? A. She said, ' What 
name are you going to take, a mortgage or a deed ? ’ This 
was when she was going up to pay the SlOfi. I think it 
was that time. Said I, ' You better take a deed of the

1905.

Evans. 

Barker, J.

(1) L.H. 20 Eq. 828. (2) L. R. 10 Ch. 843.
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place; in case anything happens to me there will he no 
lawsuit over the thing.’ So she went up and paid it off.

“ Q. Just what were the words you did use to her about 
taking the deed ? A. I said, ' Take a deed of the place, 
and if anything happens to me (I was not very well at the 
time), there will lx- no trouble, no lawsuit, and Mr. Murray 
will make no trouble over the thing.’

“Q. While you were making these payments did you 
and your wife have any conversation about the property ? 
A. Well, I said, as I told Mr. Murray, that it would be a 
home for us by and by, when I could not work in a machine 
shop ; when I would not he able to earn a living it would 
be a home.

“Q, Did you say that before any payment had been 
made to Murray I A. Xo, I think not.

“ Q. What you said was what you have already told 
us. that there would Is- no trouble alxmt it in case of your 
death ! A. Yes, I was not very well at the time, and I 
thought that was probably the best way to do it and save 
trouble in Court may lx1.

“ Q. When was it you told her these words, ‘ it would 
be a home for us?' A. That is after I- started in to pay 
the money."

I cannot interpret the plaintiff’s action in any other 
way than as indicating a clear intention of benefiting his 
wife and making a provision for her. The place was to he 
a home for them during his life, if his health failed him 
and he was unable to work, and on his death the property 
would he hers without any will or trouble. That seems to 
me to be precisely what a man of small means, in ill health 
and situated as the plaintiff was, with full confidence in his 
wife, would do. This evidence, I think, so far from rebut­
ting the legal presumption, sustains it. The property could 
not lie sold without the husband joining in the sale. He 
had all his marital rights in reference to it during life— 
possession ; a right to the rents and profits—but he did, I 
think, wish to benefit his wife by giving her the property
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to bp hers should she survive him, an event which was very 
clearly in his mind as likely to happen.

I think the plaintif! is entitled to a decree declaring 
that the property in question was acquired by the defend­
ant hy way of gift from the plaintiff, her husband, after 
their marriage and during coverture, and that she be 
restrained during his life from making or attempting to 
make any sale, conveyance, or charge upon the same with­
out the plaintiff joining in the same and assenting thereto.

I think, under the peculiar circumstances of the case, 
there should be no order as to costs.

1905.
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DVNCAX V. THE TOWN OF CAMPBELLTON.

Arbitration - tnjiinrtion —Jnrimtirtinn.

An injunction will nut I to grantetl In resti-niii n party from pro­
ceeding with hii arbitration whm* the result of I lit* arbitra­
tion will lit* merely futile anil of no injury to the party seek- 
ing the injimrtion.

An injunction to rentrniu an arhitration to determine the value 
of laml of the plaintiff taken by the defendants on the 
ground that a condition precedent to the taking of the land 
had not been complied with, refused.

Motion to continue an interim injunction granted 
November K, |!M).">, by Mr. Justice Barker. The facts 
fully appear in the judgment of the Court.

Argument was heard November 21, 1905.

A. S. White, K. C„ and H. F. Mrhttrhy. for the de­
fendants :—

Act 00 Viet., c. 58, empowers the Town Council of the 
Town of Campls-llton to provide, fitter alia,a water system 
for the town. Power is vested in the Council to purchase 
the lands, property, etc., of the Campls-llton Water Supply 
Company, and in event of their failing to agree upon the 
purchase price, provision is made that the value should he 
determined by arbitration. By section 12 it is provided 
that the provisions of the Act respecting the powers of the 
Town Council to purchase or expropriate the property of 
the Campls-llton Water Supply " should apply to
all lands, etc., of any description within the Town of Camp- 
hcllton of any other company or corporation. Section 6 
authorizes the Council to build dams and reservoirs,acquire 
lands and works, and to do all things necessary for the 
purpose of providing the town with an adequate water 
supply. Section 37 enacts that “ before the Town Council 
shall proceed to exercise the powers hereinbefore granted, 
either for the purchase or expropriation of the lands, build-

4774
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ings. pipes, reservoirs, hydrants, works, plant, water system 1 DOS. 
and franchises of the CainpMIton Water Supply Company, Dusca* 
or for the purchase or expropriation of the property, plant, 
rights and franchises of any other company, or for the 
construction of any of the works authorized by this Act, 
such action in each case, respectively, shall he approved by 
the ratepayers of the town, to whom the Town Council 
shall submit the question of the desirability of their taking 
such action," etc. A vote of the ratepayers was taken 
authorizing the Town Council to aci|uire the lands, etc., of 
the Cainphellton Water Suppl)’Company, and to install a 
water system for the town The lands of the plaintiff are 
sought to Is- expropriated hy the defendants for the pur­
pose of enlarging the reserv oir acquired from the company.
The plaintiff has taken the view that liefore this can be 
done another vote of the ratepayers is necessary under 
section :I7. The defendants submit that the vote already 
taken is sufficient. If the plaintiff is right that a further 
vote is necessary, then the arbitration proceedings which 
the defendants have initiated for the purpose of determin­
ing the value of his property cannot hurt him, and he 
stands in no need of an injunction. If the arbitrators have 
no jurisdiction, the award cannot lie set up by the defend­
ants in an action for trespass hy the plaintiff. An injunc­
tion is only granted to prevent the commission of an 
irreparable injury. If the arbitration is futile and useless, 
no wrong will have lxuui done to the plaintiff. In North 
hmdon Railway Co. v. Great Northern Railway Co. (1), 
an agreement between plaintiffs and defendants provided 
that any ipiestion or difference arising under tin- agree­
ment should be referred to arbitrators. The defendants 
having claimed that differences hud arisen tietween them­
selves and the plaintiffs, sought to have the dispute deter- 
miiied hy arbitration under the arbitration clause iu the 
agreement They appointed an arbitrator, and the plain­
tiffs, under protest, appointed a second arbitrator. Sulwe- 
‘piently the plaintiffs applied to the Queen’s Bench Division

(II 11 Q. B. D, 80.
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ISO.1). for an injunction to restrain the defendants from proceed- 
PuirrAN ing further with the injunction, and an injunction was 

Camps is "tox granted. An appeal was taken, and it was held that the 
injunction was improperly granted, though the arbitration 
was in a matter beyond the agreement to refer, and would 
Is- futile and vexatious. In the course of his judgment, 
Hrett, L. J., said : “ The respondents (defendants) contend 
that they have the right to maintain the injunction,because 
they say it is clear that the subject-matter of dispute is 
not one within the arbitration clause in the agreement, and 
that therefore the arbitrators have no jurisdiction to pro­
ceed so as to hind the respondents, and if the arbitration is 
allowed to proceed the proceedings will be futile and 
vexatious and cause delay. On the other side, it is said 
that if the subject-matter of arbitration is beyond the 
jurisdiction of the arbitrators, then the respondents may 
stay away, and then, though it may be true that the arbi­
tration will lx- futile, it will do no injury to the respond­
ents and put them to no expense, nor stop them from 
proceeding in due course with the present action, and if it 
be vexatious, it is not a vexation of which the law can take 
notice. The question is whether, under those circum­
stances, the Court can issue an injunction. Now the cases 
before the Judicature Act would seem to shew that no 
Court would have issued an injunction in a case where, if the 
thing went on, there would be no legal injury. It is obvious, 
as it seems to me, that where, as it is here assumed, the whole 
matter is beyond the jurisdiction of the arbitrators, the 
fact of the appellants going on with that futile arbitration 
is no legal injury. Suppose an award was made the 
res|xmdents could not bring an action on that account 
against the appellants. It would not be a cause of action 
known to the law. If they could not bring an action for it 
after the award they certainly could not bring an action 
before the award. Therefore, it seems to me, that before 
the Judicature Act neither the Court of Chancery nor any 
Common Law Court would have had any jurisdiction to 
issue an injunction to enjoin the appellants from proceeding 
with this futile arbitration, and I doubt whether under the
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circumstances of tills rase any Court before the Judicature 1905. 
Art would have had any right to put the appellants to an Di-son 
rlection." See also Farrar v. Cooper (1), and LondonTowa nr 
Railway Co. v. Croce (2).

If. A. Mott, for the plaintiff :—

Until the provisions of section 37 are complied with, 
the town has no power to expropriate the plaintiff’s land, 
or to take any step in connection with an addition to the 
town’s water system. The defendants are, at the present 
time, merely tres|iassers, and there is nothing to submit to 
arbitration. They are no more entitled to go upon the 
plaintiff's land than any stranger to the title would he. 
See White v. Sandon (3). The authority to the Town 
Council is a statutory one and must be strictly pursued.

1905. December 19. Barker, .1.:—

This is an application to continue an interim injunction 
granted by me on the 8th November last, whereby the 
defendants were restrained from appointing an arbitrator 
on behalf of the plaintiff for determining the value of 
certain property taken by the defendants from the plaintiff 
under and by virtue of the powers conferred on the town 
by Act (10 Viet., c. 58. The hill states that the defendants had, 
without the plaintiff’s leave, taken possession of the prop­
erty in question for purposes in connection with the water 
works system of the town.and that the town had never ]>aid 
any compensation for it. The hill further alleges that such 
(aisspssioii was taken in .Septemlier, 1904, and that the 
defendants have built on the property in question a dam 
and reservoir of large proportions, in order to obtain for 
the town a gisal and sufficient supply of water for domestic 
and other purposes. It also appears that on or about the 
7th day of October, 1905, in pursuance of a resolution 
of the Town Council, an offer by the town to pay $825 for 
the land was served on the plaintiff, and that he refused to

(2) 31 Oh. D. 364,(1) 44 Ch. D. 823.
(3) 1U B. 0. 301
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_I005l accept this sum. The defendants thereupon, on the 27th 
Dr scan day of October, 1005, caused a notice, signed by the mayor 

caTipbehtos Bn^ town clerk and under the corporate seal of the town, 
Rarkër" J *° *31' w'rvi'd on the plaintiff, whereby, after reciting the 

taking of the said land, and the offer and refusal made to 
pay the tW25 as compensation, the town reipiested the 
plaintiff to appoint an arbitrator to act with two other 
arbitrators to lx- appointed as provided by Act (10 Viet., c. 
58, s. 0, to determine the value of the land in question. 
The bill then goes on to allege that the defendants had 
never submitted the question of the desirability of their 
taking “such action” (by which I understand the taking of 
the property and building the dam and reservoir thereon) 
to the ratepayers of the town, and the defendants' action in 
so constructing the dam and reservoir and taking posses­
sion of the property had never been approved by the rate­
payers. The bill further alleges that the defendants were 
proceeding to expropriate the property under the provisions 
of Act fiO Viet., c. 58, and for that purpose they had 
appointed an arbitrator, and at their request the ( lovernor 
in Council had appointed a third arbitrator. The plaintiff 
alleging that the proceedings were illegal because the vote 
of the ratejsiyers was a condition precedent to the right to 
arbitrate, applied for the injunction, and an interim order 
was granted on that ground.

The Act in question, (iO Viet., c. 58, seems to have been 
intended to accomplish three objects—(1) a general water 
system for the Town of Campbellton ; (2) a lighting 
system ; (3) a sewerage system. The first was to be carried 
out by the purchase of the existing works of “The 
Campls'llton Water Supply Company," at a price to lie 
agreed iijsiii by the parties, or in case of disagreement, at a 
price to be fixed by arbitrators to lx named as provided for 
in the Act. The Act contains, in addition to this power of 

4 acquiring the existing water system and property, a general 
power to provide a water supply for the town (sect, (i) and 
it makes provision for the expropriation of the property 
necessary for the purpose. It was, however, provided that 
the Campbellton Water Supply Company should be bought
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out, or its property acquired liefore tlie town could proceed 1905. 
to exercise tlie general powers conferred by section li. See Duncan 
section 4. Section 37 is as follows: “Before the town „ Town ok

. , CAMCBKLI.Ti
council shall proceed to exercise the powers hereinbefore llw^7j 
granted, either for the purchase or expropriation of the 
lands, buildings, pipes, reservoirs, hydrants, works, plant, 
water system and franchises of the Cnnipbellton Water 
Supply Company, or for the purchase or expropriation of 
the property, plant, rights and franchises of any other 
company, or for the construction of any of the works 
authorized by this Act, such action in each case respectively 
shall lie approved by the ratepayers of the town, to whom 
the town council shall submit the question of the desirabil­
ity of their taking such action," etc. This vote is therefore 
a condition precedent to any action of the town in the way 
of exercising any of the powers conferred by the Act.
Strange to say it no where appears in the papers before me, 
whether in fact any vote: was ever taken under the section I 
have just quoted, or not, or if such a vote were taken, what 
was the particular action of the town under the Act which 
the vote authorized. Was it confined to the acquisition of 
the t'nmpbcllton Water Supply Company's property, or did 
it include the acquisition of property not owned by them 
under the general powers given to the town for establishing 
a water system. It does appear that the town did expro­
priate and now own the original water system, and the 
works and property of the company which introduced it; 
and if 1 were at lilicrty to assume anything as to the popu­
lar vote, I might perhaps with safety assume that there had 
Iren, in fact, a vote of the ratepayers taken under section 
37, authorizing the town to acquire this property. It is 
not, however, in my opinion, necessary for the purpose of 
this motion that I should discuss this question of notice,
Ijecausc for other reasons the motion to continue the injunc­
tion must he refused. It is admitted that the property now 
in question is not included in the property acquired fmm 
this Camphellton Water Supply Company. It is an enlarge­
ment of a reservoir owned by them, and for that purpose 
the defendants have taken the plaintiffs property under the
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1905. Act, and they are seeking by means of the procedure pro- 
uIncas vided by the Act to have the amount of compensation
Town ok established, that the sum may be paid. It is not the nroc-

IMKHKI.LTON / r r
—— tice of this C ourt to restrain proceedings, the validity of

L'AMI'HKI.LTON

Barker. J.
which de|s-nds upon a condition precedent which has not 
been performed. Kxcept, therefore, in cases of misconduct 
in an arbitrator, or corruption, or some such exceptional 
circumstance, this Court would not restrain arbitrators 
named in expropriation proceedings under an Act like this 
from making an award, simply 1 «cause the award would lie 
valueless, by reason of the whole proceeding being invalid 
for want of the risjuisite popular vote. The plaintiff has 
already recovered in one action, and it seems that he has 
others pending, for continued tres|iuss upon his property by 
the town. If his position ns to the want of notice is ten­
able, I presume he will continue to recover until some 
remedy is provided. If on the contrary he is wrong in his 
position, this Court ought not to restrain the town from 
setting the machinery in motion, which the Legislature has 
provided for ascertaining the compensation to which he is 
entitled. 1 cannot see that any injury cun arise to the 
plaintiff by proceedings, which according to his contention 
are w holly illegal, and which therefore must turn out to be 
entirely useless. The cases which were cited on the argu­
ment, I think, fully sup|sirt this view : A’oW/t London 
Hu 11 uni/ Co. v. Ureal Xorlltem Hall waif Co. (1); Farrar 
v. Coofter (2); London Railway Co. v. Cross (3).

The motion will be refused and the injunction order 
discharged with costs.

(1) 11 u. U. U. au. (2) 44 i'h. U. 323.
(3) 31 Ch. D. 354.
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l« re THE CUSHING SULPHITE FIBRE COMPANY, 
LIMITED.

Practice—Judge's order—Power to Vary— Mistake—Application 
for leave to appeal.

A company against which a winding-up order had been made 
obtained at the instance of the large majority of its share­
holders and holdeieof its bonds an order in an action by it 
against C., granting leave to appeal to the Supreme Court of 
Canada from a judgment of the Supreme Court of this Prov­
ince confirming a judgment of t he Supreme Court in Equity, 
and entrusting the conduct of the appeal to the company's 
solicitors. Subsequently the liquidators of the company 
moved to vary the order by adding a direction that the case 
on appeal should not he settled until an appeal to the Supreme 
Court of Canada from the judgment of t he Supreme Court 
of this Province refusing to set aside the winuing-up order 
was determined, and that the company's solicitors on the 
appeal in the action against ( should act therein only on in­
structions of the liquidators or their solicitor :—

Held, that as there was no error or omission in the order re­
sulting from mistake or inadvertence, and the order expressed 
the intention of the Judge who made it, the motion should
be refused.

Principles upon which applications hy shareholders of a company 
in liquidation for leave to appeal are to he dealt with, con­
sidered.

Summon» to vary an order made by Mr. Justice 
McLeod. The fact» fully appeal in the judgment of the 
Court.

Argument was heard February 24, 27, 1U0U. 

J. D. Ilazev, K. C., for the application.

M. (J. Teed, K. C., contra.

1900. March 9. Barker, J. :—

On the 20th of February last Mr. Justice McLeod, 
under whose directions these» winding up proceedings are 
being taken, granted a summons returnable before me, 
and which he had requested me to hear, calling upon the 
company and George S. Cushing to shew cause why au

1906.
Ma tv h y.
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190(5.
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Company,
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order made by him in this matter on January 12, 1906, in 
reference to the appeal in the case of The Cushing 
Sulphite Fibre Company, Limited v. Cushing should not 
he varied. It seems that the company and a large 
number of shareholders and holders of the company’s 
bonds applied to Mr. Justice McLeod, in November last, 
for leave to appeal to the Privy Council from the 
judgment of the Supreme Court of this Province which 
affirmed the decree made in that suit by the Court 
of Equity, and as part of their application they asked that 
the carriage and prosecution of such appeal should he en­
trusted to Messrs. Hnningtoti, Teed & Hauiugton as solicitors 
for the ap|H‘llants. On the hearing of the summons 
which was then granted, the learned Judge refused to give 
leave to appeal to the Privy Council, hut stated that he 
would give leave to appeal to the Supreme Court of Canada. 
On the 12th January last lie made the following order :—

IX THE SUPREME COURT.

lx THE MATTER OK THE CvsIIIXI! SUU'IIITE FlHKE 
Company, Limited, and its Windinu-Up, 
Under “The Windino-Up Act," and Amend­
ing Acts.

Upon rending the affidavit of Mariner O. Teed, K. C., 
and hearing said Mr. Teed on behalf of the appellants 
hen ' " r mentioned. I do older that an appeal maybe
taken and prosecuted to the Supreme Court of Canada in 
the name of the said, The Cushing Sulphite Fibre Com­
pany, Limited, from the order, rule or decision of the 
Supreme Court of New Brunswick, made and pronounced 
on the twenty-fourth day of November last, whereby an 
appeal by the said, The Cushing Sulphite Fibre Company, 
Limited, as appellants, against George S. Cushing, as res-

Isuident, taken from the decree of the Supreme Court in 
Equity of New Brunswick, dated the nineteenth day of 

January, A. l>. 1904, made in a certain suit in said Supreme 
Court in Equity, wherein the said, The Cushing Sulphite 
Fibre Company, Limited, was plaintiff, and said George S. 
Cushing was defendant, was dismissed with costs; and 1 
do further order that such appeal to the Supreme Court of 
Canada may be prosecuted by Messrs. Hauiugton, Teed it

3
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Hanington on behalf of the liquidators of the said coin- 
pany, and as solicitor for the appellants therein.

Dated this twelfth day of January, A. D. 1906.

(Signed) E. McLeod.

1906.

CVBHINe
8VLCHITE

Company,
Limited.

Balkar. J.

Acting under this order, the solicitors gave notice of 
ti|>|N‘nl and obtained an extension of the time to settle the 
appeal, and the defendant, (ieorge 8. Cushing, at the same 
time applied for and obtained a similar extension as to bis 
cross ap|>eal. The present summons calls upon the com­
pany and Cushing to shew cause “ why the said order above 
recited should not In' varied so as to order the settling of 
the said case on appeal to lie postponed until after judg­
ment is given by the Supreme Court of Canada on an 
appeal to the said Court from the judgment of the Supreme 
Court of New Brunswick dismissing an appeal from the 
winding-up order made in this matter on condition that 
the defendant, (ieorge S. Cushing, agrees to all necessary 
pistponements for that purpose, and also authorizing that 
Messrs. Hanington, Teed & Hanington should act therein 
only on instructions of the liquidators of the said company 
or J. Douglas Hazen, their solicitor." This summons was 
granted on the petition of the liquidators presented by 
Mr. Hazen as their solicitor. I cannot find anything in 
the petition or any of the affidavits which would lead me 
to suppose that Mr. Justice Mcl.eml, in making the order 
in question, omitted anything or inserted anything by mis­
take, or that the order which he made differs in any par­
ticular from what he actually intended to make. If lie did 
so. there is nothing in the papers 1 adore me to indicate it. 
It does appear by section 10 of the petition that the Judge 
laid instructed Mr. Hazen, whom he had appointed to act 
as solicitor for the liquidators in the winding-up, to 
examine into the case on appeal and advise the liquidators 
as to whether or not the appeal should be prosecuted. It 
is lurtber alleged in section 10 that the Judge stated that 
lie would not allow the appeal to proceed in the meantime, 
liait is. until Mr. Hazen’s opinion was obtained, but would

VOL 111, .N. H. k. a.—10.



2.14 NEW BRUNSWICK Egt'ITV RETORTS. [VOL.

190(i,

Cl USING 
Si I.SHITh

l uMCAN V.
Limites 

Barker. J.

merely make an order extending the time to settle tile case 
on appeal so that the plaintiff's would not be out of Court. 
That intimation was acted upon by the extension of the 
time, as I have already mentioned. Section 12 of the petition 
states that Mr. Hazen has advised the liquidators that he 
has carefully considered the judgments delivered by the 
Judges on appeal and their reasons, and after such examin­
ation and consideration he has advised them that the appeal 
will not be successful. This is, therefore, not a case of 
correcting an error or omission resulting from mistake or 
inadvertence which is made right as of course,* hut the 
variation now asked for will, if granted, lender the order 
valueless to the appellants. Mr. Teed on behalf of his clients 
applied for leave to appeal to His Majesty-in-Council, anil 
for the carriage and control of the proceedings. Mr. Justice 
McLeutl said : “ 1 will not grant you that, but I will allow 
you, on behalf of your clients, to up]M-al in the name of the 
company to the Supreme Court of Canada,” and the order 
which he made for that purpose, gave their solicitors control 
of the proceedings, as no doubt it was intended to do, for 
without that the order would he of very little use to the 
appellants. The change in the order which is now asked 
for converts it from an order giving I’artington and his 
associates, who really own alxiut nine-tenths of the assets 
of the coinpnny and its stock, leave to carry on this ap|H-sl 
in the name of the compuny, and to control these proceed­
ings, into one giving the liquidators control over them, to I*' 
stop|Msl or proceeded with as they may choose to direct. 
The change in the order would, to my mind, render it per­
fectly useless to I’artington and those who wish the appeal 
to proceed, especially as Mr. Hazen has already advised the 
liquidators that the appeal cannot succeed, and thus plured 
them in a position in which they cannot very well take 
the risk of going on with it. I dare say Mr. Hazen is right 
in his view ; it is, at all events, in accord with that of a 
majority of the Judges, myself among the number, hut that

•See Bivalan Banking C'u. v. AlUup [18U5] 1 Ch. HI: Aina- 
worth V. Wilding |18«l] 1 Vli. 673.—Kite.
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in not the only consideration in a matter of this kind. It 
would be a very good reason for not allowing an appeal at 
all, or at all events without the ' " s being iiidemui-
tiecl against costs, hut this application is not made for either 
of these objects. This appeal involves questions by no 
means free of difficulty ; it involves a claim of some 
tUU.OOO of which the decree only gives the plaintiffs 
between $2,000 and $3,000. If the appeal is successful 
that money would be recovered by the company for the 
bi'iietit of creditors and shareholders. Why should liquida­
tors who represent these shareholders and creditors throw 
obstacles in the way of an appeal, involving as it does 
the possibility of so large an addition to the company’s 
assets f I confess 1 cannot see. The judgment of this 
Court was not unanimous, two Judges dissented and accord­
ing to their view the plaintiffs were entitled to thousands 
of dollars more than they were allowed by the original 
decree. Ill one of the applications in this matter before me 
recently, Mr. Hazen stated that Mr. Justice Davie», in dia­
lysing of an application for leave to appeal, said, that the 
Court was divided in opinion, and therefore, as a rule, the 
leave was given ns a matter of course, liecauae no one could 
say the case was not arguable. That was an appeal in an 
interlocutory matter of no great importance. Why should 
not the principle apply to a filial decree involving so large 
a sum us that does I In Mantmil Street Railway v. 
Montreal City (1), it appeared that the case had been 
I «'fore the Superior Court and Court of King's Bench in 
(Quebec, and the Supreme Court of Canada, and in the 
result six Judges favored one view and five a contrary one. 
The Judicial Committee said : “Under these circumstances 
their Lordships had no hesitation in humbly advising His 
Majesty to allow special leave to appeal to the King-in- 
Council."

In In re Armstrong (2), the Divisional Court refused 
leave to appeal from their decision, but leave was granted 
by the yueen's Bench Division. Lord Esher says : “ The

1906.
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Comcast.
Limited.

Barker. J.

(1) |1UU0] A. C. 100. (2) 17 Q. B. D. 521.

^330
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Barker, J.

jurisdiction which the Judges of the Division Court have 
to give or to refuse leave to appeal from their own decision 
is a very delicate one. Merely to say that they un­
satisfied their decision is right is not, I venture to sug­
gest, a sufficient reason for refusing leave to appeal, 
when the question involved is one of principle and they 
have decided it for the first time. If that was carried 
to it* legitimate conclusion, they ought to refuse leave to 
appeal in every case." Of course there may be other 
considerations entering into the question where a company 
is in liquidation, as here. Take this present case as 
an illustration. These liquidators may not feel justified, 
after being advised as they have been, in prosecuting 
an appeal likely to fail, although it is from a decision 
of a divided Court and the amount at stake is large. 
Or they might, in view of the uncertainty of their 
own position, hesitate in accepting the responsibility of 
either going on with the ap]s-al or refusing to do so. Hut 
where the parties, as in this case, ant the shareholders and 
creditors of the company, and represent so large a majority 
of those interested in it, simply ask leave to carry on an 
appeal in the name of the company, not only' at their own 
expense and for the company's benefit, but are willing to 
indemnify the liquidators against loss or expense, the 
objections which I have mentioned are no longer of weight, 
Ix-cause the company, if the appeal is successful, will 
naturally add to its assets, ami if it fails the liquidators 
are at no loss. It appears by tin- affidavit of Mr. Teed, 
now lieforc me, that upon the hearing of the application 
for leave to appeal, an objection was raised as to the 
expense which would be incurred, and in answer to that 
he then, on behalf of the applicants, offered to give to tin- 
liquidators any reasonable indemnity against costs that 
might Is; required, but that Mr. Justice McLeod stated that 
he did not think it was a case in which such security- 
should lie given ; that if the ap|s-al succeeded, the assets of 
the couqiany would receive the benefit, and if the appeal 
failed, that they should liear the loss, or to that effect. 
That, no doubt, is a very good rule, but it cannot be said



Ill] NEW BRUNSWICK EQUITY REPORTS. 237

lo lie of universal application. And this present case seems 1906. 
lo me to l>e one where all objections to granting the leave l*rr

■' ci ci Cl'SHINO

are met by the offer of indemnity. I myself should have seiem™ 
exacted the indemnity as a condition to granting the leave. Comcast. 
Iii In re Silver Valley Mine» (1 ), Sir George Jewel discussos 3
at some length the rights of liquidators as to costs of 
appeals. At page 387 he says: "There is another course 
which the liquidator sometimes takes. Instead of apply­
ing to the Judge he goes to the parties interested and says,
Will you indemnify me against costs if I appeal?’"

Later on he says : “ Of course, he still can appeal in perfect 
safety if he can get the person interested to indemnify him 
as to the costs."

Entertaining the opinion which I have intimated, it is 
impossible for me to grant the order asked for. If I were 
lo vary Mr. Justice McLeod'* order at all, it would be only 
to add to it a condition requiring the appellants to in­
demnify the liquidators as I have mentioned. But I could 
not force on them a change in the order which they did 
not ask for, and which perhaps they do not want. At most 
1 could give them the option of accepting an order in these 
terms. But as Mr. Justice McLeod has already refused to 
make an order of that kind, it would be out of place for 
me to renew the suggestion. I have no alternative except 
to dismiss this application with costa.

(1) 21 Cb. D. 382.
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LOGGTE V. MONTGOMERY.

Easement Origin in grant — Prescript ire title— Evidence — 
Referee's dtetl Proof of decree.

In 1854, R. B., ownvr of I^*t 8, vonvpveci the northern part there­
of to M., together with the privilege of taking water thereto 
through a pipe, which M. was empowered to huild, from a 
spring on the southern part of the lot. By mesne assign­
ments M.’s lot. with the water privilege, heeame vested in 
.1. B. In 1871 he executed to S. for 21 years, with covenant 
for renewal, a lease of the soring, with a right to lay a pine 
therefrom through the southern part of IaiI H to lot 1). The 
ownership of the southern part of I Ait 8 was then in 11., and 
in 1905 heeame vested in the defendant. In 1872 S. built a

fiipe from the spring across H/s land to Lot and it has been 
n uninterrupted use ever since, a period exceeding 20 years. 

In 1901 Lot 9. with the lease, was assigned to the plaintiffs. 
The plaintiffs' predecessors in title always rested their right 
to the easement on the lease and not upon adverse user 

Held, that a prescriptive title to the easement could not lie set
up.

A deed of a Referee in Equity, though purporting to have lieen 
made under a decree of the Court, is not admissible in evi­
dence without proof of the decree.

Bill for an injunction. The facts fully appear in 
the judgment of the Court. At the hearing plaintiffs 
offered in evidence a registered conveyance of land dated 
May 7. 1892. executed by K. H. McAlpine, Referee in 
Equity, to Francis K. Winslow. The conveyance purported 
to he made under a decretal order of the Supreme Court in 
Equity, made Decern tier 12, 1891, in a suit la-tween the 
Bank of Montreal, plaintiffs, and the New Brunswick 
Trading Company, Limited, in liquidation, and Caldwell 
Ashworth, liquidator, defendants. Objection was taken to 
the admissibility of the deed until proof of the decree 
under which the deed purporti-d to have lieen made was 
given.

Pu/jsley, A.-O. :—The decree cannot be found. It is 
submitted that section 201 of chap. 112, C. S. 1903, pro­
viding that a registered conveyance by a Referee referring 
to the decree under which the conveyance is made shall be
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evidence that all the proceedings on which such convey- 1906.
ance was founded were rightly had, dispenses with original 
priKif of the decree. MnSTiiOMSSr

Barker, J.:—I think the decree must lie proved.*

R. U. Ritchie, former Deputy Clerk in Equity, was 
examined as to minutes kept by him.

To 0. IE. Allen, K. C. :—It was not my practice to 
draw decrees ; the papers were sent to the Clerk, who would 
draw them.

E. O. Kaye gave evidence that he was solicitor for the 
defendants in the suit of the Rank of Montreal against 
the New Brunswick Trading Company, Limited, in liqui­
dation. and Caldwell Ashworth, liquidator, and produced 
ropy of illimités of decree in suit and appointment hy 
( 'lerk to settle the same. «.

Allen, K.C., objected to its admissibility on the ground 
that there is no proof that there was a decree or that 
minutes were ever settled. The pa|>er was not pressed for 
the present.

T. C. Allen, K. C., Clerk of the Pleas and Clerk of the 
Supreme Court in Equity, gave evidence that he had found 
on file a number of papers in the suit, including bill and in­
terrogatories, and a report by Referee in Equity, E. H. 
MeAlpine, on a reference to him to take accounts. On it 
was an indorsement dated 12th December, 1891, in the 
handwriting of anil signed by the late W. H. Fry, then 
official stenographer of the Court, stating that the report 
was onlerisl by Mr. Justice l'dlmer to be confirmed and the 
property mentioned therein to lie sold by the Referee; that 
the motion was made hy C. W. Weldon, Q.C., for plaintiffs; 
K. (i. Kaye, for defendants, Ixiing present.

• See ./arn> v. Edyett, 1 All. lift; Hoe rtem. Stevens v. Robin- 
•mi, Chip. MSS. 482: (y Brien v. Cogswell, 17 Can. 8. C. R. 420; 
Xu » lee v. Donovan, 14 U. U. C, P. 510 ; Hutchinson v, Collier, 27 
V. C.C. P. 249,-Rkp.
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1906. The Court accepted it as a minute of the Judge's
Loooik decree.

Moktoombrt
Mr. Allen then gave evidence that copy of the 

minutes produced hy Mr. Kaye is a copy of minutes drafted 
by him (Allen) from minute endorsed on Referee's report. 
He also stated that he had made search and could find no 
decree in the suit ; that the decree ordinarily would he sent 
to plaintiffs' solicitor; that he had no record of drawing 

. up decree or of sending out the same, or that minutes were 
settled ; that it is customary to record the decree in his 
office upon the minutes being settled, but no record had in 
this instance been made.

Pugeley, A.-(!., offered in evidence draft minutes of 
decree.

Allen, K. C., objected that there must be proof of 
decree ; that the minutes were settled and a decree made.

Pugeley, A.-G.:—The decree was that made by Mr. 
Justice Palmer. Evidence has been given that the Clerk 
merely draws up minutes of the decree.

Teed, K. C. ;—There must la- a decree drawn up by the 
Clerk before the Referee can act.

Barker, J.:—I will admit it, subject to objection, as 
secondary evidence that a decree was made.

Witness, to Allen, K. C.:—If minutes were settled and 
a decree made it would ordinarily lie recorded. I would 
not, however, say that minutes were not settled. The draft 
may have been lost after the minutes were settled.

To Barker, J.:—The fact that the fee on the decree 
was paid would be evidence that decree was completed and 
taken out.

H. H. McLean, K.C.. called.

To Pugeley, A.-G, ;—I was a member of the firm of 
Weldon it McLean, tlm solicitors for the plaintiffs, in the
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suit of the Hank of Montreal against the New Brunswick 190fi. 
Trading Company, Limited, in liquidation, and Caldwell Lnnoi* 
Ashworth, liquidator. There was a final decree. I do not Montooskst 

know where it is.

The deed was then admitted in evidence.

Argument upon the case was heard October 13, 1905.

1C. Pugulfy, A.-fi., ami L. J. Ttvfedie, K. C., for the 
plaintiffs :—

Voder the conveyance from Robert Blake to Marshall, 
Marshall could take the pipe from the spring to any point 
north of the highway. The Name right passed hy the 
different mesne assignments to John Blake, and enqmwered 
him to lease the spring to Stewart with a right to convey 
the water to the mill property. immediately after tin1 
making of the lease, which was in 1871, Stewart placed the 
aqueduct in its present position, and it has been in use 
ever since. In addition to a documentary title the plaintiffs 
are entitled to the easement by prescription. See Ring v. 
I'ii gulf y (1), and c. 15(1, s. 2, C. S. 1903. The right 
of the dominant owner to enter the servient tene­
ment, carries with it the right to prevent the 
servient owner from doing anything which would hinder 
him from repairing the pipe. If the defendant is |ier- 
mitted to build above the pipe, the right which hereto­
fore we have enjoyed without interference, of taking up 
and cleaning the pipe, will be greatly obstructed. The case 
therefore, is one proper for an injunction. In Goodhnrt v. 
Ilyett (2), it was held that if the owner of a house has an 
easement of getting his supply of water through pipes 
under his neighbor’s land, he can restrain tin- neighbor from 
building on the land so as to render it impracticable for 
him to get at the pipes for repairs.

G. IT. Allfti, K.O., if. G. Tffd, K. C.. and ti. A. bnrlnr. 
K C„ for the defendant :—

(1| 2 P. A II. 308. (2) 26 Ch. 1). 182.
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The easement granted in the deed from Blake to 
Looms Marshall can only be appurtenant to or connected with 

Mosthomsrt that part of Lut 8 lying to the north of the highway con­
veyed to Marshall. No right could lie granted hy it to 
take the water through the defendant's land to the mill 
property. An easement must inhere in the land and must 
concern the premises conveyed, or the mode of occupying 
them, so as to lie to them. See Ackroyd v.
Smith (1); Panltnn v. Rubinmm (2). The easement could 
not lie granted for the use of Lot !). Even if the deed to 
Marshall did give him a right to take the water anywhere, 
it would not be a covenant running with the land. As a 
grant in gross it would be personal to Marshall anil not 
assignable. Blake’s lease to Stewart is of no avail to the 
plain! illk, for Blake hail no title to that part of Lot 8 lying 
to the south of the highway. It was then in the owner­
ship of Hutchison. Neither ho nor any subsequent owner 
of that |>art of the lot hail any knowledge of the laying 
of the pipe by Stewart, or was privy to Blake’s arrange­
ment with Stewart. No case him been out for an
injunction, even if the easement were established. See 
Doherty v. Allman (3); Clarke v. Clark (4): Robson v. 
Witlinglutm (5). Under s. 3.3 of c. 112, C. S. 1903, 
damages will be awarded in lieu of an injunction. See 
Kino v. Rudkin ((I); Holland v. Worley (7).

\l‘ugnley, A.-tl, :—In a ease of continuing actionable 
nuisance,damages instead of an injunction are rarely given: 
Shelter v. City of /.<>niton Electric Lighting Co. (8).]

(roodhart v. ffyett is ipiite distinguishable. It was 
there shewn that there was no way to ascertain where 
repairs to pipes were needed except by tunnelling under the 
walls of the building. In the present case the pipe will 
always lie accessible, anil the expense of maintaining it or 
making re|iairs to it will lie iu no wise increased. To

III 10C. B. 161.
|2) 30 Can. 8. C. R. 64
13) SApn. ( a*. 709.
(4) L. Ft. 1 Ch, 16

(51 t.. R. 1 Ch 442. 
ifl) « Ch. II. 160.
(7) 26 Ch. D. 578.
(8) |I8U5| ICh. 287.

4

104
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establish an easement by user it would have to be shewn 1006. 
that it was uninterrupted, continuous and adverse for l.ooont 
twenty years. While Mrs. McKnight was the owner of Moxthomirt 

the servient tenement the time would not run, she being 
under disability: Melvin v. Whiting (1). The Prrncrip• 
linn Art, c. 15fi, C. 8. 1903, does not place the plaintiffs in 
any better position than they were at common law. See 
Pnlk v. Sliinrer (2).

I90H. March 20. Barker, J.:—

The plaintiffs are a firm carrying on an extensive fish 
business, at Loggieville, in the Parish of Chatham, and other 
places in the Province, and elsewhere. In October, 1004, 
they purchased a steam saw-mill and property, situate at 
Loggieville ; what is known ns the Black Brook mill prop­
erty. It lies on the north side of the highway road, 
lietween the road and the river Mirnmichi, and is a part of 
lot No. 0. In April, 1905, the defendant purchased a lot of 
land on the opposite or southern side of the road, a part of 
I/it No. 8, which seems to have been granted to one John 
Blake, though not the person of that name who made the 
lease out of which this suit arises. Lot No. 8, by the des­
cription in the conveyances, contained 200 acres. It is 
hound on the west by Lot No. 9, and extends from the 
river southward some distance beyond the highway road.
In addition to the mill projierly, purchased in 1904, the 
plaintiffs had acipiirisl. Iiefore this suit was commenced, the 
greater part of Lot No. 8 to the south of the road, and a 
portion of Lot No. 9 on the same side. Among the lots of 
land included in the southern part of Lot 8 is a lot con­
veyed to them by one Mary lauitaigne, in August, 1904, 
which lies to the west of the defendant's lot. With the 
exception of a dispute as to the division line between these 
two lots, there is no dispute between the parties as to the 
title to the lands in reference to which this litigation arises.
I'he dispute arises over the use of a certain spring of water 
and its diversion through underground pipes from its

(1) 13 Pick. 184, (21 22 L J. Q. B. 27,
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1906. sourpp to the plaintifis' mill, running tlirough the defend- 
j-ooime ant's lot of land, which the pluintiffs claim as secured to 

Mqwtoomkbt them as owners of the mill to be used in its operation. It 
Barker. J. is alleged in one of the amendments made to the bill that 

previous to February, 1 854, one Robert Blake, who is the 
father of the present John Blake, was seized in fee and in 
possession of this Lot No. 8. This fact is not disputed by 
the defendant. In fact lie acquires his title to his own lot 
through Robert Blake by the following conveyances: 
Robert Blake to Richard Hutchison, dated March 26, 1867, 
conveying all of Lot 8; Richard Hutchison to Joseph 
McKnight, dated October ft, 1873, a jiart of Lot 8 : Joseph 
McKnight to Alice McKnight, June 4, 1886; and Alice 
MeKnight to the defendant, April 13,1905. The plaintiffs' 
title, so far as it is important for the purposes of this case, 
is as follows : In 1871 the mill property was purchased by 
tiny, Stewart k Co. from the Honorable Peter Mitchell, and 
a conveyance dated Nov. 1, 1871, was executed to John 
Stewart, a member of that firm. On the dissolution of 
that fini I, in 1878, this mill property, together with two 
lots on the south side of the highway—a part of Lot 9— 
one of which was purchased in 1873, and the other in 
1874, and a third lot on the north side of the road, 
part of Lot No. 8, purchased by John Stewart from 
John Blake in 1874, to which I shall refer more par­
ticularly further on, were conveyed by John Stewart 
to Richard Cleorge Guy, one of the partners, as a part 
of his share of the partnership property. That convey­
ance is dated February 1, 1878. In 1871 Stewart had 
acquired by lease from John Blake the right to use 
the water and maintain the pipes as I have already 
mentioned. That lease is dated December 18, 1871, and it 
was registered December 19, 1872. By a second convey­
ance from Stewart to Guy, dated February 1, 1878, this 
water lease was assigned to Guy. By a conveyance dated 
Decemlier 4,1885, Guy conveyed the mill and other proper­
ties in the first deed from Stewart to Guy to the New 
Brunswick Trading Company, and by a second deed, dated 
January 30,1886, Guy assigned the water lease to the same
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company. By virtue of a decree of the Court of Equity 1906.
made in a foreclosure suit, E. H. McAlpine, as Referee in loouii

Equity, sold, and by a conveyance dat< ! May 7,1892, trails- Moktoomht 

ferred all these properties, including the water lease, to Barker, j. 
Francis E. Winslow. On the 21st July, 1896, Winslow 
conveyed to Vaughan. He conveyed to Bentley on .Septem­
ber 14, 1901, and Bentley conveyed to the plaintiffs on 
( Ictober 8, 1904.

The spring of water in question is a natural spring 
rising to the surface on the back part of Lot No. 8, at a 
point within lands now owned by the plaintiffs. So far as 
one can tell from the evidence, and the plan made by Fish, 
which is also in evidence, the natural How of the water 
from the spring was down the easterly ]>art of the lot until 
it discharged into the Miramichi river. That, at all events, 
was its course in 1854, when Robert Blake made his con­
veyance to Roliert Marshall. By that conveyance, which 
is dated February 3,1854, Robert Blake conveyed to Robert 
Marshall all that part of Ix)t 8 lying north of the highway 
road, and lying between Lot No, 9 on the west and the 
rivulet, that is, the water from this spring which I have 
mentioned, on the east, except the school lot The Attorney- 
l leueral, on his examination of Blake, after reading him 
the description of the lot from this conveyance, asked this 
question : “ Is this correct, that included that part of Lot 
8 which was on the north side of the highway, with the 
exception of the centre of the lot t " The witness 
answered, “ Yes, down to the rivulet." Mai'shall's convey­
ance, after giving this rivulet or brook as the eastern 
lunindary of the lot anil otherwise describing it, contains 
the following clause : " Also the right and privilege of 
carrying and conveying the waters of the said spring in 
I he field on the south side of the said highway from within 
forty feet of the head of the said spring where it at pres­
ent rises, through a trench or drain to la* cut through the 
said Held to any point that the said Rolawt Marshall, his 
heirs or assigns, may think tit, on the north side of the 
(Queen’s highway, into the lands above described, and 
thence into the river by such drain, trench or channel, aud
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1900. for that purpose to enter into the said lands on the south
Lomus side of the said highway (and without doing damage to

Mustuomkryany growing crop), at all reasonable times, with workmen 
ti*rk«r. J. tc make sueli drain or trench, and to repair, amend or 

cleanse the same whensoever the said Robert Marshall, his 
heirs and assigns, shall think necessary ; and also to view 
the state and condition of such drain, trench or channel 
and the waters flowing through the same ; and also, when­
ever the said Robert Marshall, his heirs or assigns, shall 
think tit to close up any such drain or trench, he or they 
shall be at liberty to open another drain or trench through 
the said field to the north aide of the highway and lay 
down pipes to convey the water of the said spring, or so 
much thereof as he or they shall think tit, through such 
pipes of sufficient depth below the surface to be free from 
injury in ploughing, which drain or trench shall be kept 
covered, except when it shall la1 necessary to enter upon 
and repair the said pipes, which the said Robert Marshall, 
his heirs or assigns, shall lie at lilierty at all reasonable 
times to do without doing any damage to growing crops ; 
and also, when such pipes shall be laid down, the said 
Robert Marshall, his heirs or assigns, shall lie at lilierty to 
place in the said spring, or the stream therefrom, not leas 
than forty feet from the fountain head, a tank reservoir or 
other vessel for protecting and securing the said stream in 
entering and flowing thereout into the said pipes, and at 
all times to enter and rejmir the •aine,and to view the state 
and condition thereof, together with all the rights, mein- 
liers, privileges and advantages to the said piece of land 
above described belonging." The conveyance also con­
tained the following covenant : “And the said Rolxirt 
Itluke, for himself, his heirs, executors, administrators and 
assigns, doth hereby covenant, promise and agree to and 
with the said Rols'rt Marshall, his heirs and assigns, that 
he, the said Roliert Make, his heirs and assigns, shall at 
all times hereafter keep the waters of the said spring in 
the said field south of the front highway free and clear of 
all incumbrances or obstructions, and shall not sutler or 
permit the said waters of the said brook Rowing from the
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said spring, or the fountain head, to be troubled, polluted, 190(i. 
or in any wise injured in passing through any drain or Loooie 

trench that may !*■ mode to carry the same to the lands Montuomekv 

above described, but the said spring and the waters thereof, Barker. J. 
anil the channel for the same to reach the said lands shall 
be free and clear of all injury, interruption or incumbrance 
by him, the saiil Hubert Blake, his heirs and assigns, at all 
times hereafter."

This lot, together with the water privileges appurten­
ant to it, was conveyed by Marshall to Davidson by deed 
dated June 27, 1857 ; by Davidson to Hutchison by deed 
dateil April 21), I859 ; and by Hutchison to John Blake by 
deed dated November 20, I8til. John Blake, by deed dateil 
October 15, 1874, conveyed a part of this lot to John 
Stewart, who sulwri|Uoutly conveyed to (luy, as 1 have 
already stated. The part of the lot conveyed extended 
from the south-east angle of the school lot, on the north 
side of the highway, 581 feet easterly along the northern 
side of the highway ; the eastern Itoundary ran from that 
point N. 30 E. to the shore of the river. The total dis­
tance from the selusil lot to the rivulet or brook, measured 
along the northern side of the highway, is lllti feet, so that 
lllake retained a strip of the Marshall lot, 335 feet wide 
(speaking generally), extending from the highway to the 
river, having the rivulet for its eastern Ism.alary, anil the 
eastern line of the lot sold to Stewart for it* western 
Imundary. He sevens! the dominant tenement, for the Is-ne- 
lil of which tin- easement granted hy the conveyance from 
lllake to Marshall was created. This conveyance from 
John lllake to Stewart contains no reference whatever to 
this easement, but does convey “all houses and outhouses 
erected on the lot, also the right of way, all waters, water 
courses, water privilege* and improvements thereunto lie- 
longing or in any wise appertaining." It appears from 
these conveyances that when Stewart purehnsed the mill 
pro|M'rty from Mitchell and entered into the lease with 
John Blake for the use of the water, Blake was the owner 
of that part of lot No. 8 lying north of the highway, and 
entitled, as such, to the benefit of the easement as to the
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lMOli spring ami the use of the water appurtenant to it, as 
l-ootiii granted by the conveyance from Robert Blake to Marshall.

Mostoomihv The plaintitls in their original bill, upon which, as 
Bui-kw. j. verified by one of their number, anil the affidavit of one 

other person, un injunction was granted by Mr. Justice 
Landry, set out at length the lease made by John Blake to 
Stewart, and it is upon that, and upon that alone, the 
plaintitls rested their rights to the use of the water and to 
its flow through the pipes to their mill. Two amendments 
have been made to the bill so as to enable the plaintitls, if 
they could do so, to sustain their contention on other 
grounds. It will be convenient to dispose of the first con­
tention before stating the others. The lease is as follows:— 

“ Memorandum of Agreement, made this 18th day of 
December, in the year of our Lard one thousand eight 
hundred and seventy-one, between John Blake, of the 
I’arish of Chatham, in the County of Northumberland, in 
the Province of New Brunswick, farmer, of the one part, 
and John Stewart, of the City of St. John, in the said 
Province, merchant, of the other part : Witnesseth, that the 
said John Blake, in consideration of the covenants and 
agreements hereinafter contained on the lessee’s part to be 
done and performed, and also in consideration of the sum 
of five shillings of lawful money of New Brunswick, to 
him in hand paid by the said John Stewart at or before 
the ensealing and delivery of these presents, the receipt 
and payment whereof is hereby acknowledged, hath 
demised, leasts], let and to farm let, and by these presents 
doth demise, lease, let and to farm let unto the said John 
Stewart, his executors, administrators anti assigns, all that 
spring of water situate and being on the lands of the said 
John Blake, occupied by him in the sait I pariah, on the 
southerly side of highway, and southerly from the steam 
mills of him, the said John Stewart, known as the Black 
Brook Mills ; also the right and privilege of entering at all 
times with his agents, workmen, teams and necessary ap­
pliances upon the said lands, anti digging thereon and mak­
ing and maintaining a proper and sufficient reservoir or 
fountain at or near the said spring, to preserve and hold
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the waters of the said spring, or other springs or sources of 1900. 
water adjacent thereto, and also to dig and make all noces- i-ouoi* 
sury trenches, and to lay. place and maintain an aqueduct Montoumesv 

or pipes of the size of not leas than three inches diameter Barker,J. 
in the bore to carry and convey the waters from the said 
spring or reservoir over ami through the said lands to the 
said mills, doing no unnecessary damage to the said lands 
and property, lilling up the said trenches and covering the 
said aqueduct, and laying and maintaining a branch aque­
duct and pipes not less than one inch bore from the said 
main aqueduct to the south side of the highway, and oppo­
site to the dwelling house of the said John Blake, such 
branch aqueduct to be secured by a proper cock or faucet, 
and no water to be allowed to go to waste through the 
same or more used than required for the domestic purposes 
of the said John Blake at any time win e the said mill is 
in operation. To have and to hold tin said spring and 
right of water and of directing and conveying the same 
and other the privileges and premises hereby demised, 
with all the rights and appurtenances ap|x-rtaining to the 
same or necessary for the full enjoyment thereof to him, 
the said John Stewart, his heirs, executors, administrators 
and assigns, for and during and until the full end and 
term of twenty-one years from the day of the date hereof.
And the said John Blake, for himself, his heirs and assigns, 
doth hereby covenant, promise and agree to and with the 
said John Stewait, his heirs and assigns, that at the expira­
tion of the said term he or his aforesaids shall and will 
renew the lease of the said premises and privileges for the 
further term of twenty-one years from the expiration 
hereof, on the sum" terms and conditions as are mentioned 
ami contained herein, and with a similar clause for renewal.

In witness whereof,” etc.
This instrument is under seal ; it was proved by the 

subscribing witness on December 19, 1871, and registered a 
year later—December 19,1872. .Section 5 of the bill alleges 
that “ at the time of making this agreement John Blake was 
in possession of the said lands and premises, but the legal 
title thereof was in the Honorable Kicbard Hutchison, of

vol. m. x. a. a. a.—17.
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1900. Douglas town, who had agreed to sell the said lands and
UxiuiK premises to the said John Blake ; the said John Blake 

Mu.vtuohkhv made contracts regarding the said lands with the assent of 
Barker. J. the said Richard Hutchison, and the said agreement in the 

last paragraph of this hill mentioned was made with the 
knowledge and consent of the said Richard Hutchison.” 
1 refer to this particularly to shew that the plnintitts' 
case put forward in the hill in its original form was that 
the lease was made with the knowledge and consent of 
Hutchison, who was the legal owner of the land, and under 
circumstances from which an authority to make it would 
lie implied. The evidence entirely failed in shewing either 
the one or the other. Blake, the only witness examined or. 
the point, could not state that Hutchison ever heard of the 
lease or the pipes being laid, or knew anything alxmt them. 
He does state that he negotiated the sale of the McKniglit 
lot, and that Hutchison carried it out by executing a deed 
of it. There may have been another instance of a similar 
kind, but these sales were all made long after this lease was 
made. The McKniglit sale is the only one of which we 
have the particulars, and the deed of that lot is dated Octo- 
ber 9,1878, well on to two years after these pipes were laid 
down and in use. The only other ground rolled on as con­
ferring any authority is that Blake had some agreement 
with Hutchison to purchase the property, and he was in 
possession of it la-cause he lived on the property without 
(«lying rent. No evidence of any such agreement was pro­
duced except a liante statement by Blake, hut if such an 
agreement existed, it would confer no such authority us is 
claimed. This lease expired in 1892—twelve years before 
this suit was commenced, and eleven years la-fore the plain­
tiffs purchased the mill—and it has never been renewed. 
To whom are the plaintiffs to liaik for a renewal in accord­
ance with Blake’s covenant t Surely not to Hutchison's 
heirs or assigns on the ground that Blake had authority to 
bind them. The plaintiffs cannot maintain their bill as it 
originally stiaal. On the 6th July, 1905, I made an older 
allowing the plaintiffs to amend their bill by inserting 
allegations of the conveyance of the lot north of the road
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by Robert Blake to Marshall and the subsequent convey- 19011. 
Slices by which John Blake acquired the lot with the ease- Looms 
ment created and granted in Marshall’s conveyance. The Moxtoomkhv 

second contention made is that the lease made by John Barker.J. 
Blake to Stewart is binding on the owners of the servient 
tenement—the defendant among the others—as un exercise 
by him as owner of the dominant tenement of the right 
given to lay conduit pijs's through the southern part of Lot 
8. Immediately after the lease was made Stewart built a 
reservoir at the spring and laid a wooden pipe from the 
reservoir in a straight line to his saw-mill, a distance of 1(118 
feet, alsiut three feet under ground. This pipe line goes 
diagonally through the defendant’s lot and crosses the 
northern side of the highway some feet westerly of the point 
at which the division line between Lots 8 and 9 intersects 
the line of the highway. Another reservoir was built at 
the mill, which is supplied by a branch pipe which taps the 
main pipe some 1(10 feet liefore it reaches the mill, and is 
itself ulxiut 1112 feet long. There is or was originally some­
where alsiut 450 feet of this pipe in Lot No. 9. The 
reservoir at the mill was used as a protection in case of tire, 
and the residents of that part of the village took water 
from it for domestic purposes. The branch was laid to the 
southern side of the highway, opposite Blake’s house, and 
there was iu fact none of the pi [a- laid in Lot No. 8 north 
of the road, all of it being in No. 9. It is obvious, from 
the nature and contents of the lease in question, that it was 
never intended us an exercise of any right acquired under 
the sale to Marshall. But assuming that it was so intended, 
are the plaintiffs in any better condition ! I think not.
The ettcct of the lease is to divert the whole spring for all 
time to Lot No. 9 for the benefit of the mill there, and the 
easement granted solely for the benefit of the front part 
of Lit 8 has lieen transferred so as to enure solely to the 
benefit of No. 9. As owner of the dominant tenement, he 
( Blake) might have released the servient tenement of the 
burden imposed upon it, but lie could not, in the exercise of 
a power to change the method of enjoying the easement, 
convert it into one for the benefit of another tenement
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190(i. «'together. In Purdom v. Rob inton (1), the Chief 
UmuiK Justice says : “In Ackroyd v. Smith (2), which may 

Muntuumkky Ik* considered the leading case on the point, the Question 
Barker, J. was raised distinctly on demurrer whether the defendant 

could, under a grant of a right of way as incidental to the 
enjoyment of a particular close, make use of this way for 
his own purposes irrespective altogether of its use in res­
pect of the dominant tenement to which it was originally 
made appurtenant. The defendant there claimed as an 
assignee of the right of way from the original grantee. 
It was held first that the road was grantisl only for pur­
poses connected with the occupation of the land conveyed, 
and therefore could only lx* used as connected with that 
land. It was, however, further determined that even if the 
original grantee did acquire under the grant a more exten­
sive right, a personal right to use the way irrespective of 
the land granted, that was a mere personal license which 
could not he granted or assigned over by the original 
licensee, since there is not known to the law such an inter­
est in land as an easement in gross." See also Skull v. 
Olen inter (8).

A second amendment was made to.the hill by which 
it is alleged that these pipes were laid down in the year 
1872 for the purpose of conducting the water of this spring 
to the plaintiffs' mill, and from that time until the defend­
ant exposed the pipes in the course of his excavations, a 
period of over twenty years, the water had uninterruptedly 
flowed through them to the mill, and that during that 
period the pipes had been kept and maintained as of right, 
and the water was used and enjoyed us of right, whereby 
the plaintiffs, as owners of the mill, had acquired a right 
for all time to have, use and maintain the said pipes 
through the defendant's lot of land, and to enter on 
the same when it is necessary to do so for the purpose 
of repairing the said pipes.

The evidence, I think, shews that from the time the 
pipes were laid in the early part of the year 1872

(1) 30 Can. 8. C. K. 04. 71. (2) 10 C. B. 104.
(3) 10 C. U. X. 8. 81.
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they have boon used and maintained for conducting the 1906. 
water of the spring to the mill, anil that the water had Looms 
him, for over twenty years previous to the defendant’s Moxtoomert 

purchase of his lot, used without interruption as is alleged. Barker. J. 

Reference was made to section 2 of the Prescription Act, 
c. 156, C. S. 1903, hut as the first seven sections of that 
Chapter do not come into force until January, 1910, any 
prescriptive right which the plaintiffs claim must be estab­
lished, if at all, outside of that Statute. It has, however, 
lieen long settled, quite irrespective of the prescription 
Acts, that as to easements such as that involved in this case, 
and which lie in grant, an uninterrupted user for twenty 
years or more, of itself ripens into an indefeasible title to 
thi' casement where the enjoyment has been adverse, unless 
there is evidence which rebuts the presumption of a grant 
which arises from such user. In Angus v. Dalton (1),
Lush, J„ speaks of the doctrine thus : “ But it after­
wards came to lie settled law that an uninterrupted 
possession of light, water, or any other easement, for twenty 
years afforded a ground for presuming a right by grant, 
covenant, or otherwise, according to the nature of the ease­
ment ; and if there was nothing to rebut the presumption 
a jury might, and should be directed to act upon it.” In 
that same case on appeal, Dalton v. Angus (2), I xml Black­
burn deserilies this doctrine in this way: “That a jury 
ought to be directed that if they believed that there had 
been what was equivalent to ad verse possession as of right 
for more than twenty years, they ought to presume that 
it originated lawfully, that is, in most cases, by a grant.”
In Cross v. Lewis (3), Bayley, J.. says: "I do not 
say that twenty years possession confers a legal right, 
but uninterrupted possession for twenty years raises 
a presumption of right, and ever since the decision of 
Darwin v. Upton it has been held that in the absence of 
any evidence to rebut that presumption, a jury should be 
directed to act upon it.” And in Campbell v. Wilson (4),
Lawrence, J., says : “ No doubt but that adverse enjoy*

(1) 8 Q B. 1). 85, 9ll.
(2) 8 App. Cas. 740, 812.

(8) 2 B. & C. 688,
(4) 8 East, 294.
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lflOfi. ment of a right of way for twenty years unexplained is 
i-oor.ir evidence sufficient for the jury to found a presumption that 

Montoomkkv it was a legal enjoyment. But it has been said if the 
Barker. J. enjoyment were shewn to have originated in mistake, how­

ever adverse it may have been, that is against the presump­
tion. For if in exercising the right of way from time to 
time it had appeared that the party had asserted his right 
to he grounded on the award, though it was exercised ever 
so adversely, I do not know how the jury would he war­
ranted ill referring it to any other ground than what the 
party himself insisted on at the time." .See also Ring v 
Pugaley(\).

The present ease is not complicated by any ipiestion of 
a lost grant. We have in evidence the title under which 
the plaintiffs claimed by their bill, and the title under 
which Stewart originally put down these pipes in 1872, and 
the title under which he anil the subsequent proprietors of 
the mill property have used and maintained the flow of 
water through these pipes from the spring to the mill. 
The lease from Blake is set out at length in the plaintiffs’ 
bill as the origin of their title, and the only title to this 
easement which they are now seeking to establish as a 
burden on the defendant's land. It was assigned by 
Stewart to Guy, and by him and the subsequent owners of 
the mill property down to the plaintiffs, not as a mere right 
appurtenant to that property, but as a special right or ease­
ment acquired altogether separate and distinct from the 
property, and by a separate and different title. In point of 
form it is a lease for twenty-one years with a covenant for 
renewal. The privilege reserved by Blake to have a 
branch pipe carried from the main to a point on the 
southerly side of the mail, opposite his house, ill order to 
procure a supply of water for his own domestic purposes, is 
in the nature of a continuous rent or compensation to him 
for the rights and privileges granted to Stewart. It seems 
to me altogether impossible to say that the enjoyment of 
this right by the plaintiffs, and by Stewart and the others

(1) 2 P, * B. 3US,



NEW BRUNSWICK EQUITY REPORTS. 255hi]

under whom they chiini, is referable to any other origin or lOOfi. 
any oilier title or authority than the lease in evidence. Loomi 
That it was made by Blake without either the knowledge Moktbomkrt 

or authority of the legal owner of the land sought to be Barker, J. 
burdened by it. can make no difference to the plaintiffs’ 
position ns against the defendant. However faulty 
Stewart's title as derived from Blake was, it was under 
that title that he and his successors in title acted and 
always claimed ; and the plaintiffs can not now convert 
either his or their enjoyment under the lease, of the privil­
eges secured by it, into an adverse possession upon which 
to fourni a prescriptive right to the casement, on the ground 
of a twenty years' uninterrupted enjoyment.

The plaintiffs are seeking to restrain the defendant 
from erecting a building on land purchased for that pur­
pose in 1!)04, on the ground that their right to maintain 
these water pipes through his lot in their present position 
would lx; thereby invaded; that their right of access, for 
the purpose of making repairs, would be seriously interfered 
with, and the pipes themselves, exposed as they arc by 
reason of the excavations made for a cellar under the build­
ing, will be endangered and rendered liable to injury. The 
plaintiffs’ claim is, that the lease from John Blake to 
Stewart, under which these pi]>es were laid through what 
is now the property of the defendant, but which was at 
that time the property of Richard Hutchison, created an 
easement subject to which the property now is. John 
Blake did not at that time own this lot, and in fact he 
never owned it. Neither was the lease, as I have already 
pointed out, made either with the knowledge or by 
the authority of Hutchison, who owned the lot, and 
through whom the defendant claims title. The plaintiffs 
lease expired in 1KSI2, and has never been renewed. They 
could not to-day compel the defendant, who is the assignee 
of the owner of this lot when the lease was made, nor could 
Blake have compelled Alice McKnight, who owned it in 
IK!)2 when the lease expired, to join in any renewal, for 
Blake’s covenant for a renewal was in no way binding on 
them, They are not his assignees and do not claim under
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1906. him in any way. How can they now continue this 
•Loootr. servitude over the defendant’s land, when their only title is 

Montoomkrt an expired lease of which they are powerless to obtain a 
Barker. J. renewal, and when the defendant purchased without any 

actual notice, and so far as is suggested without any con­
structive notice of the alleged easement, or the lease under 
which it is claimed. In my opinion, the plaintiffs have 
failed in shewing any ground of relief so far as the main­
tenance of these pipes is concerned. Other important 
points have lieen discussed by the defendant’s Counsel 
such as the right of the owner of land upon which a 
spring of water, such as the one in question, comes to 
the surface, to divert it from its natural flow, but I have 
not thought it necessary to discuss them.

There is another question involved in this suit which 
arises out of a dispute la-tween the parties as to the division 
line between the defendant’s lot and the plaintiffs’ lot lying 
immediately to the west of it. The starting point of the 
plaintiffs’ lot, as it is described in his deed, is a post stand­
ing on the south side of the highway road, on the division 
line of Lots Nos. 6 and !l ; thence running easterly along 
the south side of the highway 80 feet to a post, etc. 
There is no dispute as to the division line of Lots 8 and 9, 
but then- is no clear evidence as to where the actual lines 
of the highway road are. A return from the commission­
ers of highways of a road laid out by them in 1823, in 
the Parish of Chatham, and which would include the road 
through what is known as Loggieville, was put ill evidence. 
It gives the courses and distances of the southern aide of 
the road, which was to lie four rods wide extending from 
that line towards the river. There is no evidence to shew 
by actual survey where that line now is. The mad as it is 
used and fenced, and as it is indicated by the occupation of 
owners of land on both sides, is not more than about two 
rods wide. The plaintiffs claim that the starting point is 
a post standing on what they say is the true southerly line 
of the highway as laid out by the commissioners, where it 
intersects the division between Lota 8 and 9. As that 
division line runs in a south-easterly direction at this
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point, the efleet would be to locate the lot some fifteen feet 1906. 
farther east than it would be if the starting point was on Looom 
the southern side of the highway, as established by user Montoomebt 

and many years’ recognition, as the defendant claims it Barker. J. 
should be. In sections 30,31,32 and 33 of the bill the 
plaintiff's allege that the erection by the defendant of a 
building on his lot, as indicated by the excavations of the 
cellar for it, will, by reason of this alleged encroachment 
on their lot, be so near the house on their land as to darken 
the eastern windows and prevent access to it by one of the 
doors on the eastern side. 1 do not suppose these allega­
tions were intended to put forward any claim by the 
plaintiffs to an easement of any kind as to the windows or 
to the door, but if they were framed with that view, I do 
not think they can be sustained. The evidence rather 
shews there was no such door at all, and it is not very clear 
as to the windows. It does, however, appear that the house 
was built after Alice McKnight pui-chascd the lot in 1KH6, 
so that no such easement can have been acquired. More 
than that, the house was moved several feet to the east of 
its original position by Mary Lantaigne after she purchased 
in 18!)!). Tlie question is merely one of trespass depending 
upon the true division line between the two lots, ad deter­
mined by actual survey, or as established conventionally 
by the respective owners. For this there is an ample remedy 
at law, and in such cases this Court does not interfere.

The bill must be dismissed with costs.
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lOOfi.
May 8.

BAIRD v. RUPP.

Fraudulent conveyance - «S/a/. /./ Elis., c. ■> —Consideration.

In 1891, E. «S., a farmer, deceased, agreed with two of his sons, in 
consideration of their remaining on the farm and supporting 
him and their mother, and paying to their two sisters $1,000 
each, that the farm and his personal proper! y should he theirs. 
The farm consisted of adjoining pieces of land, each worth 
about $3,200. Subsequently the sons paid about $3,000 in pay­
ing off balances of purchase money due on the farm, paid 
$2,000 to the sisters, and supported the father and mother. 
On July 10, 1809, the father, in performance of the agree­
ment, conveyed the farm to the sons for an expressed con­
sideration of one dollar. At that time he was not in debt, 
but he was surety with others for loans amounting to $14,000 
to a company, of which he and they were directors, the last 
loan being for $3,000, and made June 7, 1899. On May 3,1901, 
the company went into liquidat ion, and the amount for which 
the directors were sureties was paid by them, except E. S. 
In a suit by them to set aside the conveyance as fraudulent 
and void under the 8tat. 13 Eli*., c. 5:—

Held, that the hill should he dismissed.

Bill to net aside two conveyances executed by Elisha 
Slipp, deceased, dated July ID, 1899, on the ground of their 
lieing void under Slat. l.‘$ Eli/., c. «5, and for administration 
of his estate. The facts fully appear in the judgment of 
the Court.

Argument was heard March 24, 1900.

A. H. Connell, K. C., and J. C. Hartley, for the 
plaintiffs and the defendant Dibblee:—

While it is necessary, in order to invalidate a convey­
ance, under the provisions of Stat. Id Eli/.., e. 5, for the per­
son int|H‘acliing it to prove that it was made to the end, 
purpose and intent to delay, hinder or defraud creditors, 
prima facia evidence is sufficient. The deeds here on their 
face appear to be voluntary. The consideration is stated in 
them to be one dollar. They were given immediately after 
the grantor had contracted a very large liability. The 
effect of the conveyances was to leave him without any
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moans to meet it. It is immaterial that it was a contin­
gent liability that might never ripen. It is plain that the 
conveyances were made under a very real apprehension 
that he was in jeopardy. If there was an arrangement 
concluded in I KOI to convey the farm to the sons, it is 
strange that it was not carried out until 1K99, and within 
a week after the father had involved himself in this heavy 
liability. Reference was made to Thompson v. Webster (1), 
and Spiri tt v. Willows (2).

/,. A. Corny, K.C., and D. McLeod Vince, for the defend­
ants :—

The conveyances are supported by the agreement 
made with tin; sons in 1K01 to convey the farm to them, in 
consideration of their remaining at home, supporting the 
mother and father, and paying their sisters *2,000. See 
In re Johnson : Golden v. Gillam (3), and Hnmuin v. 
Richards (4). Nor can it be said that the conveyances 
were made by the grantor with a fraudulent intent. When 
the guarantees were entered into by him the company was 
in solvent circumstances. In 1808 it paid a dividend of 4 
per cent., and in 1800 a dividend of 5 per cent. See 
Gorman v. Urqahart (5); Smith v. Wright (ti); Atkinson 
v. Bourgeois (7).

1000. Mays. Barker, J. :—

This suit is brought for the administration of the 
estate of Elisha Slipp, and the only question involved is 
ns to the validity of two conveyances made by him on the 
10th July, 1890—one to his son Isaac Slipp, who is one of 
the defendants, and the other to his son Frank R. Slipp, 
who is also one of the defendants. These conveyances 
were registered on the 2<ith July, 1809, a week after they 
w ere executed, and the expressed consideration in each is 
"lie dollar. The two lots of land conveyed adjoin each other, 
and are of about the same value—each being estimated as

(II 7 .Int-, N. S. 531. (4) III llare, 88.
(2) 3 [Mi. .1. k 8. 203. (5) 2 N. B. K.j. 42.
(31 20 Ch. D. 388. Id) 2 N. B. En. 528,

(7) 1 N. B. Eip 641,

1006.
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1900 worth about 81,200. The lot conveyed lo Isaac Slipp, the
Rose cider of the two brothers, is the homestead lot, U|>on which
sure. Elisha Slipp, the father, continued to reside until his death;

Barker. J. the other lot was purchased in 1894 for 8:1,000 from one
Kearney, and conveyed to Elisha Slipp. Elisha Slipp died 
intestate on the 11th April, 1000, leaving him surviving a 
widow, three sons—George, the eldest, Isaac and Frank, 
and two daughters, Sarah and Lillian, both of whom were 
then unmarried. George died on the 18th May, 1900,about 
a month after his father, leaving a wife and children, 
letters of administration ot the estate of Elisha Slipp 
were granted to the defendant Dihhlce on January 0,190.1. 
There is little or no dispute as to the facts. With one or 
two exceptions the plaintiffs' allegations are admitted, and 
the defendants' evidence is uncontradicted except so far as 
surrounding circumstances may suggest inferences at vari­
ance with it. It seems that in 1891 the plaintiffs, with 
Elisha Slipp and others, were incur]smiled under the .hunt 
Stock Companies’ Act by the name of “ The Maritime Pure 
Food Company, Limited," for the purjiose of carrying on 
the business of canning and preserving meats, fruits and 
vegetables. They commenced business at Woodstock in 
April, 1897, and continued it until May 1, 1901, when the 
company became insolvent and its property was all sold at 
sheriff's sale. From the organization of the company up 
to the time of Elisha Slipp's death the plaintiffs, with 
Slipp and one James Good, and Lee Raymond, were the 
directors of the coni|Hiny. In May, 1898, the company 
borrowed from L. P. Fisher 85,000, for which the company 
gave its note, and the directors gave their note as a collateral 
security. In March, 1899, the company required more 
money, and the directors negotiated a loan of 80,000 with 
the Peoples’ Bank of Halifax, as a security for which the 
directors gave their written guarantee, dated March 10, 
1899. In the following June the company required further 
advances, and the directors applied to the same bank for a 
further loan of 81,000, which the I wink advanced on the 
directors becoming personally responsible for it as before, 
which they did by a written guarantee dated June 7,1899.
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So (lint nt the time Klislia Slipp made tlie conveyances in 190ti. 
i|iiestion, in July, 1899, lie was liable as a guarantor with Baiku

his six co-directors for tliese three sums, amounting in all sure,
to #14,000. The plaintiffs were compelled to pay and did Barker, j. 
pay all of this sum and interest, except about 8400 paid by 
(looil as a compromise of his share, and some 81,028 paid 
by Raymond as a settlement of Ilia, I with having liecoine 
insolvent. Then- is no dispute as to the liability of Elisha 
Slipp’s estate for his contributory share of the amount paid 
by the plaintiffs under their guarantee.

The evidence shews that Elisha Slipp was a farmer 
living on his farm at Jacksonville, and that at the time he 
made the conveyances in question lie was not indebted out­
side of his liability as a surety for this company for this 
814,000, except for a small I «dance of the purchase money 
of the Kearney farm, bought in 1894. It does, however- 
appear that the property conveyed to the two sons was 
substantially all the property which ha then owned. The 
pi intiffs contended that in that state of facts, it must lie 
assumed as a matter of law that the conveyances were made 
with the intention of defeating, delaying anil hindering 
creditors, and that they were therefore fraudulent and void 
as against creditors under the Statute 18 Eliz., c. 5. What 
the circumstances were which led this company to expend 
its capital, and this 814,000 in addition, in the short period 
of four years, and then find itself insolvent, and its property 
under seizure, 1 do not know, for the evidence does not dis­
close them. There is, however, one circumstance which has 
a direct liearing on this case. The directors declared and 
paid a dividend of 4 per cent, in 1898, and another of 5 
per cent, in 1899, so that unless the plaintiffs anil their 
co-directors were actually paying dividends without the 
| notits to warrant it, of which there is no evidence, and 
which I can not assume to lie the fact, Slipp may very 
well have regarded his contingent liability for this 814,000 
as one which the company itself could easily take care of, 
and which therefore- was of no importance as to any dis­
posal of his property he might make by way of a family 
arrangement. The real consideration for the conveyances,
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1900. and the circumstances which led to their being made, date 
Haiku buck, if the defendants’ account is true, to a period long 
Si iee. anterior to the formation of this food compuny, and when 

Bmker. J no objection to their being made is even suggested.
Isaac Slipp is 48 years of age, and Frank, his brother, 

is 3U, so that when these conveyances were made in 18!HI, 
they were 30 and 27 years old respectively. In 1885, Elisha 
Slipp bought what was spoken of as the Cowperthwaite 
farm, for #4,000, which was conveyed to bis son George, 
and in order to assist Isaac at the same time, and make 
them even, George was to give, and in fact did give his 
note to Isaac for 82,000, with interest, which note George 
afterwards paid in full. In 1801, lie bud from this 
note and accumulations of interest and in other ways, what 
was equivalent to about #3,000, and as he was about being 
married be intended leaving " and buying a farm for 
himself elsewhere. His father wished him to remain at 
home, and said if Frank ami lie would "stay on the place” 
and pay the girls #1,000 each, they could have the farm 
and all the personal property equally between them. They 
were also to work the farm together and take care of their 
father and mother. This arrangement was then agreed 
upon, Isaac was marrie has remained on the place,
working it ever since. Frank remained there until he was 
married in Novemlier, ISOli, ami moved to the Kearney 
farm. A short time before this the father one evening 
told the two sons that he was going to tell them how to 
divide the personal property ami the mil estate, and said 
he was willing to give them deeds at any time. About that 
time—that is, when Frank married in 18!!tiand went to live 
on the Kearney farm—the personal property was divided 
and a division line between the two lots was agreed upon, 
which gave a piece of the homestead farm to Frank so as to 
equalize the values. Frank lias lived there ever since, and 
Mix Slipp, the mother, and the unmarried sister are living 
with Isaac. When the conveyances were made in 1899, 
the lands were described in them according to the division 
made in 1896, which I have just mentioned. The evidence 
shews that the $3,000 which Isaac had, together with the

4

5
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surplus earnings of himself and his brother Frank, were 
all utilized in paying for the Kearney farm and the balance 
due on the Cowperthwaite farm, and that a note of theirs 
for #500, to which their father was a party, is still unpaid. 
When the conveyances were made, notes were also given to 
the daughters. As Sarah was the oldest, she was to get 
SI,+00, the extra St011 living by way of interest from the 
time the original arrangement was made. Isaac gave her 
his note for #1,200 with interest, and Frank gave her his 
note for #200 and a note to Lillian for #1,000, on which he 
paid her #400 when she married. Besides this they have 
always paid the daughters the interest as it became due, 
and Frank has contributed about #40 a year toward his 
mother's support. The figures given shew that the amount 
paid by the two defendants, Isaac and Frank, since 1601, 
when the arrangement was made, by Isaac’s money then 
in hand and money earned by him and Frank since that 
time for the purchase of the Kearney farm, the balance 
due on the Cowperthwaite farm and the #400 paid Lillian, 
together with the outstanding notes for which they are 
liable, and which amount to #2,500, represent more than 
the assessed value of the farms. Of course the father’s 
lalwir has contributed in some respect to the amount, but it 
is mainly due to the industry and thrift of the sons. The 
Kearney property was, of course, not included in the 
arrangement of 1891, as it was not owned by Slipp at that 
time. Isaac Slipp, in his evidence, explains that purchase 
as follows. He says : “In 1894 we Iwmght the adjoining 
farm that Frank lives oh now. A man offered it for sale 
and Frank and I decided to liny it and divide it and make 
a home for each of us. We gave #3,000 for it. We agreed 
to buy it, Frank and I and father. Frank and I were most 
interested. We were going halves, and Mr. Kearney asked 
me, Is-fore he got the deed, would 1 have a deed given, and 
father said, ‘ Have a deed given to me, and this homestead 
is worth more than your half, and when you buy it we 
will have it written out." As to paying for it, he says, 
“ they used all the money they had on hand at that time

1906.

Slipp. 

Barker. J.
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190».
Baiku 
si.i'fp. 

Barker. J,

Brother George owed me $1,400, and we made $500 to clear 
off the place. We paid the $500 down and gave two joint 
notes, one for $500, 15 months after date, and one for 
$2,000, payable 27 months after date,—joint notes.” The 
$1,400 from George went on account, and the $2,000 note 
was finally paid off in March, 1N9N. It seems clear that 
this purchase was made long before this food company 
commenced business, and it was fully paid fur in IKON, be­
fore the loan had been made with Mr. Fisher. It is also 
clear to my mind that the property was bought for a home 
for Frank, and that it was with that object that all parties 
< "" " towards its 'lit. This in a general way
is the defendants' account of this transaction. It was 
sworn to by all of them—the two brothers, the mother, 
and the two sisters, all of whom were present when the 
original arrangement was made in 1891,ns well as the time 
the conveyances were given in 1899. " "s
widow of George Slipp proved the giving of the note for 
$2,000 to Isaac ami its payment. It is true that these 
witnesses were all interested. It is, however, due 
to them to say that I have rarely seen witnesses 
whose appearance and demeanour under examination fur­
nished stronger evidence of their credit and reliability. 
And unless 1 am prepared to entirely disregard their evi­
dence I can not see how the plaintiffs can succeed. This I 
certainly am not prepared to do. There does not seem to 
me anything unusual alsiut the arrangement said to have 
been made by these parties. The father had already made 
provision for his eldest son, and what is more natural than 
that be should try to prevail upon his second sun to remain 
at home, and as an inducement to do so, that he should 
promise him ami his brother as he is said to have done. 
The conveyances are, I think, in no sense voluntary, nor 
were they made with any such fraudulent intent as that 
alleged in the bill, but they were made in execution of a 
burnt fuie arrangement between the parties, made at a time 
w hen no one pretended to say there was anything to cast 
suspicion on it or to prevent it in any way.

6106 06

1^994^0680
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lu Putt v. Tuillnintcr (1), the Vice-Chancellor nays:
If my view of the facts of this case be correct, it does not 

reveal a transaction not founded on valuable consideration. 
The mere circumstance that the deed does not represent it 
otherwise than as a voluntary transaction is nothing. A 
deed, apparently voluntary, may be supported by collateral 
evidence shewing a contract for value. It is needless, 
therefore, to resort to other possible views of the case, one, 
namely that this legacy was given to a lady for her 
separate use, and another that this was such a family settle­
ment as, consistently with the principles of this Court, 
could not be disturbed.” In Baytrpoule v. Collins (2), it 
appeared that the real consideration for a post-nuptial 
settlement was an advance of £150, though no mention of it 
«as made in the instrument which on its face was a volun­
tary settlement. It was, however, held that evidence of 
the real consideration might be given, and on that being 
shew n the settlement was held good and the bill was dis­
missed with costs. In Hale v. W ill iamm/n (3), it appeared 
that a father had assigned his dwelling house and all his 
personal estate to his son “ in consideration of natural love 
and affection." It was held that the real consideration for 
the assignment was the giving of a lxmd by the son to the 
father for the maintenance of his father's wife and children, 
and that on that being shewn, the assignment was buna 
fule, and not void against creditors under 13 Eli/.., c. 5. 
Itoll'e, R, says : “It is a mistake to suppose that the 
Statute makes void, as against creditors, all voluntary 
deeds. The Courts, in construing the Statute, have held it 
to include deeds made without consideration, as being 
/iiima Jaeie fraudulent, lava use necessarily tending to 
delay creditors. Hut the question in each case is, whether 
the deed is fraudulent or not; and to rebut the presump­
tion of fraud, the party is surely at liberty to give in evi­
dence all the circumstances of the transaction ; not to con­
tradict the consideration stated in the deed, but to take it

(1) 2 Coll. 76. (2) L. K. 6 Ch 228.
(3) 8 M. & W. tot.

1906.
Baird

v.
Sure. 

Barker. J.

VOL. III. N. R. A H.—18.
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out of the operation of the Statute.” In addition to what 
1 have already said, the evidence shews that the defendants 
knew nothing whatever about the guarantee to the Inink 
until after their fathers death. They did know of the 
Fisher loan, but understood the directors held security on 
the company’s plant against hiss by reason of the collateral 
note which they had given.

The bill, so far as it relates to the two conveyances, will 
lie dismissed with costs, and there will he the usual reference 
as to the general administration of the estate.
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PETROPOLOUS v. F. E. WILLIAMS COMPANY, 1906.
LIMITED. Mays.».

Hill of Sale Staying mle—Payment into Court—Amount.

In h Kiiit by the mortgagor to set «aide a bill of sale, an interim 
injuuetion order to restrain a sale by the mortgagee was 
granted upon condition of the mortgagor paying into Court 
the amount due the mortgagee.

The bill of sale was collateral security for promissory notes, 
some of which had l»een indorsed over for value: — 

l/r/fl. that the amount to be paid into Court should not he 
reduced by the amount of such notes.

Motion to continue an injunction order granted by Mr.
.1 ustice Barker, April 10th, 1900.

The plaintiffs, Peter Petropolous and Andrew Petro- 
polons, carry on business in co-partnership as shoe shiners 
and cigar dealers at 25 King street, in the city of St.
John. They held a lease of the premises at a rental 
of $510 for one year from May 1st, 1905, which they 
were able to secure by the defendant, Frank E.
Williams, guaranteeing the jiayinent of the rent. In 
or about the month of August. 1905, the defendants 
placed an automatic electric piano on the plaintiffs’ 
premises and put it in use. It is set in motion by the 
insertion of a coin in a slot. After it had been on the •
premises a few weeks it was offered to the plaintiff,
Peter Petropolous. for sale to him. He agreed to 
buy it provided the defendant Williams could secure a 
renewal of the lease for a further term of four or five 
years. Williams saw the lessors, and they agreed to grant 
a new lease for four years at $540 a year and payment by 
the lessee of the water rates, $10, on condition that Williams 
should continue to be responsible for the rent or should 
take the lease to himself. On being advised by the 
lessors that, in event of the plaintiffs making default 
in paying the rent, he would have no remedy by distress,
Williams took the lease out in his own name, The
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1906. plaintiff, Peter Petropolous, thereupon agreed to buy the 
Piraoroiovapiano for 8750, 8100 to be paid down and the balance 
F. K. Willi * ms to be paid in monthly payment* of 850 each. Nubsc- 

Limited, quently, on Ills representing that he was unable to make 
the cash payment, it was agreed that an amount then 
earned by the piano, 919.20, should lie credited on account 
of the purchase price, and the balance secured by 
twelve notes for 800.90 each, payable one, two, three, four, 
five, six, seven, eight, nine, ten, eleven and twelve months 
respectively after date. An agreement at the same time 
was executed, drawn up in the words and figures 
following: —

St. John, Sept. 7, 1905.

To F. E. William* Company, Limited.
Please deliver to me one Automatic Electric Piano 

(manufactured by the Automatic Musical Co., Hingliamp- 
ton, N. Y.), for which I agree to pay seven hundred and 
fifty (750) dollars, to be paid as follows: 8111.20 cash on 
receipt of instrument, and the balance by note for 860.90 
each, payable respectively one. two, three, foui five, six, 
seven, eight, nine, ten, eleven, twelve months after date.

I agree not to countermand this order, a copy of which 
I hereby acknowledge to have received, and 1 agree that it 
is not to be binding on you until ratified by you. Said 
instrument shall remain your property absolutely until 
said purchase price and all notes given therefor are fully 
paid. In default of payment of said purchase price or 
any note given therefor, you are hereby authorizisl to 
retake possession of said instrument, for your own use and 
benefit, without process of law and without previous 
demand. It is agreed that on default being made by me 
in respect to payment of said purchase price or any part 
thereof as aforesaid, or in the event of your retaking posses­
sion of said instrument, my liability to make said payment 
and upon said notes shall not be affected or cease until I 
shall have paid to you a sum equal to 820 per month as 
rental for the whole number of months said instrument 
shall have been in my possession, and also the expense of 
retaking possession of saiil instrument, and in repairing 
damages thereto. The use and possession of said instill­
ment ie at my risk. It is agreed that said instrument shall 
not be removed from my present premises, No, 25 King
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Street, in the City of St. John, without your consent in 1908._
writing. It is agreed that no money shall he paid agents pmnmiou 
except on your written order, and that the whole agree-r E W[j ulMl 
ment between uw is contained herein, and may not lie varied <j'I*'lVVe' 
or added to by agent. The said F. E. Williams Coni|>any,
Limited, guarantee said instrument to be free from imper­
fection in material or workmanship, and agree to make 
good any such defect if it appeals within one year from 
receipt of instrument, provided such defective parts are 
delivered freight paid at St. John, X. H. This guarantee 
does not cover repairs reipiiml through accident, misuse, 
neglect or ordinary wear or tear, and docs not cover electric 
motors.

(Sgd.) Peter Petropolous.
(Sgd.) F. E. Williams Co., Ltd.

per F. E. Williams.

I, , landlord of the premises occupied
by the above mentioned , hereby agree
with the said F. E. Williams Company, Limited, not to 
seize, distrain, or levy upon said instrument for rent or 
debt due or to become due in respect of said premises while 
said instrument is the property of said F. E. Williams 
( 'ompany, Limited.

The plaintiffs alleged that they asked the defendant 
Williams a number of times for their lease, but were put 
ell" from time to time by him, and that finally in January 
last lie declined to give it unless they would reduce their 
indebtedness to the defendants ami give a bill of sale to 
secure the Imlance. The plaintiffs at that time, in addition 
to I icing indebted to the defendants for the price of the 
piano, owed them nearly $400 for cigars and tobaccos. 
The plaintiffs thereupon paid the defendants $100, $00.90 
of which was applied in retiring one of the piano notes, 
and the lailatice in reduction of the current account. The 
plaintiffs also executed a bill of sale in favor of the defend­
ants ii]hiii their stock-in-trade and fixtures to secure the 
Ialance of their indebtedness, including the amount owing 
on the piano, and a note was also given for $303.5,5 to cover 
the latlnuce of the current account. The defendant 
Williams then executed a lease of the premises to the
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1006. plaintiffs for a term of three years and eleven months at 
PrrRneomvR the rental and subject to the conditions contained in the 

lease to himself. After the purehase of the piano the 
Limits», plaintiff's complained that it was not working well. The 

defendants hail it examined and found that the keys had 
swelled owing to fog. The defendants substituted another 
piano for it, and in time this was also found not to work 
well, and the plaintiffs alleged they made numerous com­
plaints of it. The defendants offered to send it to the 
manufacturers to lie cleaned and repaired without expense 
to the plaintiff's, hut this offer was declined. The plaintiffs 
alleged that the piano was worthless and that they 
had no faith in it, and that it was not as warranted. 
They further alleged that the defendant Williams obtained 
the lease of the premises occupied by the plaintiffs 
at a rental of 9510: that when he obtained it he was 
acting in a fiduciary cajiacity and undertisik to procure it 
in the name of the plaintiff's, but contrary to good faith 
and in fraud of the plaintiffs, he procured a lease in his 
own name and forced the plaintiff's to pay a higher rent 
than that reserved in the original lease, and that he in­
serted terms and conditions in his lease to the plaintiffs of 
an onerous and vexatious character. It was shown on the 
hearing of the motion that the rent reserved and the terms 
in both leases were the same. The plaintiffs paid the note 
given for the current account, but declined to pay the notes 
given for the pinno. The affidavit of the defendant 
Williams set out that he had always been ready and wil­
ling to perform and fulfil the terms of the warranty with 
the piano, and he alleged and claimed that there had been 
no breach of it ; that he believed that if there was any 
trouble with the piano it could easily lie rectified ; he 
alleged and charged that the plaintiffs had misused the 
piano, and that if repairs were required to it they were due 
to misuse or neglect by the plaintiffs or to ordinary wear 
and tear within the exceptions in the warranty. By their 
bill, upon which the interim injunction was granted, the 
plaintiff's prayed that the defendants might be restrained 
from seizing or taking possession of the goods and chattels
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conveyed by the bill of sale; that the bill of sale might 1906. 
lie set aside ; that the contract for the sale of the piano I’kthoi-oi.ui» 

might be cancelled : that the defendants might lie directed f.k.wili.um»
n n C'OMHANT

to repay to the plaintiffs #00.90, an amount paid on account Luhtko.' 
of tin- piano, and to deliver up to the plaintiHs the notes 
given for the piano ; and that the defendant Williams might 
he directed to execute a lease to the plaintiffs upon the 
same tenus as those in the lease to him. It appeared that 
live of the notes given for the piano had been discounted 
by the defendants with the Bank of Nova Scotia prior to 
the service of the injunction older.

Argument was heard April 24, 1906.

H7. //. Truemiin, for the defendants :—

The injunction should be dissolved for misrepresenta­
tion. The bill charges that the defendant Williams forced 
the plaintiffs to pay a higher rent than that reserved under 
I he original lease, and inserted terms and condit ions in the 
lease to them of a more onerous and vexatious character 
than those in said lease. The rent payable under the 
lease from Williams is that which he has to pay, and the 
leases are in every other respect identical. The lease from 
Williams is for one month less than the term to him, but 
it was necessary to retain in him a reversionary interest 
or his posi ion as landlord with right of distress would 
have iieeu last. Both leases should have been set out in 
the bill to shew in what respect the terms were more 
onerous in one than in the other: Harbottle v. PooUy (1).
Before a party makes an application for an injunction 
In' should make the strictest investigation into the 
accuracy of the circumstances upon which he relies : 
Vuwlerguelit v. ÜeBlttcquiere (2); ClifUm v. Knbineun (3).
The misrepresentation is material, for a part of the relief 
asked is the execution of a new lease. A motion to dis­
charge an ex parte injunction on the ground of its having 
been obtained by misrepresentation is proper though the

(1) 20 L. T. 436.
(3) 16 Beav. 355.

(2) 2 J ur. 738.
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injunction is about to expire : WivMedon Local Hoard 
v. Croyden (1). The bill also suppresses the circumstance 
that the original lease was obtained by Williams liecoming 
surety for the rent. The case is not one for injunction, nor 
for the jurisdiction of this Court. The warranty in the 
hire and sale agreement is to make good any defect in 
material or workmai ’ ' in the instrument. The bill does 
not allege a refusal by defendants to implement this 
warranty. On our part it is set up that we offered to ship 
the piano to the manufacturers for overhauling and re­
pair, without expense to the plaintiffs, and that the offer 
was refused. Even if the action was at common law for 
breach of warranty it must fail. If there has been a 
breach of warranty it only gives rise to an action for 
damages. The plaintiffs would not lie entitled to return 
the piano where there is no condition authorizing its return. 
See Street v. May (2); Da a'eon v. Collie (3); (rotn petit v. 
Denton (4). Since the piano cannot be returned and sale 
agreement rescinded, there cannot Is- a total failure of con­
sideration for the bill of sale. As the bill of sale cannot lie 
vacated, and the utmost relief plaintiff" can obtain is dam­
ages for breach of warranty, it is plain that an injunction 
should not be grunted. Eor mere breach of warranty there 
is no remedy' in equity : 30 Amer. & Eng. Ency. 1110. In 
North v. Itreat Northern Railway Co. (5), it was held that 
where specific things necessary for conducting a business 
are in the possession of a person who claims a lien upon 
them and threatens an immediate sale, the Court of Equity 
has jurisdiction to interfere by injunction and prevent 
irreparable injury to tbe debtor, by giving bint an oppor­
tunity of redeeming. Here redemption is not sought, but 
the suit is merely to determine whether there has been a 
breach of warranty. If it is argued that the bill of sale 
was obtained by a refusal to give a lease, and that this was 
duress, the short answer is that there was consideration for 
the bill of sale apart from the lease.

(1) 32 Oh. D. 421.
(2) 2B.A Ail. 456. (4) 1 0. A M. 207.
(3) 10 0. B. 523. (5) 2 OUT. 60.

4
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II'. II'. Allen, K. for the plaintiffs:— 1900.
Pktropolous

The plaintiffs are eiititled to rescind the ajn'eement F.E.wh.liam*
Company,

and to return the piano, in addition to the warranty given Limited. 
on the sale there is an implied warranty that the instru­
ment would lx- reasonably tit for the purpose for which it 
was sold : H<U1<I<1II v. Newmn (1). Such implied warranty 
is not excluded by the express warranty : Hiw/e v. l‘«rk - 
h>mn (2). Failure to comply with such implied warranty 
entitles the vendee to return the article. I Irdinarily our 
remedy would lx- at common law ; but we are obliged to 
come into eipiity in order to have the bill of sale set aside.
The bill of sale was " by coercion. The plaintiffs
were entitled to the lease without condition, and there is 
therefore no consideration for the bill of sale.

WOO. May H. Barker, .1. :—

I thought at the argument, and I still think, that the 
defendants oil their shewing of the facts of this case, might 
well abandon the hill of sale which they obtained from the 
plaintiffs, and which is the immediate cause of this bill 
being filed. The plaintiffs have paid their account in full, 
except the notes given for the piano, and for these the 
defendants have their security upon which the piano was 
sold. So that without the mortgage the defendants would 
be in precisely the same position ns when they delivered 
the piano. And they themselves say that they did not 
want the mortgage or ask for it. The defendants, however, 
have shewn no intention of waiving any rights under their 
mortgage, and so I must deal with the matter as best I can.

1 shall continue the injunction, hut to that older 1 
must attach a condition, and that is that the plaintiffs, on 
or before the l.'itll iust.. pay into Court to the credit of this 
cause the sum of Sd7U.N0. On that payment I icing made 
the injunction will lx- continued ; if not it will he dissolved.

(1) 2Q. B. I). ne. (2) 7 II. * N !«5.

7759



274 NEW BRUNSWICK EQUITY RETORTS. [VOL.

1906. See Hill v. Kirkwood(I); Hickson v. Dariow(2); MacLeod
I’ktropomivs v. Jones (3).
^‘comi'anv”8 Reserve question of costs.

LlMITKD.'

On May 15th, motion was made by the plaintiffs on 
summons to reduce the amount ordered by the learned 
Judge to lie paid into the Court from 8(170.80 to 8365.40, 
and to enlarge the time to July 17th.

II'. I!'. Allen, K C., in support of the application : —

The defendants having discounted five of the notes 
given for the piano with the Hank of Nova Scotia, their 
total claim against the plaintiff is 8365.40. The bank has 
already recovered judgment against us on one of the 
notes. The security only attaches for the notes that the 
defendants have retained. It is discretionary with the 
Court to enlarge the time.

If. II. Trnrman, contra:—

The plaintiffs could not redeem the bill of sale except 
upon paying the full amount of the indebt»*dness secured 
by it. 'Vlie bank could return the notés held by it and 
assign to us its judgment, or we could assign the bill of 
sale to it together with the remainder of the notes. If 
such were done there could be no question that the full 
amount would have to be paid. If the defendants were 
seeking to sell under the power of sale in the instrument, 
they could only do so to the amount of the notes held 
by them. If they held all the notes and the judgment 
obtaimsl by the hank, there would lie no doubt of their 
right to sell for the satisfaction of the whole sum. There 
would only be an equity to restrain the defendants , from 
selling for such an amount if some of the notes were in the 
ownership of another party. In Hramwell v. E(flint on 
(4), it was held that the taking of a bill of exchange as 
collateral security does not suspend the grantee’s remedy 
under a bill of sale, and that he might lawfully take posses-

(1) 28 W. It. 858 : 42 L. T. 105.
(2) 23 Oh. I). 000.

(3) 24 Oh. I). 280.
(4) 33 L. J. Q. B. 180.
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sion under it, though the bill of exchange has been indorsed 1 906.
over for value. See also He/ilmrn v. I‘ark (1); Hyman v. Phthoiouk» 
< 'nthbertmn (2); Cochrane v. Boucher (3). The time for E E.williams 

paying money into Court has been faxed here at one week Umitbu. 

in accordance wTith the English practice, and it is submitted 
should not lie enlarged.

Barker, J. :—As I do not think the defendants will be 
prejudiced and the matter is one for my discretion, I will 
enlarge the time for payment into Court to June 11th, but 
I will not reduce the amount If the amount is not then 
paid into Court the injunction will be dissolved. In the 
meantime the undertaking as to damages and that the 
goods covered by the chattel mortgage will not be removed 
from the plaintiffs' premises, will tie continued. Reserve 
Question of costs.

(I) II O. It. 472 (2) 10 O. R. 448. (3) 3 O. R. 462.

VUL III. N. IL K. It.—19.
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EAIRWEATHER v. ROBERTSON.

Conte—Appeal to Judicial Committer of the Priey Council — 
(hdcr of King in Council—I'onetruction.

In n suit nguinst L. and H. Ilia hill was dismissed hy this Court 
with costs. An appeal to the Supreme Court was allowed 
with costs. On appeal hy II. to the Judicial Committee of 
the Privy Council it was ordered that the decree of the Su­
preme Court should lie discharged as against the appellant 
with costs, and that the decree of this Court should lie res­
tored i—

Held, that costs under the original decree should !*> taxed to L.

Motion on summons for directions to the Clerk to tax 
the costs of the defendant George K. Lloyd. The facts 
fully ap|ienr in the judgment of the Court.

Argument was heard May 15, 11101 i.

.1/. a. Tied. K.C., in support of the application:—

The order of the King in Council restores the decree 
of this Court, which gave costs to both defendants. If 
restored at all, it must lie with full effect. See Taui/liun v. 
Halliday (1). I hi principle Lloyd should have his costs, 
as they were incurred liefore Rols-rtson was ' a party.

If. IT. Allen, K. C„ contra :—

The order discharges the decree of the Supreme Court 
reversing the decree of this Court, as against the appellant 
Robertson, with costs. He alone is entitled to costs. So 
far as Lloyd is concerned the decree of the Supreme Court 
is unreversed. The order only restores the decree of this 
Court with respect to Roliertson.

1906. May 22. Barker, J.

Application has been ' to me for instructions to 
the Clerk as to the taxation of the costs of the defendant

(I) L. K. 0 Cli. 501.

4

47
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Lloyd. The suit involved the claim of the plaintiff to a 
right to use a highway in common with the defendant 
Lloyd, who, when the suit was commenced, owned the 
property to which this highway was appurtenant, and for 
the exclusive benefit of which it was, according to Lloyd's 
contention, originally made and laid out. After the suit 
hail proceeded, but before the hearing, the defendant Rob­
ertson purchased the property from Lloyd and took a con­
veyance of it, and he was then added as a defendant to 
the suit. Lloyd's name was not removed from the record 
as a defendant, though he censed to have any interest in 
the subject-matter of the litigation. At the hearing this 
Court dismissed the hill with costs. From this judgment 
the plaintiff appealed to this Court in term. His appeal 
was allowed with costs against the defendants ; a di-clnra- 
tion of the plaintiff's right to use the highway was made, 
and the defendants were perpetually restrained from ob­
structing the plaintiff in the use of his right of way. 
From this decision the defendant Robertson appealed to 
His Majesty in Council, and on the report of the Judicial 
Committee it was ordered " that this appeal Ire and the 
same is hereby allowed ; that the said decree of the Su­
preme Court of New Brunswick in Equity (on appeal ), 
dated the Jrd day of August, 1 !)04, he and the same is 
hereby discharged as against the appellant with costs, and 
that the said decree of the said Supreme Court in Equity, 
dated the 21st day of October, 1 !MI2, be and the same is 
hereby restored.” The defendant now seeks to have his 
costs of suit taxed against the plaintiff under the original 
decree by which the bill was dismissed with costs, and 
which by the direction of the order in Council has been 
restored. The plaintiff’s contention is that, by a proper 
rending of that order, the original decree is only restored 
so far as the appellant Robertson is concerned, and that the 
decree of the Supreme Court having reversed the original 
decree, and Lloyd not having appealed against it, as against 
him it stands. I am myself unable so to rend the order ; 
neither do 1 think any such order was intended. The 
words are express—“ that the said decree of the said Su-

277
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1906.

WKATHKR
Robertson.

Marker. J.

preine Court in Equity, dated tlie 21st day of October, 
1902, l>e and the same is hereby restored.” What that 
order was appears in the previous part of the order in 
Council, and I am unable to conclude that when the 
Judicial Committee recommended that the original decree 
be restored that they intended to vary it, leaving it opera­
tive in favor of Robertson and against Lloyd, both repre­
senting precisely the same right. The Judicial Committee 
simply restored the original decree ; they did not vary it ; 
and in my opinion the defendant Lloyd is in precisely the 
same position as to his costs of suit as if there hud never 
been any appeal from the original decree. It is the prac­
tice of the Judicial Committee in dis|sising of appeals, to 
make the order which they think the Court appealed from 
should have made—that is, in this case, that the original 
appeal should have been dismissed, which would have left 
the original decree as it was made ; or as it now is by the 
order in Council, restored.

1 think the Clerk should tax to Lloyd’s solicitor such 
costs as he is entitled to under the original decree by which 
the plaintiff's trill was dismissed with costs, and as if that 
decree had never been appealed against.
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In re LAWTON INFANTS.

Infant— tiuardian — Renwrat.

Il is ii ground for the removal of the guardian of the persons of 
infant children that he has removed ont of the jurisdiction 
of the Court .

Application for removal of James Clark Lawton, as 
guardian of the persons of his infant children, and for the 
appointment of their mother and J. Fraser Gregory in his 
place. The facts sufficiently appear in the judgment of 
the Court.

lDOli. July 10. J. Roy Campbell, in support of the 
application.

July 13. Barker. J. :—

The late Charles Lawton devised all his property to 
his executors upon trust to pay from time to time so much 
of the income of his estate as they in their discretion 
should see fit toward the support, maintenance and educa­
tion of the children of his nephews, James Clark Lawton 
and Charles Abbott Lawton, until they should respectively 
arrive at the age of twenty-olie years. This application is 
made on liehalf of the infant children of James Clark 
Iviiwton. On the 14th April, 1899, this Court made an 
order appointing the said James Clark Lawton guardian 
of the persons of his infant children, to whom should be 
paid by the executors of Charles Lawton the six hundred 
dollars a year which they at that time fixed as an appro­
priate amount to be annually paid for the support and 
maintenance and education of the infants. James Clark 
Ijiwton, and the infant children (of whom there are now 
four, one having lioen born since the previous application), 
by their mother acting as their next friend, now ask that 
James Clark laiwton be removed from the jsisition of

I GOG.
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1900. guardian, and that his wife, Elizabeth Alice Lawton, and 
in re J. Fraser Gregory be appointed guardians in his place. 

infants. The ground upon which the removal is asked is that 
Barker. .1. Lawton has removed from the city of St. John and become 

a resident of the United States, without the jurisdiction of 
this Court. The children are now living witli their mother 
in St. John, and are under her care. Under these circum­
stances I think the order ask d for should be made. See In 
vc Kaye (1): In re Loff,oune (2). The infants’ mother 
and Mr. Gregory will therefore be appointed guardians of 
the infants’ persons. James Clark Liwton will be removed, 
and in future the SHOO a year, or such other sum as the 
trustees may in their discretion fix, shall In* paid by them 
to Mrs. Lawton and Mr. Gregory for the support, mainten­
ance and education of the infants. The costs will lx* paid 
by the trustees and charged to the distributive share of 
the infants in Charles Lawton’s estate.

(1) L. K. 1 (’h. 387. (2) 20 Ch. I». 021.
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SEARS v. HICKS.
.iiif/iint *4.

Agreement—Family arrangement—Conn ale rut ion.

.1. II. died intestate possessed of property worth alsmt $40,(KM), 
and survived by his widow, two sons and three daughters. 
Part of his property consisted of lumber lands worth $21,(MM), 
which it had been his intention, known to all (lie members of 
the family, to give to the sons, who were associated with him 
in his business as a lumberman. A few days before his death, 
in discussing with his solicitor the terms of a will he intended 
to make, lie stated lie wanted his lumber lands and mill 
property to go to the sons, who should continue his business 
and pay his debts, and that he did not intend making any 
provision for the daughters. At a meeting of the family 
held after his death, they were informed of these wishes : 
that performance of an outstanding contract by the deceased 
for the delivery of a quantity of lumber was being pressed, 
and that his liabilities were $lf>,(MM) or $20,(MM), though in fact 
they were $22,(MM). It was agreed for the purpose of giving 
effect to the deceased's intentions that the sons should assume 
the debts : that the daughters should convey all their inter­
est in the estate to the sons ; that the sons should pay to the 
plaintiff $ô(K), to another daughter $<MM), and should join in 
a conveyance to the third of land given to her by her father, 
but unconveyed by him. At the time the exact condition of 
the estate was unknown. Before the deed to the sons was 
executed, the solicitor of the deceased present at the meet­
ing explained to the daughters their legal rights and the 
effect of the deed. On the true condition of the estate being 
subsequently ascertained, the plaintiff sought to have the 
conveyance set aside :

Held, that the agreement as a family arrangement, entered into 
for the purpose of giving effect to the intentions of the de­
ceased, without fraud or misrepreeentat ion, should )»«■ upheld.

Bill to act aside a conveyance. The facts fully ap|>enr 
ill the judgment of the Court.

Argument was heard May 30, 1900.

A. S. White, K.C., and JamesFriel, for the plaintiffs:—

The conveyance was obtained by misrepresentation and 
'Oppression of the real condition of the deceased’s business. 
The plaintiff was given to understand that unless the 
business and property were vested in the sons to enable
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100(i. tin-m to complete the contract with McKean, the estate 
shahs would be involved in litigation. The impression was created 
Hh'ks. upon her mind that the liabilities were so large that if tin- 

estate was taken into the Probate Court a great sacrifice in 
its value would result, and the affairs of the estate would 
lie thrown into inextricable confusion. It was even inti­
mated that her own property would he lost if the sons were 
not put in possession of the estate. It is quite apparent 
that Wood wanted the business kept as a going concern in 
the sons' hands, and that in his partisanship he did not 
place the rights of the plaintiff and the other daughters 
fairly before them. The plaintiff was overborne by his 
views, and her mind was not free to reach an independent 
judgment. If there was no misrepresentation, then it can 
lie said that the plaintiff compromised her rights in 
ignorance of the true state of affairs, and that the mistake 
was one shared in by all. This will lie sufficient ground 
for setting the conveyance aside. The transaction cannot 
be disguised as a family arrangement to give effect to the 
intentions of the intestate. That consideration is not shewn 
to have weighed with any of the parties, or to have been 
pressed upon them.

II. A. Powell, K.C., and A. If. Bennett, for the defend­
ants :—

The plaintiff entered into the agreement in order that 
the wishes of her father respecting the disposition of his 
projK-rty might be carried out. The only fraud, misrepre­
sentation or concealment that could affect the validity of 
the agreement would lie fraud, misrepresentation or con­
cealment as to his intentions, and there is no pretence of 
that. As a family arrangement to give effect to the 
deceased’s wishes it will Is- upheld. No fraud or mis­
representation taints it. It is idle for the plaintiff to say 
that she was misled as to the value of the estate. That 
was a matter that was not discussed. Nor did it interest 
her. Aware that she was not to expect anything from her 
father, she raised no Question us to her rights. She was

/



Ill] NEW BRUNSWICK KljVITV REPORTS. 283

only concerned in securing the safety of the property he 
had given her, and in having her mind made easy in that 
respect. The #600 was a gratuity, and was not part of the 
consideration for signing the deed. The case set up by the 
hill was one of fraud ; that fraudulent misrepresentations 
were made by the defendants and those in concert with 
them as to the financial condition of the estate. That 
position has absolutely failed. No representations were 
made, nor was any impiiry made by the plaintiff, as to the 
value of the estate. The only question asked was that by 
herself, as to whether there was enough property to pay 
the debts of the deceased without resorting to the property 
given to her, and she was assured there was. She had as 
much knowledge at the time as any of the defendants of 
the value of the estate and the extent of the liabilities.

White, K. C., in reply.

lfiOti. August 24. Barker, J. :—

This bill was tiled by Celia Sears and Warren Sears, 
her husband, against Arthur A. Hicks, John L. Hicks, and 
Hocia Filliinore and Jane Hicks, and John and Arthur 
Hicks, as administrators of the estate of John Manning 
Hicks, for the purpose of setting aside a certain convey­
ance made to the defendants, Arthur and John, by the 
plaintiff, Celia Sears, and her sisters, bearing date the 0th 
June, 1305. The circumstances which led up to the execu­
tion of this conveyance are somewhat peculiar. John 
Manning Hicks, for many years previous to his death, 
which took place on the 3rd day of June, 1905, had been 
engaged in farming and lumbering in the Counties of 
Albert and Westmorland, and in connection with his busi­
ness he had acquired marsh and lumber lands of consider­
able value. He died intestate, leaving him surviving his 
widow, the defendant Jane, his two seals, the defendants 
Arthur and John Hicks, and four daughters, the plaintiff 
Celia Scare, and the defendants Docia Filliinore, Etta Hicks 
and Lucinda Hicks. The conveyance in question was 
executed by Celia Sears and her busies rid, Etta Hicks and

1906.
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11106. her husband, Doeia Killimore and her husband, and Lucinda 
skaks Hicks, who is unmarried. John Manning Hicks met with 
iiic'k*. an accident in his mill on the 81st May, which resulted in 

Barker. J. his death four days later, and during this intervening 
period lie seems to have been in an unconscious state and 
unable to attend to business matters. On the 6th May, 
1905. he made a contract with McKean, of St. John, for 
the sale of between 400 and .500 M. superficial feet of 
spruce deals and battens, which be was to manufacture at 
his mill during the season of 100.5, ready for shipment not 
later than May. June. July anil August, and which he was 
to deliver on the curs at Midjic station. The price to lie 
paid was SI I .50 per M. for the deals anil SO per M. for the 
scantling. At the date of Hicks' death he had not coin- 
menced sawing these deals, and therefore he was unable to 
fulfil his contract so far as the May deliveries were con­
cerned. At the very time the accident occurred Read, 
McKean's agent,through whom the contract was negotiated, 
was telephoning to Mr. Hicks complaining of the delay, 
and saying that he laid a vessel then waiting ready to load. 
Within a few years of his death (the precise dates are nu­

ll icks had given certain properties to his child­
ren. He conveyed to the plaintiff’s, as tenants in common, 
the property in Albert upon which they now live. The 
consideration for this was in part the discharge of a cer­
tain indebtedness of some X700 due by Hicks to Warren 
.Scars for wages, and in part a gift to Celia Sears. Another 
property had been conveyed to Etta Hicks, and she and 
her husband Mansfield Hicks occupy that as a home. 
Another property he had purchased for his daughter Doeia 
Fiilimore, but she had received no conveyance of it, though 
she had lieen living on it for some time. The father’s in­
tention to give her this property seems to have been known 
and recognized by all the family, and the conveyance of it 
by the sons Arthur and John, after the deed now in t|ues- 
tion had been made to them, is concurred in by all the 
family as merely carrying into effect what they all knew 
was their father’s intention in reference to it. No pro­
vision had been made for Lucinda. She seems to be not

7042
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very strong mentally, and it appears to have been recog­
nized by the family that some special provision must lx- 
made for her case. The position of the two sons, Arthur 
and John, is somewhat peculiar. Arthur is 33 years of 
age, and he with his family occupy a property purchased 
for him by his father some six or seven years ago for 
#5,100, the conveyance of which, though executed at the 
time of the purchase, was not delivered until some three 
years later. John, the other son, is 30 years of age, and 
lie with his family occupy a property purchased by his 
father and conveyed to him. This property is a farm, in­
cluding some marsh laud, and it has a new house upon it, 
built after the purchase, at a cost of $!I09, exclusive of the 
lumber and some of the hardware us-si in its construction. 
The uncontradieted evidence of tlu-se two young men is 
that their father always intended to give them the lumlicr 
lands. Arthur Hicks' evidence on this point is as follows:

"<J. Was there any understanding with your father 
as respects what hi' was going to do ultimately witli his 
wood lands ! A. Yes, sir.

“ Q. What was it ! A. Well, he told me about the 
time he went over to Albert. He asked me if I would go 
over there with him, and I told him I would, and I believe 
it was about that time he told me lie would give me a deed 
of my place, and if 1 would go help him work along the 
same as I had that he would—well, some future time he 
intended giving my brother and me the lumber land and 
mill. We hud two mills at that time, and he said he in­
tended to give each of us a mill. He didn't say what part 
of the land he would give me. or anything like that. He 
told me he would give me part of the lumlier land.

“ y. You and John were to get the lumber lands A. 
Ves, sir; we were to get the lumber land between us; that 
is what he told me."

The evidence shews that the sons had always worked 
lor their father in the business—sometimes in one capacity 
and sometimes in another ; they were not partners, neither 
« ere they under wages. What they received for their sup-

1901).
SHAH» 
Hicks. 

Barker, J.
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l!M)li, port, outside of the product of tlii'ir own farms, seems to 
ska its liave come from u common fund, of winch the father had
Hicks, the control. The business was managed altogether by the 

Barker. J. father, and the scms had but a very general knowledge of 
its details.

This suit was commenced on December 2tith, 11105, anil 
the principal grounds upon which the validity of the con­
veyance is attacked are set out in section 5 of the bill, 
which is as follows : “ That immediately after his (that is, 
John Manning Hicks) death, the defendants, Arthur A. 
Hicks and John L. Hicks, set about obtaining a convey­
ance and transfer to themselves of the share and interest 
of the plaintif!’. Celia Sears, and the shares of the other 
heirs above mentioned, in the said estate, and they, the 
said defendants, together with their mother, the said Jane 
Hicks, knowingly, falsely, and fraudulently represented to 
the said Celia Sears that the personal property and real 
estate of the said John Manning Hicks was left in such a 
condition, and that there were such large debts against the 
same, that it was of relatively small value : and further, 
that the said John Manning Hicks, deceased, had left cer­
tain contracts to he carried out, and unless the said con­
tracts were carried out the said estate would be involved 
in litigation anil costs and there would be nothing left for 
the heirs, and that if the other heirs sold and transferred 
their respective shares to the said defendants they, the said 
defendants, might l)e able to protect the said estate; that 
the said defendants, Arthur A. Hicks and John I,. Hicks, 
offered to the said Celia .Sears the sum of 8500 for her 
share in the said real estate and personal property of the 
said John Manning Hicks, deceased, and for the purpose of 
inducing her to accept the same, knowingly, falsely and 
fraudulently represented to her that that amount was a 
fair value for her said share and interest in said estate, 
and falsely, knowingly and fraudulently misrepresented to 
her that if she did not sign and convey her said share and 
interest in the said estate to them that she might get 
nothing whatever." Section (i of the bill alleges that the 
plaintiff, Celia Sears, was at the time worried in mind over
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her father's death, and not in a proper mental condition to 
do business, and that she and lier husband were both 
ignorant of the true value and condition of her father’s 
estate, and without independent advice or opportunity of 
getting the same, and under these circumstances they 
executed the conveyance in question, relying upon the 
representations made by her brothers and mother, falsely 
and fraudulently, as she alleges. At the hearing the bill 
was amended by adding an allegation that the defendants, 
Arthur and John Hicks, wilfully suppressed facts within 
their knowledge material to be communicated to the plain- 
titls Besides denying the fraud with which they are 
charged, the defendants set up by wav of defence that the 
arrangement in question was honestly made as a family 
arrangement in order to carry out their father's intention 
as to the disposal of his property, and which he was him­
self prevented from carrying out by will in consequence of 
his sudden death.

The facts, so far as 1 have stated them, are not con­
tradicted, but the witnesses differ in their account as to 
what took place at the time the arrangement was made. 
The exact condition of the estate was of course not then 
known by any one. Senator Wood was perhaps in a better 
|sisition than any of the others to form an estimate of it. 
lie says that he had no doubt whatever of the solvency of 
the estate, and that the assets were considerably in excess 
of the liabilities. Hi' estimated tile debts at about 820,000, 
and so stall'd to the parties liefore the deed was executed. 
Mr. Bennett estimated them at $15,000, and so stated to 
Mansfield Hicks when he executed the conveyance. The 
debts, in fact, amounted to over 822,000, of which alxiut 
si2,000 were owing to Wood himself. No special inquiry 
seems to have been made as to the assets, and the witnesses 
differ somewhat as to the value of the lumber lands. I 
accept M r. Black s evidence on this point. He was one of 
the estate appraisers appointed by the Probate Court; he 
is practically acquainted with such property; he cruised 
the land in order to ascertain the nature and quantity of 
lumlier on it, and he valuer! it at 821,000. The value put

1906.

Barker, J.
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1901). upon the remaining land hy Mr. Wheaton, the other ap- 
hkails praiser, was #4,570 for the marsh, #4,000 for the home- 
iin KH. stead, and #2,000 for the land which was conveyed to Mrs.

Barker. J. Fi Hi more, as 1 have already stated. This would make the 
total value of the estate to lie in round numbers #40,000, 
subject to the widow’s right of dower. It appears that 
Wood had had business dealings with Hicks for some 
thirty years. Hicks consulted him in reference to his 
business matters, and on several occasions spoke to him of 
his s as to his disposal of his property among his
family. Wood knew of the McKean contract, and gener­
ally of Hicks" property and business. Hicks* sudden death 
threw upon his widow and the two sons a business respon­
sibility to which they were altogether unaccustomed. 
McKean's agent was pressing for the lumber deliverable 
under the contract, and it seems to have been a natural 
thing that they should, under the circumstances, go to 
Wood and get the benefit of his advice. Accordingly, at 
the mother's suggestion, the two sons did go to Wood, and 
they, with Wood and Mr. Bennett, who had l>een Hicks’ 
solicitor, ami attended at Wood's suggestion, had a long 
consultation over the estate affairs. It is put forward that 
this consultation was the initial fraud in this transaction— 
that it was had with a view to bringing about a division of 
the estate in the brothers’ interest. The evidence entirely 
disproves this. Its object was simply to find out what, 
under the circumstances, was the wisest course to adopt to 
wind up the estate to advantage and without loss or un­
necessary expense. The result of this conference was that 
Mr. Wood and Mr. Bennett met Mrs. Hicks, the sons and 
the daughters, with their husliands, on the 6th June, at the 
Hicks homestead. Wood and Mrs. Hicks had separate inter­
views with the three daughters ; afterwards a general con­
ference, when all were present, ami the result was that the 
conveyance in question was then and there prepared by 
Bennett and executed by all the parties. The conveyance 
of the piece of land which was to go to Mrs. Fillimore was 
at the same time prepared and executed and delivered to 
her by the two sons ; a note for .#500, jiayuhlc in six mouths

318
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was also given by the sons to the plaintiff Celia ; a similar 
note of $0()0 was given to Etta Hicks, and the whole 
matter was settled up then and there. The note for 8000 
to Etta was paid at maturity, shortly before this suit was 
commenced, but not until after it had been threatened.

That an agreement such as that which is alleged to 
have l>een made by these parties is to be regarded as a so- 
called “ family arrangement,” and dealt with on the prin­
ciple applicable to that class of contracts, is settled by 
Williams v. Williams (1 ). That case involved a contract 
lwtweeii two brothers in reference to certain properties 
which it was alleged they had agreed to hold in equal 
shares as tenants in common.. The father died in Novem­
ber, 1831, and among his papers was found a testamentary 
document signed by him and dated in January, 18*24, but 
as it had no witnesses it could not lx* admitted to probate. 
By that document he gave all his property to the two sons 
equally. There lx*ing an intestacy, his real estate, by 
reason of its living held by different tenures, did not descend 
to the sons in equal shares, and the contention was that 
they had agreed to carry out what seemed to have been 
their fathers intention as expressed in the document in 
question. The agreement was proved mainly by the way 
in which both parties had dealt with the properties for a 
long period of years. It was upheld, although the paper 
indicating the father’s intention was signed by him nearly 
eight years before his death, and although the agreement 
was not in writing and its existence proved, as 1 have 
just mentioned. In that case Turner, L. J., says : “The 
Vice Chancellor has, and l think correctly, rested this part 
of the case upon the f<x>ting of the cases as to family 
arrangements. It was strongly argued for the appellant 
that this cast; does not fall within the range of those 
authorities ; that those cases extend no further than to 
arrangements for the settlement of doubtful or disputed

289

1908.

Barker. .1,

(1) L. K. 2('h. 2W. (See In rr Kobrrt* (1005) 1 Ch. 704 : 
Haldwin v. Kin(jntone, 18 A. R. 68, 82, 07.—Rbp.)
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190li. rights ami that in this case there was not, and
heads could not be, any doubtful or disputed right : but this,
Hick». I think, is a very short-sighted view of the cases as 

Burkcr. J. to family arrangements. They extend, as I apprehend, 
much further than is contended for on the part of the 
appellant, and apply, us I conceive, not merely to cases 
in which arrangements are made between members of 
a family for the preservation of its peace, but to cases in 
which arrangements are made between them for the 
preservation of its property." The parties to this arrange­
ment stood in no fiduciary relation to one another, which 
would shift the onus of proving its liunn Jitlm upon the 
grantees. The transaction must, of course, he free from fraud 
or misrcprcscutution or bad faith or suppression of material 
facts. As James, L. J., says in Moxun v. 1‘ityue (1), “the 
(un ties must lie at arm's length, on equal terms, with equal 
knowledge ami with sufficient advice and protection." The 
onus of proof is, however, upon the plaintiffs. That there 
was a well-settled ' on Hicks’ part to dispose of his 
property substantially as has been done by this conveyance 
is proved not only by his repeated declarations to that effect 
to Wood, but by his more specific declarations to his own 
solicitor made only a week before his death. Mr. Bennett's 
evidence on this point is as follows: After stating that 
Hicks came to his office on the 2fith May, 1905, for the 
pur|H>se of discussing with him the terms of his will which 
he wished to make, Mr. Bennett proceeds: “ He told me 
he came in for this purpose. He liegan first—the first 
matter was the question of his lumber lands. He told me 
that he had become somewhat exhausted over tin- manage­
ment of his lumlsT business. His health was—it was tell­
ing on him, and that he thought of disposing of his lumber 

and («tying his debts as one idea. The other was 
leaving the lumlier lands to the luiys and charging them 
with the payment of his debts on the lumber lands. He 
asked me what 1 thought ulumt it in that respect. Then 
in the discussion he said that he was very knith to part

(1) !.. R. 8 (’h. 8H1.

3
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with his other hmds, that his boys had been brought up to 
ring—it was what they knew about, they didn’t care 

to farm, and that he was very anxious to have the lumber 
lands reserved for the boys, but he said• ‘If I live and I 
suppose 1 will, I know that if 1 retain them during the 
time I do live, I will lie still actively engaged in the lumlier 
operation myself, and 1 can't lie relieved from this worry 
and hard work that 1 wish to be relieved from.’ I said 
ultimately : ' Mr. Hicks, how would it do: you seem inclimsl 
to have the " ’ r lands reserved for the lioys—how would
it ilo if you were to make a will leaving the lumber lands 
to your boys and charging them with the payment of your 
debts' That will enable you to make your will now and 
settle it ; that can’t prevent you from afterwards, if you 
wish to change your mind at any time, to change your 
mind, Is ■cause a will is not of a nature that prevents you 
from altering any time you like.’ That was a phase of it I 
lielieve he had not worked out, and that was settled upon 
as one of the provisions of the will. The next feature we 
disetisstsl was his wife, and he said he intendisl leaving the 
home place for his wife for life, and the mention of that 
apisirently suggested the daughter at home. At any rate, 
lie next said : ‘1 have a daughter at home, an unmarried 
daughter, and 1 want—I have to make provision for her;’ 
and lie says : • She is not very bright’ That is the first
time 1 knew he hud a daughter who wasn’t very bright, 
and he said : ‘ I have got to make some provision for her.’ 
We discussed then the nature of what we thought In-tween 
us was the best provision, a good provision to make in such 
a ease. It came os a surprise to me, and after discussing it 
I'm- some little time, we could work it out all right while 
Mix Hicks was living, but the providing lieyond in case of 
her death, what was to la-come of his daughter, was per­
plexing, and Mr. Hicks, when confronted with that, felt 
that he hadn’t the tiling worked out as well as he would 
like. I said : 1 Well now, for the time 1 icing, let us pass 
along anil get your other provisions and then we will have 
-nly this one to meet later on.’ So I knew the other meiii-

190ti.

Barker. J.
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190(i. bers of tin' family and said : 1 What about Mrs. Sears?'
a*»*» He said : ‘ I don’t intend leaving Mrs. Seal's anything. I
iiivkh. have done a good deal for her, anil I made some provision 

Barker. J. for her in the property in Albert County.’ The next was 
Mrs. Mansfield Hicks. I asked him about her and he said : 
11 haven't intended to leave her anything ; I have never 
been intending to leave her anything.’ While I knew Mix 
Hicks. I didn't know Mrs. Sears—never met or had seen 
her that 1 know of—I knew Mrs. Hicks and knew the 
family and I said: * Don't you think you better leave her 
something ? I think I would if I were you?’ ‘ Well,’ he 
said, what was the use, she would only s|h'Iii1 it and only 
waste it, she and her husband.’ ‘ Well,' 1 said, * we can 
fix that a hunt it ; I can fix that so she can’t have the 
opportunity of wasting and spending it.’ 1 Well," he said, 
• I will make some—1 will leave a small amount for her, or 
make some small provision for her.' Then Mrs. Tillimore 
was spoken of. He said that he intended leaving her the 
Silas Kstahrooks Farm. He bought that farm through 
me, and I knew at the time lie really intended that for her. 
in a way. Well, he didn't take the deed in her name, 
although 1 hesitated a few years before I wrote the deed. 
I lii'ld the deed a number of years after he bought it—the 
title of it. He said he intended to leave her the Silas 
Kstahrooks farm and a piece of marsh land, and lie intended 
doing something more than that. We again came back to 
Lucinda Hicks, at home, and we tried to settle definitely on 
the provisions for her. We decided, so far, the charge was 
to he on the marsh lands, a life provision, providing for her 
maintenance and care, and afterwards at her death, the 
marsh lands, and after Mrs. Hicks'death, the marsh lands 
would go to the boys. Mr. Hicks desired to consult his 
wife further about that, aImut Lucinda, and in view of 
that I didn't learn definitely the particular marsh or par­
ticular amount that was going to Mrs. Hicks or to Mrs. 
Hillimore. He told me at the end of the interview, he 
said : 1 Now I have been intending to make my will, talk­
ing of making my will for some time past. I mean to have it 
done this time. I don’t intend putting it off. I will be
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down and complete this in a week or ten days,' ami lie left 190H.
my office. Within that time he was killed.” Mr. Hrnnett skak<

afterwards corrected his statement and said that Hicks only links, 
spoke of sidling the “big lot ’’ of wilderness land, which con- Barker. J. 
tabled .5,000 acres according to Hicks. That would leave 
1,000 acres for the hoys. Mr. Bennett told this conversa­
tion to Mr. Wood and John and Arthur Hicks at the 
interview they had together, and it seems clear from this 
evidence that Hicks had fully made up his mind to execute 
a will during the following week which would not have 
licnofltted these plaintiffs in any way. Mr. Bennett further 
says: That after Mr. Wood anil Mrs. Hicks had been 
talking with the plaintiff and her sisters when they were all 
at the Hicks home on the litli of June, he was askisl to go 
into the room where they all were. Mrs. Mansfield Hicks,
Mrx. Sears, Mix Fillimore, Mix Hicks, the mother, Arthur,
John, Senator Wissl and himself were all present. Mr.
Bennett says: “Senator Wissl said that they had been 
discussing Mr. Hicks’ affairs and the family were disposed 
to carry out Mr. Hicks’ wishes respecting his property.
And the hoys are to give Mrs. Hicks $500, Mrs. Sears $500, 

and Mrs. F'illimnre is to receive the place she is living on, 
the Silas Estabrooka place and a piece of marsh land: I 
suppose it will lie necessary to have some writing done 
rmlxidying this agreement:’ I said 1 Yes.' and they asked 
me to prepare the document.” When Mr. Wood in this 
way in the presence of all the parties, and after the inter­
views and discussions with them had taken place, stated as 
the result that the family were disposed to carry out Mr.
Hicks’ wishes as to Ilia property, there was no dissenting 
voice—on the contrary Mr. Bennett was there and then 
authorized to reduce that agreement into writing. In 
accordance with the instructions Bennett actually com- 
inrnced drawing an agreement to be signed by the |>arties 
there with a view to having the conveyance prepared and 
executed later on. But it having occurred to him that the 
conveyance could as well be executed at the time, the agree­
ment wins unnecessary. It was therefore pre|iared and 
executed. Mr. Bennett says that after that and while he was
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190(1. writing the deed Arthur Hicks came into the room and 
Shark told him that Mrs. Mansfield Hicks was to have #000 
Hicks. instead of #000. When the deed was ready for signature 

Murker. J. all the parties who actually signed it except Mansfield Hicks 
were present together. Mr. Wood, Mrs. Hicks, the widow, 
anil Mr. Bennett were also present. Mr. Bennett was asked 
to tell what took place while they were all there together. 
He said : "After they had seated themselves all in the 
parlor I took icument up and read it very slowly and 
carefully. When I finished it I said : ' This document 
simply means this—Mr. Hicks died without making a will; 
his children would inherit his property in eipml shares. 
This paper that 1 have reail over conveys from the 
daughters to Arthur Hicks and John L. Hicks, all the inter­
est that they inherit from their father.' I added then. 
’ if you wish it, you are entitled to have this estate admin­
istered in the Prolmte Court, and any surplus after the debts 
are paid you all are entitled to share in in equal shares.' 
Then I said: 'In the deed, the consideration is stand to 
be one dollar.’ I said, "that doesn't mean that the girls 
are not to receive the provision that is to Is- made for 
them, that it was arranged should be made.’ I said : 
' Mrs. rillimore will receive the Silas kstabrooks property 
and a piece of marsh land. 1 will stay here and draw the 
deed of it to-day; Mrs Sears will receive her #500 and Mrs. 
Hicks will receive SOOO.’ I said: ‘Satisfactory arrange­
ments will lie " to pay or secure to Mrs. Hicks that 
money ; that will be done to-day on the spot.’ Mansfield 
Hicks executed the deed later in the day." Mr. Bennett 
says that he read it to him, and when he signed it he said : 
‘ The Iwiys are getting a valuable property,' and I said : 
‘ Yes, they are, they are getting a valuable property.* He 
said: ‘Do you know what the debts are?’ I said: ‘1 
lielieve the debts all amount to #15,000. I don’t know: 
1 think they will probably amount to #15,000,’and he said: 
' Well, 1 supjKwe the boys are the most entitled to it.’ Hr 
then signed the deed." It is clear from this evidence that 
the plaintifls and those who acted in the same interest 
with the fullest knowledge of what their legal rights actu-

5
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ally were, voluntarily executed the conveyance, made as 
was stated at the time without either objection or dissent, 
with a view of carrying out the intentions of their father 
as to his property.

Before going into a consideration of the evidence in 
reference to the fraudulent misrepresentations relied upon 
by the plaintiffs as a ground for the relief prayed for, 
there are two minor points which may be disposed of. 
There is no evidence whatever to sustain the allegation 
that Mrs. Sears was so worried by her father's sudden death 
that she was incajuicitated from transacting business. Mrs. 
Sears herself did not venture to go that distance, and the 
other evidence entirely disproves it. Neither is there any­
thing in the point as to want of independent advice. Their 
legal position was told them clearly and accurately hy Mr. 
Bennett, and, as to other matters, these parties who had all 
a common interest were competent enough to manage their 
affairs. The evidence shews that Mr. Wood went to the 
Hicks house on the tith.lune, having in his mind the desir­
ability of some arrangement being made hy the members 
of the family which might obviate a formal administration 
of the estate in the Probate Court, save expense, and 
simplify the management of the business so as to enable it 
to lie carried on by the sons without delay. It is clear that 
hi1 had in his mind that if the daughters were willing to 
give effect to what, from his personal knowledge and what 
Mr. Bennett had told him. he knew to have been the inten­
tion of Hicks as to the final disposal of his property, the 
sons would be in a position to continue the business prac­
tically without interruption, and further delay in fulfilling 
the McKean contract would be avoided. Mrs. Sears' account 
of the interview between herself and Mr. Wood and her 
mother, so far as it refers to the alleged misrepresentation, 
is as follows: After relating a part of the conversation 
referring to her home property in Albert, her direct exami­
nation proceeds: "And then he (Wood) pointed out this 
paper ( j. e., the McKean contract) on the table, and stated 
that unless that contract was carried out there would be 
nothing left, and if it went through law it would take all
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inOll, there was, and would swing our Albert County property in
with it, and just then somebody came and called him and 
he went out of the room to the telephone, and my brother

Barker. J. John came into the room and he walked around to the 
table and was looking at the agreement, and my mother 
says: ‘Johnnie, you could no more start that mill without 
Mr. Head’s permission,' ami she made reference to an old 
fellow up there, * than old John S. Kstabrooks could ’ ; 
anil I got up from my chair, starting to go to the table to 
look at the pa|ier. and she stepped in ahead of me anil 
lifted the paper up so 1 could not see what was on the 
paper, ami I went liaek to my chair and sat down, and Mr. 
Wood came Ixvck in the room and my brother went out 
and lie repeated the words, ‘ unless the contract was curried 
out there would lx- nothing left, and if it went through 
law our Albert County property would lx1 swung in with 
it'; and I got oil" my chair and said 1 felt very sorry to 
think father had died and left things the way lie had, and 
1 did not come home expecting anything like this to Imp­
lant to-day, and if we could be left alone in Allant County 
I would go home and la satisfied under the circumstances, 
if what he told, under the stories he told, I would go home 
to AlIxTt County and say no more. I' would he satisfied 
with that, and 1 left the room ami went out of the room 
anil walked through the front hall to the front door and 
o|MUied the dixir and went out doors with the intention— 
and I told mother then 1 guessed 1 would go home, when I 
left the room and went out through the hall with the in­
tention of seeing if 1 would have time for taking tile train 
from Midjic for Sack ville in time; that was my intention 
when I went out." It will he noticed that, according to 
this account, Mr. Wixxl said nothing in reference to Hicks' 
intentions as to his property, and he did say, not otdy once 
hut twice, that unless the McKean contract was carried out 
there would lx; nothing left, and if it went through law 
Mrs. Sears' Allivrt County property would be swung in 
with it, by which I understand the witness to mean that it 
would he lost in common with the estate of her father. 
That a man of Senator Wixxl's intelligence and business
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capacity and exjierience should, under the circumatance*. 
have omitted the one statement or made the other, appears 
to me altogether improbable, tin her cross-examination 
-lie swore positively that the whole conversation with Mr. 
Wood hail reference to this McKean contract; that he said 
nothing as to the amount of the debts or the value of the 
assets of the estate; neither did he say anything as to 
Hicks' intentions in reference to his property. This whole 
contract with McKean only involved some $5,000; the 
lumber was all in the stream to he manufactured, and 
though delay might have caused a liability for damages, it 
could not well prove a very serious loss. Besides this, 
how was Mrs. Sears' property to he injured hv it' She 
hail received a conveyance of it from her father three years 
liefore : she was in |x>ssesxion of it and laid been for that 
|tcriod ; and if her account is correct, her husliand has paid 
her father its full value in cash and lalwir. Wood must 
have known that Mi’s. Sears' property could not 1st in any 
way involved in any loss arising out of the McKean con­
tract or jeopardised by it in any way. Mr. Wood s account 
is as follows: “I asked her about her property in Albert 
County, if her father had given her a deed of it, 1 think. 
I am not sure if the deed was mentioned, hut 1 asked her. 
1 do not know that I can remember all that was said alsmt 
« hat it was, and so on, and 1 said that was the property 
her father intended to lie a home for her, as I had under­
stood from him, and then I explained to her that my object 
in coming up there was to see what had been done, and 
divide what was to lie done in reference to the future busi­
ness of the estate ; that we had either to administer or 
make an arrangement with the family, and I asked her if 
-lie was satisfied to carry out the intentions of her father ; 
no will had been made, and she said—I can't give the 
language—but she expressed herself satisfied. 1 think the 
words she used in her own evidence were probably the 
words shi’ used—that if she could have her home in Albert 
< 'ounty, or was left alone in Albert County, or some such 
w< irds as that, she was satisfied. Then she asked me after 
that what guarantee she would have from the boys that
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1!I0(I. her lands would not be ' liable in any way for estate 
skakh debts—that she bad these clear of any liability of tile 
Hick*, estate, and I said tlwre would be no difficulty about that;

Murker: J. there would be plenty of property to pay the debts, and if 
she was any way alarmed about that, that we would give 
her any guarantee she wanted that she would not be dis­
turbed for any debts of the estate. I think that is the 
sulistance of the conversation." Mr. Wood then told of 
his interview with Ktta Hicks and Mis. Fillimore. After 
he had finished these three separate conversations he asked 
the two boys, John and Arthur, into the room, where their 
mother also was. He proceeds : “ I said to them that I 
thought the prospects of making a family settlement were 
very good ; the girls all seemed willing to cany out what 
they thought was their father’s intentions, and I spoke 
particularly of Mrs. Sears. I said that Mrs. Scare, there 
would I*1 no trouble settling with her, but said the only 
one that made any objection was Mrs. Mansfield Hicks; 
at least I ilid not say she made any objection, but the only 
one that hesitated was Mre. Mansfield Hicks, and then I 
went on to say to the boys that I thought Mrs. Mansfield 
Hicks’ case a little different from what I expected. I said 
1 thought lier father, although 1 knew' his intentions were 
not to give her more, the way he had spoken to me, yet 1 
said I thought it was pretty hard to leave her with the 
mortgage against her place; that 1 did not think, from what 
1 knew of her husliand, that they would ever pay it, anil 
the result would probably be they would sometime lie with­
out a home. 1 said if this arrangement was made—if the 
girls carried out the spirit which they had manifested to 
settle the business according to their father's intentions, 
that 1 thought they could atl'ord and I thought they ought 
to deal generously with them, anil 1 suggested that they 
should give Mrs. Mansfield Hicks 8500; and that if they 
gave her 8500, they should also give Mrs. Sears 8500; and 
we spoke of Mrs. Fillimore, but it appears that she was to 
get a piece of marsh, which I didn’t know before, and 
which had not been spoken of lietween us ; so she was left 
out. Well, Arthur objected ; thought that if they had

4
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what their father intended for them it was all they ought 190(1.
to claim, and we discussed that for quite a little. Finally shah»
John spoke up and said he thought perhaps they had better Hick». 

do what 1 advised, and later on Arthur agreed to it. Barker, J. 
Then the boys went out, and I suggested to Mrs. Hicks 
that we had better now put the matter to a final test and 
better bring the girls in and see whether they would ac­
cept. 1 said, ‘ Now we have a definite proposition to make 
them.’ The three girls were asked to come in together, and 
I told them all together what I had said to the boys and 
what the boys had consented to do ; they had consented to 
give Mrs. Mansfield Hicks and Mrs. Sears $.500 each, and 
that Mrs. Fillimore would have her deed of the place she 
lived on and the marsh, and then 1 rememlier distinctly of 
asking each of them separately if they were satisfied. I 
said to Mrs. Hicks, ‘ Now are you satisfied with that ar­
rangement ' She said she was. I asked Mrs. Sears, and 
she said she was. I asked Mrs. Fillimore, and she said the 
same." Mr. Wood then tells of the preparations and direc­
tions for drawing the conveyance. Later on he gave the 
following testimony:

“Q. At that time was anything said, when you had 
them individually alone in with you, was anything said 
alsnit possible trouble or lawsuits or litigation using up the 
estate, and it would l>e better for them to take the $500.
A. No, nothing. Well 1 think 1 said this, that if the estate 
was administered in the regular way that it would involve 
some delay, a little delay and some considerable expense: no 
amount mentioned.

“Q. Was there any idea given out by yourself or Mrs.
Hicks in your presence, to them that tin1 i-state would l>e 
used up if this was not done ! A. Oh, J couldn't say that, 
because 1 knew bettor.

“ Q. There would be too much then to be used up.
A. I knew there was plenty of estate to pay John Man­
ning Hicks’ debts, and more too.

“ Q. When they were all together was anything said 
by yourself or Mr. Hicks on these- lines f A. Well, I was
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ISKMi. nskisl ut some tin»', either when the three girl» were in 
ska»* together or later, 1 think it was when Mr. Bennett was
Hick», writing. I think they were mostly all there—they were

iiiirker.j. in anil out—I was asked by one of them if 1 knew about 
what Mr. Micks liabilities were, or how much he owed,and 
I said I couldn’t say exactly, but 1 thought about 820,000.

" Q. Another thing : Mrs. Sears says that when she was 
alone in there with you and Mix Hicks this McKean or 
Head contract was there. Did you have the contract there? 
A. Well, 1 hadn't: no.

"(). Have you any recollection of it being there f A. 
1 don’t think it could lie there. There was no one but Mrs. 
Hicks, and I went in there alone. I hadn't ‘lie contract 
1 went there very soon after I got there.

“(). She says that you, pointing to the contract, made 
some remark iilmut the difficulty that would arise if no 
arrangement was made over this contract, and the estate be 
put in litigation or something to that effect. A. Oh, no. 
The only thing 1 did any was that this contract would have 
to I»1 carried out; the estate was liable to carry out that 
contract.

“ y. The contract was not Ix'fore you when you 
that statement A. Oh, no, the contract couldn’t lie there.

“ y. 1 think she said you were out at the particular 
time. Did you see Mrs. Hicks, the widow, attempt to pre­
vent Mrs. Sears from seeing any document that was on the 
table ? A. No, 1 dill ol.

Mrs. Hicks’ memory ns to the sequence of events is 
perhaps not quite so clear ns that of Mr. Wood, but her 
testimony entirely corroborates bis. She says:

“ y. Take Mrs. Sears, when Mix Sears came in, can 
you remember what Senator Wood said to her ? A. Well, 
I don’t know ns I know just what be said to her, but he 
told her : he said that we thought we would try to get a 
settlement fixed so that it could be agreeable so that the 
boys could go on with the work. I don't know ns 1 can 
just tell wind for word.

“ (j. Did he inform her as to Mr. Hicks’ intentions as 
to her ? A. Well, he did.

5
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“ ty What did lie tell her ! A. I think Mrs. Nears told 
Mr. Wood first that she Imil the Albert County property; 
said her father gave her that, and if they would let her 
alone she would take it ami go home contented : or some­
thing to that.

“ Q. Whether she said that first or at a later stage, she 
said it ! A. She said it. 1 don’t know that she said it 
right at that time.

“ (j. Is your recollection clear as to what was said first 
ami last, as to the order in which things were said ! A. 
Well. 1 don't know that I am.

' Q. Did Mr. Wood, on that occasion, say that the 
estate was heavily in debt or intimate it was heavily in del* 
and there would be very little for the heirs I A. No, sir.

“ (). On that occasion do you recollect that was not 
Niid ‘ A. No, sir, he never.

‘ (,1. Was anything said about the value of the estate ' 
A. No, sir, nothing.

" <,). Nor there lieing a small amount for the heirs 
A. No, air, none.

“ Q. On that occasion was reference made ' con- 
tmet with Head ? A. Well, he said that the contract—he 
spoke about the contract. I think that the boys had to 
sell the lumber as Read was wanting it and very anxious 
for it, and it had to be carried out ; but he didn't say that 
it was going to.

"Q. Did he say it was going to involve the estate in 
easts or anything like that A. I know Mr. Wood said no 
such a thing as that. *

“ Q. Was the contract there la-fore you at any time t 
A. That day i Well, I never saw it. I never saw the con­
tract that day.

“Q. Well, Mrs. Sears says that when you and Senator 
Wiaxl and she were in the room alone that the contract 
was on the table, and she went to look at it and you pre­
vented her; is that correct I A. I never saw the contract. 
I never stopped Mrs. Sears from seeing any contract.

“ (j. You didn't see the contract yourself ' A. No, I 
don't mind seeing it that day at all ; but I did hear, I think

ll)0(i.
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Hears

Barker. J.

it was .John, inquiring for the contract : asked for it, or 
something to that effect. I think lie said Mr. Bennett 
wanted it, or something like that. I think 1 heard him 
say that.

" y. You have no recollection of it ? A. Something, 
hut I never seen the contract, I know, that day.

“ <). After you talked the matter over, apart from each 
other, they all came in, did they ? A. Yes.

“ (j. Ami when they all came together what arrange­
ment was arrived at, do you remember ? What did they 
do ? Approve of the arrangement arrived at ? A. Well, 
after they agreed to—after Mr. Wood talked to the girls 
siqiarate they agreed to take the—He proposed if the 
toys would, he thought if they could get it settled 
up. the matter, that the hoys had agreed to give them #000 
a piece.

“ y. Before they came in did Mr. Wood go and see 
the hoys ? A. 1 think before the girls came in together, 
the three of them, that Mr. Wood went anil seen the boys.

“ y. And after he saw the hoys he then went in and 
had all the girls come in together ? A. Yes, sir.

‘■y, Do you recollect what took place when they were 
all in there together ? A. Well, the girls agreed to take 
the #500 a piece, and Mrs. Fillimore had the farm and hit 
ot marsh, and I think Mansfield's wife hesitated a bit ; she 
grumbled some. I think she w $000.

“y. Finally they called in Mr. Bennett, 1 suppose I 
Can you recollect distinctly whether it was on that occa­
sion she wanted the $000 nr at a later time that she wanted 
the #000 ' A. Well, 1 don't remember just when it was 
she wanted it, hut 1 remember of her wanting #000.

“ y. And it was agreed to pay her that by the Ixiys ? 
A. Well, they did at last agree to pay her.

“ y. Mr. Bennett was sent for to put the agreement in 
writing? A. Mr. Bennett was called in.

“ y. Did he do anything after he was called in or any­
thing before he wrote f A. Well, I don't remember.

“ y. He wrote the document, anyway f A. Yes.
“ y. 1 )id he rend it over ? A. Yes, he read it over to 

them.
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“ Q. Do you remember him milking any statement 
with respect to the document ? Did he explain it ! A. He 
did explain it to them.

“ (j. Do you remember what he said about it ? A. 
Well, I don't know as I can remember, but it was that after 
they had agreed to take the $500 a piece, the amount, 
whatever it was, he told them, and had signed it, that they 
were signing—well, so that they had no more claim in the 
estate ; but I can't put it just.

“ Do you recollect him saying anything about Mr. 
Hicks not having made a will, what the effect was t A. 
Well, yes, I do. That his dropping off without a will, that 
each one would have their rnpial share, 1 think—some­
thing.

" 1,1 He said that Mr. Hicks, having dropped off with­
out a will, they each would have an eijual shave l A. Yes, 
1 think.

"<j. And that in signing this they each signed away 
that share ! A. Well, yes, he did.

“ <V- Mrs. Sears has said that you told her if she didn't 
sign this or agree to take the $500 and sign a release of 
her interest in the estate that her own pro|ierty would be 
dragged in, or something to that effect, to the estate. Did 
you make any representations to any of your daughters 
then of what the effect would be on the estate if they did 
not sign the release ! A. No, sir, I didn't.

"<j. Who did the talking ? A. Well, Mr. Wood talked 
to them, and they seemed to be willing and appeared to 
want to do what was their father's wish.

"<j. They appeared to want to do as near their father’s 
wish as [xmsihle ; that seemed the disposition at the time t 
A. That seemed to be their—they was noways loath to 
do it”

This is substantially all the evidence which has any 
b aring upon the principal ground upon which the plain- 
l ills' case rests—that is, wilful misrepresentation. I pointed 
out how improbable to me seemed Mrs. Sears’account of 
« hat took place between herself on the one side and her

1906,
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1000. mother and Senator Wood on the other. Their evidence 
hkahji contradicts hern in all its important points ; she is inter-
Hickh. ested and they are not ; for so fur as there is any evidence,

linrkur, J. neither Mr. Wood's position as a creditor nor Mrs. Hicks’ 
position as dowress is affected by the arrangement. Under 
these circumstances I think 1 ought not to interfere with 
the conveyance or the arrangement which these parties 
made. It is concurred in by Mrs. Mansfield Hicks and her 
sister Mrs. Fillimore, and the plaintiff herself concurs in it 
so far as it relates to the land conveyed to Mrs. Fillimore. 
Before leaving this branch of the case there are, however, 
some other contradictions to which I shall refer. It was 
put forward as a strong evidence of an intention on the 
|iart of Mrs. Hicks to withhold some valuable information 
or to commit some fraud in some way, that she prevented 
Mrs. Sears from inspecting the McKean contract, and she 
swears positively as to the paper living on the table when 
the three were conferring together. In addition to the 
contradiction of Mr. Wood and Mrs. Hicks. Mr. Bennett 
says that the contract was " \*1 to him before these
parties went into the room at all by one of the sons, and 
that it was not out of his jsissession until after the con­
veyance had been executed. More than that, when a 
search was living made for it, when Mr. Bennett asked for 
it, Mrs. Sears herself assisted her brothel's in searching 
among the papers for it. There was nothing about it to 
conceal ; it is g hut an ordinary printed contract for 
the manufacture and delivery of 400 or 600 M. feet of 
lumls r. Mrs. Sears states that after she came out of the 
room, when Mr. Wood and she had the first conversation, 
she met her brother Arthur in the kitchen, and he came 
and called her by name, “ Celia, what is going on here this 
morning I" and she said, “Why, Arthur, don't you know 
that Senator Wood and a lawyer is here doing up the busi­
ness f" He said : “My God! as cpiick os this ; what can 
the matter lie ?” Arthur Hicks denies this.

It is said, however, that the conveyance cannot be 
supported because there was a suppression of fact as to the 
amount of the debts and value of the assets—matters

6
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which were imiterial to lie communicated to the plaintiffs 
that they might know wlmt they were really king asked 
to convey. If the conveyance was really made by the 
plaintiffs, as the defendants contend that it was, solely for 
the purpose of carrying into effect Mr. Hicks' intention as 
to the final disposal of his property, it is an altogether 
immaterial inquiry as to the value of the surplus of the 
estate or whether there would hi- a surplus or not, because 
in any case the plaintiffs are by the arrangement getting 
nil that their father intended them to have. We have 
Mm Sears’ own admission that before leaving the room 
after the first interview she did consent to give up to her 
brothers all her interest in lier father’s estate provided she 
should not be disturbed in her occupation of the Albert 
property. Hut she says she did so altogether on the 
strength of Mr. Wood's assurance that her father’s estate 
was insolvent and that her own property was in danger of 
in some way lieing involved with it. Accepting Mr.Wood’s 
version of what took place at that interview it is clear that 
Mrs. Sears’ consent to part with her interest was attribut­
able solely to the only reason given for suggesting any such 
arrangement, because at that time there had k-en nothing 
proposed as to the $500. Mrs. Mansfield Hicks does not 
seem to have assented at first, but Mrs. Sears, according 
to her own admission as well as the testimony of Mrs. 
Wood and Mrs. Hicks, did. Any other view seems to 
he altogether inconsistent with the fact that according to 
the plaintiffs' evidence, at all events, neither they nor any 
one else made any inquiry as to the position of the estate 
or suggested any delay with a view to ascertaining it. Mr. 
Wood states that at the meeting, when Mr. Bennett was 
directed to draw up the papers, some one of the daughters 
inquired as to the amount of the debts, but that was after 
flic matter had ken agreed to. Mr. Wood's estimate of 
the amount of the liabilities certainly did not induce any­
one to decide upon the arrangement, and it was considera­
bly under the actual amount. Assuming, however, that 1 
am wrong in treating this case as simply a case of a family 
arrangement, and that it is to k regarded as one between
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lllOli. vendor and vendee, where is the evidence of any suppres- 
si.akx sion of material facts t If without the intervention of Mr. 
Units. Wood or anyone else, John and Arthur Hicks had gone 

Barker. .1. to their sister, Mrs. Sears, and said to her : “It is clear 
that our father intended that we should get these lands 
and pay the debts, and that you were not to get anything 
more than you already have ; we will give you 8500 for 
your interest in the estate," and without inquiry by her 
and without any representations from them except as to 
their father's intentions, of which there seems no question, 
she accepts the offer, takes the 8500 ami executes the trans­
fer, could she afterwards turn around and have the con­
veyance set aside because she did not know what the debts 
amounted to, or what the assets were worth and was 
therefore not in a position to tell the precise value of her 
sixth interest ! I think the Court would not and ought 
not to entertain such a claim. Were the brothers in such 
case bound to give their estimate of the value of the assets 
—their estimate of the amount of the liabilities—their 
estimate of the cost of administration and their estimate 
of the value of the widow's dower, without any request 
from her t In my opinion they were not If she chose to 
act upon her own judgment or chose to waive all inquiry 
as to facts upon which she was without information she 
would, in my opinion, he bound, and for obvious reasons 
she should lie.

Assuming that this case, instead of belonging to either 
of the above classes, is really a combination of lioth and it 
should, therefore, be dealt with as if the consideration for 
the conveyance were compounded partly of value and 
partly love and affection, as was the case in Penne v. Peruse 
(1), I cannot agree that in such a case there has Ix-en any 
suppression of material facts. Mr. WihkI says that he 
stated his view as to the probable amount of the debts and 
it turns out that his estimate was under the actual figures. 
In fact, neither of the brothers nor Mrs. Hicks knew what 
the debts amounted to—they themselves went to Wood for

(1) 7 Cl. A F. 271).



HI] NEW BRUNSWICK EQUITY RETORTS. 307

information on that subject. As to the assets I should think 190(i. 
for all practical purposes Mrs. Sears knew as much about skabs 

them as her brothers. She seemed to be an active, intelligent, Hick». 

self-possessed and independent woman. She knew all Marker. J. 
about her own property, and had positive opinions as to its 
value. She knew all about Mrs. Mansfield Hicks' property 
and its cost. She knew all about the properties conveyed 
to her two brothers, what they cost, what money had been 
expended on them since their purchase, and had positive 
opinions as their present value. She knew all about the 
property which was conveyed to Mrs. Fillimore and her 
father’s intention in buying it. Besides this, she knew 
about her father's lumber lands', she had herself cooked 
for the men when lumliering on the Alliert property. She 
knew its acreage, and seemed to have about as intimate a 
knowledge as any of the others as to w hat property there 
was. And she knew there would be a surplus, for she was 
getting Sot HI and Mrs. Mansfield Hicks was getting Sli(M) 
for their interest in it. I am unable to see that in this 
ease, any more than the other, there was any suppression 
of facts, still less any suppression of facts material to be 
communicated. See Hui nltridge v. Mom (1); Attwood v.
Snuill (2). In the case of Peru*e v. Peruse, just cited, the 
laird Chancellor, in sinking of arrangements of this des­
cription, says: “ By what scale of money consideration are 
these objects to be estimated ’ The impossibility of esti­
mating them has led to the exemption of family arrange­
ments from the rules which affect others. The consideration 
in this and in other such eases is compounded partly of 
value anil partly of love and affection." See Hogltton v.
Ihyhton (3).

The only other ]siint was that the consideration was 
, hut there is nothing ill that. It is said that ill 

eases like this “ modem equity will not weigh consideration 
m golden scales." And laird Eldon, in Cole* v. Treeothick 
141. says that specific isirformance will not lie refused on

<1| 3 Jnr. N. s. as.
(2) 8 01. \ K. 232.

I

VOL III. N. H. K. K.—I».

(31 13 lienv. 278. 
(4) U Ve». 248.
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1000. the ground of inadequacy of price unless the inadequacy 
hkauk amounts in itself to conclusive and decisive evidence of
Hi< kk. fraud. The #500 was ample consideration, and without 

Barker, J. that at all the conveyance by the brothers of their interest 
in the Estabrooks farm and marsh to Mrs. Killimore in 
performance of the agreement was an ample consideration 
to 8up]*>rt an arrangement such as this. See Williams v. 
Williams, already cited.

The bill must lx; dismissed with costs.
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HEATON v. WILBUR.

Mortyaye—A Imolute ctmreyunce—Mortyaye or jot return1.

I ..mil of till' plaintiff worth *1,5011, subject to a mortgage for *IKX), 
ami other charges for *31X1, was conveyed to the defendant in 
consideration of his paying *140 due for instalments under 
the mortgage, for the recovery of which an action had Isien 
brought. The costs of the action were paid by the plaintiff. 
The Court, finding under the evidence that the dei-d, though 
absolute in form, was intended as a mortgage, allowed tne 
plaintiff to redeem.

Redemption bill. The facts fully appear in the judg­
ment of the Court.

Argument was heard May 30, 1906.

M. G. Teed, K. C„ and H. IT. liewmn, for the plaintiff.

IT. H. Chandler, K. C., for the defendant.

1906. August 24. Barker, J. :—

The question involved in this suit is solely one of fact, 
and that is whether a certain conveyance, dated February 
5th, 1897, and made by the plaintiff to the defendant and 
one J. Temple Forbes, of a lot of land in the Town of 
Moncton, and which is on it# face an absolute conveyance, 
was really intended to be alwolute, or whether the transac­
tion was in fact not a mortgage transaction. The plaintiff 
alleges that the conveyance was made and intended as a 
security for a loan, and he has filed this bill with a view of 
redeeming the premises, 1 The plaintiff acquired the land 
in question a Iront 1892 from one Edward Robertson, and 
paid for it between 81,200 and 81,300. At that time it had 
but one building on it, but he afterwards placed upon it 
three or four more, which increased its value, according to 
the plaintiff’s estimate, to 82,000. In the year 1892 the 
plaintiff mortgaged the land to the trustees of the Nova 
Scotia Permanent Benefit Building Society and Savings
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I90li. Fund to secure the sum of #1,200, with interest, payable in 
Bkaton monthly instalments of #12.00. In 1807 the plaintiff was 
Wn.iu K. somewhat embarrassed in his business matters. He was in 
Barker. J. arrears in his monthly payments to the amount of about 

#140, besicles being in debt to some others with whom he 
was dealing in a business way. An action had been brought 
against him by the Building Society on his bond for the 
recovery of the #140 overdue for the monthly payments, 
and in this action final judgment was about lacing signed 
when the negotiations were commenced out of ' " the
present litigation arises. The plaintiff's version of the 
transaction is this. He says that the defendant and Forbes, 
who were also residents of Moncton, were in the habit of 
coming into his place of business, anil on this juirticular 
occasion the defendant noth ng b was ently in
trouble of some kind, asked him the cause of it. He then 
told him anil Forbes that he had been sued by the Building 
Society for arrears, and was about losing the property after 
paying on it for four or five years. He said he felt badly 
about it. The defendant, he says,turned around to Forbes 
and said : “ Temple, let’s help him." When he got through 
with the business in his shop he was then busy about, he 
said: “(it if you propose to help me I will give
you a deed as security," and he told them the amount he 
was behind. His examination proceeds:

“ Q. Give them the deed of what ! A. A deed of the 
property in ipiestion.

“(). Was it mentioned then or did they know what 
pro]ierty it was ? A. They knew : 1 told them.

“ Q. What did they say to that suggestion of yours ! 
A. They agreed to it.

"(j. I>o you remember the words they said t If you 
can remember give what they said ! A. They said they 
would help me, and I said if they would I would give them 
a deed of the property until they got their money.

“ Q. What next took place f A- I told them I would 
pay all the costs of the case. All they had to pay was the 
arrears of subscription to the society.

5

2

4
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Q. Did you state what that was ? A. I told them 190(i.
about—somewhere about $140.

“ fy And you told them if they would, you would
Hkaton 

give them a deed of the property as security ? Was any- R«rker. j. 
thing further stated as to how long it would or might have 
to stand < A. After they agreed to do that I said: * You 
Is-tter go right up and see Mr. Hewson in reference to costs’
(Mr. Hewson was the Building Society’s attorney, who had 
brought the action). They said they would.

“ Q. Do you remember anything else taking place at 
that time I Was anything said, and if so what, as to who 
would attend to collecting the rents of the property ( A.
I was to collect the rents and remit the monthly payments.
1 said I would pay the coats and collect the rents in the 
case, and I would remit the $12.(>0 every month out of the 
rent."

The pluintifi" says that the defendant then went out 
to see Mr. Hewson as to the costs—that he came hack, he 
thinks, on the same day and told him that he hud pleaded 
his case so hard that Mr. Hewson had"cut the costs about 
in two;" reduced the amount from about $70 to $40. He 
then gave the defendant the $40 and told him that he had 
better go right up and pay the costs and bring back a 
receipt ; and he did so. Some four days after, he says the 
defendant with Mr. Bray, his solicitor, who prepared the 
conveyance for him, came to his shop with the deed to he 
executed. He sent for his wife at their apartments over 
the shop, to come down, and what took place when the 
conveyance was executed in the presence of himself, his 
wife, the defendant, and Bray, he describes as follows :
“1 said to Mr. Bray, ‘I suppose you know this is a trust 
deed.’ Before he had t me to reply Mr. Wilbur said :
' There is no trust in it, you have got to trust me.’ He 
repeated that. I said : 1 All right. Mr. Wilbur, that is what 
I agreed to give you and Mr. Forbes—a deed till you get 
your money.' 1 took the deed in my hand and looked 
over the description and what it was agreed, and says to 
Mr. Bray : ' I suppose this is written like an ordinary
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l!IO(i. deed.' He says, ‘yes,' and I looked at the description and I 
HKAitm signed it." The plaintiff* wife corroborate* his statement
Wn.se». of what took place at the time the deed was executed.
Barker. J. Bray's evidence on this point is as follows. He says : “ I

went in with Mr. Wilbur for Mr. Benton to acknowledge 
the ileid, and he asked me was it a trust deed. I told him 
it was an ordinary deed. Mr. Beaton asked me—and 
shewed him the description to see if it was correct, and he 
saiil the deed was all right, the description was all right, 
and I asked him to sign it, and asked him to send for his 
wife, and she came down and signed it. 1 can’t say for 
certain 1 asked him to send for his wife before reading the 
description or after." * * * Mr. Wilbur repeated several 
times that he wished to help Mr. Beaton out, that he was 
in tremble and a pretty decent fellow, and he would like to 
help him, but further than that ns to any discussion, just 
what was said I can't give it. * * Bray says they (by which I 
presume he means the plaintiff, defendant, and himself, for 
Mrs. Benton does not seem to have remained longer than 
was necessary to execute the deed) were there probably an 
hour and a half talking the whole matter over,and while he 
was unable to give the conversation at length he summed 
it up thus : " My recollection of the conversation that took 
place from the time we went in, the points that I recollect, 
we discussed the difficulties of Mr. Beaton, and not only the 
difficulties with the Building and Loan Society, but diffi­
culties, his general financial position right through ; and it 
was discussed whether the fact that M r. Beaton would lose 
his projierty, unless he either did something with it, if it 
remained in his hands, and that a change had to be made 
and he required some money down to handle the loans that 
I understood were then due to the Nova Scotia Building 
and U»«n Society, and the amounts of the Building and 
Loan Society were all talked over. I don’t recollect the 
amounts; but those were talked over, and his other indebt­
edness was talked over, to other people. I don’t recollect 
the amounts, and Mr. Wilbur was going to advance this 
money.

“ (). And take this deed f A. And take this deed.
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“ <). For the Building and Loan Society A. For the 
Building and Loan Society. Mr. Wilbur wasn't to advance 
money to anything else hut the Building and Loan Society, 
lie was to advance to the Building and Loan Society tor 
the purpose of saving himself the getting an execution 
under a judgment ; advance to Mr. Beaton, and sacrifice his 
money." (This last clause is not very clear, but I copy 
from the official report).

Mr. Bray was asked if he and Wilbur had any discus­
sion over the matter before they went to the plaintiff's 
shop, and in reply he said : “ The only discussion I had 
with Mr. Wilbur he told me to write the deed and he would 
(Mill for me to go down to Mr. Benton. He told me Mr. 
Benton was in trouble and he was helping him.”

It seems to be admitted that there was about 8900 
unpaid on the mortgage at the time, including the y 140 
overdue for monthly instalments. In addition to this there 
were city taxes and other munici]>nl charges against the 
property, amounting in all to alsmt SHOO more, making 
the total incumbrance to be alsmt SI,200. The evidence, I 
think, shews that these ligures were in the minds of all 
partie* when these negotiations were in progress. The 
defendant and Forbes were going into the matter on equal 
shares and with the same security and on the same terms. 
They |iaid the amount due the Building Society—for which 
the action was brought—S138.77, each paying one-half. 
Fol lies sold out his interest to Robertson, from whom the 
plaintiff had purchased in 1802, for the sum of S70, though 
the consideration mentioned in the conveyance, which is 
dated April 10, 1807, is SHOO.

The case set up by the defendant is that the transac­
tion in question was not only in form but in fact an actual 
purchase by him and Forbes of the plaintiff's equity of 
redemption in these mortgaged premises, which they Ixiught 
subject to the mortgage and other charges. He does admit 
that at or about the time the conveyance was made, the 
plaintiff stated that he thought he should be able to sell 
the property in a short time to one Watters for some 
81,500 or 81,000, and he says that he and Forbes did con-
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1900. sent to re-convey the property in case he succeeded in
bkaton selling to Watters, on repayment of their money. He,
W11.BUK. however, says that Watters soon bought elsewhere, and his 
Barker. J. negotiations with the plaintifl, such us they were, fell 

through. The defendant’s history of the transaction is as 
follows. He says, as a result of a conversation with Forbes, 
he went with Forbes to see the plaintiff at his store in 
Moncton. He was asked to tell what took place, and he 
answered : “ Benton told me that he was sued, and that he
wanted me to let him have some money and take security, 
and I asked him what security, and he began to tell me 
about tins security, and I said : ‘How much is against it ?’ 
And they figured up how much against it, about *1,200, and 
I said there was no security in that, taxes and frontage 
and all. That is what had to be paid then. I said that 
was no security, and I couldn't look at it, and he asked me 
what I would do and 1 said that I would buy the property 
right out, and if Mr. Forties would buy half 1 would buy 
half, and we would pay what was against it ; that is, the 
*1,200."

“ y. What did you understand was against it at the 
time A. I understood the Building Society had a mort- 
gage against it.

“ y. .lust what they told you ! A. That is what they 
told me right there, that the Building Society bad a mort­
gage on it, and that Mr. Hewson had sued for a year's back 
dues, and it was about *000, the mortgage, and the arrears 
and the taxes, and the frontage and rates : what the city 
had against it was $300, and I agreed to take it on that, 
buy it on that and pay for it " * * *

" y. When you said you were willing to buy the prop­
erty in this way what did Mr. Beaton say to it f A. He 
said lie would rather we take security, but if we wouldn't 
take security he would sell it.

“y. Do you remetnlier what they said the arrears 
were that Mr. Hewson was collecting ! A. The judgment, 1 
understood, was about *140 or 8150—about that."

The defendant then says that he, at the plaintiff's 
request, employed Bray to prepare the conveyance, giving
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him a description of the hind which lie had received from 190(i.
the plaintiff. He says the next thing was that Bray Beaton

brought him the deed executed by the plaintiff and his wife, Wii.bc*. 

but that he was not present when it was executed. His Barker, j. 
examination then proceeds :

“ <j. What took place in connection with the costs of 
the proceedings ? A. Mr. Beaton agreed to pay the costs 
on it himself—Mr. Hewson’s costs. We wouldn’t take it 
without he would."

He says that he went to Mr. Hewson.at plaintiff s request, 
and got a reduction in the amount of the costs in his interest 
—that Beaton himself not only provided the money to 
pay them, but that he himself handed the money to Mr.
Hewson, and that Hewson there and then gave him a receipt 
for the $*40 paid. He further states that he and Forbes 
ilid afterwards agree to give plaintiff a chance to sell to 
Watters, but that Watters refused. He also states that he 
consented that while these negotiations were going on 
with Watters, the plaintiff should collect the rents and 
appropriate them in paving the monthly dues on the 
mortgage.

Mr. Forbes, the only other person who had any per­
sonal knowledge of the original arrangement, says that the 
plaintiff first applied to him for assistance, and after some 
conversation he went to see the defendant, and told him 
that the plaintiff wanted help and offered this property in 
security. He says, “ he (the defendant) looked at me and 
said : ' 1 wouldn’t go into that, not for any consideration 
at all. I just got through another case. I wouldn’t do it 
for my father—the only xvay I would take hold of that 
thing would be an absolute deed. I think these are the 
words he used out and out." They then went to see the 
plaintiff, when the same conversation was repeated, and he 
-ays that the defendant then told the plaintiff there and 
then that he wouldn't go into it unless he had an absolute 
deed out and out of the property. He also says that the 
plaintiff wanted the defendant to take security on the 
property, but he hooted at the idea and said he wouldn’t 
'In it. Mr. Forbes further says, that after the plaintiff had
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l!MMi. consented to give nn absolute deetl, that lie made in<|uiries 
Bkitux in order to ascertain the amount of charges against the 
wu.iii it. property, and he says: “When 1 found it was SI,200 I 
Burins-. J. told him it was more than the property was worth. I 

wouldn't give it and 1 wouldn't go into it. I found it was 
costing—I said, ‘to shew you (i. e., Beaton) can sell this 
property, you pay the costs.’ I just tapped on the counter 
and said : ‘ You pay the costs.’ ”

The rule of law by which cases of this kind are govern­
ed is, that /irima furie an absolute conveyance containing 
nothing to shew the relation of debtor and creditor does 
not cease to he an alisolute conveyance and tiecome a 
mortgage, merely because the vendor stipulates that he 
shall have a right to re-purchase. In every case the question 
is, what upon a fair construction is the meaning of the 
instrument, and the absolute conveyance will be turned 
into a mortgage if the real intention was that the estate 
should lie held as a security for the money. See Coote on 
Mortgages (4th ed.), p. 22.*

If this case rested solely on the evidence of Mr. Forbes 
I should he prepared to hold that the transaction was a 
mortgage one as the plaintiff contends, for Mr. Forbes 
shewed every disjHisition to assist the plaintiff from motives 
of kindness or friendship and was willing to make the 
advance required, although he thought the security weak. 
He did not for an alwolute conveyance, and never
put forward any suggestion that he and the defendant 
were buying the property. He was asked for a lean on a 
certain security—it was the defendant, not Forbes, who 
insisted on the conveyance being in its present form. But 
for that, so far as Forbes is concerned, I have no doubt the 
security would have been by a mortgage in the ordinaiy 
way. In fact, in all the conversations—both those lietween 
Forties and the defendant alone, and those between them 
and the plaintiff as detailed by Mr. Forbes, there is not a

• See (/union v. Selby, 11 Bligh (N. S.) 351 : Fee v. Col/ine, 11 
It-. Eq. R. 403 ; Perry v. Meililoircroft, 4 Beiiv. 1147: UouyUu* v. 
Culrenecll, 3 OUT. 251 ; Knybuul v. Coilrinylon, 1 Eden. 1014 : 
Fallon v. Keenan, 12 Or. 888.—Kkp.

5317
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word about buying the property—the defendant’s stipula­
tion was that lie must have an absolute deed. It was the 
form of the security he was anxious about—not the nature 
of the transaction itself. There never was at any time a 
proposal by the plaintiff to sell his property—he was try­
ing to avoid that—his application was for a ham of money 
on security by way of mortgage. The loan was never 
refused : the security by way of an ordinary mortgage 
was. and a deed absolute on its face stipulated for. This 
would not, however, alter the real nature of the transaction.

It is put forward in the hill that the defendant and 
Hollies were Iwitli personal friends of the plaintiff. This 
was proliuhly done by way of suggesting a reason why 
these [iiirties should have gone into a transaction which, 
upon business grounds alone, they might not have done. 
So far as Forties is concerned it seems to he true that he 
was disjiosed to assist the plaintiff from motives of friend­
ship and kindness. The defendant, however, entirely 
repudiates any such idea on his part. He says he was not 
friendly with the plaintiff and never had been—that he 
went into this transaction, to quote from his evidence, “ ns a 
straight actual purchase in the ordinary way of business— 
that he had no intention of helping the plaintiff at all, and 
that the transaction was an ordinary purchase.” In view 
of all the circumstances is this probable ! He says that the 
value of the property at the time was not over SI,200—the 
amount of the mortgage and other charges. He added :

There has never been a day since I bought it hut I would 
have taken less.” At that time he knew there was SI,200 
against the property which he would be compelled to pay, 
and yet, according to him, he was quite willing and 
ready to take it over with a probability of loss, and this as 
an ordinary matter of business. Mr. Hewsoti, who had 
h en for many years before this, the solicitor of the Build­
ing Society, and in that way acquired a fairly accurate 
knowledge of the value of real estate in Moncton, places 
1 value of the land al $1,600 In 181)7. This estimate is 
sustained by the evidence of the plaintiff—also by the 
value placed on it by the assessors and by the monthly

190(1.
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rental. Wlmt luul tin- plaintiff to gain by making a 
gift of his internat in the property to the defendant and 
Forbea, for, according to the defendant’s account of the 
transaction, that was the effect of the arrangement. It 
is true they paid the $140, and he paid the $40 
coats and thus settled the suit. Hut the #140 did not 
go to the plaintiff: it went in reduction of the mortgage on 
the property, ami enured solely to the benefit of the 
defendant and Forbes as owners of the equity of redemp­
tion. Then as to the costs. I can understand Forties’ 
attitude in reference to them, la-cause, if the plaintiff paid 
them, as he in fact did, it was a guarantee of his honest 
expectation that the property would redeem itself and that 
he would find a purchaser to take his place. From the 
defendant's stand|»iint it is difficult to see why he should 
have taken any trouble about the costs ; lie was not liable 
for them. If, in fact, the defendant was making a loan on 
security as the plaintif! says, it was a most natural thing 
for him and Forbes to say to the plaintiff : “ We will 
advance the #140: that will go in reduction of the mort­
gage, and our security will remain ns it is, hut you must 
help by ]siying the costs, for if we have to advance that 
amount also it will simply add so much to the charges on 
the property.” The defendant's assistance in getting a 
reduction in the amount of the costs would then naturally 
follow ; and the receipt given by Mr. Hewson for the 
amount shews on it face that the ri-daction was made in 
view of the prompt payment of the #140. The defendant 
says that he was not assisting the plaintiff, and that what 
he did was not done with the intention of assisting him in 
any way. That is in direct conflict with his declarations as 
proved by Mr. Bray, his own solicitor, when lie gave him 
his instructions to pre|sire the deed, and to his declarations 
as proved by Mr. Hewson when he was asking for a reduc­
tion of the costs. Mr. Hewson s evidence on this point is as 
follows. He says that the defendant said Mr. Beaton 
was in trouble and he was helping him, and “he wanted to 
know wlmt 1 would take, what I would reduce my costs to. 
I had shewed him the amount of the claim, almut #75, I
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think, nnd lie was anxious I should reduce that, said he 
was helping him out. He joked something ulmut the law­
yers making money, and this jxior fellow was in trouble 
and he was helping him out, and he wanted to know if I 
wouldn't lessen the costs, considering the situation ; that he 
was |mor and they were doing this for nothing, if I wouldn't 
do something to lessen the costs, and 1 did cut it down." 
Besides this we have the positive testimony of the plaintiff, 
liis wife, and Mr. Bray as to what took place when the 
deed was executed, which, if true, proves clearly that the 
transaction was intended to lie simply one of mortgage. 
It is true that the defendant swears he was not present on 
that occasion and that no such conversation ever took place, 
hut there is the testimony of these witnesses against him 
un that |H)int. The defendant's recollection as to the pay­
ment of the costs seems in conflict with that of the ji‘ iff 
and Mr. Hewson ; Hewson’s entries in his I looks made in 
the ordinary course of business at the time, and the receipt 
given when the money was paid. On the other hand it 
was consistent with the plaintiff's position that lie should 
have kept the account which lie did, and that for a period 
of eleven months, and until he was a 1 suit moving away from 
Moncton, lie should have continued to manage the property, 
collect the rents and utilized them in j my ment of the 
monthly sums accruing due on the mortgage.

There is one other circumstance which seems to have 
a somewhat important liearing on the case. Forbes con- 
vyed his interest to Robertson on April 1U, 1897, for the 
970 which he had advanced, and Robertson sold and con- 
voyisl to the defendant on the Hitli Septemlier, 1808, for 
tin* sum of S<308. It seems that aliout the time Roliertson 
purchased, the plaintiff owed a man by the name of Strand 
814V and that the claim had lieen placed in the hands of 
an attorney for collection. In April, 1807, shortly after 
tin* transfer from Forties to Roliertoon had been made, the 
plaintiff appliisl to Robertson for assistance in jmying this 
Strand account. He says he asked Robertson if he and 
tin defendant would advance the money, as they had his 
property in their hands and they could take the property

1900.

Hkaton 
Wii.'hvk. 

Itarker, J.

9
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1000. ns their security. He says they di<l advance it on these 
Hkaton terms, that they were to get 7 per cent, for their money, 

WII.BVH. nml that he gave his notes to them for the amount. This 
itorkor. J. took place on April 20,1X97. One note was for 840, payable 

in four months, the other two were for 1*50.00 each, one at 
eight months and one at twelve, all of them payable to 
Robertson and the defendant Wilbur. One-half the amount 
was advanced by Koliertson and the other by the defend­
ant. Nothing has ever been paid by the plaintiff on the 
notes. Koliertson agrees with the plaintiff that he was to 
hold this property as a security for his half of the Strand 
advance as well as for the amount paid Forbes. The 
defendant, however, disclaims any such arrangement so far 
as he is concerned, and for a second time seems to be at 
variance with his co-owner, as to the terms upon which they 
acquired this property, It is obvious that if the defendant 
was to claim the Strand advance ns a charge on this land, 
he must admit that in April, 1897, when the advance was 
made, the plaintiff had au interest in the pro|ierty which 
he could charge and give as a security for the advance, a 
position altogether inconsistent with his present contention. 
When the defendant arranged in September, 1898, to buy 
Robertson's interest, the amount agreed upon and [Mlid was 
8308. That sum was not made up in any way as the sale­
able value of Robertson’s interest—it was made up admit­
tedly of the sums for which Koliertson held the property 
as a security. It included the 874 paid Forbes—the 
amounts paid on account of the property by Robertson 
while he held his interest and this 87(1.60, his half of the 
Strand advance. There can be no doubt that the defend­
ant knew this; he does not pretend that he did not, and 
yet he swears that this Strand advance was also a pure 
business transaction, made without any reference to the 
property in any way, and with a man for whom he enter­
tained no feeling of friendship to supply a motive for aiding 
him in a difficulty, and a man whom to use his own language 
“ he did not consider worth a cent,” and whose business 
affairs were going behindhand.

This Court always regards the substance of a transac
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lion, and though in form it is a sale, if in fact and reality 
it is a mortgage, it will ho so treated. In my opinion it 
was the intention of the parties that the property should 
lie held as security for the advance, in which case the 
plaintiff has a right to redeem. There will be a declaration 
to that effect, and a reference as to the amount due.

Reserve question of costs and further consideration 
until after the report.

821

100«.
Bkaton

Barker. .1.
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PARTINGTON v. CUSHING.

Pravtire— Dimniimal of bill—Want of proHivation—Form if 
motion.

An olijei-tiun on n motion to dismiss for witnt of proeecution a 
l.ill liy it slmrelmlder nnd tin* company, which Ml I IM'111 It'll 1 I v 
to tin* commencement of the unit went into liipiiiintion. tlmt 
the motion should Imve lleell for an order thilt, imli-SN tile 
plaintiff obtained leave to proreed witliin it lilniteil time, the 
ltill should stand dismissed, overruled.

Motion to dismiss bill for want of prosecution. The 
facts and grounds of motion sufficiently appear in the 
judgment of the Court.

Argument was heard August 21, If Kill.

.1. Ham hill, K.C., in support of the application.

M. ti. Tiril, K. for the plaintiff Partington :—

The proceedings in the suit were carried on in due 
course up to shortly after the commencement of the wind- 
ing-up proceedings. Pending the disposal in a final way of 
the questions that muse in those proceedings, it seemed 
inadvisable to press the suit. Nor should we at the pres­
ent stage Is- compelled to proceed with it. The form of the 
motion has been misconceived. The winding-up proceedings 
having arisen after the commencement of the suit, it is 
necessary that the lit irs or the plaintiff obtain leave 
to proceed with it. The motion should therefore lie for an 
order that unless the plaintiff proceeds with the suit within 
a limited time after leave for the purpose obtained, the hill 
lie dismissed. .Sec /fnfitnson v. Norton (1), where it was 
held that a motion to dismiss for want of prosecution 
made after the Imnkruptcy of the plaintiff, should be re- 
fust-d, the proper form of motion Iwing that the assignee 
do tile a supplemental hill within a given time. See also

(1) 10 Bear. tH4.

B-A
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Kennedy v. Edward« (1). The defendant is not in a posi­
tion to complain of the delay. The proceedings were 
stayed by the winding-up order, which was obtained at his 
instance. See Futooye v. Kennurd (2).

J. D. Hazen, K. C., for the liquidators, took no part.

19011. August 28. Barker, J.:—

This is an action brought in the name of Edward 
Partington on behalf of himself and all other shareholders 
of The Cushing Sulphite Fibre Company (other than the 
defendant), and The Cushing Sulphite Fibre Company, 
against tieorge S. Cushing for the purpose of obtaining a 
declaration of certain rights which the company claims to 
the use of a shore lot of land near the pulp mill, the legal 
title to which is in the defendant. The suit was com­
menced on the 14th October, 1904, and it seems to bave 
iieen at issue on the 24th February, 1905, when the repli­
cation was served. This is an application to dismiss the 
suit for want of prosecution. It appears that with the 
exception of taking out a commission for the examination 
of witnesses in England, which has not been executed, no 
proceeding has Iieen taken in the suit since February, 1905. 
The order for commission was made on the 5th May, 1905, 
and the commission seems to have Iieen forwarded to Eng­
land soon afterwards. The delay is accounted for by the 
fact that in April, 1905, the defendant, as a creditor of the 
company, presented a petition for a winding-up order 
against the com|iany, and that on that petition a winding- 
up order was actually made on the 15th September, 1905. 
Liquidator* have Iieen appointed, and the com|miiy'* busi­
ness is in course of being wound up. Up to the time the 
defendant's petition was presented there docs not seem to 
have Iieen any unnecessary delay, and the delay since that 
'line, the plaintiff Partington claims, has Iieen caused or at 

II events justified by complications resulting from the.

(1) 11 Jtir. N. 8. 153. (2) 2 GOT. 533.

via. III. M. II. a. R.-22.

1906.
l’AHTI NOTON

Cubbing.
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l!M)li. winding-up proceedings. Apart from tliis, Mr. Teed, wlio 
Parti semis appeared as counsel for Partington, took the objection that 
i i siiixu. this motion was irregular in point of form—that the appli- 
IiHrkvr, J. cation sliould not have been for an order dismissing the 

suit for want of prosecution, but for an order that unless 
the plaintiff got leave to proceed within a specified time the 
hill should stand dismissed, by analogy to a similar appli­
cation in the case of a bankruptcy. Hohinmm v. Norton (1), 
was cited in support of this view, in which it was held 
that under similar circumstances in the case of a bank­
ruptcy the proper motion was for an order that the hill 
should lx- dismissed, unless the assignee in bankruptcy, 
within a limited time. Hied a supplemental hill. Sharp v. 
Hulktt (2), and other cases are authorities for the same 
practice. The reason upon which the rule rests is that the 
suit must he set right ; that is to say, as there has been a 
Imnkruptcy and a cnnxe<|Uont devolution of interest by 
operation of law, the form of the suit must he recast by 
the assignee filing a supplemental hill. This rule seems 
more technical than substantial and strong reasons 
may lie given why, even in cases of bankruptcy, it 
should not apply to a procedure which, like ours. 
re<|uires no supplemental hill to be filed. Indeed the 
Master of the Rolls seems to have disregarded it in 
Ward v. Want (3), and made the order which he thought 

just. These cases can, however, have no hearing upon the 
present case. There is in reality but little analogy between 
a winding-up of a company and a bankruptcy. The pro­
perty of a lxmkrupt vests by operation of law in his 
assignee ; the title as well as the control is completely 
divested from the one and vested in the other. Nothing 
of the kind takes place in the case of a winding-up. The 
title to the company’s property remains in the company ; 
the control and management and disposal of it is taken 
from the directors and placed in the liquidators, who simply 
are officers of the Court—receivers and managers acting 
under the direction of the Court for the pur]xwe of closing 
up the company's business, realizing its assets and making

(I) 10 Beav. 484. (2) 2 Sim. & St. 400. (8) 8 Beav. 387.
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a legal distribution of them among the creditors and 
shareholders. See Ouuelin Caw (1); In re Anglo-iloravian 
Ha il tray Company (2). Every statutory power conferred 
upon the liquidators is given with a view to the speedy, 
inexpensive and effectual accomplishment of this object. 
The fraudulent preference clauses present practically the 
only analogy between the two cases. There is nothing in 
the form of this suit to lie rectified. The liquidation has 
not interfered with that in any way. The suit can lie pro­
ceeded with just as it is. Another point made was, that 
as the winding-up order was made on the application of 
the defendant, and it stayed the proceedings, it must be 
taken as his own act, in which case this motion must fail. 
Futroye v. Kennard (3) was cited in support of this argu­
ment. That was an altogether different case. There the 
proceedings in the suit itself had been stayed on the defend­
ant's own application, and it would have been manifestly 
inequitable to dismiss a hill at the instance of a defendant 
for not proceeding in a suit when that same defendant, for 
his own purposes, had obtained an order preventing him 
from proceeding. It would have been no authority for 
refusing this order even if the effect of the winding-up 
order was to stay this suit, hut in my opinion that was not 
the result of it. Sections 13 and 1(1 of The Winding-up 
Art (K. S. C., c. 1211) are the only two sections referring 
to stay of proceedings, and they both refer to actions 
against the company; not actions like the present brought 
by the company,and presumably for the company's benefit. 
* If course the control of the suit, so fur ns the couqinny is 
concerned, like the control of any other of its assets, passes 
from the company to the liquidators, and they arc the 
persons who, under the Court's direction, are to determine 
whether the suit shall go on or not. Should they deter­
mine not to carry it on, it is quite open to the plaintiff 
I'artington, who is a creditor, and, I lielieve, a contributory 
as well, to apply to the Judge who has charge of the wind­
ing-up proceedings for leave to continue the suit in the 
name of the company. Such applications are by no means

1906.
(*AHTlMOTON 

CVMUNO. 
Marker, J.

(Il L.R. 7 Oh. 207. (2) 1 Ch. D. 180. (8) 2 (tiff. 633.
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1 !)0(i. unusual in winding-up cases, and, unless the circumstances 
Paktinuton are exceptional, they are, I believe, generally acceded to on 
Ccshisu. the applicant furnishing the company a sufficient indemnity 
lUirker, J. against loss.

The liquidators were served with a notice of this 
motion, and at the hearing I asked Mr. Hazen, who 
appeared for them, whether the liquidators wished to go 
on with the suit, fait he was unable to inform me, and he 
neither assented to the motion nor opposed it. Since then 
I have communicated with Mr. Justice McLeod on the sub­
ject, and he authorizes me to stab1, that after considering 
the matter he will not sanction the continuance of the suit 
by the liquidators. This being so, it remains for the plain­
tiff Partington, if he wishes the suit to go on, to apply for 
leave to use the company's name for that purpose, because 
it is 1 think the right of the defendant either to have the 
suit proceeded with or dismissed. I shall therefore hold 
this application until Tuesday, the 18th September next, 
when the Court will lie sitting at St. John, in order that 
the plaintiff Partington may make the necessary application 
for leave to use the company’s name if he desires to do so. 
When 1 am informed of the result I shall be in a position 
to make an order disposing of the motion.

September 21.
The plaintiff subacquently having made an application 

to Mr. Justice AlcLeml for leave to continue the suit in the 
name of the company, which was refused, Mr. Justice 
U'lrlter made an older dismissing the bill for want of 
prosecution. Respecting the costs he observed that he 
could not make the plaintiff pay them liecause he was a 
proper party to the suit originally, and the present position 
of the proceedings was not due to his default. The com- 
pany were differently situated. They could proceed, but 
the learned Judge would not allow them to do so. He 
thought the older should be that the bill should be dis­
missed with costs as against the compuny, to be recovered 
in the winding-up by proving against the company. He 
referred to CuLlicelt v. Erneet (1).

(I) 6 Jur. N. 8. 067.
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/n re McGIVEKY, a Lunatic. 1006.

Lunatic—Repaire to eetate—Collection of rente—Agent.

Committee of the estate of a lunatic empowered to make needed
re pairs In I) state and te employait agent at a tiled salary
to collect rents.

Petition by the committee of the person and estate of 
.lames McGivery, a lunatic so found, for leave to make 
re]>airs and improvements to the estate of tin lunatic ; to 
mortgage the estate for payment of debts due by the estate 
and cost of pro]xwed repairs, and for the apjtointment of 
tin agent to collect rents and manage the properties of the 
estate. The estate consists in part of a large number of 
leasehold and freehold properties in the city of Saint John, 
yielding a yearly rental of about 82,200, and subject to 
ground rents tif 8338.25. The rents of the estate are 
almost all at small sums |>ayable monthly, and there are 
about forty tenants on the rent roll. It was shewn that 
the proper management of the estate required a degree of 
personal attention the committee were unable to bestow, 
and that in the interests of the estate the collection of the 
rents and supervision and letting of the tenements should 
be confided to an agent. Repairs to buildings, estimated to 
cost 8300, were urgently required. To defray the cost of 
repairs and to pay off an indebtedness of the estate, leave 
to mortgage the estate for 81,500 was sought.

The application was heard June 8, 1906.

1). Mull in, K. C., for the petition :—

It is necessary that the permission of the Court be 
obtained by the committee before undertaking alterations 
or improvements to the lunatic’s estate : Re Buckle (1); 
Kt parte Marlon (2). As an aid in the management of

(1) 8 L. J. Oh. 284. (2) 11 Vos. 897.
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1900. the estate the committee propose that an agent be appointed 
in rr at a yearly salary of #100. This amount will not exceed

lfCdlVKRY.
five per cent, on Ins receipts. An agent lor the purjxise 
sought here was appointed in lie Westbrnoke (1), and a 
similar course was adopted in In re Errington (2). In the 
last named case it appeals that the allowance to the agent 
was in addition to the commission to the committee. See 
also Re Walker (3).

1900. June 25 Barker, J. :—

The application is allowed.

|1) 2 Ph 031. (21 2 Husk. 607. (3) 2 Ph. 630.



III.] NEW BRUNSWICK KljVITV REPORTS. 829

8IMOND8 v. COSTER.

Ayr at—Failure to account—Interest—Costs of preparing receipt- 
in ven tory of estate—Costs of su it.

An agent refusing to give nn account and pay over Balance is 
chargeable with interest.

Costs disallowed to an estate agent of pre|uiring a receipt con­
taining a schedule of leases and securities delivered up to the 
principal.

Costs of suit against an agent for an account ordered to lie paid 
By him where lie hail disregarded requests for an account, 
and had tiled an improper account in the suit.

Exceptions to report of Referee. The facts fully 
appear in the judgment of the Court.

Argument was heard August 28, 19011.

D. MuUin, K. C.t for the plaintiff :—

Were it true that the defendant had |)aid off the 
Campbell mortgage he could not charge the payment to 
the plaintiff. It is plain that no payment was made before 
I lecember 30. A payment made after that date, when his 
power of attorney was revoked, would be voluntary. It 
is, however, but a pretence to set up that the mortgage has 
liven paid. The exception with respect to the charge for 
interest should not be allowed. It is the duty of an agent 
to have his account in readiness and to pay over on demand 
any balance on hand. By letter of January 27th he was 
notified that interest would lie charged from February 3rd. 
In Harsnnt v. Hhtine.il), Lord Esher, M. R., after pointing 
out that while at common law interest could not be claimed 
in un action by a principal against his agent for money 
laid and received, in equity interest would be recoverable 
where the agent refused to pay or give an account of

19011.__
SepU atb$r /•

(1) 56 L. J. Q. B. 511.
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1900. money belonging to the principal, says that it is the duty 
simoniih of an accounting party to be constantly ready with his 
virnTts. accounts, and that if the accounts shew that he has money 

which he ought to pay over, he ought also to he constantly 
ready to pay. Then, after referring to 1‘earxe v. Green (1), 
where the Master of the Rolls saiil that “ the circumstance 
of one person having money in his hands belonging to 
another, if the debt does not in its nature carry interest, 
will not make him liable ; hut with agents or trustees, if 
they neglect to account properly, if they violate their duty, 
the Court, for the sake of compelling them to perform 
it, says they ought to Ire charged with interest on what 
they have retained," he proceeds : “ The duty laid down 
in this second phrase is the duty to account properly. 
That is a clear statement of what the doctrine is, and it 
seems to me that where an agent who is bound to account 
refuses to pay over money belonging to another, that is a 
reason why a Court of Equity gives interest against him.” 
Lindley and Lopes, L. JJ., in their judgments in the case, 
affirm the same principle. The present defendant was 
requested not once hut several times to hand in his 
account and to pay over any balance belonging to the 
plaintiff. It would, as Lindley, L. J., says in the above 
case, be strange if, when sued, he could not Ire compelled to 
pay interest. The defendant should also pay costs. See 
CMyer v. Dudley (2). The charge of SI00 by the defend­
ant for prewiring list of leases cannot he upheld. The 
defendant prepared it for his own benefit as a receipt. It 
was no part of his duty or work ns agent to prepare it so 
as to entitle him to charge the plaintiff for it.

A 0. Earle, K. C., for the defendant:—

It is conceded in point of law that the charge for pay­
ment of the mortgage cannot he maintained. The good 
faith, however, of the defendant in making the deduction 
cannot he impugned. The mortgage had been procured for 
the plaintiff from a client of the defendant, and, as the

(1) 1 Jar. & W. 136 (2) T. k R. 421.
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••state was passing out of liis management, he desired that 
the transaction should be brought to an end. The plain­
tiff had instructed the defendant from the time the mort­
gage was given, to pay it off whenever possible, and was 
constantly lamenting tlmt there were no funds available 
for the purpose. Why the plaintiff should not have taken 
a discharge of the mortgage when the accounts were before 
the Referee is not apparent. The defendant buna fide 
believed that he was entitled to charge jiayment of the 
mortgage where he was able to give the plaintiff a dis­
charge of it. In treating it as an actual payment he was 
in error. But his good faith and previous upright conduct 
should protect him from costs. The defendant should lx* 
allowed for the inventory of leases. Its utility in the 
management of the estate is undeniable. It is not merely 
a receipt. If the defendant had not prepared it the 
present agent of the estate undoubtedly would have had 
to. The referee had no authority to charge the defendant 
with interest. The matter of interest was not dealt with at 
the hearing. The decree was silent as to it, and it was not 
included in the reference. The case is not one for interest. 
The defendant managed the plaintiff's estate with the 
utmost care. The accounts were kept with scrupulous 
accuracy, and each quarter all Imlances on hand were 
promptly remitted. The change in the management of the 
estate was not owing to dissatisfaction, but to other causes. 
-l"he defendant was naturally irritated by the change, and 
his dilatoriness may he ascribed to it. To ask for interest 
after so many years of faithful service by the defendant 
savors of oppression and certainly of want of gratitude. 
The defendant is entitled to costs. The action was wholly 
unnecessary. There was no substantial question in dispute, 
and nothing that could not have been settled out of Court 
had the defendant been dealt with in a professional spirit.

Mullin, K. C„ in reply.

1 !)0(i. September 21. Barker, J.:—

For some years previous to lflOfi the defendant acted 
as the plaintiff’s agent in the management of her property

1901).
Simon dh
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I !Mill. at St. John. His power of nttomey was revoked and Mr. 
siMiiMw M ul I in np|Hiinted in his pince in December Inst. Notice of 
uoktkh. the cnncellntion was given to Mr. Coster by Mr. Mullin on 

Hiirkrr. .1. the 30th Decenilier Inst, nnd oil the snine day he received 
the following letter from the plaintiff. Miss Simoiids, and 
her mother, who had also been interested in the property :

Dear Mr. Coster:—

Via 8. (Iervais <17, Florence,
Dec. 11th, 1905.

We Iwg to inform you that after mature considera­
tion, we have devilled to make a change in the agency for 
the property owned by me, Irene M. Siinonds, hut in which 
my mother, who joins me in this letter, hitherto has hud 
an intercut, which, however, she has released to me, ns well 
also as her share or interest in the moneys now in your 
hands, being liulunee of account current. We have had it 
in our mind for some time to give the management of our 
affairs and business to Mr. Daniel Mullin, husband of our 
dear grand-child and niece, Constance. Accordingly a 
power of attorney has been executed to him, and the one 
heretofore held by you has lieen revoked. Kindly deliver 
to Mr. Mullin all lenses, documents, deeds, plans, liooks, 
accounts, records, rent rolls nnd papers relating to the 
property, as well ns any balance in your hands ]»iyahle to 
us. but to which I, Irene M. Siinonds, am exclusively en­
titled under the release executed to me by my mother. 
Thanking you, dear Mr. Coster, for the valuable services 
you have rendered to us,

1 remain, yours sincerely,
,y Irene M. Simonks.

^ (Iertrude A. Simonos.

Application was made to Mr. Coster by Mr. Mullin for 
his account for the year 1908—the only year nliout which 
any (juration arises—and for the leases and other securities 
in his hands, but as no attention was paid to the demand, 
Mr. Mullin on the 9th March commenced this suit. No 
appearance was entered, and on the 17th April the bill was 
taken pro confemto, and the matter was sent to a Referee in 
the usual way to take the account for the year 1905 and
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report the Imlance due. On the 19th of Ma)’ the defend­
ant filed an account with the Keferee, and on the 28th 
of that month Mr. Mullin acting for the plaintiff tiled an 
affidavit objecting to three items on the credit side of the 
account. The Referee then issued a warrant for the parties 
to proceed, but ns the defendant did not attend at the 
return, the Referee disallowed these three items and re|>orted 
a balance of $2,439.75 due the plaintiff, including the sum 
of 843.1)5 for interest on the balance in the defendant’s 
hands from February Sid, 100(1, at which time he was 
formally notified that interest on the I silence would be 
claimed. Exceptions to the report were tiled, and on the 
matter coming liefore me, on a motion to confirm the report, 
I consented with the concurrence of Counsel for both 
parties, to hear the matter myself rather than incur the 
expense of sending it back to the Referee.

The plaintiff1 s account as tiled with the Referee shews 
a luilunce of $1,535.92 on hand at the beginning of the 
year, and at the end of it a balance on hand of $113.1)0. 
The account is stated thus :

Total receipts for the year............ $5,258.40
Cash on hand January 1, 1905,. . 1,535.92

------------$6,794.32
Total disbursements for the year, .... 6,680.72

Balance, ... .... .... $113.60

The three items objected to and disallowed are, (l)a 
charge of $2,000 paid in discharge of a mortgage to Major 
Campbell; (2) a charge of $100 for making a schedule of 
the leases and securities on their being handed over; and 
(3) a charge of $182.50 paid to Madame deBury. It is 
unnecessary to discuss the first and third of these items, 
I «va use M r. Coster's Counsel now admits that the charge of 
82.000 cannot be sustained, and on Mr. Coster’s explanation 
if the payment to Madame deBury, Mr. Mullin, very 
properly as 1 think, withdrew all objection to it. That 
leaves the charge of $100, the claim for interest and the 
piextion of costs to be disposed of.

190(1.
S1MONDS 

CUflTKH. 

IVirkur. J.



3.')4 SEW BRUNSWICK EQUITY REPORTS. [VOL.

190(1. As to the #100 charged for making a scliedule of tlie
simoniik leases, I was at first disposed to think that the item might 
cohtkr. possibly lie sustained on the ground that the service was to 

Bnrkcr, J. some extent for the benefit of the trust estate ; but on 
further consideration I think that the charge must he 
disallowed. I am not speaking as to the amount of the 
sum charged, but as to the charge itself. Mr. Coster was 
of course not acting gratuitously—he received the usual 
commission of 5 per cent, on collections, and also ordinary 
solicitor’s fees, as 1 judge from their being charged in the 
account without objection. The sum of #327.51 is allowed 
in the year’s account under these two heads ; and I am not 
sure that I should be going too fur if I were to hold that 
a service like this is hut a part of the consideration for 
which the commissions are paid. A]«irt, however, from 
that, I think the charge cannot lie sustained. How is the 
plaintiff s estate benetitted by this outlay ! It was, no 
doubt, a prudent and businesslike course to adopt to pre­
pare this list as a receipt from the principal to her agent 
for the property handed over, hut it is solely for the pro­
tection of the agent who is handing it over. It is nothing 
more than a receipt, a long one and one which required 
some time for its preparation, hut a mere receipt neverthe­
less. If a decree had been made by this Court directing 
the defendant to hand over these securities and leases, 
which admittedly were the plaintiff’s property, it would 
not have been I»»1" a condition that a charge like this 
should lie paid. The expenditure only became necessary 
when the plaintiff demanded and was entitled to receive her 
securities from her agent. I cannot think so clear and 
unmistakeable a right is to lie clogged by a payment to the 
agent for making a list of the securities—something not 
asked for or required by the princi|inl, and in no way 
necessary to the defendant for the discharge of his duty to 
deliver the property. To state a case by way of illustra­
tion, we will suppose A is possessed of #100,(K)0 of muni­
cipal debentures—say 200 of #500 each. He wishes to 
leave St. John and travel abroad for two or three years, 
and he places these securities in the hands of an agent with
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instruction* to collect the cotqsmannd remit him the moneys, 
retaining a commission of 5 per cent. In three years A 
returns and resumes the management of his own affaira. 
He asks his agent to hand him over his 200 delientures. 
The agent says yes, hut 1 made a schedule of these, shew­
ing their dates and numbers ; it took my clerks a week 
to do it, anil I have charged $100 for the work, and before 
you can get your property you must pay this amount. 
Could such a claim lie sustained I think not.

The next question is as to the interest. The Referee 
has allowed it at five per cent, from the 3rd February, 
when the defendant was notified that it would lie claimed. 
Apart from any question of notice, 1 think this is a case 
where the defendant must Is- charged with interest. In 
Bearer v. (irrrn (1), the Master of the Rolls says: 
“ It is the first duty of an accounting |uirty, whether 
an agent, a trustee, a receiver or an executor, for in 
this respect, as was remarked by the Lord Chancellor in 
/.on/ Hanhvicke v. Vernon, they all stand in the same 
situation—to be constantly ready with his accounts. Was 
that the case with these persons I Now it is admitted 
that, though called upon, they rendered no account. It 
cannot then Is- said that in their characters of agents and 
managers they performed their duty.” The Master of the 
Rolls goes on to say that this refusal to account is a clear 
ground for charging the agent with interest and with costs. 
That of itself is sufficient where there is no charge of 
fraud: Turner v. Barlcntshaw (2). See also Harmnt v. 
Maine (3). I think the amount for which the de­
fendant is liable is the $113.110 admitted to lie on hand, and 
the $2,100—in all $2,213.00, and interest on that sum from 
February 3, 1000, until jsiid, at the rate of five per cent.

I come now to the question of costs—perhaps the 
most inqMirtant question involved in the case. In order to 
determine this it is necessary to look somewhat closely into 
the conduct of the parties. It was more than hinted on 
the argument before me on this point that the litigation

(1) 1 Jac. A W. 185, 1411. (2) I» R. 2 Oh. 488.
13) SB L. J. Q. B. 611.
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1906.
Himunuh 

Costick. 

Barker. J.

was promoted from motives of personal animosity—that it 
was altogether unnecessary, and that it might easily have 
been avoided ; and it was contends! on that account that 
the defendant should not be pay costs, or, at all
events, but a small proportion of them. If the evidence 
convinced me that this suggestion was well founded, I cer­
tainly should not encourage such a course by making it 
beneficial to the plaintiff* at the defendant's expense if I 
could see my way to avoid it. Hut is this charge sustained 
by what took place ( What are the facts t On the 30th 
December last—the day on which the plaintiff s letter of 
Decern lier 11th was received—Mr. Mullin wrote the defend­
ant a letter in which he notified him of his appointment 
as the plaintiff' s agent in the defendant’s place, the revoca­
tion of the defendant’s power of attorney, and that lie 
(Mullin) was the only person authorized to collect the 
rents, and he adds : "1 have therefore to request, first, ' 
that you will without delay furnish me, on behalf of Miss 
Simonds, with a full statement shewing luilance due on 
account current to date; secondly, that you will deliver to 
me the rent rolls, leases, deeds, documents, Ixioks. papers, 
plans, etc., rt * Hiss Simonds’ property, and to which
she is entitled; and, thirdly, you will*pay over to me, as 
her attorney, the fmiance due from you on account current.
1 trust that you will be good enough to give this matter 
your prompt attention. Please let me have an early reply 
stating when you will Is; prepared to comply with the 
above specified requests.” Nothing having been done, Mr. 
Mullin on the 27th January, nearly a month later, wrote a 
second letter to the defendant in which he refers to his 
previous letter of Decemlier 30, and reminds him that he 
had not complied with the request made in it, and he adds :
“ Up to the present time you have not complied with that 
request In fact, in an interview which I had with you on 
the 22nd inst, you declined even to say when you would 
either furnish the account, pay over the lialance, or deliver 
up the documents, alleging that you had written to Miss 
Simonds, and until you " ' er reply you could not give
me the information which 1 required." He then gave him

0

^362

1



111.] NEW BRUNSWICK EQUITY REPORTS.

notice that interest would be claimed on the balance, and 
that proceedings would lie commenced unless the account 
was furnished and the leases handed over by the Hid of 
February. He adds : “ 1 trust that you will be good 
enough to band over the account, papers, balance, etc., 
without further delay, and spare me from the performance 
of an unpleasant duty.” Nothing having lieen done in 
reply to this letter, Mr. Mullin on the 2nd March, sent the 
defendant a third letter, which is as follows :

U. J. Coster, Esq., K. C. March 2, 1900.

Dear Sir,— Referring to my letter to you of the 27th 
.lanuary last, in which 1 stated that unless you handed me 
Miss Sunonds' account, with all leases, plans, etc., together 
with balance, by the .'ini of February, I should lie obliged 
tv take proceedings against you, 1 may say that I decided 
to defer taking any steps until I heard from Miss Simonds.
I wrote Miss .Simonds the day after my interview with 
you informing her that you said you had written to her, 
and that until you had her reply you were not prepared to 
furnish the account nor hand over the papers and balance, 
nor even to say when you would lie in a position to do so.
I received a letter from Miss Simonds the other day stat­
ing that she had heard from you the day after she received 
my letter of the 23rd of .lanuary last, and that she was 
replying at once instructing you to give up everything to 
me. I presume vou have her letter by this time, as 1 re- 
reived mine (which wa* dated February !lth) last Monday, 
the 2(ith inst. 1 lieg, therefore, to apply to you again for 
the account anil I in la nee, also for all [««liera, etc., belonging 
to Miss Simonds in your possession, anil to say that unless 
same are delivered to me on or liefore the 8th inst., 1 shall 
he obliged to commence a suit against you. I regret that 
my duty to my principal will impel me to take the course 
suggested, but in view of her instructions to me as to the 
disposal of the funds, w liicli she has informed me she has 
directed you to place in my hands, I shall have no alter­
native if you do not accede to the terms of this letter. I 
trust, therefore, you will comply with this final demand 
for an account, us well as the payment over to me of the 
Imlnnee in your hands and the delivery to me of the leases, 
etc., within the time stipulated.

I am yours truly,
(Sgd.) Daniel Mullin,

Attorney rnui A yen! /nr Mùm Irene M. Simonds.
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1 fMM). Tlit* defendant’s letter to the plaintiff of 25th January,
siMoNim referred to by Mr. Mullin in liis last letter, is not in evi- 
Costrr. dence, but the plaintiff 's letter in reply is as follows :

Barker. J.

February 10, 1000.
Dear Mr. Comtek:—

I have just received yours of January 25tli. I am 
indeed sorry you should think that anyone has misrepre­
sented you to me, for such is not the case. 1 can only 
confirm the contents of my previous letter to you, and lieg 
you to be so kind as to hand over all moneys, balance, 
plans, etc., to Mr. Mullin without further delay. My poor 
sister's is indeed a sad case, and I am grateful" to you for 
the assistance you gave her and for your past valuable 
services to our estate.

Yours truly,
(Ngd.) Irene M. Simonhs. .

Mr. Coster paid no attention to tliis letter, and Mr. 
Mullin commenced this suit on the Ittli March, after a lapse 
of over two months from the cancellation of the power of 
attorney and the first application for the account. On the 
llttli March the defendant wrote the plaintiff" another letter, 
which is ns follows:

March 13, l!H)t>.
Dear Miss Simoxiis:—

Mr. Mullin has commenced a suit in the Court of 
Chancery against me. 1 cannot Isdieve that this is done 
at your instance or with your authority. The tenants have 
all been notified to pay their rents to him, a list of all 
arrears has lieeti given to him, and there are no further 
rents due until the first of May. Therefore 1 should think 
that there was no necessity of putting me to this trouble 
and expense. I cun easily have everything transferred to 
Mr. Mullin in plenty of time for him to collect the May 
rents. Yours faithfully,

(Ngd.) C. J. Custer.

To this letter the plaintiff " no reply to Mr. 
Coster, but she sent it out to Mr. Mullin with a memo, on 
it directing him to proceed with the suit. I am unable to 
see in this correspondence any indication on Mr. Mullins

4
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part of a desire to institute proceedings unnecessarily. His 
language does not seem to me different fronj what any pro­
fessional man might with propriety use to another under 
the same circumstances. The plaintiff' was entitled to the 
account and to her money and her securities. The account 
is neither long nor complicated. Any clerk could have 
made it up and copied it in an hour. The balance of 
#113.00 the defendant could of course have paid at any 
time. No excuse is offered or suggested for his refusal to 
do what, as a professional man, he must have known the 
plaintiff had an undoubted right to have done. It seems 
to me the suit followed us the natural result of a disregard 
of what appears to me to have been a plain duty. Now 
what took place afterwards ! The account was never fur­
nished until it was filed with the Referee on the lflth May, 
and only then after two or three adjournments for the pur­
pose hail been made by the Referee on the defendant’s 
application. I should not think it necessary to make any 
further reference to the charge of #2,00(1, now that the 
defendant's liability to pay it over is admitted, were it not 
I lint it has an important ls-aring on this question of costa. 
I lie liability was in fact not admittisl until the last moment, 
and when all the costs had been incurred, notwithstanding 
the facts were all known to the defendant from the begin­
ning. In the account tiled the defendant, under date 
I leeeinber 30, 1905, charges the plaintiff as follows : “To 
paid (leorge C. Coster principal, mortgage to Major Camp- 
I ■••II, and six months' interest to date, #2,050." The precise 
lime when this entry was made in the defendant's Issiks 
dues not appear. It proliahly from the evidence was not 
m ille until May ; it certainly was not made until long after 
the power of attorney had been cancelled. In fact the 
'- 000, principal of this mortgage, was never paid to Mr.
1....rgc Coster or any one else, and never has been [slid,

•il the defendant explains the charge and the form of the 
"'try by the following facts. Nome years ago, and some 

me after the defendant had taken over the management 
this property, it became necessary, in order to meet
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1906. some liabilities wliiclt were then pressing, to borrow $$,000. 
hihoniw The money was obtained from Major Campbell on inort- 
cohtkr. gage through Mr. Coster, whose firm acted also for 

ibirkor. J. him. There is nothing to suggest that Major Camp­
bell wants his money or that his security is at 
all doubtful. The defendant having had to do with 
this loan seems to have been anxious that if he were 
to be deprived of the agency the mortgage should Is- paid 
off, and. in lieu of actual payment, he offered to procure and 
deliver to Mr. Mullin, as the plaintiff's agent, a discharge 
of the mortgage and treat that as a payment. He pro­
ducts! a letter from the plaintiff, dated August 8, 1902, in 
which she alludes to the mortgage, and says she begins to 
despair of ever getting it |mid off. And she says that she 
would like the defendant to put aside from the balance all 
that is possible for tin- mortgage ami to give her an idea as 
to when she could pay it off. By the balance I understand 
her to mean the surplus of her income after deducting her 
quarterly payments and certain allowances to meml>ers of 
her family which she mentions. At all events, nothing 
ever was put aside for the purpose. The defendant, in his 
evidence, says that he told his liookkceper in the office to 
charge up the principal sum in the books in the event of 
the agency being taken away from him. It is obvious that 
the charge could not lie sustained, and it is equally obvious 
that there was no other course open to the plaintiff than to 
object to the item with a view of its being disallowed. It 
is of course immaterial to the defendant whether he pays 
this 82,000 to the plaintiff ns he in the ordinary course 
would have done had he continued to be manager of the 
property, or to Major Campbell in discharge of the mort­
gage, but the form of the entry, in view of the facts, neces­
sarily called for investigation, and necessarily increased the 
costs of the reference. 1 can see no reason why the plain­
tiff should not hove her costs of the suit—there was 
nothing really in dispute about the accounts except the 
8100 item, and that should have been determined amicably, 
and in any event could have been determined at compara­
tively little expense.
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JOHNSTON v. HAZKN. 

B* Woodfoku Claim.

1900.
October IS.

Gift—Prom isnory note—Promise to maker by payee to pay— 
Want of consideration—Involuntary payment by payee— 
Action against maker.

Semble, that where the payee (deceased) on endorsing a promis­
sory note for the accommodation of the maker promises 
without consideration to pay it, and the holder compels pay­
ment by the payee’s estate, an action for the recovery of the 
amount lies hy the estate against the maker.

Question in an administration nuit as to the liability 
of Margaret Woodford, one of the next of kin of the intes­
tate, Margaret A. Hazen, upon two promissory notes made 
hy her in favor of the deceased. The facts sufficiently 
appear in the judgment of the Court.

Argument was heard Gctolier 5, 1906.

A. U. Earle, K. C., and J. H. Annstnmg, K. C., for 
the plaintiffs and certain other next of kin of Margaret A.
Hazen :—

Accepting defendant's version of the transaction, it 
cannot be put * r than a gratuitous intention or promise 
on the part of the intestate to pay the notes. As a promise 
without consideration it could not have been enforced in 
I lie lifetime of the deceased. The transaction does not lose 
its voluntary nature by reason of the notes being dis­
counted. Had the defendant paid them she could not have 
sued the deceased or her estate. The matter is not altered 
by the (layment made by the administrator.

[Barker, J.:—Is his ]>ayment not the same as payment 
hy the deceased, and therefore a completion of the gift 
which has become irrevocable /]

^
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1000. It is submitted that the esHential nature of the trans-
Johsstok action—a mere promise to pay — lias not been altered, 

Haz'kn. unless it could lie shewn that the notes were retired in per- 
Wuoukokd. formance of the promise. The payment is nothing more 

than payment of money for the defendant’s use which she 
must make good to the administrator. The evidence fails 
to shew that the notes were part of the house transaction. 
They were not given as the defendant claims, on account of 
repairs, for repairs had been made a year liefore the notes 
were given.

/,. A. Currnj, K. C., for the defendant :—

The evidence is conclusive that a gift was intended, 
and that an actual gift took place. The matter proceeded 
beyond the stage of intention when the house was bought. 
The notes were just as much an advance on the house 
account as the cash payment of 5*000, and the subsequent 
payment of $100. The purchase of the house in reliance 
upon the deceased's premise would 1*' consideration for the 
notes. The notes having been paid by the estate the gift 
has lieen completed.

1000. October 12. Barker, J. :—

111 a suit brought for the administration of the estate 
of Margaret Hazen. a question arose as to the liability of 
the defendant Margaret Woodford on two promissory notes 
made by her in favor of Mrs. Hazen—one for $105, dated 
November 21, 11102, at three months, payable at the Bank 
of Nova Scotia, and the other also at three months, dated 
October 31, 1002, for $05, payable at the same iumk. 
These notes were discounted by the defendant at the Bank 
of Nova Scotia, and had not matured at the time of Mrs. 
Hazen’s , which took place on December tt, 1002.
Both notes were dishonored, and Mr. Hazen as adminis­
trator of the estate was compelled to pay them to the 
iiank, and did pay them on the 5th August, 1002—the 
amount with interest being $200. As this was the only 
unsettled matter connected with the estate, it was sub-

^
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milted to me for determination without pleadings by con­
sent of all parties to the administration suit.

The defence set up is this. The defendant, who is a 
niece of Mrs. Helen, says that in May, 11100,at the instance, 
or at all events on the suggestion of her aunt, she pur­
chased a house on Peters street, for which her aunt said 
she would pay. She says that Mrs. Hasten did give her 
#000 in cash at the time, and later on she gave her #100 on 
tin1 same account. The purchase money was #1,100; of 
that amount the defendant seems to have paid #300 out of 
the money her aunt gave her, and the remaining #800 of the 
purchase money she secured on the premises by a mort­
gage to Miss Smith. The remaining #300 the defendant 
says she used in making repairs or alterations to the house. 
The evidence as to the transaction is not very clear, and for 
tin1 sake of accuracy I will ijuote the defendant’s own ver­
sion of it. After stating that her aunt ins])ected the house 
Iwfore the purchase was made, and that her aunt said she 
would pay for it, she gives the following account of this 
note transaction.

“ Q. Look at these notes. Did you get these from her? 
A. I did.

“ y. For what purpose >. Tell the facts. A. It was for 
building an ell on the house.

“ (j. (The Court) What are the notes ? Are they hers? 
A. Yes, they are her notes.

" y. What did you do with them when you got the 
notes ? A. I took them down to the lank and got the 
money.

“ y. What did you use the money for ? A. For the 
house.

" y. Is that the object for which they were given I 

A. Yes.”
The defendant says her aunt wanted to build the 

• II. and did not have the money,so she gave the notes. She 
also says that she cannot tell what the improvements 
l which included the ell) cost, but that Crawford and 
another man built it, and the work was done in 1900—the
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1901). year slie bought. On lier cross-examination she was asked 
Johnston as follows :

iUzKs. “Q, Wero there any repairs made in 1900 to speak
Woootohii. „f > A, Well, every year there were some.
Barker, j. •• q Anything Mrs. Hazen had to do with ? A. No, I 

think not.
“ Q. l)o you say the proceeds of these notes went to 

pay for the repairs, these two notes ? A. Yes.”

Later on she was asked if her arrangement was that 
Mrs. Hazen was to repair the house as well as buy it. The 
answer was : “ She looked at it and we knew we couldn’t 
live in it without having it repaired.’’

The notes in question are renewals of notes originally 
given, as the hank books shew, not in 1900 as the defend­
ant says, hut in 1901. The 8105 note was originally for 
$195, and dated August 5, 1901. The 895 note w as origin­
ally for s 12.') end dated July ,88,1901. They had been 
renewed five times, and during that period 830 had been 
paid on each. So it is clear that this transaction had its, 
origin a year after this ell was built and these repairs were 
made, and cannot have been given for any such purpose, or 
for any purpose, as it appears to me, connected with the 
purchase of the house. Mrs. Hazen was no doubt a very 
generous woman to her relatives—there is abundant evi­
dence of that, by her donations made at various times. She 
was constantly assisting them as well as others by endorsing 
their notes for their accommodation. There is abundant evi­
dence of this. But 1 can scarcely think that if she had pledged 
her word absolutely to pay for this house she would not 
have done so, especially if she hod endorsed notes so that 
the money could be raised for her convenience. She had a 
large estate and ample means for the purpose. Mrs. Hazen 
no doubt intended to assist and did assist the defendant in 
procuring a house for herself. She certainly paid 8700 
out of the 81,100 purchase money, and for ought that I 
know,she might had she lived given further assistance, but 
that she has created any liability to do so, either legal or 
equitable, I can not agree. Mr. Currey says an intention
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to make a gift creates no liability. I agree in that. But, 
he says, when that intention has been carried out and the 
gift made, it is irrevocable. Admitting that proposition 
also, how does it apply to this case? The 8700 was a gift 
and must remain so. But where is there any further gift? 
Mrs. Hazen gave the defendant nothing but her endorse­
ment. How did that create a liability to her I It is true 
that it placed the defendant in a position where she could 
borrow money from the Bank of Nova Scotia, as she did, 
but that was not Mrs. Hazen’s money. It was the liank’s 
money lent to the defendant, and which Mrs. Hazen’s 
estate had to pay by virture of her endorsement on a dis­
honored note of the defendant. I quite agree with Mr. 
Karle, that as there was no consideration for any promise 
as relied on by the defendant, that the making of this 
note is altogether immaterial. The lunik might have made 
the defendant pay the note. She could not in that case 
have brought any action against Mrs. Hazen, and I think 
the mere fact that the lumk made the estate |>ay cannot 
alter the rights of these parties inter re.

The effect of this defence if it succeeded, would be to 
compel the estate of Mrs. Hazen to pay the defendant 
8266 instead of her paying that amount to the estate as 
she promised to do. If it were a case of a contract which 
could be made the ground of an action, I should think the 
evidence altogether too loose and uncertain to warrant 
this Court in sustaining the claim, under the rule by which 
Courts are governed in cases of claims against the estates 
of deceased persons.

The claim against the defendant must I think be paid.

1906.
Johnston
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September fl.

1906. PETR0P0L0U8 v. F. E. WILLIAMS COMPANY, 
LIMITED.

(No. 2. Ante, p. 267)

Chattel mortgage — Coercion — Sale of chattel — Warranty — 
Breach —Executory contract—Return of chattel.

A lease of store premises was obtained by plaintiffs through 
a guarantee of payment of the rent by defendant. Sub­
sequently at plaintiffs' request defendant took out in his own 
name a lease of the premises for a further term of four years 
upon an agreement to assign it to them in consideration of 
their purchase from him of an automatic electric piano. 
The purchase price was $750, upon which a payment of 8100 
was to lie made. The cash payment subsequently was waived 
and notes for the full amount of the purchase money given. 
After i he purchase, plaintIfh incurred an additional indebted­
ness to defendant or about $ WO. This amount, together with 
the notes, some of which were overdue, was outstanding 
when the plaintiffs asked for an assignment of the lease. 
This the defendant demurred to giving, desiring to retain 
the lease as security. The plaintiffs then, but against the 
defendant's advice, executed a chat tel mortgage of their stock- 
in-trade to him, whereupon he made over the lease to them:— 

Held, that the chattel mortgage should not he set aside on the 
ground of having been obtained by coercion.

While the rule, that in atieence of agreement the purchaser of a 
specific chattel cannot return it on breach of warranty, may 
not apply to a sale providing that the property shall not 
pass until payment of the purchase price, it will apply in 
such case where the vendee in addition to keeping the chattel 
a longer time than reasonable or necessary for trial, has 
exercised the dominion of an owner over it, ae by giving a 
chattel mortgage of it to the vendor.

The facta sufficiently appear in the report of the pro­
ceedings on the motion to continue the injunction order 
granted in the suit, ante, 267, and in the present judgment.

Argument was heard August 17, 1906.

W. W. Allen, K. C., for the plaintiffs :—

We are entitled to have the piano sale set aside ; to 
an absolute assignment of the lease, and to have the chat­
tel mortgage cancelled. The piano has been shewn to be
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worthless. The contract on the sale of the piano was sub- 1906. 
ject to an implied condition that the piano should be Pktbotomius 

reasonably fit as a piano and for the purpose for which it r. I. wn'.i.i m» 

was bought. This condition is not excluded by the express Looted. 

warranty. See Randall v. Nexmon (1). The chattel 
mortgage was obtained by coercion and without considera­
tion. The defendant Williams held the lease of plaintiffs’ 
premises as a trustee for them, and could not stipulate for 
a benefit to himself as a condition of assigning it. The 
indebtedness to secure which the chattel mortgage was 
given, being to the defendant company, the defendant 
Williams could not take it to himself. His affidavit with 
the chattel mortgage that the indebtedness secured by it 
was due to himself was untrue. The chattel mortgage can 
be set aside even if the sale agreement is not.

If. 11. Trueman, for the defendants :—

A chattel mortgage may tie taken in the name of an 
agent. See Light v. Hawley (2); Brodie v. Rattan (3). 
The only real question raised by the bill is the allegation 
that in taking the lease in his own name the defendant 
Williams did so in fraud of the plaintiffs. It has been 
made clear that the original lease to the plaintiffs was 
obtained on the strength of the defendant’s guarantee, and 
that a renewal could not have been obtained without it. 
The defendant took the subsequent lease in his own name 
after he had informed the plaintiffs of his intention to do so, 
and they had expressed their approval. He did so in order 
that he might have the means of enforcing payment of the 
rent, and this was his reason for retaining a reversionary 
interest in the lease when auMetting to the plaintiffs. The 
delay in granting the sub-lease was due to the failure of 
the plaintiffs to pay 8100 down on account of the purchase 
price of the piano, called for under the sale agreement, and 
the large outstanding indebtedness on merchandise account 
that had been created. Before the plaintiffs could fairly

(I) 2 Q. B. D. 102, 107.
(3) 16 U. O. Q. B. 207.

(2) 29 O. R. 24.
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lfKHi. demand the sub-lease they were bound to perform their 
I'KTRoeouiiH part of the piano agreement. There was no duress in 
K. E « i i.i.ums obtaining the hill of sale. It was in fact proposed by the

VllMI'ARY, . " _ # r 1 j
Lmrroi. plaintiffs, and given in opposition to the advice of the 

defendant. The plaintiffs were suffering no detriment by 
the leuse remaining in the defendant’s possession. Their 
anxiety to obtain it was plainly due to the idea that 
the defendant might assign it to somebody else in event 
of a repudiation by them of the piano sale. No warranty 
as to the piano can lie set up other than that contained in 
the agreement. No evidence lias been given that the piano 
is not in accordance with it, or in what particular it is 
defective. If there is any trouble the cause of it should be 
shewn. The trouble, if any, may be within the exceptions 
in the agreement. Even if breach of warranty, there is 
no jurisdiction in this Court to grant relief, the plaintiffs’ 
remedy lieing at common law.

1Ü0I1. September 21. Barker,,!.:—

The principal facts of this case are set out in the 
report of the motion to continue the injunction, ante, 2(17. 
The hill alleges that when the first note fell due, which 
would Is- on the 10th October, BIOS, the plaintiff, Peter 
Petropolous, did not pay it because the piano became 
out of order in about twenty days after the note was 
given, and was not doing its work. This was shortly 
before the second piano was furnished. The hill also 
alleges that the second piano soon got out of order; 
that it would not work, and that it was not such a 
piano as it was represented and warranted to be. The 
bill further alleges that one of the objections the plain­
tiffs had to buying the piano was that they had a short 
lease of the premises, and that it was a part of the arrange­
ment for the purchase that the defendant should procure a 
renewal of the lease for a longer period on substantially 
the same terms—that he did procure a renewal but took it 
in his own name, and then refused to give the plaintiffs 
a lease until they executed the mortgage in question.
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It further alleges that the mortgage was given under 1906. 
this pressure—that the plaintiffs were ignorant of the PnaorouiDs 
nature and effect of its provisions, having an imperfect e.k Williams 
knowledge of the English language, and being without i-'mitmi. 
legal advice. The hill also charges that not only did the Bnrker.J. 
defendant take advantage of the plaintiffs’ ignorance of 
English, and the fact of his having the lease in his own 
name, to force them to give the mortgage and pay the first 
note, but that as to the plaintiffs he stood in a fiduciary 
position in reference to the renewal lease which entitled 
the plaintiffs to have it transferred to them. The prayer of 
the bill is, (1) for an injunction restraining the defendant 
E. E. Williams from taking possession and proceeding 
under the mortgage ; (2) that the mortgage be set aside 
and its cancellation on the records ordered ; (3) that it be 
declared that the contract for the sale of the piano be can­
celled, and that the defendants lie ordered to rejsiy to the 
plaintiffs the sum of #60.90, the amount of the note paid 
by the plaintiffs, and to deliver the other eleven notes back 
to the plaintiffs, and be restrained from bringing any action 
on them, and (4) that the defendant F. E. Williams be 
ordered to execute a lease to the plaintiffs upon the same 
terms that are contained in the lease to him.

It is important to bear in mind the following dates.
The first lease is dated March 4, 1905, and expired May 1,
1906. The piano contract and notes are dated September 
7, 1905; the chattel mortgage February 14, 1906 ; the 
notice of repudiation was given April 3,1906 ; and this suit 
was commenced April 10,1906, when I granted an interim 
injunction restraining proceedings under the mortgage.
Utter on this injunction was continued on condition of the 
money secured by it being paid into Court. It will also 
perhaps prevent confusion if I point out that although the 
purchase of the piano was made in the name of the plaintiff,
Peter Petropolous, and the notes were given by him, and 
the lease was to him alone, both the plaintiffs, who are 
brothers and in partnership, joined in the mortgage, and 
they were both interested in the whole transaction. In 
the same way, though the plaintiffs’ indebtedness was all
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__1900. to the defendant, the F. E. Williams Company, Limited,
Pitropoloi-s and the lease was taken in the name of the defendant F. E. 
F'compasvMS WM'amN> and the mortgage was to him, they represent the 

Limited, same interest, Williams being the president and manager of 
Barker, j. the company, and I presume its principal shareholder.

The specific relief prayed for is claimed on three 
grounds :

(1) That the mortgage was given under coercion and 
procured as the result of the plaintiff s' ignorance of its 
nature and contents, and in the absence of competent or 
legal advice.

(2) That the defendant Williams holds the renewal 
lease as trustee for the plaintiffs.

(3) That the plaintiffs, by reason of a breach of war­
ranty by the defendants, were entitled to return the piano 
and repudiate the contract, which they did do by their 
notice of April 3, and that as a legal result the notes could 
not be recovered, and the mortgage could not be enforced, 
the note for the cigars, mentioned in the mortgage, having 
been paid before the suit was commenced.

The greater part of the evidence as well as of the 
argument was directed to the third ground, but, as the 
first two points only involve a part of the relief asked 
for, I shall dispose of them first. There is no doubt I 
think that the plaintiffs are entitled to the full benefit 
of the renewal lease. As to the mortgage, however, I 
think the evidence fails in shewing anything like 
duress or an improper advantage taken of the plaintiffs 
by reason of their ignorance of English or their ignor­
ance of the nature of the transaction. So far from this 
being the case, special care seems to have been taken 
to make them understand all about it. The plaintiffs 
both gave their evidence in English, and though they may 
not be, and probably are not, sufficiently well acquainted 
with the language to understand or read a document such 
as this mortgage without explanation or assistance, they 
obviated all difficulty, because they took the precaution of
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having the witness Spcrdakes—a friend and fellow- 1906. 
countryman of theirs, who seems to understand English l*mtorou>i-s 
very well—with them, and he explained, at all events to F.E.wii uaih 

the plaintiff Peter, who was the acting man in the business, Limited. 

not only before the mortgage was prepared, the general Bnrker. J. 
nature of such a security, but at the time of its execution, 
the nature and contents of this particular instrument.
It is true that the plaintiff Andrew was not present 
when the mortgage was read over in Mr. Trueman’s 
office and Peter executed it, but he says that Peter told 
him about it and he knew that it was a security to 
Williams for his money. Sperdakes says that Peter was 
very anxious to get his lease, that he came to him and told 
him the defendants wanted a hill of sale—that he explained 
to him what a bill of sale was, and Peter said he would 
give all the stuff he had in the store, he wanted his lease.
He also says that the defendant advised Peter not to give 
the bill of sale, but that the plaintiffs wanted to do so and 
said they would give anything to get the lease. The 
defendant says that he did not want a bill of sale—that he 
advised the plaintiffs not to give it as it would interfere 
with their credit. He does, however, admit that as the 
indebtedness of the plaintiffs to him was then nearly 81,200, 
he was desirous of having some security, and proposed 
that he should hold the lease in his own name for that pur- 
|Kise. The plaintiffs, however, refused this, and the mort­
gage seems to have been the result. While the defendant 
may not have absolutely refused to give the plaintiffs the 
lease, he did delay doing so, and I think with a view of 
getting security. The plaintiffs were, however, in no way 
bound to give the security. They had the same means of 
enforcing their right to the lease that they have now. The 
existing lease did not expire for nearly three months after 
the security was actually given, and the plaintiffs were 
under no pressure arising out of the want of the renewal 
which rendered it necessary for them to give the security.
There is a distinction between an agreement to puy money 
to be released from a wrongful arrest, and an agreement 
to pay money for the release of goods unlawfully detained.
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1906. In Skeute v. Meule (1), Lord Denman says that “ it is of great 
PuTiioroiove importance that parties should be holden to those remedies 
F. k.Williams for injuries which the law prescribes, rather than allowed

COMI'A.NY, ' ...
Limits», to enter into agreements with a view to prevent them,
Barker, J. intending at the time not to keep their contracts.” Of 

course money paid in order to obtain possession of goods 
improperly detained may be recovered back, but the dis­
tinction seems to be that, although the mere duress of goods 
will not avoid a contract, a payment of money in order to 
obtain them is not a voluntary payment : Per Parke, B., in 
Parker v. Brutal >t- Exeter Hallway tin. (2). This case is 
not a ease of duress of goods. The defendant had no goods 
belonging to the plaintiffs, but he was under an ei|uitable 
obligation enforceable by this Court to execute and deliver 
to the plaintiff's a sub-lease of their premises. It seems to 
me a very unreasonable thiiigtosuppo.se that the plaintiffs, 
who were willing to give their stock as a security for the 
defendants' claim in order to get their lease, and actually, 
according to their version of the transaction, did so, could 
turn around and set aside the transaction afterwards on 
the ground of coercion. The only reason pressing upon the 
plaintiffs was the fear that the defendant might die with­
out exi'cuting the lease, or something of that kind. The 
plaintiffs are I think entitled to the renewal lease, though 
they do not seem to have objected to the one that was 
actually delivered to them until this suit was commenced. 
In fact, the only difference between the two is that one 
expires a month earlier than the other.

1 do not think the plaintiff» can maintain the third 
ground—conceding that the plaintiffs were entitled to 
retain and use the piano for such a time as might be 
reasonably necessary in order to determine whether or not 
it was up to the requirements of the contract and warranty, 
and their right, if it were not so, to return it and repudiate 
the contract, except as to their remedy on it for damages. 
What is their position as shewn by the evidence ? Whether 
there was in fact a breach of warranty or not, or whether

(1) Il A. A E. 983. (2i 6 Ex. 705.
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the piano fulfill)*! all the requirements of the contract or 190(1. 
not, is a question of fact upon which I have heard a large Penrorouwe
amount of evidence, but upon which I do not express any F.K.wil.u»«« 

. . ... 1 1 i Company,opinion, as it is not m my view necessary for the deter- Limitkd.
mination of this case, and I do not wish to embarrass the Barker. J. 

parties by my view on this point should it arise in any 
future litigation. I think the plaintiffs have forfeited their 
right to return the piano, even if that right once existed.
On the 3rd of April, 1900, when this notice was given, 
nearly seven months had elapsed from the time the second 
piano was delivered, and both pianos had been in the plain­
tiffs’ shop for two weeks previous to their purchase. That 
in my opinion was a much longer time than was cither 
reasonable or necessary for the purpose of ascertaining 
whether the instrument was up to the warranty and what 
they contracted for. If the plaintiffs’account is not alto­
gether exaggerated, all the time that it was in use—cer­
tainly four months—it was constantly getting out of order 
and was not working except at uncertain intervals. Yet 
they kept it, used it and received $33 from its earnings.
Andrew Petropolous, one of the plaintiffs, said in his 
evidence that it had not been working at all since 
November or December. Complaints were made, it is true, 
but no formal notice was given until April. That is, in my 
opinion, a much longer time than was necessary or reason­
able for the purpose of trial. It was contended before me, 
that the notice was useless for any purpose because the 
piano was sold with an express warranty, and in that case 
the purchaser having received it could not afterwards 
return it as there was no provision in the contract to that 
effect. Hinchdife v. Barwiok (1), and other cases, may be 
cited for that position. On examining these cases I think 
it will be found that they only apply where the sale has 
been an absolute one, and where the property in the chattel 
has passed to the vendee. In Street v. Blay (2), Lord 
Tenterden speaks of it as a well-known doctrine, that when 
the property in the specific chattel has passed to the vendee

(1) 6 Ex. D. 177. (2) 2 B. & Ad. 456
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190(i. and the price has been paid, he has no right to return the 
Hktroi'oixu's article and revest the property in the vendor, but he must 
K.K will.,am» sue on the warranty. He says, however, that as to execut- 

Limits», ory contracts, the purcliaser may return the chattel as soon 
Barker, J. a8 he discovers the defect in it, provided lie has done 

nothing more in the mean time than was necessary to give 
it a fair trial. He adds: “The observations aliove stated 
are intended to apply to the purchase of a certain specific 
chattel, accepted and received by the vendee, and the 
property in which is completely and entirely vested in him.” 
In the present case, by the terms of the original purchase 
the property in the piano was not to pass until the notes 
hail liven paid in full. It therefore required no act of the 
plaintiffs to revest the property in the defendants, because 
they hud never partis! with it, unless the |Hisition was 
changed by what took place subsequently.

There is another feature of this case which seems to me 
of importance, but which was not referred to at the hearing. 
By the mortgage of the 14th February, 190(1, which the 
defendants are seeking to enforce, the plaintiffs, in order to 
secure the payment of the remaining eleven notes for 
SfiO.OO each, and also a note for $303.55 given in settlement 
of the defendants’ account for cigars, conveyed to the 
defendant by way of mortgage, among other chattels, this 
same piano, described as “one Electric Automatic Piano, 
numbered 9848." The mortgage also contains a coven­
ant by the plaintiffs for the payment of all the notes and a 
proviso by which on the happening of any of a very long 
list of events in addition to default in payment, and with 
which the non-payment has nothing to do, the defendants 
were authorized to take possession of this piano and other 
chattels, sell them privately or at auction, and out of the pro­
ceeds to repay themselves the amount due on the notes with 
expenses, and to pay the surplus to the plaintiffs. Such a 
dealing with the property, especially after five months had 
elapsed after its purchase, seems to me conclusive evidence 
of the plaintiffs' option to retain it. They conveyed the 
property as their own to their vendor to secure payment of 
the purchase money, and by their covenant under seal



III.] NEW BRUNSWICK EQUITY REIDRTS.

they bound themselves to pay it. I am unable to see 
how these parties—the one as against the other—could, in 
the face of this mortgage, lie heard to say that the relation 
lietwecn them was other than that of mortgagor and mort­
gagee, although by the terms of the original purchase the 
property was not to pass until payment of the notes. As 
against the mortgagee the mortgagor is estopped from 
denying title : Doe d. Stewart v. McDonald (1). In 
the case already referred to (Street v. Way), Lord 
Tenterden says : “ But whatever may be the right of 
the purchaser to return such a warranted article in 
an ordinary case, there is no authority to shew that 
he may return it when the purchaser has done more 
than was consistent with the purpose of trial ; when he 
has exercised the dominion of an owner over it, by selling 
and parting with the property to another, and where he has 
derived a pecuniary benefit from it. * * * These are acts 
of ownership wholly inconsistent with the purpose of trial, 
and which are conclusive against the defendant that the 
[■articular chattel was his own.” It was under this mort- 

■ ge the defendants were about to proceed when they were 
strained by the injunction, but bail they gone on and sold 

this piano, the purchaser would have got an absolute title 
to it as against both plain tilt's and defendants—the same 
title which the plaintiffs conveyed to the defendants by 
way of mortgage : Chapman v. Morton (2).

1 am therefore of opinion that the plaintiffs had lost 
their right to return the piano if it ever existed, and that 
this case must lie dealt with ns if the plaintiffs had elected 
to keep it : not necessarily as a piano up to the warranty, 
but for which they would at least be liable to pay the 
defendants the contract price, leas the difference between 
its actual value and its value if up to the warranty. If the 
piano were in fact up to the warranty—a question upon 
which 1 make no finding—then this hill must be dismissed, 
I « ■cause the plaintiffs would lie liable for the whole con-

ll) 1 All. 673. (2) 11 M. & W. IMM,
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I*BTR01*0L0Ue
F. K. Williams 

Com i* a ny, 
Limited.

Barker, J.

voi- in. N. 11. K. it.—24.
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1006. tract price. If it has been accepted, quantum ixtlebat, 
Putkoisuxivs what are the rights and remedies of the parties ? The 
K. K.» ti.MAMs difference between the actual value of the piano and itsI OMI VW . . .

Limited, value if up to the warranty ih recoverable either in an
Bsrki-r. J. action bv the plaintiffs, together with any special damage 

they may have sustained by reason of a breach of the war­
ranty, or it may, in the case of an action on the notes being 
brought by the defendants, possibly be set off as provided 
by sect. 117, ch. Ill, C. S. 1903. No such case as that 
is, however, set up by this bill ; and if this Court could 
entertain any such cross-claim, I have no evidence what­
ever before me to enable me to ascertain the damages. 
The bill would in that case be merely a redemption 
bill tiled in order to ascertain the amount due with a 
view to its payment in order to redeem the property. A 
bill to set aside a mortgage for fraud cannot very well be 
turned into a bill to redeem the mortgage. But if it could 
be, it is not the usual practice of this Court to entertain a 
suit involving such an accounting where damages are to be 
set off against a debt. See Glennie v. Imri (1). The plain­
tiffs' remedy on this contract, or for breach of warranty, is 
not prejudiced by payment of the purchase money. See 
Munilrl v. Steel (2).

There will he a decree that the defendant Williams 
give a new lease, and the defendants must have the option 
of Inking the money in Court on delivering up the notes 
and discharging the mortgage. If they do not so elect, the 
money will go haek to the plaintiffs, and the injunction 
will he dissolved.

As to the costs, I think the defendants must have their 
costs, except those of such part of their answer as relate 
to the renewal lease. I do not think that under the circum­
stances the plaintiffs are entitled to any costs. They have 
failed in the principal object of their suit, and the defend­
ant company would not have been a necessary party to the 
bill if it had lieen tiled simply to enforce the execution of a 
new lease. The defendant Williams was not asked for a

(ll 3 Jnr. 432. (2) 8 M. & W. 88.
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different lease—in fact, the plaintiffs accepted the one they 190(i. 
got without objection, and executed a counterpart of it, and Pethopolou.

if the lease had been the only matter in dispute, it is not Y.ewpLuam.
* 1 Com pant,

likely that this suit would have ever been commenced. Limited.

See Vernon v. Oliver ( 1). Barker, J.

(1) 11 Can. 8. C. R. 150, 165.
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1U06.

October 12.

[VOL.

THE CITY OF ST. JOHN v. BARKER.

Riparian owners—-Water right*—Pollution of water—Proof of 
(lainage—Act of Législature.

The pollution of a river by n riparian owner will he enjoined at 
the instance of a riparian owner lower down without proof 
of actual damage.

Generally speaking, one not a riparian owner is not entitled to 
complain of the pollution of the river, and a grant or license 
from a riparian owner to use the water does not entitle the 
grantee or licensee to complain of its pollution by another 
riparian owner.

Where plaintiff was authorized by Act to take a specified quan­
tity of water per day from a lake for, among other pur|H>ses, 
i In- domestic use of its citizens, it was held that it was en­
titled to enjoin the pollution of the lake by a riparian owner.

Motion for an interim injunction. The facts fully 
appear in the judgment of the Court.

Argument was heard October 4, 1906.

C. X. Shi aver, K.C., for the plaintiffs :—

It is our right as a riparian ownfcr to have the water 
come to us in its natural state and un]M>llutcd by the excre­
ment discharged into it from the defendant's hotel. Under 
Act 5 Edw. VII.. chap. 59, the plaintiffs are empowered to 
erect a dam across the river at the southern end of Robert­
son’s Lake, and to create there a reservoir for the supply of 
water to the inhabitants of the city, for domestic consump­
tion, among other purposes. The Act would be thwarted if 
the defendant were permitted to foul the water. Rule 18 of 
the bye-laws of the Provincial Board of 
the fouling or contamination of or emptying of a sewer 
into water that is the source of supply to the inhabitants 
of any place.

H. A. McKeown, K.C., for the defendant :—

The Act 5 Edw. VII., chap. 59, empowers the city to 
appropriate a certain Quantity of water per day from Ijike

I

C-0$-C
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Lomond for the use of the city. There is in tins grant no 
bestowal of the rights incidental to riparian ownership. 
As a riparian owner the plaintiff's have no rights beyond 
the limits of their own property. They cannot complain 
of the condition of the water after it has passed it. 
Were the water conveyed to the city by a pipe leading 
from the river where it flows by plaintiffs’ land, their 
right to redress would have to be found outside of any 
rights they possess as a riparian owner. In Stockport 
Watenvorke Co. v. Cotter (1), the plaintiffs having by 
grant a right to take water from the Mersey for supplying 
the inhabitants of Stockport, brought an action against 
defendants for polluting the water. It was held by 
Pollock, C. B., and Channel, B., Bramwell, B., ilinn., that the 
rights which a riparian owner has with respect to the 
water are entirely derived from his possession of land 
abutting on tin- stream, and that if by a deed which con­
veys only land not abutting on the stream he affects to 
grant water rights, the grantee cannot sue a third party on 
their interruption. See also Whaley v. Lang (2), where it 
was held that the mere possession or taking of water by 
a person not a riparian owner is not sufficient to enable 
him to maintain an action for polluting it.

Skinner, K. C., in reply.

190(i. October 12. Barker, J. :—

The object of this suit is to restrain the defendant 
from permitting the water of Lake Lomond to he polluted 
by the drainage from water closets in a building kept by 
her as an hotel at that place. There is no dispute as to the 
facts. Lake Lomond is a noil-tidal laxly of water about 
three and a half miles long by one mile broad, about nine 
or ten miles from the city of St. John. The Mispec River 
issues from the foot of the lake for a short distance, and 
then spreads out into what is known as Robertson’s Lake, 
a laxly of water covering an area of about ninety acres.

190(1.
City of St. 

Rarkkr.

(1) 8 H. & C. 300. (2) 3 H. & N. 476.
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1906. The river flows from the foot of this lake in its natural
cm- <>►• sr. course to its outlet on the Bay of Fundy. The plaintiffs,

Hakkkr *n **le exerc'!ie powers conferred upon them by the
Barker j Legislature, the sufficiency of which is not questioned, have

for the purpose of utilizing the water of Lake Lomond as 
part of their system of water supply, constructed a dam 
at the foot of Robertson’s Lake so as to make a reservoir 
there, and they have also connected the water of Robert­
son’s Lake with that of Lake Latimer by a conduit, ahd 
from there the water is conveyed into the city. The de­
fendant’s hotel was opened for business by her husband in 
1904. It was built on land owned by him fronting on the 
lake at the lower part, and quite near the head of the 
Mispec River. It is used principally by guests in the sum­
mer season, though it is open for business all the year. It 
contains a bath-room and two water-closets for the use of 
guests, and the deposits from these are discharged directly 
into the lake, quite near the head of the river.

The right to the injunction is based on two grounds, 
(1) that the plaintiffs are riparian owners of property on 
the Mispec River, and as such are entitled to have the 
water flow in an unpolluted condition along their land ; 
and (2) that they are entitled under certain Acts of the 
Legislature to the use of the water of the lake free from 
jiollution in the interests of public health and for the use 
of the inhabitants of St. John. As to the first point, it 
appeals that the plaintiffs are owners in fee of five lots of 
land fronting on the Mispec River near its head, and it is 
claimed that as an incident to that property ownership they 
are entitled as of right to have the defendant restrained 
from polluting the water of the lake, even though they 
may not themselves be using the water in connection with 
the property, and though they may not be able to shew 
any actual damage. As the Mispec River is the otdy outlet 
to Lake Lomond, and as the natural flow of the water is 
down that river, it must necessarily pass along the plain­
tiffs’ property, which is below the defendant’s property. 
The defendant describes that part of the river between 
Lake Lomond and Robertson's Lake as a rapid running
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stream with a gravelly bottom, and, except in dry weather, 
very turbulent, so that it is open during the winter, and 
that it has a width varying from about one to four rods, 
and a depth varying from three to ten feet. It appears 
that on the 1st of September last, some time before this 
action was commenced, the plaintiffs made a formal demand 
upon the defendant to stop discharging the sewage from 
her premises into the lake. She, however, did not do so. 
I agree with the plaintiffs’ contention, and think that as 
the fact of pollution is not denied, the plaintiff's, as riparian 
owners lower down on the stream, are entitled to the inter­
vention of this Court notwithstanding there is no evidence 
of actual damage. As riparian owners they have the right 
to have the waters of the river flow through or past their 
land in their natural state, undeteriorated in quality, unless 
the defendant can shew, and there is no pretence that she 
can, a justification for her act by grant or prescription or 
some other way.

In Woo<l v. Witud (1), Pollock, C. B., says: “The 
fact, as found by the jury, is, that the defendants (whose 
works have been erected within twenty years, and who 
have no right, by long enjoyment or giant, so to do) have 
fouled the water of the natural stream by pouring in soap 
suds, woolcombers’ suds, etc. ; but that pollution of the 
natural stream has done no actual damage to the plaintiffs, 
because it was already so polluted by similar acts of mill- 
owners above the defendants’ mills, and by dyers still fur­
ther up the stream, and some sewers of the town of Brad­
ford ; that the wrongful act of the defendants made no 
practical difference, that is, that the pollution by the 
defendants did not make it less applicable to useful pur- 
]Kjses than such water was before. We think, notwith­
standing, that the plaintiffs have received damage in point 
of law. They had a right to the natural stream flowing 
through the land, in its natural state, as an incident to the 
right to the land on which the watercourse flowed, as will 
Is: hereafter more fully stated ; and that right continues,

3<il
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(1) 3 Ex. 748, 772.
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except so far as it may have been derogated from by user 
or by grant to the neighboring land owners. This is a 
case, therefore, of an injury to a right. The defendants, 
by continuing the practice for twenty years, might estab­
lish the right to the easement of discharging, into the 
stream, the foul water from their works."

In Cromley <{• Sons, Limited v. Lightowler (2), it 
appeared that the plaintiffs, wishing to prevent the water 
of a river from being fouled by some dye works, purchased, 
from the owners of the dye works, a piece of land on the 
bank of the river, without communicating their object to 
them, and it was held that they could maintain a suit to 
restrain them. Lord Chelmsford says : “ Where there are 
many existing nuisances, either to the air, or to water, it 
may be very difficult to trace to its source the injury 
occasioned by any one of them ; but if the defendants add 
to the former foul state of the water and yet are not to be 
responsible on account of its previous condition, tliis con­
sequence would follow, that if the plaintiffs were to make 
terms with the other polluters of the stream so as to hi ve 
water free from impurities produced by their works, the 
defendants might say, ‘ we began to. foul the stream at a 
time when, as against you, it was lawful for us to do so, 
inasmuch as it was unfit for your use, and you cannot now, 
by getting rid of the existing pollutions from other sources, 
prevent our continuing to do what, at the time when we 
began, you had no right to object to.’ ” As against a ripar­
ian owner, it is not in my opinion necessary, in the case of 
a natural stream polluted under a claim of right by 
another ri|>nrian owner further up the stream, to shew 
actual damage. In cases of pollution it is oftentimes diffi­
cult to shew it—in fact, it may be impossible to do so. It 
exists all the same—it may be to an extent detrimental to 
tbe health of those who have a right to use the water. If 
it were otherwise what would be the effect? Take the 
present case. The defendant says, ' 1 have had this water 
testis) by experts and they report that it is not jiolluted.'

(2) L. K. 2 Oh. 478.
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Suppose that within the next ten years ten other riparian 
proprietors erect houses with water closets discharging 
into the lake but in no greater volume than is discharged 
from the defendant’s hotel now. An application of the 
same test then shews a positive pollution. Against whom 
are the plaintiffs to proceed ? Each has the same answer 
as that now set up by this defendant, and if one can suc­
ceed why not all ? And in this way the plaintiffs would 
be without remedy, and the water supply secured to them 
for public uses would be injurious to health and unfit for 
use.

There is another feature of this case which may 
conveniently lie mentioned here. The regulations of the 
Provincial Board of Health, confirmed by the Lieutenant- 
Governor in Council, were put in evidence. Rule XVIII. is 
us follows : “ No sewer drain shall empty into any lake, 
pond or other source of water used for drinking or culinary 
purposes, or into any standing water, within the jurisdic­
tion of this Board." And a penalty is provided for any 
disobedience to these rules. In Attorney-Genend v. 
Cockennouth Load Hoard (1), it appeared that the defend­
ants were prohibited by their Act of Parliament from send­
ing sewage water into a natural stream until it had been 
purified and the noxious matter taken from it. Jessel, M. 
R., said : “ The Legislature is of opinion that it is desirable 
to preserve our natural streams in at least their present 
state of purity; it therefore has said that you shall not 
affect or deteriorate the water at all ; and the Court must 
assume that the deterioration of the water is an injury 
which is prohibited by the Legislature for good and 
sufficient cause.”

In my opinion the plaintiffs are entitled as ri]>arian 
owners to have the defendant restrained from causing or 
allowing sewage or foul water to flow or be discharged 
from her premises into Like Lomond, alxive or within the 
limits of the plaintiffs’ land, as was done in the case of 
Croseley v. Lightowler, already cited. And perhaps for all

1900.
ClTV OK ST.
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Barker, J.

(1) L. R. 18 Eq. 172
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1906. practical purpoaes that would attain the plaintiffs’ object, 
citv ok st. inasniucli as none of the water so polluted, can reach Lake 

Bahkkk I*timer without Mowing along the plaintiffs' property on 
Barker J *he r*vel- The plaintiffs, however, take higher ground and 

claim that their rights are not restricted within these 
narrow limits. And in view of a declaration of their rights 
under the Act of the Legislature, to which reference was 
made at the argument, I have thought it as well to express 
my views on this part of the case so that the whole matter 
might, if the defendant wishes, go up on appeal and he 
determined without delà)-.

It may he stated as a general proposition that in cases 
of pollution to natural streams of water, where at all events 
the pollution is not a public nuisance, the right to complain 
is confined to the riparian owners below the point on 
the stream where the pollution takes place. It is a right 
incident to the property itself, and is inseparable from it, 
so that a mere right to use the water under license or grant 
from a riparian owner would not confer upon the licensee 
or grantee a right in himself to bring an action for damages 
arising from the pollution of the stream by any other 
riparian owner. It was upon this ground that the injunc­
tion originally granted in Crosulty v. Liglitowler was varied 
on appeal. In that case the plaintiffs claimed as ri]>arian 
owners, and also under rights acquired under other owners. 
Their works were not on their own land fronting on the 
stream, but the water supplied for them was supplied from 
a point higher up the stream through pipes. Had they not 
been riparian owners they would not have succeeded 
in the action. That part of the order, made by Wood, 
V.-C., restraining the defendants from causing or suffer­
ing foul water into the river so as to affect the water 
drawn by the plaintiffs from the river for the use of 
their dye works, was omitted from the order of the 
Court on appeal, though the injunction went as to the 
water above or within the limits of the land owned by 
the plaintiffs as riparian owners. (See L R. 3 Eq. at 
page 298).
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The same doctrine is laid down in Stockport 
Waterworks Co. v. Potter (1); Ormerod v. Todmorden 
Mill Co. (2), and many other cases. The present case 
is, however, not governed by those 1 have just men­
tioned. Whatever rights the plaintiffs have beyond 
those which they enjoy as incident to their riparian hold­
ings, they have by statute. By Act 5 Edw. VII., chap. 
5(1, the plaintiffs are given important rights in refer­
ence to these waters altogether beyond and in excess of 
any which an ordinary riparian proprietor has. Section 2 
authorizes them to erect and maintain the reservoir, which 
I have already alluded to, and to build the dam necessary 
for the purpose. Section 3 authorizes the plaintiffs to 
abstract from Lake Lomond a quantity not exceeding 
7,500,000 gallons of water daily into Lake Latimer for the 
purpose of being transmitted therefrom to St. John for the 
use of the citizens. The case of Swindon Waterworks 
Co. v. Wilts ik Berks Canal Navigation Co. (3), is 
similar in principle to the present. In that case it 
appeared that the plaintiffs, the canal conqiauy, were by 
certain Acts of Parliament authorized to take water from 
streams within a distance of 2,(KM) yards for the purpose of 
making and maintaining their canal. On one of these 
streams was a mill which the canal company purchased, 
thereby liecoming a riparian owner. The defendants (the 
waterworks company) also purchased a mill property on 
the upper part of the same stream and also became a 
riparian owner. They built a reservoir, into which they 
collected the water of the streams and supplied it to 
the inhabitants of an adjacent town. In consequence of 
this abstraction of the water, the supply required for 
the canal was interfered with to such an extent that 
at one time it was said the traffic was stopped. 
In a suit brought against the waterworks company by 
the canal company it was held that as against the canal 
company the storage of the water by the defendants in

(1) S H. & C. 300. (2) a Q. B. D. 185.
(3) L. R. 9 Ch. 451, and on appeal, L. R. 7 H. L. 697.
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their reservoir was not a reasonable use of the stream, and 
that the canal company were entitled to come into a Court 
of Equity and have them restrained from doing so. In 
the report of the case in L. R. !) Ch. 451, it will be seen 
that Malins, V.-C., before whom the case was originally 
heard, dismissed the bill and held that the canal com­
pany’s Acts gave them no rights as riparian owners. On 
ap]K'al the Lords Justices reversed this decision and granted 
an injunction by which the waterworks company were 
restrained from diverting the waters of the stream into 
their reservoir, and also from diverting the waters of the 
stream so as to interfere with the supply of water required 
by the canal company for the navigation of their canal. 
(See a minute of the older at page 4U2.) James, L. J., 
says : “ I am of opinion, notwithstanding the decision of 
the Vice-Chancellor, that there is a clear legal right in the 
canal company, whether as owners of the canal or as 
owners of the stream diverted into the canal, to say to the 
defendants, ‘ You must let the water flow down in its ordi­
nary course.”’ Lord Justice Mcllish, after expressing the 
opinion that the canal company had no right to take the 
water for any other purpose than supplying the canal, says : 
“ If they do so, any person lower down the stream, who 
was prejudiced by being .deprived of the water, would 
probably have a right of action at law against them ; but 
I think that, if they took the water into their canal really 
for the purposes of navigation and then happened to have 
a surplus of water in any particular place, it would be 
very difficult to say that they might not legally sell that 
surplus quantity. That, however, is quite immaterial for 
the purpose of this suit ; for although I agree they have 
the ordinary rights of a riparian proprietor, yet this suit is 
really brought in respect of their rights as canal pro­
prietors for the purpose of supplying their canal with 
water." It appeared that when the suit was brought the 
canal company did not require any water for their canal, 
and this was put forwaid as an answer to the claim to an 
injunction. As to this Lord Justice Mellish says: “But 
that proposition is in my opinion not correct ; for although
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the canal company have by Act of Parliament only a right 190G. 
to take the water for the purposes of navigation, yet, hav- Cnv^ or Sr.
ing taken it, and having legally made a junction between , '

** ... , J J Bakkkk.
the stream and their canal for the bona pie supplying Harki,r ,
their canal with water, in my opinion they could maintain 
an action against the proprietor above who illegally diverted 
the water, notwithstanding that, at the time, they did not 
actually want the water for the purposes of navigation.
The test is this: Supposing the person who had so diverted 
the water had done so, and had used it for 20 years, could 
he have claimed a right ! In my opinion, he clearly could.
If he had kept up the diversion for 20 years,although they 
never wanted the water, yet, when they came to want it at 
the end of 21 years, having allowed him to divert it, their 
right would be lost, just the same ns the right of any other 
landed proprietor would lie lost. For the purpose, there­
fore, of maintaining their right they would lie entitled to 
bring such an action." The laird Justice is here discussing 
the rights of the canal company as such, in respect of 
which, as he had before said, they had brought the suit.
And when he speaks of an illegal diversion of the water by 
an upper proprietor, he clearly means illegal as against the 
canal company as such, and not as a riparian owner by 
virtue of the mill they had bo,ught.

When this case came before the House of Lords (1), 
though the order was altered, it was merely in form 
and the decision of the Louis Justices was affirmed.
In his opening remarks the Lord Chancellor says :
" Your Lordships desired , to hear a few observations witli 
regard to the form of decree ; not, I think, because there 
was any doubt as to the correctness in point of sub­
stance of the judgment of the Lords Justices, but because 
the decree had, probably pee incur inn, assumed a form 
which was scarcely apposite, having regard to the nature 
of tile issues which were raised." After stating the position 
of the canal company as rii«irian owners, and as pro­
prietors of the canal, the Lord Chancellor says: “They 
complained, therefore, that the rights which had been given

(1) L. K. 7 H. L. 887.
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1906. by Parliament for the purpose of making and maintaining 
city dk St. the canal had been interfered with, and farther, that their 

hakkkr r*K*|ts ns riparian owners had been interfered with by the 
Barker J operation of the defendants (the appellants) higher up the 

stream." He then discusses the company’s rights as 
riparian owners, and later on he discusses their rights as 
canal proprietors. He says : “ Now I turn to the position 
of canal proprietors under their parliamentary powers;” 
and after mentioning the powers, he proceeds : “ If in
taking that water for the supply of their canal, they 
stopjicd it from flowing in its accustomed course to any 
tenement lower down upon its course, they would be 
obliged to compensate the owner of that inferior tenement 
under their Act of Parliament. My Lords, with regard to 
the upper owners, it appears to me that the canal pro­
prietors stepped into all the rights which a riparian owner 
at their point in the stream would have, as against the upper 
owners, with this qualification, and with this only, that 
these rights were to be exercised, not absolutely, not caprici­
ously, but merely and only for the purpose of supplying 
their canal. Therefore, coming to complain, under their 

ntary powers, they must she»’ that something has 
been done by the upper owners which has interfered with 
the supply that their canal properly derived from this 
stream." Lord Hatherley, after discussing the matter at 
length, says, that as the Legislature had not limited the 
supply of water to which the canal company was entitled, 
the continuous use of the water for the purpose of the 
canal must be regarded, ami in that case, “ the canal 
company would have the right which every riparian pro­
prietor would have, namely, a right to the flow of the 
stream for the purjsise of satisfying their requirements." 
After pointing out that the rights of upper proprietors 
were not affected or taken away, laird Hatherley continues : 
“They are just as they were before; they »’ere hound, as 
regards those lower do»rn the river, not to do any act so as 
to interfere with their enjoyment of the river, such as is 
here complained of ; and all that happens to them is that 
there is the substitution of the canal proprietors for the

9669
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rijiarian owner; not, oh has been said, with all the rights 
of riparian proprietors, hut with certain rights limited to 
the purposes of their canal traffic, without in any way inter­
fering with the higher proprietors.” In the order made in 
this case as settled by the House of Lords—there are the 
declarations of right—one as to the right of the canal 
company as a riparian owner to the natural flow of the 
stream, subject to the ordinary and reasonable use of the 
streams and waters by the rijiarian owners higher up; and 
the other as to the company’s rights under their Acts of 
Parliament. The latter declaration is as follows: “And it 
is declared, that the plaintiffs, under and by virtue of the 
powers contained in the Acts of Parliament in the plead­
ings mentioned, are entitled to use the said stream and 
waters as the same have been accustomed (before such 
interference as aforesaid) to flow down to and into their 
canal so far as the said stream and waters are required for 
the supply and navigation of their canal, and subject to 
such ordinary and reasonable use by upper riparian owners 
as hereinbefore mentioned." And the injunction went to 
restrain the defendants from diverting the stream into 
their reservoir or otherwise so as to interfere with the sup­
ply of water required for the navigation of the said canal.

The case from which I have so freely quoted had 
reference to the quantity of water—-the present one has 
reference to its quality. In principle they are, however, 
the same. The right to have water flow unimpeded in its 
natural channel, subject to its ordinary and reasonable use 
by the rijiarian proprietors, is no different or superior right 
than that it should he jiermitted to flow without being 
contaminated. In the case cited there was nothing in the 
Acts of Parliament expressly conferring upon the canal 
company a right to have the water flow unimpeded, nor is 
there anything in the present plaintiffs’ Acts which in 
words confère upon them a right to have the water 
authorized to be taken pure and uncontaminated. In both 
cases, however, they have by virtue of the powers conferred 
ujxin them, so far ns is reasonably necessary for their pur- 
jKises, the rights of riparian owners as to the waters which
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1900. they are entitled to use ; in the one case sufficient to 
city of st. supply the canal, subject to the legal rights of owners 

H a us above them on the stream, and in the other case sufficient
Broker J s,1PP*y ^le daily maximum of 7,500,000 gallons of the 

water in its natural pure state. Otherwise it would be 
useless to the city for the pur|>oses contemplated by the 
Legislature.

In Milne» v. The Mayor, etc., of IIuddemjield(1), the Earl 
of Selborne says : “ Upon the question of law, I cannot for 
a moment doubt that the object with which the general and 
special Acts were all jiassed ought throughout to be Isirne 
in mind. That object was that the consumers should be 
supplied with water, a prime necessity of life, for drinking— 
not indeed the only purpose, but a primary one, \yhich must 
be, and which alone need be hero regarded. To be tit for 
drinking the water- must be wholesome and not poisonous 
to those who drink it. It is a paradox little short of 
absurdity to suppose that water not fulfilling that condition 
could be such as the legislature intended to Is- supplied."

The plaintiffs are therefore entitled, in exercising their 
ri|uirian rights as arising out of and incident to the powers 
conferred upon them, to say to this defendant, you have 
no right as against us to pollute these waters as you are 
doing, for we have the right for the pur]>ose of extending 
our water system and supplying the inhabitants of Saint 
John with water for drinking, and domestic and manu­
facturing pur|sises, to have the water How down unim­
paired in quality and in its natural pure state. Any other 
view would, as it seems to me, render the whole legislation 
useless.

1 think the plaintiffs ere entitled to an injunction 
restraining the defendant from fouling the water above or 
within the limits of the plaintiffs' land on the Mispec River, 
and from fouling the water of the lake or river, flowing 
into the plaintiffs' reservoir, constructed by the plaintiffs 
under the powers given by the Act of Legislature as men­
tioned in the bill.

Reserve question of costs till hearing.

Il) 11 A. C. 511.
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BARNHILL t. THE HAMPTON AND SAINT MARTINS 
RAILWAY COMPANY.

Railway Mortgage - Working r.i fx'iuliturr Lien - Prioritiea— 
Dominion Railway Act», ltttts and lit OS.

The Railway Art. 1S8R (I).), after providing that a railway may 
secure its debenture» by a mortgage upon the whole of xucn 
property, unset*, i-ente and revenue» of the company a» are 
uescrilied in the mortgage, provide» that such rents tind 
revenues shall be subject In the first instance * • * to the 
payment of the working expenditure of the railway. By 
the Railway Act, ltiiti ill.), the lien is enlarged to apply to the 
property and nsaet» of the company, in addition to its tents 
and revenues. A mortgage by the defendants, made in 18W7, 
was foreclosed and the property sold, the proceeds being paid 
into Court. In a claim for a lien thereon in priority to the 
mortgagee for working expenditure made after the com­
mencement of the Act of Itilti :—

Held, that the lien under the Act of 1 tit 13 was not retroactive, 
and that as the lien under the Act of 1HS8 was limited to 
rents and revenues, and did not apply to the fund in Court, 
the claim should he disallowed.

Claims of lien upon a fund in Court, being proceeds of 
sale in a suit for foreclosure and sale of the defendants' 
property, in priority to the plaintiff. The facts sufficiently 
appear in the judgment of the Court.

Argument was heard October 4, 1906.
C. N. Skinner, K.C., for the plaintiff:—-
The Crown has no lien unless conferred by statute. 

The. Railway Act, 1886 (51 Viet. c. 29, (D.) ), under which 
the mortgage to the plaintiff was given, by sect. 94, after 
providing that a railway may secure its debentures by a 
mortgage upon the whole of such property, assets, rents 
and revenues of the company, present or future, or both, 
as are described in the mortgage deed provides that such 
rents and revenues shall he subject ill the first instance 
* * * to the ]>ayinent of the working ex|ieiiditure of
the railway. The lien is here restricted to rents and 
revenues, and cannot attach to the proceeds in Court which 
wholly arose from the sale of the railway. By The Ituil-

1906.
October le.

VOL in. n. n. K. H.--M
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1006. 11*1 y Act, 1003, sect. 112, the lien is extended to the prop-
Baknhii.1. erty und assets of the company. The Act is, however, not 
Hamit»* given a retroactive operation, and it is submitted that the 

st. Marti*» question must be disposed of under the former Act. Were 
Comcast, the Act of 1003 held to have a retrospective effect, it 

would have no application to the present road. Moreover, 
under sect. 6, the Act is not applicable to a railway con­
structed under Provincial legislation until declared by 
special Act of the Parliament of Canada to be a work for 
the general advantage of Canada. The declaration in sect. 
7, that every railway constructed under an Act of a Pro­
vince connecting with or crossing a railway which at the 
time of such connection or crossing is subject to the legis­
lative authority of the Parliament of Canada, is a work for 
the general advantage of Canada in respect only to such 
connection or crossing, would relate to but so much of the 
road as connects with the Intercolonial at Hampton.

E. H. McAlpine, K. C., and E. G. Kaye, for the 
Crown :—

Sect. 306 of The Railway Act, 1886, declares the 
Intercolonial Railway, among other enumerated railways, 
to lie a work for the general advantage of Canada, and that 
each and every branch line or railway “ now or hereafter 
connecting with or crossing the said lines of railway, or any 
of them, is a work for the general advantage of Canada” 
Such declaration was not limited in its effect to the currency 
of the Act. Sect. 7 of the Act of 1!>03 does not contemplate 
that a fresh declaration shall be made. It is dealing with 
railways thereafter to tie constructed or that already had 
not been declared to be works for the general advantage of 
Canada. In chap. 75 of Act 50-51 Viet. (D.), empowering 
the Saint Martins and Upham Railway Company to sell the 
road, the preamble recognizes that the road is a work for 
the general advantage of Canada by virtue of sect. 121 of 
chap. 109, R.S.C. In MacMurcliy é Denison's Canadian 
Railway Act, page 24, it appears to be accepted that the 
railways mentioned in sect. 306 of the former consolida­
tion remain subject to the jurisdiction of the Dominion
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Parliament. Having a lien, we have priority as a Crown 1906. 
claim over those of the other claimants. Bahnhim.

Hampton

//. A. McKeown, K. C., for claim of Walter E. Faster st. Martina
. ,, Railwayana others :— company.

Our view has never been that presented by the Crown.
The words of the Act of 1888 appeared to us to prevent 
us from setting up a lien on money derived from a sale of 
the road. If, however, it is considered that a lien does 
exist, we submit that the Crown has no prerogative right 
of priority, and that it should rank pari paseu with the 
other claimants.

Skinner, K. C., in reply.

1906. October 16. Barker, J. :—

This suit was brought for the foreclosure of a certain 
mortgage dated October 30, 1897, made by the defendants 
to the plaintiff as trustee for bondholders to secure an issue 
of debentures, and for the sale of the mortgaged property.
A decree was made for the sale of the property, but before 
the sale took place an application was made on behalf of 
the Dominion Government for an enforcement of a lien for 
the sum of #1,470.42, which they claimed on the property 
in priority to the mortgage. By consent the property was 
sold under the decree with the understanding that if the 
claim had not lieen settled in the meantime the purchase 
money should be paid into Court to represent the property 
and lie dealt with accordingly. The amount was not paid, 
and the fund is now in Court to be dealt with as this Court 
may order. After the sale had taken place two other 
applications of a similar character were made. One on 
lie half of Isabella J. Wilson, who claims a lien for #602.16 
for repairs to rolling stock, and the other on behalf of 
Walter E. Foster and others, who claim a similar lien for 
#2,451.89, of which #1,233.89 is for advances of cash to the 
company to pay wages, and the remainder for the rental of 
one passenger and one freight car. All of the two claims
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1906. last mentioned and all of the Goverment claim, except three 
Bahniiu.l charges amounting to $154, arose since February 1, 1904, 
Hahi’ton when The Railway Act, 1903, came into force by virtue of 

8T!u!i'wa'v" **le Proclamation of January IS, 1904. The defendants were 
Comcast. incorporated in the year 1897 by an Act of the Provincial 
Barker. J. Legislature, 60 Viet. chap. 89, which authorized the pur­

chase of what is there spoken of as the southern division 
of the Central Railway, and which extends from Hampton 
where it connects with the Intercolonial Railway to St. 
Martins, a distance of about 29 miles. The defendants 
acquired this railway property and in order to secure an 
issue of bonds amounting to $1,450.00, they made the 
mortgage in question, dated October 30,1897, and registered 
in the county of King’s, October 30,1897, and in the county 
of St. John, November 24, 1897. The railway in question 
is a part of what was originally known as the St. Martins 
and Upham Railway, and the company then owning that 
road was authorized by an Act of the Dominion Parliament 
passed in 1887 (50-51 Viet. chap. 75), to sell its railway and 
franchises upon the conditions therein set forth. In the 
preamble to that Act it is recited that the railway connects 
with the Intercolonial Railway at Hampton, and that it is 
declared a work for the general advantage of Canada by 
sect. 121 of chap. 109, R. S. C. This section was re-enacted 
by sect. 306 of The Railway Act, 1888, and continued in 
force until that Act was repealed by The Railway Act, 
1903, which contains no similar provision.

The mortgage in question conveys “All and singular 
the line of railway of the party of the first part, extend­
ing from its terminus at Hampton station on the Inter­
colonial Railway, through the parishes of Hampton and 
Upham in the county of King's, and through the parish of 
St. Martins in the county of St. John, to its terminus in 
the town of St. Martins, on the shore of the Bay of Kundy, 
at (juaco harbor, a distance of twenty-nine miles, more or 
less, together with all lands, buildings, bridges, fixtures, 
telephone or telegraph lines and structures of every kind 
and nature whatsoever, and all sidings, side tracks and 
turnouts now owned by the party of the first part, or
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tvhich may be hereafter acquired by it for the use of the 1906. 
said line of railway, and also all rolling stock, cars, engines, Barnhill 
rails, ties, machinery, tools and personal property of every n<“^ON
kind and nature whatsoever, now held or hereafter to be 8p Mahtis» 

. . . Railwayacquired for the use of the said line of railway, and also all Company.
powers, privileges and corporate rights and franchises, Bsrker, J. 
including the franchises to operate the said line of railway 
now held or hereafter to be acquired for the use of the said 
line of railway."

The railway legislation, both Dominion and Provincial, 
of the past twenty-five years is so voluminous, and the 
Statutes enacted during that period are so numerous, that I 
am compelled to rely largely in deciding the questions 
now under discussion, upon the legislative provisions to 
which Counsel directed my attention.

The Railway Act, 1888, which I understand is the 
first Dominion Statute containing general provisions as to 
the borrowing of money by railway companies, and giving 
security on their property and franchises to secure it, pro­
vides by sect. 95 that such bonds—that is, bonds issued 
under the authority of that Statute—shall be a first prefer­
ential claim and charge upon the company and the fran­
chise, undertaking, tolls and income, rents and revenues, 
and real and personal property at any time acquired, except 
as provided by sect. 94. That section authorizes the com­
pany to secure payment of its bonds by mortgage on all its 
property, assets, rents and revenues, present or future, 
hut it provides—and this is the exception referred to in 
sect. 95—that the rents and revenues shall 1» subject in 
the first instance to penalties incurred by reason of non- 
compliance with the requirements of the Act as to returns,
“and next, to the payment of the working expenditure of 
the railway.” The special lien thus created by the Statute 
■ ■pi rated in a much more limited area than the power to 
mortgage did. The one is confined to the rents and 
revenues, while the other extends to the company’s property 
and assets as well as its rents and revenues. The 
différence between the two is important. See Gardner v.
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1006. London, Chatham <(■ Dover Railway Co. (1), and Central 
Barnhill Ontario Railway v. Trusts and Guarantee Co. (2). This 
Hampton continued to lie the law until the Act of 1903 came

st. Martins into force, and bv which the Act of 1868 was repealed. 
Railway w . 1
Company. By sect. Ill of the later Act provisions were made
Barker. J. by which companies might issue bonds or other securi­

ties for the purpose of obtaining money, and sect. 112 
authorizes the company to secure such securities,. that 
is, the securities spoken of in sect. Ill,by a mortgage on 
the whole of such property, assets, rents and revenues of 
the company, present or future, or both, as are described 
therein, but that such property, assets, rents and revenues 
shall be subject in the first instance to the payment of any 
penalty then or thereafter imposed upon the company for 
non-compliance with the requirements of the Act, and next, 
to the payment of the working expenditure. Sub-sect. 3 
of sect. 112 provides that the company may except from 
the operation of any such mortgage any assets, property, 
rents or revenue of the company by specifying expressly 
in the mortgage the assets, property, rents or revenue so 
excepted. The statutory lien for working expenditure is 
thus extended, and is now co-extensive with the statutory 
authority to mortgage. The argument put forward by 
Counsel for the Government was that by virtue of the Acts 
to which I have referred the defendant company and the 
line of railway (being a work for the general advantage of 
Canada) are subject to the Dominion Railway Acts, and 
the lien attaches under both Acts. On the contrary, the 
Counsel for the plaintiff contends that it does not attach 
under either. He contends, as a part of his argument, that 
the defendant company is not subject to The Railway Act, 
1903, for reasons which in my view of the case it is not 
necessary to discuss, because I think his contention is made 
out irrespective of that altogether. Assuming that this 
company was a work for the general advantage of Canada 
and subject therefore to the Act of 1908, how do third 
claims stand ? The lien created by the Act of 1888, and

(1) L. R. 2 Ch. 261. 12) 11905] A. C. 676.
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which covers that part of the expenditure made before the 1906. 
Act of 1903 came into force, is expressly limited to rents Barnhill 
and revenues. The fund in Court is in no way either the hamiton 
one or the other—it is the proceeds of a sale of the railway Hr. Maktinb 
property itself with its franchises, conveyed by the mort- company. 
gage. There was nothing sold under the decree upon Barker. J. 
which, before the sale, these claimants could have claimed 
a lien as being either rents or revenues of the company.
The expenditure was. however, practically all made after 
the Act of 1886 was repealed, and the mortgage was made 
long before the Act of 1903, under which the lien is 
claimed, was passed. It was never intended that sect. 112 
should be retroactive in its operation, so as to impair the 
security on which the bondholders had lent their money by 
making the working expenditure a prior lien to theirs.
That, as it seems to me, would be contrary to all canons of 
construction. The mortgage; was not made under the Act 
of 1903, and it would require very clear language to destroy 
or impair an existing security such us this mortgage 
was. See Western Counties Hallway Co. v. Windsor &
Annapolis Railway Co. (1). An attempt was made 
to sustain the Government lien on the ground of the 
Crown’s prerogative. I am, however, not aware of any pre­
rogative right in the Crown to take away the property of a 
subject in the manner proposed. If the liens were all sus­
tained and the fund proved insufficient for their payment, 
as 1 understand would be the fact, it may be that in the 
competition which would thus arise between the Crown and 
the subject, some question might arise such as that sug­
gested, but that is a diHerent matter, and one on which I 
express no opinion.

Entertaining the opinion which I have expressed, it is 
unnecessary to go into evidence as to the claims in order to 
determine whether the charges are for an ex|ienditurc such 
as the Act mentions.

Applications dismissed.

(I) 7 A. 0. 178.
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EASTERN TRUST COMPANY v. THE CUSHING 
SULPHITE FIBRE COMPANY, LIMITED.

Mortgage—“ Plant,” meaning of.

The word “plant" in a mortgage uf a mill, held not to include 
office furniture, or a horse and carriage used for occasional 
errand purposes in connection with the mill, or material 
kept on hand for repairs to machinery ; but held to include 
scows used for lightering the output of the mill from its 
wharf to steamers, and in lightering coal for the use of 
the mill, and also to include such stores as axes, shovels and 
tiles and other articles complete in themselves, used in carry­
ing on the mill business.

Subsequently to a decree for foreclosure of a mort­
gage by the defendants to the plaintiffs to secure an 
issue of debentures, and for sale of the mortgaged premises, 
a wrinding-up order was made against the defendants. A 
sale under the decree being advertised for October 20th, 
1900, the liquidators under the winding-up order, now ap­
plied for directions to the Referee conducting the sale to 
exclude from the sale certain articles as not passing by 
the mortgage or included in the decree. The additional 
facts are sufficiently stated in the judgment.

Argument was heard October 17, 1900.

J. I). I laze il, K. C. (W. A. Etving with him), for the 
liquidators :—

The words of the mortgage are, “ together with all 
the mills, mill buildings, machinery, fixtures and plant of 
the said company in or alsmt the said lands and premises." 
The use of compendious terms does not permit of an inter­
pretation in a liberal sense where it is apparent that they 
were intended to bear a restricted meaning. “ Plant," as a 
generic word, has tolerably hard and fast limits, and 
while its definition is not perhaps capable of exhaustive 
statement, it is not difficult to practically apply it. It is
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plain that office furniture docs not fall within it, and the 1906. 
same may lie said of the horse and carriage. The horse was Kahtkrk 

not a necessary adjunct in carrying on the operations of r*»r 
the mill. The utmost that can be said of it is that there cubhino sul-

Pill IK rIBKK
were occasions when it was convenient to have it about,
In Middleton v. Flanayan (1), by a clause in a railway 
contract for excavation, “ all machinery and other plant, 
materials and things whatsoever" provided by the con­
tractor, were until the completion of the work to be the 
property of the company. It was held that horses were 
not included in the word “ plant." As pointed out in Lon­
don and Eastern Counties Loan Co. v. Creasey (2), 
where it was held that horses were not “ plant " within the 
meaning of the word in an Act there under construction, 
the word refers to things more or less similar in kind to 
trade fixtures or trade machinery Of course, if the busi­
ness is of such a nature that the use of a horse is indispens­
able to carrying it on, and the horse can be accurately 
described as a part of the equipment or plant by which 
it is carried on, then it could be said to fall within the 
term. See Yarmouth v. France (3). Tested by the same 
reasoning, scows must lie held not covered by the mortgage.
It may be convenient to have them, but they are not 
“ plant " in the sense that the mill business cannot be 
prosecuted without them. It was former!}- the practice to 
hire them as needed, and this can still be done. Of the 
articles in the stores account but a small proportion can be 
said to be “ plant." What are called “ spares," to be used 
in renewal of worn out or defective parts of machinery, are 
“ plant," if they have actually been fitted to the machinery 
with which they are to lie used, though not then put in 
use. If they have not been so tested, they do not form 
part of the mill plant See Ex parte Astbury (4). The 
collocation in which the word “ plant " occurs in the mort­
gage shews that plant of a character similar to machinery

(1) 26 0 R. 417.
(2) (1807] 1 Q.B. 442.

(3) 10 Q. B. D. 647.
(4) L. R. 4 Ch. 630.
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was intended to be referred to. [Reference was made to In 
re Montgomery (1).]

A. 0. Earle, K. C., and M. 0. Teed, K. C., for the 
plaintiffs :—

The argument just made would deprive the word of 
all meaning, and would eliminate it from the sentence. It 
must be taken to mean something else than machinery and 
fixtures or its insertion was needless. The argument is 
stronger for a comprehensive interpretation of the word 
than for a narrow one. The canon of construction for 
words of conveyance is to give them as liberal an intend­
ment as they reasonably can bear. Especially should this 
be done here, where the words coupled with the word in 
question might be regarded as what was intended were 
they not present. In its ordinary sense, says Lindley, L. J., 
in Yarmouth v. France (2), “‘plant’ includes whatever 
apparatus is used by a business man for carrying on his 
business, * * * all goods and chattels, fixed or move- 
able, live or dead, which he keeps for permanent employ­
ment in his business.” In Ogilvie’« Scientific Dictionary, 
quoted in Middleton v. Flanagan (3)‘, “ plant ” is defined as 
“ the fixtures, tools, apparatus, etc., necessary to carry on any 
trade or mechanical business.” This definition, with the 
inclusion of “ machinery,” is adopted by the Am. «(• Eng. 
Ency. of Law (4), and is also to be found in the Century 
Dictionary, with the like addition. Then in the Century, 
“ apparatus ” is defined as “ an equipment of things 
provided and adapted as means to some end ; especially, 
a collection, combination, or set of machinery, tools, 
instruments, utensils, appliances, or materials intended, 
adapted and necessary for the accomplishment of some 
purpose.” In this view everything incidental and necessary 
to the furtherance of the work of the mill can be described 
as “plant" The office furniture is as much contributory 
to that object as any of the machinery. The scows are like-

(1) N. S. Eq. Dec. (1873-82), 154. (3) 25 O. K. 417.
(2) 19 Q. B. U. 047, 668. (4) Vol. 22 (2nd ed.) p. 834.
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wise seen to be a necessity. Whether purchased or hired 1906. 
they are such, and the question is not whether they should ^.Kastkks^ 
be hired rather than purchased. The horse cannot be cant 
dispensed with. The case of Middleton v. Flanagan 
is distinguishable. There horses were held not to be Lmmt»*' 
“plant” because plant by the context there under review 
was such as might be used and converted into the works.
All stock in stores is aptly described as plant. The test is 
not whether it is in use as plant, but whether ultimately 
it can be so used. It is there to lie used as occasion arises.
If not immediately available, delay would ensue in curry­
ing on the work of the mill. The efficient up-keep and 
prosecution of the work of the mill required that it should 
be kept on hand.

1906. October 19. Barker, J.:—

The sole question involved in this application is whe­
ther or not certain personal property, which will lie speci­
fically mentioned later on, passed to the plaintiffs under 
their mortgage from the defendants, as being included in 
the word “ plant." The mortgage conveys a piece of land, 
ilescribing it by metes and bounds, ' together with all the 
mills, mill buildings, machinery, fixtures, and plant of the 
said company, in or about the said lands and premises, * * 
including all machinery, fixtures and plant hereafter 
acquired." There does not seem to be anything in the 
mortgage itself suggesting any other meaning to the word 
“ plant " than it would ordinarily have in an instrument 
of this kind relating to a mill property such as the defend­
ants’ mill is. Judges as well as lexicographers, have 
formulated definitions of the word in its general and ordin­
ary sense. In Yamwuth v. France (2), a case under the 
Kmployers' Liability Act, Lindley, L. J„ says that the word 
" plant,” “ in its ordinary sense, includes whatever appar­
atus is used by a business man for carrying on his business 
—not his stock in trade which he buys or makes for sale ;

(1) 25 O. R. 417. (2) 19 Q. B. D. 647.
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190(1. but all goods and chattels, fixed or moveable, live or dead, 
tkvstCom w*i'c*1 *le l166?8 f°r permanent employment in his business."

i'any Kekewich.J., in In re Brooke (1), draws a distinction between
Cushing Sul. the word “ machinery ’’ and the word " plant," and in Re 

S'In'itki'. •' ntley ntlo Finn (2), a case arising out of a contract for 
the sale of a brewery, the same learned Judge says that, 
"speaking generally, ‘machinery,’ includes everything 
which by its action produces or assists in production; 
and that ‘ plant ’ might be regarded as that without which 
production could not go on, such things as brewers’ pipes, 
vats and the like.” The editor of the "Imperial Diction­
ary " defines the word as meaning “ the fixtures and 
tools necessary to carry on any trade or mechanical 
business." And Worcester defines it as “the machinery, 
apparatus, or fixtures by which a business is carried on.” 
Bouvier, Wharton, and Strom I follow their lay brethren, 
except in the case of Bouvier, who introduces the word 
" appliances ’’ in conjunction with the words “ machinery, 
apparatus or fixtures." I am not sure that these judicial 
definitions do not require more explanation than the word 
itself, before they can always be used to advantage. It 
is perhaps easier to decide what in. the particular case in 
hand is not included in the word than to attempt any 
definition covering all cases.

There are four classes of property which the plaintiffs 
claim under their mortgage as “plant." The first is the 
office furniture, consisting of desks, chairs, a safe and such 
other articles as are usually found in such a place. I do not 
think they can be considered as plant in an}- sense of the 
word. The second class is a horse and carriage owned by 
the company, end which are used for sending messages from 
the works to the city, or for errands to the city in connec­
tion with the business. • When not otherwise occupied the 
manager utilizes them for his own convenience. I do not 
think these are included in the term “plant.” The third class 
comprises two or three scows with waterproof canvas covers, 
which are used in lightering pulp, shipped to Europe, from

(1) at L. J. Ch. 27. (2| [1894] W. N. 64.
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Barker, J.

the company’s wharf to the steamer, and also in lightering 
cargoes of coal from ships to the company’s wharf, where T£,A“™M0NM 
it is discharged by a steam apparatus used for the purpose. f«»t 
These I think are a part of the plant, though possibly not (l,ll'™gXj,i|5££' 
included in the words “ mill machinery,” or the word 'i'tmItku''
“ fixtures.” They are altogether independent appliances, 
complete in themselves, contributing an important and 
necessary share in the work in the prosecution of the 
business of the company.

The fourth class of property claimed gives rise to more 
difficulty. The company has in stock about $(1,000 worth 
of what its officers call stores, and what I understand is 
known by that name in works of a similar character.
They consist of a great variety of articles, which are used, 
or at all events the greater part of them is used, for 
making repairs to the engines and various parts of the 
machinery, to keep it in running order. If not kept on 
hand so that repairs could not be made until the necessary 
material could be procured, the engine or machine must be 
shut down, and loss would result. Among other things is 
a large and varied stock of packing, nuts, valves, oil, pieces 
of machinery', files, axes, shovels, and various other articles 
of a similar character, used and purchased solely for the 
purpose I have mentioned. With the exception of some 
minor articles which I shall refer to directly, all these stores 
are of no use in operating the mill, or in carrying on the 
business, until they have lieen actually connected with some 
of the machinery' used in the mill, and thus become incor­
porated as a component part of it. Can it be said that as 
these stores accumulated for the pur|>ose the company was 
adding to its plant f Would it be so understood ordin­
arily ? I think not. They did not of themselves in any 
way add to the manufacturing capacity of the mill. ' In fact, 
they could not be used in any' way to do so until the ex­
isting machinery had laconic disabled, when they were 
used for repairs, and thus the disabled machine was again 
tit for its work. Had these goods been made on the prem­
ises by machinery owned by the company, that machinery 
would, I think, pass as a part of the plant ; but I cannot
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1900. agree that tlie stores I have mentioned would pass under 
Trust com *'*lc nlortgage as “ plant.” They are not machines, they are 

i'any not fixtures, they are not appliances or apparatus, of tliem- 
rmrarnm se*vea capable of use in carrying on the work, and only 

Lmmtü' ust‘^u* when they have become a part of the machinery in 
BerkêTj. the way I have endeavored to point out. The axes, 

shovels, and, I imagine, the files and some other articles, 
and which seem to me to he similar to tools of a trade, 
would, I think, pass. They are ready for use as they are, 
complete in themselves, as tools or appliances used in carry­
ing on the business.

The contention of the plaintiff’s would, if it could be 
sustained, have the effect of transferring practically all the 
personal property of the company, except manufactured 
goods, as a part of the plant. I cannot give to the word 
so wide a meaning, neither do I think any of the cases go 
to this extent.
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NEW CUMHKRLAND TELEPHONE COMPANY, 
LIMITED x CENTRAL TELEPHONE 

COMPANY, LIMITED.

Telephone Company Sale of charter—Outstanding agreement 
Itight of third party to object to Hale.

By agreement, which was to be in force for ten years, the Cum­
berland Telephone Co. and the Central Telephone Co. were 
to have the use of each other's lines and of any connections 
either then had or might thereafter acquire over the lines of 
any other company. Shortly after the making of the agree­
ment the Central Co. sold its property to the New Bruns­
wick Telephone Co. By its charter the Central Co. had 
power to amalgamate with any other company, and the 
Act of incorporation of the New Brunswick Co. empowers 
it to acquire other telephone lines. The agreement of 
sale provided that the Cumberland Co. should have, by 
virtue of its iigreement with the Central Co., the use of 
so much of the New Brunswick Co.'s lines as were acquired 
from the Central Co. The Cumberland Co. sought to restrain 
the sale unless provision were made in the agreement of sale 
that it should nave the use of the whole system of the New 
Brunswick Co. :—

Held, that the hill should he dismissed.
Held, also, that the sale and purchase living within the powers 

of the companies, could not he objected to, and even if it 
were ultra rires, the plaintiffs had no status entitling them 
to raise the question.

Semble, that the sale should not have been enjoined even if the 
New Brunswick Co. had not assumed the contract of the 
Central with the Cumberland <5o.

Hill for an injunction to mit rain the New Brunswick 
Telephone Company, Limited, from purchasing from the 
Central Telephone Company, Limited, and the Central 
Telephone Company, Limited, from selling its property, 
franchises and charter to the first named company. The 
facts are sufficiently stated in the judgment of the Court.

Argument was heard November 7, lîMMi.

C. X. Skinner, K.C., for the plaintiffs :—

The agreement between the Central Company and the 
plaintiffs provides for the use by either of them of any con­
nections either of them might thereafter acquire over the

VOL. III. N. II. K. K.— SL

1900.
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llKXi. liues of any other company. The effect of the merger
New lietween the <,'entrai and the New Brunswick companies is 

rUMBKKLAND . .Tklkphonk aii fxtviiHion of tliv IiiivH of tin* fornivr mh well hk of the
( "(I.MVAN V.
U sit in latter, anil entitles the plaintiffs to tin- use of the New 

Tinki'i'inm Brunswick Company's lines. A declaration that such is 
<;= our rights should be made by the Court, and the amalga­

mation should Is- re-strained unless the agreement between 
the two companies is widened so as to give effect to them, 
or an undertaking for the purpose is given by the New 
Brunswick Coui|iany. It is also submitted that the merger 
is ultra rice* of hoth companies. It involves, so far as the 
l'entrai Company is concerned, a transfer of its franchises 
as «ell as its assets to the New Brunswick Company. In 
Thump. Corp.. as. 5352.5353, it is laid down that neither the 
franchise of a corporation created for the performance of 
public duties, nor property necessary to tie- discharge of 
tin-in, is alienable.

II’. Pagdcg. A.-(i„ .!. .!. Slirktoo. K. t\, /I. /' harn- 
hill. K. I and .1. IV. Macllar, for the defendants:—

T ie Act to incor|Kirate the New Brunswick Telephone 
Company, 51 Viet., c. 78. em|s)wers the company to pur­
chase any telephone line cstahlishi-d or to Ik- established in 
the Province, connecting or to Ik- connected with the lines 
of the company. The letters |iatent of the Central Com­
pany give to it power to make connection with any other 
telephone company, or to amalgamate with any other tele­
phone company. A power to amalgamate is the same as a 
jiower to sell : Wall v. London and Northern Asset* Cor­
poration (1) : Imperial hank of China v. hank of Hindu- 
sfan (2) ; Man tier ft v. St. David'* Gold and Copper Mine». 
Limited (3); Clinch v. Financial Corporation* (4); A'eie 
y.ealand Gold Extraction Co. v. Peacock (5). The sale 
may be for shares in the purchasing company : Cotton v. 
Imperial and Foreign Agency and Investment Corpora­
tion (6). The transaction lietween the two companies is a

(1) 11HH81 2 Ch. 460.
(2) L. K. 0 Ch. #1.
13) I lent I 2 Ch. 503.

(4) I- R. 8 Eq. 450.
(5) 11KH4| 1 Q. II. 822. 
(8) [18021.3 Ch. 4M.
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matter inter me, and cannot be objected to by a third party, 
such as the plaintiffs, liven a dissentient shareholder in 
either company could not invoke the Court’s interference, 
provided it was not Isting stipulated that he should take 
shares in the purchasing company. See Higgs's Case (1); 
In re Umpire Assurance Cierporation (2) : lira Compmg's 
Case (3). The New Brunswick Company, by its purchase 
of the property of the Central Company, became liable 
in law to perform the contracts of the latter, but Un­
burden is not made more onerous : Pullman Car Co. v. 
Missouri Pacific Co. (4) ; Tolhurst Co. v. Associated Cement 
Manufacturers (5). The agreement of the two companies 
moreover gives effect to the plaintiffs' agreement with the 
Central Company. No question can lie raised here as to 
the right of the Central Company to sell and of the New 
Brunswick Company to buy its assets. See Ernest v. 
\ irIn ills (ti) ; Wilson v. Miers (7) : Featherstonliaugh v. Lee 
Moor Porcelain Co. (H) ; Pullrrook v. New Civil Service 
Co-ojteration (!>).

llKMt. November III. Barker. .1. :—

This is a motion to continue an interim injunction 
granted on the 25th September last. The plaintiffs are a 
company incorporated in Nova Scotia, having their head 
office in Amherst. The defendants are coni|Hinies incor­
porated in New Brunswick—one having its head office at 
Sussex, anil the other at Fredericton. All of these com- 
Iumies are carrying on the telephone business—the plaintiffs 
in Nova Scotia, and principally in the county of Cumber­
land, and the defendants in New Brunswick. On the 15th 
•Iune, 1906, the plaintiffs and the Central Company entered 
into a written agreement for the transmission of messages 
over their respective lines between all points in Nova Scotia 
reached by the plaintiffs' system and all points in New

(1) 2 H. A M. 657. (6) 119021 2 K. ti. 660.
(2) L. R. 4 Kq. 341. (6) 6 H. L. ('as. 401.
(8) 1 De(i. J. A 8. 29. (7) 10 C. B. N. 8. 34H.
(4) 115 IT. 8. 587. (8) L. K. 1 Eq. 318.

(9) 26 W. R. II.

3H7
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1900. Brunswick reached by the Central system. By the terms 
New of the arrangement, which was to be in force for ten years.

' l Ml....... \M' . . . " .
tki.kihonk it was agreed that for the purposes of the mint business

( oil 1*ANY, " 11 "
Limjtkh each company should give to the other the use of its lines

4"kntkai. and instruments, and the services of its employées, and
TtCl.KMIONI-: e 1 v *
1 i°is'itku’ ft*so ^,e use <» any connections which either of the
Mnrkcr .1 l^rties then had or might thereafter acquire over the 

lines of any other company doing business in either of 
the two Provinces. The tolls to be charged were not 
fixed by the agreement, nor was any basis determined 
for their division : but it was agreed that the rates were 
to be fixed at a later date by the managers or other 
officers of the companies, and they were to continue 
in force for the ten years, or until changed by a mutual 
agreement between the companies, “their officers,successors 
or assigns.'* The basis of division of the tolls was also to 
lie determined later on by the companies, ami the division 
on that liasis was to lie made either annually or semi­
annually as might lx* agreed upon. Tin* agreement also 
contained this clause: “ It is also further understood and 
agreed that these presents ami everything herein contained 
shall enure to the benefit of and lx* binding upon tile 
parties hereto their successors and assigns reflectively. 
The two companies commenced working under this arrange­
ment in July last, and they are now, or at least were when 
this suit was commenced, working under it. The bill 
alleges that negotiations had lieen going on for some time 
between the two defendant companies for the purchase of 
the Central Company’s property by the New Brunswick 
Company; that these negotiations had resulUsI in an 
agreement for this purchase by the directors of the two 
companies, and it only required the ratification of the 
shareholders to make it binding, and that notices of meet­
ings of shareholders had already been issued. Tin* neces­
sary ratification has, I believe, been obtained, ami it may 
lx* assumed that the terms of the purchase will lie carried 
out without further delay. The bill alleges that by the 
terms of the proposed agreement for the merger of the 
Central Company into the New Brunswick Company, no
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provision was made for carrying out the contract lietween 
the plaintiff* and the Central Company of the 15th June,and 
that unless that was done the plaintiffs would suffer great 
loss in its business, and its stock and property would he 
materially lessened in value. I presume that allegation is 
intended to refer to matters as they stood on the 17th 
September when the summons in this suit was issued, for 
by a suli*e<|uent section in the hill it is alleged that the 
two defendants on the 24th September agreed in connection 
with the future management or position of their companies 
that they would carry mit the agreement of the 15th June 
so far as to continue to the plaintiffs the reciprocal use of 
the Central Company's lines in New Brunswick, but would 
not. after the merger, allow the plaintiffs the use of the New 
Brunswick ( Company s lines, and that the defendants dis- 
eluitned all liability to give the plaintiffs the use of the 
New Brunswick Company’s lines in connection with their 
business. The hill also alleged that by law the two com- 
I mnies had no authority or power to enter into their pro­
posed arrangement by which the Central Company would 
Is- alisorhed by the New Brunswick Company ; that 
the New Brunswick Company by law had no authority to 
make tin- proposed purchase, and the Central Com]iany by 
law hail no authority to transfer its property as proposed : 
and an injunction was asked for to restrain the completion 
of the amalgamation arrangements and any transfer by the 
< "entrai Company of its property, not absolutely, but un­
less provision was made for the protection of the plaintiffs' 
l ights under the agreement of the 15th June. The agree­
ment between the defendants, which was ratified by the 
shareholders on the 25th Septeinlier. and which was 11 unie 
on the 21st August, is an agreement for the purchase by 
the New Brunswick Company from the Central Company 
of all its property, both real and personal, consisting of its 
|siles, wires, telephones, and all other property of every 
kind and description; subject to a right or privilege for the 
term of ten years from the 15th day of June, 190(5, in the 
plaintiffs to commet their lines and exchange* with the lines 
md exchanges of the Central Company agreed to be con-
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veyed to thv New Brunswick Company, ami to use the 
saint* for tin* transmission of mvsHages over and upon such 
lines and delivery of the same to all persons to whom such 
messages were transmitted at the stations and exchanges of 
the Central Company, which had lieen located, established 
and in operation on tile 21st August,and which lines and ex­
changes were to lie used by the plaintiffs when and so soon 
as an agreement should l>e entered into fixing the basis of 
the tolls. The agreement is also for the purchase of all 
the franchises of the Central Company, its charter ami 
all charters of other companies owned by it and the 
franchises thereof, etc.

The Attorney-< leneral. as Counsel for both these de­
fendants, states that this clause iu the agreement was 
inserted specially to secure to the plaintiffs all the rights 
and privileges to which at the time they were entitled 
under their agreement with the Central, and that if there 
is any doubt as to the language lieing sufficient for that 
purpose, the defendants are willing to make it so. Mr. 
Skinner has not contended that the language is not 
sufficient for this purpose, hut he contends that the plain­
tiffs’ privileges should extend to the whole system of the 
New Brunswick Telephone Company and not merely to 
that part of it acquired from the Central. It is unneces­
sary to discuss whether or not by the merger or purchase 
of the property with notice of this contract, the New 
Brunswick Telephone Company lx •came liable, altogether 
irrespective of express contract to do so. to carry out this 
contract with the plaintiffs (as to which see Tolhurat v. 
Cement Co. (1) and Werderman v. Société (je'nSmle b filcr- 
tricitS(2)), because they have lxaiml themselves to <lo ho. 
and in no case could they be compelled to do more. See 
Cullman Cur Co. v. Miseovri Pacific Cn. (3).

I do nut wish to be considered as thinking that the 
plaintiffs,simply Isvause of their contract with the Central 
could prevent that company from selling its property ex­

il) 111*021 2 K. H HflO ; on apiH iil, \\\m\ A. ( . 414.
(2) 19 C’li. 1). 24fl. (3) 116 V. 8. ÔH7.
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m-pt ujioii the condition that the purchaser would agree to 
assume the liability of that company under the contract. 
My opinion is against any such view, hut discussion has 
liei'ii rendered unnecessary by the New Brunswick Com­
pany as purchaser voluntarily assuming the responsibility.

There is nothing, I think, in the jioint that the Cen­
tral Company cannot sell, or the New Brunswick Company 
buy, their franchise or property. These com|iauies are 
only ordinary private business cor|sirations. and under no 
limitation ns to the sale of their property. I should there­
fore have thought there was no good-objection to this sale. 
Such companies are under no obligation to continue in 
business until they are wound up for insolvency. The cor­
porate franchise I presume they could not part with. But 
what right have these plaintiffs to complain t They are not 
shareholders and have no interest whatever in the company. 
and are not even residents in the Province within which 
these companies do business and from which their corporate 
rights have been aeipiired. If no shareholder or creditor 
i ‘ ». and the Attorney-( louerai does not intervene. I
cannot see how the plaintiffs can do so. even if the defend­
ants had not the powers which they are exercising. The 
New Brunswick Company, by section 10 of their Act of in­
corporation, 51 Viet., chap. 78, seem to have ample power 
to do all that they apparently are doing in taking over tin- 
property and business of the Central Company, and the 
Central Company, by their letters patent, have express 
power to make connection with any other telephone com- 
|ianv, or to lease the system of or amalgamate with any 
other telephone company, and that seems to lie ample 
authority for doing all that they are apparently doing. 
This is a question which could not very well arise except 
in a suit brought for the purpose of setting aside the 
amalgamation by some person who has an interest in the 
question and which 1 think the plaintiffs have not. See 
Slin k-port Wateruwk* Co. v. Corporation of Manchester ( 1 ).

I think the application must lx- refused with costs.
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THK EASTERN TRUST COMPANY v. CUSHING 
SULPHITE FIBRE COMPANY, LIMITED.

Wort 1/age — Infèrent Acceleration cluune.

B<nul§ dated July 1, 11102, provided for payment of tlu* principal 
in ten years from date, and that in the meantime interest 
thereon should he paid at the rate of 10 per cent. Default 
having been made in payment of the interest, the trustee 
under a mortgage given to secure the launls, made on Janu­
ary 1, 1005, a declaration calling in the principal and interest, 
under an acceleration clause in the mortgage 

Held, that interest at the rate provided for. and not at the statu­
tory rate, was pa> able after the date of the declaration

Motion on summons. The facts sufficiently appear in 
the judgment of the Court.

Argument was heart! November 2, 190(1.

W Pugnley, A.-< !.. for George S. Cushing, a Ixmcl- 
lmhler :—

Effect must be given to the language of the mortgage 
and bonds. The principal is repayable in ten years from 
July I, 1902. and the rate of interest is fixed in the mean­
time at 10 per cent. The ground upon which after the 
maturity of a mortgage the interest is placed at the legal 
rate, is the want of words providing for a continuation of 
a higher rate. See Hanford, v. Howard (1); King v. 
Keith (2): People'* Loan and Iniwtment Co. v. Grant (3) ; 
In re European Central Railway Co. (4). The declara­
tion by the trustee calling in the mortgage liefore its 
maturity did not affect the rate of interest, or the agree­
ment to pay interest at the specified rate. The mortgage 
not having been paid when called in, continued to l>ear 
interest at the rate fixed by the agreement.

//. A. Potrell, K. C., for Thomas McAvity, purchaser 
of the equity of redemption :—

(It 1 N. H. E«|. 241. 
(2) 1 N. B. K<|. 838.

(3) 18 Can. S. C. R. 282.
(4) 4 Cl». D. 88.
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Tin* efiirt uf tin* declaration mum to accelerate the due MOM. 
date of the mortgage and I winds, and an agreement to pav Kaktuhn 

interest at 10 per cent, up to July 1, 11112. Iiecame an <omp»kv 
agreement to pay interest at that rate up to 1st January,
11106, the date of the notice. After that date any interest '/""j^*",'* 
allowed is as damages for the detention of the deht. and 
I incomes the rate fixed hy the Statute.

.1/. 0. Trrd, K. for the plaintiffs :

The words “ill the meantime," in the I muds, mean in­
terest at 10 per cent, up to the time the mortgage is 
payable.

,/. b. Hit ten, K. (’., for the liquidators of the defend­
ant company, took no part.

1IMML Xovemher Hi. BaKKKII. J. :

The question involved in this application is whether 
the Imndluilders are entithsl to be paid out of the proceeds 
of the sale of the mortgaged premises, interest at the rate 
of 10 per cent, as fixed by the bonds and mortgage, or only 
at the rate of 5 per cent, as fixed by the Statute.* The 
mortgage in question, which is " " June 25, 1901, was
given by the defendants to secure an issue of their bonds,

_ » 9280,000, with interest at the rate of 10 per 
rent, per annum, payable every six months according to 
the coupons attached. The company by the terms of these 
I winds, which are dated July 1. 1002. undertook to pay the 
princijial in ten years, and “to ’ " meantime interest
thereon at the rate of 10 per cent, per annum, half yearly 
on the first day of January and July in each year, upon 
presentation of the annexed cou|sms ns they shall respect­
ively become due, and to make such payments at the Bank 
of New Brunswick, St. John." The coupons nix* in the 
following form:—

* H. S. <\ 18HII. c. 127, amended liy Act IB-4 Viet., c. 211.

0
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IINNI. No. ÿ
kaki-kun TIio Cusliiiij; Hulphitv Fibre Company, Limitai, will

voÏhasv pav tile Iwarvr hereof at the Bank of Sew Brunswick, Si. 
l aiiimi sri •lolin. New Brunswick, ('ainula, Dollars, the

1 "eMeANvK day <if A.I*. . Iieing six inonths interest on
i.imitkii.* their ilelienture No.

IlMl'klT. .1, r
Tin* defendants are a corporation created under Tin 

Xrtw HruuMwick .hunt Stock Compartten Act, having 
their chief place of business in the Parish of l^aiMNtster. in 
the (’itv and County of St. John, where their mill and 
property, comprised in tin* mortgage, are situated. The 
proviso for payment in the mortgage is as follows : " Pro­
vided always that if the said party hereto of the first part 
shall well and truly pay, or cause to be paid, the interest 
on the said I Minds when such interest shall liecoiiie due and 
shall also ]Mty the princifNil amount of each of the said 
bonds to the holder thereof when each amount shall 
Ix-come due, and shall pay, satisfy and discharge the whole 
of the said sum of KiiSO.OOO. and all interest thereon, In­
payment of all the said ImuhIs as aforesaid, and shall well 
and truly also keep, do and perform all other the covenants 
conditions and agreements herein contained on the part of 
the said party hereto of the first part, to In* kept, done and 
|M*rformed, then this indenture and every matter and thing 
herein contaimsl shall cease and Ik* void." Then follows a 
covenant by the defendants with the plaintiffs- the trustees 
under the mortgage, for the bondholders to pay tin* Iwinds 
to the holders or owners thereof when and as the same shall 
respectively liecoine due and payable, together with all 
interest thereon when due. as set forth in the proviso. 
The mortgage also contains covenants for insurance and for 
the {Miyment of taxes and other charges liable to liecome a 
lien on the property, and it provides that “ in case default 
should Ik* made in fMiyment of the princifml money 
or interest due or agreed to Ik* paid under or upon the 
I Minds aforesaid or any or either of them,” or if default 
should lie made by the defendants in jiaymeiit of the insur­
ance premiums or any other of the amounts therein agreed 
to 1m* paid by the company and such default should continue
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for ten (lave, tliv plaintiff's, as such trustees, were authorized 
at any time after the expiration of ten days from the time 
the amount in default was demanded to sell the premises 
in the usual way. The proceeds of such sale were to he < 
appropriated (1) in payment of certain expenses, (2) in 
payment of moneys paid for insurance premiums, etc.. Ci) 
in payment of all overdue coupons, and lastly in payment 
of the princi|ail moneys until all were paid. The mortgage 
also contains a further proviso by «Inch in ease the 
defendants should become insolvent,or any order for wind­
ing up should he made, the whole of the said bonds and 
interest to that date should immediately liecomc due and 
jiayable although the time for payment had not expired : 
and the po«-er of sale and right of foreclosure might lie 
exercised as in the case of a default under the proviso al­
ready mentioned. Then follows the clause upon which this 
application depends: “ And it is hereby further agreed and 
understood that in ease of any default being by the 
said company upon or by reason of which the power of sale 
hereinliefore written may lie exercises!, then the said trustee 
may, and upon the nspicst of the majority in value of the 
said bondholders so to do, shall elect and declare the whole 
of the principal money of #280.000, and interest thereon, 
made {tayable under and hy the said I Kinds and secured by 
these presents, and the I Kinds given therefor, to lie due and 
payable, and upon service of notice of such declaration up ill 
the said company, or upon advertisement of the same in 
any newspaper published in the City of St. John, the «'hole 
of the said bonds and all the principal moneys and interest 
accruing on the same up to the date of the said notice 
shall immediately become due and {lavable, notwithstaiid 
ing the time for the |Miyment thereof has not expired 
according to the tenor and date of the said bonds.’’

The defendants made default in payment of interest, 
and in conseipience thereof the plaintiffs, on the rei|uest of 
a majority in value of the bondholders, made the declara- 
i ion and gave the notice provided for in the clause which 
I have just mentioned. The contention made on the pu t 
if those who now represent the defendants is that the

190ti._
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etlect of this election on the jmrt of the bondholders to 
accelerate the payment of the 1 winds and make them pay- 
ahle at the date of the notice of the declaration, operates 
in point of law, so far as the rate of interest is concerned, 
in the same way as though that were the actual due date 
fixed by the I loads themselves, it I wing conceded that 
neither the mortgage nor the lx aids make any provision 
for the payment of interest after their due date, and that 
anything recoverable in the nature of interest after that 
time is recoverable only as damages for the detention of 
the debt, and only at the rate fixed by the Statute, which 
at present is 5 per cent. See St. Joli » v. H///. <• rl ( 1 >: People'* 
l.ieiii it ml Deponil l'o. v. (iront (2).

This is not a suit on the I winds or on the defendants' 
covenant to pay them. It is a suit to enforce the mortgage 
security, and as this application has reference simply to the 
distribution of the fund pnwluced by a sale of the mort­
gaged pro]wTty made under the derive in this suit, regard 
must be had to the terms of the mortgage so far as it 
makes express provisions Iwaring upon the distribution. 
The mortgage contains an express covenant by the defend­
ants to |my the princi|ml of these bonds in ten years, and 
in the meantime to pay the interest half yearly on presen­
tation of the coupons. 1 am asked to imply a covenant 
wholly inconsistent with this express one, to the effect that 
the comjwiny will |siy the whole loan at such other date 
as. under any authority contained in the mortgage, the 
plaintiffs, as trustee, may declare it to lw due. This would 
virtually alter the defendants' covenant to pay the 
*280,000 in ten years to one for its payment it might lie 
a few days after the most trivial default. In Palmer* 
Precedents. Part III. 00. the author says : “ Usually, 
however, as we have seen, a debenture is made payable 
at a fixed date, or at such earlier time as the princi|»il 
moneys thereby secured shall become payable in accordance 
with the conditions endorsed thereon." He further says that 
two of the usual conditions endorsed on the debentures

(1) 10 Can. S. V. It. 278. (2) 18 fan. S. V. H. 282.
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an* (1) one by which the holder has the right on default 190(>.
to call in the principal amount, and (2) one which Kahtehx 
makes the principal due in case of a winding-up order company 
being made. It is this covenant, which Mr. Palmer says ia< vhhinu si i^ J eniTE Firkk
a usual covenant in eases of this kind, hut which has been </>.ïVA>iV-niMiTRn.
omitted from this mortgage, which I am asked to incor- ]Virki| t 
pirate into the mortgage by implication. Had the defend­
ants in fact such a covenant, however onerous it
might seem, it would be one of the conditions upon which 
tile loan was made, and this Court would not consider it 
in the nature of a penalty so as to grant any relief. But 
I rail see m g which requires me to imply any such 
covenant in order to carry out the intention of the parties.
See hi re R/iHnii)/ and Electric Appliance* Co. (1): Hum- 
li/n v. H ood (2). There is certainly no express covenant 
either in the mortgage or the bonds or coupons except to 
pay the principal moneys in ten years, and the interest in 
the meantime at specified dates and at a specified place.
It was no default in the defendants that they did not pay 
I lie principal and interest at the date upon which notice of 
the plaintiffs' declaration was given. They probably, by 
the plaintiffs' election, were entitled to redeem under that 
notice, but they were under no obligation to do so. The 
non-payment was not a default by the terms of the mort­
gage. The election thus to accelerate the payment hail 
reference, in my opinion, solely to an enforcement of the 
-vcurity ; it accelerated the time of |Hiyment. but it had 
nothing to do with the amount which the defendants had 
agreed to pay, and for which they were liable. Let us 
look at the rights of those parties, supposing no such pro- 
' ision had been in the mortgage at all. If under an ordi­
nary mortgage the mortgagor makes default, the estate 
which was originally one on condition, becomes absolute, 
and the mortgagee can immediately file his bill for fore­
closure. liurroiiVH v. AloUoy (3) is an express authority to 
ibis effect, and is so recognized by all text writers. The 
right to foreclose had nothing whatever to do with the time

(1) 38 Cli. ]>. 507. (2) [1801| 2 Ij B. 488.
(8) 2.1. & bat. 521.
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lUOli. tixed fur payment of the loan. Whether it was due or not 
Kabtkkn was immaterial. Cootr states the rule thus : “ Supposing 
coMriNv that tlie principal had been made payable on a given day, 

i'unman sri.- no matter whether it was one year or twenty years after 
'umitom l*lc °* the mortgage, with interest thereon half yearly 
liiirkiT .1 t*"‘ meantime, and that before the day of payment of

the principal money default bad been made in payment of 
the interest thereon, the mortgagee would at any time 
after that event have a right to file his bill for a foreclosure 
Is'cause his right hecauie alisolute at law by the non- 
payment of tin- interest, the estate having been conveyed 
subject to a condition which had not been fulfilled." See 
Seaton v. Twyfonl (1). There was, however, one right 
which the mortgagor always had. He could come to this 
Court lie fore a decree absolute and get relief on such terms 
as the Court might think right—usually the payment of 
the costs of suit and the money which was due.

In Cameron v. Me Hue (2) a question arose us to the 
form of the decree in such a case ; whether the mortgagee 
was entitled by reason of the default to call in the whole 
principal money, or whether the decree should be for fore­
closure upon the defendant s failure'to pay that portion of 
the prinei|»d already due according to the terms of the 
mortgage. And the decree was that if the mortgagor paid 
the whole principal, interest and costs within a certain 
time, he should lie entitled to a reconveyance, but, in 
default of that. In- was to be foreclosed of his equity of 
redemption. There is not, in my opinion, any question 
that in such a case the mortgagee is entitled to interest up 
to the due date of the loan at the rate secured to him 
by the mortgage, and not to interest in the nature of 
damages for the detention of the debt. If it were not so. 
all the mortgagor would have to do in order to get rid of 
paying interest at the rate agreed upon would be to make 
default and pay none.

Take another case. This mortgage contains a proviso 
that in case a winding-up order is made against the company

(1) !.. U. II tor ait. (2) 3 (Ir. 311.
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tliv u hole nf tin- bonds sliiiuld become due anil payable, anil l!f(lli. 
i liv iwiwit of sali1 and right of foreclosure might be exercised kamtkhn

I 1 ’ ■ ' 111'HT

i ii i itder to realize the security. As to the right of foreclosure i umi'ah y 
and sale the same result would have happened without the’ imiiNu him

I l 1*11 ITK t* IHHI1'
provision: Hodmn v. Tea Co (1); Wallace v. Univermi ('omcah»,
.1 utomatic Machine» Co. (2). In the latter ease, the deben- „ -—

... , llerker. J.
I lires contained no provision making the whole principal due 
on default of payment of interest or in the event of winding- 
up. hut the Court held that although the debt was not due 
the security could lie realized. I.ivdley, L. J.,says: "The 
time for the payment of the principal not having yet 
arrived, it is clear that it is not a debt for which any action 
at law can now be brought, but it is equally clear that as the 
eoni|iany is Vicing wound up, the plaintiff and the other de- 
Is'iiture holders can, if they choose, prove against the com- 
|umy in respect of all the moneys secured by the debentures 
whether due or not. * * * The plaintiff, however, is
not seeking to prove his debt, nor is he bound to do so. On 
the other hand, he is not content simply to rest on his 
security, nor is he content to have his interest kept down ; 
lie wants to realize his security and to apply it# proceeds 
ill Imying off the principal and interest, although the time 
fixisl for paying off the princi|ial has not yet arrived. The 
undertaking, on the security of which the money was 
Uirrowed, has in fact come to an end by the winding-up, and 
this circumstance entitles the deliciiture-hnlders to realize 
I heir security at once." In the decree that was there made 
i here was a déclarai ion of the plaintiffs right, and an 
account was ordered to lie taken on that footing, of what 
was due for princi|ial and interest on the bonds to the time 
"f actual jiayment. There is no suggestion that the inter­
est should lie calculated at any other rate than that men- 
1 ioneil in the debentures, or that it was recoverable other­
wise than as interest agreed to be paid. This acceleration 

■ Inuse is, however, in the mortgage, and the question very 
naturally is asked. What is its effect, or is it altogether 
iseless The argument was that if it was good for any-

(1) 14 Oh. I). 8ÔM. (21 |1884|2Cli. 547.
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tiling it wuH good for everything; ami that therefore ha- 
all purposes, the mortgage money was to lie treated as due 
under the declaration, and the agreement to pay interest 

< i huin‘«i hu, must lx* treated as an agreement to pay interest up to that
1 M ri i Kihim n 1 * *
i'omi'anv. time onlv. It is certain that without the aid of this clause
I. I M I I I 11

in unv wnv this hill could have been Hl<>d and the usualliarki-r. .1. • # »
decree in such cases made as provided for in section 203 of 
chap. 112, C.S. 1003. Under such a decree the proceeds 
of a side of the mortgaged premises would have been 
used in payment of principal not due as well as that 
which was due. By section 204, however, the mortgagor 
has a statutory right to relief which this Court always 
gave without any such Statute, that is, to have proceedings 
in a case like this stayed by paying the amount due and 
costs. That is an equitable relief which the mortgagor gets 
ill older to avoid the etfeet of his own default. If, how­
ever. in a case like this where the principal money will not 
lie due for ten years, if the mortgagor could defeat every 
suit instituted for foreclosure by payment of the overdue 
interest and costs, the clause in question,if it was designed, 
as I assume it was. to accelerate the payment of the 
whole loan, would largely fail in its purpose. 1 can 
understand, however, that it may lie contended that 
when the mortgagor came to pay the amount due in 
order to stay the foreclosure proceedings, he might lie 
told that lie must pay the amount which he had 
anthorizial the plaintiffs to say was due as principal, 
and that any other meaning to the clause would Is; 
inequitable especially if the defendants' contention is 
right, that as a price of utilizing this clause they must 
abandon one-half of their interest. I can understand, there­
fore, without expressing any opinion on the question one 
way or the other, that this argument might lie urged with 
force. At present I am only interested in seeing whether 
the clause has any bearing on the point under discussion. 
I do not think it has. The rule by which interest is com­
puted is this. The parties may stipulate for any rate of 
interest while the loan is current as well as after it is due, 
and so long as it remains unpaid, whether it is paid at

I llOti.
Kahtkhx

1 OMI'ANV



NEW IIRUNNWICK BQI'ITV IlKIDR'IXIII.] +01

maturity or later. In such a cast- there is no question as 1901 i.
to the rate, for the parties have themselves fixed it. But Kawtkiiv 
unless it is specially provided otherwise in the mortgage, the <'nartsv 
covenant for interest only covers the period up to the due 
date of the principal. It is a covenant to pay ad diem and ‘i.m!’™' ' 
not poet diem. That is the case here. There is an express |liir^r , 
agreement to pay interest at the rate of 10 per cent, for ten 
years. An amount—generally spoken of as interest—but 
in reality damages for the detention of the debt after 
its maturity, which in this case would be after the expira­
tion of the ten years, may lie recovered, and as no rate 
has liven fixed, Parliament has fixed it at 5 per cent, 
formerly—and. even now it is the case I tielieve in 
Kugland—there was no rate in such cases fixed by Statute 
hut the Courts had a rate as a pert of their practice. The 
Statute has no liearing on the case except to fix the rate in 
eases to which it applies. It provides that " whenever 
interest is payable by agreement of the parties or by law, 
and no rate is fixed by such agreement or by law, the rate of 
interest shall Is- •> js-r cent. |ier annum." How can it be 
■slid that there is no agreement fixing the rate tor tin- 
whole ten years It is not an agreement to |>ay interest 
up to the maturity of the I Kinds; it is an agreement to pay 
interest at the rate of 10 per cent, up to the year 1912.
The defendants, hv the interest coupons, expressly promise 
lo |Hiy a specific sum of money, which is six months' 
interest on a specific delienture, on a specified day at 
a specified place. The rate of interest is not affected 
in any way by a default occurring within the period 
covered by the agreement for interest The declara­
tion by the trustee accelerating the payment of the 
principal, as I have (Kiinted out, created no new liability 
"ii the company. Non-payment by the defendants in 
accordance with that declaration was no default on then- 
part for they never, either expressly or impliedly, agreed to 
pay the principal at that time. * They were not detaining 
i In- debt any more after that declaration than liefore, and 

1 is only where the party is detaining the debt lieyond the 
|"‘riod during which a rate of interest is agreed upon, that

VOL III. N. ». K. H. Z7.
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the statutory rate applies. If tin- rate had been agreed 
upon not only for the wliole ten yearn hut after that no 
long as the money remained unpaid,could it lie argmsl that 
the whole covenant would lie swept out of existence l»y this 
declaration, and the interest rati- reduced ! I do not think 
so. The covenant was not made with a view to a default 
on the part of the covenantor. Whatever interest is 
recoverable during the ten years, is, I think, recoverable as 
interest at the rate of 10 per cent, per annum under the 
company's agreement to ]iay and not as damages in the 
nature of interest for a detention of the debt, to Is- uhscssihI 

on the statutory liasis.
In (lordillo v. Weguelin (1), the debentures provided 

for annual drawings of the bonds for redemption, and they 
contained an express proviso that no interest should !»• 
payable on any drawn bond after the day fixed for its 
redemption. It was nevertheless held that for the pur­
poses of paying interest such lionds stood in the same 
|msition as uiidrawn I muds where the money to redeem 
was not provided for the purpose, and interest was re­
coverable notwithstanding the provision I have mentioned. 
1 have pointed out why, in my opinion, 1 could not ini|sirt 
into this mortgage the covenant suggested by the defend­
ants" Counsel, but if I could I am disposed to think the 
case would not Is* altered so far as the present ipiestion is 
concerned. Supposing that added to the existing cove­
nants in the mortgage then1 was one by the defendants 
that on the declaration provided for they would -jiay the 
whole 8*280,000 and interest at the date fixed by the 
notice. That would not in an)- way change the rate of 
interest or the agreement that 10 lier cent, per annum 
should lie charged until the expiration of the ten years. 
If the due date were in such a case the date- of the declara­
tion under the acceleration clause, the rate woidd still be 
fixed up to 1912. and the covenant would lie a covenant to 
to pay pout diem to that extent. If, on the other hand, the 
due date is at the expiration of the ten years, the rate is

(1) 5 C!h. I). 287.
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fixed for that period. To hold otherwise would prevent 
the bondholders from taking advantage of a proviso in 
theie security ap|>arently intended for their Ixmefit, and 
which bwaute operative only by the defendants' default, 
except under the penalty of losing one half their interest, 
although the company was still in default.

I think the bonds bear interest at the rate of 10 per 
cent., and there will lx- an order accordingly. No order as 
to costs.
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, lifOli. EDUETT v. STEEVK8.
s'orrtuhcr •;*.

hinaU'ency Amtiynmenta and Preference Act, c. Hi, l\S. liw.: 
Slat "torn prêtai mptian- Hehtiflnl- Kt'idenee o f preen re.

Sect. 2 (8) uf the Assignments nml Preferences Act, c, 141, V. S. 
11*18, provides tlmt in a suit liruuglit within sixty days from 
the making of a transfer of property, to have it set aside, it 
shall Is* presumed that it was made with intent to give the 
preferred creditor an unjust preference, and to la- such, 
whether made voluntarily or under pressure :

Held, that the presumption is rebuttable, but that evidence of 
pressure is not admissible for the purpose.

Motion fur a receiver and to continue an interim injunc­
tion order restraining the defendant Sleeves from acting 
under an assignment to him by the defendants Norman 
and John Jones of their Imok debts and part of their stock- 
in-trade. on the ground that it is an unjust preference 
within chap. 141, C. S. 11103. The facts are sufficiently 
stated in the judgment of the Court.

Argument was heard November"23, ltlOti.

M. II. Ter,I, K. C.. in support of motion :—

Sect. 2. sub-sect. 2, of chap. 141, C. S. 1003, declares 
to lie void an assignment or transfer of property made by 
a person at a time when he is in insolvent circumstances, 
or is unable to pay lfis debts in full, or knows that lie is on 
the eve of insolvency, to or for a creditor with intent to 
give such creditor an unjust preference over his other 
creditors, etc. Sub-sect. 3 provides that if such transaction 
with or for a creditor has the effect of giving him a prefer­
ence over other creditors of the debtor, it shall, in or with 
respect to any suit or proceeding which, within sixty days 
thereafter, is brought to impeach or set aside such trans­
action, be presumed to have been made with such intent, 
and to be an unjust preference, whether the same be made 
voluntarily or under pressure. The injunction will be con-
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linucd if it sufficiently appears in till1 2 bill mid affidavits 
that tlv debtors were insolvent within the meaning of the 
chapter: that the defendant Steeves had knowledge of it. 
and there was an intent to prefer hint over the other oredi- 
lors. A debtor is insolvent if he d<x;s not pay his way or 
is unable to meet the current demands of creditors, and if 
he hits not the means id’ paying them in full out of his 
assets realized upon a sale for cash or its equivalent. See 
Wnrnock v. Kleopftr (1). In National Hank of AuMra- 
hixi» v. Marri» (2), fjord Hohhouse says, speaking of the 
Act then- under construction, that if the creditor who is 
preform! has knowledge of the eircumstances from which 
ordinary men of business would conclude that the debtor 
is unable to meet his liabilities, he knows within the mean­
ing of the Act that the debtor is insolvent. The defend­
ants Jones, at the time of the assignment to Steeves, owed 
upwards of SI .200, and their total assets, even if their 
Iwsik debts were collected in full, would not realize mon' 
than SKâO. Steeves is shewn to have knowledge that 
they were in financial straits. So great was his appre­
hension over their affairs, he instructed his solicitor to 
issue bailable writs against them. He was made aware, if 
lie had no other knowledge of their distress, by taking an 
assignment of their look debts and a large part of their 
stock-in-trade, how far gone they were in insolvency'. The 
suit having been brought within sixty days, the intent to 
give Steeves an unjust preference need not be proved.

H. A. 1‘iiwrll, K. for defendant Steeves, contra :—

The Act does not aim at a preference that is not 
fraudulent. In this respect it does not modify the com­
mon law. There a fraudulent intent had to be made out. 
This must still be shewn. In the absence of it the trans­
action stands. That the liabilities of the debtor exceed his 
assets is immaterial. It may be useful in helping to shew 
intent: it does not conclusively establish it. The intent 
must 1*' brought home to the creditor. It is not proven

40f)
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(1) H O. K. 28X; IS A. H. 324 ; 18 Can. 8. C. K. 701.
(2) 18»2| A. C. 287.
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from thv fact that lit* demands security or that he gets it. 
and that lie is aware that its effect will l>e to hinder other 
creditors. The presumption of intent created by the Act 
may be rebutted even where the suit is brought within 
sixty days. The words in sect. 2 (3) presuming the trans­
action to be an unjust preference, etc., “ whether the same be 
mode voluntarily or under pressure,” do not exclude proof of 
pressure, and if such is brought forward the presumption 
is displaced. There is a catena of authorities, beginning 
with Mahon Bunk v. Halter (1), establishing that the pre­
ference provided against in the Act is a voluntary preference, 
and that a conveyance obtained by pressure from the grantee 
is not within its terms. Had the Act provided that "evert 
gift, conveyance, etc., whether made awing to pressure or 
not," etc., the presumption could not lie defeated by proof 
of pressure. These words are necessary in tirder to over­
come the effect of those cases. See Benallack v. Bank of 
British North America (2). A mere demand by the credi­
tor without even a threat of, much less a resort to, legal 
proceedings is sufficient pressure to rebut the presumption 
of a preference. See per Strong, J„ in Stephens v. Mc­
Arthur (3). See also Qihbons v„ McDonald (4) and 
Amherst Boot and Shoe Co. v. Slogn (5). A fraudulent 
intent in the mind of the creditor as well as that of the 
debtor is necessary: Hepburn v. Park(li) : Ashley v. Brown 
(7) : Benallack v. Bank of British North America (supra). 
If there is pressure it is immaterial that the conveyance is 
of the whole of the debtor’s property: Davies v. Hillard 
(H). Dana v. McLean (0) is authority for the position 
that the statutory presumption is rebuttable. In McLaugh­
lin Carriage Co. v. Wickwire. unreported, it was held by 
the Supreme Court of Canada that the presumption is not 
an absolute one. in order that there may be intent there 
must be collusion and want of good faith.

Teed, K. C., in reply.

(II 18 Can. S. C. K. 88.
(2) 30 Can. S. C. R. 1211. _ . „
(3) 10 Can. S. C. R. 440. (7) 17 A. R. 600.
(4) 20 Can. H. C. R. 687. (8) 21 O. R. 431 : 10 A. R. 432

(0) [10011 2 O. R. 460.

15) 2 N. H. Ku. 230. 
(0) 0 O. R. 477.
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lHOli. November 27. Barker, J.:—

This is a suit brought to set aside, as an unjust prefer­
ence, an assignment dated October 10th, 1000, from the 
defendants, Norman Jones and John Jones, to the defendant 
Sleeves, the consideration for which was the sum of $57ti 
then owing to Sleeves on overdue drafts and for goods 
sold. The assignment transferred all the Ixiok debts and 
choses in action which the Messrs. Jones had at the time, 
and also practically all of their stock. Sleeves took pos­
session of the stock and proceeded to collect the debts. The 
plaintiff Kdgett is a creditor of the Jones' for the sum of 
#221.116, and their total indebtedness at that time, which is 
stated to be about $1,200, admittedly was in excess of the 
value of their assets. This is a motion to continue an 
injunction restraining Sleeves from proceeding under his 
assignment, and the plaintiff also asks for a receiver.

There is substantially no dispute as to the facts. The 
affidavits clearly shew that the Jones', when they made the 
assignment, knew perfectly well that they were in insolvent 
circumstances and unable to jaiy their debts in full. 
Sleeves’ knowledge as to their position may or may not be 
an im|s>rtant factor in the case. There is no douht, how­
ever. that he also knew of their insolvent circumstances, 
and he must have known that when he took all their book 
debts and practically all of their stock in order to satisfy 
his claim, little, if anything, remained for the other creditors. 
•See Xatiunal Bank aif A untralatia v. .Iforri* ( 1 ). Then' 
is no douht, therefore, that while Sleeves was only getting 
his pay for a debt honestly due him, he did get a prefer­
ence over the other creditors, and that the bill of sale was 
made with that object in view. It is also clear from the 
evidence that the assignment was made not voluntarily 
nut under pressure from Sleeves. It would therefore not 
lie an unjust preference within the meaning of those words 
in sect. 2 of chap. 141, C. S. 1903, relating to preferences by 
nsolvent |H>rsons. as Statutes of that character have been

407
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liKMi. judicially interpreted. I liad occasion to refer to these 
K no kit cases in Amhrrul Hou I and Shoe Co. v. Sheyn (1), and 

stkk'vvx. need not discuss them here. If an assignment is made by 
Marker. J. an insolvent to his creditor by way of preference, and 

that assignment is his own voluntary act done on his own 
motion, it is a prohibited act where it is given to secure 
an overdue indebtedness. If, however, it is not done 
voluntarily, but on the demand of the creditor and under 
pressure from him, the transaetion loses its fraudulent 
character and the preference is not unjust : Stephen e v. 
McArthur (2). And if this suit had been commenced after 
the expiration of sixty days from the time when the 
assignment was made, I should have thought that it could 
not he maintained. Sub-section •'! of section 2, however, 
provides that when an action to impeach the transaction is 
brought within the sixty days, the assignment shall !*• 
presumed to have been made with the intent of giving the 
creditor an un just preference, and to lie an unjust prefer­
ence within the meaning of the section, whether the same 
Is1 made voluntarily or under pressure. Two ipiestions 
arise under this sub-section, and us to lsith of them judicial 
opinion in Ontario and elsewhere where similar Statutes 
are in force, has varied considerably. In the first place, 
is this presumption rebuttable or is it pnnvmptio juris el 
de jure! The most of the cases on the point were referred 
to on the argument ; and in addition to these, Mr. Powell 
mentioned an unreported ease, in which he was counsel, 
liefore the Supreme Court of Canada, where it was held or 
taken for granted that evidence could lie given to rebut 
the presumption. If that tie the. case I am bound by the 
decision, but altogether apart from that, 1 am prepared to 
hold that the presumption can be rebutted.* Without 
repeating the arguments in favor of that view to be found 
in the reported cases referred to, it would, I think, be going 
an unwarrantable length to impute to the Legislature, from 
the words used in the section, an intention to render the

(11 2 N. H. Kq. 2*1. (2) 1# Can. 8. C. H. 440.

• See Ciniy v. .t/rA"»// |lt«Kt| 12 O. K. 121. Km-.
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transaction actually void if a suit to impeach it was 
brought within the time limit. If that was intended 
there was no presumption about it : a declaration to that 
effect was all that was required. Such, however, was not 
the intention of the Legislature. In the second place, can the 
presumption be rebutted by evidence of pressure ' 1 think
it cannot. On this point I agree with the judgments of the 
Court of Appeal of Ontario in Webiter v. Criekmmr (I) 
and Bi’iltt il v. Wenger (2). Mr. Powell contended that the 
words “ whether the same lie made voluntarily or under 
pressure," mean simply that in all cases the presumption 
should exist. If that is the only effect of them, they are 
altogether useless, for if they are taken out of the section 
the description of cases to which the section applies would 
not lw limited in any way. The doctrine of pressure, 
as applied to preferential assignments by persons in in­
solvent circumstances, is not a modern doctrine : it was 
well known to those who took part in this legislation, and 
when they used the words in question they in “fleet said 
this presumption shall arise in all actions hrought within 
the time limit, whether the transaction impeached was the 
voluntary act of the debtor or was procured under pressure 
from the creditor. It necessarily follows, I think, that 
evidence of pressure would not rebut the presumption. 
That would produce the somewhat anomalous result that 
a Court Isiund by Statute to presume as a fact that the 
transaction was made with a fraudulent intent even where 
it was procured under pressure, should at the same time 
find the presumption rebutted by proof that the pressure 
actually existed. Many other circumstances may exist 
which would rebut the presumption. Instances of them 
are furnished by many of the cases cited, hut no such cir­
cumstances exist here.

1 think the injunction should lie continued, anil that a 
receiver should lx- ap|xiinted.

409
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PICK v. EDWARDS.

Statute of Lint Motion* — Agency— Receipt of rente Riylit to an 
nccou at.

Where defendant received the rents of a property for a period of 
twenty-five years without during that time accounting to
Elaintiff, it was held that the right to an account was not 

in-red by the lapse of time, defendant having taken posses 
sion of the property under an agreement with plaintiff, which 
had never been terminated, to hold the property for him 
and to account to him for it.

Bill for an accounting. The facts fully ap]>ear in the 
judgment of the Court.

Argument was heard October 30, 1000.

IV. R. Chandler, K.C., for the plaintiff.

A. A. Cttrreif, K. C., and R. IV. MnLella », for tin- 
defendant.

1000. December 18. Barker,-.). :—

This suit was brought to obtain an account which die 
plaintiff claims from the defendant, as his agent, of the 
receipts and profits of a lot of land on l^ueen street, in 
Fredericton, and generally for an account of his dealing, 
as such agent in the management of the property. Edward 
Pick, the plaintiff’s father, seems to have owned the land 
in question for some years previous to his death in 1840. 
He died intestate, leaving a widow and two children—the 
plaintiff, and his sister, Mrs. flregg. James Mount, a 
widower, with one daughter, Sarah E. Mount, subsequently 
married the widow Mrs. Pick. Some time after that mar­
riage the plaintiff and Mrs. (îregg. his sister, sold their 
interest in the property to their step-father, James Mount. 
Mrs. (iregg conveyed her interest in 1848. and the plaintiff 
conveyed his in 1857. Mount died in 1873 intestate, 
leaving a widow but no issue of his last marriage. On his
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death his daughter, Sarah E. Mount, became entitled to tile 
property, subject to Mrs. Mount’s right of dower. She 
entered into possession of it and carried on a millinery 
establishment in it until her death, which took place in 
February, 1KH0. She died intestate, without having been 
married and without any next of kin so far as is known. 
She died quite suddenly at the house of the defendant’s 
father, between whose family and her own a close intimacy 
had existed for many years. The defendant undertook the 
charge of her funeral and assumed the expenses connected 
with it. The circumstances being somewhat unusual, the 
plaintiff, who was then living in Moncton, but had gone to 
Fredericton to attend Miss Mount's funeral, and the defend­
ant, went to the present Mr. Justice (Iregory. who was 
then practising there, to consult him as to the best course 
to adopt in reference to the estate. Vnder his advice the 
defendant applied for administration as a creditor by 
reason of his having become responsible for the funeral 
expenses, and letters of administration were afterwards 
granted to him. He took possession of the personal pro­
perty, disposed of it, and I believe had his accounts passed 
in the Probate Court. So far there does not appear to lie 
any dispute as to the facts. The plaintiff says that, as a 
result of an agreement then arrived at between him and 
the defendant, Judge Gregory was instructed to prepare, 
and that he did in fact prepare, a jsrwer of attorney from 
the plaintiff to the defendant, by which the defendant was 
to take possession of the lot ill question for him, the plain­
tiff and as his agent, to hold possession for him. and to 
account to him for it. He further alleges that this power 
of attorney was actually executed by him and the defend­
ant, anil that the defendant has since that time managed 
the property and received the profits of it for him as his 
agent, but that he refuses to account for it in any way. 
In answer to this case the defendant says that he never 
was the plaintiff’s agent in reference to this property : 
' hat there never was any such power of attorney executed 
h_v him or acted upon by him: but that he entered into 
possession of the property after Miss Mount's death in his

190U.
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own light, mill haw since that time been in the exclusive 
and continuous possession of it. whereby he has acipiired 
a statutory title,good against every one except possibly the 
Crown, and that lie is therefore in no sense accountable to 
the plaintiff for the profits of it. The defence is not that 
there was an agency originally which was subsequently 
terminated. Had that been the case the inactivity of the 
plaintiff during all these years would have seemed almost 
conclusive against him. The defendant, however, says 
there never was any such agency, and therefore there was 
none to alsindon or terminate. Neither does the defendant 
in any way set up the Statute of I,imitations in bar in whole 
or in part to the account askisl for. On the contrary, lie 
says. " I never was an accounting party to the plaintiff." I 
confess to the greatest difficulty in deciding which is the 
more iinpnilsible thing to happen—that the arrangement 
set up by the plaintiff should actually have 1 M-en made in 
1880 and I teen altogether forgotten by the defendant, or 
that it should have lieen made, and that the plaintiff him­
self should for over twenty-five years never receive an 
account, never ask for one, and have taken so little interest 
in the matter. The only difference between the two is 
that. the plaintiff admits his apparent want of interest, 
while the defendant does not admit his apparent want of 
memory.

Whether the arrangement set up by the plaintiff was 
actually made or not dejamds pi .iclpnlly on the evidence of 
Mr. Justice (iregory, and that of the plaintiff. Mr. Justice 
tiregory, after speaking of his personal acquaintance with 
both parties and their respective families, says, that on or 
about the 25th February, 1880, which was the date or 
about the date of Miss Mount's funeral, he attended at an 
interview of the plaintiff and defendant, at the instance, he 
thinks, of the defendant, at the defendant’s father's home, to 
discuss the best course to adopt as to Mias Mount's property. 
It was agreed by the |uirtics at that time, on his suggestion 
and advice, that the defendant should take out administra 
tion of the estate as a creditor, resting bis claim to admin­
istration upon the fact that he had ls*come a creditor by 10
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(«lying her funeral expenses ax a necessity. A petition 
waa prepared on that groimd, a ei tat ion was issued and 
letters were subsequently gianteil to the defendant. As to 
I lie real estate, Judge Gregory’s evidence is as follows:
' In regard to the real estât»1 it was agreed that l should 
prepare” (Mr. Currey :—I would like you to state us near as 
you ran what took place rather than from conclusion). “ I 
don’t know how 1 could tell any better. I think it was my 
own suggestion. I localise they were talking over the real 
estate, and there being no heirs and the prolmbility or pos­
sibility of its being claimed by the Crown, liecuusc they did 
not know of any, there were Certainly none living in the 
I’rovince and they didn't know there were any living, anil 
the fact that the Crown might claim this real estate at the 
same time was discussed, anil finally I was instructed by 
the two of them to prepare a power of attorney from 
George Pick to John A. Edwards to take posaession of the 
property and rare for it and hold it for him. George M. 
Pick, lie having been in some way connected w ith Miss 
Mount. George H. Pick's mother was married to old Mr. 
Mount after she became a widow and the two families, as 
I recollect, at first lived together as one family, Mr. Mount 
and Mrs. Pick then having become his wife, and George 
Pick and Mias Mount. So Mr. Pick made known that lie 
was intending to claim the rail estate and I spoke of the 
(sissibility of the Crown making a claim, and this plan 
was adopted lietween them hy a common understanding 
I>etween them, that Mr. Pick should appoint Mr. Edwards, 
who would go into (sissession, take (mssession and hold 
I ««session for him when he should become administrator of 
the personal estate. • * * Shortly after that, pursu­
ant to the instructions I got 1 drew a power of attorney and 
t he two gentlemen met in my office and it was executed and 
delivered in my presence by—well that 1 am not going to 
I»1 sure aliout—I will take buck that part, delivery ; I don't 
"'member actually handing over, but they two met in 
lay office and it was signed in my office.

“ tj. And it waa drawn in accordance with instruc- 
ione, I presume f A. Yes, pursuant to instructions.
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" IJ. Did you inuke u copy of it ! A. That I can't 
speak of with any positi'eness, although my impression is 
there was but one copy of it prepared.

“ Q. And I presume it did not remain with you A. 
If it did 1 have not seen it. I have made some search for 
it and I have not found it in my papers.”

On his cross-examination. Judge Gregory was asked 
as to his recollection as to the defendant having signed the 
|siwer of attorney. His evidence on that point is as 
follows :—

“ Q. The plaintiff signed it, did he f A. He did, and 
I also think Mr. Edwards signed it.

“Q. Are you sure of it ! A. Well, 1 feel sure of it in 
my mind.

“ Q. Why should he sign it ! It is not usual. A. 
No, hut I can recollect what I had in my mind at the time 
I drew the power of attorney and reasons why Mr. 
Kdwards would sign it, and I think Mr. Kdwards did sign 
it in my office at the same time Mr. Pick did.

“ (). Hut you will not undertake to say he did sign it 
A. I cannot certainly remember his taking the |>en and 
writing, hut I know what ]>oint I had in my mind when it 
was drawn and why he should sign it. I endeavored to 
make one document do. 1 think there were covenants in 
it for Mr. Kdwards to account to Mr. Pick, and 1 think 
more than that, the time to account, and how often and 
when he should do it, and 1 was making one document do 
the appointment of Mr. Kdwards and the accounting. This 
I am speaking of from my recollection, and while I cannot 
remember distinctly his taking the pen and signing, but 
drawing the document that way I do not think I would 
let them out without it."

Judge Gregory's charge for the power of attorney is 
entered in his book under date February 2ti, 1880, as 
follows :—

“George H. Pick, Dr. To consultation with him at 
Mr. Kdwards house re Miss Mount’s property, drawing 
|lower of attorney to Mr. John A. Edwards, etc., 810.00."
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The plaintiff s evidence on this point is a* follows :
" y. (live ns your best recollection os to what was 

-aid if you can (This was at the consultation with Judge 
(iregory). A. After discussing the points in connection 
with the matter, and my relation to the property and my 
mnnection with the family, and being the only person who 
could stand at all to look after the interesta of Sarah 
Mount in any way, there lieing no known heirs of any 
kind, Mr. (iregory was asked his advice as to the liest 
course to pursue, and on his recommendation that Mr. 
Edwards administer the personal estate and I give Mr. 
hid wards a power of attorney to act and bold the property 
for me.

“y. You asked Mr. (Iregory bis advice ' A. Yea.
“y. And this is what he told you f A. Yes.
“Q. What was it f A. That John A. Edwards ad­

minister on the personal estate, and that 1 give John A 
Edwards a power of attorney to bold the property and act 
for me.

“ y. When you say * the property," what do you 
mean I A. 1 mean the house and land on yueen street, 
near Curleton, in this city.

“ y. Formerly occupied by Sarah Mount A. For­
merly occupied by Sarah Mount."

The plaintiff says there was another meeting at Judge 
I iregory"s office the following day. Mr. Edwards consented 
lo administer, and afterwards the power of attorney was 
made out. His evidence then proceeds:—

“ After the power of attorney was made out M r. 
< iregory read it over ; it was satisfactory.

“ y. Read it aloud to both of you ! A. Read it out 
uid handed it to me to sign and I signed it, and 1 have no 
recollection of Mr. Edwanls signing it, no positive rocollec- 
' ion, but after the whole business was done I made the 
re mark, • Now what shall 1 do with this ?’ and Mr. (iregory 
-aid, ' (Jive it to John," and I handed it to John Edwards 
n his presence.

“ y. That is the defendant ! A. The defendant."

4 If. 
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lilOU. The plaintiff siiys that he has never seen the power of
pick attorney since. He left Fredericton for Moncton iinnie- 

Kdwàku*. diately afterwards, and, according to his own account, from 
iiiiritir. ,f. that time to this has never had any conversation with the 

defendant on more than two occasions.
In addition to this direct and positive evidence, we 

have the testimony of Mr. Smith and Mr. Allen, both pro­
fessional men. without any interest whatever in the result 
of this suit. It seems that in December of last year the 
city treasurer of Fredericton, finding the taxes on this 
property for the years 1901, 1902, 1909, 1904 and 1905 in 
arrears, and having heard that the plaintiff had sonic 
interest in the property, wrote to him alsmt the taxes. 
The result was that he paid the whole amount—$183.85— 
on the ltith January last. He hail, however, consulted 
Mr. Smith in December, and as a result Mr. Smith, at his 
instance, went to Fredericton to see the defendant. The 
precise object of the visit is not very clear. It certainly 
could not have lieen to accomplish any settlement, for up 
to that time there had not been a word between the 
|iarties; they had neither met nor corresponded, and the 
defendant's present attitude as to ti|c property he had not 
made known: at all events, directly or indirectly, to the 
plaintiff, or, so far as there is any evidence, to any one else. 
Smith, however, did go to Fredericton on the 18th De­
cember, and after making some searches at the Registry 
Office in order to find the power of attorney, and inquiries 
at the City Treasurer’s office in order to find out alsmt the 
taxes, he brought about an interview with the defendant. 
His account of what took place is as follows:—

" 1 first passed the time of day with Mr. Kdwards and 
so on. He and I had lieen old friends, and then I asked him 
if he was aware that there were certain taxes due upon 
this property in dispute, but I mentioned the property, anil 
Mr. Edwards said that there were no taxes due that 
were not to be met by bills that he held against the city, 
and he informed me that he was an alderman: and then I 
asked him if he proposed to account to Mr. Pick for the
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rents mid profits, mill fur the disbursements. He said lie 
did not. Then I asked him if he did not know he had 
taken a power of attorney from Mr. Hick, and that he had 
entered into possession of the property as agent for Mr 
Hiek. anil he said he did. Then I asked him if he had the 
[lower of attorney. He said no, he eould not say he hud ; 
it might bo among his papers somewhere, but he could not 
rememlier anything about it. Then I asked him, to the 
effect, if he thought Mr. Hick was a fool, and he did not 
express any opinion on that point. Then 1 said to him. or 
word* effect.‘ Mr. Edwards, how does it happen that
tin- assessment in the clerk's office is put 1 Mount Kstute, 
per J. A. Edwards, agent f ' ' Why," he said. ‘ I am agent.’
Well,' said 1. ' for Mr. Hick ' ' No,' said he, he did not

wish to lie considered as Inning answered that in the 
affirmative. Then 1 asked him whom he was holding for 
if lie was agent for someone. He did not answer that 
ipiestion except to sav he would not answer me anything 
further until he had seen his lawyer. Then I asked him 
when he would see his lawyer, and then he said he wanted 
to see tieorge (iregory, and 1 told him that I had seen Mr. 
(Iregory the night before on the train, and that Mr. 
< Iregory had told me that he had drawn a power of 
attorney which he, Mr. Edwards, hud executed. Yes,' he 
said, ‘hut I want to see what tie rge (iregory has got to 
say about it:’ said that two or three times and finally In- 
said he would not recognize any right of Mr. Hick's to an 
account, but that lie would see a lawyer, and that he would 
meet Mr. Hick anil myself at the Brunswick House, a hotel 
in Moncton, on the 5th day of January, that he was coming 
up to lx- at Moncton by appointment with someone—did 
not say who—that is last January: and upon my asking 
him what time we could meet him. he saiil 12 o'clock, noon ; 
if Mr. Hick anil I would go to the Brunswick House he 
would lx- there, and that closed the conversation." On his 
cross-examination, Mr.,Smith made some important additions 
to this narrative, which he said had oscapi-d his recollection 
at the time. He said. “ that in the first interview when I 
asked him if he hail not taken a power of attorney and

VIII. Ill, X. a K. K.—391.
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1 !MMi. gihiv in under lliat [Kiwir of attorney, lie said, ' Yes,' anil 
I'k k it was signed in George Gregory’s office anti that lie had 

Kiiwahiw. accepted it and taken it from Mr. Pick, 
iinikir. .1. '■ (y Will you swear he said he hail accepted it' A.

I will swear most emphatically. * * *
“Q. You know that Mr. Edwards said, in addition to 

what you have said, that he had accepted the power of 
attorney < A. Yes, and had had it given to him by Mr. 
Pick, in Mr. Gregory s office -George Gregory's office is 
how he calli-d him.

“Q. Can you explain how von recollect that ' A. Well 
I can not sav I did forget it. lint it had not come to mind. 
It is now firmly fixed ill my mind and as a matter of 
recollection l state it.

“ Q. Were there any others present at the time ! A. 
Xo. there were none present but him and me at the time, 
and 1 think that was the second time.

“ Q. How did you come to make the statement he 
hud accepted it < A. I do not know.

“ Q. Was it not in answer to a i|Uestion you put to 
him f A. No, it was not. He just said it that way, that 
he had accepted it and that Mr. Pick had given it to him, 
and that he had entered under it. He did not use the 
words 11 entered under it:’ 1 1 went in under it.'

“(y You change that now ‘ A. That is what lie said, 
• I went in under it.'

“ (y All these odd terms you have forgotten until hotli 
Counsel have got through examining you, and now it 
occurs to you to remember he said he not only accepted it 
but entered under that power of attorney ! A. 1 say he 
did not say ‘ entered," * went in.'

“ Q. He used that term, did he ! A. Yea, he did not 
use that till I asked him. I asked him if he entered under 
it and he said, ‘ Yes, I went in under it.'

“ <y But the accepting part was his own statement f 
A. He used that word without any suggestion from me 
whatever.

“ (y But the entering under was stated at your sug-
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gestion '■ A. The going in, in answer to a question of 190ti. 
mine : then I ashed him if lie thought Mr. Pick was a fool." Pirai

The defendant did not keep his appointment for the hllWAItlw
1 1 1 liarkiT I

nth January, at Moncton, hut he wrote a letter to Mr.
Smith, dated January 4, explaining that he was prevented 
from doing so. Xo other time having been arranged.
Smith came to Fredericton on the 23rd January to see the 
defendant again. 1 think I may safely say that his object 
in making a second visit was to bring about a settlement 
lietween the parties, for lie came armed with a written 
offer, which, however, is not in evidence and is unimportant.
A second interview took place, but it resulted in nothing, 
for at that time the defendant seems to have repudiated 
all liability.

Before commencing this suit, a formal demand for an 
account and a formal notice cancelling the power of attor­
ney were served on the defendant by Mr. Charles H. Allen, 
at the instance of Mr. Chandler, the plaintiff's solicitor in 
the suit, on the 7th March last. On his examination by 
Mr. Chandler at the hearing, Mr. Allen said as follows : ‘‘I 
went into the Post Office and saw Mr. Edwards, and asked 
him if he was the agent of George H. Pick in connection 
with the Mount property, and he said he was, and 1 handed 
him the two copies of the ]>apers, revoking the power of 
attorney and demanding an accounting, and I waited for a 
reply, and I told him what they were. I think that I was 
serving them for you, and he said that you were going to 
a lot of trouble for nothing : he said he would look into it.

“ Q. This was on the 7th March ' A. The morning 
■■f the 7th March.

“ (J. What you asked him was whether he was agent 
for George H. Pick in connection with the Mount property 
V Yes.

" (J. He said he was A. Said he was."
Mr. Allen says that the defendant was not engaged 

with any other people at the time, though he is not pre­
pared to say that there were not others present in the 
apartment at the time. The defendant meets the evidence
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ot' Mr. Smith by denying the truth of it, except in some 
minor matters, and be meets the evidence of Mr. Allen In- 
saying that be never heard any such ipiestion asked him as 
Mr. Allen speaks of.

I shall not attempt the impossible task of reconciling 
the statements of Mr. Smith and those of the defendant. 
They relate to incidents of so recent a date, and to matters 
in which both—one professionally, the other personally 
were at the time so interesting themselves, that it would 
lie little less than a farce in the administration of justice to 
charge up these discrepancies to the mere frailties of human 
memory. The defendant’s account of the interview be­
tween the plaintiff. Judge Gregory and himself differs in 
some respect* from Judge Gregory's recollection of it. 
He speaks of the consultation at his father's house imme­
diately after Miss Mount's funeral, the meeting at Judge 
Gregory's office on the following day. and the reasons of 
his selection as a petitioner for letters of administration. 
His evidence as to the real estate is as follows:—

(). What else was talked of at your father's house 1 
A. Well, the property was talked of.

"Q. Do you mean the real property ? A. 1 mean Un­
real property, by Judge Gregory, for Mr. l’ick to get hold 
of it in some way, and there was a power of attorney 
talked aliout. and 1 listened to everything, and Judge 
Gregory aliout conducted the whole business, suggested 
everything and moved in everything. I did not have very 
much to say about it ; but this power of attorney was 
talkisl aliout in my father's house. * *

" (). And did you meet, subsequently, with Mr. l’ick 
or Mr. Gregory, or anyone about the matter, and if so. 
where A. Well, I have not a clear recollection, but I 
have a recollection of being in Mr. Gregory's office the next 
day, and 1 haves recollection of this document being talkisl 
aliout or prepared—a power of attorney—but 1 have no 
recollection of the document being rend there, or having 
signed or ls-ing handed to me. 1 have no recollection of 
ever having the document, or ever seeing it, or ever hearing 
it read, from that day to this."
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In other jwrts of his evidence the defendant swears 
positively, that he never signed any power of attorney, 
never acted under one and never had any in his possession.

The evidence, from which I have quoted at some 
length, leads me to the conclusion that the power of 
attorney was, in fact, executed by plaintiff and defendant, 
and delivered as the plaintiff and Judge Gregory say, and 
I so find as a fact in this case. Judge Gregory’s recollec­
tion of the facts seems clear and positive. Unaided, alto­
gether, except as to the date of the transaction, he is able 
lo recall the circumstances out of which this dispute liai 
arisen. In fact the circumstances are so exceptional in 
i heir character that even after a lapse of so many years 
they could scarcely be forgotten, even by one who had no 
more than a professional interest in them. We have the 
defendant's own admission that Judge Gregory, who hail 
known Isitli parties for a long time, was called in to advise 
them what to do nlxmt the estate. Neither of them had or 
pretended to have any legal right to the land. The plain­
tiff did put forward a reason why in the failure of next of 
kin, ho should have it. The defendant at that time neither 
objected to this claim nor put forward any of his own. He 
admits that one of the subjects discussed, and submitted for 
Judge Gregory's opinion, was that the plaintiff wanted “to 
get a hold of this land in some way,” and it was in this 
connection that this question of a power of attorney came 
up. In other words, I should say, that was the means 
which Judge Gregory suggested for the purpose. It is 
reasonable to siqqiose that when the Judge advised the 
'•nurse to Is- adopted, and which was adopted, to secure 
the administration of the |s-rsonal property to the defend­
ant, his advice as to the means to lie adopted to enable the 
plaintiff" to get a hold of the real estate would also be 
adopted. He says it was so, the plaintiff says the same, 
and the entry in the Iwxik corrolwirates it. 1 think, there­
fore, and so find, that when the defendant went into 
; " «session, he went into possession for the plaintiff as his 
'gent, under this [lower and subject to a liability to account 
for the property. I shall briefly refer to evidence relied on
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MMMi. by tliv plaintiH as shewing pmitive acts by the defendant 
ihcK under the power of attorney. In addition to the admission 

«iiwâkiw. proved by Mr. Allen and the more ini|>ortant and circum- 
itarkvr..1. stuntial admissions proved by Mr. Smith, and which if 

accepted in their entirety are ample evidence of agency, 
there is a piece of testimony by .fudge Gregory to which I 
shall refer. He says that on the 21st April. 1880. by 
instructions of the defendant he drew a special lease of 
this property, in duplicate, as between George H. Pick and 
Annie Williams, and that lie * to the execution of
that lease by Miss Williams. The entry in his lunik is as 
follows :

“George H. Pick, per J. A. Kdwards. Dr. To drawing 
s|M*cial lease of property in t^ueen street in duplicate to 
A. Williams, Sb.OO.”

Miss Williams was a milliner who had purchased Miss 
Mount’s stock and was then commencing a business on 
these premises where she continued for some years.

On his cross-examination .fudge Gregory was asked 
as follows :—

“ He never acted on it, did he ' (i. r., the power of 
attorney). A. Well, he did ; one act was u|m>ii it, 1 would 
say. That lease to Miss Williams was on it.

" 1/ Was not that lease .1. A. Kd wards to Mias 
Williams ' A. No, it was not; at least it is George H. 
Vick by J. A. Kd wards.

“ <V Is your memory pretty certain as to that i A. 
My memory is pretty clear and my entry confirms me.

" y. Would it not be more from your entry than your 
memory of it ? A. No; when it was just done and for a 
while afterwards my mind often referred to the transac­
tion of tfie property, and I know Mr. Kd wards had that 
done, and 1 did not think Mr. Kd wards got me to do any­
thing more afterwards with respect to the property.”

In view of this evidence and the entry in .fudg« 
Gregory’s lmoks, the defendant was compelled to admit its 
correctness, and that this lease had actually b«H»n prepare!

4580
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by liis direction and executed. In addition to tliis, later lllllli.
on in the same year Judge (iregory, on the defendant's in- Vick

structions, searched the title to this property, furnished Unwise*
him with an alistract of it, which he sent to the plaintiff. n«rkiv. .1.
and which the plaintif!’ produced at the hearing. The
plaintiff also produced two letters from the defendant to
him, one dated March 4. 1NK0, and the other dated April
2(i of the same year. In the first, among other things, the
defendant says: “ The matter is only about as you left it,
as the Prohate Court has ordered a citation, which you will
sis- by to-day's Telegraph. I look in the store every dav
to see that all is right, but have not touched anything as
yet. 1 have hail some applications for the shop and house.
hut will not I*! able to get over ><20(1 for it this year, as
there are a great many vacant shops on the front street
and likely to lie more: hut if 1 can get a tenant suitable 1
will he well satisfied just now. After a time, when 1 have
funds to improve the place with, there will be no trouble.
and even now, if a |airty I am negotiating with takes it, 1
will have to do a little in the fall. Whenever I am in a
position to give you further information 1 will write.
* * * Mrs. Mount wrote up a very sensible letter, and
altogether different from what 1 ex|>ected. She looks u]siu 
your claim most favorably ami justifies your action, i 
shall take care of the letter, as it may Is1 useful some time."
In the other letter the defendant speaks of his appoint- 
ment as administrator, his sale of the stock, and some other 
matters in reference to the estate. He says : “ I have sold 
the greater part of the stock, a portion of it to a Miss 
Williams, to whom I have rented the house and shop for 
one year for $200, the very most I could get for it, and 
when I see a dozen or more gissl shops vacant, I think it 
is not so laid. I have hail to reinsure the property, onc- 
lliinl payable to Mia. Mount in case of loss. I have sent 
her the Iwlance due her on the quarter's rent due 1st May.
* * * 1 will have to give these tenants some paper for
two of the rooms, and some other little things will have to 
lie done." These letters are said to be of no importance, 
lint do they not support the plaintiff"s case ! An1 they
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l!KKi. siioli letters as our who I mil just t liken possession of thin
I'ii'k property, to une the defendant'* .statement in his answer, as

KnwtHiw. “ owner in fee,” who was holding it for himself adversely 
iiiirkvi'. .1. to the plaintiff and all the world, who was accountable to 

no one, would naturally write to the plaintiff, who, accord­
ing to him. has not now, had not then, and never hud since, 
the slightest interest in the property whatever ( Place 
the defendant, however, in the ]sisitioii which, according 
to the plaintiff, he actually occupied, and what is more 
natural than that he should inform him of the renting of 
the property. the name of the tenant, the amount of the. 
rent and how it was disposed of, the insurance on the 
house, the allowance to the tenants for the room paper, 
and tell him that whenever he was in a position to do so 
he would give him further information t Then there is the 
other fact that the defendant actually, from 1880 to 1002, 
kept an account of this property, not in his own private 
Isioks, hut in a book for the special pur|xiac and for the 
estate account. That is altogether in the way of his duty 
if he was an accounting party such as the plaintiff claims, 
hut unusual if he was not.

The fact king then ascertained • that the defendant in 
fact did enter into possession of this land under the plain­
tiff as his agent to hold it for him and to account to him 
for it, what terminated that relation before the plaintiff 
himself cancelled it, and if not terminated, how ran the 
defendant as against the plaintiff dispute his title In 
8m il It v. Bennett (1) it was held that so long as an agent 
is in receipt of the rent of land, the Statute of Limitation* 
will not run against his employer : and if a person com­
mence to receive rents as the agent for another, and after­
wards continue to receive such rents without [laying them 
over, he must Is1 presumed to receive as agent till the con­
trary is shewn. In Burdick v. Garrick (2), (iiffard L J., 
says : “ I do not hesitate to say that where the duty of 
[icrsons is to receive property and to hold it for another, and 
to keep it until it is called for, they cannot discharge tlieui-

m 30 !.. T. (N. S.t Hill. (2) !.. K. 5 tli. 243.
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-nlvvs from that trust by appealing to the lapse of time. They llHIll 
••an only discharge themselves by handing over that prop- i*iok 

• rty to somebody entitled to it." In Lyell v. Kennedy (l), Kuwakh*. 

l/ird Macnaghten approves of that proposition and adds: R»i*er.J.
I do not think it ran make any difference what the nature 

of the property may lie. whether it is a lump sum, or col­
lected in the shape of rents accruing from time to time.
I do not think it can make any difference whether the duty 
arises from contract or is connected with some previous 
rei|uest. or whether it isself-im[)osed and undertaken with­
out any authority whatever. If it be established that tin- 
duty Ims in fact Is-en undertaken, and that property has 
ls-cn received by a person assuming to act in a fiduciary 
character, the same consequences must. I think, in every 
case follow.

In my view it is ipiite impossible for one acting in a 
fiduciary position as to property as this defendant was 
towards the plaintiff to acquire any right growing out of 
its possession such as this defendant sets up in this case 
until that fiduciary jKisitioii has Is-en terminated. To hold 
otherwise would Is- to permit a trustee holding a possession 
for his cestui que trust in direct violation of his trust to go 
on building up a title in himself. In Williams v. Pott (2), 
l/ord Komilly, M. R„ says: “In the first place, I ala of 
opinion that the |Hwsessinn of the agent is the possession of 
ihe principal, and that in this case the Rev. Walter Jones 
Williams could not have made an entry ns long as he was 
in the (swition of agent for his mother, and that he was 
not in |Kisscssion and could not get into jiosscssion or make 
.my entry for that purjsiac, without resigning his position 
as her agent : and then he must have written to his mother,
'•tying, ‘ The property is mine ; I claim the rents and I shall 
apply the rents for my own purposes:' and thereupon he 
might have made an entry and so would have altered the 
position of principal and agent." In Attorney-General 
v. Corporation of London (3), the ly ird Chancellor says: “An 
•gent cannot get an adverse title unless he can very dis-

(1) H A. C. 487. (21 I» R. 12 K<|. 149. (3) 14 Jur. 207.
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MMHi. tinertly shew that what he has done is in res|x*ct ot
nm title and not in respect of his agency." In DLron v.

kiiwahiw. Jlamontl ( I ). A hi Mitt. C. •!., says: “If in order to main-
Hurkcr.J. tain this action, it were necessary to shew that the legal

title to this ship was in the present plaintiffs there can 
In- no don ht that the defendant would l>e entitled to 
out judgment. For it is clear that the ship never 
Ix'longed to the (Mirtnership at all. It was originally the 
property of Flowerdeti alone, and by him the legal inter­
est was first transferred to Hart, and siilwequently vested 
in the present defendant. He. however, in IH|.">, receives 
an order to effect an insurance on the ship and freight on 
partnership account, and he dex-s effect it and accounts with 
the partnership for the premiufns. After this the ship is 
lost and lie receives the money from the underwriters. 
Then, in truth, the legal title to the ship has nothing to do 
with this question. The right of the plaintiffs to recover 
here depends on a settled rule of law. that an agent shall 
not In- allowed to dispute the title of his principal, and that 
lie shall not after accounting with his princqMil and receiv­
ing the money in that capacity afterwards say, that lie did 
not do so, and did not receive it for the Ix-uefit of his 
principal, hut for that of some other person. Here tin- 
defendant has received the money as agent for the part­
nership, and he cannot now In* permitted to say that he 
received it for the benefit of Flowerdeti alone. All the rest 
of the world, except the defendant, might disput*- the legal 
title of the plaintiffs to the ship, hut lie cannot do it. 
See also Zvlneta v. Vivent (2).

Though the Statute of Limitationh is not set up as a 
defence, tin- defendant's (’omiseI did contend that the delay 
in taking proceetlings and the lapse of time amounted to 
laches or acquiescence such as to In- a liar to the plaintiff 's 
claim, and that in determining that question this (\mrt 
would act by analogy to the Statute. That the plaintiff 
ever since the inception of this transaction, has shewn an 
indifference in regard to this property and its management

(It 2 H. X Aid. 310. .2) 1 I Mi.. M K U. 315.
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hy tli«‘ defendant is certainly a stmng cin-umstaucr, unex- l!KHi.
I.......... I as it ÎH. to mIicw that the transaction itaw-1 f was not i*h-k
wlmt In- sots up. And in determining that question of Khwihh*. 
fact I have not I oat sight of that point. I cannot, however, Murker. .1. 
agree that this amounts either to acquiescence or ladies 
such as to defeat this action. The mutest is between the 
original |»irties. no rights of third |inities have intervened : 
the defendant has the account and can give it. and prove it 
as well to-day as ever he could. He. at all events, has not 
Isien injunnl by the delay. I’roceedings were taken so 
wmiii as knowhalge came to the plaintiff that the defendant 
had disregarded his duty by permitting the taxes for five 
years to be in arrears, anil when be had on a demand for 
an account refuwsl to give it and repudiates! his agency 
altogether. Kesides this the relation in which the jiarties 
stisxl to each other under the power of attorney must not 
lie lost sight of. It is settled by a long series of authori­
ties that when an express trust has Iksmi created, as I think 
is the ease here, lapse of time is no bar to an action for an 
accounting. Hunliek v. Currink fit, is a leading authority 
on this point.

In Sour v. AiJtwell (2), Itowen. L. J„ says : " One thing 
si suns clear. It has Issm establishisl lieyonil doubt by 
authority binding on this Court that a person occupying 
a fiduciary relation, who has property de|sisitisl with him 
on the strength of such relation, is to lie dealt with as an 
express, and not merely a constructive, trustee of such 
property. His possession of such property is never in 
virtue of any right of his own. but is colons I from the 
first by the trust and confidence in virtue of which he 
ii-reived it. He never can discharge " " except by
restoring the pmperty, which he never has held otherwise 
than ii|Hin this confidence : Chalmrr v. Ilradley (8):
Mitrquis of Ch,,lmnnilrlri/ v. Lord Clinton (4); and this 
ismtidence or trust imposes oil him the liability of an ex­
press or direct trustee." See also Xorth American l.mul

III !.. K. 5 i'li. m 
12i |Isim| 2Q. It. mm.

IS) I Jar. \ W. 51. 1)7. 
It) 2 Jar. * W. I, lim.

7
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1900. ami Timber i'o. v. Watkin* (4). Those last two cases 
I’h.'k aeeui to have arisen after 1890, when section 8 of the 

Kuwahii». Imperial Act. 51 #z 52 Viet., chop. 59, of which section 
Hurkir. J. 50 of chapter 1H2, Con. Ktut. 1909, is a copy, came into 

force.
There must, I think, he a decree declaring that the 

defendant has held the property up to the (1th March last, 
when the power of attorney was cancelled, as an express 
trustee for the plaintiff, and that it he referred to a Referee 
to take an account of the defendant's dealings with the 
property during that period on that footing

(4) |HSU| 1 Cli, 242: nfllrineil on appeal. [llKU] 2 (’ll. 2tt‘t.
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PATCH ELL v. THE COU)NIAL INVESTMENT AND 
I A) AN COMPANY.

I/|>,7;/J||/| /‘lurry Ilf milr . I hurl in mill’ /(iili’iii pi inn I'hhIm

Mortgagisl |ini|MTty sold under n power of mile, default having 
arisen, was hid in hy an agent of the mortgagee, and anliee- 
i|ilently conveyed hv him to the mortgagee. In a suit for 
redemption :

llrli/. that the mortgagee was entitled to he |mid the costs of 
the abortive Bale, except an amount charged for the con­
veyance.

By indenture of mortgage hearing date August 4. 
IS1I7, Catherine Patched, the plaintiff, conveyed to the 
Illohe Savings and loan Company certain lanils anil 
premises situate in the city of St. John to secure tile sum 
of *500 advanced to her by the company, and interest 
thereon. Payment of principal anil interest was to lie 
made by eiptal monthly instalments, extending over a 
period of 12(1 months. In event of default being made at 
any time in the ]Niymrnt of the instalments, or any |Hirt 
thereof, the mortgage provided that the whole amount of 
the money secured should become due and payable, .and 
that it should Is* lawful for the mortgagees, their succes­
sors or assigns, either to proceed in eipiity for the fore­
closure and sale of the mortgaged lands and premises, or 
on giving one calendar month’s notice in writing to the 
mortgagor, or on notice ls'ing published in one or more of 
the newspapers published in the city of St. John four times 
during one calendar month, alisolutely to sell and dispose 
of the mortgaged lands and premises, either hy public 
auction or private contract, for such price as the said 
mortgagees, their successors or assigns, might consider 
reasonable. Default having lieeu made hy the plaintiff in 
the (wymeiit of the monthly instalments, the defendants, 
to whom the mortgage had ls:en assigned, caused the 
mortgaged premises to lie advertised for sale by public

HH>7.
Jo ii no rn
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1!H)7. auction, uml at a sale In-Id under the advertisement on 
i-viviiKu January 31, 11103, they were bid in by Mr. Herbert J.

Thkihuisui.Smith for 8435. The amount then due under the mort-
IXVKHTMKXT ....
"" guge. including 2*47.*2li for cohIh ot Hale, was 2*089.9(1.

< IIMI'AXV. ^ ^ p

Mr. Smith was at the time the agent of the defendants 
at the city of St. John. A conveyance of the property 
lien ring date March 4, 1003, was executed by the defend­
ants to Smith, and by indenture of the same date 
he re-conveyed the property to them. In a bill for re­
demption the plaintiff alleged that the sale to Smith was 
by collusion with the auctioneer, and that the property was 
bid in by him at the instance of the defendants for the 
purpose of injuring and defrauding the plaintiff, and for the 
purjsise of enabling Smith to hold himself out to the plaintiff 
as the Innui fiilr and actual purchaser of the property, while 
in fact the purchase was made by him for the defendants. 
Subsequently to the sale a tender of 8500.00, which was 
refused, was made by the plaintiff to the defendants as an 
amount sufficient to satisfy all that was due under the 
mortgage, and they were requested to discharge the mort­
gage and to reconvey the premises to the plaintiff. The 
bill asked for an account, and that .it might Ik- declared 
that on |Niymcnt of the amount found to he due, the mort­
gage should be cancelled and the conveyance from the 
defendants to Smith and from Smith to the defendants be 
set aside. On a reference to take an account, the Referee 
found that SH(I!I.!(2 was due under the mortgage, including 
852.2(1 for costs of the proceedings held under the power of 
sale. Certain exceptions taken to the report and which 
are sufficiently referml to in the judgment of the Court, 
which also sets out additional facts, now came on for 
argument.

Deoemlier 28, lltOti.

F H. Taylor, for the plaintiff :—

The sale to Smith was a fraud upon the plaintiff, en­
titling her to costs of suit : LeTarge v. DeTuyll (1). If
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tlmt is not mo, uh the phiiiitirt’s tender, tliough iiiMiitticivnt, 1!H)7. 
was made in gtMnl faith, and as the amonnt claimed apjieared I'atcheu 
un reasonable and oppressive, no costs should 1m- ordered Thkcominiai 
against tin- plaintiff. See McLeod v. The Queen (1). The 
exception to the allowance of the coats of the sale to the 
ilefemhintH should he upheld. The expenditure proved 
useless owing to the defendants' conduct, and was of no 
benefit to the plaintiff. It was incurred by the defendants 
for objects of their own.

IT. IT. Allen. K.C., for the defendants :

Defendants are entitled to lie paid the costs of the 
sale. The sale failed for want of a purchaser. If the 
defendants, instead of bidding in the property, had with­
drawn it, there could !*• no ipiestion of their right to 
charge up the expenditure. The different course taken by 
them did not add to the eiptOM, nor was the suit rendered 
necessary by it. Defendants are entitled to costs of suit :
Cntterell v. Stratton (2).

1IMI7. January II. Banker, .).:—

Though the bill in this case contains allegations alto­
gether inappropriate to a redemption bill, the suit has been 
regarded throughout as u redemption suit. The plaintiff 
claims a right of redemption which the defendants admit, 
but she makes charges of fraud and collusion, and allega­
tions that the plaintiff executed the mortgage in question 
in ignorance of its more important provisions, all of which 
charges and allegations arc entirely without proof to sup­
port them. The plaintiff, in her bill, has offered to redeem, 
and in order to ascertain the amount due the matter was 
sent to a Referee who has reported that on the 18th 
I lecember, 190li, the date of his report, there was due by 
the plaintiff to the defendants on the mortgage, the sum of 
*809.112. To this report the plaintiff has filed certain 
exceptions which came on for argument on the defendants'

(1) 2 Kxch. ft. Hep. lull. (2) L. R. 8 Ch. 2B6.
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motion to lam firm the rv|imt. Tlic account seems to be a 
very simple one. The defendants were never in possession 
of tlie premises or in receipt of the rents and profits. The 
amount found due consists simply of the principal and 
interest due on the mortgage, less the amounts actually 
paid by the plaintiff", and a charge for expenses of an 
attemptisl sale under the power contained in the mortgage. 
In Novemlier, 1IM12. the plaintiff" living then admittedly in 
default, the defendants gave notice of sale under the power, 
and on the Mist January l!H)M, the premises were offered 
for sale at auction, and bid in by H. J. Smith, at a price 
considerably less than the amount due, and a conveyance 
was executed to him. There is no question that Smith bid 
in the premises for the defendants as their agent. He, in 
fact, executed a reconveyance to them of the same date a» 
bis own deed bears. The sale was therefore abortive a~ 
an execution of the power, and did not in any way 
prejudice the plaintiff" as to her right to redeem.

One of the exceptions arises from the refusal or 
neglect bv the defendants to tile a debtor and enslitor 
account with the Referee, as is required to be done by ac­
counting parties. Whether, strictly speaking, on a refer­
ence of this kind the mortgagee is an accounting |iartv 
where lie has never been in possession of the premises or 
ill ns-cipt of the rents and profits, and where the amount 
due on the mortgage is merely an arithmetical calculation 
of principal and interest due after deducting the payment' 
made by the mortgagor, and which is therefore as easily 
ascertainable by the one party as the other, it is not neces­
sary to decide. For the defendants did in fact file an ac­
count : and even if it were imperfect, as the plaintiff" con­
tends. later on they II lis I a supplementary account, to which 
there is no objection, and no one has lieen injured or 
prejudiced in any way. There is only one of the excep­
tions which is of any importance. The others were dis- 
|sised of at the hearing : some of them wen* almudomsl 
and 1 intimntisl an opinion as to the others adverse to the 
plaintiff's contention. Then* was some disagreement Is- 
tween the plaintiff'and other witnesses as to flic payments.
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She was either mistaken or they were. Tile Referee had 1 i*07.
the witnesses before him ; he had the advantage of seeing I’atchicu. 
them under examination, anil under such circumstances itTukvouimal

. INVKBTMKNT
is not tlie practice of this Court to disregard Ins findings {i*»**ff 
as to facts in dispute. I have looked over the evidence and |u —r , 
listened to the arguments on both sides, and so far from 
disagreeing from the Referee, I think I should have 
arrived at the conclusion he reached. It is, however, 
sufficient to say that he had ample testimony to warrant 
him in finding ns he did. and his finding should not, in my 
opinion, be disturbed. See Tlionuu v. Girvan (1). This 
covers all the questions as to the amounts paid by the 
plaintiff.

The only exception of any importance in |snnt of 
principle is that which relates to the allowance by the 
Referee of the costs of the proceedings under the power of 
sale, amounting to SS2.2I1, including #5 paid for the con­
veyance to Smith. I think tin- Referee was wrong in 
allowing the gVj. but that he was ipiite right in allowing 
the remainder of the sum, S47.2I). In In n Wallin (2),
Kry, L. J., says that it is well settled that under the ordi­
nary eyntract which arises out of the relation between 
mortgagor and mortgagee, if the mortgagoi wishes to 
redeem the mortgaged projierty he must pay (1) the 
principal debt: (2) the interest thereon > (3) all proper costs, 
charges and expenses incurred by the mortgagee in relation 
to the mortgaged debt or the mortgage security; (4) the 
costs of litigation pro|>crly undertaken by the mortgagee 
in reference to the mortgage debt or the security; (5) the 
mortgagee’s coats of the redemption action. Selon lays 
down the rule thus: "Roth in foreclosure and redemp­
tion actions the mortgagee is entitled to the costs of 
action, anil also to all costs pn>|>cr]y incurred by him in 
reference to the mortgaged property, for its protection or 
preservation, recovery of the mortgage money, or other­
wise relating to questions between him and the mortgagor, 
and to add the amount to the sum due him on his security

(1) 1 N. B. Kq. 267. (2) 25 (j. B. D. 176

VOL. III. N. H. K. H. ».
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MMI7. I'or principal and interest.” This passage from Srhnt ou
patciikm. Decrees (1). is cited with approval by Cotton, L. J., 

THBCoèosiALÎn National Provincial Hank of Knqland v. (lame* (2).
IN V KHTM K M

and Loan Sue also Hentlrmou v. Astwood (8).
Murker. .i A sale of the mortgaged property under the power of

sale was one of the means given to the mortgagees by 
which they could realize their money, ft was therefore a 
perfectly legitimate proceeding on the defendants' part to 
give the notice which they did, and to do all that was done 
except executing the conveyance to .Smith. If the plain­
tiff had intervened Irefore the day of sale, filed her bill to 
redeem, and obtained, as she could have done, an injunc­
tion staying the sale, there can be no doubt that the costs 
incurred up to that time would have formed a part of the 
redemption money which she would have been compelled 
to pay. How does the fact that the conveyance was 
executed to Smith make any difference ! If the defend­
ants derived no lienefit by it the plaintiff was not injured 
by it, and why should she be placed in a better position by 
it. There is no suggestion, or at all events there is not the 
slightest foundation for suggesting, any fraud in this 
transaction, or that the proceedings as to the sale were not 
liona Jide in every respect. What is a mortgagee to do in 
such a case I If no sufficient bid is made for the property, 
must the mortgagee sacrifice it, and not only lose his money, 
but incur the liability of accounting to the mortgagor for 
its full value ? It is true that where a conveyance is made 
purporting on its face to be made in execution of the 
power, the mortgagor might, in ignorance of the real fact, 
be led into the belief that the right of redemption was 
gone ; and it may be said that in such a case the mortgagee 
should notify the mortgagor that the equity of redemption 
is still available. In this case—and I am only dealing 
with this case—there is not only no evidence or pretence 
that the plaintiff has in fact been in any way prejudiced 
by the conveyance, but there is the positive evidence of 
Mr. Smith himself, who was the defendants’ agent at St.

(1) 6th Kd. p. IMS. (2) 31 Ch. D. 682. (8) |I8U4| A. C. 160.
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■lolm, that about a week after the sale he told the plaintiff 1007. 
that by the terms of the mortgage if she failed in her 1‘atchkh 

l«iyments the property would become the property of the Th»Q'u'»i>i 
1‘ompany, but if she paid the balance, that is, the amount «ml»** 
due on the property, the company would give it back to (
her. The defendants’ right to their expenses arises out of 
their contract with the plaintiff ; it is not in the discretion 
nf the Court whether they shall be allowed or not. The 
right to them, resting as it does substantially upon con­
tract, can only Ire lost by some inequitable conduct on the 
part of the mortgagee amounting to a violation or culpable 
neglect of duty under the contract. See CottereU v. 
finition (IX

The exceptions will all bo disallowed, except as to the 
#5. The report will be varied by making the sum due 
#81)4.92 instead of 88(19.92, and it will be confirmed in 
other respects. The amount will be paid into Court be­
fore 1st May next to the credit of this cause, and on such 
payment, and payment of the taxed costs, the defendants 
will reconvey to the plaintiff. In case of default in pay­
ment. then the bill will stand dismissed with costa.

(1) !.. R. 8 Ch. 2UÔ.
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ÏH1BIDKAV v. LkHLANV.

t'reditoes' deeil - Malinin in hands of I nutter—Re/s iy ment /«> 
debtor ( 'ollertion of debts due estate—Seytiyence of trustee 
Employment of attorney—Finding» of Referee.

A trustee under a deed of assignment for the lieneth of rreditor> 
ordered to pay to the debtor I w lance of estate in his hands, 
where eighteen years had elapsed from the time of the 
assignment, though hut two creditors had executed the deed, 
it not ap|H*aring that other creditors, if there were any, had 
ever shewn an intention of assenting to the deed and the 
Court la-ing of opinion that they would now In* precluded 
from doing so.

A trustee under a deed for t he benefit of creditors may employ 
an attorney to collect debts due the estate.

Where an attorney employed for the purpose by a trustee undei 
an assignment for the benefit of creditors collected $211.38 of 
$1,028.45 book debts due the estate, and it appeared that 
mostly all of them were for small amounts, many l>eing for 
less than a dollar, and that one of the reasons for making the 
assignment was the difficulty experienced hy the assignor in 
collecting even good <l<-hiit was held that the truetei 
should not Ik? charged with a sum as for debts that he should 
have got in.

The finding of a Referee upon ouest ions of fact depending upon 
evidence taken viva voce lietore him will not Ik? disregarded 
except in case of manifest error.

Kxceptinns to report of Referee on bill for an account 
ing. The facts are fully referred to in the judgment of 
the Court.

Argument was heard August 25. 2fi. 1900.

James Friel. for the plaintiffs.

H\ /f. ('handler, K.(\. and //. A, I’onrll. K.C.. for the 
defendants.

1907. February 19. Barker, J. : —

The defendant Le Blanc died after an answer had been 
put in, and the suit was amended by substituting the pres 
ent defendants who are his devisees. Personally they an- 
under no resjMmsihility us to the transactions involved in
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i hi; suit, ho l Imvc for convenience preserved the original 
title of the cause, and to avoid misapprehension I shall 
refer to the original defendant LcBlanc, when I use the 
word defendant. This matter comes before me by way of
• xceptions, filed by both parties, to the Referee's report on 
; special inquiry made as to the dealings between them. It 
seems that at the time that the arrangement between the 
plaintiffs and defendant was made, the plaintiffs owned cer­
tain marsh and uplands in the county of Westmorland. 
which they hail for sometime occupied and farmed, and 
ipon u jHirtion of which they had carried on the business 
if manufacturing brick. In March, 1889, the plaintiffs, who 
ipjarently had not much business experience or capacity, 
found themselves unable to meet their payments. not,as they 
alleged, that they were insolvent in the sense of their lia­
bilities being in excess of the value of their assets, but from 
i heir inability to procure such ready money as they required 
lor immediate use. They then applied to the defendant, 
who was a brother-in-law to the plaintiff Thibideau, for 
issistance. and as a result of the negotiations which then 
look place, the plaintiffs conveyisl all their real estate 
ilisolutely to the defendant for an expressed consideration 
'f $2,000, the amount at which the plaintiffs then estimated 
their liabilities, and at the same they executed to the 
lefendant a chattel mortgage on all their personal prop- 
rty to sis-ure the sum of $2,000 and interest at seven per

• ent., payable in six mouths. It was a part of the arrange­
ment made at the time, that the defendant was to borrow

il the security of the property and such of his own prop- 
rty in addition as might be necessary for the purpose, the 

-urn of $2,000, with which he was to |iny the plaintiffs' 
lebta or settle with their creditors in some way. The 
defendant did borrow this $2,000 from Judge Wells, and as 
> security for its repayment he gave a mortgage on all the 
plaintiffs' real estate which hail been conveyed to him, and 
«ime land of his own. This mortgage is dated March 14, 
I SSI). The defendant gave $500 of this money to one of 

< he plaintiffs and he retained the balance. On the 10th of 
\pril following—that is, a month after which the original

4H7
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Bark nr. J.
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1907. transaction took place—the plaintiffsexecuted an assignment
r’HminKAv for the general lieneflt of their creditors to the defendant 
IjkHlanc. The assets professed to l>e conveyed by this assignment are 
H»r«rr. J. thus described : “ Their books of account, book debts, sums

of money due or coming to them on notes, bills of exchange 
or books of account and the sum of money due them from 
Theophilus B. LeBlanc (that is, the defendant) of the town 
of Moncton, balance of the purchase money for brick­
yard land and goods ami chattels conveyed to said Is dHam­
by them in March, A.I). 1889, ami all other property, effects 
and credits wheresoever situate of them the said party of 
the first part, except household furniture, and all the right , 
title, interest, claim and demand whatsoever of them the 
said party of the first part, of, in and to the said debts 
book debts, accounts, moneys, property, notes and bills.’ 
This assignment contains a provision by which the moneys 
realized from the assets conveyed by it,are to be appropri­
ated, first, in payment of the expenses of collection and a 
commission of five per cent, on the sum realized, and 
secondly, in payment of the claims of such of the plaintiffs’ 
creditors ns should execute the assignment within sixty days 
Public notice of this assignment, and of the right of 
the creditors to come in and pnrticijtnte in the fund, was 
duly given. In my opinion the description in this last 
assignment is sufficiently broad to include all the plaintiffs' 
rights in their real and personal property conveyed to the 
defendant by the first two conveyances or the luilance of 
moneys realized from them after the trusts upon which 
these conveyances were made had been performed and tin- 
objects for which they were made had lieen realised. This 
residuum, if I may so call it, would be held by the 
defendant under the general assignment for the lienefitof 
creditors and subject to the trusts declared in that instru­
ment. 'Hie first question to be determined is one of fact ; 
that is, What were the purposes and objects for which the 
first two conveyances were made and accepted, and for 
whose benefit and with what object was the brick-making 
business carried on by the defendant, as it in fact was 
carried on during the years 1889. 1890 and 1891 ' The
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plaintiffs in their bill allege that the defendant during 
these years had full charge of the brick-yard and carried 
on the business, though they and a son of the plaintiff 
tlormier worked at the business; and in the tenth section 
they allege that the defendant said he would manage the 
business for them, and that they would have an oppor­
tunity of redeeming their property ; and in the eleventh 
section they allege that " during the time he ran the brick 
business for the plaintiffs ” he made large profits. The 
defendant admits that he did agree with the plaintiffs to 
assist them in the running of the business ; that lie sold 
most of the bricks and collected money for them, and paid 
the wages and expenses. He says : “ I was anxious to 
help the plaintiffs, and we hoped that between us we could 
run the. business and pay off the debts due by the plain­
tiffs and the mortgage against the property out of the profits 
of the business, and was willing to do what I could to assist 
the plaintiffs to carry this out.” In the twelfth section of 
his answer he says that " the business was not carried on 
after the end of 18111, as it was unprofitable, and 1 could not 
carry it on any further myself, and the plaintiffs them­
selves were unable to carry it on.” I shall not stop here­
to define the exact relation then created between these 
parties as to the business, so as to determine the principle 
upon which liability for losses should fall, further than to 
sav that I think there was no partnership created. I think 
the plaintiffs correctly describe the business as being 
carried on by the defendant for them, in the sense that he 
was the legal owner of the property, took the control, and 
had the management of the business for the same purpose 
as that for which the property was transferred, that is, to 
realize a fund for the jNiyment of the plaintiffs' creditors, 
and in that way for the plaintiffs themselves. For the 
prois-rty itself and the profits of the business, if there 
were any, the defendant must in any event lx- accountable. 
If from all sources the business and property realized mon- 
Ilian enough to meet the debts and other legitimate charges 
so that they are paid, or for the purposes of this suit, 
must be so regarded, what remains, whether in the nature
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transaction took place—the plaintiffsexecuted an assignment 
for the general lienefit of their creditors to the defendant 
The assets professed to 1» conveyed by this assignment are 
thus described : Their books of account, book debts, sums 
of money due or coming to them on notes, bills of exchange 
or books of account and the sum of money due them from 
Theophilus B. be Blanc (that is, the defendant) of the town 
of Moncton, balance of the purchase money for brick­
yard land and goods and chattels conveyed to said LeBlanc 
by them in March, A.D. 1889, and all other property, effects 
and credits wheresoever situate of them the said party of 
the first part, except household furniture, and all the right, 
title, interest, claim and demand whatsoever of them the 
said party of the first part, of, in and to the said debts, 
hook debts, accounts, moneys, property, notes and bills.’ 
This assignment contains a provision by which the moneys 
realized from the assets conveyed by it, are to be appropri­
ated, first, in payment of the expenses of collection and a 
commission of five per cent, on the sum realized, and 
secondly, in payment of the claims of such of the plaintiffs' 
creditors ns should execute the assignment within sixty days. 
Public notice of this assignment, and of the right of 
the creditors to come in and i«irticii>ate in the fund, was 
duly given. In my opinion the description in thin last 
assignment is sufficiently broad to include all the plaintiffs' 
rights in their real and personal property conveyed to the 
defendant by the first two conveyances nr the balance of 
moneys realized from them after the trusts upon which 
these conveyances were made hod been performed and the 
objects for which they were made had been realized. This 
residuum, if I may so call it, would be held by the 
defendant under the general assignment for the lienefit of 
creditors and subject to the trusts declared in that instru­
ment, The first ipiestion to be determined is one of fact ; 
that is, What were the purposes and objects for which the 
first two conveyances were made and accepted, and for 
whose benefit and with what object was the brick-making 
business carried on by the defendant, as it in fact was 
carrierl on during the years 1889. 1890 and 1891 ’ The
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plaintiffs in their bill allege that the defendant during 
these years had full charge of the brick-yard and carried 
on the business, though they and a son of the plaintiff 
• fermier worked at the business: and in the tenth section 
they allege that the defendant said he would manage the 
business for them, and that they would have an oppor­
tunity of redeeming their property : and in the eleventh 
section they allege that “ during the time he ran the brick 
business for the plaintiffs " he made large profits. The 
defendant admits that he did agree with the plaintiffs to 
assist them in the running of the business ; that he sold 
most of the bricks and collected money for them, and paid 
the wages and expenses. He says: “I was anxious to 
help the plaintiffs, and we hoped that between us we could 
run the business and pay off the debts due by the plain­
tiffs and the mortgage against the property out of the profits 
of the business, and was willing to do what I could to assist 
the plaintiffs to carry this out." In the twelfth section of 
his answer he says that " the business was not carried on 
after the end of 1801. as it was unprofitable, and I could not 
carry it on any further myself, and the plaintiffs them­
selves were unable to carry it on." I shall not stop here 
to define the exact relation then creuted between these 
parties us to the business, so as to determine the principle 
upon which liability for losses should fall, further than to 
say that I think there was no partnership created. I think 
the plaintiffs correctly describe the business as being 
carried on by the defendant for them, in the sense that he 
was the legal owner of the property, took the control, anil 
hnd the management of the business for the some purpose 
as that for which the property was transferred, that is, to 
realize a fund for the payment of the plaintiffs’ creditors, 
and in that way for the plaintiffs themselves. For the 
property itself and the profits of the business, if there 
were any, the defendant must in any event be accountable. 
If from all sources the business and property realized more 
Ilian enough to meet the debts and other legitimate charges 
so that they are |>aid, or for the purposes of this suit, 
must be so regarded, what remains, whether in the nature

tilt
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of property undisposed of or in money, must go lack to 
the plaintiffs.

After so long a lapse of time, and in the absence of 
any very well-kept account by the defendant, there are 
necessarily difficulties in the way of reaching accurate 
results as to some of the transactions involved in this 
account. The defendant is not charged with default in 
the management of the brick-making business; it is only 
alleged against him that as lietween him and the plaintiffs 
he has satisfied, by the use or disposal of the property con­
veyed to him for that purpose, the plaintiffs’ liabilities, and 
that whatever remains in his hands, subject to charges for 
interest or remuneration, should be handed bock to them. 
The object of the account-taking is to ascertain what 
amount of money came into the defendant's hands under 
these assignments for the purposes for which they were 
made, and what the defendant has done with it. I shall 
not deal with the exceptions separately, for the account can 
lie more conveniently dealt with in a more general way. 
It naturally divides itself into four divisions: (1) the 
moneys derived from the brick-making business; (2) the 
money derived from a sale or disposal of the personal 
property not involved in the brick business; (3) the money 
chargeable against the defendant for debts collected under 
the trust deed : and (4) the money for which the defendant 
is accountable by way of rent or otherwise by reason of 
his use and occupation of a portion of the real estate. 
Taking these in their older, what an: the facts as to the 
business ? In the schedule of property assigned by the 
chattel mortgage it will be seen that, in addition to the 
plant for carrying on the business, there was on hand 
00,000 bricks and 150 cords of wood. These bricks were 
sold and the wood was used in the business ami go to make 
up the so-called profits. It is in my view of no import­
ance in what account this stock on hand is included, for, as 
I have already pointed out, it is clear to my mind that the 
understanding was, and the object of the plaintiffs in mak 
ing the assignments was, to secure by the assistance of the 
defendant from the use or disposal of the property money
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Ui pay their debts : and it is of no importance whether the 
money was realized ns profits of the business or as pro­
ceeds of tile sale of property, or otherwise. The Referee 
has made up the account on the basis of the defendant 
retaining all the property, but I think it should be stated 
on a different basis. He has reported a profit on the three 
years’ transactions of $2,(149.74—that is, a profit in Ï889 
of $2,(182.28. a loss in 1890 of 8591.79, anil a profit of 
$559.26 in 1891. Both sides agree that these figures are 
wrong, especially as to the wages' account the plaintiffs 
charged to the defendant. As 1 state this business account 
it shews a profit, or rattier a net surplus, of $743.77, after 
allowing the defendant credit for the moneys actually paid 
on the plaintiffs' account and charging him with $210. the 
value of the wood on hand when the business closed.

Business for 1889.
Total expenditure us per Referee. .................... 84.717 55

Add cash paid plaintiffs........ ...................... 135 92

$4,853 47
Deduct item 50,000 brick............. 8500 00

“ cord wood,................ 300 00 800 00

Expenditure,.............. $4.053 47
Total receipts as per Referee....... $7,399 83

Deduct wages......................... 766 08 $6,633 75

Surplus....................... 82,580 28

1890.
Total expenditure as per Referee, ......................  «2,942 99

Add rash paid for plaintiffs,

$3,225 45
Total receipts as per Referee...........  82,351 23

Deduct wages........................ 619 54 1,731 69

1907. 
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Deficit. $1,493 76
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1907. 
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1H91.

Total expenditures as per Referee......................... ><1,036 81
Add cash paid for plaintiff's............................ 432 3!<

81,1)69 20
Total receipts as per Referee, ......... 82,096 06

Deduct wages.............................. 469 61 1,626 45

I lefieicnev........... ............. 8342 75

Wood on hand, 8210.00. charged to defendant.
Net surplus, 8743.77.

The business was not carried on afterwards, and if I 
am correct in my statement of the results, the stock on 
hand in 1889. as well as that manufactured afterwards, had 
all been disposed of. 8734.77 stood to the credit of the 
fund for the payment of debts, and the plant used in the 
business still was on band though depreciated in value by 
the wear and tear of three seasons' work. The plaintiffs 
hail contributed to that result by their labor for which the)' 
received something in return, and the defendant had given 
his services whatever they were without remuneration.

We come now to the money derived by the defendant 
from the sale of the property, and first as to the real estate. 
The Referee reports that six acres of marsh were sold in 
1895 to Rupert Kinney, and eight and a quarter acres of 
upland were sold to one (lanong, but at what particular 
time he was unable to ascertain. No evidence of tin- 
actual price paid for the lands was given, but the Referee 
has reported that the value of the Gaming lot is 880 and of 
the other. 8420, in all 8500. and I think the defendant must 
la- charged with this sum. It seems also that in 1896, the 
defendant borrowed 8600 for which he gave a mortgage to 
Me-Sweeney, which is unpaid. As to the disposal of tin- 
persona! property conveyed by the chattel mortgage, the 
Referee reports as follows : “ The 50,000 brisks were sold 
by the defendant during the brick-making season of 1889 
for the sum of 810 per thousand. The 150 cords of wood 
were used at the brick-yard during the brick-making
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season of 1889, anil all other personal property meiitioneil 
in said bill of sale was left on the said property deeded by 
said plaintiffs to said T. B. Le Blanc, and used on said farm 
or in said brick-making business from the date of the said 
assignment until the spring of 1892, when the said defend 
ant took and removed therefrom the following articles men­
tioned in the bill of sale, that is to say, the bay horse, which 
he afterwards disposed of to one Thomas ( lanong for 80 
cords of wood, of the value of 81.50 per cord ; the one 
single truck wagon : the four sheep and their increase up to 
the spring of 1892, which at that time had increased to ten. 
and which were of the value of S3 each : one of the sets of 
bob sleds and the 10,090 feet of boards. The plaintiff's re­
tained the black horse, the single driving wagon, tin- double 
truck wagon, the red cow, the brawn cow and the calf, and 
used and converted the same to their own use. All the 
remainder of the personal property mentioned in the bill of 
sale, consisting of the following articles : two sets of 
double harness, one set of single harness, one plow, 
one pung, one cart, one cart-saddle, the brick-making 
machine and the wheel barrows were left on the farm 
or in the brick-yard from the spring of 1892 with­
out being under the apparent control of any one, with 
the exception of the brick-making machine, a portion of 
which the said defendant afterwards loaned to one Cum­
mings, to lie used in his brick-yard, and some of the 
wheel barrows, which were taken away by a man named 
Boss, and removed to Bathurst, and said last-mentioned 
articles, including that portion of said brick-making 
machine left in said brick-yard, and the remainder of said 
wheel liarrows are at the present time in such a dclapidated 
condition that no portion of the same is of any value what­
ever.” There seems to be no doubt as to the defendant 
having actually taken for his own use the property as the 
Referee has found. The Referee lias charged him 8355 for 
the bay horse, a truck wagon, the sheep, a set of sleds and 
the boards, and this sum is said to be much licyond their 
value. Except the sheep, all of this property had tieen used 
m the brick-yard for three years. Twelve dollars a

M3
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I housand for boards of that class does seem excessive, and 
that the defendant would sell a horse worth $150 for $45 
worth of cordwood seems unreasonable. 1 think the $355 
slioiild be reduced to $250. The Referee has also charged 
l lie defendant with $400 as the value of the brick-making 
machine, and with $24.50 as the value of seven wheel bar 
rows. Tlw former snm seems to be excessive. It was a 
second-hand machine when the plaintiffs bought it, and I 
think $300 is full value for it. As to the wheel liarrows, 
I think the defendant ought not to be charged with them. 
The plaintiffs were there on the ground ; they took and 
retained a considerable portion of the property, and if these 
liarrows were of any value I think they ought themselves 
under the circumstances to have taken care of them.

As to the third division—the debts collectisl—I think 
the Referee has also erred. He has reported that there 
was no wilful neglect on the defendant s part, but he has 
at the same time charged him with $tilti.4H for debts 
which might have lieen collected in addition to $211.33 
actually collected. The bonk debts assigned by the trust 
deed amount in all to $1,023.45, distributed among cighty- 
tive persons. One amount is $331, but the others arc all 
for small amounts, many of them less than a dollar. The 
defendant gave the list over to Mr. tiirouard, a solicitor, for 
collection. He collected the $211.33, hut no more. He was 
examined by the Referee and gave some explanations as to 
the difficulties lie met with: the amounts were small, and 
in many instances there were contra claims practically 
balancing the account. Mr. (lirouard’s explanations natur­
ally, after a lapse of some seventeen years, are somewhat 
general and not so satisfactory as one would like, but it is 
worth remark that in the case of debts so easily collect­
able as the Referee seems to have thought these were, 
it is a wonder the plaintiffs themselves, pressed as they 
were for money, hail not made some eltort to collect these 
debts before assigning ; $til(i.4!l would have been a res[iect- 
nble payment on an indebtedness of $2,(MX). There is no 
doubt, I think, that the defendant was quite within his 
right to employ an attorney to collect these accounts, and
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then; is uo Question mode as to the propriety of selecting 
Mr. Girouard for the purpose. In that case the onus is 
upon the plaintiffs to shew the liability : In re Brier (11. 
'Hie difficulty of collecting good debts is put forward by 
tilt- plaintiffs themselves in their trust deed as one of the 
reasons rendering the assignment necessary. I think the 
defendant ought not to be charged with this sum.

This brings me to the last division—the charge for the 
use and occupation of that [uirt of tin; premises which the 
defendant occupied and practically used as his own for 
several years. The permanent improvements placed on 
them the Referee reports as worth $1)27.SO, and as he has 
stated the account, there was a balance of $43') due by 
defendant to the end of 1003. Owing to twoclerical errors, 
this balance should Is; $-245. The item of $1,314 should 
Is- $1,404, ami the item of $100 is a mistake for $180. 
Then-are some items in the account for IS04 and 1805 
about which then- may he some Question, ami to which 
objections have Ix-en filed. They are, however, small in 
amount. In reference to these, as well as other matters 
with which 1 have already dealt, I desire to say that the 
finding of a Referee as to Questions of fact should not 
lightly he set aside. Referees are the sworn officers of this 
Court to whom, except in special cases, matters of account­
ing go for investigation. They have the witnesses before 
them, and their conclusions upon Questions of fact depend­
ing in whole or in part upon oral testimony submitted to 
them, ought not to he disregarded except in cases of mani­
fest error : Thomas v. Uirmn (2). 1 have already pointed
out that whatever property remains undisposed of after 
the trusts of these assignments are satisfied should go 
back to the plaintiffs as they have asked by their bill, and 
the present value of that property is therefore unimport­
ant. The addition to its value by reason of permanent 
improvements is accounted for as well as any diminution 
properly chargeable against the defendant. A motion was 
made by the plaintiffs to amend their hill hv striking out
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1907. certain win’d* in sections II mid 12 which allege that the
Tmihujhai brick business was to be carried on for the plaintiffs. I 
LkBi-anc. must refuse that motion, for I think the allegation as it is 
itorki r. .1. is entirely supported by the evidence. If it were other­

wise it would be difficult to establish any fiduciary relation 
as to that method of using the property between the 
parties, or to understand why all the expense of taking 
the account of the business was incurred. The defendant 
was a mere volunteer in this matter, doing the best he 
could in the supervision he gave to the business, and the 
plaintiffs were there themselves at work all the time and 
found no fault with the management. If, under these cir­
cumstances, there was a loss, it would lie as unreasonable 
that the defendant should bear it as it would be that he 
should, in the case of profits, hold them for any other pur 
pose than for the payment of the plaintiffs’ debts. I think 
there is a balance due to the plaintiffs of $912.48, stated 
as follows

Total Account.
Receipt».

Amount borrowed from Judge Wells,.........$2,000 00
Sale of real estate, Kinney & Ganong........  500 00
Amount borrowed from McSweeney, for

which property mortgaged....................... 600 0
Cash from Bliss Thibideau......................... 150 0
Debts collected................................................... 211 38
Surplus of brick account,.............................. 743 77
Horse, wagon, sheep, bob-sleds and boards, 250 00
Brick machine................................................... 300 00
Use and occupation to end of 1903............ 345 00

" " 1904............ 220 70
" “ •• 1905............. 271 30

15,000 feet pine logs at $8.00......................... 120 00
8,000 feet spruce and hemlock at $4.00, . 32 00
8,000 feet spruce framing at $4 00 ........... 32 00

40 yards building stone at $1.50,......... 60 00

$5,836 16
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KxpeiidUure*.
New barn,....................................
Clearing land.............................
Ditching land.............................
Stevenson, cash,..........................
Cormier’s note,.................... ......
Patrick Cormier...........................
Debts................................................
K. Cirouard, .................................
Wells’ mortgage and interest, . .

1907
* 400 00 Thibidkaii

208 00 I.KKI.AN< ’.
19 80 Bark nr. J.
12 00
23 oo

500 00
926 04

4 00
4,830 83 4,923 67

Balance due,...................................... *912 48

There remains hut one other question which is not 
«et up in the answer hut which was raised at the hearing ; 
that is, that the creditors are not in any way jiarties to this 
suit, and therefore no decree can be made by which the 
property in the defendant’s hands for the benefit of credi­
tors can be ordered to be reconveyed to the plaintiffs 
unless all the debts had been fully paid or are to be so 
treated as between the parties to this suit. I think it right 
to state, in view of any appeal which may be taken from 
the decree about to be pronounced, that in my opinion the 
property ordered by it to be transferred to the plaintiffs is 
held by the defendant in trust for the unpaid creditors 
who have placed themselves in a position to take a benefit 
under the trust deed, if there are any. The evidence 
shews that it was executed by two alleged creditors at the 
time it was executed by the parties in April, 1889, now 
nearly eighteen years ago. The two creditors who executed 
the deed are Toombs and Girouard, as assignees of one 
William J. LeBlanc, who was then an insolvent, and 
B. Toombs & Co. Strange to say 1 cannot find either of 
these names in the list of the plaintiffs' creditors in March, 
1889, or in the list of debtors paid. It appears that 
Toombs & Co. also failed. Girouard, who acted as the 
solicitor in making all these transfers by the plaintiffs, 
who was a witness to the execution of the trust deed and 
collected for the defendant such sums as were collected of 
the debts, says in his evidence : “ I do not remember that
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I9U7 Toouilw il Co. rendered ni<‘ an account in this case. I Ho 
thiiudkav not remember making inquiries of tlie plaintiffs as to how 

i.kHlam- they stood with Toombs & Co. Toombs & Co. failed. I 
iiarkiir. .i did not inquire into their estate. I do not remember that 

I ever tiled any account with the assignees of Toomha <Ir 
Co. in this matter. 1 do not know who the assignee was 
Karlier in his evidence he speaks of there lieing cross 
accounts between Toombs and the plaintiffs. Speaking of 
the other claim, (lirouard says that the money which he as 
attorney for the defendant collected on the plaintiffs’ ac­
count. and which I have allowed at #211.38, he appro­
priated in " the William .1. LeBlanc claim as
assignee of that estate, which he says amounted to #300.08. 
as appeared from Is-Blanc’s own books. The Keferce does 
not seem to have lieen impressed with the industry dis­
played by Mr. (lirouard in his collection of the plaintiffs 
debts, and he expresses the opinion that their estate has 
made a loss of #010.49 through his negligence in this res­
pect. While there may be some foundation for this vie» 
it is to bo recollected that not only were the amounts small 
and distributed among a large number of persons, but in 
many instances there were contra accounts which reduced 
the claims, and many of the persons had themselves be­
come bankrupt and gone out of business. The assignment 
for the benefit of creditors was made in April, 1889, no» 
nearly eighteen years ago. and upwards of fourteen years 
before this suit was commenced, and. with the exception of 
the two alleged creditors who executed the deed at the 
time it was made, there has lieen nothing to shew on the 
part of the others anything amounting to acquiescence in 
the deed or indirectly an intention on their part to jiartici- 
pate in its benefits one way or the other. Tl.uy have 
remained altogether inactive. This suit was commenced 
in December, 1903. and it is not an unfair inference to 
draw that the nature and object of it has become well- 
known to many of the so-called creditors. Notwithstand 
ing this, and the filet that the litigation has now been 
pending for over three years, no one creditor has intervened 
in any way with a view of enforcing his claim under the

9800
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trust deed or otherwise. Under all these circumstances I 
feel justified in dealing with this estate on the basis that 
all unpaid creditors, if there are any, have long since 
abandoned any right which they may have had to come in 
under the trust deed, and that the rights of the parties to 
this suit should be determined on that basis. The deed 
itself was only made for the benefit of those who should 
come in and execute it within sixty days from its date. 
While that period is not exclusive, it is a provision which 
lias some significance after so long a period has elapsed. 
In Oould v. Hubert non (1), the creditor was not permitted 
to come in under the deed where a much less time had 
elapsed than in the present case. The Vice-Chancellor 
says: " This is not a trust of which the plaintiff" is entitled 
to claim the benefit. I have never intended to say that 
actual execution of a composition deed by a creditor was 
necessury if tile creditor had clearly expressed his inten­
tion to accede to it. But I am not aware of any case which 
lias gone the length of deciding that time is to go for 
nothing : and that, although the deed prescrilies a fixed 
time for its execution, the creditors are to lie allowed all 
time or any time. That is not the law. The time pre­
scribed by this deed is six months. The plaintirt" did not 
shew any intention to come in under the deed for a period 
of several years after she had notice of it." In Xiclioluon 
v. Tulin (2), the Vice-Chancellor says : "The Court requires 
it to be shewn first that the |>erson claiming is a creditor, 
and then that he has acted under the deed." And in Biron 
v. Mount (3), the Master of the Rolls says: “ The principle 
is very well laid down by Lord St. Leonards in Field v. 
hard Demonghmore(4), where he states that ' it is not ulwo- 
lutely necessary that the creditor should execute the deed ; 
if he has assented to it, if he has acquiesced in it or acted 
under its provisions and complied with its terms, and the 
other aide express no dissatisfaction, the settled law of the 
< smrt is that he is entitled to its benefits.........About that,"

(1) 4 I led. A 8. SOU. (3) 24 Bear. 042.
(2| 2 K. A J. 18. (4) 1 Dr A W. 227.

VOL. IIL N- S. K. K. -30.

11(07.
Th IRIDIC A l' 

LkBlanc. 

I Marker, .1.



450 NEW BRUNSWICK WJUITV REPORTS.

1007. says the Maxtor of the Rolls, “I entertain no doubt, but 
Tiiibiukai | apprehend he must for this pur|M>so, do some act which 
LkHlani . amounts to ac<|uiescpnce. It is not sufficient for him merely 
Marker. ,i. to stand by and take no jwirt at all in the matter." That 

is precisely what all these parties seem to have done, and 
I see no reason why these plaintiffs should not get their 
property back, because it is possible that some creditor 
may hereafter wish to participate in this fund, when no 
such creditor has, during all these years, actually done so, 
w’hero there is no reason for thinking that any will come 
forward, and every reason for thinking that if lie does his 
right to do so at this late date would, under all the cir­
cumstances, not be recognized or sustained.

Provision, however, must be made for the two persons 
who have executed the deed, that is if they really are 
creditors. Mr. Girouard seems to have appropriated tint 
*211.38 collected by him for the defendant, in payment to 
himself as trustee of William J. LeBlanc of an indebtedness 
due by the plaintiffs, amounting, as he said, by Le Blanc's 
books, to 83(10.08, in which case there would lie a balance 
coming to the LeBlanc estate and all of the Toombs’claim for 
which provision should lie made. The defendant does not 
seem to have given much, if any, attention to his duties or 
responsibilities as trustee under the deed for the benefit of 
creditors, and he must be held responsible for the proper 
appropriation of this 8211.38. I have already pointed out 
that in the list of persons to whom the plaintiffs were in­
debted in March, 1889, there is no reference cither to 
William J. LeBlanc or Toombs, and as that information is 
furnished this Court in reply to a special inquiry, 1 must 
infer that the plaintiffs did not owe either of them when 
they assigned. Neither does either of these persons appear 
in the list of the plaintiffs' debtors, also furnished by the 
Referee in reply to a special inquiry. In addition to this 
the Referee does not include the LcBlunc estate among the 
debtors paid. I can only conclude that according to the 
Referee's finding there was no outstanding account 
between them, in which case the defendant would be 
properly chargeable with the 8211.38, and not entitled to
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any credit for payment to William J. LeBlanc estate. I 
liave gone through LeBlanc’s evidence and in it while he says 
his books shew a balance due him of 93<i0.0K as due from 
the plaintiffs on April 9,1889, he immediately adds, “ Bliss 
Thibideau (that is, the plaintiff) owed me at the time he 
failed over SlfiO." And it is evident from his cross-exam­
ination that these were credits to which the plaintiff’s were 
entitled which would materially reduce that sum, if the 
balance was not really the other way. The plaintiff 
Thibideau, who kept such accounts as were kept by the 
plaintiffs, says that he could not make up the account be­
tween them and LeBlanc ; that they were in the habit of 
giving him notes for his accommodation ; and that he did 
not think that when they failed they owed LeBlanc any­
thing. The plaintiff Thibideau also says that he thought 
Toombs owed them something when they failed. Accord­
ing to Toombs’ evidence an open account had liecn running 
between these ]>articK for over ten years, and he says that 
the plaintiffs owed him 953.88 on May Hi, 1889. He 
admits, however, that he has not credited the value of 
several sales of bricks charged against him by the plain­
tiffs, which he says are not correct. On his cross-examina­
tion he seems to admit that the amount was not 853.88, 
but something less. The fact is that so mixed up were all 
these transactions, and so carelessly were the accounts kept, 
that at this late date even the parties themselves can tell 
very little about them or get at their tme balance, 
(lirouard was Toombs' assignee, and he never seems to 
have even filed a claim for anything, or in any way done 
anything to get anything from the plaintiffs’ estate. 
Neither is there any exception to the finding of the Referee 
as to the list of creditors and debtors to which I have 
referred, or that the amount paid to creditors should be 
increased by any claim of W. J. Le Blanc’s estate. As to 
the remaining questions of interest to bo allowed to the 
plaintiffs, or remuneration to the defendant, I shall make 
no order except as to interest on the balance found due, 
which should bear interest at five per cent, from the date 
of decree. The data are altogether too uncertain for any

1907.
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1907. satisfactory calculations as to the allowance of interest if 
tuibuiko there were no other objections. As to the remuneration, I 
i.eBunc . do not think the defendant has shewn that he is entitled 
iiurkrr. J. to much consideration ; any interest account would be 

against him, and of that he has the benefit, as I have not 
allowed any. In addition to this his accounts have not 
been satisfactorily kept, and whatever may have been the 
plaintiffs’ laches in bringing this suit, and for which they 
offer a want of means ns an explanation, the defendant has 
no good reason hr give for not having closed this matter 
up long ago.

The defendants must have their costs of these excep­
tions, and the plaintiffs must pay the costs of their ex­
ceptions, which will lx- overruled. The report will be 
varied by substituting as the balance due Sill2.4b instead 
of $0,6(10.87, as found by tbe Referee, which the defend­
ant will pay the plaintiffs, together with costs of suit. 
Order also a re-conveyance of the property unsold and 
delivery of possession.
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THE GAULT BROTHERS COMPANY, LIMITED v. 
MORRELL. 1907.

Merck M.

—No. 3. See ante, p. 173.

Hills of Sale Act — Secret trade agreement—Power to seize goods 
and book debts of debtor.

Plaintiffs in 1898 agreed to supply M. & S., dry goods dealers, 
with goods under an agreement in writing that such goods 
should remain the plaintiffs’ property, and that should the 
plaintiffs at any time consider that the business of M. & S. 
was not being conducted in a proper way or to the plaintiffs’ 
satisfaction, plaintiffs should be “at liberty to take posses­
sion of our stock, book debts and other assets, and dispose 
of the same, and after payment in full of any amount then 
owing to you by us, whether due or to become due, the bal­
ance of the proceeds shall he handed to us.” The agreement 
was not tiled under the Bills of Sale Act, chap. 142,0. S. 1903. 
Goods were supplied from time to time under the agreement. 
On February 17th, 1905, the business not being conducted to 
the plaintiffs’ satisfaction, and M. & K. being insolvent, plain­
tiffs entered the store of M. & S. by force and took posses­
sion of all the stock and effects on the premises, and of the 
books of account. The stock seized was made up of goods 
supplied by the plaintiffs of the value of $5,000, and of goods 
supplied by other unpaid creditors of the value of upwards 
of $10,000. The account books shewed debts due M. & S. of 
the estimated value of $2,000. Later on the same day M. & 
S. made an assignment for the general benefit of their 
creditors :—

Held, (1) that plaintiffs were not limited to taking possession of 
goods supplied by themselves.

(2) that as to goods supplied by the plaintiffs as the property 
therein did not pass to M. & S., the agreement was not with­
in tlic Bills of Sale Act, and that as to goods not supplied by 
plaintiffs as the agreement was not intended to operate as a 
mortgage but asa Uoenst i ike possession, the Act did not
apply.

(81 that while the license in the agreement to take possession of 
t In- booh délits (lid not amount to an assignment, and the 
powers given hy it had not been exercised hy notice to the 
debtors, olnintitfs were nevertheless entitled to them as 
against M. & S.'s assignees.

The • defendant*, J. Otty Morrell and J. Iirishman 
Sutherland, formed a partnership in the fall of 1898 for 
the purpose of carrying on business as dry goods merchants 
in the city of St. John, under the firm name of Morrell & 
Sutherland. The plaintiffs agreed to supply them with 
goods on credit upon the terms of the following agreement
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in writing, dated December 13, 1898. addressed by them in 
the form of a letter to the plaintiffs :

Referring to our proposed line of credit with your 
firm, and to the terms on which goods are to be supplied 
by you, ns discussed and arranged during an interview with 
your Mr. Rodger last month, we beg to confirm what we 
then promised, and we further agree and bind ourselves to 
be- governed by the following terms and conditions, in 
consideration of which you agree to supply us from time 
to time with such goods as may in your judgment be 
reasonable and necessary for the proper carrying on of our 
business, so long as our business relations are mutually 
satisfactory.

1. We shall each draw from the said business in goods 
or cash, or both, not more than #700 per annum.

2. We shall transfer to you ns collateral security for 
advances to be made two ]x>licies of insurance now in force 
amounting to #3,000. The premiums oil said policies we 
will continue to pay out of our annual drawings above 
referred to.

3. We will at once take out policies on our respective 
lives for a sum aggregating #5,000, payable to you as your 
interests may appear, to be held by you as collateral 
security, in addition to policies now' in force. The pre­
miums on said #5,000 to be paid out of and charged to the 
ordinary expenses of our business.

4. We will insure and keep insured our stock to the 
fullest extent possible ; loss, if any, payable to you as your 
interests may appear. Policy to be sent to you as soon as 
received.

5. We will keep you thoroughly posted regarding 
the state of our business, and for your satisfaction and in­
formation will till up certain printed forms to Is- supplied 
by you, and forward same to you weekly.

li. We will permit anyone deputed by you to examine 
our books and inspect our stock at any time, and will give 
such person all the assistance he may require for such 
purpose.

7. We will take stock and prepare a statement of our 
position once a year, and furnish you with full particulars 
of same, and if necessary allow such stock-taking and 
statement to be checked and confirmed by one authorized 
by you for the purpose
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8. It in understood that all goods supplied by you 11)07. 
shall belong to and remain the property of your firm until thk Oault 
paid for, and should you at any time consider that our 
business is not being conducted in a proper way or to your mhitki. 
satisfaction, or that the foregoing agreement is being in an)- Mmomu.. 
way disregarded, you shall be at full liberty to take pos­
session of our stock, book debts and other assets, and dis­
pose of same without let or hindrance on our part, and
after ]>ayment in full of any amount then owing to you by 
us, whether due or to become due, and any expenses in­
curred in the realization of said assets, the balance of the 
proceeds of same then remaining in your hands, if any, 
shall be handed to us. together with any securities held 
by you.

9. We will sign and return to you any notes you may 
require in settlement of goods purchased by us from you 
and will also send weekly remittances on account of such 
notes, or on any open account which you may have against 
us, you to furnish us statements from time to time show­
ing interest pro and con. You will'also allow ns discounts 
on all payments made before the maturity of note or pur­
chase, and we agree to pay interest at the rate of seven per 
cent, per annum for any extra time required by us.

The agreement was accompanied by a letter from 
Morrell & Sutherland to the plaintiffs’ manager, Mr. Rodger, 
in which it was stated that they had noted what he had 
said in regard to supplying them with such goods as might 
in his judgment be reasonable and necessary, but that 
feeling that it was to their mutual interest that the stock 
should be as well-assorted and complete as possible, they 
had no hesitation in placing themselves in his hands, hav­
ing confidence that he would supply them with the beat 
goods obtainable at the lowest possible figure; that in 
regard to paragraph number X of the agreement, that it 
gave him almost unlimited power, but in the event of their 
relations not being mutually satisfactory, should he think 
it advisable to close the account, they had no doubt he 
would be quite willing to allow them a few days in which 
to try and effect a satisfactory settlement of his claim.
<)n May 12, 18011, the plaintiffs wrote to Morrell & Suther­
land. in reply to a request by the latter that their line of
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credit should be increased, that they were depend­
ing too much upon them, the plaintiffs, to stand aside 
while the defendants were taking discounts on outside 
bills. They pointed out that the defendants should buy 
from others on the usual terms, and that by so doing they 
would he enabled to make plaintiffs letter payments. 
Towards the close of 1904 plaintiffs notified Morrell & 
Sutherland that the balance due plaintiffs was large ; 
that their business relations had lecome very unsatisfac­
tory ; that they considered the business was not being con­
ducted in a proper way and to their satisfaction, and that 
the terms of the agreement were not being performed 
by them. Morrell & Sutherland. In January, 1905, 
they again notified Morrell & Sutherland of their dis­
satisfaction with the state ami conduct of the business, 
and of their intention to take possession of the stock in­
trude, book debts, and other assets of the business. On 
January 30th the plaintiffs demanded possession of the 
stock-in-trade, Iwmk debts and assets of the firm, which 
was refused. On February 17th the plaintiffs took forcible 
]M<sacssion of the store and premises, and of the goods anil 
effects therein, and of the books of account, but later on 
the same day they were forcibly dispossessed by Morrell 
it Sutherland. Subsequently on the same day Morrell & 
Sutherland made an assignment to the defendants, Thomas 
H. Somerville and Frederick W. Koach, for the general 
benefit of their creditors. By agreement between the 
plaintiff's and the assignees it was agreed that the latter 
should convert the assets into money, and hold the same 
subject to the order of the Court. The stock and fixtures 
taken over by the assignees were of the value of 815,422.14, 
of which goods supplied by the plaintiffs were of the 
value of #5,470.77 : the book debts were of the estimated 
value of 82,229.00, and shop fixtures were appraised at 
#991. The stock and fixtures were sold by the assignees 
for 80,785.74, and the book debts realized 81,008.94. On 
February 4, 1900, a judgment had been recovered against 
Morrell & Sutherland by one Cohen for 8150.45, and an 
execution issued under which a levy had lieen made by
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the Sheriff upon the whole of the stock-in-trade prior to 1907
the date plaintiffs had entered into possession, but the Tin Oadi.t 1 1 « i » Bmmrammatter had not been proceeded with to sale. At the date compas»
of the assignment Morrell & Sutherland owed the plain- m ; 
tiffs 89,480.16, and their total liabilities were upwards of 
820,000. Additional facts are sufficiently referred to in the 
judgment of the Court.

Argument was heard anuary 25, 1907.

if. (1. Teal. K.C. (C. S. Hanington, with him), for the 
plaintiffs :—

The agreement is not a bill of sale, but if it were, and 
were void for non-tiling, the possession taken before the 
date of the assignment perfected our title as against the 
assignees. The agreement cannot be a bill of sale, for when 
made no indebtedness had been created for which a bill of 
sale could be given. A similar agreement was upheld in 
Franci* v. Turner (1). The agreement is not to be re­
stricted to goods purchased from the plaintiffs, but extends 
to all the stock-in-trade. It is also effective to vest the 
debtors' book debts in the plaintiffs. See Bennett v. Cooper 
(2); Gurnell v. Gardner (3). Under our Bill* of Sale Act, 
chap. 142, C.S. 1903, any invalidity in a bill of sale as against 
assignees is cured by possession. See Parke* v. St. George 
(4); Ex parte Fletcher (5); Coukson v. Swire (6). The 
agreement will be upheld in equity within the doctrine of 
Holnryd v. Marshall (7). Where actual possession is taken 
under a power to enter and seize goods, the grantee obtains 
a title as against the grantor and his assignee : Congreve 
v. Eveil* (8), Hope v. Hayley (9). The judgment obtained 
by Cohen is vacated by the assignment : sect. 9 of chap.
141, C. 8. 1903,

III 25Can. 8. C. K. UR. (6) 5 Ch. D. sou
(6) 0 A. C. 062.
(7) 10 H. L. Cas. 180.
(8) 10 Kx. 287.

(2) 8 Bear. 252.
(3) 4 «iff 020. 
14) 10 A. K. 480

(81 5 K. A B. K28.
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1907. A. I. Trueman. K. C., and J. King Kelley, for the
Tun Oavi.t assignees :
HwitiikiinHkothkkh

The agreement is void as a secret and fraudulent 
arrangement to prefer the plaintiffs as against the debtors 
other creditors, and is also a fraudulent preference within 
the Alignment* and Preference* Act, chap. 141, C. S. 1903. 
It was not to be acted upon by the plaintiffs unless or until 
Morrell & Sutherland became crippled or insolvent. The 
firm's other creditors having no knowledge of it, it became 
a device enabling the firm to acquire a false credit. If it 
was given in good faith it would have been tiled as a bill 
of sale. Where the giving of a bill of sale is purposely 
postponed until the debtor is in a state of insolvency, or 
until the creditor has lost confidence in the debtor, in order 
to uphold his credit and to give him a false standing, the 
transaction is held to be fraudulent as against his general 
creditors. See Ex parte Burton (1); Ex parte Fisher (8); 
Breeee Knox (3); Ex parte K il Her (4). In re Gibson (5). 
In Ex parte Conning (ti), traders, in consideration of goods 
living supplied to them by brokers on credit, signed a writ­
ten document addressed to the brokers, by which they 
undertook and agreed "to hold at your disposal all out- 
stock of soap and raw materials, and from time to time, 
whenever required by you so to do, to execute a valid and 
effectual transfer and assurance of the same to you * *
to the intent that out of the premises all claims and 
demands for the time being owing from us to you may lie 
fully paid and satisfied.'' The document was not registered 
under the Bille of Sale Act. A few days before the traders 
filed a liquidation petition the brokers demanded jsissessiou 
of the stock, but without success. It was held that the 
document was void as against the trustee under the liqui­
dation. Dealing with the argument that the document 
amounted to an equitable assignment, Sir .lames Bacon 
said that if it were such it required registration as much

(II IS Ch. D. 102.
(2) U R. 7 Uh. OHO.
(3) 21 A. R. 203.

(4) 13 Uh. D. 215.
(5) 8 Ch. D. 230.
(«I !.. R. 10 K<|. 414.
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as tliv most formal bill of sale. See also Manchester v. 
IIills ( 1). As a secret and void instrument it is of no avail 
that possession of the stock was taken by the plaintiffs 
prior to the assignment : I bill. In Clarkson v. McMaster 
( 2), Strong, C. J., dealing with the authorities that lay it 
down that a mortgagee may at any time validate n mort­
gage invalid for want of possession or registration, by 
taking possession of the mortgaged property, says that he 
is unable to see how a void security can be revived by the 
creditor simply taking possession of the goods. By section 
5 of the Hills of Sale Act, chap. 142, C. S. lllO.'i, the failure 
to file a chattel mortgage within the time prescribed by 
the Act, renders it void as against the grantor’s assignee. 
Strong, C. J., was also of the opinion in the same case that 
where a mortgage is given in pursuance of an agreement 
that there shall be neither registration nor immediate pos­
session, the mortgage is, on grounds of public policy, void 
'll) initio. That the plaintiff's kept the agreement secret 
for a fraudulent purpose is disclosed from the fact that they 
urged the debtors to buy goods elsewhere on credit, though 
l he agreement contemplated that all their credit was to be 
obtained from the plaintiffs. The agreement only applies 
to goods supplied by plaintiffs. It is wholly ineffective as 
an assignment of the book debts. In Francis v. Turner 
the questions raised here were not discussed. (Iwynne, J., 
however, pointed out that if the agreement there under dis­
cussion could be upheld, a most ingenious device had been 
contrived which would have the effect of overriding and 
rendering nugatory all provisions of the law and all 
decisions of the Courts relating to chattel mortgages, bills 
of sale, and frauds upon creditors. That case is also dis­
tinguishable on the ground that the title to be made out 
was for the purposes of a replevin suit, and was not re­
quired to be absolute as here. The possession taken by the 
plaintiffs was too late after the Sheriff had taken posses­
sion under the Colli n judgment. Possession taken when 
the debtors had become insolvent must be regarded as a

1U07.
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(1) 34 N. 8. 512. (2) 25 Can. S. C. K. 1*1.
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conveyance or asaignment falling within the Alignment* 
and Preferences Act. The agreement should liax’e been 
filed under chap. 14:!, C. 8. 1903.*

Teed, K. C., in reply.

1907. March 22. Barker, J.:—

The material facts upon which this ease turns have 
been agreed upon and stated in the nature of a special cast- 
filed in Court. The defendants, Morrell & Sutherland 
(whom I shall refer to as the defendants), previous to their 
entering into the agreement out of which this litigation 
arises, had been clerks in a dry goods establishment at St. 
,lohn. They were anxious to start a business of their own, 
and they entered into partnership for that purpose. As 
their combined capital consisted of only alsrnt $400, they 
were obliged to make arrangements for procuring goods on 
credit. For this purpose they applied to the plaintiffs, who 
carry on a large wholesale business as dry goods merchants 
at Montreal, and as a result of that application the agree­
ment of December 13, 1398, was made. It is in the form 
of a letter addressed by the defendants to the plaintiffs, 
accepted by them, and acted on by both parties from that 
time until the defendants' failure. During that period—a 
little over six years—the plaintiffs supplied the defendants 
with goods to the value of about 855,000, and on the 17th 
February, 1905, when the plaintiffs took possession, the 
defendants owed the plaintiffs for goods then supplied 
39,486.10. The stock then on hand consisted of goods sup 
plied by the plaintiffs of the value of 85,470.70, and goods 
obtained elsewhere and shop fixtures of the value of 
#9,941.44. making the total value 815.422.14, la-aides which 
there were book debts of the face value of about 82,000. 
These values were fixed by the defendants' assignees on 
taking the inventory made by consent of all parties iinme

* See Hint. 21 Jar. 1, c. 19, s. 11, and 0 Geo. IV., c. 16, s. 72 
(Imp.) as to property in possession of bankrupt at time of bank 
ruptcy passing to his creditors as against the real owner.—Rer.
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diately after the assignment and in pursuance of the agree­
ment then made, as is set out in the special case. The 
defendants’ indebtedness was in round figures $20,000. 
On the 17th February, 1005, but after the plaintiffs had 
taken poeeenion under their agreement, the defendants 
made an assignment for the benefit of creditors to the 
defendants, Roach and Somerville, and under the arrange­
ment to which 1 have just referred they sold the property 
and realized for it $0,785.74, that is 40 per cent, of the in­
ventoried value; and in addition they collected 81,008.94 
of the book debts. These sums are now in the hands of 
the assignees under the tenus of the arrangement as repre­
senting the defendants' assets, to lie dealt with accordingly.

The ijuestinns involved are by no means free from 
difficulties. Before going into a discussion of the three 
separate classes of liability into which the case naturally 
divides it-elf, 1 must say a word as to the agreement itself, 
liecause a <|uestion has been made as to its true construc­
tion. The defendants’ Counsel contended that the license 
contained in the eighth clause was confined to that part of 
the stock which might at the tine of taking ]sisaesaion Is­
on hand and have been supplied by the plaintiffs—their 
own goods—and not to stock procured elsewhere. That is 
not in my opinion its true meaning. Taken as a whole, 1 
think the contract means this. The goods were to be «up- 
piled—the word is not «old—to the defendants to enab’e 
them to establish and carry on a business on their own 
account. By express agreement, however, and as one of 
the conditions u]miii which the goods were supplied, the 
property in them was to remain in the plaintiffs until they 
were paid for. Notwithstanding the legal title was thus 
expressly reserved, the transaction necessarily involved an 
authority for the defendants to remain in possession of the 
goods until default, anil to sell them in the ordinary course 
of their business, for without that the whole object of the 
arrangement would have been defeated. Purchasers from 
the defendants, therefore, on delivery, took the plaintiffs' 
legal title in the goods, whether the defendants ever paid
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tlii' plaintiffs for them or not : üedrick v. Ashdown (1). 
It is obvions, therefore, that it might happen that none 
of the goods supplied by the plaintiffs would be in stock, 
and yet the defendants would lie considerably in debt to 
the plaintiffs for them. As a security for any indebted­
ness arising from transactions under the agreement, the 
plaintiffs were also to have the life insurance policies men­
tioned in clauses 2 and 3, and the benefit of the insurance 
mentioned in clause 4. and the right to take jiossession 
and sell given by clause 8, which I think covered the de­
fendants' entire stock, book debts and assets. Such an 
agreement is, I think, perfectly valid, and one which this 
Court will aid in enforcing unless the Statutes relied on 
by the defendants prevent it. This agreement was not 
tiled either under the Hill* of Stile Act nor under the Act 
relating to conditional sales ; and the contention here is 
that for want of such registry the contract is void as 
against the assignees of the defendants. This raises three 
separate and distinct questions : ( 1 ) as to the goods sup­
plied by the plaintiffs ; (2) as to the goods procured from 
other merchants : and (3) as to the book debts. And some­
what different considerations arise as to each. First, as to 
the goods supplied by the plaintiffs, how are they affected 
by reason of the contract not being registered ? Assuming 
that this agreement is one of that class of documents 
referred to in the original Act passed in 18119 (62 Viet., 
chapter 12), and which, with some amendments, was sub­
sequently re-enacted as chapter 143 of the present Consoli­
dated Statutes, 1903, it was made some months before the 
original Act jiasaed, and there is nothing to indicate that 
these Acts in their general effect were to be retroactive. 
The express provision in sub-section 2 of section 8 of the 
original Act, coupled with the requirements of section 2 
and other sections of these Acts, (mint to an entirely differ­
ent conclusion. Apart, however, from this, these Acts have 
sole reference to competitive claims between the original 
vendor claiming by his reserved title and a subsequent

(11 15 Can. 8, C K. 227.
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purchaser or mortgagee from his vendee without notice 
and for valuable consideration. The failure to register 
only operates against the real owner in favor of a pur­
chaser or mortgagee from the vendee to whom the owner 
had given the possession, and thus clothed with the appar­
ent ownership which jmsession carries with it. No 
purchaser or mortgagee is claiming here, and the Act does 
not invalidate the transaction in favor of an assignee in 
insolvency. So far. therefore, as chapter 143 is concerned, 
it has no liearing on this case. Treating the agreement for 
the present solely in its relation to the plaintiffs’ own goods, 
how is it affected by the BiUa of Sale Act l The Act 
which was in force in December, 1898, when this agree­
ment was made, was 50 Viet., chapter 5, which, for all 
i locations arising here, was re-enacted as chapter 142 of the 
present Consolidated Statutes, and1 to that 1 shall refer. 
That Act only refers to mortgages or conveyances intended 
to operate as such, but conditional sales, where the vendor 
reserves the title, have never been considered within the 
scope of Bills of Sale Acts. They are not mortgages. See 
McEntire v. Crossley (1); Ex parte Crawcour (2). Such 

documents were mode the subject of sjiecial legislation, and 
the persons for whose protection the legislation was had, 
and as against whom the documents were made void for 
non-registry, are entirely different in the two cases. The 
two Acts were designed to remedy distinct evils. As to 
the first question, I think it must be decided in the plain­
tiffs’ favor.

As to the second question, that is as to stock not sup­
plied by the plaintiffs, they say (1) that the agreement was 
not within the Bills of Sale Act, and did not require regis­
try ; and (2) that if it was, they took actual possession of 
the goods before the assignment was made, and in that way 
perfected their title and cured all defects arising from non- 
registry. The original Bills of Sale Act, re-enacted as chap­
ter 75, Consolidated Statutes, 1876, defined the meaning of 
the expression " Bill of Sale” (section 6), and among other
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things it was thereby made to include " powers of attorney, 
authorities or licenses to take possession of personal chat­
tels as security for any debt,” a provision apparently 
copied from the English Act. See section 4 of Act 
41 & 42 Viet., c. 31 (Imp.). There is no similar pro­
vision in subsequent Acts. They contain no interpre­
tation clauses, and so the words in them must be given 
their ordinary and natural meaning. Section 2 of chap­
ter 142, upon which the whole question turns, relates 
solely to mortgages and conveyances intended to operate 
as mortgages of goods and chattels. Is this agree­
ment included in that section, and did these defendants, 
when they executed it, convey by way of mortgage, or 
with the intention that it should operate by way of mort­
gage. goods and chattels To answer this question it is 
necessary to see what the instrument really is, for I do not 
think it was intended to Is- anything different from what 
it really is. It conveys nothing ; it does not profess to 
assign a present interest either in existing property or in 
property to he subsequently acquired. It is a mere 
authority given for a valuable consideration, and, as 1 
think, irrevocable so long as any indebtedness existed by 
the defendants to the plaintiffs, on a certain condition of 
things arising, to take possession of goods capable of iden­
tification and dispose of them, and out of the proceeds to 
pay themselves their indebtedness and account to the 
defendants for the balance. Can such a document be called 
a mortgage ' 1 think not. In Ex parte /'arsons (1),
ls>rd Esher. M. R„ in speaking of a similar document, said : 
“ That the document is not a bill of sale at common law 
eanrtot be disputed. The question is whether any Statuts' 
has made it a bill of sale. It seems to me that it is a bill 
of sale under the Act of 1878, as being within the words 
of section 4, 1 a license to take possession of personal chat­
tels as security for a debt.’ ” That is the interpretation 
clause to which I have referred, and this decision would be 
a direct authority against the plaintiffs on this point if

(1) 16 tj. B. I). 532
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their rights were governed by the original Hill* of Sale 
Act. That same clause provided “that declarations of 
trust without transfer" should be included in the term 
“ bill of sale”; and that fact is assigned by Mellish, L. J., 
in Edwards v. Edward* (1), as a reason for holding that 
equitable titles were within the scope of these Acts. In 
E.r parte Official Receiver ; In re Morritt (2), Cotton, 
L. J., is thus reported : “A mortgage of personal chattels 
involves in its essence, not the delivery of possession, but 
a conveyance of title as a security for the debt." In the 
same case Fry, L. J„ says: “A mortgage conveys the 
whole legal interest in the chattels ; a pawn conveys only 
a special property, leaving the general property in the 
pawnor. A pawn is subject in law to a right of redemp­
tion, and no higher or different right of redemption exists 
in equity than in law ; a mortgage is subject not only to 
the legal condition for redemption, but to the stiperaddcd 
equity. A pawn involves transfer of (sissessioii. * * *
A mortgagee, having the whole legal title to chattels, can 
of course sell them at law.” See Franklin v. Neale (il) : 
Er /Mirte Hulihanl (4), per Bowen, L. J. Those were cases 
of legal titles, where the property was in esse at the time, 
but precisely the same doctrine applies to equitable titles. 
Where the property to be affected by the instrument is not 
in existence at the time, a conveyance which in terms con­
veys a present interest,while it cannot give and does not give 
any legal title, does operate so as to pass the title in equity 
so soon as the property included in the scope of the in­
strument comes into existence : Hnlroi/d v. Marehnll (5). 
Now, what is the position of persons holding a security 
such as these plaintiffs have ! They have no conveyance 
of any kind ; they have no contract for any conveyance. 
They have simply an authority to take possession and sell 
and until they have actually exercised that authority by 
taking possession they have no title. The defendants, up 
to the time of possession being taken, had both the title

Hi 2 t;h. d. an. isi is m. & w. 4M.
(2) 18 Q B. II. 232. (4) 17 Q. B. 1). IMS.

(6) 10 H. U C. 101.
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liH>7. and powsessioii of these goods. In Congreve v. Evetta( 1)
tmk cjaii.t it appeared that a debtor gave a bill of sale by which he 
Broth Kit* r » , . ». » , . *
company, conveyed to his creditors by way of security certain crops

Mokkkm..

Barker. J.

anil other chattels. In addition to this the mortgagee wan
authorized, as a further security, to take possession of and 
sell aft r-acquired property which might be brought on 
the premises. There was as to the latter no assignment of 
it. hut only as here a license to take possession and sell. 
Parke,B„ in giving the judgment of the Court says : “ If the 
authority given by the debtor by the bill of sale had not 
lieen executed, it would have been of no avail against the 
execution. It gave no legal title nor even an equitable title 
to any specific good* ; but when executed not fully and en­
tirely, but only to the extent of taking possession of the 
growing crops, it is the same in our judgment as if the 
debtor himself had put the plaintiff in actual possession of 
those crops. Whether the debtor give the possession of a 
chattel by delivery with his own hands, or point it out 
and direct the creditor to take it, or tell him to take any 
he pleases for the payment of his debt by the sale of it, 
the effect, after actual possession by the creditor, is the 
same." In Reeve v. Whitmore (2). it appeared that an 
assignment of existing chattels by way of mortgage had 
Iss-n made, nccont|>anied by a license to the mortgagee to 
enter anil seize after-acquinsl chattels, and it was held that 
it neither o|a-ratisl as an equitable assignment of the after- 
acquired chattels nor did it give the mortgagee any present 
equitable interest in them. Lord Westbury says : “ If 
there had been, either upon the face of the deed expressly, 
or there could have been collected from the provisions of 
the deed by necessary implication, a contract or agreement 
between the parties that the mortgagee should have a 
security attaching immediately upon the future chattels 
to lie brought on the premises, the mortgagee would have 
had a present interest in all those materials, whether 
manufactured or raw, which after the date of the security 
might have been brought on the brick-field. * * * A

(1) 10 Ex. 290. (2) 4 Deli. J. & 8. 1.
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present contract that the mortgagee shall have a right and 
an interest attaching immediately bv force of the contract 
ii]win all that property which in futuro may In' brought 
on the premises, is clearly different from a contract that 
the mortgagee shall have a power of entering upon the 
premises for the purpose of seizing and taking possession 
of that future property ; and I think that the true extent 
and operation of the deed now before me was simply this: 
viz. : that the mortgagee has passing to him by virtue of 
the contract a right to and a security on and an interest 
in all the projierty in existence at the date of contract ; and 
that the security is .accompanied by a power enabling him 
at any time to enter upon the premises and take the future 
property that may lie found there. A power, however, is 
very different from an interest ; and if the extent and 
limit of the contract lie merely that the mortgagee shall 
have such a power, then an interest will not arise under tin- 
power till the power is exercised.” It is obvious, there­
fore. that there are numerous and substantial distinctions 
Is'tween the rights and remedies acquired by a mortgagee 
of chattels and a mere licencee, such as the plaintiffs are. 
Xi;e Putter non v. KingnUy (1). It may be said that in­
struments by which creditors are authorized to take pos­
session of their debtors' gixsls and sell them in order to 
realize their debt, though not mortgages in form nor in all 
respects mortgages in their effect, are nevertheless as 
capable of being’wed for the disposal of the debtor’s 
property as a mortgage can he, and therefore, unless regis­
tered, they lead to precisely the mischief which Bills of 
•Sale Acts are designed to prevent. That may lie so, hut 
that cannot convert such instruments into mortgages, 
■ ■specially in construing a Statute from which the legisla­
ture. apparently hy design, omitted an interpretation clause 
which would have covered the case. In McKntire v. 
I 'riinnley (2), a discussion arose over a lien agreement, by 
which the chattels were to remain the property of the 
lessors until paid for, and it was sought to establish the

tt;7
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(1) 25 Or. 425. (2) |18U6| A. 0. 467.
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proposition that the instrument was a mortgage anil void 
for lion-registry under the Bill* of Sale Act. Lord 
Herschell says: “ No doubt to some extent that may have 
the effect of giving to the sellers a security such as they 
would have as mortgagees. It may to some extent, as I 
say, give them that security: but I know nothing to pre­
vent such a contract as that being made or having full 
effect given to it. If a contract of that description is 
within the mischief of the Bill» of Sale Art. then the Bill* 
of S<de Act needs amendment. I do not say whether it is 
so or is not ; hut it seems to me iui|iossihle to bring this 
case within the Bill* of Sale Act. because the transaction 
may hear a resemblance to a transaction which would lie 
within it on the ground that it is within its mischief, when 
the initial step to bringing the Bill* of Sale Act into opera­
tion at all fails, namely, that there should have lieen all 
assurance, or an assignment, or a license to seize, or any of 
the other matters referred to ill the Bill* of Sale Act given 
by the bankrupt to some other person."

This case does not therefore come within section 2 of 
the Act. Is it within section 7 That section provides 
that mortgages of chattels given to secure advances to lie 
made to a person to enable him to enter into or carry oh a 
business, unless executed in a certain way and tiled in the 
registry office, shall be void as against certain persons. 
Assuming that the word “advances” includes goods as 
well as money, the argument is answered simply by the 
fact that the plaintiffs have no mortgage and do not claim 
to have one. It is unnecessary, in my view, to consider 
the effect of an actual taking of jsissession of chattels by 
a mortgagee whose mortgage is not registered. Whether 
such a |>ossession taken before the rights of third peraons 
liave intervened excuses the failure to register is a question 
upon which it is unnecessary for me to express an opinion, 
as I think the title of the plaintiffs is not affected by the 
Hill* of Sale Act. It is admitted that they did take actual 
possession on February 17, 1905, before tile defendants 
executed tlieir assignment. There is no question as to the 
right to take possession having accrued to them at that
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tiinu under the license by reason of the defendants’default, 1!M)7.
and as a result of that possession the plaintiffs’ title lie-
mine absolute to the chattels and property seized, which Oumkast,

• * » LlMITKII

admittedly included the remainder of the stock and the „ r 
fixture*. The plaintiffs are therefore entitled to the money Burk<.r , 
represented by their sale.

This brings me down to the last point, ns to the 
moneys represented by the book debts. In the first place, 
does a license to take possession of I sink debts and dispose 
of them for the purposes of realizing money to pay an 
indebtedness create a right capable of being enforced ?
Hook debts are neither goods nor chattels : they are not 
capable of transfer by delivery, and are not within the 
scope of the Bill» of Sole Ad. That future liook debts 
mav !*■ assigned so as to create an equitable interest in 
them is settled by authority. TniUty v. (tffrial Hr- 
ceiver (1), determines that. In case of an assign­
ment of Isiok debts or choses in action, whether they 
are then in runt or are to be acquired at a future time, it is 
necessary in order to perfect the title that notice should be 
given to the debtor. Without that the debtor is not bound, 
and a payment by him to Ilia creditors would lie good. If, 
therefore, the assignee wishes to transfer the debtor’s 
liability to a liability to himself, he must give notice of the 
assignment to the debtor. That is analogous to the case of 
an assignment of a future-acquired chattel : the contract 
itself assigns a present interest which, on the chattel com­
ing into existence, fastens upon it. In the case of a mere 
license to take possession, as here, there is no such assign­
ment ; the efficacy of the right consists in the execution of 
the power. That it was the intention of these parties that 
the book debts should lie made available for the purpose of 
[«lying the indebtedness to the same extent as the chattels 
is leyond question ; and in such a case the precise form of 
the instrument used for the purpose is immaterial. In this 
case it has taken the form of a license, tint why should 
that prevent their intention being carried out ' The case

(1) 18 A. <’. 528.
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wliioli I liave just cite»! ( Tailby v. Official Receiver) arose 
out of a debt paid by a debtor to whom notice had lieen 
given. I»rd Watson says : “ In tlie case of book debts, as 
in the ease of choses in action generally, intimation of 
the assignee’s right must be made to the debtor or obligee 
in order to make it complete. That is the only possession 
which he can obtain, so long as the debt is unpaid, and is 
sufficient to bike it out of the order and disposition of the 
assignor. In this case the appellant’s right, if otherwise 
valid, was, in any ijuestion with the respondent, duly per­
fected by his notice to Wilson Brothers & Co. before Izon 
became a bankrupt.” Lord Macnaghten says: “Yet 
no one can doubt that if Izon (the bankrupt) had at­
tempted to receive outstanding Isxik debts after the 
mortgagee had intervened the Court would at once have 
lent its assistance by the appointment of a receiver." 
What constitutes a taking of possession must of course 
vary according to the nature of the property being dealt 
with. 1 can see no reason, however, why an assignee of 
l«K)k debts cannot as completely perfect his title to them 
by giving notice to the debtors as he can to chattels by 
taking actual [««session of them. Dearie v. Hall (1 ) and 
other cases may l>e cited in support of "this view. Ill that 
case the Master of the Rolls says : “ Whenever it is in­
tended to complete the transfer of a chose in action, there 
is a inode of dealing with it which a Court of Kquity con­
siders tantamount to possession, namely, notice given to 
the legal depositary of the fund. Where a contract res­
pecting property in the hands of other persona who have 
a legal right to the possession is made l*;hind the back of 
those in whom the legal interest is thus vested, it is neces­
sary, if the security is intended to attach on the thing 
itself, to lay hold of that thing in the manner in which its 
nature permits it to be laid hold of, that is, by giving 
notice of the contract to those in whom the legal interest 
is. By such notice the legal holders are converted into 
trustees for the new purchaser, and are charged with res­

it) 3 Russ. 1, 12.
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ponsibility towards him. * • • To give notice is a
matter of no difficulty, and whenever persons, treating for 
a chose in action, do not give notice to the trustee or 
executor who is the legal holder of the fund, they do not 
|x-rfeet their title : they do not do all that is necessary ill 
order to make the thing belong to them in preference to 
all other persons." In HyaU v. Hmvlen (1), the i»rd 
Chief Baron says: "If a Ik mil is assigned the bond must 
lie delivered and notice must be given to the debtor ; hut 
in assignments of honk debts notice alone is sufficient, 
U'Cause there can lie no delivery, and such acts are equal 
to a delivery of goods which are capable of delivery. 
Ilomat says, 1 things incorporeal, such as debts, cannot 
properly be delivered.' This is to shew the nature of 
assignments of debts by notice to the debtor. This clause 
therefore extends to things in action : and all has not been 
done by the assignee to vest the right of them in himself 
and to take away from the bankrupt the power and dis­
position of them, for no notice has lie en given to the 
debtors." I cite these cases chiefly to shew that book debts 
are a species of property of which possession, or at all 
events what' this Court regards as equivalent to possession, 
can lie taken by giving notice to the debtors. There was 
therefore in point of law no difficulty, so far as 1 can judge, 
in the way of these plaintiffs acting under their license 
ami |M‘rfecting their title to the Issik debts by giving 
notice of their right to the debtors, requiring them to pay 
to them as assignees, and in that way seizing and taking 
possession of these debts. In fact, neither the plaintiffs 
nor the assignees gave notice to the debtors except what 
may have lieen done under the arrangement which was made. 
I'lii1 case therefore resolves itself into a contest between 
the plaintiffs on the one aide and the assigm-es on the other 
as to which of them has the siqicrior right to the fund. 
When I say the plaintiffs gave no notice to the debtors, it 
must not Is1 thought that they remained inactive. It is 
necessary to determine the relative position of these jiarties

-171
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1907. at the time the assignment was made. On the 2nd Febru-
thbGavlt ary, 1005, the plaintiffs commenced this suit with the
Broth rrb ,, . , , .
(•ompanv. omect ot enforcing their rights, and among other things

IjIMITKII ... 11^1 «II ”
Mokkki i comPelhng the détendants to permit them to take posses-
, —r , sion of the goods and restraining them from collecting the 

debts, the defendants at that time lieing in default, as was 
alleged, and as the admissions seem to shew was the fact, 
and asking for a receiver. On that day an ex parte 
interim order was granted restraining the defendants from 
assigning the proj>erty,and from collecting the debts. This 
order ran until the 21st February, at which time the plain­
tiff's had leave to move to continue it. On the l(ith Febru­
ary, the defendants (that is, Morrell k Sutherland) moved 
to dissolve or vary the injunction, and after hearing the 
parties, 1 did, on the 17th February, vary the order so as to 
permit the defendants to make an assignment for the bene­
fit of creditors, which, it was alleged, they were anxious to 
do. They accordingly made the assignment on that day. 
On the 21st February, the plaintiffs amended their bill by 
adding Roach and Somerville, the assignees, as defendants, 
and adding the allegations necessary to shew the change 
of interest. On the 3rd March, the'plaintiffs on notice 
moved among other things for a receiver, and in conse­
quence of a discussion which then took place between 
counsel who represen ted not only the parties to the suit but 
individual creditors as well, Sheriff Ritchie was by con­
sent added as one of the assignees, and the arrangement as 
to the taking stock and sidling it was arrived at. The 
plaintiffs then further amended their bill by adding the 
Sheriff as a defendant, and adding the necessary allegations 
as to his appointment and the arrangement for the disposal 
of the assets. This of course obviated the necessity of fur­
ther action until the fund should be in hand for distri­
bution. So far as the assignees are concerned, it is admitted 
that when the assignment was made both of the assignees 
had notice that the plaintiffs claimed the stock and assets 
under the agreement, and that Somerville had previously 
seen the documents |»articularly mentioned in the case; 
that is the agreement and some correspondence which
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took place between the plaintiffs mid defendants about 
the time the arrangement was made and knew' their 
contents. And so far as the lxjok debts were concerned, 
they must also have known that the defendants had been 
restrained by injunction order of this Court from collect­
ing them, and that, but for the arrangement arrived at, 
would also have restrained them as assignees from collect­
ing them. Some <|uestion lias In-ell made as to the title of 
the assignees being superior to that of the defendants, 
whose title they took. There are of course cases in which 
the assignee can set aside certain so-called fraudulent 
transactions in reference to the insolvent’s property which 
he could not himself call in question, and in that way 
acquire property for the creditors which otherwise would 
not have been available for general distribution. This is 
not one of those cases, and the assignees here took this 
property subject to the equities to which it was subject in 
the defendants' hands at the time. And I think this would 
have Isien the case whether the assignees had notice or not : 
In re Atkinsun (1); In re Burr* Trusts (2): Tailhy v. 
Official Receiver (3). When this assignment was made 
the plaintiffs, in reference to these Ixsik debts, had an irre­
vocable authority from the defendants to take possession 
of them and collect them ill order to |iay themselves a debt 
for the non-payment of which the defendants were in 
default. The voluntary assignment made by defendants 
for the Ixmetit of their creditors could not. in the absence 
of some statutory authority for the purpose, deprive the 
plaintiffs of their right and hand over the debts to the 
assignees for the benefit of the creditors generally. The 
plaintiffs had lost no right by laches, immediately on 
their right accruing by giving notice of their dissatisfac­
tion at the manner in which the defendants were carrying 
on their business they attempted to assert their rights and 
take possession. The defendants, in disregard of their 
contract, hindered the plaintiffs from taking jxisseasion,

(1)2 DeO. M. tc O. 140. (2) 4 K. & .1. 227.
(2) 13 A. C. .738, per lord FitzGerald.
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and they then sought for the interposition of this Court in 
aid of their rights. 1 should he disposed to think that 
where a suit is instituted as this was. long before the as­
signment was made, having for one of its objects the 
appointment of a receiver to take jxMsession of the prop­
erty and have the rights in reference to it determined and 
administered by this Court, the plaintiffs were active in 
trying to obtain possession, and at all events had rights 
superior to those of voluntary assignees of the debtor who 
had been enjoined from collecting them. The rule in such 
eases is that the equities of the parties ought to be deter­
mined by a reference to what might have been done by 
any one of them under the powers given them, and their 
priorities will 1>e regulated in reference to these powers: 
Reeve v. Whitmore (1). in that case one Simpson was 
lessee of à brick-yard ; he mortgaged (1) to Hendrick 
(2) to (liven, and Green gave a mortgage or charge on the 
property to Reeve. Green’s mortgage contained a power 
to enter and take into his possession and sell certain future- 
acquired property. Reeve entered and took possession. 
The Lord Chancellor (page 19) says : “Reeve was the 
mortgagee of the equity of redemptiori which remained in 
Simpson after the securities of Hendrick and ( liven, and by 
virtue of his security lie entend into possession of the 
property on the brick-field at the time of his entry : but 
Reeve had express notice of the security in favor of Green 
and therefore of the power thereby given to Green. 
Whilst Reeve continued in that position, the property not 
being converted into money, 1 apprehend that it would 
have l)cen competent to Green and the assignees of Green 
(either the appellant or his assignees in lumkruptcy) to 
enter upon Reeve being so in possession." That is an 
authority for holding that if these assignees were subse­
quent incumbrancers for value with notice of the plaintiffs' 
rights, the plaintiffs would have a prior equity. A fortiori 
they would have priority over mere voluntary assignees of 
an insolvent. It is in this case agreed that in case this Court

(1) 4 DeG. J. Ac N. 1.
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iH of opinion that the plaintiffs are under the agreement 
and facts entitled to have possession of all of the goods, 
chattels, assets and book debts and choses in action, then 
an order is to be made for the payment over to the 
plaintiffs of the money in the assignee’s hands. There 
will Ixj an order to that effect. As to the judgment it is, I 
think, unnecessary to say anything. The judgment credi­
tor is not claiming here ; he is not a party to the suit, and 
the effect of section 9, chapter 141, C. S. 1903, is to give 
the assignment priority over the judgment.

As to the costs, I do not think under the circumstances 
1 ought to make any order. The plaintiffs get the entire 
estate. 1 also reserved the question of costs as to the 
varying the injunction, and as to these J shall make no 
order either.

There will lx* an order for the payment of the whole 
fund to the plaintiffs.
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11)07. THE CANADIAN PACIFIC KAII.WAV COMPANY v. 
Marri,!:. NASON.

Injunction acier Ciap/lrCMtùm of material farta.- tntrrplcialrr 
bill -Affiitaeit ileiiffinn roltaaion.

Till- rule tluiI un un application fur un e.r /mirte injiiiielinn uiiler 
u full end truthful dtoeheure muet be made of ull material 
facte, muet he strictly observed.

When-, in un interpleader suit, an e.r mirte injiinetlun miter wee 
dissulviil fur suppression of material fuels, leave was grunted 
to move uguill fur the order, together with the right to Ah­
ull affidavit denying collusion.

Motion to discharge mi interim injunction order 
granted in an interpleader hill. The facts stiHiciently 
appear in the uent of the Court

Argument was heard March 111. 11)07.

M. (i. Teed. K. C„ and !.. I>. Tilley, for the ili-fi-nd-
ant Nason :—

Plaintiffs have ohtained an injunction restraining us 
from prom-ding with an action they asked us to bring in 
their own interests. Had this information not been sup­
pressed, the otiler would not have been granted. The 
order should lie dissolved for non-disclosure anti misrepre­
sentation of material facts. There is no jurisdiction in 
this Court to grant the relief sought by the hill. If it is 
held by the Maine Court that the money due by the plain­
tiffs to Nason is properly attachable at the instance of 
Nason’s creditors, no decision by this Court to the con­
trary would lie of tiny avail to the plaintiffs. No far as 
the Maine Court is concerned, the only question is whether 
there is money owing by the plaintiffs to Nason which 
may be attached by the Steens under the Maine law. An 
interpleader suit in this Province could not interpret the 
Maine law finally for a Maine Court. Neither should the

5
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action at law in this Province he restrained pending 
the decision of the Maine Court. The bill should have 
been accompanied by an affidavit by some authorized per- 
soii liaving the direction of the suit denying collusion.

F. B. Taylor, for tin- plaintiffs :—

The letter of Beattie must lie read in conjunction with 
surrounding circumstances. The defendant's solicitor had 
written a number of letters urging |>ayinent of the claims 
and threatening suit: The plaintiffs were in a dilemma. 
They could not settle in New Brunswick without regard 
to what might lie the result of the proceedings in Maine. 
They had to invite an action by Nason. But by doing so 
they were not to be taken as giving up any rights they 
might have with respect to contesting it or as descarding 
whatever remedies were open to them for safeguarding 
their interests. All the questions between the parties may 
lie determined in this suit. See Stevenstm v. A nderson (1) : 
Nelson v. Barter (2). An affidavit denying collusion may 
Is- supplied after an interim injunction order is granted. 
See Nelson v. Barter (2). The objection of want of the 
affidavit cannot lie taken on a motion to dissolve an injunc­
tion, hut should be taken on demurrer: Hamilton v. 
Marks (3).

Teeil, K. C„ in reply.

11107. March 22. Barker,.!.:—

On the 21st February last I granted an ej- parte order 
restraining the defendant Nason from proceeding in an 
action at law against the plaintiffs brought for the 
recovery of 870.50 said to Is- due to him for wages. 
That action was commenced on the 17th September. 
100(1 ; a declaration was served on 20th January last, so 
that at the time the injunction was grauteri the time 
for pleading had about expired. The defendants, Alex-

(2) 2 H. A M. 384.
(3) 5 DeG. A S. 638.
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under ami William Steen, were alao by tlie same order 
untrained from proceeding in a certain action lirouglit 
by them in the Stab1 of Maine agamel the plaintiff», in 
which, under the lawa of that State, this same debt from 
the plaintiffs to Nason was attached ill order to compel the 
plaintiff's to pay it to the Messrs. Steen, to whom Nason 
was indebted. The plaintiffs, under the order of this. 
Court, |>aid the money into Court. There is no 
dispute alsiut the debt being due, anil so far as the 
affidavits disclose the facts, there is none as to the 
indebtedness from Nason to the Steens. The plain­
tiffs finding themselves in danger of Isdng held liable to 
pay the money twice, tiled this bill by way of interpleader, 
that the parties might lie driven to set ill' their own dis­
putes as to the money, alsiut which the plaintiff's raise no 
question. This is a motion on the part of the defendant 
Nason to dissolve the injunction, and one of the grounds is 
that the hill was not acconi|ianied by any affidavit denying 
collusion. As to this point, the plaintiff's had taken out a 
summons calling u]sm the defendants to shew cause why 
the affidavit should not be filed. I shall dia]s)sc of that 
application now. No far there does not seem to have been 
any judicial decision in Maine covering this [sirticular case, 
anil opinions seem to differ as to the extent of the jurisdic­
tion given by the Maine statute. To the plaintiffs the ijues- 
tiou is of no moment so long as they are only bound to pay 
once. To the defendant Nason the only difference which 
I caii see is whether the money will go to die Steens to pay 
them or go to Nason himself. This individual case is, how­
ever, one of many likely to arise—in fact others have 
arisen already—owing to the plaintiffs' line of railway 
ruuning through a portion of Maine, and the likelihood of 
their being harassed in a similar way in the future. Be­
fore Nason commenced his action here there was unite a 
correspondence between his solicitor anil the plaintiffs’ 
solicitor at Montreal, as well as their legal representatives 
at St. John, in reference to the situation and the desira­
bility of obtaining a decision on the questions involved by 
a Maine Court. There seem to have been delays in the
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proceedings there and no decision lias been given. The 
parties there seem to have agreed that a test case might lie 
made of the Nason claim and a decision obtained in the 
Court here. In a letter dated September 5,lllOfi, from Mr. 
Beattie, the plaintiffs' solicitor at Montreal, to Nason’s 
solicitor here, he says : “ The (piestion is being raised in 
another action, but that will not be returnable until the 
end of this month, and I have thought it well that we 
should bring the ipiestion before the New Brunswick Court 
in order to find out the view taken there, and if necessary 
plead this in actions brought in Maine Courts. If you will 
issue your writ Messrs. Weldon & McLean will accept 
service on behalf of the company. They have lieen in­
structed to expedite the matter as much as possible. 1 am 
very much disappointed that we have not been able to get 
the matter judicially determined in Maine, and sooner than 
hold the matter any longer. 1 prefer to have an action 
brought in New Brunswick and the question determined 
there, so far as the New Brunswick Courts are concerned." 
( If course Nason could bring his action without the plain­
tiffs' consent, but it is obvious that the proceedings were 
taken—perhaps not at the suggestion of Mr. Beattie, but 
certainly with his full concurrence, so that the question, 
which was of greater interest to them than what arises 
from this individual case, might be determined so far as a 
judgment of a New Brunswick Court could determine it. 
None of this correspondence was disclosed to me when the 
injunction was obtained. Had it been, it would have had 
a material lienring on the course I should have taken. On 
this ground, if on no other, I think the injunction must be 
dissolved. No rule requires a stricter observance than that 
which insists upon a full and truthful disclosure of all 
material facts by those who seek the interposition of this 
Court by way of injunction orders granted on es jxtrte 
statements.

As the injunction is dissolved there seems no reason 
why the plaintiffs should not have the right to supply the 
affidavit denying collusion if they wish to continue the suit 
in its present form. They must, however, pay the costs
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of both motions, and they are entitled to have the money 
paid into Court returned to them. There will be orders 
accordingly. Plaintiffs will have leave to move again for 
an in junction if they desire to do so. See Fitclt v. Koch - 
fort ( 1 ): Phillip» v. Prichard (2). Defendant Nason to 
have order dissolving injunction with costs. Plaintiffs to 
have leave to tak'e bill off tile and file it anew with affidavit 
denying , on jiayment of costs of application.

(1) 18 U J. Ch. 4S8. (2) 1 Jur. N. S. 780.

^668
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WINSLOW v THE WM. RICHARDS COMPANY, 
LIMITED.

1907.

Agreement—Option -AH*iyament—Renewal and modification of 
option - High (h of ansi gave.

An option was held by R. upon property of defendant Co. for the 
mini of $5(12,08(1. By agreement dated August 7, 11M13, reciting 
the option and that the company had arranged through K. 
to execute an option to P. and C. for $010,000, it was witnessed 
that if the property was purchased in accordance with such 
option, “or mutual modification of the same," the-company 
would pay to R. or his assigns, any excess realized above t^ie 
option price of $502,580. R. immediately afterwards assign'd 
a one-half interest in the agreement to the plaintiff. By 
agreement of same date, the company gave an option on 
the property to P. and C. for $700,0(10, who in case of a sale by 
them under that option or any mutual modification thereof, 
were to he allowed $00,000. This option expired March 1, 1004. 
On Oc tôlier 27, 1004, a new option was given by the com­
pany to P. and ('., and this by subsequent agreement was 
extended to June 15, 1005. On June 10 P. and ('. agreed to 
sell the property to I. P. Co. for $725,000. This agreement 
fell through. On October 2, 1005, a sale was made to I. P. 
Co. for $075,000. By agreement of the same date the defend­
ant Co. agreed to pay P. and ('. $100,000 for their services in 
connection with the sale, leaving $575,000 ah the net amount 
to the company from the sale. Prior to the s i le the com­
pany, having no notice of the assignment by R. to the plain­
tiff, had agreed with R. that his option should lie for 
$560,000. The plaintiff claimed one halfof the difference be­
tween the sum realized by the company from the sale and 
$502,586 :

Held, that under the circumstances the option given after the 
expiry of the first option to P. and C. was a modification of 
it within the meaning of the agreement with R., hut that 
the conqiany, having no notice of plaintiff1 s assignment, 
were free to deal with R., and that consequently the change 
made by R. in his agreement with the company was binding 
on the plaintiff, to whom therefore there was nothing coming.

Bill for an accounting. The facts fully appear in the 
judgment of the Court. Argument was heard March 1, 
1907.

L. A. Currey, K. C., and R. W. McLelUm, for the 
defendants :—

The agreement under which plaintiff claims came to 
an end on March 1, 1904, the date of expiry of the Potter

VOL. III. N. B. E. H.-3Ü.
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and Chapin option. After that date the plaintiff ceased to 
have an interest in the transactions between the parties. 
Even if the agreement under which plaintiff claims was 
in force at the date of the sale no excess was realized to 
the company above the amount named in the Randle 
option. The original amount named in the Rundle option, 
$502,58(1, was increased by agreement la-tween the com­
pany and Rundle to $585,000. The net proceeds of the 
sale to the company was $5(15,000. The company were 
entitled to ileal with Rundle in making this change, as 
they had no notice of the plaintiff's interest in the Rundle 
option until October 11, 1905, a date subsequent to the 
sale. The amount of $502,580 in the Rundle option was 
by assent of the plaintiff increased by $0,000, the cost of 
camp supplies, thus raising the amount of the option above 
the amount produced to the company from the sale.

A. <>. Earle, K. C., for the plaintiff :—

Under the sale for $075,000, made under the agree­
ment of October 2, 1905, and completed January 4, 1900, 
the plaintiff is entitled to half the surplus alxive the option 
price, after deducting the commission to Potter and Chapin 
and $0,000 for camp supplies. Ill this view the plaintiff 
would be entitled to $28,207. The contract of June 10, 
1905, for $725,000 should have been carried out. Hail 
that Iiecn done the plaintiff would have been entitled to 
$42,217. The option of August 7, 1908, was kept ill force 
and actisl on by the parties continuously to the date of the 
sale. The $100,000 allowed to Potter and C" " ns com­
mission is not binding upon the plaintiff. The amount was 
fixed at $00,000 ill the original option, and could not be 
enlarged without the plaintiff’s consent. The defendant 
company had notice of the assignment to the plaintiff, and 
of his interest in the sale, even though it appeared that no 
written or specific notice had been given to them.

1907. May 21. Barker, J. :—

The facts upon which a decision of this case must 
rest, seem to me to lie altogether outside of the mass of

6
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correspondence which was put in evidence. If it was a 
matter of importance to shew that the plaintiff did a lot of 
work and spent a lot of time in connection with the mat­
ters out of which this dispute arises, I think the evidence 
shews that he did. To my mind, however, that is an 
altogether irrelevant inquiry. The case rests largely upon 
documentary evidence, about which there can I*' no dis­
pute ; and as to tin1 other material facts, there is little or no 
difference between tin- witnesses. In 1903 the defendants, 
The Win. Richards Co., owned anil operated a large milling 
and lumliering business on the Restigouehe river, which was 
managed by David Richards, a mendier of the company, 
who resided and had his office at Campliellton. The com­
pany also owned and operated a large milling and lumbcr- 
ing business on the Mirnmichi river, and the head office of 
the company was at Boiestown. The defendant Randle 
was not an officer, or, so far as I know, even a shareholder 
in the company, but lie hail charge of the company’s office 
at Chatham. He had charge of the shipments at that 
place, and was paid a salary at the rate of 30 per cent, per 
standard shipped. He subsequently became a shareholder 
in and the president of the Miramichi Lumber Company, 
which was organized in Maine, and took over the Miramichi 
properties on their sale by the Richards Company in 1900. 
This suit relates exclusively to that sale. There seems to 
have lieen a movement on font for a sale of the Restigouehe 
properties also, hut that was aliandoncd at an early period 
in the negotiations. In February, 1903, the company gave 
Rnndle an option on these properties, exclusive of the 
Boiestown property, for $522,536. This option was for 
three months, but it was extended until August 12,1903. 
By a memorandum of agreement, dated February 12, 1903, 
Bundle gave the plaintiff, who claims to have had a half 
interest in the option from the company, an on the
same properties for $650,000 to enable the plaintiff to ex­
hibit it to intending purchasers as bis authority to sel I. The 
plaintiff seems to have placed himself in communication 
with several persons likely to be interested in such trans­
actions, and at some period, the precise date is not given,

433
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liv assigned the option to u Mr. Aitken, who resided, I 
think, at Halifax. Mr. Potter, who resides at Pittsburg, and 
Mr. Chapin, who resides at Toronto, and who were at this 
time associated together in the purchase of lumber prop­
erties, were in St. John in the early part of August, 1903. 
in reference to some of the New Brunswick Railway lands, 
and while in the Province, they casually met Mr. (Imiter, 
who succeeded William Richards as president of the Rich­
ards Company and the result of this meeting was that Potter 
and Chapin went to Chatham on the 7th August to meet 
Hunter. Mr. Aitken was there at the same time, though 
the meeting of the three seems to have lieen in no way 
arranged. A conference took place between (Imiter, 
Kundle, Aitken, Potter, and Chapin, which resulted in an 
option being given to Potter and Chapin. Before entering 
into any negotiation, however. Potter insisted that the 
option held by Aitken, and which had then but a few days 
to run, should Is; released, and that he and Chapin should 
lie expressly released from all claims by the plaintiff' and 
Aitken under that option. This was done, and the remun­
eration which they were to get for their work was agreed 
by them at So,000. There is some difference as to whether 
it was *5,000 each or #'2, fit KI each ; but as no Question 
arises in this action on that point it is not necessary to 
discuss it. Mr. Potter having, as he thought, cleared the 
way of all outstanding options, so that he could deal 
directly with the company, obtained an option on the 
properties, including the Boiestown mill, fort* _ay-
able as follows : *300,000 in cash, S200,0(1(1 in two years, 
and *200,000 in four years, with interest at 6 per cent, per 
year. This option is dated August 7th, 1903. It ran till 
March 1, 1904, and it was signed simply by Hunter as 
secretary of tbe company, there being no other official 
there, and the seal lieing at the office at Boiestown. It 
was also agreed, as part of the same transaction, that in 
case tbe property was purchased in accordance with that 
option, or any mutual modification of the same, the Rich­
ards Company were to pay Potter and Chapin for their 
services #0(1,000 out of the tiret cash payment of #300,000,

8451
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thus yielding them #640,000 net. These papers being in­
formally executed, so far as the company was concerned, 
they were left with Rundle, and Mr. Winslow was directed 
by Mr. Potter, immediately on his return to Pittsburg, to 
take the papers to Boiestown and have them regularly exe­
cuted under the corporate seal of the cotn|>any. He did 
go to Boiestown, hut the agreement which was there exe­
cuted differed so materially from the original one that, 
according to Mr. Potter, it was useless to him for his pur­
poses. There are, I believe, some minor changes, but the 
two important ones are, first, that the option was not bind­
ing on the cnni|uiny until it should !*• ratified by the 
William Richards Company shareholders, at a general 
meeting to be called for that purpose: ami second, that 
the agreement was to liecome inoperative unless Potter anil 
Chapin notified the company one month previous to Man'll 
1st, 11104, of their intention to complete the purchase, anil 
accom]«uiied the notice by a deposit of 810,000 with the 
company, to become forfeited in case of failure on their 
jMii't to complete the contract. Neither of these provisions 
was in the original arrangement as agreed upon at Chatham. 
As it was, the |iapers were only forwarded by the plaintiff 
to Potter on the 5th Septemlier, 1008. Among other |>er- 
sons whom Potter sought to interest in this purchase, was 
a Mr. Lacy of Chicago, whose firm were largely engaged 
in tile lumber business. In October he went, at Potter's 
instance, to Camplsdlton, having ten cruisers with him to 
cruise the land. When Potter shewed him the option he 
re fused to have anything to do witli it, on account of the 
clause requiring ratification by shareholders. And it was 
only when Potter himself offered to assume the total cost of 
the cruising that it was proceeded with. He was induced to 
take this risk by reason of conversations lie had hail with 
individual memliers of the Richards Coni[iany, which Ic i 
him to believe that a satisfactory adjustment of the agree­
ment might lie made, in which case the cruising would Is' 
so much work done. This cruising cost some #6,000. 
Potter says that he did nothing under this option after lie 
received the papers, and that in fact, except the cruising
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nothing was done at all. It was never ratified by the 
shareholders, and it expired in March, 1004. Nothing 
more was done until the following October. So far as the 
subsequent transactions are concerned, and which termi­
nated in the side which was completed in January, 1000, 
the plaint ifl'does not seem to have had any connection what­
ever with them. The renewal of the negotiations in Octo­
ber. 1004. after a period of over seven months during which 
there was no outstanding option, and nothing whatever 
done, was not in any way brought altoiit by the plaintif!*, 
nor was he in any way consulted aliout it. On the 27th 
day of October. 1004. two agreements were entered into by 
the company and Potter and Chapin. One is an option 
on tin* timber lands owned in fee some 105,5511 acres—for 
#025,000; the other is an option for the whole property for 
8000,000, net cash. They were separated in order to facili­
tate the sale of the lumber lands to pulp manufacturers. 
These agreements in terms abrogated all previous options 
in force Itetweeii the parties, and they extended to January 
1, 1005. They were extended to 10th May, 1005, and 
again to June 15th of that year. The anticipated sale to the 
pulp manufacturers fell through. Negotiations were opened 
up by Potter and Chapin with the International Paper Com­
pany, a large and wealthy corporation of New York, of 
which the defendant Hugh J. Chisholm, was president. 
The negotiations were, however, principally with a Mr. 
Oak, who was president of one of the subsidiary companies 
of the International Company, and they resulted in a sale 
of the properties to Chisholm for #725,000. On the 10th 
of June, 1005, an agreement was entered into by the com­
pany and Chisholm, by which the one agreed to sell and 
the other to purchase the property in question for the sum 
of #725,000, to 1h* paid as follows : 825,000 on the execu­
tion of the agreement : 8175,000 on September 1st, 1005, 
and the balance of 8525,000 in negotiable coupon 1 tonds, of 
the denomination of 81,000, to be made by a company to Ite 
organized by the party of the second part, that is, Chis­
holm. to own and operate the property. The 1 tonds were 
to lie dated September 1st, 1005, to aggregate 8525,000, to
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lirai' interest at 5 per cent., and to be secured by a mort­
gage to some satisfactory trust company. The cash lial- 
ance was to be paid and the bonds delivered at Chisholm's 
office on September 1st, 1905. Provision was made for the 
working of the mills until September, and Chisholm agreed 
that he would, on demand, within sixty days from the 
completion of the purchase, buy from the coni|iany $100,- 
000 of these bonds at par and accrued interest. This 
agreement was not carried out. On the 1st September, as 
I gather from the evidence, neither party was ready. The 
company hail some difficulty in producing a title to some 
of the property, and Chisholm, or rather the new company 
which was organized, hail not the bonds engraved or ready 
for delivery, and so the purchase was off.

Later on Mr. (imiter, the president of the Richards 
Company, got the matter re-opened with Mr. Oak, and the 
parties met in Portland on October 2nd, 1905, when a new 
agreement was entered into, of that date, between the 
company and Chisholm. The gross purchase price was 
$075,000. In addition, Chisholm was to pay all sums of 
money expended by the com]iany in building dams and 
getting out of lumber for the seasons of 1905 and 1900. 
The transfer of property was to take place Decemlier 31st, 
1905, and on that day $225,000, with the $25,000 paid on 
execution of the June contract, and other sums shewn to 
lie due, were to lie |iaid in cash. Subject to these changes, 
the other contract was to bo carried out. This sale was 
completed in the early part of January, 1900. On the 
same day as that on which the last sale was made. Oc tôlier 
2nd, 1905, the company entered into an agreement with 
Potter and Chapin, by which they covenanted, in consider­
ation of their services in closing the saiil Nile, to pav them 
$100,000—that is, $25,000 in cash, and $75,(HMI in the 
Iwmds of the new com[mny. This agreement was also 
carried out. When the June Nile was concluded, the com- 
|umy agreisl to pay Potter ami Chapin $140,000, but when 
the price was reduced they agreed to reduce their remun­
eration to $100,000.
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When the* plaintiff obtained the Hotter option under the 
company’s Heal, which was late in August, 1903, although 
it is dated on the 7th of that month, lie obtained from the 
company an agreement ns follows :—

Memorandum ok Aoreement. Whereas W.....
Richards A: Co., Limited, had. under date the 12th day of 
February, 1008, and extension thereof, given an option to 
purchase the lands, leases and assets belonging to said 
company in Northumlierland and York and Cnrleton 
counties, excepting the Boiestown properties, to John T. 
Rundlc of Chatham, N. B„ Lumber Agent, for the sum of 
$522,58b ; and a further option to purchase the Boiestown 
properties and the Morrison mill properties for $40,000 
additional, making in all the price for said properties 
8502,580. And whereas said company has arranged, 
through said John T. Bundle, to execute an option agree­
ment to Potter-Cobb Company, of Pittsburg. Pa., and F. B. 
Chapin, Toronto, Canada, liearing date the 7th day of 
August, 1008, for the net option price to said Potter-Cobb 
Company and F. B. Chapin, of 8040,000. Now, therefore, 
for services rendered, and in accordance with understanding 
this company agrees that if the property is purchased in ac­
cordance with < i referred to, or mutual modification of 
the same, to pay the said John T. Rundlc, or assigns, the ex­
cess realized over and above the said option price to said 
John T. Bundle out of the first cash payment of 8800.000 
received by the parties selling the st«x‘k and assets of said 
William Richards & Co., Limited, immediately upon receipt 
of same. In witness whereof the said William Richards 
Comiwny, Limited, hath hereto set its hand and seal the 
7th August. 1008.

This agreement is executed under the company's seal, 
and on it is endorsed the following assignment : “For value 
received, I hereby assign and transfer and set over to 
Warren C. Winslow, his executors, administrators or as­
signs, one-half share, benefit, advantage, right, title and 
interest of and in the within agreement, and of any money 
which may accrue due thereunder.” This assignment was 
executed by the defendant Bundle, under his hand and 
seal, and though it has no date, the evidence is that it was 
executed within a few days after the agreement was,

■
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which would he about the 1st September, 1003. It is 
under this agreement and assignment that the plaintif!’ 
claims one-half of the difference between the sum realized 
by the company for the property and the $502,586 men­
tioned in the Bundle ' Plaintiff and Bundle, accord­
ing to the plaintiff's account, seem to have been jointly 
interested in this business from the first, though the plain­
tiff’s name does not appear in any of the jMpcrs, except in 
the assignment which I have just mentioned. The plain­
tiff gives some evidence of loose conversations designed to 
shew that the Bichards Company, or members of it, knew 
this fact. This is denied by the directors and the company, 
and so far as the expressions are relied on. as shewing 
notice to the company so as to affect them, they failed, 1 
think, in proving any such notice. There is a <| nest ion in 
dispute as to the time when actual notice of this assign­
ment was given. The plaintiff says that lie sent a letter 
dated August 21. 1605, to the company, addressed to them 
at Boiestown. a copy of which he produced from his letter 
liook. In this he gave notice of the assignment of a half 
interest in the Bundle agreement, and asked for informa­
tion as to the particulars of the sale to Chisholm, which he 
had heard of in some way. This letter the company say 
was never received by them, and the officials who were 
produced at the hearing deny all knowledge of it. On the 
I Ith Octolier the plaintiff sent another letter to the com- 
|Miny, alluding to his former letter, and again asking infor­
mation as to the particulars of the sale. The company 
say this was the first notice or knowledge they had that 
the plaintiff had any interest whatever in the _ * or 
the sale to which they relate.

The plaintiff, by his bill, seeks a discovery as to the facts 
in reference to the terms of sale and the amount realized by 
the company for the property, and he liases his claim on 
the contention that the purchase was made under a modi­
fication of the Potter option of August. 1603. The answer 
set up to that contention is that, in the first place, the 
Potter of August, 1603, was never binding on the
company, because it was never ratified by the sharchold-
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era. and ita validity depended, hy its terms, upon that 
being done. Then it is contended that the whole matter 
was alsmdoned after the expiration of that option in 
March, 1110-t, as nothing whatever was done for over seven 
months from that time, and the option given after that 
time must, la- regarded as an entirely new arrangement, 
and in no sense a modification of the old one. A modifica­
tion of a contract like this means something more than an 
extension of it. An extension has reference to time ; a 
modification has reference to terms. And I cannot see any 
sulwtantial reason for not holding that an option given by 
one person to another for the purchase of a a|>evific prop­
erty should not, in construing an agreement such as the 
one under discussion, be properly described as a modifica­
tion of a previous option between the same parties, and in 
reference to the same property, although the terms of the 
two may differ as to price, and although some time may 
have ejapsid between the termination of the one and the 
beginning of the other. At no time after August, 1903, so 
far as I can discover from the evidence, did the company 
alwndon the idea of selling their pro|>crty, and at no time, 
so far as I can discover, did Potter and ( ’liapin alwndon the 
idea or give up the expectation of finding a purchaser for 
it. I think the fair meaning of the agreement under 
which the plaintif! claims is, that tile com|mny were to pay 
to Bundle the difference between the price fixed by his 
option and the sum which might lx- realized by the com­
pany on a sale brought about by Potter and Chapin in the 
terms of the original agreement, or any modification of it 
which might, previous to the alwndonuient of the negotia­
tions altogether, lie mutually agreed upon between them. 
The object of the company was to sell ; the object of Pot­
ter and Chapin was to find a purchaser, and the interest 
of them, as well as Bundle, was to secure as large a price 
as possible, in order to increase their profits. It is true 
that there was a period of over seven months during which 
no option was running at all ; and much stress is laid 
upon that fact, as shewing an end to the transaction 
out of which this claim arises. I do not think that is
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a fiict, nor do I think it a reasonably inference from the 
circumstances. It is true that Potter says that his option 
of August. 1903, was of no use to him, because it had never 
been ratitiisl by the shareholders, and that it differed from 
the terms agreed upon at Chatham. It is equally true, 
however, that Potter entertained the expectation of pro­
curing satisfactory changes in that option. He risked 
.*(1,000, the expense of the cruising done in 1903, on that 
expectation, founded on verbal assurances from members 
of the company. It ap|iears that during that winter and 
the summer of 1904 lumber business was dull—lumber 
properties were not in demand ; and it was not until Octo­
ber of 1904, when the market hail recovered, that the 
second option was secured. There was, however, no aban­
donment on the part of the company of their intention to 
sell their property, or any abandonment on the part of 
Potter and Chapin of their efforts to secure a purchaser. 
In my opinion, the plaintiff is entitled to take the price ulti­
mately realized by the conqiany as a basis of determining 
the sum, if any, for which they are liable under the Rundle 
agreement. In fact, the officers of the company have not 
disputed a liability on that liasis in their dealings with 
Rundle. Their answer has been, You have nothing coin­
ing to you, as the surplus has been all absorlsxl in com­
missions; not that your agreement was ended before the 
Nile was made, and you had no further interest in the 
result.

The method adopted in carrying out transactions of 
lliis kind, or at all events the method which was adopted 
ill the present case was this. When an option is given it 
'imply hinds the owner of the property to transfer it to the 
purchaser, or to whomsoever the holder of the option may 
nominate, in |uiyment of so much money. At the same 
lime, and as a |mrt of the arrangement, the owner gives the 
holder of the option an agreement to pay him so much 
money in case a sale takes place under the option. The 
plaintiff was entirely conversant with the details of such 
t iiinsactions, and frankly recognized the fact that in 
determining the amount to which lie was entitled, this
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Rumllc option price was to Ik1 deducted from the net pur­
chase price—that is, the gross price, less the amount agreed 
to ls> [mid for remuneration. The first option price was 
8700,000, with a remuneration agreement for 860,000, 
making the net price #040,000. When the sale to Chisholm 
was concluded under the October option, the remuneration 
agreed upon to Potter and Chapin was 8140,000 and under 
the modification which resulted in the completion of the 
side it was #100,000, making the net price in the one case 
#585,000, and in the other #575,000. The plaintiff himself 
says tlmf lie agreed to increase the #502,580 in the Rumllc
agi....ment to #572,580 on account of some stores not
included, or something of that kind; and if there is noth­
ing else to alter the result I should think the plaintif!' 
would Iiv entitled to one-half of the difference lietween that 
sum and the #575,000 received by the company, that is, 
#1.207. 1 have not taken into account the #10,000 which
the company were obliged to pay in order to complete their 
title to the property, for I do not think tin1 plaintiff has 
anything to do with that. The company undertook to give 
a good title, it was for that that the #575,000 was paid, and 
if they had to make an expenditure in order to complete 
their title, that is their matter.

Leaving these figures for tin- moment let us go back 
anil see whether the plaintiffs position has been altered in 
any way by what has taken place between the company 
and Rundle. Taking the view most favorable to the plain­
tiff, he must lie held lsiund eipially with Rundle, as 
between himself and the company, by all agreements made 
between the company and Rundle in reference to this 
matter previous to August 21, 1005, the earliest date at 
which in any view of the evidence the company had any 
notice of the plaintiff’s interest in this contract. Up to 
that time the plaintiff left the company entirely free to 
deal with Rundle without any reference to him, and 
entirely free to deal with Potter and C" and pur­
chasers, on the liasis that fin ir liability under this contract 
was a Question lietween them and Rundle, ami between them 
alone. Now what took place before that < The Boiestown

6
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property was not included in tile > Bundle
for #522,580, but when tin' negotiations with Hotter and 
( 'liapin were going on (lunter who seems to have had all to 
do with the matter, so far as the company was concerned, 
insisted upon that pm|>erty lieing included in the arrange­
ment and it was put in at a valuation of #40,000, and is so 
mentioned in the Bundle agreement. It was also included 
in tin-option price of #700,000 to Hotter and ( ’Impin. Hun­
ter says that it was understood between him and Bundle, at 
the time, that this valuation was not final Imt subject to 
correction, and that soon afterwards and very shortly after 
the option was executed, that is about the last of August or 
first of September, 11103, he told Bundle that lie hud under­
estimated tile value of the Boiestmvn property by $11,000, 
and that Bundle then agreed that this sum should lie added, 
that is, that the $602,5811 should Is- made #573,580. Mr- 
Hunter then explained that the property hail to lie sold as 
a going concern, that they had to go on and make the 
necessary outlays, and that it was agreed between Bundle 
anil himself, acting for the company, that any expenditure 
mi the property was to be paid for extra. He also says 
that in the following February, that is, February, 11104, 
there were supplies in the woods valued at #2,000, that 
repairs hail been put upon Sister Brook and three new 
■ Inins built, and other work done there which he and Bundle 
lb 'll estimated and agreed upon as worth #8,000. There 
were also repairs on the Boieutown mill amounting to 
#2,600. A new dam had been built on that stream, and 
other work done which they then agreed on at #1,000. 
tinnier says that he and Bundle then agreed that these 
expenditures should lie added, and they settled upon 
*585,000, even money, as the sum which should be deductisl 
instead of the #502,580. Bundle corn lisantes this evidence 
and says that he told the plaintiff alsjut the arrangement. 
The admits that he assented to an addition of
*10,000 for stores, but he does not remember as to anything 
else. Now all this took place in February, or the spring of 
H'04, a year lie fore the plaintiff gave any notice to the 

i >ui|iany of his assignment, and at a time when they had u
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right to deal «olely witli tRuudle as to the contract, and 
with others on the basis that Randle was solely interested 
in it. As the plaintiff neglected to perfect his assignment 
of a half-interest in this contract bj giving notice of it to 
the company, he is as much liound by anything done in 
reference to it, or agreed upon, by the company and Randle 
in reference to it, before such notice was given, as Randle 
himself would i>e, for by neglecting to give notice he elected 
to trust Rundle instead of perfecting his right to the thing 
assigned. In Deurlc v. Hall (1), the Master of the Rolls,in 
speaking of Rifall v. Howies (2), says : “ In that case it was 
the opinion of all the Judges that he who contracts for 
a chose in action, and does not follow up his title by 
notice, gives personal credit to the individual with whom 
he deals. Notice then is necessary to perfect the title— 
to give a complete right in rem, ami not merely a right 
as against him who conveys his interest." The assignee of 
a chose in action takes it, I think, subject to all equities 
existing between the assignor and the debtor at the time 
the latter has notice of the assignment. See also 
Stock* v. Dobson (3). While it is true that Rundle is 
a party to this bill, there is, so far as 1 can see, no relief 
prayed specifically against him. It is alleged that he and 
the company hud sold the pioperty, and that they colluded 
together to withhold from hun all information as to the 
particulars of the sale, but no case is set up here of a lia­
bility on the part of Rundle which is not equally a liability 
on the part of the company. The evidence shews that 
Rundle got none of the money. 1 must, therefore, treat 
this bill as a bill to intercept such portion of the purchase 
money as might lie coming to the plaintiff, and prevent its 
payment by Chisholm to the Richards Company or to 
Rundle, and in fact the injunction obtained was for that 
purpose ; and now that the money pa ill into Court has 
lieen, by consent, paid out, if the plaintiff was entitled to a 
decree at all, it would lie for a payment by the company 
to the plaintiff of the amount due, and not a payment by 
Rundle. Unless, therefore, 1 am to altogether disregard

(1) 3 Ruse, 1. t»lVw.8r.8m.
(3) 6 UeU. & S. 7U0 ; 4 UeO. M. Ai G. 11.
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the evidence of Imth Gunter and Hundle, uncontradicted as 
it is, and uniin|>eached ns it is by any circumstance dis­
closed by the evidence, 1 must hold that, so far as the com­
pany were concerned, they were under no liability of any 
kind whatever to the plaintiff until he gave them notice of 
the interest that had been assigned to him, which was cer­
tainly not earlier than August, 1110-5, and that up to that 
time the company were free to deal with Bundle in refer­
ence to this contract—to vary it or terminate it altogether, 
if the parties to it chose to do so. It was within the plain­
tiff's power, and it was his right, to have completed his 
title by notice at any time after he acquired it, but having 
neglected to do so, his rights against the coni|iany must lie 
determined by the facts as they existed and were binding 
in eipiity between the company and Bundle at the time 
the coni|Miny were notified of the plaintiffs interest. Pre­
cisely the same doctrine prevails when the assignee of a 
chose in action brings his action at law in his own name, 
as provided in the -Supreme Court Act. It is subject to 
any defence or set-off in respect to the whole or any part 
of the debt or chose in action arising out of such contract 
existing at the time of the notice of assignment to the 
debtor, or |ierson sought to lie made liable, as if there had 
liven no such assignment (sect. 157). The effect of that is 
that an assignee of a chose in action, who is in a posi- 
t! in to bring an action at law in his own name, is subject to 
the same eijuitable defences as his action would have lieen 
if brought in this Court or if the assignee had brought his 
action in the name of his assignor. Taking 8580,000 as 
the corrected amount of the Bundle option, and as the 
amount settled anil agreed upon by the company and 
Itnndle to lie deducted from the surplus instead of 
of the 8502,580, there would be nothing due. If the 
ligures of the sale made in June, 11105, are taken, the net 
price is the same as the Bundle amount, and if the figures 
of the sale as actually carried out are taken, the balance 
would be 810,000 against the plaintiff. There is, therefore, 
nothing coming to the plaintiff.

Bill dismissed with costs.
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1907. TOOKK BROTHERS, LIMITED v. BROCK A PATTER- 
SON, LIMITED.

Debtor and Creditor—Hill of Sale Advance under agreement to 
gire bill of sale Delay -Insolvency— Assignments and 
Preferences Act, chap. /-#/, C. S. 1903—Suit by creditors — 
A annulment of parties.

A trader when in insolvent circumstances to the knowledge of 
himself and the defendants executed to them a hill of sale of 
liis stock in trade, pursuant to an agreement made with them 
nearly four years previously to give it whenever required, 
they advancing to him upon the faith of the agreement a sum 
of money for use in his business and giving him a line of 
credit. Shortly after executing the hill of sale he made an 
assign cut for the benefit of his creditors under chap. 141, 
C. S. '»<*&:—

Held, in a suit by the assignee, that the giving and filing of the 
hill of sale having been postponed until the debtor’s insolv­
ency in older to prevent the destruction of his credit, the 
agreement was a fraud upon the other creditors, and that the 
hill of sale should he set aside.

Held, also, that the delivery of the stock in trade by the trader to 
the defendants, subsequently to the execution of the hill of 
sale, did not assist their title; sect. 2 of chap. 141, 8. UNXi,
applying.

A preferential transaction falling within the provisions of chap. 
141, C. S. 1WM, may he impeached at the instance of creditors, 
where the debtor has not made an assignment.

Where, after the commencement of a suit by creditors to set 
aside a bill of side, as constituting a fraudulent preference 
under chap. 141, (’. S. HUM, the grantor made an assignment 
for the benefit of his creditors, the assignee was added as a 
plaintiff.

Bill to set aside two chattel mortgages. The facts fully 
appear in the judgment of the Court.

Argument was heard April 8, 1907.

M. 0. Teed, K. C. (L. /< />. Tilley, with him), for the 
plaintiffs:—

The chattel mortgages are an unjust preference and 
are void under chap. 141, C. S. 1903, and they are void 
under 13 Elit, c. 5. The evidence is conclusive that when 
they were given both the grantor and grantee had know-
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ledge of Ills insolvency. Roneli from the beginning of the 
debtor's dealings with the defendants was kept informed of 
the difficulties with which his business was kept going. 
From time to time he applied to Hunch for relief with res­
pect to the defendants' account, and for assistance to meet 
liabilities owing elsewhere. When Koach demanded secur­
ity it must he held that he was fully aware of the debtor’s 
insolvency. See National Bank of AuMralania s. Marri»
(I) ; Eelgett v. Sleeve* (2). The instruments cannot be 
sup|sirted by the prior agreement made by the debtor with 
the defendants. To postpone the taking of a security 
until the debtor is insolvent or on the verge of laukruptcy 
has always lieen held to be a on other creditors,void­
ing the security. Roach’s evidence is that the bill of sale 
was to Is- given when he ( Roach) required it. The agree­
ment was made in August, 1!HKI, and the chattel mortgages 
were not askisl for until January Kith, 11107. The long 
interval of delay was due to the defendants' wish not to 
impair the debtor's credit. See June* v. Kinney (3); Kr 
parte Finite r (4); Ex parti Burton (5); Ex p<irle Kilner 
(ti); Breexe v. Knox (7): In re Jacknon if- Bannford (H). 
The agreement was silent as to the property the hill of 
sale was to cover, and as it therefore could not be enforced 
by a decree for specific performance, no title in any gissls 
passed in ispiity to the defendants. An assignee under 
chap. 141 is in the same position as an assignee under the 
Knglish bankruptcy laws. See I'larknon v. Mr Monter (II),

A. 0. Earle, K. C.,and •/. Kiny Kelley, for the defend­
ants. Brock X- Patterson, Limited :—

The title of the defendants relates I sick to the date of 
their agreement with the debtor. Where money is advanced 
and crislit given upon the promi e that security will be 
given, when the security is given, though at a later

(1) |me; a. c. as7. (&> isch. d. lira.
(2) .tii/e. 4113 (III 13 Ch. D. 245.
(3) 11 Can. S. C. H. 708. (7) 24 A. It. 203.
|4> I.. K. 7 Ch. 044. (8) | HUM I 2 Ch. 4117.

(II) 25 Can. N. C. K. 104.
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1907. date, il will l)t* Mustained by the agreement. See Ex parte 
Timikk Burton (1); Hotruyd v. Marnhall (2): 'Vailby v. Official 

i.iMiTiii) Receiver (8) ; Embury v. (4). Ex parte Finher (ft), 

Hwn k and the deciHions following it. proceed uimhi the principle•ATTKHMIIN. r 1 ... .
I.iMnr.it. that a promise that a creditor shall have priority in the 

event of bankruptcy is contrary to the policy of the 
bankruptcy law anil void. In the present case the 
transaction was an honest one: the money was actually 
advanced and credit given, and there was no con­
sideration apart from these chattel mortgages. To 
come within the authority of K.r parte Fisher it would 
have to lie shewn that .the transaction was intended 
as a device to enable the debtor to aciplire false 
credit. It is for the Court to judge from all the sur­
rounding circumstances whether the agreement was a 
bon « jide one, or whether the giving of the chattel mort­
gage was purposely postponed in order to protect the 
grantor’s credit. See Ex fnirtr Kilner (II): Href nr v. 
Knox (7); Emliury v. Went (K). The possession taken by 
the defendants' is effective to complete their equitable title, 
as from the date and according to the terms of the agree­
ment: Tailliy v. ttfiria! Hereiver (supm) and Halroyd v. 
Mitrnliiill (supra). An assignee can take no better title 
than that jxissessed by his assignor. He can assert no 
rights which his assignor had parted with ls-fore the assign­
ment. See McMnntrr v. Chur (it) : Parkts v. St. Georye ( 10). 
There was no intent on the part of the debtor to give 
the defendants a preference. In its nlisencc a conveyance 
cannot lie impeached under the Assignments and Prefer­
ences Art. See Cud ville v. Fraser (11). The debtor’s 
“ dominant " motive in promising to give security was to 
obtain assistance and to keep his business going, and this 
dislodges the presumption of an intention to prefer within

(1) 13 Ch. 1). tie.
(2) 111 H. b. V. tut.
(3) IS A. 0. 623.
(4) 15 A. It. 367.
(5) L. K. 7 Ch. IM4.

(11) 13 Oil. U. 246
(7) 24 A. K. 205.
(8) 15 A, K. 357. 
(91 7 Or. 560.

(10) 10 A. K. 400.
(11) 14 Man. 12
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the meaning of the Act. See In re Luke', Ex parle Dyer 
(1). Being under promise to give security, the existence 
of an intent to defeat creditors is negatived. Stuart v. 
Thornton (2): Montgomery v. Corliit (3). The amendment 
by which the assignees were made parties to the suit 
should not have been allowed. The original plaintiffs 
could not attack the mortgages under the Amugnment* 
and Preference* Act, the remedies provided by that Act 
not being available except where an assignment has been 
made. [Counsel also submitted an argument denying the 
competency of the local legislature to enact the Ateign- 
mente amt Preference* Act.]

Teed, K. C., in reply.

1(107. May 21. Barker, J.:—

This suit was commenced on the 20th January, 1007, 
by Tooke Brothers, Limited, and the John McDonald Co., 
Limited, on liehalf of themselves and other creditors of 
Ernest W. Patterson, against Brock à Patterson, Limited, 
and Ernest W, Patterson ; and its object is to set aside 
two chattel mortgages made by Ernest W. Patterson to 
Brock ti Patterson, Limited, on the ground that they were 
fraudulent under the Fraudulent Preference Act (chap. 141, 
C. S„ 1003), and that they were made with the inten­
tion of defeating and hindering and delaying creditors. 
The mortgages in Question were made at the same time ; 
they are both dated January 18th, 1007, and on that day 
they were I Kith tiled in the Registry office, under the Hill« 
of Side Art. On the 28th day of January, 1007, Patterson 
made an assignment under the Ateignmentm and Preference« 
Act to Herls-rt J. Smith and J. 11. Pollard Lewiu, and there­
upon the plaintiffs and the assignees, Smith and Lewin, peti­
tioned for leave to amend the bill and proceedings by adding 
t he assignees as plaintiffs. An order to that efTi-ct w as made 
on the 31st January, 1007, and though the defendants had 
not appeared in the suit, this order of amendment was served

(1) | HSU | 1 Q H. 710.
(8) 2t A. R. 311.
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1907. on them. Tuoke Bros. carry on business as wlmlcaale 
HnimiKii» «try goods merchants in Montreal. John McDonald & Co. 
Liwitkii carry on a similar business in Toronto, brock At I’atter- 

I’vrrasHoN sun carry on a similar business at St. John, ami thedefend- 
1.1MITK11. all( Krnest W. Patterson, for four or five years previous 
Barker. .1. ^ ,|Jltv ,,f bjsassignment, carried on a retail dry gissls

business at No. 2!1 City Road, St. John.
Before going into the facts of tile case, it will be as 

well to dispose of two or three points raised by Brock \' 
Patterson’s Counsel. In the tiret place, they object to this 
amendment, which was madb by adding the assignees as 
plaintiffs, and the grounds of objection are that the defend­
ants had a perfectly good defence to the suit as against 
the original plaintiffs. Iiecause the mortgages in question 
were made to secure a bona Jule debt, anil were, therefore, 
not fraudulent under the Statute of Elizabeth ', ami also 
Iiecause the mortgages could not lie attackisl under the 
Fraudulent Preference Act, except after an assignment 
miller that Act, anil then only by the assignee. At 
most this seems merely a question of costs. It would 
perhaps be a sufficient answer to this objection to say 
that the defendants, who were notitil'd' of the amendment 
before they appeared, have never made any application to 
set aside the order. If they had a good defence to the suit 
as originally framed, and none to it as amended, they were 
foolish to appear to the suit at all, and if they have now 
the same defence as to the under the Statute'of
Elizabeth which they had before, then' is only a question 
of costs involved, and the defendants are in noway injured. 
A similar order has been under the same cir­
cumstances by Courts in Ontario, in suits arising the
Fraudulent Preference Act in force there, and which on all 
points involved in this objection, is precisely like our own. 
1 myself see no objection to the amendment. Ill fact, 
where the assignees ask for it, as here, or where they 
assent to assuming the litigation, 1 think the proper course 
is to amend, as was done here. Bee Huge v. JtnugUie (1); 
Hunk of Inoulon v. Wallace, (2).

(2) 13 P. U. 1711.(1) 14 I». R. 12H.
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Neither do I agree that the action was misconceived 
as far as it was based on the Preference Act. This is by 
no means a new Question, though I lielieve it lias not liven 
directly decided in this Province. I am unable to see any 
good reason for holding that the first two sections of chap. 
141. C. N., l!IQ:i, relating to assignments and preferences by 
insolvent persons, are altogether inoperative except where 
the debtor has made an assignment under that Act. If 
any such intention had lieen in the mind of the legislature, 
surely it would have been clearly indicated. Such an Act 
would lie of comparatively little value if the debtor's pref­
erences are fraudulent only at his pleasure, and when he 
chooses to set the machinery in motion by making an 
assignment. In my opinion these plaintiffs who commenced 
this suit as creditors of Patterson had a perfect right to 
do so on the sole ground that, as against them, these prefer­
ential mortgages were void under section 2 of the Prefer­
ence Act. Such was the unanimous opinion of the Court of 
Appeal in Ontario, as expresses! in Motioni Hank v. Halt­
er (1), and there are numerous other cases where such suits 
have bwn brought without Question. Sec Edison General 
Electric Co. v. Went mi niter and Vancouver Tramway 
Co. (2).

The other point raised by Mr. Earle is that the Prefer­
ence Act is ultm vires. Whatever doubts may have ex­
isted on this |M>iut must, I think, be considered as settled 
by Attorney-General of Ontario v. Attorney-General for 
Dominion of Canada (3), which was an apjienl from the 
Ontario Court of Appeal, to whom had been referred 
the constitutionality of what is section fl of our Act— 
that is, the Question of the section which, in case of 
assignment, gives the assignee priority over an execu­
tion creditor. That seems to have been the principal 
if not the only section in the Act out of which 
doubts had arisen. The Judicial Committee, however, 
affirmed the constitutionality of the section and the 
authority of the local legislature to enact it. As I

(I) 18 A. K. 323. (2) |1887j A. C. 193. (3) |I894| A. C. 180.
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1907. read that ease, the Act, though dealing with the distrihu-
Tookk tion of insolvents’ estates, is not in itself an Act relating to 

Bkothkh*. . I ■ • I I . ,l.immn insolvency nr bankruptcy. In fact, it lacks one of the
Bin» k x essential features of statutes of that description—that is, Pattkhsux.
Limitkii. the power of the creditor to seize the debtor’s property, or 

Barker, J. to force him to become liable to the provisions of the Act.
It is entirely voluntary on the debtor’s part whether lie- 
will do so or not. Hut if he does an assignment
under it, whether insolvent or not, his estate will lx- dealt 
with as the Act provides ; that is, in effect, a manner 
chosen by the debtor himself as arising out of his volun­
tary assignment.

Coming now to the merits of this present case, tin- 
facts, abolit which there is not much dispute, are these. 
At the time these mortgages were made, there is no doubt 
that Patterson was insolvent and unable to [my his debts in 
full. And if he knew anything about his business at all, 
he must have known of the einliarraased position in which 
it was. His assets at that time consisted of stock, which, 
at cost price, amounted to $2,155.24 ; fixtures, $300. and 
I sink debts, $154—in all, $2,1100.24; and his liabilities were 
alunit $0,000. These assets, according.to Mr. Roach's esti­
mate, would Is- woith at a cash sale about $1,000. The 
fact of Patterson's insolvency and inability to pay his 
debts in full is clearly established—in fact, the defendants 
raised no ipiestion as to that. Now, how do Brock 
ii Patterson stand as to their knowledge of Patter­
son’s position ! And when I speak of that company, I 
refer to its secretary anil manager. Mr. Roach, who bad 
the entire control and management of this transaction. As 
the debtor's assignment was made within the sixty days 
from the date of the mortgages, there is r presumption 
against their validity. To rebut this presumption, Brock 
Si Patterson seek to shew their ignorance of Patterson’s 

< and his inability to |wy his debts in
full, and also to shew that in giving these securities he was 
carrying out an agreement to that effect made in 1908. 
The onus is upon them to shew such facts ns will rebut 
the presumption of fraud. This alleged agreement rests
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upon ii conversation which took place between Roach and 
Patterson in August, 1903. It seems that previous to that 
time Patterson had been purchasing principally from 
Vassie <ir Co., but to a small extent from Brock & Patter­
son. Vassie had a chattel mortgage on record covering all 
of Patterson’s stock, on which there was a balance of #300 
due. Patterson went to Roach and asked for credit. 
Roach, who seems to have known all about the Vassie 
bill of sale, asked about it, and Patterson told him that it 
was all paid, except #300. He also told him his objections 
to dealing with Vassie it Co. were, that they would not 
advance him any gisids without lie paid cash for them— 
that he hail to make payments at certain times (I presume 
he meant on the mortgage), anil pay cash for any gissls he 
got. He also had to make daily returns of the cash he 
took in. Mr. Roach’s examination at this point proceeds 
thus :

“ Q. Then was it proposed in effect that you should 
take Vassies place ' A. lie wished us to make advances 
to him of merchandize and the #300. 1/ What was said 
about the bill of sale, and by whom ' A. I told him I 
would do this if he agreed to give me a bill of sale when I 
required it. <^. When you say ‘ me,’ you mean whom ! 
A. 1 mean the firm. (j. What, if any. reply dill lie make 
to that ' A. He agreed to do it eventually. (). (By the 
Court) When required to do it ! A. When 1 required it 
of him."

Roach says that he paid the #300 due to Vassie on the 
"2lith August, 1903, and from that time up to the date of 
Patterson s assignment he sold Patterson goods amounting 
to alunit #2,000 a year. Nothing was said about the bill 
of sale until Roach asked for it on the llitli .lanuary, 1907. 
Now, what was Patterson’s jswition at that time, as known 
to Roach himself' He knew that Patterson was then 
Wing pressed for small claims, amounting in all to #350, 
which he was unable to pay, and for which he was then 
asking for a cash advance from Roach himself. He knew 
that there were claims in the hands of at least two or three 
lawyers for collection. He knew that as to the claims of 
two crislitors Patterson hid arranged to make weekly pay-
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iiiviitN uf *2.7. Hi' knew Unit in Ncptemlicr, llHMi, he had 
hi hold Pat tv wu'm chvi|iiv for SI (Ml from September 9 until 
thv 4th of October for |mymviit, and that lie held two other 
cht‘i|iivH of Ida in October for Nome days for payment. Me 
knew that Ilia own account, which commenced in Alignât, 
1908, with a vaali advance of 8800, had increaaed to 
81.S84.8li, and he knew that of tliia amount all except 
84S9.78 waa repreaented by pmniiaaory notea anil an 1 O U 
for 8014.7, and that of these notea, aa ap|H'ara by the 
aclualuh' to the hill of aale on record, live, amounting to 
about 8S00, were overdue, and that one or two of them luul 
lieen overdue for nearly a month. Mr. Roach with thin 
knowledge went to I’attcwm to get payment of hia I O U 
for 801,4.7, and inatcad of paying it Patterson naked for a 
caah advance of 8870 to meet wane amall clnima that were 
preaaing him : and Mr. Roach very naturally felt that he 
required his security. In Jfutivnal /Anil' of Aii*lralin<ia 
v. Morria ( 1), I y ini Hohliotiae, in delivering the opinion of 
the Judicial Committee, aaya: 11 Their lordahi|ia conceive 
that if the creditor who receive* payment ban knowledge of 
circuniNtancea from which ordinary men of husinena would 
conclude that the debtor ia unable to meet Ilia liahilitiea, 
be known, within the meaning of the Act, that the delitor in 
innolvent." It in no doubt true that Patterson deceived 
Roach an to the amount of hia unaetn and liahilitiea, over- 
cHtimnting the one ami undcratating the other. It in alno 
tme that i" ttewm waa only trading in a amall way and 
might !*• teni|amirily emlairriisned by a coni|iaratively 
amall liability. But making allowance for all thin, how can 
it lie aerioualy contended that Mr. Roach, aa an ordinary 
huainena man aecuntomml to dealing with tranaactiona of 
thin kind, could with the actual knowledge he had from 
hia own account with Patteraon, conclude that he waa 
solvent and able to meet hia liabilities ! It waa no tem­
porary emliarrasMiiieiit from wliicli, witli some aid, tbc 
delitor might recover. The mortgage recites that Patter­
aon waa then unable to continue hia huainena. There 
waa every evidence which any reasonable man, much

(1) |1HM2| A. C. 890.
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mort* « business one, would accept an conclusive that 
tile debtor to whom in Alignât, I1K13, Vassic & Co. would 
not Midi goods, except for cash, whom they required to 
make regular payments on his security, and to furnish 
daily returns of his cash sales, had on the llitli January, 
11107, become hopelessly insolvent, and without any credit 
to Is- injured hy the registration of a chattel mortgage on 
his spick. Mr. [touch had a perfect right to try to save 
his debt hy getting any legitimate security, hut it seeing 
clear that when he askisl for the security he felt sure that 
he would never save his debt without it.

It is said, however, that there was in fact this agree­
ment made in August, l!Ki:i; that in fuel the cash was 
advanced and the goods delivered on the faith of it, and 
that in fact the mortgages wen- given in pursuance of that 
agreement, and that in such a cade equity will protect the 
security. This principle is stated ill Es parte Fixltrr ( 1 ), 
where the agreement was precisely as here, “ If 1 required 
it at all)’ time he should assign to me the said mill,” etc., 
and the reason assigned for not giving it at the time was 
that it would cripple the business. Mellish, L. J„ says : 
“ Although we do not dispute the rule that when- a sum of 
money is advanced on the faith of a promise that a hill of 
sale shall lx- given, such sum is to Is- treated as a pn-sent 
advance on the security of a hill of sale, we do not think 
this rule will pmtect transactions when- the giving of the 
hill of sale is purposely postponed until the trader is in a 
state of insolvency, in order to prevent the destruction of 
his credit, which would result from n-gistering a bill of 
sale. We think that such a postponement is evidence of an 
intention to commit an actual fraud against the general 
creditors.” In ./ones v. Klimy (2), the agreement was that 
the debtor was pi give the security “in case anything 
should happen," and the Court held that this meant “in 
case insolvency should " _ n," and, therefore, when the
security was given it must have lieen given in contempla­
tion of insolvency. In CUtrkmm v. McMwttrr (3), it ap-

(1) U It. 7 Oh. 6*1. (21 11 Can. 8. 0. K„ 70S.
(8) 21$ Can. 8. O. K. U6.
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that the registry of the instrument was agreed to be 
postponed until default should Ik1 made by the debtor in 
paying $50 per week ; and it was held by Strong, C. J„ and 
apparently concurred in by the whole Court, that this was 
a contravention of the Hill» of Sale Act, and the transac­
tion was, therefore, void at the instance of an assignee 
under the Preference Act ; and the cases I have just men­
tioned were relied on as authorities for that conclusion. 
The Chief Justice there says: “ Not only was there a non- 
compliance with the condition of the Act in respect of 
registration and taking possession, but there was a distinct 
agreement between the mortgagor and mortgagee that 
there should Is1 neither registration nor immediate posses­
sion : in other words, that a transaction which the law 
required should lx; open and notorious, to be made so either 
by registering the mortgage or taking possession of the 
goods, should Is. concealed from subsequent creditors, pur­
chasers and mortgagees." The Chief Justice, in that case, 
holds the principle of Ex parte Father applicable to 
cases where assignments are attacked under the Prefer­
ence Act, and 1 can see no difference in principle where, in 
order to avoid the destruction of credit, which results from 
a registry of a chattel mortgage, there is an agreement not 
to register, and where there is an agreement not to give 
the bill of sale until it was required, as in the case of Ex 
•parte Either and this case, in order to avoid the destruc­
tion of credit by registry. The underlying principle of the 
Statut.' is that bills of sale must, for the protection of 
creditors and purchasers, !*• made public by registration 
where the chattels are left in the visible |x>sxession of the 
debtor. Under the authority of these cases, I think the 
agreement cannot Is* reliisl upon as in any way assisting 
the defendants, or as in any way rebutting the presumption 
of fraud which they have to meet.

It was contended that as Hrock Az Patterson took jam- 
session of the stock their position was improved in some 
way. I am unable to see how. The mortgages were both 
duly registered, and the js«session was taken distinctly 
under the authority of the second one, or jierhaps of lx>th.
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The act relied on as justifying the taking of possession 
was the issue of a writ by the plaintiffs, in an action for 
the recovery of their debt. If the mortgage is itself void 
under the Act, a possession taken under it, and by reason 
of a default, cannot place the mortgagee in any better 
position. If, on the other hand, it is claimed that Patter­
son gave possession, and delivered the chattels by way of 
creating a distinct and new title in Brock & Patterson, 
though there is not the slightest evidence to sup|s>rt it, 
that delivery would lie equally as fraudulent and void 
under the Statute as an assignment of the chattels would 
Is1, section 2 covering both cases.

It is unnecessary, after what I have said, to discuss 
the validity of these mortgages, in view of the Statute of 
Elizabeth, nor do I wish to lie considered as expressing a 
considered opinion on that point. I cannot, however, re­
frain from ilrawing attention to the extraordinary nature 
of the second mortgage. It is so overloaded with provis­
ions and conditions which to me seem so unnecessary and 
so unusual in an ordinary mortgage, designed simply to 
secure a debt, that one is tempted to think that the pro­
tection of the debtor's property from the claims of his 
other creditors, and an intention to delay, if not altogether 
to defeat, them in the prosecution of their legal remedies, 
was an inducing motive in the debtor in executing the 
instrument, and in the creditor in taking it.

There must be a decree for the plaintiffs, delaring the 
two mortgages void as against the assignees under the 
Fraudulent Preference Act. and the defendants must pay 
the plaintiffs’ costs.
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l!M>7. FARRELL v. PORTLAND ROLLING MILLS COMPANY, 
Hayfi. LIMITED.

Com/may - Croapectu»—M iarcpreacntation—Agent—Liability of 
d i rector*—Hcaciaa uni of contract to purchase aha ecu—belay— 
Competency of icitnea*—Religion* belief.

Where a broker employed by a company to sell shares in its cap­
ital stock, issues, though* without the knowledge or authority 
of the company, a prospectus containing untrue material 
statements, on the strength of which shares are purchased, 
the purchase money being paid to the company, the pur­
chaser may rescind the contract as against the company, 
the broker's statements being binding on his principal as 
made within the scope and course of Ins employment.

A broker employed by a company to sell shares in its capital 
stock, issued a prospectus stating, among other things, that 
while in the past the company’s earnings bad been applied t o 
the improvement of It* property, “henceforth it is tne inten­
tion to declare regular half-yearly dividends as the net earn­
ings of the business will warrant. In view of past results,
and the very favorable pros|>ects for increased earnings, share­
holders can with confidence look forward to receiving satis­
factory returns on their investments in the sha|ie of 
dividends." No mention was made of the debts or assets of 
the company. It owed a large sum to its liankera, but its 
assets considerably exceeded its liabilities :—

Held, that the statement amounting to no more than an 
announcement of policy, and which the directors were at 
liberty to pursue, a company having power, though in debt, 
to pay dividends out of profits, the failure to disclose th*» 
indebtedness to the Linkers did not render the statement 
misleading, there also lieing no duty to disclose in the pros­
pectus the assets and liabilities of tlie company.

Directors adopting a resolution to sell shares in the capital stock 
of the company and to employ a broker for the purpose held 
not responsible in damages for misrepresentation in a pros­
pectus issued by a broker employed by them under the 
resolution, at the instance of a purchaser of shares who had 
purchased in reliance u|>on the prospectus, the prospectus 
having been issued without their knowledge or authority, 
and the broker lieing the agent of the company.

The plaintiff learned on January 24, 11*4, that material repre­
sentations, upon which he had been Induced to purchase shares 
in the defendant coui|iany on June 24,11*0, were untrue. On 
February Id, and on March 8, be demanded at meetings of 
the company a return of the purchase money. Neither 
demand was assented to, and on April 13, the company com­
municated to him a formal refusal. A suit for rescission was 
commenced by him on Decern tier 27, following:—

Heht, that the suit was barred by delay.
Where a person stated th*t he tielieved in a Supreme Power —a 

God as defined by Christ's teachings: in heaven and hell, and
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in a future state of rewards and punishments, but, that he 
did not believe lie was under any greater obligation to tell 
the truth by reason of taking the oath and that he did not 
lielieve that a person who swears falsely will lie punished in 
the hereafter, it was held that he was conijietent to lie sworn 
as a witness.

Bill for rescission of purchase of shares in the defend­
ant company, and for repayment by the company and the 
defendants Manchester and Elkin of the purchase money, 
93,000. The facts fully appear in the judgment of the 
Court.

Argument was heard April 20. 1007.

(}n>. V. Mrlin-rut-y, K. 0., and ./. M. Price, for the 
plaintiff:—

The defendant company must lie held to have issued 
the prospectus and to lie lioiind by the statements con­
tained in it. Sharpe was the company's agent. It was 
within the scope of his employment and authority that he 
should prepare it. Information concerning the condition 
and proH]M*cts of the company could not otherwise lx* con­
veniently given to the public. Access was given to him 
to the company's books in order that he might prepare a 
statement of the eoin|Niny's affairs. For the truth of what­
ever representations lie should make the company made 
themselves li.ible. They put him as their agent in their 
place to make them, and even though it can lie said that the 
|Mirticulur false statements made by him were not author­
ized by them, and they were ignorant of the fraud and 
free from all moral guilt, they are answerable for them as 
having been made by him in the course of the business lie 
was employed to transact. See Swire v. Francis (1); 
Harwich v. JCnylish Joint Stitch Hank (2); HmiUtsworth v. 
('it y of dlasifitw Hank (3); Mucha y v. Commercial Hanh 
of New Hrunxwich (4); Cdetl v. Atherton (5): Henderson 
v. Laron (II).
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[Barker,.! :—In what way do you set up lialiility ax 
against tin* directors ' J

We rescission of tin* contract as against the
coin|HUiy and damages against the directors.

|Barker, J.:—I hi you make tile claim against the 
directors on the ground finit Sharpe was their agent f]

On the ground that they authorized the prospectus 
and must Is* taken to have issued it.

[Barker, .1.:—In that respect, then, the case is one of 
fraud. |

Though we should fail in our claim against the direc­
tors, we are entitled to relief as against the eoinpany. 
Where rescission is claimed it is only necessary to prove 
that there was misrepresentation ; then, however honestly 
it may have been made, however free from blame the 
person who made it, the contract having I wen obtained by 
misrepresentation cannot stand : Derry v. l'eek (I ). 
The evidence is very clear that Manchester and Elkin 
had knowledge that Shar|«* was " preparing a pros­
pectus to be used in marketing the shares. It was 
their duty to have examined it and to have ascertained 
that it contained no false information. They could 
not remain passive and disclaim resismsihility for it. 
Having allowed it to go forth, they must Is* held to have 
considered it and to have adopted it, Elkin is shewn to 
have had positive knowledge of its terms. He suggested 
and actually made changes in it. He told Sharpe that he 
would rather he would not use it. That was not enough. 
He should have peremptorily prohibited it from being 
used. The evidence of IVrkins establishes that Manchester 
was shewn the prospectus before Sharpe made use of it, 
and that he made no objection to it. There can be no 
doubt of the materiality of the false representations made 
to the plaintiff. See Henderson v. /.aeon (2). The direc-

(l) 14 A. V. 3511, |s*r Lord Herscliell. 
(2) L. K. 5 Kq. 24».
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tors of tliv company were known to him to lie capable 1907. 
ami successful men of business. The statement in the Kakhkm.

1‘OKTI.ANU
Ituu.iNo

prospectus, “ with the exception of a small outside interest, 
tile present paid-up capital is held by the directors of the

Company,
company, and it is understood they will increase their l-iarntn. 
holdings by taking up most, if not all, of the treasury 
stock remaining to be disposed of," was singularly well 
adapted to upfieal to him. That they were willing to 
adventure further capital in an enterprise in which they 
already were so largely interested, afforded conclusive 
evidence to him that the business was a sound and profit­
able one. The plaintiff’s evidence is that it was this state­
ment that largely led him to buy, but even if lie had not 
lieen induced by it to enter into the contract, its falsity 
would entitle him to have the contract rescinded. See 
Redgrare v. Hurd (1); Cupel and Company v. St ma 
Ship* Com/*>*ifion Co. Ltd. (2). The plaintiff'should have 
lieen told of the company’s liabilities, and especially its 
liability of $120,000 to the Bank of New Brunswick.
The prospectus stated that hitherto the earnings of the 
company have been applied to the improvement of .the eom- 
pany’a property, hut that “ henceforth it is the intention to 
declare regular half-yearly dividends, as the net earnings 
of the business will warrant," and that “ in view of past 
results, and the very favorable prospects for increased 
earnings, shareholders can with confidence look forward to 
ri-ceiving satisfactory returns on their investments in the 
shape of dividends.” That statement could not have lss-n 
made if tie- company's liabilities had not lieen suppressed.
Their existence made the statement false and fraudulent.
It is no answer that the plaintiff had the means of dis­
covering and might, on inipiiry at the office of the com­
pany, have learned the financial condition of the company: 
Redgrare v. Hurd (*upra); Cupel and' Company v. Sim*
Ships' Composition Co. Ltd. (eupra). In Xew Rrunsurick 
unit Canada Railway Co. v. Mnggeridge (8), Kindersley,

(2) 67 !.. J. Oh. 713.
(3) 1 Dr. & 8m. 303.

(1) 20 Ch. 1). 1.
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V.-C., lnyn down the rule as to the duty of those who issue 
a prospectus inviting the public to take shares on the faith 
of representations therein made, that such representations 
must lie made “ with strict and scrupulous accuracy.” It 
is true that there is no legal liability for concealment. 
Hut this is not a matter of concealment. The representa­
tion as to the company’s prospects was a |iositive repre­
sentation that there were no liabilities and nothing to 
prevent dividends from lieing jsiid. 'I’lie plaintiff’s delay 
in bringing the action shim Id not be held to liar his title to 
relief. The plea of laches cannot Is- raistsl by the defend­
ant directors. As against them the suit is similar to an 
action at law for deceit, in which the only amount of delay 
which would bar the action would be that fixed by the 
Statute of Limitation*, by analogy to which equity gener­
ally proc... Is where the question of Inches is raised. With
res]>ect to the com|wmy, the defence of Inches must Is- dis­
poned of on principles sulwtantially equitable. See 
h'rltt niji r v. Mew Sombrero l‘ho*pliute Co. ( 1 ). It is not 
unjust to grant relief. The |sisitioii of the company has 
not ls-cn altered by the delay, and no shareholder has I wen 
prejudiced by it. His conduct forbids laches being set up 
against bim. From the earliest moment that the plaintiff 
learned of the falsity of the pros|s-ctus he repudiated the 
sale to him and asked for a return of his money.

M. H. Trnt. K.V. (A II Hanington, K.V.. with him), 
for the defendants:—

No liability lias I wen established against the directors. 
The pros]Hs-tus was not issued by them nor for them and 
they are not shewn to have authorized it, or to have 
approved of it. Sharpe was the agent of the company who 
alone would Is- hound by the prospectus. Did the suit lie 
against the directors, it could not lie maintained without 
pns if of actual fraud. It is not enough in an action of 
deceit that statements in a pms|s-ctus are untrue. There 
must bave lwen an intention to deceive; or it must lie

(1) 8 A. <\ 12711.
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shewn that the l'aise representation has Is-en made know- I SKIT.
ingly, or without belief in its truth, or recklessly, without Kakhkul
earing whether it lie true or fais*;: Derry v. Peek ( 1 k lu I'mm.ami ....... ‘ . . Iloi.l.isu
Heir v. Hr!I (2), a company formed to work a mine was 

compelled from want of funds to cease working: money l-iairsn. 
was then advanced by some of the directors, amongst whom 
were Barnett and Baldwin. Afterwards, at a general meet­
ing of the company, held in oilier, amongst other things, to 
provide for the existing deficit and for working expenses, 
the directors were authorized to issue delientures on such 
terms and for such amounts as they in their discretion 
might think fit. The directors accordingly authorized the 
secretary to employ a firm of brokers to place the delien- 
tures. The brokers prepared and issued a prospectus lieur- 
ing the names of Bell and others as directors and containing 
statements as to the condition and prospects of the com- 
pany, on the faith of which the plaintiff and others pur­
chased delientures. The money they raised was paid to 
the com|iany’s bankers; and part of it was applied by the 
directors on behalf of the company to repay the advances 
made by Barnett and Baldwin. The debentures having 
I stymie worthless, the plaintiff brought an action for dam­
ages against Bell in respect of the statements in the pros­
pectus, some of which were alleged to lie fraudulent. The 
jury found that the prospectus contained statements of fact 
which were false to the knowledge of the brokers, and by 
which the plaintiff was induced to part with his money; 
that none of the false statements were made by Bell per­
sonally, or by his authority; that the brokers had authority 
to issue a prospectus but no authority to include in it state­
ments which were fraudulent. It was held by Cockburu,
C. «I., Brett and Bramwcll, L. .1.1,. Cotton, L. J., dissenting, 
that Bell was not liable. Cockbnrn, C. J., and Brett, L. J„ 
put their judgments on the ground that Bell had no 
knowledge of the statements, while Bramwell, L J., held 
that Bell had lieen guilty of no moral fraud, and not licing 
the principal of the brokers, could not lie held responsible

(1) 14 A. C. 337.
VOL III. N. H. K. K. 34.

(2) 3 Ex. 1). 238.
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for tlie pros|x-ctus. An ngninst 1 m>t11 company ami directors 
the plaintiff has failed to shew misrepresentation. The 
statement lien- that “it i* understood they (the directors) 
will increase their holdings by taking up moat, if not all, the 
treasury stock remaining to be disposed of," is a specu­
lative matter of opinion, constituting no ground whatever 
uimii which a charge of fraud can lx- founded. There was 
no duty, even had the pvixtpeefus been issued by the com­
pany or on the authority of the directors, to set out the 
liabilities of the company. The statement ae to the pros­
pects of the business was not put forward as a statement of 
fact, but as an expectation. The plaintiff could not, and 
did not rely upon it, and though it had turned out to lw 
fanciful, it would not lx' a ground for setting the contract 
aside: New Brun*wirk ami Canada Hailwat/ Co. v. 
Canybearr (1). Rescission will not !*■ granted for conceal­
ment unless material facts are suppressed which rendered 
untrue the statements made. In the lust mentioned case, 
Lord Chelmsford says: “If a party makes a false 
representation it may lx no answer to a js-rson complain­
ing of being misled by it to say to him, You had the 
means of ascertaining tin1 untruth of my statements if you 
had thought proper to use them. The reply to this might 
probably lx-, Your representations put me off my guard ; 
I was entitled to place faith and reliance upon it. * * * 
Hut when the fact is not misrepresented, but concealed, 
ami there is to induce the other |sirty not to
avail himself of the means of knowledge within his reach, 
if he neglects to do so, he may have no right to complain, 
because his ignorance of the fact is attributable to his own 
negligence." See also Peek v. Gurney (2). The prospectus 
was not issued as that of the company, but was a private 
memorandum prepared by Sharpe for his own use. In 
order that the plaintiff could rely upon it as against the 
company, it would have to lx- shewn that lie was misled into 
believing that it was issued by them. To succeed as against 
the directors, proof of damages should have been given.

(1) M H. !.. C, 711. (I) !.. It. 6 H. !.. S77, per I/ml Cairns.
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There is no allegation of these in the bill. The delay in 11)07. 
bringing the action is fatal : Kent v. Freehold Land Co. Kakhku. 
( 1 ); Iteene Kii’rr Co. v. Smith (2); Skelton's Cane (3); )jimiMm 
(taken v. Tun/uand (4); Sliarnlev v. South, etc., Co. (5). »n.u7 ■ \ , \, " I IIMI'ASV,

I lie plaintiff became a shareholder in June, 1903. He did l.ismtu. 
not raise any objection to the purehase until February,
1004, and it was not until ten months later that he began 
these proceedings.

Mc/nernejf, K. C., in reply.

1907. May 21. Barker, J.:—

The defendant company was incovi>oiutvd in March,
1899, by letters [Mitent issued under The New Briinnwick 
Joint Stock Companies Act. and soon after it com­
menced the business of manufacturing liar iron at the 
city of St. John, which business it has continued up 
to the present time. In 1903, and at the particular period 
during which the transaction involved in this suit took 
place, the defendant James Manchester, was president and 
a director of the company, and the defendant Elkin was 
its treasurer and managing director. The capital stock of 
the coui|»iny was $90,000, divided into shares of $100 each, 
of which 453 shares, representing $45,300, bail lieen taken 
up and paid for in full. The remaining 447 shares re­
mained in the treasury. In 1903 the directors were desir­
ous of extending the com|Miny's business, and found it 
necessary, in order to do so, to erect some new buildings 
and instill some new plant, which, according to the estimate 
given to the company by its manager, would involve an 
outlay of from #18,000 to #20.000. In order to raise the 
money it was resolved to place 200 shares of this so-called 
treasury stock on the market for sale at [Mir. The resolu­
tion to that effect was [lassed at a meeting of the director' 
held May 2(ith, 1903, and it is as follows : “After discussion 
on the subject. K. C. Elkin moved, seconded by Joseph

(1) L. K. 3 Ch. m. (3) 68 I* T. 210.
(2) L. K. « H. L. TO. (4) L. K. 2 It. L. 236.

(6) 2Ch. D. 663.
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1907. Allison, and resolved that the company do sell .*<20,000 of
Fakkkli. stock (200 shares) at par.” At this time the other direc-

Uo'm.AXh tors, besides Manchester and Elkin, were 1). J. Purdy, who
Mn.i> was vice-president, Joseph Allison, James F. Robertson 

Company. r 1
limitko. and T. H. Bullock. These gentlemen, I need scarcely say, 

Barker,J. ftre nil men of the highest standing in the community;
they are all shrewd, prudent and successful business men, 
and they occupy prominent positions commercially and 
otherwise. The holdings of these directors at this time 
were as follows : Manchester, 50 shares; Robertson and 
Allison, 50 shares each ; Rullock, 25 shares ; Purdy, JO 
shares, and Elkin 25 shares ; in all 280 shares. Of the 
remaining 178 shares 150 of them had lieen originally 
taken by the late George F. Baird, who was a director of 
the company from its organization up to the time of his 
death in 1901. They then passed into the possession of his 
widow and son, who held them at the time in question. 
At this same meeting of directors held on May 20th, 1908. 
another resolution was passed which is as follows : “ R. C. 
Elkin moved, seconded by Joseph Allison, and resolved 
that the president and treasurer lie authorized to employ a 
broker or other person to sell the st<>ck above mentioned 
at a reasonable commission.” They employed F. S. Sharpe, 
a broker, for the purjiose at a commission of 8 per cent., 
and they reported what they had done at a meeting of 
directors held on the 9th June, 1908. Sharpe, who was a 
chartered accountant, was given access to the company's 
1 looks in order to obtain such information as they afforded 
as to the company's a flairs, and he prepared a prospectus 
for the information of purchasers, several copies of which 
in typewriting seem to have lmen prepared. Among other 
persons applied to was the plaintiff. Sharpe died some time 
before or almut the time this suit was commenced, so we 
have not his evidence, but according to the plaintiffs 
account—and there seems no reason to doubt its accuracy— 
Sharpe gave him a copy of this pt os pectus, which he pro­
duced at the hearing : and he says that on the faith of 
certain material statements in it being true he purchased 
80 shares of the stock, for which he |iaid $*8,000. He jiaid
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tin- money to Sharpe, who paid the amount (A2.Ü10), less his 
commission, to the company. The precise date of the pay­
ment to Sharpe is not given, nor is the precise date of the 
payment to the company given. The latter, however, was 
a I suit the 24th June, 1903. A certificate under that date 
was isuivd by the company to the plaintiff, and his name 
was entered on the list of shareholders as a holder of 30 
shares. The certificate is under the seal of the company 
and sigmsl by Mr. Manchester as president and by Mr. 
Klkill as treasurer. The prospectus is headed “ Private 
Prospectus," and sigmsl “ F. S. Sharpe, chartered accountant 
and financial agent." It was also accompanied by a letter 
dated June 1st, 1003, written by Perkins, the manager of 
the company, to Sharpe, in which some particulars were 
given as to the contemplated extension of the works for 
which the money was required. The plaintiff complains 
that the statements in the prospectus,on the faith of which 
he invested his money, were false, and that they were 
fraudulently made with a view of deceiving purchasers ; 
that he was in fact deceived by them, and lie has there­
fore filial this bill in which he prays that the purchase be 
rescinded and the money Is- returned to him with interest, 
'flu- bill sets out some twelve distinct statements in the 
prospectus which the plaintiff alleges were made by the de­
fendants that is, liotli the company and the two directors— 
wilfully, falsely, fraudulently and diceptively, for the pnr- 
|»>se of deceiving the public and inducing them to invest 
in the stock. ( In the hearing all these chargi-s were aliaii- 
doned except two, which are included ill the following 
|mragraph ill the prospectus : “ With the exception of a 
small outside interest, the present ]>aid-up capital is held 
by the directors of the company, and it is understood they 
will increase their holdings by taking up most if not all 
of the treasury stock remaining to Is- disposal of." A 
third ground relied on by the plaintiff is an alleged fraudu­
lent suppression of fact which, though not set forth in the 
hill, is relied on from the evidence. Section 5 of the pros­
pectus states that up to that time the earnings had Is-en 
applied to the improvement of the com|Niny's property,

l!K)7.
Kakkkll

PORTLAND
Rolling

Company,
Limitko.

Marker. J.
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1907.
Kaiimki.l

l'oKTLANI»
ltoi.l.INU

( OMI-AN Y.
Limitki». 

Barker. J.

mill it thi'ii |une... Ik tluiK: “ Henceforth, however, it is the
intention to declare regular half-yearly dividends, as the 
net earnings of the business will warrant. In view of past 
results, and the very favorable I in is|M'('ts for increased 
earnings, shareholders can with confidence look forward to 
receiving satisfactory returns on their investments in the 
sha|ie of dividends." The coni|Miiy in fact at this time 
owed the Hank of New Brunswick some #120,000, and the 
suppression complained of is that without the statement of 
this liability the statement as to pros|s'ct for future divid­
ends is altogether misleading and deceptive.

The case is divided into two distinct parts—the relief 
as claimed against the coui|mny alone, that is the rescission, 
and the relief as claimed against the com|miiy and the 
directors jointly, that is the repayment of the #3,000. 
There is in reality very little in common between the two. 
They differ as to the nature of the liability itself ; they 
differ as to the principles upon which that liability is to lie 
determined ; and they also differ as to the evidence by 
which the liability must lie established. The liability of 
directors differs as Is-tweeu themselves and t|ie mnijiany, 
ns between themselves and outsiders, and as la-tween them­
selves and the creditors of the company. And it is not to 
Is- wondered at that in these various o ions the
numerous cases which arise should now and again lend to 
some confusion. The plaintiff’s right to relief against the 
cotn|iany itself—s|s'aking without reference to that right 
having Is-cn lost by delay or acspiiescence lies, 1 think, 
within comparatively narrow limits. The company in no 
way authorized the preparation or the use of this pros­
pectus. and for the pur|sis<-s of this part of the case, at all 
events, I may assume that no dirisitor ever saw it or knew 
anything about it until after the plaintiffs purchase had 
I St ll entirely completed. The coni|Ntuy, however, did 
employ Sharpe as their agent to sell these shares for them, 
and in the discharge of that employment lie adopted what is 
a usual course in such cases—that is, he made a written 
statement, call it a prospectus or whatever you like, pre­
pared with a view of its Is-ing submitted to investors in

3993
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order to imluci- them to purchase. In tlint respect lie wax 
acting within the scope anil course of Ilia employment. 
Ami if in lining no he made misrepresentations to the 
plaintiff ns to material facta. Iiy which lie was misled and 
induced into making the purchase, this Court will not 
allow the ciiin|smy to retain the l.enetit of a contract so 
brought about,but will rescind it at the plaintiff's instance. 
The company did not authorise the pmspi'ctiiN. it did not 
make it, and its officers knew nothing about it : lint its 
agent, when acting within the wope of bis employment, 
made tlie representations, and the coiii|miiy took and still 
has the benefit of the contract. See Houltlmtxnih v. City 
nf UUiHgotv Un h I. ( I ). If, therefore, the plaintiff was induced 
In purchase, and did in fact purchase, by reason of these 
representations, and they were material and untrue, 1 think 
it follows that the contract must be rescinded. Now the 
plaintiff swears, and there is nothing to lead me to siip|»isr 
lie is not stating the truth, that he was inducts! to pur­
chase, and did ill fact purchase, by reason of these repre­
sentations. That they were untrue is admitted, and that 
they were material cannot, 1 think, be disputed. The 
directors only held 280 shares out of 4.Vf and as to an 
agreement or understanding that they would increase their 
holdings by taking the Imlancr of the treasury stock, there 
was no such agreement, whether the ambiguous language 
of the prosiss'tus means the Isilance of the tiO.OfK). as the 
defendants contend, or the Iwlance of the whole unissued 
stuck, as the plaintiff swears he understiKsI it. See Smith 
v. Chnihrick (2). As to the suppression of fact relied on 
as a third ground. I do not myself attach any ini|sirtance 
to it. Ill the first plius- it is not put forward in the hill as 
a ground of relief. In his bill the plaintiff relies on un­
true statements, not statements rendered misleading by the 
suppression of facts. Hut ai«irt from this, 1 think the 
contention is not well foiindisl. In the first place there is 
nothing said in the prosjas-tus at all al»nit the company's 
debts or its assets. Such statements an-, I think, not usual

l»07.
Kashku.

INsm.AXii
Itau-isii
t'lllll'ASY.
I.i smell.

Ilrtrkur. .1.

(H S A. <’.817. (2l II A. 0. 187.
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1007. in n prospectus. If the plaintiff deni red to form an opinion
Eakkkli. of Ids own in reference to the future of the company, and

inihtlanh some information as to the amount of the company's in-
Itiil.I.INO i

Mi 1.1# dehtedness was necessary for tluit purpose, lie wae at
CliMt’ANV. t _ J * .

i-imitkii. liberty to ini|uire and useertain. Wluit is the statement ?
Parker. J. After speaking of the directors in the past not having paid 

dividends, hut having devoted the net surplus profits of 
their business towards improving their property, the pros­
pectus says: “ Henceforth, however, it is the intention to 
declare regular half-yearly dividends as the net earnings 
of the business will warrant." This is nothing more than 
saying that the directors' present intention was that in the 
future, when they thought the net earnings of the busi­
ness warranted them in di-claring a dividend, they intended 
adopting that course instead of doing as they had done in 
the |uist, anil they express the opinion that shareholders 
can confidently look forward to a good return for their 
money. What is wrong aliout that < It is a mere indica­
tion of the policy of the directors as to the future disposal 
of the net surplus profits of the company. How is that 
statement rendered misleading by reason of an omission 
to state that the company owed the Hank of New Bruns­
wick $120,000 ' It might have altered the plaintiff's views 
as to the value of the investment, and deterred him from 
purchasing the shares, hut that does not make the state­
ment misleading. It may indicate a difference between 
the opinion of the plaintiff and that of the directors as to 
what would lie a prudent course to pursue in case the pro­
fits were earned, but that is to my mind irrelevant. In 
A (iron’s Href* v. Twin* (1), Lord Watson says: "The duty 
of disclosure is not the same in the case of a pros|Hs,tus 
inviting share sulwcriptions as in the case of a proposal 
for marine insurance. In an honest prospectus many 
facts and circumstances may lie lawfully omitted, 

some Hulwcrihers might tie of the opinion 
that these would have lieen of materiality as influenc­
ing the exercise of their judgment." That seems to 
meet the plaintiff's contention, unless it can lie laid down

(1) [191161 A. V. 2X7.

5204
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«h a matter nf law that no comjiany ought to <lvclarv a 
<li vidend unlew it in out of délit The plaintiff may lie 
timid us to the nature of his investments, and he may 
refuse to risk his money in a eompnny which countenances 
a declaration of dividends out of surplus profits while the 
company is indebted. If so. I think he should, in the ab­
sence of any express statement that the mm|iany was free 
of debt, impure and obtain the information. If he chooses 
not to adopt that course, I do not think lie can throw Imck 
upon the company shares which he has held, and upon 
xvhicli he has received no dividend, on tin- ground that he 
was not told that the company had an indehtislness so 
large that if he hail known it lie would not have purchased. 
It is perhaps not necessary to allude to the expression of 
confidence with which shareholders might look forward to 
dividends in the future, and which [lerliaps, as we find it 
in a "private prosjiectus" signed hy Sharpe, may fairly he 
considered his opinion rather than that of anyone else: 
lint there was, in my opinion a reasonable ground for en­
tertaining such an expectation. I do not know that the 
directors' intentions as t.i the fullin' was a matter everdis- 
cuwed by them, but tbe financial standing of the coni|stny 
at that time justified the language of the pms|H-ctus. 
Acmrding to the com|»iny’a I ml a nee sheet maile up in 
April, 1 Iff 1.1, it* total liability to the public was Sllifi.515.81, 
ami its assets amounted to S225.4x2.lli, leaving a surplus 
of Sxx,!Hili,X5. The value of the unissued stock is not 
included in this. .So, if you disluct from this the amount 
ilue shareholders—$45,800—then- is a clear surplus of 
S48.lififi.X5. The business each year «hewed a profit— 
Slt.lil8.lili in 1002 and SI4.fi0l.fi5 in 1008. In addition to 
this, the works were living extended, and an increased 
business was anticipated from that. It[miii the other 
grounds, I think the plaintiff had a right, as against the 
company, to have the contract rescinded, and the money 
re|inid with interest. ,

Nrwliigging v. Admit (I ) may Is? referred to as shew­
ing the nature and extent of the relief given in an action
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Murker, J.

(1) H C'h I). M2.
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11)07. like thin, for the rescission of a contract procured by mis- 
Eahkkm. representation. It is restitution, and involves the restora- 

^Homixu1’ ^*on’ 8,1 *,ir ,|M possible, of botb parties to the |H)sition they 
cnselxY ^pvctively occupied ls-fore tin* contract was * , so far 

1,hhtm>. ,vh their |>ositioiiK have been changed by the contract itself. 
Barker. J. As Cotton, L. says in that case, “This is an altogether 

different thing from damages recoverable by reason of 
deceit ; it is working out the proper result of setting aside 
a contract in consequence of misrepresentation.” 1 call 
attention to this U*cause at the hearing there seemed some 
confusion or uncertainty as to the precise ground upon 
which the plaintiff rested his claim against the directors 
as distinct from his claim against the company. It was 
described as a claim for damages at one time and by some 
more general term at another. It is clear that the bill does 
not damages, and it is equally clear that the purchase
money is not recoverable from the cotii|>any as damages in 
a suit for rescission, but merely by way of a restitution to 
the plaintiff of what was obtained from him by the com- 
Imiiiy through the misrepresentation of its agent, and which 
for that reason it is in* for the company to retain,
the plaintiff electing to avoid the contract and restore to 
the eonqtany all benefit derivable by him under it. There 
is certainly no question of damages involvtsl in this case 
as against the coiiqsmy. The bill is not so framed, even if 
it were possible to join in the one suit a claim to rescind as 
against a company and a * against directors for dam­
ages for deceit, and the evidence has not lieeti adduced with 
any such view.

Coming now to the case of the two directors, upon 
what ground can this suit Ik? maintained against them for 
the recovery of this ' As I have )M>int<*d out, the
eoiii)Mtny makes restitution of it as an incident to the rescis­
sion of the contract. Hut the directors had no contract to 
rescind, they bad no restitution to make for they derived no 
lietiefit from the contract and had nothing to restore to the 
plaintiff and he had nothing to restore to them. The com* 
puny was liable by reason of a misrepresentation made by 
its agent in doing the company's business, as a result of

5
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which the company received the money us u direct benefit. 
Hut tliv directors had neither business, nor ls'iietit. nor 
agent. Numerous cast's were eiteil to shew that in suits 
like the present,directors have been held liable. No doubt 
that is so, but I think all of those cases proceed upon the 
principle that the directors have Iss'ii guilty of fraud and 
dishonesty in themselves making representations which 
induced the contract. Whether the remedy was sought in 
this Court by a bill asking for indemnity, or in the common 
law Court by way of an action for deceit, the principles 
il|sin w hich the liability was established were the same.

In V' tl' v. tjitmey (1), the bill was tiled by an allottee of 
shares against the dint-tor* of a company and the executor 
of a deceased director to Is1 indemnified against loss by 
reason of Is-ing Isnuid by the contract. The company itself 
had Ix-en wound up. The Master of the Rolls had dismissed 
the bill Ist'iiuse the plaintiff had by his delay and acipiies- 
cents' elected to retain the shares, I/nd Chelmsford says: 
" The suit in the present case is not for the n-scission of 
the contract, but is foundisl upon the loss the ap|s'llant 
has siistaimal, and may sustain, in comaspience of Ilia being 
Isnuid by the contract he has entered into. It is a proceed­
ing similar to an action at law for deceit : and the only 
amount of delay which could Is' a bar to the relief is fixed 
by the .Statute nf Limitation!, by analogy to which Equity 
generally pnxaaal* in ipiestions of laches." At page 
Lord Chelmsford is thus reported : “ This case is entirely 
different from suits instituted either to lie relieved from, or 
for the enforcement of, contracts induced by the fraudulent 
concealment of facts which ought to have Im-cii disclosasl. 
* * It is a suit instituted to recover damages from the
respondents for the injury the ap|*'llant has sustained by 
having Iss-n deceived and mi.sleil. by their misrepresenta­
tions and suppression of facts, to liccomr a shareholder in 
the proposed company, of which they were the promoter*. 
It is precisely analogous to the common law action for 
deceit. There can lie no doubt that Kipiity exercises a con-
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HH)7. current jurisdiction in caws of this description, and the 
Karkki.i. same principles applicable to them must prevail both at 
tjgnfff Law and in Ki|iiity.” See also Derry v. Peel,' ( 1 ) ; Arkwright 
c omcanv v* Newlwuld (2): Smith v. Chadwick (ft). The next ques- 
ijmhk". tion in the inquiry is what is the nature of the misrepre- 
Harkcr. .1. mentation necessary to Is* established in an action of deceit.

A reference to. the cases I have just cited will shew that 
there is a marked difference in this respect between an 
action for deceit and a suit to rescind a contract for mis­
representation. I need only refer to Derry v. Peek (\\as 
containing the latest and final authority on this |K>int, and 
it is there determined that to sup|>ort an action of deceit 
the plaintiff must prove actual fraud. The false repre­
sentation must be made knowingly, or without belief in its 
truth, or recklessly without caring whether it is true or 
false. A false statement made through carelessness and 
without any reasonable ground for believing it to be true, 
may be evidence of fraud, >es not necessarily amount 
to fraud. Such a statement is not fraudulent and does not 
render the person making it liable to an action of deceit, if 
it was made in the honest tielief that it was true. To ren­
der the director liable, however, lie must have himself 
these false statements, or they must have been made in 
some way to render him liable for them. In the prewnt 
case the defendants Manchester and Klkin certainly did not 
propose this prospectus—they certainly did not direct or 
authorize its preparation, and they knew nothing about it 
until after or about the time the plaintiff purchased, and 
they certainly did not " _ it in any way. It does not on 
its face profess to In* more than a private prospectus of 
Sharpes, which was binding on the company in the way I 
have mentioned, but was in no way binding on the two 
directors, lb* was not in my view their agent in any way. 
On this point I refer to Weir v. Harnett (4), and on appeal 
at page 2.*th of the same report. The facts in that case and 
this are similar in many respects. The directors of an eatah-

(I) 14 A. <\ 387. (2) 17 Ch. I). 330.
(8) I» A. C. 11W. per Oui I lihirktmni .

(If 8 Ex. If. :t2.
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lishisl company were authorized by the shareholders to 11107. 
issue the company's debentures iu order to raise money to Fasmki.l 
I «IV these dint tors certain moneys a«lvance<l tiy them to isiktUsu 
pay tile working and other expenses of the company, ror 
this purpose they employed a firm of brokers, who pre- l-ismi». 
pared and issued a prospectus liearing the names of the Murker. J. 

directors, in which statements were made, false to the 
knowledge of the brokers, but which the jury found were 
not made by the defendants |H'rsonully, or by their author­
ity. The debentures were sold, the money paid to the 
company, and by it the directors were repaid their advances.
The company failed and went into liquidation, the deben­
tures proved worthless, and the plaintiff, as holder of some 
of them, brought this action for damages. .Seven Judges 
tisik part in the decision of the case, and although they 
ditiered somewhat in their reasons, and one differed ns to 
the conclusion, the opinions of all are adverse to the plain­
tiff's contention in this case. Cotton, L.,)., who dissented, 
did so on the ground that it was a part of the duty of the 
directors confided to them by the resolution of the share 
holders which authorized the issue of the debentures, and 
that the brokers, in preparing and issuing the prospectus, x 
must lie considered as discharging this duty confided to the 
directors. He also held that the statements in the pros- 
peclus must he taken as the statements of the directors, 
and a* a ground for that conclusion he relied on the fact 
that the prospectus did not on its face purport to lie the 
prospectus of the brokers. All the other Judges held that 
the brokers were not the agents of the directors but the 
agents of the company, and that they derived no personal 
lienetit from the transaction. In the present case the pros­
pectus pur|K>rts to lie the private prospectus of .Sharpe, 
thereby currying the inference that the statements in it 
were his, and the directors had nothing to do with the sale 
of these shares lieyond projmsing and voting for their sale 
when convened in a meeting of the Isianl and exercising 
the (siwers and functions of the corporation itself. This 
case was followed by Fry. ,1., iu Cargill V. Bower ( 1 ).

(1) lilt'll. I). 502.
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IIMI7. Aiming the other ground* u|miii which the plaintiff"» 
Kahiiki.i. Counsel rested the liability of the directors is that of negli- 
'hoi'i'is'" K*1111111' though it is not very clear liow they apply the 

Mims doctrine to this case. Mr. Elkin gave evidence at the h.-nr-
< IIMCASV. , _
las its». ing ami I assume it is on that evidence that the so-called 
Berkor. J. negligence is 1 wised. It seems that Hometinie in June, 1IK)H, 

hut whether before the plaintiff lunl taught or afterwards 
the evidence does not shew, Sharpe brought the pro|>ectu* 
to Elkin. I will assume—and that is putting the case 
most strongly in the plaintiff's favor—that this interview 
Usik place tafore the plaintiff actually purchased the shares 
ami that Sharpe, during the conversation, mentioned the 
plaintiffs name as that of a prolwthle purchaser. Elkin at 
first refused to lisik at the prosjiectus, he toll! Sharpe that 
he had no authority whatever to get up an)- such paper 
either from him or the company, and that he objected to 
prospectuses generally. He finally consented to take the 
prospectus and look over it. This he did, and when Sharpe 
returned the next day, Elkin inaccu­
racies in it of which the plaintiff now complains, that is, 
the statement as to the directors’ holdings and their agree­
ment to increase them. He also pointed ont to him the 
want of clearness in the statement as to the Imlanre of 
the shares which the dins-tors were said to lie willing to 
take, and objected altogether to the use of the pros- 
[w*ctu* in that form. Shar|ie in reply put forward 
that the prospectus was his own and not that of the com­
pany or any one else and that it so appeared on its face, 
and that the statements to which Elkin objected, though 
strictly inaccurate were not materially so and that lie could 
explain to purchasers the exact truth in reference to them, 
and Sharpe dill then in the copy of the prospectus which he 
submitted to Elkin, and which is in the evidence, make at 
least one correction in it in his own writing. Elkin was 
asked as follows :—

(j. “ What did you tell him as to using it (i. e. the 
prospectus.) ' A. I said, As far as I am concerned I would 
rather you wouldn't use the thing at all, that would lie the

66876^0954



III.] VKW II Kl'SS WICK EQUITY KEliiKTs.

lient way.’ And as he left me lie said lie didn't know an 
he would une it at all, ‘-the moat I will nell or have wild will 
lie to my customers that I have sold stocks to Indore.’ He 
said they will take my word for it.’ ” I do not see how it can 
I*1 argued that Elkin in this conversation shewed any 
intention of in any way adopting or approving of the pros­
pectus. His language was altogether by way of dis­
approval. Now in what way was Elkin guilty or charge­
able with negligence ! Whatever may have been his duty 
to the comjMiny lie certainly occupied no fiduciary rela­
tion to the plaintiff, he owed him no duty and was 
not bound to him by any obligation. I do not think there 
is anything in this contention. The case of Mr. Manchester 
is a still weaker one for the plaintiff. Perkins says that he 
gave Mr. Manchester a copy of the prospix'tus at the Bank 
of New Brunswick, hut whether he received it or ever 
opened it he could not say. Mr. Manchester says he never 
saw it until he saw it when Mr. Elkin shewed it to him. 
He also made objection to it, but Elkin said : “ It is a 
private thing got up by Mr. Sharpe, and we have nothing 
to do with it.” I think the plaintiffs bill so far as it seeks 
any relief against the defendants Manchester and Elkin 
must lie dismissed.

All of these defendants set up as an answer to this 
suit that, as to the rescission of the contract, the plaintiff 
by his delay in bringing this suit for that purpose, and br­
other acts in reference to the shares consistent only with 
an intention to hold them, has lost all right to have the 
contract reacinihsl. In which case the other branch of the 
suit fails also. See //nyuumii v. Karopean Central Railway 
f o.(l). I have come to the conclusion that this defence must 
succeed.

In Lindxtiy 1‘etnJeam Uu. v. Hurd (2), the general 
doctrine is thus stabs] “ Now the doctrine of laches in 
Courts of Equity is not an arbitrary or a technical doctrine. 
Where it would lx- practically unjust to give a remedy, 
either U-cause the party has, by his conduct, done that
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which might fairly lx- regarded ax equivalent to a 
waiver of it, or where by lux conduct and neglect 
he hax, though perhapx not waiving that, remedy, yet 
put tin' other |uirty in a xituation in which it would 
not la- reaxonahle to place him if the remedy were after­
wards to be ax,, rteil, in either of these caxex, lapxe of time 
and delay are inoxt material. But in every caxe, if an argu­
ment against relief, which otherwise would lie just, is 
founded U]xm mere delay, that delay of course not amount­
ing to a liar by any statute of limitations, the validity of 
that defence must la- tried upon principles substantially 

Two circumstances, always important in such 
cases, are, the length of the delay and the nature of the 
acts done during tin- interval, which might affect either 
party and cause a balance of justice or injustice in taking 
the one course or the other, so far as relates to the remedy.” 
In Erittnyer v. Xew Somkivnt 1‘hoxphtitr. Co. (1), Lord 
Blackburn says in reference to the rule which I have 
quoted : “ 1 have looked in vain for any ' irity which 
gives a more distinct and definite rule than this; and 1 
think, from the nature of the inquiry, it must always be a 
question of more or less, depending on tl|c degree of diligence 
which might reasonably be required, and the degree of 
change which has occurred, whether the balance of justice 
or injustice is in favor of granting the remedy or withholding 
it. The determination of such a question must largely 
depend on the turn of mind of those who have to decide, 
ami must therefore In- subject to uncertainty ; hut that, I 
think, is inherent in the nature of the inquiry." As an 
application rather than as an exception to this rule, it is 
sail! that in dealing with contracts in reference to ' s in 
trailing companies there are s|iecial reasons for requiring 
promptness in those who seek the rescission of them on the 
grounds of misrepresentation which do not exist in the case 
of other contracts. In In rr Senti ink Petroleum Co. (2)," it 
appears that during the argument Fry, !.. ,1., asked Counsel 
this question : “ Why d<x-s rescission of a contract to

(I) 3 A. C. 1218, 12711. (1) 23 Ch. II. 425.
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take slum's stand on a different footing from ri'Hcissioii 
of any other contract ?" The answer was: “On the 
ground of tile |x>licy of the legislature as to companies. 
A shareholder’s name goes out to the world, and creditors 
tins! th<‘ company on the faith of his lieing a shareholder, 
and other people are imluml to take shares U-cuusr he 
has done so, and therefore an attempt to repudiate after 
the winding-up to the prejudice of their rights, comes too 
Into." In giving judgment, Fry, L J„ says: “Whether it 
I the letter of repudiation) was sent in time, we innsl not 
determine, for this is not the case of an ordinary contract, 
hut of a contract to take shares, which stands on a different 
footing. As regards such contracts the legislature has in­
terposed anil has provided that they shall be made known 
in a particular way to shareholders and creditors: notice of 
them is given to the world. Now the general principle is 
that no contract can he rescinded so as to affect rights ac- 
i|uired htmajidr. by third parties under it. It is true that 
the creditors and the other shareholders have not acipiinsl 
direct interests under the contract, hut they have aci|uirisl 
an indirect interest. The shareholders hove got a eo-con- 
trilmtory, the rrislitors have got another person liable to 
contribute to the assets of the concern. So that although 
in the case of ordinary voidable contracts "? repudia­
tion is enough, there must in the case of a voidable contract 
to take shares Is1 repudiation and something more before the 
winding-up commences." The learmsl Judge was there in 
|>art discussing the cHcct of an attempt to rescind after the 
rights of creditors had intervened under a winding-up. To 
that extent his language has no I «caring on the present case, 
where the company is not in liquidation, anil where the 
shares are all paid up. with no liability to contribute 
further. In Smith'h Cam (1), Turner, L.J., says: “Now 
certainly of late this Court has laid very great stress on 
the necessity for [unties mining here within a reasonable 
time in cam's of this description, and 1 am not disposed to 
cast an)' doubt ii|hiii that principle. 1 think that parties
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who arv in the position of shareholders in companies, if 
they come to this Court to be relieved from their shares 
OII tile ground of fraud practised upon them, must come 
with promptitude." In bireclors of tVidmi Railway 
Co. o) Venezuela v. Kieeli (1), Lord Komilly says : “On 
that subject I would observe that a contract between a 
company and an individual differs from a contract between 
two individuals alone in this respect, that upon the faith of 
his becoming a mendier of the com jinny various persons 
are induced to deal with the company anil to liecoine 
shareholders, which they would not do except upon the 
belief that he was a of it. The result is, that it
becomes necessary for him, in order to set aside a contract 
of this description, that he should come with the utmost 
diligence for that pur|sw, so that no person may be misled 
by the fact of his remaining a member of the association." 
In Lawrence'* <'use (2), Lord Cairns says : “ It is difficult 
to disembarrass these cases of the effect which a man’s 
name lieing on the register has in inducing other jiernons 
to alter their position.” tiaggallay, L. J„ in In re Scottish 
I’elroleum Co. (3), lays down three rules by which cases of 
this kind are governed. Shortly stated, they are these : 
1. Every person who has agreed to become a member 
of a company, and lieen registered as a mendier, 
is liable as a contributory in the case of a winding- 
up. 2. That is subject to the right of the member 
to have the contract reseimhd, if he has entered into 
it through the fraudulent conduct of those with 
lie has contracted, but proceedings for the rescission must 
lie taken within a reasonable time after the fraud is dis­
covered. 3. And in cases where there is a winding-up, 
the proceeding for rescission must have been taken be­
fore the commencement of the winding-up. At page 434, 
Baggallay, L. J„ says : “ The cases appear to establish that 
to enable a shareholder to escape, there must, liefore the 
commencement of tile w" " g-up, he a repudiation of the

(Il UH.2H.L 125. (2) L. H. 2 Oh. 417.
(3) 23 Oh. D. 42».
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shares, anil that it must lie followed up by active steps to 
Is1 relieved from them, unless there is some agreement with 
the company which dispenses with the necessity of pro­
ceedings being taken by this particular shareholder.'’ 
These extracts have s|>ecial reference to cases where the 
companies have gone into lh|uidation, and the contract is 
one between shareholders and creditors. In such eases the 
Court seems to have laid down an arbitrary rule. The 
principle by which promptness is reipiired as a condition 
of obtaining relief is by no means confined to such cases. 
In that 'aise the information upon which the party based 
his right to repudiate, and which the Court held to he a 
sufficient ground for tile pur|sise. was communicated to 
him on the 12th November, 1880, and on the 27th of the 
same month he wrote withdrawing his application for 
shares and requesting a return of his deposit. Baggallay. 
L J., says : “ The delay of a fortnight in repudiating the 
shares makes it, to my mind, doubt ful whether the repudia­
tion in the ease of a going concern would have lieen in time.” 
In Lawrence's Cane (1), a delay from the Kith May to the 
27th September was held fatal. In Kincaufe Case (2). a 
delay from the 25th of April to the 18th of .July was 
also held fatal. It is unnecessary to multiply instances, 
because in none of them has the party lieen allowed to 
uacape his contract after a delay less by many months than 
that with which the plaintiff has to contend in this case. 
This suit was commenced on the 22nd December, 1004. 
The purchase of the shares was made and completed on the 
24th June, 11103, just eighteen months liefore. The time, 
however, would only begin to run from the time the plain­
tiff received the information by which he learned that he 
had lieen deceived. When he received knowledge of the 
fraud uisiii which lie relitsl as a ground for repudiating his 
contract he was in a |sisitioti to make his election, and 
Isiund, as I think in a case like this, to act with prompti­
tude if he desired to get rid of his contract. There does 
not seem to have lieen anything lien' to put the plaintif!'
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on inquiry, anil lie states, and I accept his statement as 
correct, that it was not until the 24th January, 11104, when 
he attended a meeting of shareholders, that lie became 
conversant with the facts which he now relies on as a 
ground for his right to succeed in this suit. He states 
that at that meeting he learned about the indebtedness to 
the Hank of New Brunswick, and that the directors had 
not taken any more stock, and that only #5,000 of the 
#20,000 required had lieen taken up. He was asked, 
“ What did you then conclude from all that—what did you 
dot" He said, “I concluded I would withdraw my share, 
and sometime after I called into a meeting they had, I 
think in February, and demanded my money.” That meet­
ing was held on the 10th February. He attended another 
meeting on the 8th March. He says he went to these 
meetings to get his money liack. He says that at the 
March meeting, at which only the defendants Manchester 
and Elkin were present, he said, “ Gentlemen, I did not 
come here to attend the meeting. I came here to demand 
my money; the conditions I bought my stock on have not 
been carried out and I want my money.” He also says 
that at that time he tendered liack his certificate of shares. 
Un the 5th February, 1004, the plaintiff sent the company 
a formal letter addressed to Mr. Manchester as president, 
in which he says : “As the company did not succeed in 
disposing of only a portion of the twenty thousand dollars 
stock offered for sale, and the plan and conditions which I 
bought my interest in the company are considerably altered, 
1 would he pleased to have my money returned to me, and 
if I understood at the meeting held on 24th January that I 
gave my consent to have my interest mortgaged I with­
draw my assent under these circumstances. ’ The precise 
object or effect of this letter is perhaps not clear. The 
defendants rely upon it as a dealing with the shares with 
knowledge of all the facts. For the present I am dealing 
with it as indicating a desire to get I wick his money as a 
result of a previously formed intention to repudiate. The 
plaintiff s Counsel contendisl that he repudiated the shares in 
February. Whether he did so or not is perhaps not neces-
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ssry to determine, for lie was then as I have said possessed 
of the information which rendered it necessary for him to 
define his course. It is clear that the company had no 
intention of assenting to his demand. If nothing else their 
letter of April 18. 19(14, shews that. From the 24th 
January, 1904, to the 22nd of the following December, is a 
period of II months—from April 18 to the same date is a 
period of N months. Either period is so much longer than 
any which Courts have recognized as satisfying the con­
dition of prompt action that it makes no difference which 
you select. .Men1 repudiation is not enough where the com- 
|>;lliy refuses to assent to it. It must be followed by pro­
ceedings to give effect to the intention and have the 
contract avoided and the register corrected. There is one 
consideration in this case which should have induced the 
plaintiff to act promptly. His name had already ap|>carcd 
on the list of shareholders for over six months as one 
having a respectable sum invested in the business, and 
during that period such influence as his name would carry 
had been operative upon those dealing with the company. 
If he intended to repudiate his position as a shareholder, he 
should, so sism as he ascertained the facts ii|xm which he 
relies, have been active to set matters right.

I think there has lieen such delay in commencing this 
suit that the plaintiff ill the absence of all explanation or 
special circumstances to warrant it, has lost his right to 
rescind the contract. In that case, as no action would lie 
against the company for the recovery of the purchase 
money, this suit would not, as framed, lie against the 
directors either: Kent v. Freehold land Co. (1); Hey- 
mann v. Euro/min Central Railway Co. (2).

Hut one other point remains for decision. Eben 
Perkins who was for some years the manager of the com­
pany was examined in Illinois, under a commission. After 
he had liven sworn, hut before he gave any evidence, his 
competency as a witness was challenged on the ground of 
his religious faith. Bell v. Bell (8) was cited as shewing that

(1) L. R. 3 Ch. 4H8. (2) L. H. 7 Eq. 164.
(8) 34 N. H. 1115.
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his evidence should he rejected. Ill order to guard against 
all possibility of Mr. Perkins’ views on this subject being 
misrepresented I shall " all extract from his evidence.

" (). Mr. I’erkins, the oath that you have jusl taken 
by which you have sworn by tlod to tell the truth, I am 
instructed to ask you do you believe in (iod ! A. Well, 
that you will have to define what you mean.

“Q. I just asked you that, do you believe in (Iod, yon 
know what is ordinarily accepted in this country ! A. f 
believe in a Supreme Power.

" Q. Do you believe in Qod ! A. Well that question 
can not lie answered without a definition of what you mean 
by (Iod.

“(). Well do you believe in (Iod as taught in the llihle ' 
A. As taught in the Old Testament ?

“Q. As taught in the Bible : A. Oh I well it is 
taught in the Old Testament in one way—a revengeful 
( Iod, and in the New Testament in another way, which one 
do you mean (

“ (j. Well, which one do you believe in ' A. I lielieve 
in the one that is définis! by Christ's teaching.

“ (j. Do yon believe that you are under more obligation 
to tell the truth by reason of the oath that you have 
taken than you would have been if you had not taken that 
oath A. No sir, I do not.

" (j. Do you believe ill hell ! A. Well, you define 
hell for me so that I will know what you mean. No 
farther than what I have stated. 1—well I refuse to 
answer ecclesiastical questions.

“ (). You believe in a future state of rewards and 
punishments I A. Certainly.

“ (j. You do f A. Yes.
“ C Do you believe if persons swear falsely they will 

he punished in the hereafter ? A. No.
“ Q. Do you believe in Heaven ? A. Yes.”

Mr. Perkins does not seem to have answered the 
inquiry as to his belief in the existence of hell. But as he 
later on in his examination expressed a very positive

5
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opinion that the gentleman whom he considered responsible 
for this catechising would certainly go there, I feel at 
liberty to assume that he believes in its existence. We 
have, then, Mr. Perkins stating his belief as follows : “ I 
believe in a Supreme Power—a God as defined by Christ’s 
teaching in the New Testament—I believe in Heaven and 
hell, and in a future state of rewards and punishments. I 
do not believe that I am under any greater obligation to 
tell the truth by reason of taking the oath, and I do not 
believe that a person who swears falsely will be punished 
in the hereafter.” It would be a mistake, I think, in this 
age, with its almost endless variety of religious thoughts 
and beliefs, to refine too much in determining as to the 
competency of a witness. The taking of an oath implies 
a belief in a God, to whom an appeal is made. The two 
important points, I think, are a belief in a God and a belief 
in a future state of rewards and punishments. Mr. Perkins 
believes in both. The witness in Bell v. Bell did not 
believe in either. I think Mr. Perkins was a competent 
witness.

The bill must be dismissed with costs.
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/« re FISHER TRUSTS.

Will—Construction.

Testator by his will conveyed property to trustees upon trust to 
pay to his (laughtvr an annuity of $1,000 during her life, and 
on her death to invest the securities set apart to pay said 
annuity and to divide such investment among his daughter’s 
children on the youngest coining of age. The will then pro­
vided that should the daughter he alive on her youngest child 
coining of age, the daughter, if she should see fit, might have 
and receive from the trustees the fund set apart lo yield said 
annuity, and t he same should he absolutely assigned to her 
free from all control of her husband. The youngest child 
came of age in the lifetime of the daughter, who died with­
out making a request to have the fund transferred to her :— 

Held, that there was an absolute trust in favor of the children, 
which would not have been defeated had the request lieen

Application by trustee for advice. The facts are 
fully stated in the judgment of the Court.

Argument was heard August !•, 1007.

J. A. II. L. Fairwealher, for J. W." Fisher :—

By the will Rebecca Fisher was to receive #1,000 
annually for her sole use and benefit during the term of 
her natural life. If she died before her youngest child 
attained the age of twenty-one years the securities which 
were held or set apart to yield the said sum were to Ire in­
vested in mortgage securities on unincumbered real estate, 
and upon the youngest child attaining the age of twenty- 
one years the investment was to he divided among her 
children share and share alike. If, however, Mrs. Fisher 
was living at the time her youngest child reached the age 
of twenty-one years, the will provided that if she should 
see tit she might have and receive from the executors the 
securities which might he held or set apart to yield the 
annuity, and the same should Ire absolutely assigned to her. 
If the words “ if she shall see fit ” were left out of the will, 
Mrs. Fisher would take absolutely the securities so set
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«part At the time of the decree Mrs. Keator (to whom 
securities were given on exactly the same terms as to Mrs. 
Fisher) was entitled to and did receive an absolute convey­
ance of the securities to herself. There is nothing in the 
decree as to any demand having been made, and it seems 
to have been taken as a matter of course that Mrs. 
Keator was entitled to the absolute conveyance, her child­
ren having reached the age of twenty-one years. Mrs. 
Fisher was not, however, entitled to an absolute convey­
ance at that time, three of her children living under age. 
Her share was convey ed to J. Gillies Keator as trustee to 
carry out the terms of the will. These in the first place 
would he to convey to the children of Mrs. Fisher equally 
upon the youngest reaching the age of twenty-one years, 
provided Mrs. Fisher died before that time; and second, if 
she were living at the time her youngest child attained the 
age of twenty-one years, to convey the securities to her 
absolutely. The mere fact of the trustee not executing u 
conveyance does not affect the question. Upon the young­
est child attaining the age of twenty-one years the securi­
ties vested in the mother absolutely. As her property 
they now pass to her husband.

A. 0. Earle, K. C., for children of Rebecca Fisher :—

By the first clause of the will the children of Rebecca 
Fisher took a vested interest on her death. The absolute 
terms of the gift are not qualified by the later words pro­
viding for a transfer of the trust assets to the life tenant 
It is, however, sufficient to say that the request for a 
transfer was not made.

H. H. Brittain, for J. Gillies Keator.

F. R. Taylor, for Bank of Montreal.

1907. August 20. Barker, J. :—

This matter comes before me with the consent of all 
parties, who agree to be bound by my decision. I treat

1907.
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1907. the application as made on behalf of J. Gillies Kentor,
in re trustee under the conveyance to him, dated April 28th,

Fihhkr ,
Thcsth. 1898, for advice as to the conveyance of the property 
Barker, J. therein described.

The facts are briefly these. The late John Gillis died 
in October, 1872, leaving a will by which he conveyed all 
his property, real and personal, to trustees upon certain 
trusts which may lie shortly stated as follows. An annuity 
of £500 was secured to the widow during her life; certain 
provisions were made for the two daughters, Mrs. Kentor 
and Mrs. Fisher, and the residuary estate all went to his 
son John. The trust in reference to Mrs. Keator and Mrs. 
Fisher is the same, and declared in the same language. 
The clause as to Mrs. Fisher is as follows : “ Upon trust to 
pay to my daughter Rebecca, by equal quarterly payments, 
the clear yearly sum of 81.000 for her sole use and benefit 
during the term of her natural life, free of all control of 
any husband she may have, and her receipt and receipts 
therefor, or for any part thereof, shall, notwithstanding 
coverture, be a good and sufficient release to my said 
executors for any payment made to her under this lie- 
quest, and on the death of my said daughter Rebecca I 
direct my said executors to invest in mortgage securities, 
on unencumbered real estate, the securities which may be 
held or set apart to yield the said annuity or sum of 81,000, 
and the same and the accumulations thereof shall be divided 
share and share alike to and among any children which my 
said daughter Rebecca may leave, on the youngest child 
living attaining the age of twenty-one years, and until 
such child shall attain such age, I direct that my said 
executors may, if they shall see tit, apply the interest aris­
ing from such mortgages towards the support, maintenance 
and education of such child or children instead of re­
investing the same ; but should either or both of my said 
daughters be alive on her youngest child living attaining 
the said age of twenty-one years, 1 will anil direct that 
such daughter or daughters, if she or they shall see tit, may 
have and receive from my said executors the several securi­
ties which ma)- he held or set apart to yield the said an-
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unities or sums of SI,000, and the same shall be absolutely 
assigned to her or them respectively, free from all control 
of her or their respective husbands, and in case of the 
death of either or both of my said daughters during my 
life leaving issue her surviving, I will and direct that such 
issue shall have and take the provision hereby made for 
my said daughter or daughters so dying, and to which she 
or they should respectively have been entitled had she or 
they survived me.” Then follows a provision that if either 
of the daughters died without leaving issue, the securities 
held for her should fall into the residuary estate. To this 
will there was a codicil which relates chiefly to the resid­
uary estate given to the testator's son, and which under 
the will was to come into his possession on his attaining 
the age of thirty years. By the codicil it was provided 
that if he died before attaining that age, and without 
issue, the income and profits of the residuary estate should 
be equally divided between the daughters Mary (Mrs. 
Keator) and Rebecca (Mrs. Fisher) free from the control of 
their husbands, and in case of the death of either of them, 
her share was to go to her children. It was then provided 
as follows : “And in the event of my said son dying with­
out issue, 1 will and direct that at the time he would have 
attained the age of thirty years, had he lived, that my 
residuary estate and the whole of my property, including 
the securities set apart to yield the annuities for my said 
daughters, as provided by my said last will, shall be equally 
divided Iwtween them, share and share alike, free from all 
control of any husband that they may respectively have, 
and in the event of the death of either or both of them, 
the share of the daughter or daughters so dying shall be 
conveyed to her respective children, it being my will and 
desire that at the time before mentioned my said estate 
should lie wound up and closed, except as to the wife’s 
annuity, if she was then living.”

Some years ago a bill was filed in this Court by Mrs. 
Keator and her children, and Mr. and Mrs. Fisher and their 
children, against the then trustees under John Oillis will, 
and others, for the administration of the trusts therein

1907.
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1907. declared, and it was alleged in the bill that application had 
in iv been made on behalf of the plaintiffs to the trustees to setflSHl H ... -pi

Tki htk. apart a sufficient portion of the estate to pay the annuities 
Darker..!, to Mrs. Keator and Mrs. Fisher, and that the plaintiffs had 

offered and agreed to accept the lot of land on the comer of 
King and Prince William streets, in the City of St. John, 
which belonged to the (lillis estate, and yielded an annual 
ground rent of !$2,000, and another lot which would yield 
a sufficient net income to pay the necessary tire insurance 
premium ; but that this arrangement was objected to by 

. the representatives of John It. (lillis, who was then dead, 
and in consequence thereof the trustees refused to act. In 
this suit a decree was made on the 11th March, 1898, by 
w hich it was ordered that the lot of land on the corner of 
King and Prince William streets should be conveyed one- 
half to Mrs. Keator and “one-half to John Gillies Keator 
(the present applicant) in trust for the use and benefit of 
Rebecca Fisher and her children, as declared in and pro­
vided for by the will of the said John Gillis, deceased ” and 
the remainder of the trust property was ordered to be con­
veyed by the trustees to Susan Gillis, executrix anil trustee 
under the will of her husband, John R. Gillis, w ho had died 
after attaining the age of SO, leaving issue ill of whom 
were parties to that suit. By the same dec the trustees 
under the will of John Gillis were charged, their 
accounts passed and allowed, and they were relieved from 
their trust. Mi's. Fisher died September 25, 100(1, intestate, 
leaving five children (all of whom were then of age) and her 
husliand, James W. Fisher, who is domiciled and resident 
in England.

In pursuance of this decree the trustees under John 
Gillis' will, made a conveyance of a half interest in the lot 
of land to John Gillies Keator. This conx'eyance is dated 
April 28, 1898, and it was made “upon trust for the use 
and benefit of the said Rebecca Fisher and her children, as 
declared in and provided for by the said last will and testa­
ment and codicil of the said John Gillis, deceased."

The effect of all this was to wind up the John Gillis 
estate so far as his trustees were concerned. Mrs. Keator
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agreed to take a half interest in this lot as representing 1907. 
an investment of her annuity of SI,000, and it was con- in n

*■ FiniiKii
veyed to her. Mvs. Fisher agreed to take the other half Tiicst». 

and it was conveyed to John Gillies Keator, as I have men- Marker. J. 

tioned, and the residue was conveyed to John R. Gillis’ 
representatives. Mrs. Fisher’s one-half was not conveyed 
to her, but to a trustee who holds it on precisely the same 
trusts as it would have been held if retained by the 
trustees of John Gillis.

The question now is between James W. Fisher, the 
husband of Rebecca Fisher, and the children, as to the 
person entitled to the property. The will seems to contem­
plate a setting aside by the trustees of securities sufficient 
to realize the annuity of SI,000 payable to Mrs. Fisher 
during her life, and on her death leaving children, these 
securities were to be invested in mortgages on unencum­
bered real estate and these were to be divided among the 
children on the youngest liecoming of age. Now the 
trustees did not set apart this fund, hut the Court did. It , 
is represented by the half-interest in this land and is in the 
hands of John Gillies Keator to do with it, I think, precisely 
what the trustees under the will would have been obliged 
to do with it, that is, invest it in mortgages and transfer 
them to these children. Something has been said as to this 
amounting to a conversion of the property into personalty.
That seems to me altogether immaterial for the fund goes 
to the children whether it is personalty or not. I think as 
the children are all of age it is quite competent for them 
to waive the investment of the property in mortgages and 
take it-as it is. Taking this will altogether, there is nothing 
whatever in it to indicate that the children of Mrs. Fisher 
living on her death should not be entitled to the fund out 
of which the annuity of 81,000 was payable, and the time 
for distributing it was when the youngest child became of 
age. ( )u the contrary there are several provisions of the 
will which point to this as the right of the children. There 
is but one clause which suggests a different construction, 
and that is the one which provides that the daughter, if 
alive on her youngest child becoming of age, may, if she

_______ ________
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Barker, J.

sees fit, have and receive from the executors the securities 
set apart to yield the annuity. The clause says: “And 
the same ” that is, the securities, “ shall be absolutely 
assigned to her free from all control of her husband." 
There seems to me to be two answers to this argument. 
In the first place Mrs. Fisher never requested a transfer of 
the fund—she never saw tit to take it and in fact never did 
take it. Apart from that it would, I think, be a most un­
reasonable construction to place on this clause, that the 
daughter, by expressing a wish to take over the fund and 
having it assigned to her, would take it absolutely for her 
own use, defeating the evident intention of the testator to 
benefit the children after their mother's death and all the 
other clauses making provision for the ultimate disposal of 
the fund. 1 should say the clause was only intended 
at most, if acted upon, to give the mother possession of the 
securities and the management of the fund, but that it 
would still be subject to the trust in favor of the children 
on her death. I think Mrs. Fisher’s children are entitled 
to this half interest in the property in equal shares—and 
there will be a declaration to that effect.

The trustee will have his costs out of the income.



III.] NEW BRUNSWICK EQUITY REPORTS. 543

BROWN v. BATHURST ELECTRIC AND WATER­
POWER COMPANY, LIMITED.

River—Riparian owner—Use of water—Prescriptive title—Mill 
dam—Interruption of water—Statutory power»—Remedie*— 
Injunction— K.r pont faqto legislation—Construction,

A riparian owner has a right to have the water How to his land 
in its natural channel without material diminution in its 
volume or sensible change in its quality ; and to use it for 
all ordinary and domestic purposes; he has also a right to 
the reasonable use of it for commercial or other extraordin­
ary purposes incident to the enjoyment of his property, pro­
vided he does not cause material injury or annoyance to 
other riparian owners.

A prescriptive title to the uninterrupted use of the water of a 
river will not he obtained by a riparian owner who has made 
no use of the water different from that to which he was 
entitled as a riparian owner.

Defendants, an electric lighting company, owning lands on both 
sides of a river, and having power by their Act of incorpora­
tion to build and maintain dams on the river, erected a dam 
thereon in connection with their power house. Plaintiff is 
the o vner of a water grist and carding mill, situate lower 
down on the same river Defendants ran their machinery 
at night time, and in the morning it was their practice, with­
out hai ivtg regard to the length of time required for the pur­
pose, to store the water until the dam was again full. In 
consequence the plaintiff was deprived of water, and his 
mills were forced to shut down for a long number of days at 
a time :—

Held, (1) that defendant’s use of the water was unreasonable, 
and should In- restrained.

(2) that the statutory powers conferred upon the defendants to 
build the dam for the purismes of their business did not auth­
orize them to make an unreasonable use of the water, to the 
injury of the plaintiff, in the absence of proof, the onus of 
establishing which was upon the defendants, that their busi­
ness could not lie carried on except with that result.

(3) that a provision in defendants’ Act, that they should he liable
to pay damages to any owner of property injured by the 
construction of their dams or works, did not apply to dam­
ages resulting from an unreasonable use of the water; that 
the Iocs sustained by the plaintiff in the enjoyment <>f his 
property was continuous and substantial, and that, under 
the circumstances, he was entitled to relief by injunction.

Defendants were empowered by Act to build a dam upon com­
plying with certain formalities, including the tiling of a plan 
thereof with and obtaining approval of the same by the 
Governor in Council. A plan was filed with the Governor in 
Council, but owing to misapprehension its approval was not 
obtained. The dam having been built, an Act was passed

1907.
October 18.
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H|>|U'nving of (hr dam, and providing tliat tlie approval 
slioulil have the saine fitlve and effect as if given by Order in 
Council of tbedete of t lie tiling of t la- plan:

Hrht, tliat the Aet, as c.r past facto legislation, was not to he 
construed as legalizing the dam.

Bill for an injunction and damages. The facts fully 
appear in the judgment of the Court

Argument was heard July 80, 11107.

Heo. Hilbert and M. Price, for the plaintiff :—

A riparian owner is not entitled to more than a 
reasonable use of the water of the stream. He may not 
detain it or use it for extraordinary purposes, if by so 
doing he inflicts injury upon another proprietor. See 
Miner v. Gilnmur (1) ; EUi» v. Clement (2) ; Sumpnon v. 
HUlinott (8): Writ/IU v. Hoiranl (4). The defendants’ 
Act of incorporation confers upon them no higher rights 
than those of a riparian owner. Nor can their rights he 
enlarged from the circumstance that their business is of 
utility to the public : Hroadbent v. Imperial Han Ho. (5); 
Attiprney-Heneral v. Council of Hirminultam ((>); Spoken 
v. Haiihnri/ Huctrxl of Health 171. The company is given 
power to maintain dams for the storage of water at a 
point or points four miles above the head waters of the 
plaintiff's mill : Sect 4 (2) of Act They cannot use their 
working dam, which is situate two miles aliove the plain­
tiff’s mill, for this purpose. The provisions in the Act 
that before erecting any dams or waterways a plan and 
description of the same should lie approved of by the 
Lieutenant-Governor in Council, etc., not having lieen 
complied with when the dam was erected, the defendants 
had no rights at the time the bill in the suit was filed. The 
legislation subsequently obtained approving the defend­
ants' works (7 Edw. VII., chap. 117) does not deprive this 
Court of the jurisdiction it had when the suit was brought

(1) 12 Moo. P. C. 131. (4) 1 8. k 8. 1110.
12) 21 O It. 227. (5) 3 Jar. N. 8. 221.
(3) 1 C. B. N. 8. NO. ’ ill) 4 K. & J. 528.

(7| L. H. 1 Eq. 42.
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to award the plaintiff damages though his right to an in­
junction to have the works removed may be gone. See 
Crisp v. Banbury (1). The defendants’ use of the water 
is an invasion of the plaintiff's prescriptive right to have 
it How to him in an uninterrupted volume.

[Barker, J. :—Do you contend that you have rights 
beyond those of a riparian owner ?]

Yes. Plaintiff's mill has had the use of the water 
uninterruptedly for over twenty years.

[Barker, J. :—The user has not been artificial so as to 
adversely affect the rights of another owner ]

if. 0. Teal, K. C.. and «V. A. Landry, for the de­
fendants :—

Defendants’ dam is not a storage dam within sect. 4 
(2) of the Act of incorporation. The power to build a 
storage dam has never been exercised. The dam that has 
been built is a power dam, and was erected by virtue of 
sect. 4(1). It does not lose its character as a power daui 
because of having incidental storage. Defendants’ works 
were built and their business carried on under statutory 
authority. In such a case, in the absence of negligence, 
the plaintiff has no redress. The existence of statutory 
powers does not deprive us of our rights as a riparian 
owner: Siviiulou Watmvorks Co. v. Wilts Canal Co. (2). 
We have not made an unusual or unreasonable use of the 
stream. If there has been an unreasonable use, the alle­
gations in the bill do not set it up. The Legislature has 
impliedly conferred upon ns authority to make whatever 
use of the water is necessary in order to properly carry on 
our business, even if in so doing an injury may lie inflicted 
upon the plaintiff Otherwise tlic object of our incur] xira- 
tion would Is; defeated. The interests of the public were 
deemed by the Legislature to outweigh private considera­
tions. As a riparian owner we had a right to detain the 
water, the detention not I sting unreasonable and taking

(t) 7 Bing 398. (2) U R. 7 H. L. «97.
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1907. place at night. See Keith v. Corey (1). In order to
Brows establish a prescriptive user the plaintiff must have used

Bathurst the water in a manner not justified by his natural rights,Electric ~ ei •
-■Water. aru] so a8 to raise the presumption of a grant : Sampson

L°2m3?' V- Hoddinolt (2). The Act 7 Edw. VII., c. 117. has 
made the defendants’ works lawful and has extinguished 
plaintiff’s cause of action. As the right to an injunction 
or other equitable relief is gone, the Court has no jurisdic­
tion to award damages. See Durell v. Pritchard (3). 
The Act of incorporation imposes upon the company 
liability to pay damages to owners of property in certain 
specified cases. The language comprehends damages aris­
ing from an unreasonable use of the water. The section is 
exhaustive and excludes relief by injunction.

Gilbert, in reply.

1907. October 18. Barker, J. :—

The plaintiff is the owner of a water-power grist and 
carding mill, situated on the Tetagouehe river, a few miles 
from the town of Bathurst. The precise time when these 
mills were built d<x*s not appear, but from the evidence it 
must have been over forty years ago. The plaintiff 
acquired the property, which extends to both sides of the 
river, from one Samuel Bishop, in 1902. The Tetagouehe 
river is a small but rapid stream, and though not navigable 
for boats, there are large quantities of logs driven down it 
each year. The defendants are a company incorporated by 
an Act of the Provincial Legislature, passed in 1904 (4 
Edw. VII., Chap. 71) and under the authority of that 
Act, they erected a dam across the river, about two miles 
above the plaintiff's mill, and completed an electric light 
plant which they are operating by means of this water 
power and supplying the town and village of Bathurst 
with light These works were completed in December, 
1904, and the company commenced operating them on the 
15th of that month. John P. Leger, who is the president

111 1 P. A: B. 4011. (2) 1 C. B. N. 8. 680. (3) I. K. 1 Ch. 244.
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of the company and owns all its stock, except two or three 
shares, was the chief promoter of the enterprise. Neither 
he nor any of his associates owned land on the river at the 
time the company was incorporated. Subsequently, how­
ever, the defendants acquired the property on which their 
dam and works are situated. On the 19th August, 1904, 
one Comeau gave Leger a lease of the land on one side of 
the river for 25 years, with a right of renewal for a similar 
term. This lease was registered March 11, 1907, and 
though it is to Leger, it appears on its face to be for the 
be ne tit of himself and associates, and he says he holds the 
property for the benefit of the company. On the 14th 
December, 1903, one Kelley, the owner of the land on the 
op|Kwite side of the river, executed a conveyance of it to 
the defendants, which was registered on the same day. 
There is no dispute as to the land on which the defendants’ 
dam is l>eing owned by them under these two conveyances, 
or that the land on both sides of the river, at this point, is 
comprised in the land included in them, thus making the 
defendants riparian owners of their dam as the plaintiff is 
of his. This bill was filed in December, 1900, and by it the 
plaintiff not only seeks damages for injuries alleged to 
have been sustained as the result of the defendants’ 
operations ; but also an injunction restraining the company 
from continuing such injuries in the future. He rests his 
right to this relief on two grounds. In the first place, 
he says, that the company, by its Act of incor[>oration, was 
only authorized to construct its dam subject to certain con­
ditions which it has never performed. And in the second 
place, he says, that the defendants mode an unreasonable 
and illegal use- of the water by which he was deprived of 
his right to use the water for his mills, and in that way 
sustained a serious loss. Sub-sect. 4, sect 4. of the defend­
ants’ Act of incorporation required the company, before 
erecting any of the dams, etc., to obtain tbe approval of the 
Lieutenant-Uovernor in Council to the plan and description 
of them, and before undertaking any work under the Act 
the company was to tile a plan in the office of the Regis­
trar of Deeds, the Secretary-Treasurer, and the Provincial
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1007. Secretary. Tlu> section then provided that the company 
should give four weeks’ notice in the Royal Gazette of the 
deposit of the plan, and thereupon the Lieutenant-Governor 
in Council might approve of the work, and then the com­
pany were authorized to proceed with it. These were the 
conditions put forward in the hill which it was said had not 
been complied with, and for that reason the defendants’ 
works were altogether illegal so far, at all events, as 
their Act of incorporation was concerned. It appears 
that there was some mistake or misapprehension as to the 
approval of the plans by the Lieutenant-Governor in 
Council, and in order to remedy it, an Act of the Legisla­
ture was passed in 11107 (7 Edw. VIL, Chap. 117). This 
Act recites at some length the reasons which rendered the 
legislation necessary and then enacts as follows : “ The
Legislature of the Province of New Brunswick does hereby 
approve of the works of the said The Bathurst Electric and 
Water Power Company, Limited, and hereby enacts that 
this approval has the same force and effect as if passed by 
Order in Council on the 6th day of July, A. I). 11104, at the 
time of the mailing or presentation of the certificates of 
registration of plans and specifications.’’ Mr. Teed has 
sought to give this section a wider effect than I think it 
should have. He contends that it was intended to approve 
of and legalize the company’s dam and works as they then 
stood, that is on the 1:1th April, 11107, when that Act was 
passed. I do not agree in this contention. Ex /mut facto 
legislation like this is never construed so as to extend 
beyond what is necessary to cure the defect, unless the 
language plainly and expressly requires it: European 
<t Earth American Hail way Co. v. Thomm (1). I 
think the effect and the sole intention and object of 
the Act was to cure the defect as to the approval of 
the Governor in Council, and to remove that as a 
ground for maintaining this suit. The plaintiff" did 
not see fit to discontinue it on the terms contained in 
the Act : and as the Legislature has declared the approval
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contained in ttie Act ns having the same force and effect ns 
if it had been given by Order in Council on tbe (itli July, 
HMH, I can only give effect to that declaration. Tbe 
evidence shews that the plans were filed as required, that 
the necessary notice was given in the Royal Gazette, and the 
Legislature has cured all objections as to the approval of 
the Lieutenant-Governor in Council. So far, therefore, as 
the plaintiff’s case rests upon the non-performance of these 
conditions precedent it must fail.

The substantial grounds of complaint involved in this 
case the plaintiff has set out in sections if and 10 of his 
hill, and it is necessary to see precisely the scope and effect 
of these sections, especially in view of the admission of 
some evidence to which 1 shall refer later on, and some of 
which was pressed in contrary to my opinion. Section if 
alleges that the defendants wrongfully kept and continued 
to keep their said dam across the river (that is, as I under­
stand it, wrongfully, because it had lieen built without first 
securing the approval of the Lieutenant-Governor in Coun­
cil, as is alleged in the preceding sections), and that the 
gates of the dam were kept shut and closed for long spaces 
of time, thereby obstructing the water of the river and 
preventing it from flowing to the plaintiffs mill dam in 
its usual and proper course, flow and current, and thereby 
preventing him from using his mill as he otherwise could 
have done, whereby he was injured. Section 10 is as fol­
lows: " The plaintiff further complains and alleges that 
the user by the defendants of the water of the said Teta- 
gouche river by means of their said dam, and works con­
nected therewith, is unaccustomed, unreasonable and in­
jurious to the plaintiff. The defendants’ dam is a very 
high and deep one, and capable of storing very large 
<|uantitics of water. The machinery run by the water of 
the said dam of the defendants is only run during the 
night, and during the winter and the summer seasons of 
the year, when the machinery of the defendants is shut 
down and the sluiceway closed, which is always the case 
during the daytime, the water of the said river is prevented 
by the dam of the defendants from flowing in its usual
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and accustomed way into the dam of the plaintiff, and the 
plaintiff is thereby prevented from using and operating his 
mill for long spaces of time, and during long spaces of time 
during the daytime each day no water escapes from the 
dam of the defendants until the dam is full, and every day 
during long spaces of time at such seasons the plaintiff has 
not sufficient water in his dam to operate and run his mill 
by reason of the unaccustomed and unreasonable user of 
the water by the defendants.” Section 11 alleges that by 
keeping the water from the plaintiff’s dam, as set forth in 
sections !) and 10, it was injured in the winter time by ice 
which formed in consequence ; that he was prevented from 
operating his mill in the daytime for want of water and in 
consequence of the defendants’ manner of holding it back 
and using it in and through their dam, and that the great 
weight of ice and snow, which had no water to support it, 
pressed and fell against his dam and injured it. These 
sections do not put forward in any way that the injuries 
and inconveniences of which the plaintiff complains as the 
groundwork of this suit, arose from or were in any way 
attributable to any faulty or unscientific construction of 
the defendants’ dam or machinery, or that the dam was 
higher or of any different capacity,or that it varied in any 
respect from the plans on file. On the contrary, he said 
there were no plans on file and none had been approved of, 
and his complaint arises out of the unreasonable use of the 
water by means of the dam and machinery as they are, 
causing the ice to form in his dam and compelling him to 
shut down his mills in the daytime for want of water.

I think the case must ultimately turn, as the most of 
such cases do turn, upon the question whether or not the 
injuries of which the plaintiff complains arose from a user 
of the water of the river which as between the two riparian 
owners was unreasonable. That is a question of fact 
difficult to determine even where the circumstances are 
less complicated than they seem to be here. The plain­
tiff’s Counsel strongly contended that, by reason of his 
dam having been used and maintained in its present con­
dition for a period long beyond twenty years, during which
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time he and his predecessors in title had enjoyed the user 
of the water without any interruption to its natural flow 
or diminution in its natural volume, he had acquired a 
prescriptive right to a continuance of that condition of 
things. I cannot see how any such question can arise 
here. If the argument is, as I understood it to be, that 
the defen nits cannot, under any circumstances, for the 
purposes of their business, interrupt the flow of the water, 
then I cannot agree to it. As a riparian owner the plain­
tiff’s predecessor in title, when he built the dam, used the 
water for his mill in the exercise of a common law right 
incident to the ownership of the land on which the dam 
stood. That was a right to have the stream flow to and 
through his land in its natural course and volume, subject 
to his reasonable use of it for domestic or extraordinary 
purposes. It was, however, always subject to a similar 
right in every other riparian proprietor. Each was entitled 
to this reasonable use of the water while passing through 
his land. It is only where some right to the use or flow 
of the water different from that which the common law 
confers as incident to the projierty that the twenty years’ 
uninterrupted user as of right is required to sustain it. In 
Dick in non v. Grand Junction Canal Co. (1). Pollock,C. B., 
in delivering the judgment of the Court, says: "We 
consider it as settled law that the right to have a stream 
running in its natural course is, not by a presumed grant 
from long acquiescence on the part of the riparian pro­
prietor above and below, but is ex jure natures, and an 
incident of property as much as the right to have the soil 
itself in its natural state, unaltered by the acts of a neigh­
boring proprietor, who cannot dig so as to deprive it of the 
support of his land." Embrey v. Oivca (2), C liane more v. 
Kicliardn (3), and numerous other cases may be cited to 
the same effect. Neither this plaintiff, nor, so far as the 
evidence goes, any previous owner of the property, ever 
exercised or pretended to exercise any rights as to the user

(1) 7 Ex. 282. (2) 6 Ex. 883. (3) ÎH.LO. 346.
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of this river other than those, which at common law were 
incident to the ownership.

For a considerable portion of the time within which 
the injuries complained of took place the company was a 
riparian proprietor, and notwithstanding its incorporation 
by the Legislature, is entitled to all the privileges as to the 
use of the water of a riparian owner, unless the Legisla­
ture has curtailed them in some way : Ntvindon Water- 
workit Co. v. Wilts Canal Co. (1). The defendants here 
have certain powers conferred upon them by their Act of 
incorporation upon which they are entitled to rely as 
authorizing what they have done. The common law rights 
of riparian owners, inter se, as to the use of the water in 
rivers such as the one in question, have long since lieen 
settled. Each owner has the right to have the water flow 
to his land in its natural channel without material diminu­
tion in its volume or sensible change in its quality, and he 
is under an obligation to see that it leaves his land in the 
same way. He has, however, a right to the use of the 
water while flowing through his land for all ordinary and 
domestic purjioses, and to a reasonable use of it for com­
mercial or other extraordinary purposes as may bo incident 
to the enjoyment of his property, and which do not work 
any material injury or annoyance to his neighbor below 
him who has an equal right to the subsequent use of the 
water. Ill the case just cited (Swindon Waterworks Co. v. 
Wilts Canal Co.), the House of Lords made a declaration 
as to the respective rights which the canal company had 
under certain Acts of Parliament and as a riparian pro­
prietor. By the minutes of the decree, which will be 
found at page 715 of the report, it will he seen that the 
company's rights as a riparian owner were “subject to the 
ordinary and reasonable use of the said stream and waters 
by the riparian owner higher up upon the said stream.” 
See Embrey v. Owen (2); Keith v. Corey (3); Roy v, 
Fruser (4) ; Caldwell v. McLaren (5) ; Ward v. Township 
of Grenville (6). Such being the relative rights of these

(1) L. R 7 H. !.. 687.
(2) II Ex. 871.
(3| 1 P. & a 400.

(4) 36 N. B. 113.
(6) Il A. C. 302.
(6) 32 Can. S. C. R. 310,
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parties from the standpoint of riparian ownership, it is 1007. 
necessary to see in what way, if at all, those rights Bhowx 
have been changed by legislation. Section 4, sub-sect. 1, 'J.]™'.','"?' 
authorizes the company, subject to such conditions and 
regulations as the Lieutenunt-tiovernor in Council might vomcaxy. 
thereafter impose, “ to purchase, build, erect and maintain llarj^r , 
dams, sluices, waterways and water, electrical and steam 
power and light machinery and appliances, at one or more 
places on the Tetagouche river * * * and to build,
erect and maintain all other buildings, erections and appli­
ances necessary therefor.” Neither in this section nor in 
any other part of the Act, so far as I have been able to get 
at the intention of the Legislature in the obscure mass of 
words in which it is concealed, is the company given any 
express authority to use the water, much less to use it in 
any extraordinary or special manner. There is of course, 
the implied authority to use the water, liecause without 
that it would be useless to build the dam, and the object of 
the incorporation would be defeated. In the absence of any 
bucIi special authority the company’s rights as to the use 
of the water cannot be extended beyond that ordinary and 
reasonable use to which a riparian owner is entitled. 
Otherwise it would necessarily deprive the plaintiff and 
other owners on the river of rights as to the use of the 
water which they enjoy as incident to their property. The 
principal value of their properties would in that way be 
confiscated and without compensation. No such result can 
ever be brought about except by plain and positive lan­
guage, or where there is a positive necessity for implying 
it. In Vernon v. Vestry of St. James (1), James, L J., 
says : “If private rights are to be interfered with, they must 
be interfered with by express legislation." See also Lamb v.
Xirrth London Railway Co. (2). So far as this plaintiff is 
concerned the Legislature seems to have been specially 
careful to protect his projrerty from injury by the com­
pany’s works Their dams were required to be not less 
than a mile above the plaintiff's mill-pond, and his mill

(1) lech. D. 467. (2) L. R. 4 Ch. 522.
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property was exempted from the operation of the general 
sections empowering the company to expropriate lands for 
their purposes. There is nothing in the Act which ex­
pressly or by implication authorizes the company to use 
the water in any way which as between riparian owners 
would be unreasonable. To establish any such implication 
it would at least be necessary to prove that the powers 
given to the company could not possibly be enjoyed with­
out the implied one. There is no evidence to sustain any 
such contention, neither is any such defence set up by the 
answer.

I think the evidence shews that in the use of the 
water for their works, the defendants have considered 
their own interests altogether and operated their plant 
without any reference whatever to the requirements 
or convenience of the plaintiff in regard to his mill. I do 
not mean that any damage which may have resulted to the 
plaintiff was caused wantonly or wilfully, for there is no 
evidence to warrant that, neither do I mean that they were 
acting otherwise than they thought was within their legal 
rights. They used the water at night, commencing when 
the requirements of their business madedt necessary, and 
closing their works in the morning when their customers no 
longer required their light. They then stored the water 
until their dam was full again without regard to the length 
of time required for the purpose, and so on from day to day. 
At present the company is only selling light, and the power 
required to generate the electricity necessary for that pur­
pose must necessarily be used at night. The volume of 
water required to produce this power necessarily changes 
from time to time according to the number of lights used 
by customers, and according to the season of the year. 
The usual number of lights in use in July last, when the 
evidence was given, was about !)00 of 16 candle-power, 
included in which were 120 street lights which were kept 
turned on all night. The works arc started in December 
usually about 4 p.m., but sometimes as early as 3.30 p.m., 
and do not shut down until about 9 a m.—say seventeen 
hours. In July last, the manager, when giving his evi-
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dence, said they started their works the night before (July 
22) at <>.30 and shut down that morning ulxiut (i o’clock— 
say eleven and a half hours ; and occasionally they find it 
necessary to shut down for a time in the night for want of 
water. Godin says this happened several times in 1906. 
The plaintiff"s grist mill, which seems to be the more profit­
able part of his property, is principally working from 
December to March, at the time of year when the greatest 
demands are made upon the company’s works. During 
that period substantially all the wheat is ground, and it 
seems to have been necessary, in order to do it, to keep the 
grist mill running both day and night. The carding, which 
is (lime from July till October, as a rule is done in the 
daytime. The reason given for this is the insufficiency of 
the available artificial lights, and the danger of fire from 
lamps where there is so much inflammable material. The 
plaintiff" says his grist mill was shut down from December 
13, 1904, until the 28th March, 1905, which he makes 91 
working days, and again from December 8,1905, until April 
5, 1906, which he makes 101 working days. He also says, 
that the carding mill was shut down in the two years 51 
days, 25,1 think, in 1905, and 26 in 1906. This is not a 
case where the complaint is as to a diversion of the stream 
or an abstraction of the water. All the natural flow of the 
river comes to the plaintiff"s mill at sometime. And when 
the company’s works are running, that is, during the night, 
there is plenty of water to supply the plaint iff's mills. The 
plaintiff complains that in the winter of 1905, he could not 
use his grist mill at all, and for that reason he liases his 
loss for that year on the theory that his mill would have 
been running for that period at its full capacity both day 
and night. It seems that in December, 1904, so soon as 
the water was turned into the defendants’ dam it began to 
leak and continued to leak so badly that it never filled, so 
as to overflow, until the freshet came in the spring of 1905. 
It was repaired in August, 1905,shortly before Mr. Wetmore, 
the Government Inspector, visited it. In December, 1904, 
the company’s dam, without any notice to the plaintiff, was 
opened and the water ran into the plaintiff 's pond in such
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» way «8 to cause the ice to jam in the dam and the water 
to freeze so that the mill could not be operated at all, nor 
could it be repaired until after the ice had gone out and 
the spring freshet had subsided sufficiently for the purpose. 
Although previous to the freshet, the only water running 
in the daytime to the plaintiff's dam seems to have been 
what leaked through the dam, and which would be in­
sufficient for any useful purpose, the plaintiff does not 
Imsr his complaint altogether on that fact, but ujsm the 
effect of the ice formed as a result of the company’s careless 
use of the water in o[>ening their dam at one time and 
closing it up at another w ithout notice. The mill became 
useless on account of the ice, but it was not shut down for 
want of water or an unreasonable use of the water except 
as I have mentioned. I think the company must be held 
liable for the damages incurred in 1905 by reason of the 
grist mill l>eing closed. The plaintiff has not, I think, 
made out any case for an injunction, based on the damages 
sustained by bis grist mill Ix-ing shut down for these 91 
days. The circumstances which caused it were exceptional 
and the injury was temporary and not likely to occur 
again He can In1 fully compensated for .whatever loss he 
has sustained by way of damages. As to the 101 days in 
19(111, the plaintiff admits that during that period there 
was plenty of water, in fact more than the natural flow’ of 
the stream, during the night while the electric plant was 
running, and that he could use his mills then, and in fact 
did so. So that in estimating his damages for this period 
he makes no claim for loss or detention of water at night. 
He, however, says, that during this period he could only 
run the grist mill for an hour in the morning, and that for 
the 51 days he could not run the carding mill at all. There 
is no direct evidence and but little evidence of any kind to 
cast a doubt as to the substantial accuracy of the plaintiff’s 
statement. In August and September, 1905, Mr. Wetmore, 
the Government Engineer, and Peter latger, a son of the 
president of the company, and at that time in charge of the 
works, took certain observations as to the effect of the 
company's operations on the water. Mr. Wetmore gave an
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explanation of the nature of these observations which it is 
as well to repeat, so that his evidence may be understood. 
The company’s dam is about 125 feet long, about 23 or 24 
feet high, and when full the pond extends about a mile 
up river. Mr. Wetmore ascertained that the water became 
constant when there were 5 inches of water running over 
the wasteway—that is to say, the inflow' and the outflow 
were then equal in volume, and the natural flow of the 
stream would be then running over the dam down to the 
plaintiffs mill. He arrived there on the evening of Mon­
day, August 23, 11105, and took an observation at 7.30 that 
evening, when he found the water 3 inches below the level 
of the wasteway. On the following morning, August 24, 
he took a reading of the guage at 0.45 and found the water 
had fallen 5 inches as a result of the night’s running of the 
plant, and it was then 8 inches below the level of the 
wasteway. He made hourly observations during the day, 
and it was not until 0.15 p.tn. that the water became con­
stant. So that from the Sunday previous, when the dam 
was repaired, until the following Thursday night, four 
days, the natural flow of the water never went to the plain­
tiff’s mill in the daytime, and for three of these days there 
was no water at all. The electric plant was then running 
about eleven and a half hours a day. Mr. Wetmore made 
another observation at 7 a. in. on Friday, August 25, and 
found that the water had fallen 2} inches during the night, 
leaving an overflow of less than one-half the natural 
volume. It recovered itself at about 10 a m. It is true 
that the low level of the water in the pond which Mr. 
Wetmore found on his arrival there on the 23rd May 
was largely due to the fact that in order to make the 
repairs to the dam on the Sunday previous, the water level 
was reduced some 8 feet, and it is equally true that when 
Mr. Wetmore was there the water in the river was low, 
from al>seiice of rain. On the other hand the dam had just 
been repaired and there was no leakage, and the electric 
plant was only running eleven and a half hours a day, 
while in the winter season it would be running probably 
five hours longer, and the water in the river would lie at
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1007. times, at all events, as low as it was in August. These 
observations were continued by Leger up to September 27, 
with the exception of three days, but readings were only 
taken in the morning and evening. They are not valuable 
because when the natural flow was not going over the 
wasteway in the morning, there is nothing to shew how 
long that continued, or when the water in the pond became 
constant. Speaking generally, Légers observations go to 
shew an improved condition of things in September, 
attributable, 1 should say, to a rise of the water in the river 
caused by wet weather, which the evidence shews set in at 
that time. The answer sets up by way of defence that the 
plaintiffs dam was old, leaky, and out of repair, and that if 
it had not been for the water thus wasted, he would have 
had plenty of water to run his mills. It is true that his 
dam was injured by ice in 1005, and by the drive of logs 
hi 1000, and that it leaked badly in consequence. It was, 
however, re|iaired, and these occurrences have nothing to do 
with the detention of the water. It is also true that there 
is evidence that the dam leaked, but all the witnesses agree 
that such dams all leak, more or less. If the plaintiffs 
inability to run his mill for want of water was caused by 
the water being wasted by reason of the dilapidated con­
dition of his dam, that would be an important factor in 
settling the question of damages for which the company 
would lie liable, but I connut see that it affects the plain­
tiffs right as to the flowage or use of the water. It may 
he true, and I dare say it is, that there was a considerable 
waste of water by leakage through the plaintiffs dam, 
which, if stored, would have enabled him to run his mill 
longer than one hour a day, hut making all due allowance 
for that there seems ample evidence to shew that the de­
fendants’ use of the water has been unreasonable. I do 
not refer to those minor annoyances or inconveniences 
which are not caused by detentions of the water or derange­
ments in its flow by reason of necessary repairs or other 
circumstances of a temporary and exceptional character 
which are likely to arise in operating machinery hy water 
power and seem almost necessarily incident to its use.
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These may cause loss, but they do not call (or the inter­
position of this Court. If they do not come within the 
rule which Bramwell, B., in Bamford v. Turnley (1) calls 
the rule of “give and take, live and let live,” they involve 
simply a pecuniary compensation : Bull v. Ray (2) ; 
Attorney-General v. Cote (3).

It is unnecessary to cite cases shewing the various 
considerations which are involved in this question of 
“reasonable usv." In Davis v. Winslow (4), which has 
been more than once cited with approval in this Court, a 
long list of them is given, to which may be added the state 
of mechanical and manufacturing advancement : or, as 
Shaw, C. J., puts it in Thurber v. Martin (5), “the state 
of improvement in the country in regard to mills and 
machiner)' and the use of water as a propelling power." 
See also Keith v. Corey (ti). In Barrett v. /‘arsons (7), it 
was held that “ an upper mill proprietor of a more ancient 
mill has not a right as against a more recent mill owner 
below to use the water as bis own convenience or interest 
may dictate, but is bound to use it in a reasonable and 
proper manner, and a jury may find that the constant use 
of the water entirely by night and a detention of it during 
the day to be an improper and unreasonable use." The 
evidence shewed that the water was used there much the 
same as in the present case. Gould v. Boston Duck Co. (8) 
was a somewhat similar case, where the detention was 
in consequence of low water caused by extreme drought. 
Shaw, C. J., sums up the decision as follows: “As 
there was no detention of the water in ordinary stages 
of water, and no other detention of the water by the 
defendants in times of extreme drought than what was 
necessary to the reasonable use of their own mills, we 
are of opinion that it was not their duty, in point 
of law, to open their gates or leave them open with­
out using the amount to such extent as they might, merely

(1) 8 B. & S. «6.
|2| L. It. 8 Ch. 407.
(3) 11901] 1 Ch. 205.
(4) 61 Me. 291.

(5) 2 dray, 394. 
(6| 1 P. * B. 400.
(7) 10 Cush. 367.
(8) 13 dray, 442.
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because the plaintiffs works were of sucli a character that 
his necessities required such flow of the water.” Keith v. 
Co: ey was also a case of detaining the water for the pur­
pose of tilling the pond in a case of drought, and it was 
admitted that the detention was not unreasonable.

So far I have discussed this case without reference to 
the expert testimony given at the hearing, subject to Mr. 
'feed’s objection, some of which at all events was pressed 
in contrary to my own opinion. The object of the evidence 
was to shew that the dam was not in accordance with the 
plans approved of by the Governor in Council, and there­
fore illegal, and also to shew that the dam and machinery 
were constructed or set up in an unscientific manner, which 
resulted in a much more excessive use of the water than 
was requisite for the company’s business. Objection was 
taken to this testimony on the ground that no such case 
was set up in the bill and the defendants were altogether 
unprepared to meet it. I thought the objection well taken 
and so stated, but at the same time said that if an applica­
tion were made to amend I would grant it subject to terms, 
one of which would be to adjourn the hearing so as to 
enable the defendants to meet the amended case. The 
plaintiff’s Counsel took time to consider what they would 
do, and, after consultation, they stated that they were of 
opinion the evidence was admissible as the case stood and 
did not require amendment, and that they would take the 
responsibility of its admission. I then admitted the evi­
dence, and Mr. Teed declined cross-examining the witnesses, 
as he had no means whatever of I icing instructed for the 
purpose. The rule which prevails in this Court by which' 
in bills the facts upon which the plaintiff relies are to be 
stated is too well known to require the citation of authori­
ties. Section 30 of the present Equity Act, chap. 112, 
C. S. 1903, provides that the ‘‘bill shall contain a brief 
narrative of the material facts upon which the plaintiff 
relies,” and in that form has existed in a statute in this 
Province since 1854. It is the rule which prevails as to 
pleadings under all Judicature Acts. See DanieU Ch. Pr. 
3118; Odyer'e Practice and Pleadings, Rule at page 79;
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Bynl v. Nunn (1); Brook: v. Brook (2); Smith v. Halifax 1907. 
Bank ing Co. (3). It is true that the plaintiff alleges that Knows 
the defendants wrongfully detained the water and illegally Bathtkst 

maintained the dam, hut as a matter of pleading under 
Equity rules these words are of themselves unimportant. <J°5rmï/ 
They a re,as Sir.Oeorge Jessel calls them in Day v. Brown igy ltllrj^. j 
(4), only “epithets of abuse.” The conclusion of law is 
not the important question, but the facts relied on as con­
stituting the wrong or illegality complained of. And where 
facts are stated, the presumption is they are the only facts 
relied on for the purpose. Were it not so, a defendant 
would never know what case he had to meet, and the only 
object of the pleading would be defeated. The evidence, 
however, is in, and I must give such effect to it as I think 
it requires. Mr. Wetmore says the dam, according to the 
plan, is 21 feet. Mr. Daw, I think, says it is 20 feet, and 
the actual height of the dam is said to he about 24 feet. 
Admitting, for the purpose of the argument, that this dif­
ference amounts to a substantial disregard of the Act of 
incorporation, and that the dam has no legislative authority 
for its erection or maintenance, the objection, 1 think, 
ceased to exist as soon as the company liecaine the riparian 
owner of the land on which the dam was erected. It was 
not per se a nuisance or an illegal structure, and the com­
pany were in no way limited by their Act of incorpora­
tion to any rights or privileges which as riparian owners 
they might have. It is argued that this issue was raised 
by the defendants themselves, as they alleged in their 
answer that the dam was built according to the plans. If 
there was any such allegation that might be a good 
answer, but 1 have not been able to find any. The bill 
alleges that the dam has a large storage capacity, and in 
order to obtain proof of that fact the plaintiff interrogated 
the defendants as to its dimensions, and in reply they 
stated its height. That is all I can find in the answer on 
the subject. Mr. Daw, who gave testimony, is an hydraulic

(1) 6 Oh. D. 784 i 7 Ch. D. 284. f~ ' " " " '7.
(2) 12 P. I). 18. (4) mi n. ii.
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engineer, and is apparently a man of experience and stand­
ing in his profession. He resides in Montreal. He made 
and produced in Court a model made to scale of the dam, 
shewing the location of the sluiceway and other details. 
He pointed out that the sluiceway was not properly con­
structed nor placed in the part of the dajn indicated for 
thi' purpose on the plan. He described the practical ad­
vantages of letting the water out of the dam when repairs 
or other causes might require it, which existed in the one 
case and not in the other, and which enabled the water to 
be controlled so as not to injure or inconvenience the mill 
below. He also pointed out what he said was an improper 
arrangement of the suction pipe, and explained how the 
turbine and machinery as placed used more water than was 
necessary to develop the horse-power required for the 
defendants' business He did not say that the defendants 
used more water than was necessary with the machinery 
as they had it. Un that he expressed no opinion, but he 
gave it as his opinion that the machinery was inefficient 
for the reasons he gave, and as a result of it he said the 
water did not flow to the defendants’ mill at so early an 
hour in the morning as it would. He said : “The amount 
of water used from the upper dam would be less, conse­
quently the upper dam would recover its proper position at 
an earlier hour in the day. As it is now, the water has to 
go down to an unusual extent, and that has to be filled up 
before the water can {mss out of the spillway and pass 
down to the complainant. If the proper machinery was in 
there would not be such a large usage of water, and the 
dam would recover itself earlier in the morning, so that 
the plaintiff would have the use of the normal flow at an 
earlier time of the day."

Mr. Bradley, a civil engineer, residing at Montreal, 
was also a witness. He is a man of considerable experi­
ence; he is -engineer with the Amburseu Hydraulic Con­
struction Company, and has had to do with the Chambly 
dam and other works of that kind. From data derived from 
the evidence and his own observations, he gave it as 1ns 
opinion that the defendants are using water representing
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170 horse-power, where 100 horse-power is all that is 
required and more than is actually used in practice to 
generate the electricity necessary to run 1,000 lights of 16 
candle-power He says this large loss of water can only 
be accounted for by the inefficiency of the turbine in some 
way. This evidence goes to shew that the injuries of 
which the plaintiff complains are due in juirt, if not alto­
gether, to causes entirely within the defendants’ control, 
and which can be removed without in anyway interfering 
with their business. In my opinion it is not necessary for 
the plaintiff" to go that length in order to make out his 
case, because, if the operations of the defendants’ mill result 
in a nuisance to the plaintiff' as affecting the enjoyment of 
his property, they must find some way of abating it. In 
Unity ,(• Co. v. Clark, Son <t- Mortnmt (1), Stirling, L. J., 
says : “ The defendants’ right to use the water is limited
by this, that they must not use it as to cause sensible 
injury to the plaintiffs. Therefore the plaintiffs coming here 
to complain of the defendants’ user, must prove sensible 
injury. Two classes of evidence have been adduced, as in 
all cases of nuisance. There is, first, what has been termed 
direct evidence of injur)’ ; and secondly, the evidence of 
experts and other persons who have not worked the mill, 
but have paid visits to it and drawn conclusions from what 
they have seen there. In my opinion the first class is that 
which we must regard, at any rate to begin with. I do 
not say that expert evidence is to be excluded; it is most 
valuable and useful, if once you arrive at the conclusion 
that the direct evidence establishes the existence of an 
injury to the plaintiff's’ rights, for the purpose of tracing 
the origin of the injury to the defendants’ operations. But, 
if the direct evidence of injury is unsatisfactory, it requires, 
to say the least, very strong expert evidence to prove a 
case for an injunction." In the present case there is no 
doubt that the plaintiff’s injuries were directly caused by 
the defendants’ method of using the water, and if I am 
correct in thinking that the direct evidence shews this was
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an unreasonable use, it seems immaterial whether it 
was caused from the use of inefficient machinery or the 
wilful or negligent use of efficient machinery. It strength­
ens the case of course where you not only shew an 
unreasonable use of the water by the defendants, but are 
able to go to their dam and |ioint out the actual cause of it, 
especially when the cause can be remedied, but it does not 
seem to me absolutely essential to it.

Mr. Teed contended that the defendants were author­
ized by the Legislature to dam the river and use the water­
power to operate their plant, and therefore they could not 
be liable for any injury which resulted to the plaintiff. No 
doubt, where the Legislature has authorized specific acts to 
be done, that is an answer to any action for damages 
resulting from such acts, except in case of negligence. See 
tle.r v. Peam (1): Vaughan v. Tuff Vale Railway Co. (2); 
Hammersmith Railway Co. v. Brand (3). An authority to 
build a dam and operate an electric light plant is no 
authority to permanently in jure your neighbor’s property 
or subject it to a continuing nuisance, unless such a result 
cannot be avoided, and the onus of shewing that is upon 
the party claiming the light. This is the rule with refer­
ence to public corporations, and it applies with as much 
if not greater force to companies like the defendants, 
designed solely for the profit of private individuals. See 
Attorney General v. Colney Hatch Lunatic Asylum (4) ; 
Attorney-General v. Hackney Local Roard (5); Attorney- 
General v. Rinningham Corporation (ti); Rapier v. Lon­
don Tramways Co. (7). There was no attempt here to 
prove that the defendants could not have avoided what 
they did. They have authority to build storage dams, 
acquire land and water rights by expropriation, and do 
other things, all of which I must assume they considered 
necessary or useful for their purposes. There is nothing 
to shew that by the use of some of these powers all reason-
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«ble cause of complaint might not have been avoided. In 
Shelfer v. City of London Electric Light Co. (1), Lindley, 
L. J., says: “I will add further that it is clearly for the 
defendants to prove, if they can, the truth of their assertion 
that it is impossible for them to carry on their business 
without creating a nuisance. The evidence, as it stands, 
does not satisfy me that this is really true. The defendants 
have not proved that they cannot supply electricity properly 
if they multiply their stations and diminish the power of 
their engines at each station. It is not shewn that they 
cannot, in this way, avoid creating a nuisance at any of 
their stations.” In Geddin v. Pro/trieUm of Bunn Rewrvoir 
(2), Lord Blackburn is thus reported: “For I take it, with­
out citing cases, that it is now thoroughly well-established 
that no action will lie for doing that which the Legislature 
has authorized, if it be done without negligence ; but an 
action does lie for doing that which the Legislature has 
authorized if it be done negligently. And 1 think if by a 
reasonable exercise of the powers, either given by statute to 
the promoters or which they have at common law, the damage 
can be prevented, it is within this rule 'negligence' not to 
make such reasonable exercise of their powers. I do not 
think that it will be found that any of the cases (I do not 
cite them) are in conflict with that view of the law.”

Coming now to the remedy, what are the considera­
tions which should govern in such cases i The defendants’ 
Counsel very strongly contended that under no circum­
stances should an injunction be granted, and he based his 
argument, not only on what he alleged to be the general 
practice in such cases, but upon a special provision in the 
company’s Act of incorporation. Sub-sect. 3 of sect. 4 
enacts that the "company shall be liable to pay damages to 
any owner or owners of property injured by the construction 
or maintenance of such dam or dams, or the construction or 
maintenance of the works provided for in this section.” 
There is no provision for the recovery of damages resulting 
from an unreasonable ' or unauthorized use of the water.

11107.
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(1) 1181*5] 1 Ch. 287. (2) 3 A. 0. 455.
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That was unnecessary, because as I have already pointed 
out, the Act does not give the defendants any special right 
as to the use of the water, and the plaintiff’s remedy 
against the company by action for damages incurred by 
reason of any unreasonable use of the water remains as it 
always was. There is a distinction between damages 
recoverable as the direct result of the erection of a dam 
across a stream, and the consequential damages resulting 
from an unauthorized use of the water by means of the 
dam. The defendants contended that this section covered 
both descriptions of injury ; and for that reason coupled 
with the fact that to some extent, at all events, the com­
pany was incorporated for public purposes, it was said that 
the recovery of damages was intended as the sole remedy 
and an injunction would not be granted. I give the section 
a more limited construction, and I think it was intended 
to preserve the right of action for damages resulting from 
the construction of the work, and which, but for such 
express reservation, it might lie contended was necessarily 
taken away by the authority to construct the work con­
ferred by the Act without providing for compensation for 
any injury caused by it. For the purposes of this case, it 
is, I think, unimportant which view is the correct one. It 
is true that this conqsmy has a power of expropriating 
land and water privileges, and that it has one or two other 
concessions not usually conferred upon private business cor­
porations. There is, however, no duty to the public im­
posed upon it. It has no exclusive powers, and it is not 
under any obligation to supply light to any one. If it 
refused to do so, I do not see by what process or at whose 
instance it could be compelled. The company’s business is 
simply a commercial venture for the pecuniary benefit of 
those who have chosen to risk their money in it. It is true 
that it is supplying light for the streets of the village and 
town of Bathurst, and for lioth public and private houses in 
these places, and some inconvenience would necessarily be 
caused to many if they were deprived of the use of the light 
even for a short time. But that is no good reason for sub­
jecting the plaintiff to a continuous and substantial loss in
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the enjoyment of his property, even though lie may have 
the right to bring an action from time to time, and recover 
such damages as a jury may assess. Under the old practice, 
the right was first established by an action at law, and then 
this Court interfered by injunction where the injury was 
continuous and substantial. Since the enactment now con­
tained in sect. 33 of the Supreme Court in Equity Act 
(chap. 112, C. S. 1903) and which was copied from a 
section in Lord Cairn»' Act, 21 & 22 Viet., c. 27, this 
Court, in a case like this, has the power to award damages 
in addition to, or substitution for an injunction. In Slteller 
v. City of London Electric Liyktiny Co. (1), a case in many 
respects similar to this, Lindley, L. J., in alluding to the 
effect of Lord Cairn» Act, says : “ But in exercising the
jurisdiction thus given, attention ought to be paid to well 
settled principles ; and ever since Lord Cairns’ Act was 
passed, the Court of Chancery has repudiated the notion 
that the Legislature intended to turn that Court into a 
tribunal for legalizing wrongful acts : or in other words, 
the Court has always protested against the notion that it 
ought to allow a wrong to continue simply because the 
wrongdoer is able and willing to pay for the injury he may 
inflict. Neither has the circumstance that the wrongdoer 
is in some sense a public benefactor (e. </., a gas or water 
company, or a sewer authority) ever been considered a 
sufficient reason for refusing to protect by injunction an 
individual whose rights are being persistently infringed. 
Expropriation, even for a money consideration, is only 
justifiable when Parliament has sanctioned it. Courts of 
Justice are not like Parliament, which considers whether 
proposed works will he so beneficial to the public as to 
justify exceptional legislation and the deprivation of people 
of their rights with or without com [sensation. Lord Cairns' 
Act was not passed in order to supersede legislation for 
public purposes, but to enable the Court of Chancery to 
administer justice between litigants more effectually than 
it could before the Act.” The Lord Justice cites Martin 
v. Price (2) and many other cases in which this view of

(1) 11895] 1 Oh. 288. (2) [1894) 1 Oh. 278.
voi- in. «.an. K.-S8.
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Lord Cairns' Act was acted upon. In the case from which 
I have just quoted it appeared that six and a half miles 
of the principal thoroughfares in London, the Royal Ex­
change, Rank of England, Mansion House, Guildhall, and 
some 1500 offices were lighted by electricity generated at 
the defendants’ works. Kekewich, J., refused an injunc­
tion on much the same grounds as have been put forward 
here, but on appeal he was overruled and the injunction 
went.

In Kroadheni v. Imperial Gas Co. (1), it appeared that 
noxious gases which issued from the defendants' works 
injured the flowers, fruits and vegetables of the plaintiff, 
who was a market gardener carrying on his business in the 
vicinity of the gas company’s works. This company sup­
plied gas to certain parts of London and its suburbs. Lord 
Campbell says : “ It is argued that it is highly inexpedient 
in this case to grant an injunction. Why, this is the very 
case for an injunction, because it is a case in which an 
action cannot sufficiently indemnify the party who is 
injured. How can he prove to a jury the exact quantity 
of pecuniary loss he may have sustained I He may be able 
to shew the value of the flowers and trees that have been 
destroyed, but how can he shew the irreparable injury 
done to his trade by his customers leaving him, whom he 
may find it most difficult or impossible to get back. Then 
we are told that an action is to be brought, I know not 
how often, I suppose an annual action, that actions are 
to be multiplied indefinitely. I cannot but think that this 
would lx- a denial of justice to a person who has proved 
the injury he has sustained, especially when the ]xirty of 
whom he complains still obstinately persists in doing what 
produces effects so injurious to him. Well, then, what is 
the great inconvenience that is to arise to the appellants t 
It is said they have a duty to perform to the public. I 
consider that this is to lx- regarded as a mere commercial 
adventure; they have the liberty to make these works 
for their own profit, but no indictment would lie against

(I) 7 DeO. M. At O. 4U6 ; on appeal, 7 H. !.. Cas. «III.
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them for omitting to do so—no action could be maintained 
against them if they could not supply gas." This 
language seems entirely applicable to the present case. See 
also Saunby v. London (Ont.) Water Commissioner» (1); 
Leahy v. Town of North Sydney (2); Cal well, v. St. t'ancra» 
Borough Council, (3). If I have taken a correct view of 
the evidence in this case there are ample reasons for the 
plaintiff to ask for an injunction and ample reasons for 
this Court to grant it. The damage to the plaintiff is sub­
stantial and continuous, and there is nothing to shew any 
intention on the defendants’ part of changing their method 
of operating their works. In addition to this, the expert 
testimony at all events shews that the loss and incon­
venience to the plaintiff can easily lie greatly diminished 
by a simple read justment of the company’s machinery, and 
there seems good reason for thinking that they might he 
altogether obviated by an exercise of some of the powers 
conferred upon the company by the Legislature.

The plaintiff has made a claim for damages amounting 
to SI,244 for the two years, distributed as follows: Loss 
on the grist mill, 9655 for 1905 and S334 for 190(1, and 
S255 for loss in the carding mill for the two years. The 
first amount is arrived at in this way. The whole capacity 
of the mill for 24 hours is put at 72 bushels, which gives 
6,552 bushels, worth SI a bushel, of which the plaintiff was 
entitled to one-tenth, or S655. It is obvious, however, 
that the mill never ran for 91 consecutive working days 
for the whole 24 hours a day, and that basis of calculation 
cannot lie accepted. Sixty bushels a day would, I think, 
be a fair allowance, which would make the damages 
S540.60. The S334 for 1906 is computed on the same basis, 
deducting 12 hours for the night and one hour a day dur­
ing which the mill was worked. Taking 60 bushels as a 
fair average for a day of 24 hours, and deducting the 
3,000 bushels which the plaintiff actually ground, and an 
allowance for the loss of water by way of leakage in the 
plaintiff s dam, I think S250 would be a proper amount

(1) |19U6| A. C. 110. (2) 87 Can. 8. C. K. 406.
(8) [1904) l Ch. 707.
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for 190(1. The amount of wool cardial in 1004 was 5,01 i7 
Urn. In 1005 the mill carded 8,(172 lbs., shewing a differ­
ence of 1,305 lbs., which for the two years at 5 cents per 
lb., amounts to $139.50. I therefore assess the damages up 
to the commencement of the suit at $035.50.

It was made a distinct ground for relief in the bill 
that the defendants' dam was to have a fishway in it, and 
that it had been built without one. The plan approved of 
by the Governor in Council does not shew a fishway, hut 
the memorandum of approval endorsed on the plans by 
the government engineer is as follows: "Approved, pro­
vided a suitable fishway is constructed in connection there­
with to the approval of the Department of Public Works 
of New Brunswick." Section !l of the defendants’ Act of 
incorporation makes it incumbent upon the company to 
put such a fishway in the dam as may be required by the 
Lieutenant-Governor in Council or by any other lawful 
authority. There never has been any order in Council or 
by the Public Works Department ns to such fishway ; and 
if the matter is under the control of the Dominion authori­
ties, section 4(1 of chapter 45, R. S. C., 190(1, provides ample 
means for the plaintiff to secure the fishway if it is deemed 
to be necessary in the public interests. At all events it is 
not a matter with which this Court, on any evidence now 
before it, would interfere.

There will be an order assessing the damages sustained 
up to the commencement of the suit at $935.50, and in 
addition an injunction in the usual terms restraining the 
defendants from unreasonably using the water, not, how­
ever, to issue liefore January 1, 1908. The $935.50 will be 
isiyable within two months from service of this decree on 
the defendants. Defendants to pay costs.
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PATRICK v. THE EMPIRE COAL AND TRAMWAY 
COMPANY, LIMITED.

Company-Sale of assets—llUecntiny shareholder—Injunction.

The IioMitn of tile majority of the shares in the capital stock of 
a company authorised the selling of its property In order to 
|wiy Its debts : —

Held, that the sale should not lie enjoined at the instance of a 
dissentient shareholder.

Motion on notice to continue an ex parte interim 
injunction order restraining the defendant company and 
the defendants, James P. Sherry, A. D. Richard and Joseph 
A. Marvin, from selling or attempting to sell or completing 
a sale of mining, property of the company situate at 
Maccan, Cumberland County, Nova Scotia. The defendant 
company was incorporated under The Kew Hrunmvick 
Joint Stock Companies' Act by letters patent bearing date 
November 10, 1002, and lias its head office at Moncton. Its 
capital stock consists of 190,000 shares of the par value of 
$1.00 each, of which 100,000 shares have been issued. Of 
these the plaintiff holds 29,040 shares, and the defendant 
Sherry, the president of the company, 04,000 shares. A 
special general meeting of the company was called by order 
of the directors for August 24,1907, for the purpose of con­
sidering any tender or offer to purchase the property of the 
company that might be made, and in case of sale to wind 
up the company’s business. The plaintiff, by his bill, stated 
that he objected to a sale being made, on the grounds that 
the pro|ierty was worth $00,000, that the market was un­
favorable for a sale, that it was intended to sell at a 
sacrifice price, and that the defendants, Sherry and Richard, 
intended to buy in the property for themselves. He claimed 
that the coni]>any’K liabilities would not exceed $1,000, and 
that there was no necessity for selling. From the affidavits 
of the defendants it ap|»ared that in 1902 the defendant 
Sherry and one Frederick W. divan (now deceases!) pur­
chases! a two-third interest in the company's property, then

1907.
October It.
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known ns the Jubilee Coni Mine, for $15,000, each of them 
contributing $7,500, the reinnining one-third interest being 
held by the plnintiff ; thnt the defendant compnny wns 
thereupon formed nnd the mine transferred to it ; thnt the 
company operated the mine thereafter down to February, 
1907, Sherry nnd Givan making large advances for the 
purpose. The defendant Sherry, being then unwilling to 
make further advances, it was arranged that the plaintiff 
should take over the management of the mine for two 
months on his own account, he to pay all bills contracted 
by him and to reimburse himself from the output of the 
mine. This arrangement was subsequently extended to 
June 28, 1907, when the mine was shut down ; the plaintiff 
had made default in paying miners' wages, and liens had 
been put by them upon the property. It was also set up 
that the plaintiff had contracted other liabilities for which 
the company was held responsible; that no profits had been 
made by the company, and that in addition to its other 
liabilities the company was indebted to Sherry in upwards 
of $10,000 for advances made by him in developing and 
operating the mine. At a company meeting, held July 27, 
1907, stockholders holding a majority of shares in the capital 
stock of the company juissed a resolution authorizing the 
raising of money from the side or hypothecation of the com­
pany's stock or by mortgage of its property for the purpose of 
paying the company’s debts, and these measures failing that 
the company's property !*■ sold, any offer obtained, how­
ever, to lie submitted to a further meeting of the company. 
The defendant Sherry tendered $8,500 for the property, 
and the meeting called for August 24, was for the purpose 
of dealing with it It ap|>enred that efforts hud been 
made to sell the property, and that no other tender 
than the one made by Mr. Sherry could by obtained ; 
that he wns pressing for payment of amount due him by 
compnny, nnd that the shareholders, other than the 
plaintiff, were desirous of selling the property in order to 
meet its liabilities and to wind up its affairs.

Argument was heard Octolier 8, 1907.
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M. G. Teed, K. C., for the plaintiff.

H. A. Powell, K. C., for the defendants. 
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Now that the facts on this motion are fully before 
me, the only Question which seems of much importance is 
whether or not a private business corporation, such as the 
defendant com]>aiiy is, can, under the circumstances dis­
closed by the affidavits, dispose of its property without the 
unanimous consent of the shareholders. The object of 
selling is to raise money to pay the company’s debts. Ad­
mittedly it has not been a profitable business, and though 
the plaintiff objects to the proposed sale being carried out, 
it is more on the ground of the amount offered not being 
large enough than any other. There are two or three 
sections of the New Brunmvick Joint Stuck Campanie» 
Act, Chap. 85, C. S., 1903, under which the defendant 
company was incorporated, to which reference should 
be made. Section 35 provides that the directors shall 
have full power to administer the affairs of the com­
pany and to lnak, any description of contract which the 
company can legally make. By section 31 it is provided 
that at all general meetings of the company each share­
holder shall have as many votes as he has shares, and that 
all Questions proposed for consideration of the shareholders 
shall l>e determined by a majority of votes represented at 
the meeting, the chairman having a casting vote. There 
is nothing in the Act which prohibits this company from 
doing what it proposes to do, and there is no doubt that a 
large majority of the shareholders representing a large 
majority of the shares are in favor and have voted in favor 
of a sale. Unless, therefore, it can lie demonstrated as a 
pro]xisition of law that this is one of the cases where the 
majority does not bind the minority, and to which section 
31 has no application, I do not see why the sale 
should be restrained on this ground. In Australian 
Auxiliary Steam Clipper Company, Limited v. Mounsey 
(1), a Question arose as to the power of the directors

(1) 4 K. k J. 733.
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1007. of the company to mortgage one of its vessels in order
Patrick to raise money required for the purpose of its busi- 

TCoal an™11 '^*1C dimeton. there hail precisely the same power
comtanv w*,'c*1 8ection 35 gives directors in companies incor- 
i.imitkii porated by our Act. Acting for tbe company, they had 

Barker, j. borrowed the money on the security of the vessel. Wood, 
V.-C., says : “ It was argued that it was not such an act ;
first, because in any partnership a majority of the partners 
would have no power to bind a minority by executing a 
deed; that the moment a deed under seal is required, the 
power of a majority is at an end. But that argument 
overlooks this most important distinction, that in an ordi­
nary partnership firm the firm is not a lody corporate ; in 
the present case the plaintiff company are a body corporate. 
The question to be determined is, what are the powers of 
such a body ? And it is clear that a majority of the members 
of a body corporate must bave powers of this description, 
because except through the medium of a majority no in­
corporated company can act. I am not now considering 
the powers of a majority of a body corporate to effect a 
dissolution ; that is a matter not falling within the scope 
of the corporate business. This is an act clearly falling 
within the scope of the corporate business, and is one 
which the company must clearly have the power to do. 
Otherwise, if a ship were once upon the register, it might 
be impossible to get her off ; she might rot before it would 
be possible for the company to sell or exchange her." It 
cannot, I think, he contended that making provision for the 
payment of the debts of a company is not a legitimate 
part of tbe duties of directors in managing the conqiany's 
affairs, and so long as the property of the company remains 
liable for its debts it cannot surely be that one dissentient 
shareholder can prevent a disposal of the pro|H‘rty in order 
to realize the money necessary for the payment of the 
debts and compel it to be sacrificed at sheriffs sale. 
Muravxtz, sect. 240, says : “ It is the duty of the directors 
of a corporation to pay its debts, and they may apply all 
of the corporate assets to this end, although the corporation 
may thus be disabled from carrying on its business.”
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Mr. Powell has handed me a note of several cases on this 
point from which I take the following : Honey v. Whiting 
(1); Sargent v. Welmter (2); Ex parte Birmingham Bank­
ing Co. (3). In the present case the directors do not seek 
to make a sale without consulting the shareholders. There 
is no evidence that the majority of the shareholders who 
favor the sale are acting with any other motive than that 
of disposing of the property for the purpose of paying its 
délits. The plaintiff suggests that it is being sold so as to 
"crowd him out,” as he calls it, and it is possible that there 
are differences between him and the other shareholders, 
which render any harmonious working between them im­
possible. But there is nothing in the evidence to shew this 
to be a motive on the part of the defendants any more than 
there is to prove that the plaintiff’s motive in filing the bill 
was to compel the other shareholders to buy out his shaves 
at his own price. If the plaintiff thinks the figures at 
which it is proper to sell the property are so far below its 
value, it is quite competent for him to give more and thus 
lienetit everyone. It seems to me these authorities shew 
that the abstract proposition that the whole of the assets 
of a private business corporation cannot, in the absence of 
all prohibitive enactment or agreement, be disposed of ex­
cept by the consent of every shareholder, cannot be sus­
tained. In circumstances like those of the present case 
other power exists ; whether it shall be exercised or how it 
shall be exercised are not questions of power but questions 
of management. And in the exercise of the power, in the 
absence of fraud, the majority must rule. In reference to 
the alleged irregularities in the election of directors, ap­
pointment of a secretary, giving notice, and other matters 
of a similar character, I think they are all such irregulari­
ties as can lie cured and ratified by the shareholders them­
selves, and so long as the company, as such, does not com­
plain, it is not competent for a shareholder to do so. Fans 
V. Ilarbottle (4), which 1 mentioned at the argument, I 
think fully meets all these objections.

The motion to continue the injunction must be refused 
and with costs.
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(1) 14 Can. 8. C. R. 615.
(2) 18 Met. 497.

(8) L. R. « Ch. 83. 
(4) 2 Hare, 4#1.
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RANDOLPH v. RANDOLPH.

htndlord and Tenant — Covenant to leave premise* in repair — 
Lien upon lessee's machinery—Insurance by lessee — Fire — 
Re-instatement of premises—Application of insurance money 
— Act 14 Geo. ///., c. 78t s. 88— Insolvency—Unliquidated 
damages— Admission of to proof—Lumber operator—Ad­
vances to upon the security of lops— Rank Act, c. s. 76‘, 
R. S. C.—Sale of lumber to be manufactured—Advances by 
purchaser — Lien on logs.

A lessee covenanted for himself and assigns that buildings of the 
lessor on the premises at the dale of the lease would he left 
on the premises in as good repair as they then were ; also that 
machinery of the lessee would not he removed from the 
premises during the term without the lessor’s consent, hut 
the same should he held by the lessor as a lien for the per­
formance of the lessee's covenants and for any damage from 
their breach. Under a deed of assignment for the benefit of 
the lessee’s creditors the lease became vested in the trustees. 
A fire subsequently occurring, which destroyed the buildings 
and machinery, insurance on the latter was paid to the trus­
tees. The lessor demanded of the trustees that the insurance 
he applied to re-instating the buildings or the machinery. 
By vet 14 Geo. 111., c. 78, s. 83, insurance companies are 
authorized uid required, upon request of a person interested 
in or entitl' d unto a house or other buildings which may he 
burnt down or damaged by fire, * * * to cause the insur­
ance money to he laid out and expended towards rebuilding, 
re-instating or repairing such house or buildings :—

Held, (1) without deciding whether the Act was in force in this 
Province, or not, that the lessor was not entitled to the 
twneflt of it, the Act not applying to machinery belonging 
to a lessee, and the lessor not having made a request upon the 
insurance company, as provided by the Act.

(2) that even had the insurance been upon the buildings, the
lessor would have had no equity to it, there being no cove­
nant by the lessee to insure for the former’s benefit.

(3) that the lessor was not entitled to prove for damages against
the estate with respect to the covenant to leave the premises 
in re|mir, the term not having expired.

A hank made advances to a lumber operator U|Min the security 
of an agreement between him and a trustee that he should 
sell and deliver a specified quantity of logs to Ik? cut by him, 
to the trustee, who should have the property therein as from 
the stump, and who should 11 non delivery pay for the same 
by, inter alia, paying the bank amount of its loans

Held, that the security was void under sect. 76 of the Bank Act, 
c. 2», K. 8. C.
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By agreement by which K. agreed to Hell a specified ijuantity of 1907.
lutnlter to he manufactured by him, to M.( it was provided —------------
that tile latter should have a lien thereon, and upon tile logs “'V**™
for tile same, for all advances on account made try him. Bimmili
Advances were made under the agreement, wlien 8. assigned
for tlie IteneHt of Ida creditors. None of the lumber bad then
lieen manufactured, and while K. had in stream or in Inhiiiis
his season's cut of logs, none hud ls*en set apart in order to
carry out the agreement t—

Held, that M. had not a lien upon the logs for ids advances.

Bill for n declaration upon i|uentioii8 arising in the 
administration by assignees of the estate of Richard A.
Kstey, an insolvent. The facts sufficiently appear in the 
judgment of the Court.

Argument was heard September 25, 1907.

A. 0. Karle, K. C., for the defendant George McKean:—

The assignment was made by Estey under a resolution 
of his creditors providing that his subsisting contracts should 
lie carried out. The defendant was a party to the resolution 
and assented to it and to the assignment because of that 
provision. To now decline to recognize it would be a 
breach of faith. The Hill* of Sale Act does not apply. It 
expressly exempts from its operation contracts and trans­
fers made in the ordinary way of business. The trans­
action between the defendant and Estey was not a loan of 
money upon the security of logs, but was a purchase by 
McKean of so many logs out and out. The money having 
been advanced for the purpose of getting them out, an 
equitable lien in our favbr at least attaches to them. If it 
is considered that the trustees are entitled to the logs they 
must take them subject to the lien.

A. S. White, K. C., and A. 1‘. Barnhill, K. C.,- for the 
defendant John E Moore :—

The contract between Moore and Estey was one for 
work and labor. Moore held the timber lands, and the 
contract was that Estey should cut from them and deliver 
the cut to Moore, in St. John. The property in the logs, • 
therefore, from the stump to the delivery was in Moore. The
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1907. Question is not one of lien. Besides being his property the 
Randolph logs were never out of his possession. His property in 
Randolph, them was indicated by his mark. No third person could 

have obtained a good title as against him. Being his prop­
erty a hill of sale was unnecessary.

./. W. McCready, for People's Bank of New Bruns­
wick :—

Under the Bank Act, chap. 29, R. S. C. 1906, hanks 
may advance money upon the security of lumber. The 
I lank advanced 38,000 to Estey for the purpose of getting 
his lumber out. It is not necessary that the security should 
he in the form prescrilied in the Act. See sect. H8, sub.- 
sect. 5, of Act. The security may be taken in the name of 
a trustee. See Lamoureux v. Mulleur (1). If it is con­
sidered that the provisions of the Act are to be strictly 
construed, our failure to eomply with them does not pre­
vent the property in the logs passing to us. See National 
Bank of AuetraUuua v. Cherry (2); Holla ml v. La t'aime 
<1 Economie Notre Pâme de Quebec (3).

A. 1. Trueman, K. C., and IT. H. Trueman, for the 
defendant Frederick P. Thompson :—

The tire took place while the defendant assignees were 
assignees of the lease and were in occupation of the demised 
premises by virtue of it. The insurance money stands in 
the place of the boilers, engine and machinery, and the lien 
of the lessor upon them attaches to the insurance money. 
See Garden v. Ingram (4); Barry v. A Me y (5). Such 
lien is paramount to the claims of general creditors : Joyce 
on Insurance (6). If the Act 14 Geo. III.,chap. 78, sect. 83, 
is held to lxi applicable to this Province, the landlord is en­
titled to have the machinery reinstated. The lease created a 
lien upon the machinery for the fulfillment of the lessee’s 
covenants. The machinery thus formed part of the realty.

(1) Tassels' Dig. 71. (4| 23 L. J. <’h. 478.
<2> L. R. 3 P. (' 3117. (5) 3 Sim. V7.
(3) 24 Can. 8. V. R. 4115. (6) Vol. 4, sect. 3523.
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Apart from the terms of the lease, being fixtures they could 11107. 
not be removed. See Arylee v. Stcililth (1). By Act 14 Randolph 
Geo. III., chap. 78, sect. 88, insurance offices are “author- Randolph. 
ized and required upon the request of any person or persons 
interested in or entitled unto any house or houses or other 
buildings which may be burnt down, demolished or damaged 
by fire, or (without such request) upon any grounds of 
suspicion that the owner or owners, occupier or occupiersf 
or other person or persons who shall have insured such 
house or houses or other buildings, shall have been guilty of 
fraud, or of wilfully setting their house or houses or other 
buildings on fire, to cause the insurance money to lie laid out 
and expended, as far as the same will go, towards rebuild­
ing, reinstating or repairing such house or houses or other 
buildings so burnt down, demolished or damaged by fire, 
unless the [tarty or parties claiming such insurance money 
shall, within sixty days next after his, her or their claim is 
adjusted, give a sufficient security to the governors or 
directors of such insurance office that the same insurance 
money shall be laid out and expended as aforesaid ; or 
unless the said insurance money shall be iu that time 
settled and disposed of to and amongst all the contending 
[>arties to the satisfaction and approbation of such gover­
nors or directors of such insurance office respectively.”
This enactment is not limited to the metropolitan district, 
but has been held applicable to the whole kingdom. See 
Ex parte Gorely ; re Barker (2). It must lie admitted, 
however, that there are other decisions which question 
the applicability of the Act to any part of the United 
Kingdom outside of England. In St in eon v. Pen nock (3), 
and in Carr v. Fire Amui:iation (4), the Act was held to 
lie in force in Ontario. The Act is applicable to conditions 
in this Province, and should be held to extend here as part 
of the common law. For objects of Act, see Porter on In­
surance (5), citing Caetcllain v. Preeton (6) and Siblo v.
Earth America Insurance Co. (7). The notice mentioned

<1| 20 0. K. 224 : 23 A. R. 44
(2) If L. T. N. S. 31». 
(8) 14 Or. 804.
(4) 14 O. R. 487.

(5) 4th K<t., np. 284, 286. 
(8) 11 y. II. D. 380.
(7) 5 Sandf. N. Y. Ch. 551.
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1007. in the Act is not obligatory. In Ex parte Gorely (supra) 
Randolph the insurance money was claimed by the landlord after it 
Randolph, had reached the hands of the debtor’s assignees. The Act 

is not limited to buildings, but applies to fixtures which 
form part of the freehold. See Ex parte Gorely (supra), 
and Carr v. Fire Association (supra). It is not necessary 
in order to claim the benefit of the Act that the lease 
should contain a covenant on the part of the tenant to 
insure for the benefit of the lessor. See Stinson v. Pen- 
nock (supra). The covenant with respect to the erection 
of permanent works has not been fulfilled. It calls for an 
outlay of $2,000. The amount actually expended was 
considerably below this, and the value of the wharves and 
water fronts now standing on the premises is about $800. 
If the whole amount had been expended the covenant would 
have been satisfied, even if the wharves were subsequently 
either wholly destroyed or carried away. In Wood, Land­
lord and Tenant (1), it is said that a covenant to build 
upon the leased premises is held not to involve a covenant 
to rebuild in case the building erected by the obligor is 
destroyed by fire or other casualty. In Clemson v. 7'rani- 
mell (2), a provision in a lease requiring the tenant to 
leave upon the premises, at the termination of the lease, 
buildings to be erected by him, was held not to 
require him to rebuild in case of accidental destruction of 
the buildings. The covenant in the lease with respect to 
yielding awl giving up quiet and peaceable possession of 
the premises, etc., and that the buildings which may be put 
upon the premises shall immediately, upon the expiration 
of the lease, liecome the alisolute property of the lessor, is 
merely a covenant not to hold over. See Vol. 18 Am. and 
Eng. Enev. of Law (8), where it is said that a covenant 
merely to return the demised property with its appurten­
ances is a covenant not to hold over and does not impose 
upon the tenant the obligation to rebuild in case the prop­
erty is destroyed. In Wood, Landlord and Tenant (4), it 
is said that a naked stipulation to deliver up simply im-

(1) P. 483.
(2) 34 111. A|.p. 414

(3) P. 250.
(4) P. (102.
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poses an obligation against holding over. The covenant 1907. 
by Estey “ to leave the buildings on said premises in as Randolph 
good repair as they are now " obliges his assigns to rein- Randolph. 
state the buildings, and their accidental destruction by fire 
or other cause does not relieve them of the liability. See 
Wood, Landlord and Tenant (1). This covenant applies to 
new buildings or improvements: Cunlirli v. Cleife (2); •
Douse v. huile (3); Worcester School Truntees v. Rowlavds 
(4). The covenant with respect to constructing permanent 
works and improvements in the nature of wharves and 
water fronts on the demised premises in an amount of not 
less then $2,000, provides that these shall be built during 
the term. The further covenant we are seeking to enforce is 
that the buildings on the premises shall be left in as good 
repair as they were at the date of the lease. These coven­
ants, it will lie said, are not at present enforceable either 
against Estey or the present assignees. While that is true, 
it does not meet our contention respecting our lien. It is 
also submitted that it would be inequitable to permit the 
assignees to rid themselves of their liability by assigning 
over to a man of straw. The assignees are officers of the 
Court and occupy a different position from that of an 
ordinary assignee. No injustice will be done to general 
creditors in allowing our claim. As the estate could not 
remove the machinery had the tire not occurred, neither 
should it be permitted to take the insurance money. Put- 
ing the lessor’s claim at the lowest he is entitled to rank 
against the estate with respect to his damages.

J. If. Hurry, K. C., for the plaintiffs :—

The resolution adopted at the creditors’ meeting 
authorizing the assignees to carry out Estey’s contracts did 
not direct them to carry them out otherwise than upon the 
terms of the deed of assignment. At a subsequent meeting 
of the creditors, so much of the resolution as directed the 
debtor’s contracts to be carried out was rescinded. The

(1) P. 800.
(2) 3 H. A ('. 448.

(A) 3 l,ev. 264.
(4) » C. A P. 724.



582 NEW BRUNSWICK EQUITY REPORTS. [VOL.

1907. defendant McKean has no lien. At the date of the con- 
RANnomi tract the loos were Kstey a, and it was not tlien even known 
Randolph, where they were to be cut. An a lien the claim is invalid 

under sect. (> of the Bills of Sale Art, chap. 142. C. S. 1903. 
Before a bill of wile can be given the property must be in 
existence and cajuible of identification. With respect to 
the Moore claim : The logs, though cut upon Moore's land, 
on being severed from the soil became the property 
of Estey. That Estey contracted to sell them to Moore 
does not affect the question. The claim of the People’s 
Bank of New Brunswick plainly cannot be entertained. 
Section 88 of the Bank Act is to lie strictly construed. 
The contract between Estey and A. H. Randolph & 
Sons that out of the proceeds of the deals which they 
were to handle they would pay Estey s notes held by the 
bank, is in no sense a security under the Act.

A. 0. Earle. K.C., for the plaintiffs with respect to the 
claim :—

No breach of covenant has been committed by the 
assignees, or even by Estey. Until a breach does occur no 
liability can exist. If a mortgagor insures the mortgaged 
premises in the absence of a covenant in the mortgage that 
he shall do so, the mortgagee cannot claim the insurance or 
ask that it lie applied in reinstating the premises. The Act 
14 Geo. 111., chap. 78, is not in force in this Province. English 
Acts have been held in force in Ontario which have been 
decided not to tie applicable here. The rule, as 1 under­
stand it, is that no English statute extends to this Province 
which was passed later than the Restoration, and in the case 
of statutes jiassed previously to then it must be shewn that 
they are suitable to our conditions.

[ Trueman, K. C. : — English statutes, down to the 
date of the creation of the Province, form part of our com­
mon law if they are applicable to our circumstances. See 
Hex v. McLaxujhlin (1).]

(1) Chip. MSS. 218.

7200



III.] NEW BRUNSWICK EQUITY REPORTS. 583

1907. October 18. Barker, J, :— 1907.
Randolph

Richard A. Estey was a millowner and lumberman iusdouw. 
carrying on business at Fredericton. In the year 1903 he 
made three lumber contracts — one with the defendant 
George McKean, another with the defendant John E.
Moore, and a third with the defendant Randolph, for the 
benefit of the People’s Bank of Fredericton. From all/>f 
these he received large advances for his lumber operations 
for the winter of 1903-4, for which each claims a lien on 
the lumber or proceeds of it. His mill and the premises 
connected with it he held as lessee under the defendant 
F. P. Thompson. In May, 1903, he made an assignment 
for the benefit of creditors, under the provisions of the Act 
respecting Assignments and Preferences by Insolvent Per­
sons, to the four defendants I have named (Randolph, Mc­
Kean, Moore and Thompson), who were selected as trustees 
at a meeting of creditors. They entered into possession of 
the mill, and by direction of the creditors they proceeded 
to realize the estate, and they have disposed of it all, and 
they have now the proceeds in hand for distribution.
Some time after the assignment had been made—in Janu­
ary, 1906, I think, but the precise date is immaterial—the 
mill was destroyed by fire, and the machinery was injured.
The assignees had an insurance on the machinery, and they 
collected the insurance money ; and this forms a part of 
the fund now held for distribution. Thompson, the land­
lord, claims a right to have this insurance money appropri­
ated in reinstating the mill. Estey’s total liabilities 
amount to about 9135,000, and as this amount is consider­
ably in excess of the realized assets, a question has arisen 
between the secured and the unsecured creditors, and to 
some extent between the secured creditors themselves, as 
to whether these alleged claims are enforceable against the 
fund, and if so, to what extent ? As the Thompson claim 
differs from the others, it will be convenient to dispose of 
that first.

VOL. III. s. s. 1. H. —.vi
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11107. THOMPSON CLAIM.
ItANDOLl’il

RANDOLPH.
Tlic lease in question is dated November 1, 1892; it 

runs for twenty-one years on an annual rental of $450, pay­
able in quarterly payments. The rent was all paid by Estey 
previous to the assignment, and since the trustees have been 
in possession they have paid the rent out of trust funds up 
to 1st May, last. They are still in possession. The lease 
contains a covenant by the lessee to jsiy all rates and taxes 
on the property, and a covenant that he will during the 
term, at his own cost, erect upon the land demised perman­
ent improvements in the way of wharves and water fronts, 
costing not less than $2,000. The lease also contains an 
option for the purchase of the property for the sum of 
$7,800, at any time during the term. There is no covenant 
in the lease either on the part of the lessor or lessee to insure, 
but there are two covenants upon which the lessor relies as 
giving him an equitable interest in the insurance money. 
They are as follows :—

"And the said Richard A. Estey, for himself, his execu­
tors, administrators and assigns, covenants and agrees 
to and with the said Frederick P. Thompson, his heirs 
and assigns, that none of the mill property or machinery, 
including boiler and engine, owned and controlled by 
the said Richard A. Estey, shall lie removed from the 
lands and premises hereby demised, at any time during 
the continuance of this lease without the written con­
sent of the said Frederick P. Thompson, his heirs and 
assigns, first lieing had and received therefor, and if at 
any time during the continuance of this demise any of 
the agreements or covenants herein contained to be done 
and performed by the said Richard A Estey, his executors, 
administrators and assigns, shall he broken or unfulfilled, 
then the said mill property and machinery, including boiler 
and engine, shall he held by the said Thompson as a 
lien for the due performance of every and all such agree­
ments or covenants, and for any damage sustained by the 
breach thereof.

And it is also hereby further covenanted and agreed 
by and between the parties hereto that he the said Estey, 
his executors, administrators and assigns, shall yield and 
give up quiet and peaceable possession of the premises



III.] NEW BRUNSWICK EQUITY REPORTS. 586

hereby demised to the said Thompson, his heirs and assigns, 
and of all such buildings and erections which may here­
after lie put upon the said premises by the said Kstey, his 
executors, administrators and assigns, at the expiration of 
this lease, and that all buildings which may be put thereon 
and all erections, constructions and improvements hereafter 
made by the said Kstey, his executors, administrators and 
assigns, including the permanent improvements hereinbe­
fore mentioned, shall immediately upon the expiration of 
this lease liecome the absolute property of the said Thomp­
son, his heirs and assigns, and shall not be removable by 
the said Kstey, his executors, administrators and assigns, 
and the said Kstey, his executors, administrators and assigns 
also agrees to leave the building^ on said premises in as 
good repair ns they now are, and to make good any dam­
age or injury to the buildings or property aforesaid, 
occasioned by the removal therefrom of the machinery and 
other property which may be lawfully removed by the said 
Kstey, his executors, administrators and assigns, at the 
expiration of this lease."

At the fire on the 20th January, the mill buildings and 
mill machinery were totally destroyed, and the boilers and 
their connections, and the engine and its connections, were 
damaged. There was no insurance upon the mill buildings, 
but the machinery, boilers and engine with their connec­
tions were insured in the name of the trustees of Kstey. 
They received in settlement of the loss to the machinery 
$11,500, and $500 for damage to the engine and boilers. 
Kstey had occupied the premises for some years previous to 
the date of this lease, and he estimates the value of the 
buildings on the property when he took the lease at $1,500. 
He afterwards built a w harf and some additions to the mill 
buildings, which according to his -evidence cost the $2,000 
agreed by him to be expended in permanent improvements. 
The wharf was subsequently injured to the extent of some 
$200, by the ice, and has not been repaired. Mr. Thompson 
claims that by reason of breaches of covenants in the lease 
he has lwcn damnified in the sum of $7,000 and upwards, 
which he makes up as follows : $3,500 necessary to replace 
the buildings and improvements on the premises at the 
date of the lease, $1,500 necessary to be expended in

1907.
Randolph 
Randolph. 
Barker, J.
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1007. replacing the improvements put on by Estey after the
Randolph lease was made, over and above $500 spent on the 
Randolph, wharf, and 82,000 necessary to be expended in the perform- 
iisrker. J. ancc of Estey's covenant. And lie claims not only to have 

a special charge upon the insurance money to replace the 
buildings and make good the covenants, but also a right to 
rank for his damages as a creditor against the general 
assets of the estate. It is immaterial for present pur­
poses whether these figures are accurate or not. I only 
mention the claim to point out that it has reference 
solely, and under the covenants it could only have refer­
ence, to the buildings and improvements which were 
all destroyed by the tire, and on which there was no 
insurance at all. The claim put forward is based on two 
grounds. In the first place.it is said that, section 83 of 
the Imperial Act, 14 Geo. III., chap. 78, is in force in this 
Province, and that by it Thompson, as landlord, has a right 
to have this insurance money used to rebuild the buildings. 
And, in the second place, it is contended that the landlord 
has an equity as against his tenant attaching to these 
funds, which entitles him to have them expended in mak­
ing gixxl his covenants in the lease, irrespective altogether 
of the rights of other creditors. I should recpiiro stronger 
reasons than any which I have heal'd to convince me that 
this section 83 is in force in this Province. It was never 
considered in force either in Ireland or Scotland, and its 
general application to England, as held by the lord Chan­
cellor in Ex jxirle Corel y (1), has been questioned by no 
less an authority than Lord Watson, in Went minuter Eire 
Office v. Gluaginv Society (2). It is, however, unnecessary 
to decide that point, because, for reasons which I shall 
state, I think the claimant’s contention could not be sus­
tained if the Statute were in force here. The section in 
question refers only to the insurance moneys realized from 
insurance on houses or other buildings, and there is no such 
fund here. The lease provides that at the expiration of 
the term, all the buildings and permanent improvements

(1) 10 Jur. N. 8. 10HS. (2) 13 A. C. 716.
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made under the special covenant for that purpose shall be­
come the absolute property of the lessor ; but this had no 
reference to the machinery. That was to be removed at 
the expiration of the lease, subject to all damages incurred 
in its removal. The claim, as I have pointed out, is alto­
gether for the loss of buildings which were originally the 
pro[>erty of the lessor, or which by the terms of the lease 
were to become his when the tenancy came to an end. 
Engine, Isiilers and machinery cannot here be said to come 
under the description of buildings or houses, especially 
where, by the terms of the lease, they are removable, and 
are not the landlord’s property at all. See Ex parte Gore- 
ly, above cited. The second answer to the claim, as based 
on this section 88, is, that in order to obtain the advantage 
which it gives to landlords, notice must clearly he given to 
the insurance company before the money has been paid 
over to the assured. The company is the party upon 
whom the section casta the duty of rebuilding with the 
insurance money ; and when, without the notice which the 
section requires, the money has |>assed out of the insurance 
company’s control, they cannot apply it as the Act directs. 
There was no such notice here. See Simpson v. Scot­
tish Union Insurance Co. (1). It is true that the trustees 
have been notified to appropriate the money in rebuilding, 
but that has nothing whatever to do with the Act. Wood, 
V.-C., in the case just cited, says : “ The Act of Parliament 
points to a request of this kind in order that the company 
may cause the money to be laid out in rebuilding, and I 
think it clear that they could not pay the money to the 
owner. The object of the provision is in the interest of 
the public, to prevent persons from fraudulently setting fire 
to their houses, and this is a fraud which of course might 
be committed either by the owner or the tenant. The 
couqiany themselves a:e the persona to rebuild, in order 
that they may see that the money is really laid out in re­
instating the property, and that it is judiciously expended. 
It is quite true in this case that the value of the house is

1907.

Randolph 
Randolph. 
Ranker. J.

(1) 1 H. & M. 618.



588 NEW BRUNSWICK EQUITY REPORTS. [VOL.

1907. stated to have been in excess of the insurance : hut that 
Randolph does not affect the policy of the Act, which does not in any 
llAwnoi.en. case give the owner the right to rebuild and claim the 
Hurkcr. J. money, but requires the work to be done by the company.

If this were otherwise, the purposes of the Act might be 
defeated by a landlord taking the policy-money when 
there was a covenant by the tenant to rebuild.” In a case 
like this, where there is no covenant to insure by the lessee, 
I should think the landlord would have no right to compel 
either Kstey himself or his assignees to expend the money 
in rebuilding, even if the insurance had been on the build­
ings instead of the engine and boilers. The lessor did 
not insist upon a covenant on the lessee’s part to insure, 
and in case of a loss reinstate the buildings, and 
the lessee did not insist upon a covenant by the lessor to 
rebuild in case of fire, nor was there in such a ease any 
abatement of the rent. Both lessor and lessee had an 
insurable interest in the property, but the lessor did not 
choose to protect himself in that way. He relied on the 
tenant’s personal covenant to hand over the premises to him 
on the expiration of the lease, in like good condition as 
they then were. That was the security which he took in 
order to insure the delivery to him of the buildings and im­
provements at the termination of the lease. It is said that 
Estey’s bankruptcy has rendered that security valueless. 
I do not think that is necessarily so, but if it were, that is 
a risk which the landlord assumed and against which he 
might have protected himself by insurance. How does this 
give him an equity to a fund created not at his instance, 
not for his benefit and in no way as the result of any con­
tract with him ? In Andrews v. Patriotic Insurance Co. 
(1), a question arose on facts somewhat similar except that 
both landlord and tenant hail insured. In an action 
against the insurance company they contended that the 
two insurances were on the same property and therefore, 
under the usual clauses of policies, each company would be 
liable only for a pro rata proportion of the loss. The

(I) 18 Ir. I jiw Rep. 366.
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Court, however, held that the property insured was not the 1907. 
chattel but the assured’s interest in the chattel, and that Ranhoi.™ 

for that reason the policies did not cover the same property, Randolph. 
and each company was liable for the whole amount. After Barker, J. 
reviewing several cases which had been decided under the 
Statute already cited (14 Qeo. III., c. 78) and which was not 
in force in Ireland, Pâlies, C. B., in delivering the judg­
ment of the Court, says : “ That is the law of England, in 
consequence of the two Statutes to which I have referred.
But the decisions, as I read them, are not based upon the 
ground that these Statutes were declaratory of the common 
law. On the contrary they are treated as enacting Acta ; 
and I am not aware of any case in which it has 
been attempted to apply in Ireland the doctrine which 
was imposed upon England by them ; and I have to 
express my decided opinion, and it is in my view a neces­
sary part of our decision of this case, that there is no law 
in this country which entitles the landlord of a house des­
troyed by fire to insist, in the absence of express contract, 
on the money received by his tenant from an insurance 
company being si>eciticnlly applied to the reinstatement of 
the premises. In my opinion the remedy of the landlord 
in this country is a remedy in prrsonam against the 
tenant upon his covenant to repair, and is nothing more.
He has no specific right such as the landlord in England 
has under the Statute." See also Leeds v. Cheetluim (1), 
where it was held that the tenant had no equity against 
the landlord to make him appropriate his insurance money 
in rebuilding. (Ireat reliance was placed on the latter part 
of the first covenant which 1 have quoted, by which it is 
provided that in a certain event the lessor is to have a lien 
for the due performance of all of the lessee’s covenants.
As I read the covenant it has no bearing on the questions 
now in dispute. That covenant is dealing with the removal 
of the machinery and other mill property on the premises, 
and it provides that it shall not be removed during the 
term without the landlord's consent in writing; and it

(1) 1 Sim. 150.
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1907. then provides that if at any time during the term the lessee 
Rasdoli'h shall have been guilty of a breach of any of his covenants, 
Randolph then the mill property and machinery, including the boilers 
Barker, j. and engine, shall be held by Thompson as a lien for the 

perforuiance of these covenants and for any damage sus­
tained by a breach of them. Reduced into a few words, 
this covenant simply provides that without the lessor’s con­
sent this mill property and machinery shall not be re­
moved during the term, and when the term comes to an 
end, and when the lessee would otherwise have the right 
to remove this mill machinery and property, he shall not 
have that right if any of his covenants have been broken 
and remain unperformed ; until they are performed and 
damages [>aid, not until then, the lessor is to have a lien 
on the property and therefore a right to retain its posses­
sion. t am unable to see how that provision can create 
any obligation upon the lessee to reinstate his own property 
because of the possibility seven years hence, when this 
lease terminates, of there being some damage sustained 
for which, if the property were in existence, there would 
be a lien on it. No authority was cited for any such pro­
position and I have not been able to find any. I think this 
insurance money is part of the fund distributable among 
the creditors. Mr. Thompson also claims to rank on the 
estate for the same sum as damages sustained by him by 
reason of the destruction of the property. I cannot see how 
he is entitled even to do that. The Act under which this 
assignment was made is not an insolvent Act. It is simply 
an Act by which the property of debtors, who choose to 
make an assignment under it, is divided equally among 
their creditors. Debtors cannot be forced to make such 
assignments, and the Act makes no provision whatever, 
whereby they are released from their obligations. In what 
way was Thompson a creditor of Estey on the 27th May, 
1904, under this lease ? That was before this fire occurred, 
and it is not pretended that any of the lessee’s covenants 
had been broken at that time. I cannot see that he has 
broken any of his covenants up to the present time ; but if 
he had it would be contrary to the general rule, even in
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bankruptcy, to admit a claim for unliquidated damages: 
Ex /uirte Me ml el (1); Green v. BickneU (2); Boorman v. 
Knelt (3); Rowan v. Harrison (4). There is no covenant 
in this lease in the usual terms, “ to repair and keep re­
paired.” The covenant is simply that the lessee “shall 
leave the buildings on said premises in as good repair as 
they now are, and to make good any damage or injury to 
the buildings or property aforesaid, occasioned by the re­
moval therefrom of the machinery and other property 
which may be lawfully removed by him at the expiration 
of the lease.” That is a part of the covenant providing for 
the tenant giving up possession at the end of the term, and 
it relates to that time. Two questions, it seems to me, 
might arise as to the effect of that covenant. First, 
whether the agreement to repair, such as it is, has any 
reference to buildings other than those on the premises at 
the date of the lease, and second, whether such a covenant 
extends to the restoration of buildings destroyed by acci­
dental tire. But giving the claimant the full benefit of a 
different construction, it seems to me impossible to say that 
the time to which the covenant refers is other than the date 
when the term ends, when the possession of the premises 
is to be restored to the owner, and if the buildings, what­
ever they are, are then in the repair required by the coven­
ant, whatever that may mean, he will get all he is entitled 
to ask How can he be said to be a debtor of the landlord 
for a claim which has no existence to-day ; which may 
never exist at all. and which, under no circumstance, can 
come into existence for some six years, and then for a sum 
altogether incapable of being ascertained to-day. I do not 
think this claimant can rank on the estate.

PEOPLE’S HANK OF NEW BRUNSWICK CLAIM.*

There is no question as to the fact that the bank did 
make the advance of 88,000 to Estey on the security given to

(1) 10 Jur. N. 8. 18». (8) 0 H. fi C. 116.
(2) 8 A. & E. 701 (4) 2 Pug. 503.

•By agreement of October 1, 1900, lietween Estey and A. F. 
Randolph & Sons, Estey agreed to sell and deliver to them four 
million superficial feet of spruce and cedar logs, and all above

/
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1907.
Randolph

Randolph.
Barker, J.
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Randolph, and that the hocumy was taken for the bank to 
secure these advances, and for that purjxwe alone. This 
was in contravention of sect. 7(1 of the Bank Act (Chap. 29, 
R. S. C.) and therefore the security is void : Bank of 
Toronto v. Perkin* (1). I think it makes no difference 
whether the bank takes the security direct or through the 
medium of a third person as here. The late Mr. Justice 
Palmer acted on that assumption in the case of McLeod, 
A**ignee of The Petitcodiac Lumber Co. v. Vroom (2), and 
I think rightly. The bunk's right to rank as an unsecured 
creditor is not disputed.

UEO. MCKEAN CLAIM.
J. E. MOORE CLAIM.

It will be convenient to discuss these claims together. 
McKean claims a lien under a contract with Estey, dated 
December 81, 1908, by which Estey agreed to sell and 
McKean agreed to purchase three million superficial feet of 
merchantable spruce deals and Iwttens of specified dimen­
sions, which were to lie manufactured at Estey s mill,at Fred­
ericton, ready fur shipment not later than June, July, August,

(1) 8 Can. 8. C. R. 603. (2) N. B. Eq. Cas. 131.

that quantity that lu» might cut and haul during the fall of 1003 
and ensuing winter from lands under lease to him. situate on the 
Tuhique ltivev, and to stream drive such logs to within the limits 
of the Fredericton Boom Company. It was provided that such 
logs should he the absolute property of A. F. Randolph & Sons as 
from the stump and should he s|»ecially marked. A. F. Randolph 
& Sons agreed to pay for the logs when placed within the limits 
of the Fredericton Boom Company and surveyed, paying first all 
liens, stumpage and other charges ranking against the logs; 
secondly, to pay to the People's Bank of New Brunswick all loans 
and advances made by the Bank to Estey, and to pay the sur|Uus 
to Estey, In evert <»t" Estey being uusbie, for any reason, to 
complete the agreement, A. F. Randolph & Sons were* empowered 
to take over Kstey's lumber operations and complete tne same 
upon the terms of the agreement. At the date of Estey's assign­
ment the bank had advanced to him, under the agreement, $8,(XX). 
He had placed within the limits of IheTohique River Log Driving 
Company 4,031,007 superficial feet of spruce logs, and 1,177,210 
superficial feet of cedar logs, all marked in accordance with the 
agreement. Logs delivered to the Tobique River Log Driving 
Company are delivered by them to within the corporation limits 
of the St. John River Log Driving Company, who in turn drive 
them to within the corporation limits of the Fredericton Boom 
Company. —Rbp.
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September and October, 1904. The lien relied on, arises 
out of the following clause in the contract. " It is agreed 
that for and in consideration of any and all advances that 
may be made by the purchaser on the above named deals, 
etc., that the purchaser shall have a lien on the said deals, 
etc., either at the place of manufacture or in transit for 
shipment, and also on the logs from which the said deals, 
etc., are being manufactured, wherever they may lie." When 
Estey assigned, McKean had advanced $20,000 on the 
contract ami none of the deals had been manufactured.

The Moore claim is in reality the claim of V. S. White 
& Co., a firm consisting of John E. Moore and Walter W. 
White, though a portion of the indebtedness stands in 
Moore's name alone. They claim under a contract made 
by correspondence, the provisions of which, so far as they 
are material, are as follows. The negotiations originated 
in telephone communication, hut they afterwards took the 
form of correspondence, and on the 28th December, 1903, 
it was finally agreed that Kstey was to sell and Moore to 
purchase four million superficial feet of spruce logs and 
battens for delivery at St. John, free of all charges, as 
early as practical during the rafting and towing season of 
1904. These logs were to be marked by what is known 
in the business as “ Moosehom" M. ; they were to be cut in 
what was known as the Rockaway lands, which were a 
]>art of the lands under license from the Crown to Estey, 
but which were at that time, and ever since have been, in 
Moore's name, as I shall presently explain. In Estey’s 
letter of December 28, 1903, to Moore, he says : “ What I 
intended to do re delivery of logs, was to just let you have 
the Rockaway logs and keep Tobique logs for deal for my 
mill." In 1902, Estey had a number of licenses from the 
Crown to cut logs on lands on the Tobique river. In order 
to secure an indebtedness then due to White & Co. and 
Moore, as well as any future advances which they might 
make in course of their mutual dealings, these licenses were 
assigned to Moore. The renewals issued to him in his own 
name, and they are now held by him as an additional 
security for the claims of himself and his firm. As between

1907.
I! A N [Hll.l'H

Randolph. 
Barker. J.



594 NEW BRUNSWICK EljUITV REPORTS. [VOL.

1907. them and Estey, Moore is only a mortgagee of the licenses, 
Randolph although the legal title to all lumber cut under them is in 
Randolph, him, subject only to the rights of the Crown (C. S. 1903, 
Barker. J. Chap. 95, ns. 4 & 5). When this contract was made, on 

December 28, 1903, Estey owed the firm in all #'27,3(11.13, 
of which #10,764.71 stood in Moore’s name. When Estey 
assigned he owed Moore #25,961.10 and the firm #10,262.77. 
In addition to these sums, Moore has, since the assignment, 
been compelled to make certain expenditures which bring 
the whole claim up to some #40,000. It will be seen that 
Moore’s contract is for the delivery of a specific quantity of 
spruce logs to be cut on a specific portion of lands under 
license to himself, and of which, therefore, he would be the 
legal owner, and they were to be marked with Moore’s own 
mark. Not only had he the legal ownership of the logs as 
licensee, but the particular logs to which the contract 
referred were capable of identification immediately tliat 
they were cut. In my opinion, Moore is entitled by virtue 
of his contract to a lien on all the spruce logs cut on the 
Rockaway lands up to the amount of his contract, if these 
logs are capable of identification, and if not then to all the 
logs marked “ Moosehorn ’’ M. He is also entitled to look 
to the licenses as an additional security for his claim.

McKean’s claim stands in a different position. It is 
not on a contract for the delivery of logs, but for the 
delivery of a quantity of deals which Estey was to manu­
facture at his own mill. Except for this one fact there is 
nothing in the contract to prevent Estey from making his 
deliveries from deals purchased in the market. The lien 
which the contract gives him is on the manufactured lumber, 
the deals and liattens, which were to be piled in separate 
piles ; and this lien on the deals and battens was to exist 
both at the place of manufacture and continue during their 
transit for shipment to the purchaser at St. John. The lien 
was also to exist on the “logs from which the said deals,etc., 
are being manufactured, wherever they may lie." None of 
the deals were ever mànufactured, and when the assignment 
was made no logs had been appropriated or set apart for 
the purpose of carrying out McKean’s contract ; the logs of
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the «'hole season’s operations «-ere in the stream or in the 
booms far away from Estey's mill, and where it was impos 
si hie to say any portion of them was being manufactured 
The time never arrived when McKean could go and select 
any one log of the whole of Estey’s cut and legally claim a 
lien on it under this contract. So far as I can discover 
there was no possible way of identifying it. I should he 
prepared to go some length in a case like this to hold the 
property created by money advanced for the"purpose, liable 
for the advances ; hut it is essentially necessary that, in 
some way or another, it can be shewn what the precise 
property is to which the lien attaches, when the lien is to 
be enforced. Reliance was placed on the action of the 
creditors at a meeting held previous to the assignment. It 
was a meeting called by Estey, at which nearly all the 
creditors, or at all events those who represented nearly all 
the indebtedness, were present, McKean among the num­
ber. It was then unanimously resolved that Estey be re­
quested to assign to four creditors to be selected by the 
meeting, and that they should complete these contracts, 
carry on the business and settle the estate in the best inter­
ests of the creditors. It was in pursuance of this resolution 
that Estey made the assignment. At the first meeting of 
creditors held under the Act on the call of the assignees, 
that resolution was varied by striking out the words “ com­
plete the contracts," and the assignees were authorized to 
carry on the general business and operate the milling 
business in the best interests of the estate, and so long as 
they deemed it expedient. They operated the mill until it 
was destroyed, manufactured deals and sold them and the 
logs, and in one way and another have disposed of all the 
assets. I do not see that all this a fleets the claim in any way. 
Estey is not complaining that he was induced to make the 
assignment lx'cuuac his contracts were to be carried out. 
The assignees could not carry on the business except by 
direction of a Judge, and then only for a limited time (see 
sect. 17, sub.-sect 4, Chap. 141 ! I think the arrangement 
that was eventually made, to which McKean was appar­
ently an assenting party, was that a decision should be

1907.
llAMHII.I-H

Randolph. 
Barker. J.
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11)07. obtained ns to the respective rights of these parties, that in 
Randolph the meantime the assets should lie realized in the best way 
Randolph, in tile interests of the creditors, and whatever rights the 
Burlier, j. claimants had in the property could be satisfied out of the 

money. Mr. McKean will, of course, he entitled to rank as 
a general creditor, but I think ho has no other right.

I need not enter into the question of the Hills of Sole 
Act. So far as Moore is concerned, Estey never owned the 
logs, the title was always in Moore. There never was any 
mortgage of them in any way, or any transfer of them, 
even if the contract could be considered ns anything more 
than an ordinary contract or transaction of sale in the lum­
bering business, which the evidence shews it to have been.

I think Moore should value his licenses under sect 19, 
and that out of the sum represented by them and the pro­
ceeds of the lumber got out under his contract, his claim 
should lie paid. If there is any deficiency he is entitled to 
rank on the general estate. If there is a surplus it goes 
into the general estate.

With these directions I have no doubt the parties can 
adjust their claims, but if not, there will be liberty to apply.
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ACCOUNT —Agent—Failure to account
—Interest................................320
See Agent, 1.

-----Port wardens—Fees of office..... 175
See POHTWAHDENH.

----- Statute of Limitations— Receipt
of rents—Agent................... 410
See Agent, 2.

ADVANCEMENT— Purchase— Husband 
and wife—Resulting Trust..210
Mm Uirr, l.

AFFIDAVIT— Interpleader hill—Denial of
collusion...................... ..........476
See Interpleader.

AGENT—Failure to account—Interest— 
Costs of pre/tariny receipt-inventory 
of estate—Costs of suit.] An agent re­
fusing to give an account and pay over 
balance is chargeable with interest. 
Costs disallowed to an estate agent of 
preparing a receipt containing a 
schedule of leases and securities de­
livered up t<> the principal. Conte <-f 
suit against an agent for an account 
ordered to l»c paid by him where he 
had disregarded requests for an ac­
count, and had final an improper 
account in the suit. Simonds v. ( oh-w
t.—Statute of Limitations— Receipt 

of rents—Right to an account. ) Where 
defendant received the rents of a prop­
erty for a period of twenty-five years 
without during that time accounting 
to plaintiff, it was held that the right 
to an account was not barred by the 
lapse of time, defendant having taken 
possession of the property under an 
agreement with plaintiff, which had 
never been terminated, to hold the 
property for him and to account to 
him for it. Pick v. Edwards........410
----- Company— Sale of shares—Pros­

pectus — Misrepresentation — 
Rescission — Liability of direc­
tors—Delay....................- 508
See Company, 2.

----- Lunatic — Estate of—Collection of
rents ÉN
See Lunatic.

AGREEMENT — Consideration — Public 
exhibition — Competition for medal— 
Competition instituted by manager of 
exhibition — Scope of duties.] Three 
proprietors of blends of tea exhibiting 
their teas at a public exhibition held 
by the defendant society allow, d their 
teas to be judged by a committee ap- 

| pointed by the society, in competition 
for a gold medal offered by the society. 
During the exhibition encli of the com­
petitors served the public gratuitously 
with samples of made tea, and tea was 

i served by them to the committee in 
the same way that it was served to the 
public. The committee having award­
ed the medal to the plaintiff, a com­
petitor :—Held, that there was con­
sideration for the offer, entitling the 
plaintiff to the medal. Where the 
executive of the above society adopted 
a resolution to awurd medals to all 
displays of merit or excellence of goods 
on exhibition, the awards to be made 
by regularly appointed judges ; and 
the general manager of the exhibition, 
who was vice-president of the execu- 

! tive, and a member of a committee of 
| three to appoint judges, thereupon 

arranged tile above competition, and 
with a co-mem lier of the committee 

! to select judges, named the judges for 
the competition, it was held that the 
competition must l>e taken to have 
been instituted by the society. Peters 
v. Thk Agricultural society, Dis­
trict No. 34.......................................... 127

2. ---- Family arrangement — C’on-
suleration.] J. H. died intestate pos­
sessed of pi operty worth alioiit $10,000, 
and survived by his widow, two sons 
and three daughters. Part of his pro-

Strty consisted of lumber lands worth 
21,000, which it had been hi* inten­
tion, known to all the memliers of the 

family, to give to the sons, who were 
associated with him in his business as 
a lumberman. A few days before his 
death, in discussing with his solicitor 
the terms of a will he intended to 
make, he stated he wanted his lumber 
lands and mill property to go to the 
sons, who should continue his business
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AGREEMENT—Continu*/.
and pay hi* debts, and that he did not 
intend making any provision for the 
daughters. At a meeting of the family 
held after his death, they were in­
formed of these wishes ; that perform­
ance of an outstanding contract by l he 
deceased for the delivery of a quantity 
of lumber was being pressed, and that 
his liabilities were $15,000 or $2)1,000, 
though in fact they were $22,00(1. It 
was agreed for the purpose of giving 
effect to the deceased'h intentions th.it 
the sons should assume the debts ; I hat 
the daughters should convey all their 
interest in the estate to the sons ; that 
the sons should pay to the plaintiff 
$500, to another daughter $000, and 
should join in a conveyance to the 
third of land given to her by her 
father, but unconveyed by him. At 
the time the exact condition of the 
estate was unknown. Bet ore the deed 
to the sons was executed, the solicitor 
of the deceased present at the meeting 
explained to the daughters their legal 
rights and the effect oi the deed. On 
the true condition of the estate being 
subsequentlv ascertained, the plaintiff 
sought to have the conveyance set 
aside .—Held, that the agreement as a 
family arrangement, entered into for 
the purpose of giving effect to the in­
tention» of the deceased, without fraud 
or misrepresentation, should be up­
held. Seams v. Hicks..................... 281

3-----Option—Anttign ment—Renew­
al and modification of option—Right* 
of unnignee.] An option was held by 
K. upon property of defendant Co. for 
tlie sum of $5tL* -'8b. By agreement 
dated August 7, 1903, reciting the 
option and that the company had ar­
ranged through H. to execute an option 
to P. and lor $010,000, it was wit­
nessed that if the property was pur­
chased in accordance with such option, 
“or mutual modification of the same,’' 
the company would pay to U. or his 
assigns, any excess realized above the 
option price of $502.586. H. imme­
diately afterwards assigned a one-half 
interest in the agreement to the plain­
tiff. By agreement of same date, the 
company gave an option on the prop­
erty to P. and C. for $700,000, who in 
case of a sale hy them under that 
option, or any mutual modification 
thereof, were to be allowed $60,000.

ACREEMENT—Continued.
This option expired March 1, 1004 
On October 27, h-04, a new option was 
gived by the company to P and G.,

; and this by subsequent agreement was 
extended to June 15, 1005. On June 10 

, P. and C. agreed to sell the property 
to I. P. Co. for $725,000. This agree­
ment fell through. On October 2, 1005, 
a sale was made to 1. P. I o. for $675,- 
000. By agreement of the same date 
the détendant Co. agreed to pay P. 
and C. $100,000 for their services in 
connection with the sale, leaving 
$575,000 as the net amount to the 
company from the sale. Prior to the 
sale i.he company, having no notice of 
the assignment by It. to the plaintiff, 
had agreed with It. that his option 
should be for $580,000. The plaintiff 
claimed one-half of the difference be­
tween the sum realized hy the com­
pany from the sale and $562,586 :— 
Held, that under the circumstances 
the option given after the expiry of 
the first option to P. and ('. was a 

, modification of it within the meaning 
of the agreement with K„ but that the 
company, having no notice of plain- 

I tiff's assignment, were tree to deal 
with K., and that consequently the 

i change made by K. in his agreement 
with the company was binding on the 
plaintiff, to wlionf therefore there was 
nothing coming. Winslow r. The 

! Wm. Rich a it dm Company, Limited

I -----Maintenance — Enforcement of —
Breach—Onus of proof....... 205
See Deed, 2.

! -----Secret — Trade arrangement —
Fraud upon creditors......... 453
See Chattel Moktoaob, 1.

AMENDMENT -Parties— Assignment for 
benefit of creditors—Striking 
out and adding names... 173, 496
Ah Pamthm» I» &

ANCIENT DOCUMENTS Admissibility of 
— Proof of Execution — Evi­
dence  106
8m I'uniimv

ANSWER —Debenture ti ustee—Parties
—Costs..........................    6
See Costs, 3.
----- Interrogatories — Excep­
tions............ . .........................100
See I NTS RROO ATOMIES.
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APPEAL— Execution—Reversal of decree 
—Restitution—Measure of damayes. ) 
Where goods of the defendant were 
sold under a decree subsequently re­
versed for error, he was held to l>e 
entitled to the sum the goods sold for, 
and not to ilieir value or to damages.
Kohkkthon v. Millkh........................ 78
----- Company—Winding up order —

Leave to appeal ...... 231
See Company, 1.

----- Judicial committee of Privy Coun­
cil— Order, construction of —
Costs ................................. 270
8m Costs, 1

ARBITRATION - Injunction................ 224
See Injunction, 1.

ASSIGNMENT Agreement — Option —
Rights of Assignee........... . 481
See Aokkkmknt, 3.

----- Book debts—Power to seize.....453
See Chattel Mortgage, 1.

----- Creditors* deed — Balance in hands
of trustee - Repayment to 
debtor—Collection of debts due 
estate — Negligence of trustee 
—Employment of at torney 436 
See Debtor and Creditor, 1.

----- Debtor and creditor—Suit—Parties
17:t. 106

See Parties, 1, 2.
----- Injunction—Varying order ... 123

See Injunction, 2.
ASSIGNMENTS AND PREFERENCES ACT

Debtor and creditor—Bill of 
. sale Advance under agree­
ment to give hdl of sale—Delay 
— Insolvency — Suit by credi­
tors— Amendment of parties 

t'.Hi
8m Dl BTOH \m> I MIDI i1 • I :.

----- Landlord and Tenant —
dated damages Admission of
to proof ...................... .676
See Landlord and Tenant.

----- Statntorv presumption — Rebuttal
Evidence of pressure 4U4
See Debtor and Creditor, 3.

BANK Lumber One rotor—Ad ranees to 
v/ton security of litys— Bank Art, c. 
tv, s. 76, It. S ( ' J A hank made ad­
vances to a lumber operator upon the 
security of an agreement between him 
and a trustee that he should sell and 
deliver a specified quantity of logs to

VOL. 111. N. B. K. 11.-40.

BANK - Con tinned.
he cut by him, to the trustee, who 
should have the property therein as 
front the stump, and who should upon 
delivery pay im the same by, inter 
alia, paying the bank amount of its 
loans :—Reid, that the security was 
void under sect. 76 of the Bank Act, 
c. 2D, K. 8. C. Randolph v. Ran­
dolph................... ................................... 676
BILL — Dismissul — Want of prosecu­
tion—Form of motion ) An objection 
on a motion to dismiss for want of 
prosecution a hill by a shareholder and 
the company, which subsequently to 
the commencement of the suit went 
into liquidation, that the motion should 
have been for an order that, unless the 
plaintiff obteined leave to proceed 
within a limited time, the bill should 
stand dismissed, overruled. Parting­
ton v. (Thuing .................. .............. 322
-—Pleading—Judicial notice of stat­

ute .........138
See Municipality.

BILL OF SALE — Advance under agree­
ment to give—Delay—Insol­
vency— Assignments and Pre­
ferences Act, chap. 141, U. 8.
1963 .......................................... m
See Debtor and Creditor, 2.

-----Consideration—Coercion — Suit to
set aside...................  .. ....... 346
See Chattel Mortgage, 2

-----Secret trade agreement — Fraud —
Delay — Insolvency.............. 453
See Chattel Mortgage, 1.

-----Staying sale under—Payment into
Court — Amount ................267
See Injunction, 3.

BOOK DEBTS — Assignment—Power to
seize.......................     453
See Chattel Mortgage, 1.

BY-LAW—Municipality—Taxation -Ex­
emption to company — Dis­
crimination— Ultra vires— Bill 
— Pleading — Judicial notice
of Statute ............................ .138
See Municipality.

CHATTEL MORTGAGE Bills of Sale Act 
! —Secret trade agreement — Power to 

seize yood* and book debts oj debtor.) 
Plaintiffs in 18118 agreed to supply M. 
A 8., dry goods dealers, with goods 
under an agreement in writing that 

I such goods should remain the plain-

C5C
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CHATTEL W0*TCACE -Contimini. 
litf#' pmp.-l'ty, mill that ehollld tin* 
ilaintilTa at any time cnn.Mei- that the 
iiisiness of M. ik .S. was not being con­
ducted in a proper way or to l In* plain­
tiffs’ satisfaction, plaintiffs sliouUl be | 
“at liberty to take possession of our | 
stock, hook debts and other assets, , 
and dispose of the same, and after ! 
payment in lull of any amount then j 
owing to you hv us, whether due or to 1 
become due, the balance of the pro­
ceeds shall be handed to u».” The 
agreement was not Hied under the 
Hills of Sale Act. chap. 112, C. S. llJtKi. 
Goods were supplied from time In time 
under the agreement. On February 
7th. llHlô, thr business not being con­
ducted to the plaintiffs' satisfaction, 
and M.Ae S. being insolvent, plaint ilfs 
entered the store of M. A: S. by force 
and took |M>ssrs*ion of all the stock 
ami effects on the premises, and of the 
books of account. The slock seized 
was made up of goods supplied by the 
plaintilfs of the value of ijtâ.UUO, and 
of goods supplied by other unpaid 
creditors of the value of upwards of 
•SlU.IHMl. The account books shewed 
debts due M. «k S. of the estimated 
value of #2.i**l Later on tile same 
day M. A S. made an assignment for 
i he general benefit <•! i hell editoi 
//c/3, (I ) that plaint ilfs were not limit­
ed to taking possession of goods sup­
plied by themselves. (2) that as to 
giMsls supplied by the plaintilfs as the 
property therein did not pass in M. <V 
S., the agreement was not within the 
Bills of Sale Ad, and that as to goods 
not supplied by plaintilfs as the agree­
ment was not intended to operate as 
a mortgage but. ms a license to take 
possession, the Act did not apply, (3) 
that while the license in the agree­
ment to take possession of the book 
debts ilid not amount to an assign­
ment, and the powers given by it bad 
not l»een exercised by notice to the 
debtors, plaintiffs were nevertheless 
entitled to them as against. M. «V S.'s 
assignees. I’iik Gault Bkothkkh 
Company, Limitkd c. Morkkll....433

2------ Chattel inortf/aye — Coercion —
Sale «/ chattel—Warranty—Breach— 
E.reea tory eon tract—Beta rn of Chattel. ] 
A lease of store premises was obtained 
by plaintiffs through a guarantee of 
payment of the rent by defendant.

CHATTEL MORTCACE Continual. 
Subsequently at plaintiffs' request de­
fendant took out in his own name a 
lease of the premises for a further term 
of four years upon an agreement to 
assign it to them in consideration of 
their purchase from him of an auto­
matic electric piano. The purchase 
price was $750, upon which a payment 
of $ll*l was to lie made. The cash pay­
ment subsequently was waived and 
notes for the full amount of the pur­
chase money given. After the pur­
chase, plaintiffs incurred an additional 
indebtedness to defendant of about 
$li*l. This amount, together with the 
notes, s une of which were overdue, 
was outstanding when the plaintiffs 
asked for an assignment of the lease. 
This the defendant demurred to giv­
ing, desiring to retain the lease as 
security, The plaintiffs then, but 
against the defendant’s advice, exe­
cuted a chattel mortgage of their stock- 
in-trade to him, wle-roupon lie made 
over the lease to them: l/clil, that 
the chattel mortgage should not be set 
aside on the ground of hiving lieen 
obtained by coercion. While the rule 
that in absence of agreement the pur­
chaser of a specific chattel cannot 
return it on breach of warranty, may 
not apply to a sale providing that lhe 
property shall not,pass until payment 
of the purchase price, it will apply in 
such case where the vendee in addition 
to keeping the chatiel a longer time 
than re tsonable or necessary for trial, 
has exercised the dominion of an 
owner over it, as by giving a chattel 
mortgage of it to the vendor. Pktho- 
polouh v. F. E. Williams Company, 
Limitkd.................   316
----- Injunction — Slaying sale under

chattel mortgage — Payment
into i 'ourt—Amount............ 2d7
See Injunction, 3.

COERCION Chattel Mortgage—Consid­
eration 846
See Chattkl Mohtoauk, 2.

COMPANY —Liquidation—Lea re to ap- 
pea4.) Principle* upon which applica­
tions by shareholders of a company in 
liquidation for leave to appeal are to 
be dealt wIth, considered. #a re 
Gushing Svlpiiitk Fibkk Company, 
Lhhtmo M
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COMPANY—Continued.

2.—— Prospect us — .1/ isreprese n ta t ion 
—A pent -Lia hi I i tj/ofd i rectors—Rescis­
sion of contract, to purchase shares — 
Delay.] Where a broker employed by 
h company to Hell «Imres in its capital 
«lock, iHsnes, though without the know­
ledge or authority of the company, a 
prospectus containing untrue material 
statements, on the strength of which 
shares are purchased, the purchase 
money being paid to the company, the 
purchaser may rescind the contract as 
against the company, the broker's 
statements being binding on his princi­
pal as made within tin* scope and 
course of his employment. A broker 
employed by a company to sell shares 
in its capital stock, issued a prospectus 
stating, among other things, that 
while in the past the company's earn­
ings had been applied to the improve­
ment of its property, “henceforth it is 
the intention to declare regular half- 
yearly dividends as the net earnings of 
the business will warrant. In view of 
fast results, and the very favorable 
>r<ispects for increased earnings, slmre- 
lolders can with confidence look for­

ward to receiving satisfactory returns 
on their investments in the slnpe of 
dividends.” No mention was nude of 
the debts or assets of the company. 
It owed a large sum to its bankers, but 
its assHts considerably exceeded its 
liabilities:—Held, that the statement 
amounting to i.,» more than an an­
nouncement of policy, and which the 
directors were at lilierty to pursue, a 
company having power, though in 
debt, to pay dividends out of profits, 
the failure to disclose the indebtedness 
to the bankers did not render the 
statement misleading, there also being 
no duty to disclose in the prospectus 
Hi.' assets .«11< 1 liabilitof the com- 

my. Directors adopting a resolution 
> sell shares in the capital stock of the 

company and to employ a broker for 
the purpose held not responsible in 
damages for misrepresentation in a 
irnspcrtus issued by a broker employed 
)y them under the resolution, at the 
instance of a purchaser of shares who 
had purchased in reliance upon the 
prospectus, the prospectus having lieen 
issued without their knowledge or 
authority, and the broker being the 
Agent of the company. The plaintiff

COMPANY -Continued.
learned on January 24, 1904, that 
miterial representations, upon which 
lie had been induced to purchase 
shares in the defendant company on 
June 21, 190.1, were untrue. On Febru­
ary 10, and on March 8, he demanded 
at meetings of the company a return of 
the purchase money Neither demand 
was assented to, and on April 18, the 
company communicated to him a for­
mal refusal. A suit for rescission was 
commenced by him on Decern lier 27, 
following:—Held, that the suit was 

i barrell by delay. FakRELL r PORT­
LAND Rolling Mills Uo., Limited
.................................. ...... ......................... 508

3.—-Sale of assets—Dissenting share- 
holder — Injunction | The holders of 
I he majority of l lie snares in the capi­
tal stock of a company authorized the 
selling of its properly in order lo pay 
its d hts : - Held, that the sale should 
not be enjoined at the instance of a 
dissentient shareholder. Patrick v. 
Tub Empire Coal and tramway
Company, Limited................ ......571
----- Directors - - Scope of duties — Agri­

cultural society—Public exhi­
bition ..................  ................127
See Agreement, 1.

-----Exemption from taxation — Muni­
cipal by-law— Descrimiiuitionm
See Municipality.

-----Mortgage—Foreclosure—Parties—
Costs—Form of decree............5
See Mortgage, 2.

-----Telephone company — Merger —
validity of USE
See I MLkPHoNE Company. 

CONSIDERATION—Agreement 127,281 
See Agreement, 1, 2.

| -----Deed Absence of—Incapacity of
grantor...................................... 84
See Deed, 3.

-----Fraudulent Conveyance — Stat. 13
Elix., c. 5 .... ’.............. 258
See Fraudulent Convey­
ance.

COSTS — Agent—Failure to account.] 
Costs of sun against an agent fur an 
account ordered to he paid by him 

j where lie bad disregarded requests for 
an account, and had filed an impro|>er 
account in the suit. Simondh v. Cob- 
tkii :<29
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COSTS - Continued.
9.------Appeal to Judicial Committee

of the Pri ry Cou ncil—Order of King in 
Council — Construction.] Ill a suit 
against 1,. and K. tin* lull was dis­
missed by this Court with costa. An 
appeal to the Supreme Court was al­
lowed with costs. On appeal by R. to 
the Judicial Committee of the Privy 
Council it was onlered that the decree 
of the Supreme Court should be dis- 
chaiged as against the appellant with 
costs, and that the decree of this Court 
should lie res to i ed :—Held, that costs 
under the original decree should lie 
taxed to L. Fa I itw bath Kit v. Koii- 
■RTSON '-7(5

3.------Debenture Mortgage—Answer
—Parties.] In a suit by the holder of 
délientures to enforce a t»ust mort­
gage, the trustees made defendants in 
the suit were disallowed costs of a part 
of their answer setting.up that the 
suit should have lieen brought in their 
name. Shavonkhby v. Thb Imperial
Truhtb Co.........................  6
4------Partition suit—Precious sale

of land Title of vendor—Costs of ven­
dee ] Where a suit for partition of 
lands sold previously to the com­
mencement of the suit established the 
exclusive title of the vendor, and the 
suit was not caused by any fault of 
his, the vendee made a party to the 
suit was held not to In* entitled to 
deduct his costs from the purchase 
money. Patterson v. Patterson

IIHl
B.----- Security for — Foreclosure

suit | It is not a ground for refusing 
an order for security for costs, where 
pi lintitf is resident abroad, that the 
suit is for foreclosure of mortgage.
Buchananv. Narvik. .......................... 1
----- Mortgage sale under |M>wer —

Alsn-live sale .....  42W
See Mortoaok, 7.

CROWN LAND —Squatter—Grant Pur­
chaser for value—Priorities— 
Notice—Registry Act. 67 Viet.
r. 81, s. <W; C. 8. liWtt, c. 151,
s. Hfl— Instrument improperly
on registry  14
See Kkoihtry Laws.

DEBENTURE —Mortgage to secure—Fore­
closure— Parties — Costs — 
Poi m of decree 6
See Mortoaok, 2.

DEBTOR AND CREDITOR Creditors'deed 
—Balance in hands of trustee—Repay­
ment to debtor—Collect ion of debts due 
estate—A egligence of trustee—Employ­
ment of attorney. ] A tiustee under a 
deed of assignment for the benefit of 
creditors oi-deied to nay to the debtor 
balance of estate in his hands, where 
eighteen years had elapsed from the 
time of toe alignment, though but 
two creditors had exec uteri the deed, 
it not appearing that other creditors, 
if there were any, had ever shewn an 
intention of assenting to the deed and 
the Court being of opinion that they 
would now he precluded from doing so. 
A trustee under e deed for the benefit 
of creditors may employ an attorney 
to collect debts due the estate. Where 
an attorney employed for the purpose 
by a trustee under an assignment for 
tin* bem* fit of creditors collected #211.88 
of $1.028.45 lx»ok debts due the estate, 
and it appeared that mostly all of 
them were for small amounts, many 
lieing for less than a dollar, and that 

i one of the reasons for making thee 
j assignment was the difficulty expert- 

enced by the assignor in collecting 
! even good debts, it was held that the 

trustee should not be charged with a 
sum as for debts that he should have 
got 111. Thibidbav v. LkBlanc....43(1

1.------Bill of sale — Advance umler
agreement to give bill of side—Delay 
— Insolvency — Assignments and Pref­
erences Act, chap, til- C.S I'HiS—Suit 

I /;// creditors—A mend ment of parties]
! A trader when in insolvent circumstan­

ces to the knowledge of him-elf and the 
J defendants executed to them a bill of 

sale of his stoi k in trade, pursuant to 
i an agreement made with them nearly 
: four years previously to give it. wlien- 
1 ever required, they advancing to him 

upon the faith of theagn ement a sum 
| of money for use in bis business and 
I giving him a line of credit. Shortly 

after executing the bill of sale he made 
| an assignment for the benefit, of his 

creditors under chap. 141, C. S. HX)3:— 
Held, in a suit by the assignee, that 
tile giving and tiling of the bill of 
sale having been postponed until the 
debtor’s insolvency in order to prevent 
the destruction of his credit, the agree­
ment was a fraud upon the other 

i creditors, and that the bill of sale 
I should lie set aside. Held, also, that
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DEBTOR AND CREDITOR -Continued. 
the delivery of the stock in trade by 
the trailer to the defendants* subse­
quently to the execution of the hill of 
sale, did not assist their title; sect. 2 
of chap. 141, U. ti. 1003, applying. A 
preferential transaction falling within 
the provisions of chap. 141, Cl. S. 1003, 
may tw impeached at the instance of 
creditors, where the debtor has not 
made an assignment. Where, after 
the commencement of a suit by cred­
itors i" sci aside a hill of sale, as 
constituting a fraudulent preference 
under chap. 141, C. 8. 1003. tlie grant r 
made an assignment for the lienetit of 
his creditors, the assignee was added 
as a plaintiff. Took k BROTHERS, 
Limited v. Bkock B Pattkrson, 
Limited M

3.-----Insol re ncy—A ssiyn ments a nd
Preferences Act, c. 141, C. S. 1903 — 
Statutory presumption — Rclmttat — 
Evidence of pressure.] Sect. 2 (3) of 
the Assignments and Preferences Act, 
c ill, ('. s. 1003, provides that in a 
suit brought within sixty days from 
the m iking of a transfer of property, 
to have it set aside, it shall lie pre­
sumed that it was in ado with intent lo 
give the preferred creditor an unjust 
preference, and to lie such, whether 
made voluntarily or under pressure ;— 
Held, ihat the presumption is rebutta­
ble, bur. that evidence of pressure is not 
admissible for the purpose. Edgett

Ml
----- Chattel mortgage — Bills of Sale

Act — Secret trade agreement 
— Power to seize goods and
hook debts of debtor .... 453
See Chattel Mortgage, 1.

DECREE Appeal—Judicial Committee
of Privy Council—Costs....270
See Cohth, 2.

-----Referee’s deed — Proof of decree

See Kkfkkke in Equity, 1.
DEED — Maintenance bond — Lien.] 
Where land was conveyed in consider­
ation of a Ixmd by the grantee to 
maintain the grantor and his wife for 
life, hut the consideration was not ex­
pressed ill l he deed, a decree was made 
chaiging the land with a lien for the 
performance of the agreement in the J 
bond. Duguay v. Lanteiunk.....132 I

D EE 0—Con t i n ued.
2. -----Maintenante— Enforcement of

agreement—Breach — Onus of proof 1 
Iu a suit to enforce a lien upon lana 
conveyed to the defendant by the 
plaintiffs, husliand and wife, in con­
sideration of an agreement by defend­
ant to support them, the onus of prov­
ing a breach of the agreement is upon 
the plaintiffs. Ouilette v. LkHel 
................................................................... 206

3. —— /neapacity of yrantor — Ab­
sence of consideration — Conflict of 
evidence—Belief.J Where at the time 
of the execution of a deed of convey­
ance the grantor was 70 years of age, 
was sick and in feeble health, mill it 
was the opinion of some witnesses, 
though not of others, that he did not 
understand the nature of his act ; and 
the effect of i he deed was to deprive 
him of me ms of support, and the evi­
dence was uncertain respecting the 
existence of adequate consideration for 
the deed, and favored the view that it 
was intended as a gift, the deed was 
set aside. Winslowe r McKay....84

4. -----Mistake — Rectification. ] The
plaintiff, intending to sell the whole 
of a piece of land, sold it under

. a verbal contract describing it as the 
I) lot. The deed to the purchaser fol­
lowed the description in the vendor’s 
deed. After the vendee’s death, and 
about ten years after the contract of 
sale was made, the vendor sought to 
have the diasl rectified on the ground 
that it contained more land than that 
known as the I). lot. The evidence 
did not shew that the I) lot did not 
embrace the whole of the land con- 
veyed : //</</. that the bill should bo 
dismissed. Principles upon which the 
Court proceeds in reforming deeds, 
considered Carman in Smith 44

-----Referee in Equity—Decree—Proof
of 238
See Referee in Equity, 1.

DELAY — Company — Sale of shares — 
Prospect us— Misrepresenta­
tion ..............    608
See Company, 2.

DEMURRER - Rill— Pleading—Statute—
Judicial not lee <»f 138
See Municipality.
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DISMISSAL OF BILL Want of prosecu-
lion—Form of motion ......322 |
Set Bill.

DONATIO MORTIS CAUSA Evidence — 
Delivery for safe-keeping.] A poison 
on Ins (lentil-hod handed to his wife 
out of a satchel which he kepi ill a 
closet of his bedroom $2.<XiO in bonds 
and $1,550 in cash, telling her to “take 
them and put them away ; wrap them 
up and lock them up in your^runk.” 
At the same time lie handed to her a 
pocket-book containing $150, saying 
that it was for present expenses. A 
few minutes later he handed to his 
business partner the remaining con­
tents of the satchel, consisting of 
$1,000 belonging to the linn. .Subse­
quently In- made a will bequeathing to 
his wife $3,01X1, a horse, two carriages, 
and all his household effects ; to his 
partner his interest in partnership 
property ; to two grand-nephews $500 
earn; and to nieces and nephews the 
residue of his estate. His private 
estate was worth $7,500. When giving 
directions for the drafting of lus will, 
on the amount of the legacies to his 
wife and grand-nephews heingcounted 
up, he said, “ there is more than 
that" i—HehI, that there was not a 
donatio mortis causa to the wife, the 
deceased intending no more than a 
delivery for safe-keeping. TllK K a ST­
ERN Trust Company r. Jackson 180 
EASEMENT ()right in grant—Prescrip­
tive title. | In 1854 It. B., owner of l,ot 
8, conveyed the northern part thereof 
to M . together with the privilege of 
taking water thereto through a pipe, 
which M. was empowered to build, 
from a spring on the southern part of 
the lot. By mesne assignments M.’s 
lot. with the water privilege, became 
vested in J. B. In 1871 he executed to 
8. for 21 years, with covenant for re­
newal, a least* of the spring, with a 
right to lay a pipe therefrom through 
tin* southern part of Lot 8 to Ixit if. 
The ownership of t«-e southern part of 
Lot8 was then in II., and in 1IMI5 be­
came vested in the defendant. In 1872 
K built a pipe from the spring across 
H.’s land to liOtO, and it has been in 
uninterrupted use ever since, a period 
exceeding 20 years. In 1904 Lot 9, 
with the lease was assigned to the 
plain'itfs. The plaintiffr.* predecessors 
in title always rested their right to

EASEMENT Continued. 
the easement on the lease and not 
upon adverse user :—Held, that a pre­
scriptive title to the easement could 
not be set up. Iamhhe v. Mont­
gomery....... ........................................... 238

EVIDENCE — Marriage register Legiti­
macy ~ Pedigree — Declarations try de­
ceased parent and hy members of 
family ante litem mntam.\ A. was 
married at St. Haul s Church, Halifax, 
in 1800 In the entry of the marriage 
in the church’s marriage legister his 
name appears with the addition “* atr" 
—a contraction for bachelor. There 
was nothing to shew hy whom the 
entry of the addition was made, or 
that it was made in pursuance of a 
duty prescribed by statute :—Held, 
that I lie register, while admissible in 
proof of the marriage, could not he 
received as evidence that A. had previ­
ously not been married. To prove that 
C. was the legitimate son of A. by 
an alleged previous marriage, it was 
shewn that he resided for two or three 
years at A.’s home previous to depart­
ing to learn a trade, and also at a sub­
sequent time for a few months ; that 
he addressed him as “father,” was 
treated as a member of the family, 
was recognized and * treated by A.’s 
wife as his son, and hy children by her 
as their brother; that after removal 
to the United States he wrote letters 
to A., in one of which he informed him 
of his (C.’s) marriage ; and that in an 
oral declaration by A. in the hearing 
of a wit ness, who was a neighbour of 
the family, he referred to the < hristian 
name of his former wife, and to her 
lersonal appearance:—Held, that (Vs 
egitimary had been proved. Qtarre, 
whether declarations in letters written 
ante litem nudum, in-tween 1>.. a son 
of A., and (1., a son of C , in which I). 
recognized C.’s relationship to him, 
were admissible in D.'s lifetime ; but. 
Semble, that where prima facie evi­
dence of C.’s legitimacy had been 
given, declarations in G.'s letters, he 
being dead, were admissible. John­
ston v. Hazkn............. ................ .......147

1.-----Witness — Competency of—
Religious belief.| Where a person 
stated that lie believed in n Supreme 
Power—a Clod as defined by Christ’s 
teachings; in heaven and hell, and in
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EVIDENCE ConUnuetl.
a future Hiatt* of rewards and punish- 
mente, hut, that he did not believe he 
wae under any greater obligation to 
tell the truth hv reason of taking the 
oath and that he did not believe that a 
per»in who swears falsely will be pun­
ished in the hereafter, it- was held that 
he was coui|ietent lo be sworn as a 
witness. Fa It KELLY. Portland ROLL­
ING Millh Company, Limited 508 
-----Ancient Doeumeiits—Admissibili­

ty ol Proof ui executIon IU0 
See Partition.

----- Donatio Martin Cauml— Delivery
for safe-keeping ................  1st)
See Donatio Mortih Cavha.

-----Lien—Maintenance Deed - Agree­
ment - Bivach —Onus of proofns
See Deed, 2.

-----Referee in Equity—Decal by —
Decree, proof of ........... ?... 288
See Referee in Equity, 1.

EXCEPTIONS —Answer—Interrogatories
IDO

See 1NTKRROO ATORIKH.
EXECUTION Appeal - Reversal of de­

rive Restitution— Damages

FAMILY ARRANGEMENT — Agreement -
Consideration ................ 281
See Agreement, 2.

FEES OF OFFICE Port wardens 175
See Port wardens.

FIRE INSURANCE Landlord and Tenant 
Reinstatement of premises - 
Art 14 (ion. III., e. 78, s. 88 570 
See Landlord and Tenant.

FORECLOSURE Mortgage 6,61
See Mortgage, 2,8.

FRAUD -Debtor and Creditor—Insolv- 
| 258, |G4. t.Vt. lint

See Chattel Mortgage, 1. 
Debtor and Creditor,

1 8.
Fraudulent Convey­

ance.
----- Misrepresent at ion— Prospectus —

Company—Shares—Rescission j
...................... ............................................608
See Company, 2.

FUND IN COURT -Surplus of mortgage 
sale—Competing claimants.. 57 
See Mortgage, 5.

FRAUDULENT CONVEYANCE —Stat. 1.1 Elit., 
e. H—Connideration.) In 1801, B. S , a 
tanner, deceased, agreed with two of 
his sons, in consideration of their re­
maining on the farm and supporting 
him and their mother, and paying to 
their two sisters $1.000 each, that the 
farm and his personal property should 
be theirs. The farm consisted of ad­
joining pieces of land, each worth 
about $8.200. Subsequently the sons 
paid i|hout$8,0U0in paying off balances 
of purchase money due oil the farm, 
paid $2.000 to the sisters, and support­
ed the father and mother. On July 10, 
1800. the father, in performance of the 
agreement, conveyed the farm to the 
sons for an expressed consideration of 
one dollar. At that time he was not 
in debt, but he was surety with others 
for loans amounting to $11,000 to a 
company, of which he and they were 
directors, tin* last loan being for $8,000, 
and made June 7, 1800. On May 8, 
1001, the company went into Inunda­
tion, and the amount for widen the 
directors were sureties was paid by 
them, except E. S. Ill a suit by them 
to set aside the conveyance as fraudu­
lent and void under the Stat. 18 KHz., 
e. 5: Held, that the hill should he dis­
missed. Baird i\ Slut.................. 258

GIFT — Hunlmnd and wife—Pu rehate 
in irifes name.) Where propel ty 
purchased by a husband as a home for 
himself and wife was by his direction 
conveyed to her, so that the title might 
he in her in case of his death, it was 
held that a gift was intended, to take 
effect upon his death if she should sur­
vive him. Kvanh v. Evans....  . 216

t.-----Promiemtry note— Prmniec to
naiker by jmyee to /my—Want of 
rannideratian I a rut a atari/ /my ment 
by /myee—Action ay ai net maker.) 
Semble, that where the payee (de­
ceased ) on endorsing a promissory 
note for the accomm* dation of I lie 
maker promises wh hunt consideration 
to pay it, and the holder compels pay­
ment by the payee’s estate, ail aCIon 
for the recovery of the amount lies by 
the estate against the maker. John- 
hton r. Hazen : He Woodford Claim 
............................................................. 841
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GIFT -Continued.
---- Donatio mortis causa—Evidence—

I Mi very f *r wife-keeping—180 
See Donatio Mortis Causa.

GRANT — Easement — Prescriptive title
............ ......................... .............. 238
See Easement.

----- Squatter—Crown land— Purchaser
for value —Pria itiee—Notice— 
Registry Act. 57 Viet., c. 20, s. 
00; C. S. 1003, c. 151, s. «0-In­
strument improperly on regis- 
t iv I I
See Registry Laws.

GUARDIAN Married woman —Infant ] 
A married woman will not be appoint­
ed sole guardian of the person and 
estate of an infant. He Gladys Julia
Frkkzb............................................. 172

2.----- Removal—Infant.] It is a
ground for the removal of the guardian 
of the persons of inf mt children that 
he has removed out of the jurisdiction 
of the Court. In re Lawton Infants 
.....................    279
HUSBAND AND WIFE—Purchase in wife’s

......... Gift 210
S*- Gift, i.

INFANT -Guardian— Married woman
......... .....................  172

Shh Guardian, l.
----- Guardian—Removal ....... 279

See Guardian, 2.
INJUNCTION — Arbitration — Jurisdic­
tion | An injunction will not l»e 
granted to restrain a party from pro­
ceeding with an arbitration where the 
result of the arbitration will la* merely 
futile and of no injury to the party 
seeking the injunction. An injunction 
to restrain an arbitration to determine 
the value of land of tie* plaintiff taken 
by the defendants on the ground t hat 
a condition precedent to the taking of 
the land had not lieeti complied with, 
refused. Duncan v. Thk Town of
Camphkllton ......................    224

2.------Assignment for benefit of ere-
dit ore — Prejudice of creditor—Vary­
ing injunction ortler— Title of cause 
in order.] Where an e.r /tarte injunc­
tion order restrained a trader, who had 
obtained goods from the plaintiffs un­
der an agreement that the property 
therein free i<> remain In them, with 
liberty to them to take possession,

INJUNCTION Continued.'} 
from, inter alia, making an assign­
ment for the general benefit of nis 
creditors, it was ordered to he dis­
charged in that respect. It is not a 
ground for setting aside the service of 
an e.r parte injunction order that the 
order is not entitled in the cause, where 
the defendant has not been misled. 
Thk Gault Brothers Company, 
Limited v. Mokhkll........................ 123

3. -----Bill of Sale—Staying sale—
Payment into Court--Amount 1 In a 
suit by the mortgagor to set aside a hill 
of sale, an Interim injunction order to 
restrain a sale by the mortgagee was 
granted upon condition of the mort- 
g gor paying into Court the am unit 
due the mortgagee. The hill of sale 
was collateral security for promissory 
notes, some of which had been in­
dorsed over for value ;—Held, that the 
amount to he paid into Court should 
not he reduced by the amount ol' such 
notes. Pktropolouh v F. E. Wil­
liams Company, Limited............. 207

4. -----Interlocutory order—Suppres­
sion of material facte—Interpleader 
bill — Affidavit denying collusion.] 
The rule that on an application f«»r an 
ex parte injunction order a full and 
truthful disclosure must he made of all 
material facts, must lie strictly ob­
served. Where, in an interpleader 
suit, an e.r parte injunction order was 
dissolved for suppression of material 
facts, leave was granted to move again 
for the older, together with the right 
to file an affidavit denying collusion. 
The Canadian Pacific Railway 
Company r. Namon..............   470

5. ----- Interlocutory order — Under­
taking an to damages—Order for as­
sessment. I Claims for small damages 
by some defendants ordered to he in- 
eluded in an order for assessment of 
daiq iges of other defendants under au 
undertaking given on obtaining an in­
terlocutory injunction, where they 
arose from the restraint of acts the in-
unetion was obtained to prevent from
leing done. Wood v. LkRlanc....116

-----Pollution of river—Riparian own­
er— Damage....... ........   358
See River, 1.

-----Telephone company—-Sale of char-
tv, m
See Telephone Company.
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INJUNCTION Continued.
-----Water—Riparian owner — Mill- |

dam — Interruption of xvater— 
Statutory powers — Remedies ,
................................... ................643
See Kivkk, 2.

INSOLVENCY.
See Assignments and PRE­

FERENCES ACT.
en lttsl Moure v.i
Debtor and Creditor. 
Piiaudulnmi Oomthi
ANCB.
Landlord and Tenant. 

INTERE8T—Agent— Failure to account.] 
An agent refusing to give an account 
and nay over balance is chargeable 
with interest. Simonds v. Cost kr .329
-----Mortgage —Acceleration clause .392

8*9 MORTO VIk. I.
INSURANCE -hmdlortl and Tenant- 
Covenant to leave premises in repair 
—Lien upon lessee's machinery--In­
surance by lenure— Fire — Ue-instate­
ment of premises — Application of 
insurance money —Act 14 Geo. III., c.
78, s. 88 .........   A70

See Landlord and Tenant.
INTERPLEADER Affidavit denying col­
lusion.] Where, in an interpleader 
suit, an e.v parte injunction order was 
dissolved for suppression of materi .1 
facts, leave xvas granted to move again 
for the order, together with the right 
to file an affidavit denying « illusion. 
The Canadian Pacific Railway 
Company v. Nason 476
INTERROGATORIES Answer Reference 
to answer of co-defendant — Excep­
tions.] To an interrogatory to set out 
particulars of a claim of debt by 1 he 
defendant against the defendant com­
pany, the defendant answered that lie 
believed that schedules (which con­
tained the information sought) at­
tached to the answer of the defendant 
company were true :—Held, allowing 
an exception for Insuffl- iency, that the 
interrogatory relating to a matter 
within the defendant’s knowledge, he 
should have made positive oath of the 
correctness of the schedules, or that 
they were correct to the la*st of his 
knowledge, information and Mief. ac­
counting for his inability. to swear 
positively to their correctness. Lodge
r. Calhoun ........ . 100

JUDGE'S ORDER — Mistake — Power to
vary................ ......................... 231
See Order.

LANDLORD AND TENANT -Covenant to 
leave premises in repair—Lien upon 
lessee's machinery — Insurantt by 
lessee— Fire —tie-instatement of prem­
ises— Application of insurance money 
— Act 14 Geo. III., c. 78, s. 88 —Insol­
vency— Unliquidated damages — Ad­
mission of to proof.] A lessee coven­
anted for himself and assigns that 
buildings of the lessor on the premises 
at the date of the lease would be left 
on the premises in as good repair as 
they then were ; also that machinery 
of tin* lessee would not be removed 
from the premises during the term 
without the lessor’s consent, but the 
same should be held by the h ssor as a 
lien for the performance of the lessee’s 
covenants and for any damage from 
their breach. Under a deed of assign­
ment for the benefit of the lessee's 
creditors the lease became vested in 
the trustees. A fire subsequently 
occurring, which destroyed the build­
ings and machinery, insurance on the 
latter was paid to the trustees. The 
lessor demanded of the trustees that 
the insurance be applied to re-instat­
ing the buildings or the machinery. 
By Act 14 Geo. III., c. 78. s. 83, insur­
ance companies are authorized and 
required, upon request of a person 
interested in or entitled unto a house 
or other buildings which may lie burnt 
down or damaged by fire, * * * to 
cause the insurance money to be laid 
out and expended towards rebuilding, 
re-instating or repairing such house or 
buildings:— Held, (1) without deciding 
whether the Act was in force in this 
Province, or not, that the lessor was 
not entitled to the benefit of it, the 
Act not applying to machinery be­
longing to a lessee, and the lessor not 
having made a request upon the insur­
ance company, as provided by the Act. 
(2) that even had the insurance been 
upon the buildings, the lessor would 
have had no equity to it, there being 
no covenant by the lessee to insure for 
the former’s benefit. (8) that the les­
sor was not entitled to prove for dam­
ages against, the estate with respect to 
the covenant to leave the premises 
in repair, the term not having expired. 
Randolph v. Randolph ................ 676
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LEGITIMACY -Pedigree -Marriage regis­
ter—Declarations by (incensed 
purent «ml by members of 
family unto litem motam 147 
See Evidence, 1.

LIEN -Deed .Maintenulice. 132,205
See Deed, 1. 2.

----- Sale of lumber to be manufactured
— Advances by purchaser -
Lien on log-i ........................576
See Lumber Operator.

-----Hailway Working expenditure—
Mortgage—Priorities Domin­
ion Hailway Acts, INKS and 

I
See Railway.

----- Will — Maintenance clause — Con­
struct ion ....................................H
Set Win

LIMITATIONS, STATUTE OF Agent—Re­
ceipt of rente — Right to an 
« count iin
s' - \l.l NT, 2.

-----Prescriptive title -Use of Water-
Mill-dam Interruption of
water ....  M3
See River, 2.

LUMBER OPERATOR Sale of lumber to 
be ma nu fuel u red—Ad run reu In/ pur- 
chatter — Lien on U)il8.\ By agreement 
by which K. agreed to sell a h perilled 
quantity of lumber to l.p manufac­
tured bv him. to M., it was provided 
that the latter should have a lieu 
thereon, and upon the logs for I be 
same, for all advances on account 
made by him. Advances were made 
under the agreement, when N. assigned 
for the henelll of bis creditors. Nom» 
of the lumber bad then been niamtfac- 
tured, and while K. bad in stream or 
in booms bis season's cut of logs, none 
had been set apart in order loearrv out 
the agreement : — Held, that M.liail not 
a lien upon t lie logs for his advances. 
•Randolph p. Randolph 576
----- Advances to upon security of bars

by bank—Hank Act, c. 21), s. 76.
K. N. < ’.......................................576
See Hank.

LUNATIC He/Htien to estate Collection 
of renttt—Agent.) Committee of the 
estate of a lunatic empowered to make 
needed repairs to the estate and to 
employ an agent at a Hxcd salary to 
collect rents. In re McGlVBRY, a 
lunatic m

MARRIAGE REGISTER legitimacy -Pedi-
grree—Evidence................ 147
See Evidence, 1.

MARRIED WOMAN—Gift—Purchase in 
wife’s name ......................216

-----Guardian—Infant...........................172
See Guardian, 1.

MINING LEASES -Equitable mortgage- 
priorities—Judgment creditor 
— Sheriff's sale— Purchaser— 
Notice General Mining Act,
« 8
See Priorities.

MISREPRESENTATION Prospectus - 
Company—Purchase of shares 
— Rescission of agreement — 
Agent—Liability of directors
— Delay ........... .............. ........ 6IW
See Company, 2.

MISTAKE -Deed—Rectification 44 
See Deed, 4.

-----Judge's order—Power to vary... 231
See Order.

MORTGAGE - Absolute eon reyance— 
Mortgage or purehaee.] Land of the 
plaintiff worth $1,500, subject to a 
mortgage for $UU0, and other ebatges 
for $:t00, was conveyed to the defend­
ant in consideration of bis paying $140 
due for instalments under the mort­
gage, for the recovery of which an 
action had been brought. The costs 
of the action weie paid by the plain­
tiff. The Court, finding under the 
evidence that the deed, though abso­
lute in form, was intended as a mort­
gage, allowed the plaintiff to redeem. 
Beaton v. Wilbur .......... 309

2----Company—Debenture mort­
gage— ForerInsure Partie*—Cunt*— 
Poem of decree J A suit to enforce a 
trust mortgage to secure debentures 
tuay he brought in the name of the 
debenture holders, the trustee being 
made a defendant. In a suit hv the 
holder of debentures to enforce a trust 
mortgage, the trustees made defend­
ants in the s-dt were disallowed costs 
of a part of their answer setting up 
that the suit should have Iwen brought 
in their name. Form of decree adopt­
ed in suit to foreclose debenture lnort- 

•gr. SHAVONKBHY V. THE IMPERIAL
ruin Company..............  ......... 5
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3. ------Foreclosing—Fetter on equity
of redemption Bonus—Collateral ad- 
vantaye. J The proviso for redemption 
in a mortgage dated August. ISO,
to secure j«ii advance of £3,5UU, was tin* 
payment on November II, of £(l,t (M) 
anil tin* transfer of £.">.(NHt in shares in 
a company to lie promoted hy the 
mortgagor. 'I'he principal money ad- 
vaiv e l was applied in purchasing the 
mortgaged premises, the value of 
which was speculative, being practi­
cally comprised in undeveloped salt 
springs which the proposed company 
were to work. In » suit for fore­
closure :—//rhl, that the proviso for 
redemption should not lie relieved 
against. Buchanan v. Narvik.....01

4. ------In tcrest—Acceleration eta nue. ]
Bonds dated July 1, 10 )2. provided for 
payment of the principal in ten years 
from date, and that in the meantime 
interest thereon should h«* paid at the 
rate of 10 per cent. Default having 
lieen made in payment of the interest, 
the trustee under a mortgage given to 
secure t he bonds, made on January 1, 
lwoô. a declaration calling in the prin­
cipal and interest under an accelera­
tion clause in the mortgage :—//#•/</, 
that interest at the rate provided for, 
and not at the statutory rate, was pay­
able after the date of the declaration. 
Thk Eastern Trust Company r. 
Gushing Hi lphith Fibre Company. 
Limitkd................ *...................................292

5. ------Practice—Payment into Court
—Surplus of mortyage sate—Conifiet- 
iny claimants to fund — CostsA A 
mortgage sale under power yielded a 
surplus of $220.21), out of which the 
mortgagee applitsl to pay into Court 
$21 s.81), living amount of a judgment 
against the mortgagor, which the
udgment creditor sought by suit to 
lave paid out of the surplus as against 
the owner of the equity of redemption 
in the mortgage:—Held, that on the 
mortgagee flaying into Court the whole 
surplus, less the costs of his appear­
ance and application, his name should 
lie struck out of the suit. flOYNK r. 
Roiiinhox................................................ 57

0.-----“ Plant,” mean iny of. | The
word “plant” in a mortgage of a mill, 
held not to Include office furniture, or 
a horse and carriage used for oeca-

M0RTCACE Continued. 
sional errand purposes in connection 
with the mill, or material kept <>•• hand 
for repairs to machinery : hut held to 
include scows used for lightering the 
output of the mill from its wharf to 
steamers, and in lightering coal for 
the use of the mill, and also to include 
such stores as axes, shovels and tiles, 
and other articles complete in them­
selves, used in carrying on I lie mill 
business. Kastkrn Trust Company 
r. Thk Cushing Sulphite Firrk
Company, Limited .........................278

7.-----Power of sale—A liortire sulc-
Kedcmption — Costs of sale.) Mort­
gaged property sold under a power of 
sale, default having arisen, was hid in 
by an agent of the mortgagee, and 
subsequently conveyed hy him to the 
mortgagee. In a suit for redemp­
tion : Held, that the mortgagee was 
entitled to la* paid the costs of the alair- 
tive sale, except an amount chaiged 
for the conveyance. PATCH ELL r. TlIK 
Colonial Investment and Loan 
COMPANI I LD
------Equitable mortgage— Priorities—

Notice—Min ng leases — Judg­
ment creditor—Sheriff's sale— 
Purchaser — General Mining
Act, C. H. HUM, c. 30...... 28
See PrioriTihS.

------Railway—Working expendittire—
Lien — Priorities — Dominion 
Railway Acts, 1888 and 1008
...............    371
See Railway.

------ Security for costs—Foreclosure
-nil 1
See Costs, 3.

MUNICIPALITY By law- h.eemption to 
rom pa n y— Fa.rat ion — Disert in i nation 
— Ultra rires—Bill— Plead iny — J udi- 
cial notice of statute.] By Act, the 
council of the town of Woodstock are 
empowered from time to time, at their 
discretion, to give encouragement to 
manufacturing enterprises within the 
town by exempting the property there­
of from taxation for a period of not 
more than ten years:—Held, that a 
by-law of the council exempting any 
company establishing a woollen mill in 
the town from taxation for a period 
of ten years was ultra vires, lieing a 
discrimination in favor of a company
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MUNICIPALITY Continued.
an against private persons engaged in 
the same business. A hill alleging 
that plaintiffs were entitled to exemp­
tion from taxai ion under • by-law 
passed by the defendants, held suf­
ficient on demurrer without'alleging 
that the by-law was authorized by 
statute. The Carlbton Woollen 
Company, Limited v. The Town of 
Woodstock.......................................138
NOTICE — Priorities — Equitable Mort­

gage— Mining leases — Judg­
ment creditor — Sheriff's sale 
— Purchaser— General Mining 
V t I . s 1908, o 80 »

See Priorities.
-----Registry laiws — Crown land —

Squatter — Grant — Purchaser 
for value — Notice — Registry 
Act, 57 Viet., c. 30, s IM; C. S. 
1908, o. 161, s. tii; Instrument
improperly on registry....... 14
See Registry Lawh.

OFFICE—Fees of— Portwardens ... 175 
See PORTWAIIDKNH.

OPTION Assignment — Rights of As- 
sigoee Ml

- iOKEBMBNT, 8.
ORDER -l*oieer to vary—Mintake.) A 
company against which a winding-up 
order had been made obtained at the 
instance of the large majority of its 
shareholders and holders of its Iannis 
an order in an action by it against C., 
granting leave to appeal to the Su­
preme Court of Canada fiom a judg­
ment. of the Supreme Court of this 
Province confirming a judgment of the 
Supreme Court in Equity, and entrust­
ing the conduct of the appeal to the 
company’s solicitors. Subsequently 
the liquid dors of the company moved 
to vary the order by adding a direc­
tion t hat t he case on appeal should not 
l»e settled until an appeal to the Su­
preme Court of Canada from the judg­
ment of the Supreme Court of this 
Province refusing to set aside the 
winding-up order was determined, and 
that the company’s solicitors on the 
appeal in the action against C. should 
act therein only on instructions of the 
liquidators or their solicitor :—/Icld, 
that as there was no error or omission 
in the order resulting from mistake or 
inadvertence, and the order expressed

ORDiR-Continued.
the intention of the Judge who made 
it, the motion should he refused. In 
re The Gushing Mulfhite Fibre 
Company, Limited.........................231
PARTIES — Striking (tut and adding 
names —Suit by creditor—Assignment 
for benefit of creditors ) Where after 
a suit was brought for a declaration 
that stock-in-trade in possession of de­
fendants tielonged to plaintiffs, the 
defendants made an assignment for 
the benefit of their creditors, and their 
assets were insufficient to pay their 
liabilities, the names of the defendants 
were ordered to be struck out and that 
of the assignee added. The Gault 
Bkothekh Company, Limited v.
Morrell........................................... 173

2.-----Suit by creditors — Assign­
ments and Preferences Act chap HU
C. S. lltus — Amendment of parties.j 
Where, after the commencement of a 
suit by creditors to set aside a bill of 
sale as constituting a fraudulent pre­
ference under chap. 141, C. 8 1003. the 
grantor made an assignment for the 
benefit of his creditors, the assignee
was added as a plaintiff TimiKB 
Broth ms. Limited r. Brock & Pat­
terson. Limited 196

3.-----Trust mortgage— Debentu res—
Foreclosure suit. ) A suit to enforce a 
trust mortgage to secure ilelaml tires 
may be brought in the name of the 
debenture holders, the trustee lieing 
made a defendant. Shauonehhy v.
Imperial Trvhth Co.......................  5
-----Dismissal from suit—Mortgage

sale—Payment into Court — 
Competing claimants to fund
.................................................. 57
see Mortgage, .*>.

PARTITION - Precious sate of land — 
Title of vendor confirmed—Costs of 
vendee — F.videnre — Ancient docu­
ments ) Where a suit for partition of 
lands sold previously to the commence­
ment <>f the mill established 11n* ex­
clusive title of the vendor, and the suit 
was not caused by any fault of his, 
the vendee made a party to the suit 
was held not to he entitled to deduct 
his costs from the purchase money. 
Where a document, of date 1831, pur­
porting to have been executed by 
father and son, was produced from the
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PARTITION Conlmutt/.
custody of a grandson of the former, 
and as having been kept, with title 
papers, in a box formerly in the cus­
tody of the grandson’s brother, and 
now in the custody of the grandson, 
and where a document, of date 1840, 
purporting to be a will, was priai need 
from the custody of a nephew of a 
person purporting to have signed it as 
a witness, and as having been kept by 
him with other papers in a chest now 
in the nephew’s custody, lu>th docu­
ments were held admissible in evidence 
without proof of execution. Patter­
son v. Patterson 100
PARTNERSHIP -Pmrc/mw of proper///— 
Re-sale—Ay reement to (Urine profits— 
Consideration—Declaration of trust.] 
Upou information supplied by I he 
plaintiff, the defendant purchased cer­
tain property held by a bank as secu­
rity for advances to the plaintiff's 
father, which upon re-sale yielded a 
surplus after meeting a liability the 
defendant had assumed for the benefit 
of plaintiff’s father. The defendant 
promised the plaintiff that in the event 
of there being a surplus it should be­
long to him:— Held, that the plaintiff 
and defendant were not partners, en­
titling the plaintiff to share in the 
profits from the re-sale of the proper­
ty, and that the defendant's promise, 
which w*e m>t a declare*Ion of trust, 
was nudum pactum. Lkiohton v. 
Hau m
PAYMENT INTO COURT Bill of 8 de-

Ntaying sale—Amount........2u7
See’Injunction, 3.

----- Surplus of mortgage sale — Com­
peting claimants to fund — 
Pai ties—Dismissal from bint

67
See Mortgage, 5.

“ PLANT," MEANING OF Mortgage 378 
See Mortoaok, 0.

PLEADING - Bill — Statute — Judicial
notice of ................................138
See Municipality.

PORT WARDENS Fees of office — Com­
petition—Aerounf.] Port wardens ap­
pointed by the city of Saint John have 
no exclusive right to examine hatches 
of incoming vessels, so as to entitle 
them to fees for the set vice paid to an 
outside person. Port Wardens of 
Saint John r. MvLauohlan......... 175

PRESCRIPTIVE TITLE -Easement-Origin
in grant ................................. 238
See Eabkmbnt.

-----Water — Riparian owners — Mill
dam — Interruption of water 
................................................... 643
See River, 2.

PRIORITIES — Equitable morlyaye — 
Mutiny leases — Judyment creditor— 
Sheriff's sale — I*urehuser — Motive- - 
The General Mining Art, C. S. 1903, 
e. 30.] A company muoi porated under 
the laws of the State of New York 
executed in New Yoik a mortgage of 
lands in this Province, and of minerals 
therein, while the title to the latter 
was in the Crown, the law of New 
York,unlike that of this Province, not 
reset ving minerals to the State. Min­
ing lease s subsequently were issued by 
the Crown to the company. A judg­
ment creditor of the company with 
notice of the mortgage purchased the 
leases at a Sheriff’s sale, under ail exe­
cution upon his judgment, and paid 
to the Crown, rent overdue upon the 
same, whereupon new leases were 
issued in his own name, the Crown 
having no knowledge of the mort­
gage :—lleld, that the new leases were 
subject to the mortgage. Semble, that 
the title of ihe judgment ci editor 
would have liven postponed to that of 
the mortgagee, though be had lieen a 
purchaser without notice of the mort­
gage. The Continental Trusts 
Company r. The Mineral Products 
Company *6
----- Railway —Lien—Working expen-

ditii* e—Mortgage— Dominion 
Railway Acts, 1888 and 11HI3 

:t7i
See Railway.

----- Registry Laws — Crown land —
Squatter — Grant — Purchaser 
for Vslue — Notice — Registry 
Art, 57 Viet, c. 20. s. (HI; C. S. 
1003, c. 151, s. (MJ— Instrument
ibiproperly on registry.........14
See Registry Laws.

PROMISSORY NOTE —Gift- Promise to 
maker by payee to pay—Want 
of consideration—Involuntary 
payment bv payee — Action
against maker.......................341
See Gikt, 2.
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PROSPECTUS Company — M isrepre- 
sentation—Agent- Liability of 
Directors—Rescission of iron- 
tract to purchase shares --
Delay ............................. 508
See Company, 2.

RAILWAY Morlyag-Working e.epen- 
d it are Lien Prioritise Dominion 
Railway Art*, ISSS ami UH).f.) The 
Railway Act. 1888 ( I>), after providing 
that a railway may secure its deben­
tures by a mortgage upon the whole 
of such property, assets, rents and 
revenues of the company as are des­
cribed m the mortgage, provides that 
such rents and revenues shall lie sub­
ject m i lie lii -i Instance * to
the payment of the working expend! 
ture of the railway. By the Railway 
Act, IlNKi ( I>.), the lien is enlarged to 
apply to the property and assets of the 
company, in addition to its rents and 
revenues. A mortgage by the defend­
ants, made in I8n7. was foreclosed and 
the properly sold, the proceeds being 
paid into Court. In a claim for a lieu 
thereon in priority to the mortgagee 
for working expenditure made after 
the commencement of the Act of 
I INK! :—//#•/#/, that the lien under the 
Act of 11HW was not retroactive, and 
that as the lien under the Act of 1888 
was limited to rents and revenues, and 
did m t applx to the fund in Court, the
claim should he disallowed. Bahnhii.l 
v. Tiik IIa.mi-ton ami Saint Mantinh
Railway Company.................. :»71
REFEHIE IN EQUITY Deed Proof of 
decree j A deed of a Referee in Kquit v, 
though purporting to have been made 
under a decree of the C mrt, is not ad­
missible in evidence without proof of 
tin- decree. Loouik r. Mo.vroo.MKKY

.........................  ........ ............ 2 «
1 ---- Finding of. | The llmling of a

Referee upon fpiestions of fact depend­
ing ii|miii the evidence taken eiea core 
before him will not he disregarded ex­
cept in case of manifest error. Tllllil-
dkau v. LkBlanu................... ............4:M
REGISTRY LAWS Crown land — S/nat- 
ter —(• rant — Purchaser for value — 
Prior die» —Notice — Regietry Act. 57 
Viet . c. to, ». C. S. 1905, C 151, *. 

6C—Instrument improperly on regie- 
try | A squatter upon Crown land, 
which he had partly cleared, and upon 
which he had built a house, gave a

REGISTRY LAWS Continued. 
registered mortgage of it in 1874 for 
value, and in 1881 conveyed the equity 
of redemption by registered deed to 
the mortgagee, remaining in occupa­
tion ot the land as tenant. In 18118 a 
son of the squatter, having no know­
ledge of the mortgage or deed, or that 
his fat her occupied tin- land as ten «.lit, 
obtained a grant of the land from I he 
Crown ’.—Held, that he should not he 
declared a trustee of the land for the 
purchaser from the father. Semble, 
ill it s. lit» of the Beg «try Act. f>7 Vict,, 
e. 20 (C. S. I MM, c. l.»l, s. (Mi. by which 
it is provided that “the registration 
of any instrument under this Act shall 
constitute notice of the instillment to 
all persons claiming any interest in l he 
lands subsequent to such registration," 
does not apply to an instrument not 
properly on the registry, such as a 
conveyance of Crown land by a squ it- 
ter. BoilIN, Col.LAH AND COMPANY, 
I.I Ml i I I» 1* ThKKI vit 11
-----Priorities Kquit able mortgage

— Mining leases Judgment 
creditor— Sheriffs sale Pur­
chaser Notice (iencral Min­
ing v i. < h luuft, i m -8 
See Pkiokitikm.

RELIGIOUS BELIEF -Witness ..... .'*08
See KVMiKNVK, 2.

RESCISSION Contract Company — 
Shares — ProsiNH'tiM -- Misrep­
resentation—Agent .....ÔM6
See Company, 2.

RESTITUTION Kxecutior — Appeal — 
Reversal of decree 78
See Appeal.

RIVER -Riparian owner»- Water right»
— Foliation of wider—Proof of damage
— Art of Legixlalure.\ I lie pollution of 
a river by a riparian owner will he en­
joined at I he instance of a riparian 
owner lower down without proof of 
actual damage. Generally speaking, 
one not a riparian owner is not « lit it led 
to complain of the pollution of the 
river, and a grant or license from a 
riparian owner to use the water does 
not entitle tin* grantee or licensee to 
complain of its pollution hv another 
ripuian owner. Where plaintiff was 
authorized by Act to take a specified 
quantity of water per day from a lake 
for, among other pmposes, the domes-
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Lie use of its citizens, it was held that 
it wan entitled to enjoin the pollution 
of tlie lake by a riparian owner. Thu 
City ok Ht. John r. Bark Kit......... :t58

t. — Hi/Kirinn owner l’ne of water 
—I*rescript i re title — Mill dam—Inter­
ruption oj water—Statutory /towers— 
lt( medics—lajnaetion— K.r punt faeto 
try (station—Const ructio(\.\ A riparian 
owner has a right to have tin* water 
flow to his land in its natural channel 
without material diminution in its 
volume or sensible change in its 
quality ; and to use it for all ordinary 
and domest ic p irposes ; lie has also a 
right to the reasonable use of it for 
commercial or other extraordinary 
purposes incident to the enjoyment of 
his property, provided he does not 
cause material injury or annoyance 
to other riparian owners. A prescrip­
tive title to the uninleirupted use of 
ihe w ii' i --I n river will not ob­
tained by a riparian owner who has 
made no use of the water different 
from that to which he was cut it ed as 
a riparian owner. Defendants, an elec­
tric lighting company, owning lands 
on lait li sides of a river, and having 
tower by their Act of iucor|Miration to 
mild and maintain dams on the river, 
erected a dam thereon in connection 
with their power house. Plaintiff is 
the owner of a water grist and card­
ing mill, situate lower down on the 
same river. Defendants ran their 
machinery at night, time, and in the 
morning it was their practice, without 
having regard to the length of time 
required for the purpose, to store the 
water until the dam was again full. 
In consequence the plaintiff was de­
prived of water, and his mills were 
orced to shut down for a long number 

of days at a time: —Ifrltl, (I) that de­
fendants’ use of the water was un­
reasonable, and should lie restrained. 
(2) that the statutory powers conferred 
upon the defendants to build the dam 
for the purposes of their business did 
not authorize them to make an un­
reasonable use of the water, to the 
injury of the plaintiff, in t lie absence of 
proof, the onus of e»ta Wishing which 
was upon the defendants, that their 
business con'd not lie carried on ex­
cept with that, result. (H) that a pro­
vision in defendants’ Act, that they

RIVER—Cant in ued.
should he liable to pay damages to any 
owner of property injured by the con­
struction of their dams or works, did 
not apply to damages resulting from 
an unreasonable use of the water; that 
the loss sustained by the plaintiff in 
the enjoyment of his property was 
continuous and substantial, and that, 
under the circumstances, he was en­
titled to relief by injunction. Defend­
ants were empowered by Act to build 
a dam upon complying with certain 
formalities, incluiliiig the filing of a 
plan thereof with and obtaining ap­
proval of the same by the Governor 
in Council. A plan was filed with the 
Governor in Council, but owing to 
misapprehension its approval was not 
obtained. The dam having been built, 
an Act was passed approving of. the 
dam. and providing that the approval 
should have the same force and effect 
as if given bv Ollier in Council of the 
date of the filing of the plan: Held,
that the Act, as e.r /lost facto legisla­
tion, was not to be construed as lega­
lizing the dam. Brown r BATHURST 
Ki.k<ntic and Watkh-Howkh Com­
pany, Limited

SALE Chattel—Warranty — Breach —
Executory contract ........ 346
See Chattel Mortoaok, 2.

-----Mortgage — Sale under power —
Abortive sale—Kedrin —
Costs of sale ........  429
See Mortoaok, 7.

-----Sheriffs — Purchaser — Notice —
Priorities—Judgment creditor 
— Equitable mortgage — Min­
ing leases .............................. 28
See Prioritirh.

SECURITY FOR COSTS - Foreclosure 
See Cohth.

8MAREH0L0FR8 - Company in liquida­
tion— Ijcave to appeal.........231
See Company, I.

-----Company—Sale of assets—Dissent­
ing shareholder ...................571
See Company, 3.

STATUTE R.r post faeto legislation —
Construction of......................543
See Rivkk, 2.

-----Judicial notice of — Bill — Plead­
ing Demurrer 188
See Municipality.
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STATUTE OF LIMITATIONS - Agent-Re- 
ceipt of rents— Right to an
account..................................... 410
See Auk NT. 2.

----- Statutory powers — Water — Ri-
parian owners — Mill dam —
Interruption of water........ 643
See River, 2.

SQUATTER Crown land—Grant— Pur­
chaser for value—Priorities— 
Notice—Registry Act, 67 Viet., 
c. W, k. 00: C. S 1003, c. 161, s 
00 Instrument improperly on
registry ...................................  14
See Rkuixtry Laws.

TAXATION — Exemption from —Munici­
pality — By-law— Discrimina­
tion .....  138
See Municipality.

TELEPHONE COMPANY Stile of el,ni ter— 
Oiitutntuthifl ii{/eeenienf llif/hl of 
fhinl jmelf/ In ohjeef In Mile ) By 
agreement, which was to lie in force 
for ten years, the Cumlierland Tele­
phone Co. and the Central Telephone 
Jo. were to have the use of each 
other’s lines and of any connections 
either then hail or might thereafter 
acquire over the lines of any other 
company. Shortly after the making 
of the agreement the Central Co. Hold 
its property .<» the New Brunswick 
Telephone ( *o. By its charter t lie ( 'en­
trai Co. had power to amalgamate with 
any other company, and the Act of 
incorporation of the New Brunswick 
Co. empowers it to acquire other tele­
phone lines. The agreement of sale 
provided that the Cumberland Co. 
should have, by virtue of its agree­
ment with the Central Co., the use of 
so much of the New Brum wick Co.’s 
lines as were acquired from the Central 
Co. The Cumlierland Co. sought to 
restrain the sale unless provision were 
made in the agreement of sale that it 
should have the use of the whole sys­
tem of the New Brunswick Co. :— 
lit Itl, that the hill should In>dismissed. 
l/elil. also. I hat the sale and purchase 
lieing within the powers of the com­
panies, could not he objected to, and 
even if it. were ultra vire«, the plain­
tiffs h nl no status entitling them to 
raise the «mention. Semble, that tin* 
sale should not have been enjoined 
even if the New Brunswick Co. had 
not assumed the contract of tin* Cen­
tral with the Cumberland Co. New

TELEPHONE COMPANY-Continued.
Cumberland Telephone Company 
v. Central Telephone Company, 
I.I.MITI-: 11 ........................................................386

TRUSTEE -Creditors' deed — Balance in 
hands of trustee —Repayment 
to debtor—Collection of debts 
due estate--Negligence of trus­
tee— Bin ploy ment of attorney

MB
See Debtor and Creditor, 1. 

WARRANTY -Sale of chattel—Bmtcli- 
Retnedy 846
See Chattel Mortoaok, 2.

WILL - Const nul ion — Maintenance 
clause— Lien.| Where a testator by 
his will gave his estate, consisting of 
farm ami dwelling, and personal prop­
erty, to his sou, ii|Niu condition that 
he would maintain testator’s w «low 
and daughters, except ill the event of 
their marrying or leaving home, and 
declared that they should have a home 
in the dwidling while unmarried, it 
was held that the estate was charged 
with their maintenance. Cool v.
CooL.................... .......................... ........... 11

Î.-----Will — Construction— Trust )
Testator by his will conveyed pioperty 
to tmelees upon trail t>> par to his 
daughter an' annuity of $1,000 during 
her life, and on h«*'rdeath to Invest the 
securities set apait to pay said annuity 
and to divide such investment among 
Ids daughter's children oil the young- 
«•st coming of age Tin* w -
videdlhat should the daughter he alive 
oil her youngest rliild coining of age, 
the daughter, if she should see fit, 
might have and recel vt* from the triis- 
tees i he fund set apart to \ leld said 
annuity, and the same should be abso­
lutely assigned to her free from all con­
trol of her husband. Tin* youngest 
child came of age in lhe lifidinie of tin* 
daughter, who died without making a 
request to have tin- fund ti a listen ed 
to her : llelil, that there was an abso­
lute trust in favor of tin* children.
which would not have lx-en defeated 
had tin* request 1m*«*h made. In re
Kihheii Tkuhih ....................................688
WINDINC-UP — ( 'oinpa nv — Sliarehohler

—Leave to appeal .................231
See Company, I.

WITNESS -Religiousbelief...... .........  608
See Evidenc e, 2.
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